

M2.52

R14775

MACLACHLAN & STEWART EDINBURGH.



PATHOLOGICAL

AND

PRACTICAL RESEARC

DISEASES OF THE

SPINAL COR

PATHOLOGICAL

AND

PRACTICAL RESEARCHES

ON

DISEASES OF THE BRAIN

AND

SPINAL CORD.

Digitized by the Internet Archive in 2015

PATHOL

PRACTICAL:

DISEASES ()

SPINA SPINA

TOUR

MACLACHLA?

https://archive.org/details/b21959432

PATHOLOGICAL

AND

PRACTICAL RESEARCHES

ON

DISEASES OF THE BRAIN

AND THE

SPINAL CORD.

BY JOHN ABERCROMBIE, M.D.

OF THE ROYAL COLLEGE OF PHYSICIANS OF EDINBURGH, &c.
AND FIRST PHYSICIAN TO HIS MAJESTY IN SCOTLAND,

FOURTH EDITION.

EDINBURGH:

MACLACHLAN, STEWART, & CO.

LONDON: LONGMAN, BROWN, GREEN, & LONGMANS.

MDCCCXLV.

PREFACE.

It is a matter of the utmost de cian to obtrude upon the profe statements, in regard either to t lisease, or the action of remedic seh statements does not depend Too the character which he be is all observer, and the extent of which his conclusions are axes the hesitation with which - peral statements, when made Some Opportunities of observations duction we are not acquainted Trance which we attach to a its in a concise and accessibility m hypothesis and system. T second contributes that which value, dependent only up is furnished a spries of f it her may study for limse

The state of the s La relations to cach other

J. THOMSON, PRINTER, MILNE SQUARE.

PREFACE.

It is a matter of the utmost delicacy for a physician to obtrude upon the profession his general statements, in regard either to the phenomena of disease, or the action of remedies. The value of such statements does not depend upon his veracity only, but, must likewise rest in a very great degree, upon the character which he bears as a philosophical observer, and the extent of the observations on which his conclusions are founded. arises the hesitation with which we receive all general statements, when made by persons with whose opportunities of observation and habits of induction we are not acquainted; and the importance which we attach to a simple record of facts, in a concise and accessible form, apart both from hypothesis and system. The author of such a record contributes that which has a fixed and certain value, dependent only upon his correctness in distinctly describing what he has seen; and thus is furnished a series of facts which every practitioner may study for himself, and from which he may acquire a knowledge of phenomena, and of their relations to each other, nearly in the same manner as he does from his own observation.

science.

In the revolutions of medical science there has been, for some years, a progressive and remarkable change of opinion, in regard to the mode of conducting medical investigations. There appears to have been a tacit but very general admission of the fallacy of medical hypotheses, and the precarious nature of general principles in medicine; and there seems to be an increasing conviction of the indispensable necessity, of founding all our conclusions in medical science, upon an extensive and accurate acquaintance with the pathology of disease. facts which are required for this purpose can be derived only from the contributions of practicalmen: and it is of the utmost consequence that such persons should extensively record their observations. as these must form the only basis on which can be founded any legitimate principles in medical

General principles in physical science are nothing more than general facts, or facts which are common to all the individuals of a particular class; and it is only when they are deduced from a correct examination of all these individuals, that they can possess either truth or utility. When they have been framed from a limited observation, they are, in general science, useless, and in medicine, dangerous; and in regard to medical science we may perhaps venture to assert, that the purposes of practical utility are promoted in almost an equal degree, when a principle which has been proposed is confirmed by the progress of observation, and when one which has been received upon inadequate grounds is shown to be fallacions.

Influenced by these considerations, the author of the following treatise has, from time to time, submitted to the profession a seric various important subjects, of a practical nature; and he now i practical nature; and he now i nected and more extended for has no system to support, and to propose. He may indulge these he will keep entirely dis upon which they are founded, inches character than that of a lacts, which a practice of consbrought under his view; and h

enlarging our acquaint; nee w

PRIFACE.

This volume is divided in the strain of these refer to commend under three clases. It is a strained under the affection of the strained class generally terminate state, or a state of coma, and it is a state of coma, and it is a state of the distinguished by appear to be sufficiently distinct an arbitrary division of the state membranes; and in an appearance of the distinguished outline is given of the problems.

mitted to the profession a series of researches, on various important subjects, of a pathological and practical nature; and he now intrudes upon their attention with farther observations, in a more connected and more extended form. In doing so, he has no system to support, and no new doctrines to propose. He may indulge in conjectures, but these he will keep entirely distinct from the facts upon which they are founded. He assumes no higher character than that of a faithful relater of facts, which a practice of considerable extent has brought under his view; and he aspires to no higher merit, than to contribute something towards enlarging our acquaintance with the phenomena of disease.

This volume is divided into four parts. The three first of these refer to diseases of the Brain, arranged under three clases, the Inflammatory, the Apoplectic, and the Organic. This arrangement will probably answer every practical purpose; for, though the affections of the inflammatory class generally terminate by an apoplectic state, or a state of coma, and the organic affections are often distinguished by apoplectic paroxysms, yet, in a pathological point of view, the classes appear to be sufficiently distinct, for the purpose of an arbitrary division of the subject. The fourth part refers to the diseases of the Spinal Cord, and its membranes; and in an appendix to this part, a slight outline is given of the present state of our knowledge in regard to the pathology of Nerves.

PREFAC

10

THE THIRD ED

Is the third Edition, which, It is not students, is printed in time a considerable number of the macrosions have been added from the more important of the negral kind, will be found in Ca 21. and 132. In preparing author has also availed himsoften observations, which have by lume, by M. Gendrin. Which is eninent individual occumulations and that this translations is students and that this translations is students.

E. Argh, August 1834.

PREFACE

TO

THE THIRD EDITION.

In the third Edition, which, for the accommodation of students, is printed in a small and portable form, a considerable number of new facts and observations have been added from various sources. The more important of the new matter, of an original kind, will be found in Cases 7, 26, 80, 85, 96, 121, and 132. In preparing this Edition, the Author has also availed himself of many important observations, which have been added, in the form of notes, to the French translation of this volume, by M. Gendrin. Whenever the name of that eminent individual occurs, the reader will understand that this translation is referred to.

Edinburgh, August 1834.

CONTENTS

PART 1.

OF THE INFLAMMATORY OF THE BRAIN

SECTION 1

GENERAL VIEW OF THE STY CATING INFLAMMATORY IN THE HEAD

SECTION I

OF THE PRINCIPAL SEATS THE DISEASE

Dura Mater. Pia Mater and Arachno'd. 3. Substate of the Hemisphe

4. Dense Central Parts—For

L. Fatal in the Inflammatory J. Mell by Effection 3. Det stin of Palse Men by

i, National Sement, or Solle Substance.

Thicsening of the Membra

CONTENTS.

PART I.

OF THE INFLAMMATORY AFFECTIONS	Page
OF THE BRAIN	3
SECTION I.	
GENERAL VIEW OF THE SYMPTOMS INDI- CATING INFLAMMATORY DISEASE WITHIN THE HEAD	5
SECTION II.	
OF THE PRINCIPAL SEATS AND TERMINA- TIONS OF THE DISEASE	18
SEATS 1. Dura Mater. 2. Pia Mater and Arachnoid. 3. Substance of the Hemispheres. 4. Dense Central Parts—Fornix, Septum, &c.	19
Terminations 1. Fatal in the Inflammatory Stage. 2. Serous Effusion. 3. Deposition of False Membrane. 4. Suppuration. 5. Ramollissement, or Softening of the Cerebra Substance. 6. Thickening of the Membranes, &c.	19

SECTION III.

INFLAMMATION OF THE DURA MATER 2	7.7
Connected with Disease of the Ear and Caries of the Temporal Bone	1 1 10 10 12
SECTION IV.	
INFLAMMATION OF THE ARACHNOID AND PIA MATER, OR MENINGITIS 4	19
\$ 2. Meningitis of very great Extent, with Obscure Symptons \$ 3. Meningitis of very small Extent, with Severe Symptoms \$ 4. Meningitis of the Base, \$ 5. Meningitis with Suppuration on the Surface \$ 6. Meningitis with Suppuration in the Ventricles \$ 7. Meningitis of the Cerebellum, \$ 8. Of a very Dangerous Modification of the Disease	550 555 556 57 58 58 59
SECTION V.	
INFLAMMATION OF THE SUBSTANCE OF THE HEMISPHERES	71
\$ 3. The Inflamed Mass passing into Ramollissement	73 77 81 85

The Affection in a Corola som, with Ram

The Affection in a Corola som, with the some the small extent, and remarkable some the Ramellosement and Remarkable 1 sectors.

Baselar Artery
Remodissement combined with Sapporation
Extensive Undefined Suppuration with Extensive Undefined Suppuration with Extensive Linear Corpus Structure in very stance.

The Encosted Abscess
Alexens of the Corpus Structure in very stance.

Review of the Corpus Structure in very stance.

La Absense if the Medulla Oblongata.

La Corpus Structure in the Stance.

General Review of the Suppuration.

SECTION VI.

-CLAMMATION OF THE CUMTRAL THE VENTRICLES s 2. The Indammatory Origi of the Ramolic the self-nut Town 23 Ram - September of the Control Parts, Fact Effort a selected the Center! Parte (he is the manufacture to i un of some Hy weep of s Care Instracting a me amportant Var Te Abert - (" tring to Putho (a) See Court & Effect of General Review of the Sur. 1. TE OF THE PAIN THAMMATORY AF

CONTENTS.

31

	Page
§ 5. The Affection in a Chronic form, with Ramollisse-	
ment of small extent, and remarkable symptoms	86
§ 6. The Affection in a Chronic form, with extensive	2
Ramollissement and Remarkable Disease of the	00
Basilar Artery	89
§ 7. Ramollissement combined with Suppuration .	91
 7. Ramollissement combined with Suppuration 8. Undefined Suppuration 9. Extensive Undefined Suppuration with Extravasated 	92
§ 9. Extensive Undefined Suppuration with Extravasated	1 04
Blood	94
§ 10. The Encysted Abscess § 11. Abscess of the Corpus Striatum of very small Exten § 12. Abscess of the Medulla Oblongata § 13. Abscess of the Cerebellum § 14. Ulceration of the Surface of the Brain	95
§ 11. Abscess of the Corpus Striatum of very small Exten	103
§ 12. Abscess of the Medulla Oblongata	103
§ 13. Abscess of the Cerebellum	104
§ 14. Ulceration of the Surface of the Brain	107
General Review of the Subject	101
SECTION VI.	
INFLAMMATION OF THE CENTRAL PART	5
—CORPUS CALLOSUM, FORNIX, SEPTUM LUCIDUM, AND THE MEMBRANE LINING	I
LUCIDUM, AND THE MEMBRANE LINING	X
THE VENTRICLES	123
	100
§ 1. Inflammation of the Membrane lining the Ventricles	125
§ 2. The Inflammatory Origin of the Ramollissement of	
the Septum Lucidum	127
§ 3. Ramollissement of the Central Parts, Fatal withou	
Effusion .	128
§ 4. Ramollissement of the Central Parts, combined with	1
Serous Effusion, constituting the most common form of Acute Hydrocephalus	130
Cases illustrating some important Varieties in the	
Symptoms	133
The Affection occurring in Phthisical Cases	137
§ 5. Cases of Simple Effusion	141
General Review of the Subject	143
Soliotal receion of the Sangeon	140
SECTION VII.	
SECTION VII.	
ALLEGER OF BUILD DAY	
CAUSES OF THE INFLAMMATORY AFFECTION	2
OF THE BRAIN	3
	146
	_
1. Febrile Diseases	_
	146

3. Suppressed Evacuations	
SECTION VIII.	
TREATMENT OF THE INFLAMMATORY AFFECTIONS	
Examples of Successful Cases under various Forms . 155	Gene Gene
	ı
	ŪF
APPENDIX TO PART I.	§ 1.
SECTION I.	\$ -
OF TUBERCULAR DISEASE OF THE BRAIN 162	ı
SECTION II.	
OF CERTAIN AFFECTIONS OF THE BONES OF THE CRANIUM 179	T T
SECTION III.	ı
OF CERTAIN AFFECTIONS OF THE PERI- CRANIUM	\$ 1 \$ 1
	<u> </u>
	14

PART II.

OF THE APOPLECTIC AFFECT

wal View of the Subject etal View of the Symptoms, referred to Thre

SECTION I.

THE CASES OF THE FIRST (1 THOSE PRIMARILY APOPLECTIC

Applexy without any Morbid Appearance, Apoplexy
Apoplexy with Serous Fiffusion

Extensive Effusion without any Apople Of the term, Serous Apoplexy Concusions from a Review of this p Sabject .

SECTION I.

THE CASES OF THE SECOND CL HESE WHICH BEOLY WITH A ATTACK OF HEADACH, AND PA

The Coma rapidly supervening on the Pira

All interval of perfect recommendations of the commentarion of the comment of the terms the Attack and the Occurrence of 3. At interval of three days between the Att 4. The fatal Coma occurring a forthight after Two distinct Extravasations

222

225

226

227

PART II. OF THE APOPLECTIC AFFECTIONS. Page 199 General View of the Subject General View of the Symptoms, referred to Three Classes 203 SECTION I. OF THE CASES OF THE FIRST CLASS, OR THOSE PRIMARILY APOPLECTIC § 1. Apoplexy without any Morbid Appearance, or Simple 207 Apoplexy 211 § 2. Apoplexy with Serous Effusion . Extensive Effusion without any Apoplectic Symp-214 215 Of the term, Serous Apoplexy Conclusions from a Review of this part of the 217 Subject SECTION I. OF THE CASES OF THE SECOND CLASS, OR THOSE WHICH BEGIN WITH A VIOLENT ATTACK OF HEADACH, AND PASS INTO APOPLEXY GRADUALLY 217 § 1. The Coma rapidly supervening on the First Attack 221 2. An interval of perfect recollection for several hours,

betwixt the Attack and the Occurrence of Coma

§ 3. An interval of three days between the Attack and the

§ 4. The fatal Coma occurring a fortnight after the First

Occurrence of Coma

§ 5. Two distinct Extravasations

Attack

§ 6. The Extravasation confined to the Third and Fourth Ventricles, with remarkable Disease of the Arteries

9. Extravasation in the Substance of the Tuber Annu-

§ 10. Extravasation in all the Ventricles, and along the

§ 7. Extravasation on the Surface of the Brain § 8. Extravasation in the Cerebellum § 9. Extravasation in the C.

CONTENTS.

Page

929 230

234

235

937

277

286

OF APO-

whole course of the Spinal Cord .	237
§ 11. Extravasation in a Cyst, formed by separation of the	
laminæ of the dura mater, from rupture of the mid-	
dle Meningeal Artery	238
Review of the Subject, and of the various Sources of	
the Hæmorrhage in Cases of this Class	239
Of Disease of the Arteries of the Brain .	241
	243
Similar Disease of the Veins .	m TU
SECTION III.	
OF THE CASES OF THE THIRD CLASS, OR	
THE PARALYTIC CASES	246
THE TARALITIO CASES	~40
§ 1. Paralysis with Serous Effusion, or with slight Mor-	0.10
bid Appearances	248
§ 2. Paralysis with Extravasation of Blood of small extent	252
Progress of these Cases—Formation of a Cyst—and	
Absorption of the Coagulum	253
A. The Cyst empty—the Patient dying of	
another Disease . •	256
B. The Cyst empty—the Patient dying of a	
fresh Attack	261
C. Two Cysts empty—the Coagulum partly	
absorbed from a Third-the Patient dying	
of a fresh Attack	262
D. The Cyst on the Surface	264
\$ 3 Paralysis with Ramalliseament	269
§ 3. Paralysis with Ramollissement § 4. Paralysis with Inflammation and its Consequences	273
	274
General Observations on Paralysis •	-/-

SECTION IV.

General Pathology of Paralysis

OUTLINE OF THE TREATMENT

PLEXY

Page

298

322

APPENDIX TO PART II.

CONJECTURES IN REGARD TO THE CIRCULATION IN THE BRAIN

	PART III.	
	OF THE ORGANIC DISEASES OF THE BRAIN	312
2. 3. 4. 5. 6. 7.	Tumors formed by Thickening of the Membranes, &c. Deposition of Albuminous Matter Dense White Tumor, apparently not Organized Flesh-coloured Organized Tumor Tubercular Disease Induration of the Cerebral Substance Ossifications Itydatids	312 313 313 314 314 314 315
(OUTLINE OF THE SYMPTOMS REFERRED TO SEVEN CLASSES.	
4 4	Headach, without any other remarkable Symptom Headach, with Affections of the Senses Headach, Affections of the Senses, Convulsion Convulsion, without Affections of the Senses Cases with Paralysis The Prominent Symptoms in the Stomach Cases with Slight and Transient Λ poplectic Affections	316 318 319 320 32 32

PART IV.

OF THE DISEASES OF THE SPINAL CORD	Page
AND ITS MEMBRANES .	326
SECTION I.	
SECTION I.	
MENINGITIS OF THE CORD	328
SECTION II.	
INFLAMMATION OF THE SUBSTANCE OF THE	
CORD	336
C. J. Fotal in the Inflammatory Stage	00=
S 2 Ramollissement of the Cord	337 338
S 3. Undefined Supportation	353
S 1. Fatal in the Inflammatory Stage S 2. Ramollissement of the Cord S 3. Undefined Suppuration S 4. Abscess	355
SECTION III.	
SEROUS EFFUSION IN THE SPINAL CANAL	356
SECTION IV.	
SPINAL APOPLEXY	359
SPINAL ALOUDENT	203
SECTION V.	
THICKENING AND FUNGOID DISEASE OF THE MEMBRANES, AND FUNGUS OF THE	

CORD ITSELF

SECTION VI. INDURATION OF THE SPINAL CORI SECTION VII. LORD . . SECTION VIII. DESTRUCTION OF A PORTION OF T CORD . . SECTION IX. CONCUSSION OF THE SPINAL CORD SECTION X. of CERTAIN AFFECTIONS OF THE BO CALIDING OBSERVATIONS ON THE COLUMN C SECTION XI.

THOLOGY OF THE SPINAL COMPANY THOUSE TO VARIOUS AND

362

SECTION VI.

	Page 365
SECTION VII.	
NEW FORMATIONS COMPRESSING THE SPINAL CORD	366
SECTION VIII.	
DESTRUCTION OF A PORTION OF THE SPINAL CORD	371
SECTION IX.	
CONCUSSION OF THE SPINAL CORD .	372
SECTION X.	
OF CERTAIN AFFECTIONS OF THE BONES OF THE SPINE	379
SECTION XI.	
CONCLUDING OBSERVATIONS ON THE PA- THOLOGY OF THE SPINAL CORD, WITH REFERENCE TO VARIOUS ANOMALOUS AFFECTIONS	389

APPENDIX TO PART IV.

OUTLINE OF THE DISEASES OF NERVES

Page 415

SELECTION OF CASES ILLUSTRATIVE OF THE ORGANIC DISEASES OF THE BRAIN, BEING A SUPPLEMENT TO PART III.

PATHOLOGICAL

AXJ

PRACTICAL RESEARC

DISEASES OF THE

42(1)

THE SPINAL (10)

PATHOLOGICAL

AND

PRACTICAL RESEARCHES

oN

DISEASES OF THE BRAIN

AND

THE SPINAL CORD.

MSEASES

T,

THE BRAIN, &

L TALT

OF THE

ANFLAMMATORY APPTO

OF THE BLAIN

Partian difficulties attend the investion analysis affects as of the brain. In the largest states of other organs, we are generally accepted the refluences of the refluences and to a large independent of the replacement of

The state prominent of ject of the ject of the ject of the prominent of ject of the ject o

DISEASES

oF

THE BRAIN, &c.

PART 1.

OF THE

INFLAMMATORY AFFECTIONS

OF THE BRAIN.

PECULIAR difficulties attend the investigation of inflammatory affections of the brain. In the inflammatory diseases of other organs, we are generally able to trace the proper symptoms of the inflammation through the whole course of the disease, and to make allowance for any incidental combinations by which they may be modified; but from the rapid effects which all acute diseases of the brain produce upon the sensorial functions, the patient generally becomes, at an early period, unable to express his feelings, and the proper symptoms of the disease are lost amid that suspension of all the faculties to which we give the name of oppression of the brain.

Whenever this remarkable condition occurs, it naturally becomes the prominent object of attention; and, as it has been by long-established usage strongly associated with the idea of pressure upon the brain, the investigation has generally been directed to the discovery of a compressing cause. Effused fluid having been found upon examination after death, in a great pro-

portion of the cases referred to, has on this principle been considered as explaining the symptoms, and here

probably the investigation has closed.

This course of inquiry seems to have been the occasion of much of that obscurity which so long involved the pathology of affections of the brain, particularly the pathology of acute hydrocephalus. More extensive acquaintance with the phenomena of this class of diseases has shown us that the course was fallacious, and has enabled us to ascertain principles of the utmost practical importance. We have learned that the condition which we denominate coma, with its usual concomitant symptoms, is not characteristic of any one condition of the brain, but that it may exist in connexion with diseases which are very different, or even opposite in their nature; that it does not prove the existence of any compressing cause, and particularly that it has no necessary connection with effusion in the brain; farther, that effusion to a great extent may exist in the brain, without producing any of the symptoms which have usually been ascribed to it, and, in particular, that these may all exist in connexion with a state of disease which is simply inflammatory. Following the light thus obtained, we find in the phenomena accompanying inflammation of the brain and its membranes, a subject of much interest and great extent, and one which leads to results of the highest practical value. When applied to the pathology of the disease commonly called acute hydrocephalus, the importance of this investigation is particularly apparent. For I think we may now consider it as ascertained, that this formidable malady is not a mere dropsical affection of the brain, but an inflammatory disease, terminating by effusion; that many of the leading symptoms are not connected with the effusion, but with the inflammatory condition which goes before it; and that without any effusion it may be fatal, with all the symptoms which have usually been considered as characteristic of hydrocephalus.

When we enter more particularly upon this inquiry, we find inflammatory disease in the brain varying con-

many in its characters in Class retit many ar to be referable to three Lesset of the inflammation-its de and the mode of its termination. It the Dura Mater, the Pin Mater, th Enhstance of the Hemispheres, or the tral parts of the brain. In its activ the highest degree of active inflamma r scrofulous inflammation with the arrivity, and with numerous modifica different forms pass into one anothe sible gradations. It may terminate by the deposition of false membra or by the ramellissement of the core phenomena resulting from these se sent to us a field of investigation erisideral e difficulty. But before ingeir, it will be advisable to take esymptoms which indicate influm

SECTION I.

SEANMATORY DIVERSE WITH THE STATEOUS SEASONATORY DIVERSE WITH LIFE STATEOUS SEASONATORY DIVERSE WITH CONTROL OF CONTROL

siderably in its characters in different cases. These varieties appear to be referable to three circumstances; the seat of the inflammation—its degree of activity and the mode of its termination. It may be seated in the Dura Mater, the Pia Mater, the Arachnoid, the substance of the Hemispheres, or the deep-seated central parts of the brain. In its activity, it varies from the highest degree of active inflammation, to the chronic or scrofulous inflammation with the lowest degree of activity, and with numerous modifications by which the different forms pass into one another by almost insensible gradations. It may terminate by serous effusion, by the deposition of false membrane, by suppuration, or by the ramollissement of the cerebral substance. The phenomena resulting from these several varieties, present to us a field of investigation of great extent and considerable difficulty. But before entering upon the inquiry, it will be advisable to take a general view of the symptoms which indicate inflammation of the parts within the head.

SECTION I.

GENERAL VIEW OF THE SYMPTOMS WHICH INDICATE INFLAMMATORY DISEASE WITHIN THE HEAD.

Our knowledge of this subject is not sufficiently matured, to enable us to say with confidence what symptoms indicate inflammation of the substance of the brain, as distinguished from inflammation of its membranes; but the distinction is not of much practical importance, and our present purpose will be answered by a general view of the symptoms which indicate inflammation of any of the parts within the cranium. They appear under a variety of forms, depending probably, either upon the activity of the disease, or the particular part which

is the seat of the inflammation. The leading modifications, as they occur to us in practice, may be referred to the following heads.

I. As the first form of the disease, perhaps we ought to place the *Phrenitis* of systematic writers. It is ehanacterized by fever, watchfulness, acute headach, impatience of light, suffusion of the eyes, and maniacal delirium. This affection, however, is seldom met with as an idiopathic disease, except in a few eases in which it is brought on by the abuse of strong liquors, and in warm climates by exposure to the intense heat of the As a symptomatic affection, it is met with occasionally in fever, and in mania; and a condition nearly allied to it sometimes occurs after injuries of the head. Circumstances will be afterwards mentioned, which render it probable that in this form of the disease the inflammation is primarily scated in the membranes of the brain. When fatal, it is generally by a rapid sinking of the vital powers supervening upon the high excitement, without producing much disorganization of the parts which appear to have been the seat of the disease; for the cases which are referable to this class, when they terminate fatally, are generally rapid in their progress, and the appearances on dissection are often unsatisfactory. There is an affection of frequent occurrence, which perhaps may be referred to this head. It is characterized by a peculiar aberration of mind without any complaint of pain. There is a remarkable restlessness, quickness and impatience of manner, obstinate watchfulness, and incessant rapid talking, the patient rambling from one subject to another, with little connexion, but often without any actual hallueination. He knows those about him, and generally answers distinetly questions that are put to him. There is a rapid pulse, but without the other symptoms of fever; and the disease is apt to be mistaken by a superficial observer for mania, and consequently to be considered as not being attended with danger. But it is an affection of great danger, and is often very rapidly fatal. The nature of it is obscure, and the appearance on dissec-

a is rather unsatisfactory; it c highly rascular state of the Pia Ma tual result of inflammation. II. In a second form of the disect of much attention, the first symptois a sudden attack of convulsion. te urs without any previous illness ceded by slight complaints which h tention; - in one case which will preceded by vomiting, in another l several days. The convulsion is g which in a few days is fatal; in recurs frequently at short interv intervals being sensible and co and after twelve or twenty-four h simenimes after the coma has co time, perhaps for twelve hours, th Cvery from it; and for several da to be in the most favourable stat warning, the convulsion returns, as oma. In a very interesting mod ci the disease, the convulsion is co the body, or to one limb, and is us tarties of the part affected; and i symptom is a sudden attack of ing convulsion. These case in resemblance to the ordinary It will appear in the sequel, the with inflammation of a str And substance; that the atta s precisely to resemble the part at and that the disease in t dranced berond the state of while the symptoms have gone th have terminated in fatal con ret the disease in such cases w need to supputation, or to the and softening of the cerebral

alipi ya

tion is rather unsatisfactory; it consists chiefly of a highly vascular state of the Pia Mater, without any actual result of inflammation.

ماناً إلى ا

. 1 t R 10 as

II. In a second form of the disease, which is worthy of much attention, the first symptom that exeites alarm is a sudden attack of convulsion. This in some cases occurs without any previous illness; in others it is preceded by slight complaints which had attracted little attention:—in one case which will be described, it was preceded by vomiting, in another by slight headach for several days. The convulsion is generally long and severe; in some cases it is followed immediately by eonia, which in a few days is fatal; in others, the convulsion recurs frequently at short intervals, the patient in the intervals being sensible and complaining of headach, and after twelve or twenty-four hours, passes into coma. Sometimes after the coma has continued for a certain time, perhaps for twelve hours, there is a complete recovery from it; and for several days the patient appears to be in the most favourable state, when, without any warning, the convulsion returns, and terminates in fatal coma. In a very interesting modification of this form of the disease, the convulsion is confined to one side of the body, or to one limb, and is usually followed by paralysis of the part affected; and in some cases, the first symptom is a sudden attack of paralysis without the preceding convulsion. These cases are remarkable from their resemblance to the ordinary attack of hemiplegia. It will appear in the sequel, that they are often connected with inflammation of a small defined part of the cercbral substance; that the attack may be so sudden as precisely to resemble the paralytic attack from other causes; and that the disease in the brain may not have advanced beyond the state of simple inflammation, while the symptoms have gone through the usual course, and have terminated in fatal coma. In general, however, the disease in such cases will be found to have advanced to suppuration, or to the ramollissement or peculiar softening of the cerebral substance, to be afterwards more particularly referred to; while, on the other hand, in some very interesting cases of this class, the inflammation will be found to have been entirely seated in the membranes.

III. The third form of the disease most commonly affects ehildren, but may also appear in adults. It is usually preceded for a day or two by languor and peevishness: these are followed by an accession of fever, which is sometimes ushered in by severe shivering. The patient is oppressed and unwilling to be disturbed, and complains of acute pain in some part of the head, with flushing of the face and impatience of light. many cases there is frequent vomiting, which continues for the first day or two; in others, the vomiting is absent. The pain is felt in various parts of the head; frequently it extends along the neek; and sometimes pain is complained of in the arms and in other parts of the body. The pupil is usually contracted; the eye is morbidly sensible, and sometimes suffused; the tongue is generally white, but moist, sometimes quite clean. The sleep is disturbed by starting and frightful dreams, and frequently during sleep there is violent grinding of the teeth. The bowels are generally obstinate, but frequently they are natural: and I have seen the disease attended through its whole course by a spontaneous diarrhœa. After some days, slight delirium begins to appear, at first transient, perhaps only observed during the night, or on first awaking out of sleep; or in some eases the patient lies in a dozing state, and talking ineolierently, but out of which he can be roused so as to talk sensibly. In other eases, instead of delirium, there oceurs a peculiar forgetfulness, the patient using one word instead of another, misnaming persons and things, mistaking the day, or the time of the day, or showing in some similar manner a confusion of thought, which has no resemblance to the delirium of fever. Sometimes he is sensible of it, and appears anxious to correct the mistakes which he has made. These symptoms are followed by a tendency to sleep, and this soon passes into coma. While these symptoms are going on, the pulse, which was at first frequent, usually falls to the

Litural standard or below it; the villent; the ere loses its acute sensibil and vacant, often with squinting an and these are often succeeded by c Wodness, even before the patient falls pase, having continued slow for a c thes only a few hours, begins to ris ti extreme frequency; it has been co bundred in a minute. It is the ouse of the disease extremely uner Tarring perhaps every minute, or eve counsed. This remarkable inequalit in other diseases, except from some and is, in all affections of the head, ing much attention. The patient is perfect coma, sometimes with paraly of the lim's, sometimes with convulsi afer he has continued in this state for disease is fatal. The duration of the tienely various; it is in some cases d weeks, and in others, especially in you fual in five or six days. At some per there is generally a remarkable ren Engines, giving sanguine but decei corn. This usually occurs when the is sequence, or when it is beginning somes, and it is generally the prelu some cases the pulse does not become the start through the whole course of the description for the country of the contract of the country of the describe their feelings, this form of t second by ferer, flushing restlesson elen with remiting; these symptoms a jud gase he stabot and edantitud dean as the stuper appears. This fall still the child continues in a state of coroaching to coma, is often the first 11: '13 charle of the data and the of the IV. The furth form of the disease Est Carlolly in Louna name

- 11, 3 45 th

comment in the It is

fine Tot_Att. 7

ancession it fever,

i it severe shivering.

and some part of the head,

na um uen e f ight. In er - m. Z. ali i Coninges

er er e pare in einabsent.

· and · instruction

To the post if the hody.

des mas, in I freand in the

Mal 1 2 de une disensa

. The transfer of the second

Fig. 11 Fritty beards ()

Company during

The first of the state of the s

natural standard or below it; the pain becomes less violent; the eye loses its acute sensibility, becoming dull and vacant, often with squinting and double vision; and these are often succeeded by dilated pupil and blindness, even before the patient falls into coma. pulse, having continued slow for a day or two, sometimes only a few hours, begins to rise again, and rises to extreme frequency; it has been counted as high as two hundred in a minute. It is through the whole course of the disease extremely unequal in frequency, varying perhaps every minute, or every time that it is counted. This remarkable inequality is not observed in other diseases, except from some temporary cause, and is, in all affections of the head, a symptom deserving much attention. The patient is now in a state of perfect coma, sometimes with paralysis of one or more of the limbs, sometimes with convulsive affections; and, after he has continued in this state for a few days, the disease is fatal. The duration of the complaint is extremely various; it is in some cases drawn out to three weeks, and in others, especially in young children, it is fatal in five or six days. At some period of the disease, there is generally a remarkable remission of all the symptoms, giving sanguine but deeeitful hopes of recovery. This usually occurs when the pulse is falling in frequency, or when it is beginning to rise after the slowness, and it is generally the prelude to coma. In some eases the pulse does not become slow, but continues through the whole course of the disease of nearly uniform frequency.—In young children who cannot describe their feelings, this form of the disease is characterized by fever, flushing, restlessness, and screaming, often with vomiting; these symptoms are succeeded in a few days by stupor and squinting, the pulse coming down as the stupor appears. This falling of the pulse, while the child continues in a state of great oppression, approaching to coma, is often the first symptom which points out the alarming nature of the disease.

IV. The fourth form of the disease, I have observed most commonly in young persons towards the age of

puberty and upwards. It begins like a slight feverish disorder, and for a considerable time excites no alarm. There is slight headach, with general uneasiness of the limbs, impaired appetite, and disturbed sleep; the tongue is foul, and the pulse slightly frequent, probably from 96 to 100. After a few days the complaint appears to be going off; but, at our next visit, we are disappointed to find the patient complaining as much as at first. More active treatment is then adopted, and there is again an appearance of amendment; the tongue perhaps becomes clean, there is some appetite, and better sleep: but there is still some complaint of headach, which varies much in degree from one day to another, never severe, but never quite gone; the pulse continuing a little frequent. Amid these remissions and aggravations, eight or ten days may pass before the disease has assumed any decided character. It is not perhaps before the sixth or seventh day, that even an attentive observer begins to remark, that the degree of headach, though not severe, is greater and more permanent than eorresponds with the general symptoms of fever; that the tongue is becoming clean, the pulse coming down, and the appetite improving, while the headach continues, with an unwillingness to be disturbed, and a degree of oppression which is not accounted for by the degree of fever. In this manner the disease may go on for several days more, until, perhaps about the 12th or 14th day, the pulse suddenly falls to the natural standard, or below it, while the headach is increased, with an evident tendency to stupor. This instantly marks a head affection of the most dangerous character, and the patient now lies for several days in a state of considerable stupor, sometimes with convulsion, often with squinting and double vision. The pulse then begins to rise again, and about this time there is frequently a deceitful interval of apparent amendment; sometimes the squinting goes off, and the eye appears quite natural, the stupor is lessened, and the patient appears easy and intelligent, but soon relapses into perfect coma, and dies in three or four days. The duration

the assure is uncertain; it may be creat needs, or it may be fall in th the term of the disease actuels infruits disturbed the p; there is often a disc bowels, and to this cause the affects chied. There is no urgent sympton excited until, after eight or ten days. at 70 or 60, the pupil dilated, the ev and the child in a state of oppression use sympt ms are soon followed b was similar, and in a few days by of the disease might have been consi tion of the former, as the symptoms of ber I have thought it worthy of a on account of the insidious characte in the early stages, and because it is quer courrence. Cases indeed oc is still less appearance of an affection I have supposed in this description, a is not even the elightest complaint o the my lecture of the disease. V. The fifth form of the disease fored in admiss and it begins with the farm. The patient is f up Proved and unwilling to be disturbe A second lence of the pain. The regal standard, or below it, frequen to in 5 18 cases Andred in other er cases in eye is netwal, in the Thirt with contacted puril Fr a cir and deep reated, and is tres of the head; frequently it; to the ple and son chines to be made of the Car mile. Deli ium frequenti or six days it places into fatal

STMI TONS.

of the disease is uncertain; it may be drawn out to five or six weeks, or it may be fatal in two or three .- When this form of the disease attacks infants, they are observed to be languid and oppressed, with bad appetite, and disturbed sleep; there is often a disordered state of the bowels, and to this cause the affection is probably ascribed. There is no urgent symptom, and no alarm is excited until, after eight or ten days, the pulse is found at 70 or 60, the pupil dilated, the eye fixed and vacant, and the child in a state of oppression tending to stupor; these symptoms are soon followed by coma, generally with squinting, and in a few days by death.—This form of the disease might have been considered as a modification of the former, as the symptoms differ only in degree; but I have thought it worthy of a separate description, on account of the insidious characters which it exhibits in the early stages, and because it is a form of very frequent occurrence. Cases indeed occur in which there is still less appearance of an affection of the head, than I have supposed in this description, and in which there is not even the slightest complaint of headach through the whole course of the disease.

V. The fifth form of the disease I have usually observed in adults; and it begins with violent headach without fever. The patient is found in bed, lying oppressed and unwilling to be disturbed, or tossing about from the violence of the pain. The pulse is about the natural standard, or below it, frequently about 60; the face is in some eases flushed, in others rather pale; in some cases the eye is natural, in others there is impatience of light, with contracted pupil. The pain is usually very acute and deep seated, and is referred to various parts of the head; frequently it seems to shoot from temple to temple, and sometimes it is referred to the ear. There is a look of much oppression, and in some cases vomiting. Delirium frequently appears at an early period, varying in degree from day to day, until after five or six days it passes into fatal coma, the pulse having continued from 70 to 80 through the whole course of the disease. In other cases, the pulse is at

first about the natural standard, afterwards falls to 60 or 50, and at last rises to 120 or 130. The vision is in some cases not affected; in others squinting and double vision occur, and sometimes these symptoms, after continuing for a day or two, disappear not to return; the disease, notwithstanding, going on to a fatal termination. There is in every case more or less delirium, but often slight and transient: and frequently the patient lies in a dozing state, and talking incoherently, but out of which he can be roused, so as to talk sensibly. condition, when it is not accompanied by fever, is always characteristic of a dangerous affection of the brain. There is also frequently observed that peculiar forgetfulness or confusion of thought formerly referred to, which is different from any thing that occurs in fever, and always indicates a dangerous cerebral disease. Sometimes, there is difficulty of articulation; and frequently a hesitation in speaking, from the patient not being able to recollect the word which he intended to make use of. There is generally towards the end more or less coma, which in some cases continues three or four days, in others not above twelve hours, and sometimes the disease is fatal without perfect coma, the patient being able to answer questions distinctly a very short time before death.

To these forms of the disease, other modifications might have been added, but it is impossible to include in any description, all the varieties in the symptoms. One variety has been added by M. Gendrin, which is worthy of attention. It comes on in a very insidious manner, at first often without either headach or fever. There is chiefly observed a certain obscuration of the mental functions, accompanied with lassitude and an appearance of mental depression. The patient seems scarcely to comprehend what is said to him,—asks the same questions several times in succession,—and answers questions put to him with slowness and hesitation. He complains of little unless a general feeling of being indisposed; and thus the symptoms creep on gradually with disturbed sleep, and slight rigors, till they pass

surely destrium, and at last into this was at first not affected, becomes advances.

In all the f rms of this dangerous great variety in the symptoms, and m remined to put us fully upon our gua 1... 18 characters which many of the take place in all the forms of the disca cases which have assumed the most every alarming symptom may subside Laps continues frequent, but it also is cur successive visits we find it falling are disposed to hope that a few days to a favourable termination. During terval, which may continue for sev by we a parent intimate to the medihis farther visits were unnecessary, a payeran take his leave, consider expleses to As the pulse fully, the p to seemed this perhaps is considered fees to the natural standard—he the constantly; and in another day this sli coma. The pulse then begins to rise except frequency, and in a few days All this may go on with very li Lead and without any exception the per contract to suspect danger. lan guing into coma at the very i For recognition the I tied when the many was the time when era and a citation of the Patie les. Vactore dierefore, it inv to the dierefore at inv to test some more more occurrence with reto the of light stufor, convulsive afficient the end of the convulsive afficient to the end of into slight delirium, and at last into coma; the pulse which was at first not affected, becoming rapid as the disease advances.

ms. after (T.

- rainati n.

the second

In all the forms of this dangerous affection, there is great variety in the symptoms, and much observation is required to put us fully upon our guard against the insidious characters which many of the cases assume, and the deceitful appearances of amendment which often take place in all the forms of the disease. Even in those eases which have assumed the most formidable aspect, every alarming symptom may subside. The pulse perhaps continues frequent, but it also is coming down; at our successive visits we find it falling regularly, and we are disposed to hope that a few days will bring the case to a favourable termination. During this deceitful interval, which may continue for several days, I have known a parent intimate to the medical attendant that his farther visits were unnecessary, and I have known a physician take his leave, considering his patient as convalescent. As the pulse falls, the patient is disposed to sleep; this perhaps is considered as favourable; it falls to the natural standard—he then sleeps almost constantly; and in another day this sleep terminates in coma. The pulse then begins to rise again; it rises to extreme frequency, and in a few days more the patient dies. All this may go on with very little complaint of headach, and without any symptom that will lead a superficial observer to suspect danger, until he finds his patient gliding into coma at the very time when he expeets recovery; for the period when the pulse falls to the natural standard is the time when the coma becomes evident, and the situation of the patient probably hopeless. Whenever, therefore, at any period of a febrile disease, there have been remarkable symptoms in the head, such as violent headach, with vomiting and impatience of light, stupor, convulsive affections, or affections of the sight,—though these symptoms may have entirely subsided, and the complaint may again have assumed the characters of simple fever, we must not consider the danger as over, but must be upon our

guard against a period of anxiety which is still before us. An attentive observer may generally remark, in such cases, something which leads him to suspect, that the appearance of amendment is deecitful. Sometimes there is a dilated state of the pupil, giving to the eye a peculiar expression, and sometimes there is a remarkable tendency to sleep. Frequently something unusual may be observed in the patient's manner, such as a fretfulness or querulousness which is not natural to him, —a quick and hurried manner of speaking, or, on the eontrary, a remarkable slowness of speech; difficult articulation, or a peculiar confusion of thought and forgetfulness on particular subjects. But it cannot be too strongly impressed upon the younger part of the profession, that eases occur in which all these symptoms are wanting, and in which the patient appears for several days to be in the most hopeful state of recovery. while in fact his disease is advancing rapidly to a fatal termination.

In this description I have been entirely practical; and I have not entered upon the inquiry, whether all the forms of disease which I have mentioned are to be considered as primary and idiopathic affections of the brain, or whether some of them ought to be looked upon as secondary or symptomatic. It is, however, an important fact, that this disorder does very often occur as a symptomatic affection in the course of other diseases; the most common of which are,—continued fever,—scarlatina,—hooping cough,—measles,—pneumonia,—phthisis, and diseases of the kidnies. It may be useful, therefore, to keep in view those symptoms, which, in the course of any disease, indicate a tendency to this dangerous affection of the brain. They are chiefly the following:

IN THE HEAD.—Violent headach with throbbing and giddiness, especially if the pain be referred to a particular spot, and always to the same part,—tinnitus—sense of weight and fulness—

sinpor—a great propensity obscure and insidious cases, of giddiness is the only ren

STMPTOMS.

IN THE EVE.—Impatience of lighttim or dilatation of the
sion—squinting—blindnesseves outwards—paralysis of
the evelids, producing, accouthat is affected, either the
graing eve—transient attack
couble vision—objects seen
—a long-sighted person so
ordinary vision.

In the Lan-Transient attacks noise in the ears—unusual ing.

15 THE SPERCH.—Indistinct or difficustrated quickness of speech, ness.

It THE PULSE.—Slowness and remarks

Is the Mescales of Particular to

I. THE MESCLES — Paralytic and consider to of particular limbs.

the Oncars of Toren.—Diminus sensation in a limb, or often is of sensation.

to the first of the state

- stupor—a great propensity to sleep. In many obscure and insidious eases, a constant feeling of giddiness is the only remarkable symptom.
- IN THE EYE.—Impatience of light—unusual contraction or dilatation of the pupil—double vision—squinting—blindness—distortion of the eyes outwards—paralysis of the muscles of the eyelids, producing, according to the muscle that is affected, either the shut eye, or the gaping eye—transient attacks of blindness or double vision—objects seen that do not exist—a long-sighted person suddenly recovering ordinary vision.
- IN THE EAR.—Transient attacks of deafness—great noise in the cars—unusual acuteness of hearing.
- IN THE Speech.—Indistinct or difficult articulation unusual quickness of speech, or unusual slowness.
- In the Pulse.—Slowness and remarkable variations in frequency.
- IN THE MIND.—High delirium—transient fits of incoherence—peculiar confusion of thought, and forgetfulness on particular topics.
- IN THE Muscles.—Paralytic and convulsive affections
 —sometimes confined to one limb, or even
 part of a limb; and a state of rigid contraction of particular limbs.
- IN THE ORGANS OF TOUCH.—Diminution or loss of sensation in a limb, or often in a very small part of a limb,—and various morbid conditions of sensation.

In the Urine.—There frequently occurs a remarkable diminution of the secretion—sometimes nearly amounting to complete suppression; and connected with this diminution there is often a frequent desire to pass urine, occasioned probably by the increased aerimony, as the quantity diminishes.

In this important diagnosis, however, minute attention to the correspondence of the symptoms is of more importance than any particular symptom; thus, the peculiar oppression which accompanies a high degree of fever is familiar to every one, and is not reckoned an unfavourable symptom; the same degree of oppression occurring without fever, or with very slight fever, would indicate a head affection of the most dangerous character. In the same manner, a degree of headach and of delirium, which, accompanying a high degree of fever, would be considered as symptomatic, accompanying slight fever, would indicate a dangerous affection of the brain.

In the preceding outline, the symptoms have been described from the eases of most frequent occurrence. We meet with numerous varieties which it is impossible to include under any general description. One of the most remarkable modifications is that which comes on with a sudden attack of palsy, so as to be considered as an apoplectic rather than an inflammatory affection; it is generally connected with inflammation of a portion of the eerebral substance, but may also occur in connexion with inflammation of the membranes. This form of the disease may also take place in a more ehronie manner, in which it goes on for months. In such eases, it is generally distinguished by headach, often confined to one side of the head—loss of memory—affeetions of various organs, as the eye, the ear, or the tongue-eonvulsive affections-palsy of one limb, or one side of the body, and at last ends by coma and death. In such case ramollissement of a part of the fram is generally met with, but somether found of a dark red colour, and rather surrounding parts.

In the particular symptoms likewise rieties occur, as, for example, in the stat in some cases it continues sensible to t where it is unusually contracted; some ing dilated and insensible, it again become ecessi hally one pupil is found to cont other is dilated and insensible. Alterr and distation may also be observed; condition of the pupil is sometimes met it bee mes dilated on the approach of a have observed this several times, and ar of the fact, but am unable to point ou names of the cases in which it occurs. exemplified in one of the cases to be seried. Remarkable recoveries of the erroften a short time before death. So ser ally aged seven, who had perfect Les Charing fallowed by coma; three o arrace of these symptoms, he record on I having for a few hours, knew those end cused sensibly; then relapsed into con ever der. The usual appearances were f the chasion being in large quan as sen someting continue for a day or t Established disease mining its course to any recurrence of it.

La di l'icedine r'oservatione I have sa dia trice is no condition of them which i has simulated as of diseases. They the simulated to this class of diseases. They the simulated the sometimes casily regulated to the simulated to to

brain is generally met with, but sometimes the part is found of a dark red colour, and rather firmer than the

surrounding parts.

1 31 -

· A-> TPtades .: :

trescon; and ...

e set grinner o the gale

and a man that the pe-

is charac-

In the particular symptoms likewise, numerous varicties occur, as, for example, in the state of the pupil: in some cases it continues sensible to the last, and in others it is unusually contracted; sometimes, after being dilated and insensible, it again becomes sensible; oceasionally one pupil is found to contract, while the other is dilated and insensible. Alternate contraction and dilatation may also be observed; and a singular condition of the pupil is sometimes met with, in which it becomes dilated on the approach of a bright light. have observed this several times, and am quite satisfied of the fact, but am unable to point out the particular nature of the cases in which it occurs. It will be found exemplified in one of the cases to be afterwards described. Remarkable recoveries of the senses also oecur, often a short time before death. Some time ago I saw a boy aged seven, who had perfect blindness and loss of hearing, followed by coma; three days after the occurrence of these symptoms, he recovered his sight and hearing for a few hours, knew those about him, and talked sensibly; then relapsed into coma, and died next day. The usual appearances were found on dissection, the effusion being in large quantity. I have also seen squinting continue for a day or two, and then disappear, the disease running its course to a fatal termination without any recurrence of it.

In the preceding observations I have said little in regard to the state of the bowels, because I am satisfied that there is no condition of them which is peculiar or essential to this class of diseases. They are generally obstinate, but sometimes easily regulated, and sometimes spontaneously loose through the whole course of the disease. The motions also vary exceedingly in character, exhibiting in different cases, and at different periods of the same case, all the various forms of morbid appearance, which are met with in other febrile diseases

One of the most common is the evacuation of much green matter like tea-leaves, or chopped spinage; and this, I believe, is the appearance which has been considered so peculiar to affections of the brain, as to have received the name of hydrocephalic stools. This doetrine, I am satisfied, is entirely unfounded in point of fact, and therefore, when it is proposed as a rule of diagnosis, I must consider it as highly dangerous. Every practitioner who divests himself of system, and attends to what is passing before him, will find, that the character of stools here referred to, is by no means peculiar to affections of the brain; and, that hydrocephalus runs its eourse with every possible variety in the appearance of the evacuations, and that even at the most advanced periods of the disease, they may often be found perfectly natural. While it is therefore proper that, in the investigation of this disease, every attention shall be paid to the character of the evacuations, and every means used to correct them when they are morbid, I must consider it as erroncous in principle, and in practice dangerous, to suppose that any particular character of stools is characteristic of hydrocephalus.

SECTION II.

OF THE PRINCIPAL SEATS AND TERMINATIONS OF THE DISEASE.

The preceding outline will serve as a general view of the symptoms, which indicate inflammatory action of some of the parts within the head. When we come to investigate this class of diseases in a pathological point of view, they resolve themselves into important varieties, arising probably from the particular part which is the primary seat of the disease; and important modifications depending upon the manner in which the inflammation terminates.

The sureries in the set of the not Rienal to the following heads. I. The Dura Mater.

H. The Pia Mater and the Aracl to t ken tegemer, both because it is ext usingusa inflammati n of the Pia 2 mation of the Arachnoid, and le caus they seem in general to be affected at

III. The substance of the Henry IV. The dense white matter forms the train,—the septum loci luin, t CIPES COLORUM.

To investigate the phenomena covarious seats of disease, will be one following dissertations; and at the ct conse pence to keep in view the from the modes in which the inflat There are chiefly the following. The

I. I. the Inflammatory Stage, am wrether it he seated in the substance the mem rance, cap end by the Lia M. district to the design, I were of to inflammation is found in the sul

In By Strong Iffesion. In the to as it this class of diseases, to 11. is an hed to the effusion, as is the called or the live see were aged to the con the offused fluid, and the Plactice v or efficient to promoting its absorp im gine very generally adjutted, the

ente I refreeephalus is to be consi l term regions of inflammatory as no censist other consect from Mylch The same area

The class and a work of the little different

The varieties in the *seat* of the inflammation may be referred to the following heads.

I. The Dura Mater.

II. The Pia Mater and the Arachnoid. These may be taken together, both because it is extremely difficult to distinguish inflammation of the Pia Mater from inflammation of the Arachnoid, and because, in point of fact, they seem in general to be affected at the same time.

III. The substance of the Hemispheres.

IV. The dense white matter forming the central parts of the brain,—the septum lucidum, the formix, and the

corpus callosum.

To investigate the phenomena connected with these various seats of disease, will be one of the objects of the following dissertations; and at the same time it will be of consequence to keep in view the peculiarities arising from the modes in which the inflammation terminates. These are chiefly the following. The disease may be fatal,

I. In the Inflammatory Stage, and this may occur, whether it be seated in the substance of the brain, or in the membranes, especially the Pia Mater. In the most distinctly marked cases, however, of this termination, the inflammation is found in the substance of the he-

mispheres.

II. By Serous Effusion. In the earlier investigations of this class of diseases, too much importance was perhaps attached to the effusion, as if it alone constituted the disease called acute hydrocephalus. The symptoms were ascribed to the compressing influence of the effused fluid, and the practice was directed chiefly or entirely to promoting its absorption. It is now, I imagine, very generally admitted, that the effusion in acute hydrocephalus is to be considered as one of the terminations of inflammatory action, though there are certainly other causes, from which serous effusion in those parts may arise.

Increased effusion from a serous membrane, appears to take place under two very different conditions of the

part:-

(1.) Inflammation of the membrane itself, or of the parts immediately adjacent to it. In this manner we see effusion take place in the cavities of the Pleura, and the Peritonæum, from inflammation of these membrancs. The effusion in such cases varies considerably in its character, being in some cases limpid, in others opaque and milky, and in others mixed with yellow floculent matter, or sometimes being nearly purulent. It is difficult to say on what these varieties depend. We may perhaps be allowed to ascribe them in some degree to the scat of the inflammation, and to suppose that when the membrane itself is inflamed, the fluid will be flocculent; and that it will be limpid, when the inflammation is scated in the parts which the membrane covers, the serous vessels of the membrane being thus affected only in a secondary manner. We observe the same varieties in the appearance of the effused fluid in the brain, which we find in the other scrous cavities;

and upon the whole view of the pathology of the dis-

ease, we may consider the principle as fully established,

that inflammatory action is the source of the effusion in

all those acute affections of the brain, which have ge-

nerally been included under the term Acute Hydroce-

PHALUS. (2.) There is, however, another source of serous effusion entirely distinct from this, viz. interruption of the circulation in the veins in any part of the body. In this manner, we see a tightly bandaged limb become ædematous below the seat of the pressure, and we find anasarca of the whole or part of a limb produced by the pressure of tumours, and ascites arising from induration of the liver. Whenever such interruption occurs in the circulation of a vein, it appears that increased effusion takes place from the exhalant branches of those arteries with which the vein is more immediately connected, depending probably upon a state of congestion in these parts, which in its effects is nearly analogous to inflammation. Such a state of impeded circulation evidently takes place in the brain from a variety of causes; such as the pressure of tumours, chronic disease of the si $\mathcal{H}^{n}_{\mathcal{M}^{n}_{\mathcal{A}}}(x,y_{\mathcal{A}}^{n},y_{\mathcal{A}}^{n})$

reserve on the neek certa 1725 a. 2 of the heart, and probacy t and le cordition of the brain to t posed to give the name of simple apr us eduse a produced by such causes arise these affections which have been Hydrocephalus and Serous Apopul In regard to its sear, the effusion Ferent cases. It is found in the -and there is every reason to believ place bernixt the dura mater and th fluid effused in this situation escape opened. It is occasionally met with by the separation of the laminæ of Cases have been described in which confined to one of the lateral vents Est seen, and it is probable that it co in consequence of the obliteration of opening. In quantity, the fluid varie to eight or ten ounces, or more. A stmetimes limpid, sometimes block terlif, ecutating shreds of flaky east it is seen in the ventricles exhib s. le qu'hites of pus. Generally, to contain but a very small proportion In the experiments of Dr. Marcet, Y. 12 less than two erains of anim enter of muco extractive with a In other cases, however, it is conquisecus to be, that it varies exceed quality and in the quality of the ar II. By Deposition of False Men from indamination of the membranos found emixt the bone and the d taix the Jura major and the draching entry seat of it is under the affect eten for all of anal extent, comme nuses, tumours on the neck, certain diseases of the lungs and of the heart, and probably from that very remarkable condition of the brain to which I have proposed to give the name of simple apoplexy. From serous effusion produced by such causes as these, probably arise those affections which have been called Chronic Hydrogerhalus and Serous Apoplexy.

In regard to its sear, the effusion of course varies in different cases. It is found in the ventricles, -under the arachnoid.—betwixt the arachnoid and dura mater; —and there is every reason to believe that it also takes place betwixt the dura mater and the bone, though the fluid effused in this situation escapes when the head is opened. It is occasionally met with in a cavity formed by the separation of the laminæ of the septum lucidum. Cases have been described in which the effusion was confined to one of the lateral ventricles. This I have not seen, and it is probable that it could only take place in consequence of the obliteration of the communicating opening. In quantity, the fluid varies from a few drams to eight or ten ounces, or more. As to quality, it is sometimes limpid, sometimes bloody, and sometimes turbid, containing shreds of flaky matter. In some cases it is seen in the ventricles exhibiting all the sensible qualities of pus. Generally, however, it seems to contain but a very small proportion of animal matter. In the experiments of Dr. Marcet, a thousand grains yielded less than two grains of animal matter, which consisted of muco extractive with a trace of albumen. In other cases, however, it is coagulable, and the truth seems to be, that it varies exceedingly, both in the quantity and in the quality of the animal matter which is contained in it.

III. By Deposition of False Membrane.—This arises from inflammation of the membranous parts, and it may be found betwixt the bone and the dura mater, or betwixt the dura mater and the arachnoid. But the most common seat of it is under the arachnoid, where it is often found of great extent, communicating a yellow colour to a great part of the hemisphere. In some cases

it is found following the course of the arachnoid alone, or dipping slightly betwixt the convolutions by small triangular projections; in other cases, it follows entirely the course of the pia mater, producing complete adhesion of the convolutions to each other. It is occasionally found within the ventricles, covering the surface of the choroid plexus; and a very common seat of it is the upper surface of the tentorium.

IV. By Suppuration .- A thin uniform layer of puriform matter is often found under the arachnoid, and oceasionally between the arachnoid and the dura mater, and between the dura mater and the bone. It is also met with in distinct small cavities formed by partial adhesions of the membranes to the bone or to each other, and it is oceasionally found in the ventricles. the principal seat of purulent matter is in the subtance of the brain; and here either it is met with in distinct defined abscesses, lined by soft eysts, or an extensive portion of the cerebral substance is found in a broken down corrupted state, in which, without any well-defined cavity, pus is found mixed with the disorganized cerebral matter. The cerebellum is a frequent seat of abscesses, and they may be found of small size but well defined in the centre of any of the more minute parts, as in the medulla oblongata, or the pineal and pituitary glands. An example will be given of a well-defined abscess, no larger than a small bean in the substance of the corpus striatum.

V. By Ramollissement.—This is a disorganization or softening of the brain, which has now received that name, —a term adopted from the French to express the peculiar morbid appearance; and I retain the French name, to distinguish this very peculiar disease from slight degrees of softening of the substance of the brain, which are often met with, but which do not constitute this affection. It consists in a part of the cerebral substance being broken down into a soft pulpy mass, like thick cream, or custard,—retaining its natural colour, but having lost its cohesion and consistence. It differs entirely from suppuration, having neither the colour nor the

LEMINATIONS.

fear of pas: but the white parts of it is most commonly observed retain it is most commonly observed retain that the most common seat of it in the dense white matter forming the famix and septum lucidum. The septume and its consistence, or retains is seit untouched, but falls down into when the sightest attempt is made to

thing to the pathology of this rem hai no hesuati in in considering it of infimmation of the ecrebral su time, it has been investigated with M. Ristan and other French patho ent view of the nature of the affection ly contended for by these eminent consider it as an affection of the brai ri, and M. Rostan, in particular, see as a popular and primary disease of he admits it is sometimes the result From all the facts which are now I to this interesting affection. I think arise at the conclusion, that it occur discost to which differ essentially fro the cases of M. Rostan, the disorg served energy in the external part Course almost entirely in very off cases being under sixty years of a serenty five, and eighty. CLASSION with attacks of a para End many of them protracted; an examined with extravasation of blood, applecte erets. On the contrary which my pretrations have chiefly t tix, some hood central parts of fetor of pus; but the white parts of the brain in which it is most commonly observed retain their pure milky whiteness. It may be found in any part of the brain; but the most common seat of it in my observations is the dense white matter forming the corpus callosum, fornix and septum lucidum. The septum is generally found in such cases perforated by a ragged irregular opening, and the fornix has either entirely lost both its figure and its consistence, or retains its figure while it is left untouched, but falls down into a soft pulpy mass, when the slightest attempt is made to raise it.

When I formerly endcavoured to contribute something to the pathology of this remarkable affection, I had no licitation in considering it as one of the results of inflammation of the cerebral substance. Since that time, it has been investigated with much attention, by M. Rostan and other French pathologists, and a different view of the nature of the affection has been strongly contended for by these eminent individuals. They consider it as an affection of the brain entirely sui generis, and M. Rostan, in particular, seems to look upon it as a peculiar and primary disease of the brain, though he admits it is sometimes the result of inflammation.

From all the facts which are now before us, in regard to this interesting affection. I think we are enabled to arrive at the conclusion, that it occurs under two modiffications which differ essentially from each other. In the eases of M. Rostan, the disorganization was observed chiefly in the external parts of the brain; it occurred almost entirely in very old people, few of his cases being under sixty years of age, many of them seventy, seventy-five, and eighty. It was found in connexion with attacks of a paralytic or apoplectic kind, many of them protracted; and was often found combined with extravasation of blood, or surrounding old apoplectic cysts. On the contrary, the affection, to which my observations have ehicfly referred, was found chiefly in the dense central parts of the brain, the fornix, septum lucidum, and corpus callosum, or in the cerebral matter immediately surrounding the ventricles;

and occurred in persons of various ages, but chiefly in young people and in children. It took place in connexion with attacks of an acute character, chiefly the eharacter of acute hydrocephalus; and it was in many cases distinctly combined with appearances of an inflammatory kind, such as deep redness of the cerebral matter surrounding it, suppuration bordering upon it, and deposition of false membrane in the membranous parts most nearly connected with it. We may even observe in different parts of the same diseased mass, one part in the state of ramollissement, another forming an abseess, while a third retains the characters of active inflammation, and probably exhibits, as we trace it from one extremity to the other, the inflamed state passing gradually into the state of softening. Remarkable examples of this will be given in the sequel, and another of a different nature, in which an opening in the septum lueidum produced by the ramollissement, was entirely surrounded by a ring of inflammation. This is the affection which I have endeavoured to investigate, and which I consider as one of primary importanee in the pathology of acute affections of the brain, and upon the grounds now shortly referred to, I eannot hesitate to eonsider it as a result of inflammation.

When we compare the facts now alluded to, with the observations of M. Rostan and his friends, I think we may arrive at a principle by which the apparent difference may be reconciled. The principle to which I refer is, that this peculiar softening of the cerebral matter is analogous to gangrene in other parts of the body; and that like gangrene it may arise from two very different causes, inflammation, and failure of the circulation from disease of the arteries. The former I conceive to be the origin of the affection which I have described, and the latter to be the source of the appearances described by M. Rostan. If this doctrine be admitted, the difficulty is removed; and I do not see any good objection to it. Gangrene from inflammation is familiar to every one; and equally familiar, though very different in its

onein and concomitant symptoms. disase of the arteries of any particu Ocideation of the arteries of the b extent is a common appearance in seems to be a very frequent source extravasation of blood, at advanced appears extremely probable that it ef that particular condition of a part terminates in the ramollissement indeed he distinctly points at this Un the other hand, I am still dispothe ramollissement of young person affections, and seated chiefly in the of the terminations of inflammati structure. I conceive it to be an importance in the pathology of ac brain, and to mark a peculiar seat of very frequent occurrence. It is suppuration in other parts of the b rich effusion in the ventricles: but rest of it is observed in those cases. only morbid appearance, and in wh of small extent. Of this some rewill be given in the sequel, in which the septam lucidam, by softening of stance, and similar softening of th caly morbid appearances in cases w al usual symptoms of acute hydroce VI. As terminations of the disease we still have to remark thickening contraction and obliteration of th the bones, and some other affect Fire, which will be more particula

In the pathology of acute hydro consider it as probable, or almost a scrops efficient is only one of the seal leading condition of the seal leading condition.

origin and eoneomitant symptoms, is gangrene from disease of the arteries of any particular part of the body. Ossification of the arteries of the brain to a very great extent is a common appearance in elderly people, and seems to be a very frequent source of apoplexy with extravasation of blood, at advanced periods of life. It appears extremely probable that it may be the source of that particular condition of a part of the brain which terminates in the ramollissement of M. Rostan, and indeed he distinctly points at this explanation of it. On the other hand, I am still disposed to contend, that the ramollissement of young persons, occurring in acute affections, and seated chiefly in the central parts, is one of the terminations of inflammation in that particular structure. I conceive it to be an affection of primary importance in the pathology of acute affections of the brain, and to mark a peculiar seat of the inflamination of very frequent occurrence. It is often combined with suppuration in other parts of the brain, and very often with effusion in the ventrieles; but the peculiar interest of it is observed in those cases, in which it is the only morbid appearance, and in which it is sometimes of small extent. Of this some remarkable examples will be given in the sequel, in which the perforation of the septum lucidum, by softening of a part of its substance, and similar softening of the fornix, were the only morbid appearances in cases which were fatal with all usual symptoms of acute hydroeephalus.

VI. As terminations of the disease in a chronic form, we still have to remark thickening of the membranes, contraction and obliteration of the sinuses, caries of the bones, and some other affections of the external parts, which will be more particularly referred to in the

sequel.

and and

a was the state of

ing apon it.

.i. We may even

regrent, an ther forming

the characters of ac-

income inflamed state ... C. Foreige Remarks

the end of the segment and

a. A in in creping in

. . 1 - the for Perent.

ring of infamation.

to have indearoused to be

berg one of primarime

- से मुश्रहीटराई to

Control of Indian

्रा का में जी मिले का विश्वास

In the pathology of acute hydrocephalus, we may consider it as probable, or almost ascertained, that the serous effusion is only one of the terminations of that inflammatory condition of the brain, which is a great and leading object of attention in the pathology and the

treatment. Some of the other terminations are scareely less frequent; particularly the ramollissement of the eentral parts; which is sometimes met with as the only morbid appearance, and is found combined with the effusion in a very large proportion of the ordinary eases of hydroeephalus. Other eases, in which the symptoms elosely resemble those of hydrocephalus, will be found to terminate by the undefined suppuration, or by this combined with serous effusion, or with the ramollissement of the eentral parts. fact, we do not often meet with any one of the terminations uncombined, and it is impossible to anticipate from the symptoms, in what manner the disease may terminate in any particular ease. Serous effusion uncombined with any other morbid appearance, I have usually observed in that which I have described, as the fourth form of the disease, in which the symptoms are slow and insidious in their progress, and at no period exhibit much activity. In the eases of this kind in which the pain is more severe, and the symptoms are more violent, I have generally found either effusion combined with the ramollissement of the central parts, or undefined suppuration. In that which I have deseribed as the second form of the disease, I have generally observed the encysted absecss or the deposition of false membrane between the arachnoid and pia mater. But these results are by no means uniform; and the ramollissement in particular may occur with very slight and insidious symptoms. The various terminations, indeed, are very often combined together, and all of them are generally combined with more or less of serous effusion. On what these varieties depend, is at present in a great measure matter of eonjecture. There is some reason to believe, that the darker or cortical parts of the brain are the chief seats of suppuration, and that the inflammation of the more central white matter terminates eliefly by ramollissement. The disease is also greatly modified by the activity of the inflammation, depending probably upon the constitution of the patient. Thus, in some cases, we find it assuming the highest characters of active others, consisting of the pure scrof with the lowest degree of activity; a wind the lowest degree of activity; a numerous modifications by which forms pass one into another by almo tions. Without attempting any genthese points, I shall proceed to desicases calculated to illustrate the variable and inflammation of the membranes at

SECTION III.

INFLAMMATION OF THE DU

Inseparatic inflammation of the du uncommon affection; the following is marked case of it that has occurred to

Case I. A lady aged 22, in the Mach 1820, was suddenly seized wi the left temple; I saw her for the fire living morning, when I found the pu tingue white and moist; some pain Isfictemple, but it was not severe; a lecrance corresponded with that c free, though with some characters the train. After general and topic parentres de she was very much r exchair complained of pain in the l thes was emirely free from it, and feing of confusion. The Jain When cained to the left temple, a Less horse general extending over the Lead. And these changes the first Eise paid, with much of the character best to the min more of the milet as diam rement of the

33 not with as the only

in which the symp-

in unlenned suppura-

t it, a ser us effusion, or

; in real parts. In

. J. A. W. L. L. STOPE DS

recording to the kind

so the central parts.

Constitution of the state of

ing the highest characters of active inflammation; in others, consisting of the pure scrofulous inflammation with the lowest degree of activity; and in others, forming numerous modifications by which these two extreme forms pass one into another by almost insensible gradations. Without attempting any general conclusions on these points, I shall proceed to describe a selection of cases calculated to illustrate the various modifications of inflammation of the membranes and of the substance of the brain.

SECTION III.

INFLAMMATION OF THE DURA MATER.

IDIOPATHIC inflammation of the dura mater is a very uncommon affection; the following is the only distinctly marked case of it that has occurred to me.

Case I. A lady aged 22, in the evening of 16th March 1820, was suddenly seized with severe pain in the left temple; I saw her for the first time on the following morning, when I found the pulse about 100, the tongue white and moist; some pain continued in the left temple, but it was not severe; and her whole appearance corresponded with that of mild continued fever, though with some characters of an affection of the brain. After general and topical bleeding, with purgatives, &c. she was very much relieved; she occasionally complained of pain in the head, but at other times was entirely free from it, and mentioned only a feeling of confusion. The pain when present was occasionally referred to the left temple, and at other times, was more general, extending over the upper part of the head. Amid these changes, the first week of the disease passed, with much of the character of continued fever; the tongue white, the pulse varying from 96 to 110, the nights sometimes quiet, and sometimes rest-

In the beginning of the second week, a swelling appeared in the left upper eyelid; her look was now more oppressed, the pulse varying from 96 to 120; the pain varying as before, sometimes a good deal complained of and sometimes quite gonc; and one day sho complained of acute pain in the right ear. On the 27th, she began to have severe shiverings, followed by heat and perspiration, for which an eminent physician ordered her the bark in large doses. For two days after this she seemed much better, the pulse from 90 to 96, and every symptom greatly relieved. The swelling on the left cyclid was punctured, and discharged a good deal of purulent matter; and a probe introduced by the opening passed to a great depth along the upper part of the orbit, where the bone in some places felt bare. On the evening of the 29th, she was seized with slight convulsion, but it soon subsided, and after it she seemed quite as well as on the two preceding days, all the previous symptoms being very much relieved. On the 30th, there was more complaint of headach, with an oppressed look, and the pulse varied exceedingly, being sometimes very rapid, and at other times a little above the natural standard. On the 31st, there was no particular change; she was quite intelligent, and all her senses were entire. When she was last visited about nine o'elock at night, she complained of some uncasiness across the crown of the head, but no other change was remarked in the symptoms. Between one and two in the morning, she was obscrved to be slightly incoherent, and soon after sunk into a state of lowness; did not speak, but seemed quite sensible, and died at three. Very slight delirium had been observed on a preceding night, about the 28th, and once she had complained of dimness of sight, but none of these symptoms had been again taken notice of.

Inspection. On raising the skull-eap a good deal of purulent matter escaped, which had been collected betwixt the bone and the dura mater. The space in which it had been contained was defined by an irregular elevated margin of adventitious membrane, by

nh ch tue dura mater had adhered to c used space being about the size of was on the anterior part of the right dura mater included within this spo its surface was in some places ulcers black but the membrane was quite e was sound. On raising the dura in Lee of this portion had the same irre parance as the outer surface, and w light, the membrane at the part appe Laces considerably thickened, in other right hemisphere of the brain, over which is usually exposed in the ord ing the head, was covered by a th very thick purulent matter, spread equality, and this being removed, a ci adventitious membrane was four roid. It was irregular in thickne markable on the anterior part of the disappearing on the posterior part. coarse of the arachnoid, covering th convolutions, but not dipping between mater betwixt the convolutions wa but vithout any deposition. On cut stance of the right hemisphere, the ed to a slight depth of a dark livid colon change of structure. There was no e mides, and the brain in all other healin. The supportation in the lef ed to a early between the orbit and without any disease of the bones, an nal disease on that side of the cranit In this remarkable case, the inflar Easer appears to have been the prim it was afterwards complicated with e to of the anchold. The only of Tet with in any degree analogous to Enchanged by M. Pizean, though it bing caplicated with disease of th I that int p vsicin

r two days

which the dura mater had adhered to the bone, the included space being about the size of a crown piece: it was on the anterior part of the right hemisphere. The dura mater included within this space was depressed; its surface was in some places ulcerated, and in others black, but the membrane was quite entire, and the bone was sound. On raising the dura mater, the inner surface of this portion had the same irregular ulcerated appearance as the outer surface, and when held up to the light, the membrane at the part appeared to be in some places considerably thickened, in others very thin. The right hemisphere of the brain, over all that part of it which is usually exposed in the ordinary way of opening the head, was covered by a thin uniform layer of very thick purulent matter, spread over it with great equality, and this being removed, an extensive stratum of adventitious membrane was found under the arachnoid. It was irregular in thickness, being most remarkable on the anterior part of the hemisphere, and disappearing on the posterior part. It followed the course of the arachnoid, covering the openings of the convolutions, but not dipping between them. The pia mater betwixt the convolutions was highly vascular, but without any deposition. On eutting into the substance of the right hemisphere, the cerebral matter was to a slight depth of a dark livid colour, but without any change of structure. There was no effusion in the ventrieles, and the brain in all other respects was quite healthy. The suppuration in the left orbit was confined to a cavity betwixt the orbit and the ball of the eye, without any disease of the bones, and without any internal disease on that side of the cranium.

In this remarkable ease, the inflammation of the dura mater appears to have been the primary disease, though it was afterwards complicated with extensive inflammation of the arachnoid. The only ease which I have met with in any degree analogous to it, is one which is mentioned by M. Fizean, though it differs from it in being complicated with disease of the bone.* A boy

[&]quot; Journal de Med. tom, xi. new series, p. 523.

aged 15, had a "fluxion" of the right cheek and pain of the teeth. After some days it ceased, and removed to the left side of the head, where it occupied entirely the eye and its dependencies. He then had irregular attacks of fever, with want of sleep and loss of appetite, and about the 7th day considerable delirium, frequently attempting to get out of bed. On the 8th day, the left eyelid was swelled so as to close the eye, and on raising it the eyeball appeared unusually prominent. He had nausea and severe headach, but was quite sensible, and the fever was moderate; some delirium occurred towards night, and the swelling extended beyond the eyelids over the forehead. On the 9th day, there was permanent delirium; on the 10th, coma and death. The left eyelid and the integuments of the left side of the forehead were imbued with purulent matter; the frontal bone was denuded and carious for a considerable space; the abscess penetrated the orbit, and pus was found in the upper and back part of it, where the bone was also denuded. The caries of the frontal bone occupied the whole thickness of it, and extended in length somewhat beyond the roots of the hairs, and transversely from the external orbitar process beyond the The dura mater was detached and covered with pus over a space corresponding with the external disease, but it was not detached from the superior part of the vault of the orbit. The arachnoid was covered with purulent matter; there was very little fluid in the ventricles, and the brain in other respects was healthy.

The following case, described by M. Prathernon, is referred by M. Gendrin to the head of inflammation of the dura mater. A man aged 62, had violent pain in the upper part of the head, which suffered remissions. When he was first visited, this had continued five days;—there was then considerable torpor, with weakened memory, and some confusion of ideas, but no fever.—Under the usual treatment, the symptoms went on for a fortnight, with little change, unless that there were attacks of fever, and gradual loss of strength. The symptoms then assumed an intermitting character, and

vere treated with quinine. This did son after, an improvement took pl symptoms: the pain was much di man was out of hed, recovered his appeared to be in all respects better. and this, he complained of extreme suddenly expired. The whole duration vas about a month. On puncturing t terbid fluid tinged with blood was dis amount of about a pound, and there v of flood lying on the surface of the tween the obes. The dura mater was Lickened to the extent of two or three at the part corresponding to the prim pain. Its inner surface was of a dee cose and unequal, with adhesions to The arachnoid also was thickened an upper part of the hemispheres.

These are the only cases that I am of all paths inflammation of the dur paths in this manner; but the disease is feen as of the ear and of the petrous. This incl.

This insidious and highly dangerous ray begins with Jain in the car, and highly dangerous may considered merely as a common expense of the expected to relieve the pain of the with shirtering and at last common expenses there is no discharge of matter. The ear, becomes resident and at last comming for a day or two of dad in a shirt time sinks into configuration of a factor supervious after the order of two of dad in a shirt time sinks into connections.

were treated with quinine. This did not agree, but soon after, an improvement took place in all the symptoms: the pain was much diminished, man was out of bed, recovered his appetite, and appeared to be in all respects better. A few days after this, he complained of extreme weakness, and suddenly expired. The whole duration of the ease was about a month. On puneturing the dura mater, turbid fluid tinged with blood was discharged to the amount of about a pound, and there were some elots of blood lying on the surface of the brain and between the lobes. The dura mater was in some places thickened to the extent of two or three lines, especially at the part corresponding to the principal scat of the pain. Its inner surface was of a deep red colour, rugose and unequal, with adhesions to the arachnoid. The arachnoid also was thickened and opaque on the upper part of the hemispheres.

These are the only cases that I am acquainted with of idiopathic inflammation of the dura mater taking place in this manner; but the disease is frequently met with in another form. It occurs in connexion with affections of the car and of the petrous portion of the

temporal bone.

This insidious and highly dangerous affection generally begins with pain in the ear, and for some days may be considered merely as a common car-ach. Sometimes discharge of matter takes place from the ear, which is expected to relieve the pain; but the pain continues or becomes more violent. The patient becomes oppressed and drowsy, then slightly delirious, often with shivering, and at last comatose. In other cases, there is no discharge of matter, but the patient, after complaining for a day or two of deep-scated pain in the ear, becomes restless and forgetful,—lies rolling his head from side to side, or tossing about his arms, and in a short time sinks into coma. In other cases, again, the affection supervenes upon the sudden cessation of a purulent discharge from the ear, which perhaps had been of some standing; such as that which

often follows searlatina. The sudden disappearance of the discharge in these eases, is followed by pain in the ear, this by languor and drowsiness, and in a few days by eoma. The pulse is in some cases frequent, in others natural, and in others below the natural standard. The nature of this disease is illustrated by dissection. There is generally earies of the pars petrosa of the temporal bone, sometimes confined to a small spot of it. A portion of the dura mater corresponding to this part is inflamed and thickened, spungy, or ulcerated, and generally detached from the bone. Between it and the arachnoid, there is commonly a deposition either of purulent matter, or of false membrane, and this deposition sometimes extends along the tentorium. In some cases there is a superficial abscess of the brain itself, or of the eerebellum, often with effusion in the ventricles, and the other usual marks of general disease in the brain. Matter is also frequently found in the cells of the petrous portion, in the canals of the ear, and in the cavity of the tympanum, and sometimes it extends into the eells of the mastoid process.

This disease will be illustrated by the three following cases, the third of which is valuable from showing the disease in an intermediate stage of its progress, the fatal event having taken place from another affection.

Case II.—A gentleman aged 20, on the 20th January 1820 complained of violent toothach, seated in a tooth on the right side of the upper jaw. On the 21st, the pain extended into the ear, without any other symptom. On the 22d, the pain continued in the ear, and extended toward the temple. He lay in bed part of the day, but got up afterwards. Leeches were applied, and he took some laxative medicine, which he vomited, and he had afterwards repeated vomiting. On the 23d, the pain was more general over the head and across the forchead, with some vomiting, and in the evening he had shivering. In the night he became incoherent and delirious: he was then seen by a surgeon, who found him considerably incoherent, but complain-

ing of severe headach; the pulse 70 strength. I saw him on the 24th; his sixty, his face rather pale; the headac was chiefly referred to the forehead; I cant; he answered questions distinct roused, but talked incoherently when li not kept up. He was now treated by bleeding, which he bore well; cold a tering purgatives, &c. On the eveni there was considerable shivering. Un was less complaint of pain, but more a tendency to stupor, pulse from (Pulse from 100 to 120.—27th, and 28 answered questions when roused, but to, lay either in an oppressed state, herealdr; pulse varying from 96 to 1 there was some discharge of fetid matt ear. 20th, Constant incoherent talki good strength; the right eye was suffice ar eared turgid and enlarged, and the vered with a rellowish slough. In the day, the month was at times observed the left side, especially when he was night he began to sink, and died at five

Inspection.—There was some office crackbood on both hemispheres; much section, and extensive rannollissement upon both lateral ventricles. There was part of the picht temporal bone; believed the petrous fortion was dark ecoloured, very tot temporal bone; believed the carity of the ear, the dura matter from its case of recent inflammania.

a I fun in the

dil few diff

" " " Pages frequent, in

s the natural standard.

s is a stated videocitic

n ru : ani ilis de-

r . ong the ten on). In

of the brain it

. f gratil ustase

or the rate of the ear.

·) jure, and sometimes it

The late to fam.

. हार जा भारत है है है है

(III)

1 al al ay (138) . M.

The tree is not the bend that the lead to the lead to

The had with the had

ing of severe headach; the pulse 70 and of moderate strength. I saw him on the 24th; his pulse was then sixty, his face rather pale; the headach continued, and was chiefly referred to the forehead; his look was vacant; he answered questions distinctly when he was roused, but talked incoherently when his attention was not kept up. He was now treated by repeated general bleeding, which he bore well; cold applications, blistering, purgatives, &c. On the evening of the 24th, there was considerable shivering. On the 25th, there was less complaint of pain, but more incoherence, and a tendency to stupor, pulse from 60 to 70.—26th, Pulse from 100 to 120.—27th, and 28th, Little change; answered questions when roused, but when not spoken to, lay either in an oppressed state, or talking incoherently; pulse varying from 96 to 120. On the 28th there was some discharge of fetid matter from the right ear. 29th, Constant incoherent talking, pulse 96, of good strength; the right eye was suffused, the ball of it appeared turgid and enlarged, and the corner was covered with a yellowish slough. In the course of this day, the mouth was at times observed to be drawn to the left side, especially when he was drinking. At night he began to sink, and died at five in the morning of the 30th.

Inspection.—There was some effusion under the arachnoid on both hemispheres; much effusion in the ventricles, and extensive ramollissement of the septum lucidum, the fornix, and the cerebral matter bordering upon both lateral ventricles. There was extensive earies of the right temporal bone; behind the ear on the thin part of the bone it was very dark-eoloured; and the petrous portion was dark-eoloured, very soft, and when eut into, discharged matter from its cancelli and from the eavity of the ear; the dura mater corresponding to the temporal bone, was much thickened. The part of it which lay anterior to the petrous portion was in a state of recent inflammation; the part behind the petrous portion was much thickened and spungy; and between it and the bone there was a deposition of thick purulent

matter. From this place the disease had spread along the tentorium, and over nearly the whole surface of the cerebellum, on almost every part of which there was a deposition of coagulable lymph, with thick flocculi of purulent matter; this was most abundant on the tentorium, and on the right and posterior parts of the cerebellum, and it was traced into the fourth ventricle. Under the cerebellum there was a considerable quantity of pus, and in its substance there was a small abseess in the posterior part betwixt the lobes.

Case III.—A girl aged 9, had been liable to attacks of suppuration of the ear, which were usually preceded by severe pain and some fever. She suffered one of these attacks in the left ear in July 1810, from which she was not relieved, as formerly, when the discharge of matter took place, but continued to be affected with pain, which extended over the forehead. In consequence of this, I saw her, for the first time, on the day on which the discharge took place, and found her affected with pain across the forehead, impatience of light, and some vomiting; her look was oppressed, and the pulse 84. Bloodletting, purging, blistering, and mercury, were employed without relief. On the second day, the pulse was 60; on the 3d, there was slight and transient delirium, a degree of stupor, and slight convulsions. She complained once or twice of pain in the back of the head, but her chief complaint was always of the forehead. She lay constantly with both her hands pressed upon her forehead, and moaning from pain, of which there had not been the least alleviation; 4th day, pulse from 80 to 86; no change in the symptoms; oppression, but no coma: 5th day, continued sensible, and died suddenly in the afternoon, without either squinting, blindness, or coma, and the pulse having continued under 90. The left car had continued to discharge matter, and an opening had formed behind the external ear, from which also there was a purulent discharge.

Inspection.—A considerable quantity of colourless fluid was found in the ventricles of the brain. The

ice cold fam there was an a sees exem, containing purulent in the of the durant ter, where it covered this believe, was thickened and spungy, an text of line to this partien was soft and a using surface; but there was no with the carity of the ear. The operation merely passed behind the external

ENVECTED WITH PISEASE OF TH

. The state of th firsix or seron years, to attacks of poi f. Hewed by discharge of matter, but s fr m any of these attacks for some tone iness which forms the subject of the On the 25th of April 1822, she co shireting through the day, and in a bestach with pain in the right ear, and occioned on the following day. On the sen by Mr. Brown, who found her w and ful tongue, sovere pain in the headach. On the 20th, some discharge the ear, but without relief of the Jain, w with visitate on the following day. On the pain was or newhat abated in the ea tended over the right side of the head; s and to cal blood letting wer rest of the laps was teld she ful at 1 unleadily aspect, and a Sion, hordering about country. The point fire I to the Parts above and behind the te themsels were painful on present a made at this place with bulling vas discharged Topical bleet to the vas disconnection to the first technique of the day it fell brain in other respects was healthy. In the left lobe of the cerebellum there was an abscess of considerable extent, containing purulent matter of intolerable fetor. The dura mater, where it covered this part of the cerebellum, was thickened and spungy, and the bone corresponding to this portion was soft and slightly carious on its inner surface; but there was no communication with the cavity of the car. The opening behind the ear merely passed behind the external car, and communicated with the external meatus.

Case IV.—A young lady aged 15, had been liable, for six or seven years, to attacks of pain in the right car, followed by discharge of matter, but she had been free from any of these attacks for some time previous to the illness which forms the subject of the following history. On the 25th of April 1822, she complained of cold shivering through the day, and in the evening had headach with pain in the right ear, and these symptoms continued on the following day. On the 28th, she was seen by Mr. Brown, who found her with quick pulse and foul tongue, severe pain in the car, and slight headach. On the 29th, some discharge took place from the ear, but without relief of the pain, which continued with violence on the following day. On the 1st of May, the pain was somewhat abated in the ear, but had extended over the right side of the head; pulse frequent; general and topical blood-letting were employed with partial relief. I saw her on the 3d: the headach was then rather abated; the pulse was frequent and weak; she had a pale unhealthy aspect, and a look of oppression, bordering upon coma. The pain was chiefly referred to the parts above and behind the right car, where the integuments were painful on pressure, and at one spot near the mastoid process, felt soft and elevated; a puncture was made at this place with a lancet, but nothing was discharged. Topical bleeding, blistering, &c., were recommended. (4th) Pulse in the morning 148, in the course of the day it fell to 84.—look of much languor and exhaustion. (5th) Dark-coloured

matter of intolerable fetor began to be discharged from the puncture which had been made behind the ear. The opening here was enlarged, and a probe being introdueed, the bone was felt bare and rough over a considerable space; headach much relieved, pulse natural. (6th) Great discharge from the opening, headach much relieved, pulse 112; complained of some pain in the left side of the thorax, and there was considerable diarrhea. (7th) No headach; there was much discharge of fetid matter from the opening near the mastoid process, and a probe introduced by it, passed backwards and downwards under the integuments of the neck as far as the spine. (8th) Pain in the thorax continued, and was now so urgent that a small bleeding was employed with partial relief; it could not be carried farther on account of her increasing weakness—pulse 140. (9th) Said she felt better, and made no complaint of pain—pulse very rapid, and strength sinking—died on the 10th.

Inspection.—Every part of the brain was in the most healthy state, except a small portion on the right side near the ear, which was of a dark leaden colour; the tinge, however, was found to be entirely superficial. The right temporal bone, externally, was baro through a great part of its extent; internally, it was in many places rough and dark-eoloured, and there was some dark-eoloured matter betwixt it and the dura mater. The dura mater at this place was for a considerable space thickened, spungy, and irregular; the coats of the right lateral sinus were considerably thickened through its whole extent, and the capacity of the sinus was very much diminished, by a deposition similar to that which occurs in the cavity of an aneurism. internal ear contained dark-coloured matter. The left eavity of the pleura contained fully a pound of puriform fluid; the left lung was collapsed, dense, dark coloured, and eovered by a coating of eoagulable lymph.

These examples will be sufficient to illustrate this insidious and dangerous affection; several analogous cases are mentioned by Itard, but they do not present

are in most vericies in the place on was complicated with extensi Lat'l and the side of the face; the lancinating pain in both ears, and th coma in eight days. There was mit in the internal car and in the Lus i fammation and thickening of th crisis deposition betwixt it and the Lautien of this affection by coma is reus of age, who had been keeping days, on a count of a dull uneasines teletted to a space, which he delipoints of his fingers round the car space of about three inches in diam constitutional disturbance, and no hended, until one morning he was jether come and died in the aftern bund when I saw him, and no exan was chained, the case being at a dis ire. The affection may be also sudcima. A young man mentioned by Lad been liable to suppuration of the vas s.iz. I with deep-scated pain in in ferer. Relief was obtained fro Jan outinged, with a fetid dischar To the disease, after a violent par surk laidly and died. The pars had as the dura mater was note that by and separated under the data mater there was a co countable lymph, amounting to se corred the whole superior surface Phere. Mr. Parkinson+ mentions a ri hall een affected for two mo and distance of matter from the riz Itani, Praticion Malares de l'O

CANEGED WITH 13235

any important varieties in the phenomena. One of them was complicated with extensive swelling of the parotid, and the side of the face; there was deep-seated lancinating pain in both ears, and the ease was fatal by coma in eight days. There was much purulent matter in the internal car and in the Eustachian tube, with inflammation and thickening of the dura mater, and copious deposition betwixt it and the bone.* The termination of this affection by coma is sometimes sudden and unexpected; I lately saw a gentleman, about seventy years of age, who had been keeping the house for a few days, on account of a dull uneasiness in one car; it was referred to a space, which he defined by planting the points of his fingers round the ear, so as to include a space of about three inches in diameter. There was no constitutional disturbance, and no danger was apprehended, until one morning he was found in a state of perfect coma, and died in the afternoon. He was moribund when I saw him, and no examination of the body was obtained, the case being at a distance in the eountry. The affection may be also suddenly fatal without coma. A young man mentioned by Dr. Powel, who had been liable to suppuration of the car and deafness, was seized with deep-seated pain in the right ear without fever. Relief was obtained from opiates, but the pain continued, with a fetid discharge. On the 10th day of the disease, after a violent paroxysm of pain, he sunk rapidly and died. The pars petrosa was found black and carious; the dura mater corresponding to it was black, sloughy, and separated from the bone; and under the dura mater there was a collection of pus and eoagulable lymph, amounting to several ounces, which covered the whole superior surface of the right hemisphere. Mr. Parkinson, mentions a boy, aged fourteen, who had been affected for two months with headach, and discharge of matter from the right ear; a week be-

and the state of t

n . 1 Tall-Tail Fely

-1. 1 72 left.

^{*} Itard, Traité des Maladies de l'Oreille.

[†] Transactions of the College of Physicians, vol. v. London Medical Repository, March 1817.

fore his death the pain increased, and was accompanied by great debility, giddiness, and some vomiting. He continued in this state without stupor, or any other remarkable symptom, until the day of his death, when he was suddenly seized with convulsions, and died. An abscess was found in the middle lobe of the right hemisphere of the brain, and another in the cerebellum. There was extensive carics of the pars petrosa, with effusion in the ventricles to the extent of three ounces.

This affection occurs most frequently in persons who have shown a tendency to disease of the parts, by purulent discharges from the car, or deep-seated suppuration behind the ear. A very unmanageable abscess is often met with in this situation, from which a probe ean be passed to a great depth into the cells of the mastoid process. It is generally a scrofulous affection, extremely tedious in its progress, and sometimes terminates fatally, by inflammation spreading to the dura

The matter which is formed in these affections, whether it be in the substance of the brain or betwixt the membranes, sometimes finds a vent by the ear, the dura mater being ulcerated, and the bone perforated by the earies; and in this way alarming symptoms are sometimes unexpectedly relieved. The relief indeed is in general but temporary: the patient continues liable to pain, followed by discharges from the ear, and at last dies eomatose, often with gradual abolition of the faculties, tremors or general convulsions. In some cases of this kind, there is reason to believe that a communication had existed for a length of time betwixt the ear and a diseased cavity within the cranium, and that the discharge thus afforded to the matter from time to time had retarded the fatal event. In a boy, mentioned by Mr. Brodic, there was in the left hemisphere of the brain a cyst about three inches in diameter, containing thick dark-coloured pus; the lower part of it rested upon the petrous portion of the temporal bone and there was an opening through the eyst, dura mater

and bone, forming a free communic carity of the abscess and the meatus rus. Examples, indeed, have occur lead us to suppose, that in some such permanent. A young lady in Edinbu ago, after the usual symptoms in the h three or four days in a state of perfec situation was considered as entirely ho dical attendants, paying their visit as a were astonished to find her one day sit from complaint; a copious discharge taken place from the ear with imp she continued in good health. It is means certain, that in such a case as came from the cavity of the cranium son to believe, that extensive supp carity of the tympanum is capable of tims of great urgency, especially if the difficulty of finding an outlet. In a by Itaid, the matter, after urgent sy by the Eustachian tube, and, by condown in that direction, produced coug tation of the larvax; after partial relief the symptoms in the head and in the e were at length relieved by the punction

A disease, analogous to that now times occurs in the nose. A person liste to pain in the forehead, and p from the nose, becomes at last forget and dies comatose. The ethmoid lo on, the dura mater corresponding to there is a deposition of pus betwixt sometimes an abscess in the brain itse of this kind are mentioned by Lieuta Morgani mentions a pilest who, after

rith feret, delirium, pain in the forche Transacting of a Surice.

and bone, forming a free communication betwixt the cavity of the absccss and the meatus auditorius externus.* Examples, indeed, have occurred which would lead us to suppose, that in some such cases the relief is permanent. A young lady in Edinburgh, several years ago, after the usual symptoms in the head, had lain for three or four days in a state of perfect coma, and her situation was considered as entirely hopeless. Her medical attendants, paying their visit as a matter of form, were astonished to find her one day sitting up and free from complaint; a copious discharge of matter had taken place from the ear with immediate relief, and she continued in good health. It is, however, by no means certain, that in such a case as this the discharge came from the cavity of the cranium; for there is reason to believe, that extensive suppuration within the cavity of the tympanum is capable of producing symptoms of great urgency, especially if there should be any difficulty of finding an outlet. In a case of this kind by Itard, the matter, after urgent symptoms, escaped by the Eustachian tube, and, by constantly dropping down in that direction, produced cough and great irritation of the larynx; after partial relief in this manner, the symptoms in the head and in the ear returned, and were at length relieved by the puncture of the membrana tympani.

ार हे ने नास्त्र भी उपारणावेस

· The age can ancess is

in the duty to the duta

A disease, analogous to that now described, sometimes occurs in the nose. A person who has been liable to pain in the forehead, and purulent discharge from the nose, becomes at last forgetful and delirious, and dies comatose. The ethmoid bone is found carious, the dura mater corresponding to it is diseased, and there is a deposition of pus betwixt it and the brain, sometimes an abscess in the brain itself. Several cases of this kind are mentioned by Lieutaud and Bonetus. Morgagni mentions a priest who, after being affected with fever, delirium, pain in the forehead, and convul-

^{*} Transactions of a Society for the Improvement of Medical and Surgical Knowledge, vol. iii.

of this kind occurred in Edinburgh m.n. who, after a short illness, died m In mening the head, a collection of a under the temporal muscle, which through a carious perforation of the with an abscess in the substance of the rios mentions a woman who, after suff night severe pain in the left side of the ed with swelling and inflammation on (evalds and cheek. After several da surpurated and discharged much mar ere was found to be blind; after a few was seized with convulsions, and diedissection, the external suppuration w penetrated to the bottom of the orbit, and the ball of the eye, without injury invitally there was an extensive coll which emmunicated freely with the ca In some cases of this kind, the trephi plied with success; and they have si ten; of disease within the cranium mo from when a free outlet is given to the rand mentions a monk who had been affected with discharge of matter from min rolent lain extending over the n of the head. A tumour formed behin tering twards the temple, which, bein for to le an absence and a probe of the rear un. The seat opening in the cras. un. The trepline was applie and discovered a supplication cavity num, which discharged a fea-cupful distance diminished gradually, and the ac thirteen, who, after a blow on the l he lad a fistulous opening which disc for the a naturous Tradle to attacks an Hission in the head; and these 1

4 Metable Other

WITH CARIES OF THE BOXES

sions, fell into coma, from which he was relieved by discharging purulent matter from the nose. A similar case, in a girl of fourteen, is mentioned by Mangetus. We are not, however, to conclude with certainty that in these cases, the discharge of matter was from the cranium, as violent symptoms of the same kind have been known to occur from suppuration in the frontal sinus. This generally discharges itself by the nose, and the cases do well; but a case is related by Richter,* in which a suppuration within the frontal sinus burst into the cavity of the cranium and was fatal. In other cases it makes its way outwards through the frontal bone, leaving a fistulous opening, which continues to discharge matter for a considerable time before it heals. Some cases are also on record, in which worms in the frontal sinus were the source of alarming symptoms, which were relieved by the discharge of them. † In one of these, by M. Littre, there were violent convulsions. Dr. Bright has described a case in which the lining membrane of both frontal sinuses was extensively ulcerated, and an opening had taken place from the left into the cavity of the cranium. The case was complicated with abscess in the anterior part of the left hemisphere, but the symptoms seem to have been very obscure, being chiefly those of continued fever, during recovery from which there was discharge of blood and pus from the nose. This was followed by symptoms of cerebral disease, ending in coma.

It is foreign to my plan to enter upon those important cases, in which the dura mater becomes inflamed in connexion with disease of the bone, arising from external injuries. But such disease may arise in any part of the bones of the cranium without external injury, and may be productive of symptoms analogous to those already mentioned. Some years ago, a remarkable case

Observat. Chir, Fas. 2d.

[†] See Hill's Cases in Surgery, and Hist, de l'Acad, de Science for 1708 - 33.

· . . . Br. A similar

in . Der by Marzetus,

La coment to a from the

or my of ego - m. kind have

in l'asti'. In other

THE TOTAL COMMINSES IN

True dem - In one

e in maid the lining

has tem the left into

To the lett from their,

TATY (Coult) THE PERSON OF THE PERSON

ond pus from

The The DS of Cerv'ral

of this kind occurred in Edinburgh in a middle aged man, who, after a short illness, died in a state of eoma. In opening the head, a collection of matter was found under the temporal musele, which communicated, through a earious perforation of the temporal bone, with an abseess in the substance of the brain. Burserius mentions a woman who, after suffering for a fortnight severe pain in the left side of the head, was seized with swelling and inflammation on the left cyebrow, eyelids, and eheek. After several days, the swelling suppurated and discharged much matter, and the left eye was found to be blind; after a few days more, she was seized with convulsions, and died comatose. On dissection, the external suppuration was found to have penetrated to the bottom of the orbit, betwixt the bone and the ball of the eye, without injury of the ball itself; internally there was an extensive collection of matter, which communicated freely with the eavity of the orbit.

In some eases of this kind, the trephine has been applied with sueeess; and they have shewn what extent of disease within the eranium may be recovered from, when a free outlet is given to the matter. Morand mentions a monk who had been for some time affected with discharge of matter from the right ear, with violent pain extending over the whole right side of the head. A tumour formed behind the ear, extending towards the temple, which, being opened, was found to be an abseess, and a probe could be passed from it, through a earious opening, into the eavity of the eranium. The trephine was applied at this place, and discovered a suppurating eavity within the eranium, which discharged a tea-eupful of matter; the discharge diminished gradually, and the sore was healed in two months.* M. Roux describes the ease of a boy, aged thirteen, who, after a blow on the back part of the head, had a fistulous opening, which discharged matter for four years. He was liable to attacks of drowsiness and oppression in the head; and these were generally

Morand Opuscules de Chirurgie.

WITH DISEASE OF THE LATE.

relieved by copious discharges of matter from this opening, which was found to perforate the bone. After various treatment, the trepline was at length applied, when a small ragged opening was found in the dura mater, which led to a cavity under it, distinctly bounded by an adhesion between the dura mater and the arachnoid; it discharged at the first opening about three ounces of matter, and the case terminated favourably,

the parts being healed in about two months.*

The dura mater appears to be much less liable to idiopathie inflammation than the other membranes of the brain. Various eases, however, are on record, in which it was affected to a considerable extent, without any disease of the bone. In a case of long-continued headach, mentioned by Pawius, which terminated by convulsions, the dura mater under the sagittal suture was found eroded and perforated; there was also an absects in the cerebellum. Rumlerus found the dura mater eroded in several places, in a young man who died comatose and convulsed. Several cases of the same kind are mentioned in the Miscellanea Curiosa; and Haller found in several instances, the falx croded by large openings, and the hemispheres of the brain at these places adhering to each other.

As a result of inflammation of the dura mater, a eireumstance occurs in Case IV. which is worthy of notice, and which I think has hitherto been little attended to; I mean the obstruction of the lateral sinus. Of this affection, I add the following remarkable example, in which, though complicated also with disease of the bone, this affection of the sinus was the principal mor-

bid appearance internally.

Case V.—A young lady, aged sixteen, (3d August, 1816,) complained of severe headach, which extended over the whole head. She had an oppressed look, and great heaviness of the cycs; pulse 120; the face rather pulse. She had been liable to suppuration in the ears,

and the left ear had been discharg weeks; she had complained of her and had been confined to bed fo letting pargatives, blistering, &c. third and fourth with considera-(Sih.) Headach easier, some vomi rere attacks of shivering, pulse 11. headach severe, now confined to bead: eyes heavy, pupils a little di the temporal artery was employed, &c. 7th.) Pulse in the morning ing 120; headach as before, with There was a buffy coat on the blo artery. (6th and 9th.) Pulse fro pain of the back of the head a 11th) Pulse from 130 to 140, co occasional delirium, constant com back of the head. (12th.) Increas setable when roused; answered and knew those about her until a fe death, which happened about mid c Inspection.—The pia mater was minute's injected; the veins on the were turned, and at one place on the was a slight appearance of extravasa the pla mater. There was no serous ease in the substance of the brain. was remarkably diseased through its ompressed, it discharged pue, and matter in contained no blood; thickened, and its inner surface wa rular, and fungens; at one part the ineraled. The disease extended in pulli and affected in some degree logertalized sinus. Behind the au temp a bone near the feramen ordice of the left lateral sinus, a dout the feet factor cancer a house and a shifting was did tige (4 fe junet table ; 11 Rgs if Est Served to be most diversely

^{*} Nouveau Journal de Médecine, tome xii.

A MATER.

i a la pen-

व्यक्त । विकास

Ar Tie : Trath applied,

one was first I in the dum

or and is in the bounded

Little and the arach-

ent thorag pile a rate

n to other men branes of

in the propriet

I'. ... we h tern nated by

or the sociatal suture

. Fig. 2 and man who

no is several cases of the

in the Mestal mea Curiosa:

not now the file ended

"arms across of the brain as

my myki a example,

12. This lower of the

The Late of the late

and the left ear had been discharging matter for three weeks; she had complained of headach for a fortnight, and had been confined to bed for two days. Bloodletting, purgatives, blistering, &c. were employed on the third and fourth with considerable temporary relief. (5th.) Headach easier, some vomiting, and several severe attacks of shivering, pulse 112. (6th.) Pulse 84, headach severe, now confined to the back part of the head: eyes heavy, pupils a little dilated; bleeding from the temporal artery was employed, with purgatives, issue, &c. (7th.) Pulse in the morning 84, and in the evening 120; headach as before, with a dull vacant look. There was a buffy coat on the blood from the temporal artery. (8th and 9th.) Pulse from 120 to 140; severe pain of the back of the head and neck. (10th and 11th) Pulse from 130 to 140, considerable stupor and occasional delirium, constant complaint of pain in the back of the head. (12th.) Increase of eoma, but was sensible when roused; answered questions distinctly, and knew those about her until a few minutes before her death, which happened about mid-day.

Inspection.—The pia mater was highly vascular, as if minutely injected; the veins on the surface of the brain were turgid, and at one place on the posterior part there was a slight appearance of extravasation of blood under the pia mater. There was no serous effusion, and no disease in the substance of the brain. The left lateral sinus was remarkably diseased through its whole extent; when compressed, it discharged pus, and some thick cheesy matter; it contained no blood; its coats were much thickened, and its inner surface was dark-coloured, irregular, and fungous; at one part the cavity was nearly obliterated. The disease extended into the torcular Heroof a transfer phili, and affected in some degree the termination of the longitudinal sinus. Behind the auditory portion of the temporal bone, near the foramen lacerum, and in the course of the left lateral sinus, a portion of the bone about the size of a shilling, was dark-coloured and carious on the inner table; it was at this place that the sinus appeared to be most diseased. The auditory pertion of the bone was extensively earious; the eells of it were everywhere full of purulent matter, and communicated freely with the eavity of the ear.

It may perhaps be doubted whether the remarkable disease of the lateral sinus which occured in Case IV. was a recent affection, and what influence it had in produeing the symptoms in the fatal attack. Priehard found a similar affection of the sinus in a woman who had been cpileptic for two years, and died in one of the fits without any previous change in her symptoms. He describes the left lateral sinus as being "through its whole length filled up by a substance very different from a recent eoagulum, and apparently eoasisting of a deposition of lymph, which had become organized. It appeared so completely to oeeupy the ealibre of the sinus, as to have entirely impeded the transit of blood through it." There was no other morbid appearance, excepting very slight effusion.* Dr. Bright found the lateral, eavernous, and petrosal sinuses of the left side, full of a dark ill-conditioned pus, which also filled the jugular vein, as far as its junction with the subclavian. The symptoms were pain in the ear, followed by much delirium, and extremely restless nights, and death after about three weeks. A few days before death, there was a eopious discharge of unhealthy purulent matter, from the ear.

As the result of inflammatory action of a more slow and chronic kind, the dura mater is liable to thickening, and deposition of new matter betwixt its laminæ. The following ease affords an example of a very remarkable disease which appears to have been produced in this manner.

Case VI.—A gentleman aged 60, had been liable for two years before his death to attacks of giddiness, accompanied by complete loss of all muscular power, in which, if not prevented, he fell to the ground. In

CHADNIC, WITH REMARKABLE

tiese chacks he did not lose his recovered completely in a few n commencement of this complaint, I serere pain in the head, and gide which generally went off with s sound in his mind, but had consid flesh and strength; he felt an uns which made him afraid of going a months before his death, he had per weakness of both his lower extrem August 1816, he was attacked with Is side, accompanied by headach pulse was natural, and his mind w four days he continued to be a complete hemiplegia; he then be motion of the parts, and about t raise his arm to his head, and to sistance; he still complained of gid his ears, but had little headach. I other usual remedies had been e leth there was considerable heada b-came incoherent; and on the 2 oma, with some convulsion. O manderably recovered, so as to kno and to answer questions rationally lapsed into coma, and died on the three days his pulse had been from Impedion Along the upper pa sphere of the brain, there lay a rem and a half inches long two and a) half an inch in thickness; it was tion of the lamine of the dura m of new matter betwirt them. Th the posterior part, white and fir especially about the centre of the recent coamlable lymph, firm, rel Petent vacuum anterior party Sustaine Tellowish scrops and to before backwards, along the

^{*} Prichard on Diseases of the Nervous System, p. 175.

· Chi. att. L. Prichard

. - · · sir a w man wh:

rs. ni li lin encofile

. . . s grantar u.h.

. h. d en edens kein gifferen.

I to a remitted, li the capture of the

it sit is a little of regrance.

one ful defeat the

The William the

. . . - min i e și linip

these attacks he did not lose his recollection, and he recovered completely in a few minutes. Before the commencement of this complaint, he had been liable to severe pain in the head, and giddiness, the attacks of which generally went off with vomiting. He was sound in his mind, but had considerably fallen off in flesh and strength; he felt an unsteadincss in walking which made him afraid of going alone; and, for some months before his death, he had perceived an increasing weakness of both his lower extremitics. On the 1st of August 1816, he was attacked with hemiplegia of the left side, accompanied by headach and giddiness; the pulse was natural, and his mind was not affected. For four days he continued to be affected with the most complete hemiplegia; he then began to recover a little motion of the parts, and about the 15th, was able to raise his arm to his head, and to walk a little with assistance; he still complained of giddiness, and noise in his ears, but had little headach. Bloodletting and the other usual remedies had been employed. On the 19th, there was considerable headach; on the 20th, he became incoherent; and on the 21st, fell into perfect coma, with some convulsion. On the 22d, he was considerably recovered, so as to know those about him, and to answer questions rationally; but at night he relapsed into coma, and died on the 23d. For the last three days his pulse had been from 112 to 120.

Inspection.—Along the upper part of the right hemisphere of the brain, there lay a remarkable tumour five and a half inches long, two and a half broad, and about half an inch in thickness; it was formed by a separation of the laminæ of the dura mater, and a deposition of new matter betwixt them. This new matter was, at the posterior part, white and firm; in other places, especially about the centre of the tumour, it was more recent coagulable lymph, firm, yellow, and semi-transparent; and, at the anterior part, there was a cavity containing yellowish serous fluid. The tumour lay from before backwards, along the upper part of the hemisphere,—the inner edge of it being about an inch from the falx; the dura mater all around it was eonsiderably thickened, as were also the eoats of the longitudinal sinus. The surface of the brain, where the tumour lay, was so depressed as to retain an impression of its figure; and, on the anterior part of the brain, the substance was considerably softened, with some appearance of suppuration. There was very little serous effusion, and no disease in any other part of the brain.

For the following very important ease I am indebted to Mr. Adams of Banchory. It is distinctly referable to ehronic inflammation of the dura mater;—and many of the circumstances of it are exceedingly remarkable,—particularly the absence of marked cerebral symptoms, and the prominent complaints being entirely referred to the stomach.

Case VII.—A gentleman of a cultivated mind, and an amateur painter by profession,—about 45 years of age,—had always enjoyed good health, except that latterly, he had suffered from ulceration of the tonsils. In the spring of the year 1829, being in London, he felt languid and depressed, owing, as was imagined by himself and his friends, to too ardent application to his professional pursuits; his sight became impaired, his stomach irritable, and he had various other symptoms which were referred to a morbid derangement of the hepatie system. After being treated for some time upon general principles, he came down to the country, towards the end of the month of June, in expectation that rural retirement would soon restore him to health. During the three succeeding months the principal symptours of his complaint were, -a torpid state of the bowels, oceasional vomiting, without nausca, sometimes, though rarely, dull headach, impaired sight, false vision, and oeular spectra. The spectral illusions generally consisted of fantastic female figures dancing around him; and, at one time, he had the impression of being attended by one of them wherever he went. He was always sensible, however, that they were unreal appearCERONIC, WITH REMARKABL

ences. He lost strength gradually to the and more irritable, and he did to be, excessively emaciated.

Inspection .- A portion of the di inches by two, immediately to the little anterior to its termination in separated from the skull by a layer imperfectly or not at all organized le vish red appearance. This porti was glued pretty firmly, by the sam the surface of the brain, there be mater or arachnoid visible. This p much in urated, especially at one to the lett, where the induration e of an inch and a half :- it adhered was similarly diseased for nearly a ovens whole thickness; but did no hemist here of the brain, or involve disease. The brain, in the immedi in branch, was somewhat softened of it was sound, except that there spoonful of serum in the ventricles, a the base of the skull. The stomach This case is a striking example of diese with very obscure symptom to illustrate the nature of spectral is reserving of remark, as tending starte which these spectral appearan about the time this gentleman becam insent upon making a drawing of descriptions in Moore's Epicurean, a this report, it was always supposed nich seemed to sport before his e semilance to those which had forn It remains to be mentioned, that n his life has known to account for the is bran, unless that about three death, he test with a fall upon a stair anees. He lost strength gradually, his stomach became more and more irritable, and he died on the 12th of Oetober, excessively emaciated.

Inspection.—A portion of the dura mater, about three inches by two, immediately to the left of the falx, and a little anterior to its termination in the tentorium, was separated from the skull by a layer of eoagulated lymph, imperfectly or not at all organized, and of a dull yellowish red appearance. This portion of the membrane was glued pretty firmly, by the same kind of matter, to the surface of the brain, there being no trace of pia mater or arachnoid visible. This part of the brain was much indurated, especially at one point anteriorly and to the left, where the induration extended to the depth of an inch and a half;—it adhered also to the falx, which was similarly diseased for nearly a square inch throughout its whole thickness; but did not adhere to the right hemisphere of the brain, or involve any part of it in the disease. The brain, in the immediate vicinity of this induration, was somewhat softened;—every other part of it was sound, except that there was about a tablespoonful of serum in the ventricles, and as much about the base of the skull. The stomach was not examined.

e I m indehtel

न हा भार ना नी माना - - sache e remarkode,

and great great to

and the state of t

Carlotte M.

The The The

This case is a striking example of extensive cerebral disease with very obscure symptoms. It also tends to illustrate the nature of spectral illusions; and it is deserving of remark, as tending to illustrate the shape which these spectral appearances assumed, that about the time this gentleman became ill, his mind was intent upon making a drawing of one of the fanciful descriptions in Moore's Epicurean, and by the writer of this report, it was always supposed that the phantoms which seemed to sport before his eyes, bore some resemblance to those which had formerly occupied his imagination.

It remains to be mentioned, that no eircumstance in his life was known to account for the diseased state of his brain, unless that, about three years before his death, he met with a fall upon a stair, whereby he hurt one of his knees seriously, and, as was suspected by his relatives, also sustained some injury of the head. This explanation, however, is merely conjectural.

I have found nothing described by any writer precisely similar to these remarkable affections. The case most nearly resembling Case VI. in the symptoms, is one described by Lancisi.* The attacks in this case consisted of paroxysms, which appeared to be a mixture of syncope and apoplexy; sometimes accompanied with hemiplegia, and sometimes with convulsion. The pia mater was found remarkably thickened and covered with a kind of ill-conditioned pus. Willis found a remarkable thickening of the dura mater at the base of the brain, in a young woman who had been liable to severe headach, aggravated at the menstrual period, and at these times accompanied by distortion of the neck to one side; she was likewise liable to attacks of vertigo and lipothymia, and died comatose. Similar cases arc mentioned by Morgagni. A boy aged six, whose case is mentioned by Mr. Paisley, was scized with pain on a particular spot on the left side of the head, followed by drowsiness, which proved fatal on the 12th day, with the usual symptoms of hydrocephalus. On the part corresponding to the seat of the original pain, there was a tumour the size of a large hazel nut, formed by a separation of the laminæ of the dura mater, and the deposition between them of a bloody serous fluid. There were several similar tumours, but of smaller size, along the course of the longitudinal sinus on the left side. Bcsides the fluid, the tumours contained a number of small white bodies like worms; at the places where the tumours were formed, the dura mater adhered very firmly to the membranes beneath. There was much effusion under the arachnoid and in the ventricles.

THE MALL ATT A CO. ATLACA TOTAL

SECTION I

INFLAMMATION OF THE ARAC MATER.

I structures of the arachie id, at tair combined, it is probable that pose can be answered by attempts tween their symptoms. The diseramonly by a deposition of fals the arachnoid and the pia mater. to spread uniformly over the surface we may suppose that it has been exchand; when it dips considerable is probable that the pia mater has I in point of fact, it is very often remai that the Jia mater Jit ents a most vascularity, even when there is no the ourcentions, while there is seed or rascolarity observed in the arachno.d. it has sometimes been doubted whet be realy the seat of inflammation. Some degree of this affection freque other agric diseases of the brain, but it entirely uncombined, so that we are the stantous more immediately conthese, however, there does not appear nir. In some cases, it comes on the first and impatience of help for a walch the attack takes place er jour critical batories of cont in sing cases preceded by headach an in other cases comes on without any Curry of the Tours of the Court of the Court

Lancisi de Subitaneis Mortibus.
 † Edinburgh Medical Essays, vol. iii.

SECTION IV.

INFLAMMATION OF THE ARACHNOID AND PIA MATER.

Wills found a remark.

South Title Bills

- | NIX, HL 35 (35)

so zel with pain on

the file ad followed

े कि जिसे की कि

In had July - 122 - alp, there ".

is a fine from the same

INFLAMMATION of the arachnoid, and of the pia mater, may be taken together. It is very difficult to distinguish them in practice, and as the affections are generally combined, it is probable that no important purpose can be answered by attempts to discriminate between their symptoms. The disease terminates most commonly by a deposition of false membrane betwixt the arachnoid and the pia mater. When this is found to spread uniformly over the surface of the convolutions, we may suppose that it has been produced from the arachnoid; when it dips considerably between them, it is probable that the pia mater has been affected; but, in point of fact, it is very often remarked in these cases, that the pia mater presents a most intense degree of vascularity, even when there is no deposition betwixt the convolutions, while there is seldom any remarkable vascularity observed in the arachnoid. On this ground it has sometimes been doubted whether the arachnoid be really the seat of inflammation.

Some degree of this affection frequently accompanies other acute diseases of the brain, but we very often find it entirely uncombined, so that we are enabled to mark the symptoms more immediately connected with it. In these, however, there does not appear to be any uniformity. In some cases, it comes on with headach, vomiting, fever and impatience of light; but a frequent form in which the attack takes place, is by a sudden and long continued paroxysm of convulsion. This is in some cases preceded by headach and vomiting, but in other cases comes on without any warning. The convulsion is generally long and severe; in some cases, it passes immediately into coma, which afterwards alternates only with a repetition of the convulsion, until in a few days the case is fatal. In other cases, there is recovery from the first convulsion, and the patient appears to be doing well for some time, perhaps for several days, but afterwards falls into coma, either with or without a recurrence of the convulsion. In other cases again, the convulsion does not come on till an advanced period of the disease.

The following selection of eases will illustrate the principal phenomena connected with this important affection, both in children and in adults. To prevent circumlocution, I shall employ the term *Meningitis* to express the disease, meaning thereby the inflammation of the arachnoid, or pia mater, or both, as distinct from

inflammation of the dura mater.

§ I.—SIMPLE MENINGITIS IN THE MOST COMMON FORM.

Case VIII.—A boy aged 11, had been for about a fortnight remarkably listless and inactive, and affected with frequent vomiting. The vomiting had occurred every day, or several times in the day; his bowels were costive, but he did not complain of any pain, and he was free from fever. In the evening of the 29th June, 1816, he was seized with violent convulsion, which reenried several times; in the intervals he had severe vomiting, and complained of headach; pulse 60. The convulsion occurred frequently during the following night, and in the intervals he complained that he could not see. Towards morning, the convulsion eeased, and left him in a state of the most profound coma. eoma continued till mid day of the 30th, when it began to abate after he had been freely purged; in the evening he was quite sensible, and complained of headach; pulse 120.

July 1st.—The ordinary remedies having been adopted, he was much relieved; no headach; no vomiting; tongue moist; pulse 120.

s.ep; popils rather dilated. 31—Pulse 112; appearance in the state of the state of

MENNY TIPS

4th.—Pulse 108; functions na disposed to sleep.

ith.—Pulse 70; had an attac complained much of his head; a degree of stupor; was sensible w imparient of being disturbed, and his head; eves natural; repeated

on.—Perfect coma, with frequently I from 120 to 160; he frequently I pressing his forehead, and the off the La profound coma the w.l.

Interction.—On raising the durithe brain in many places had a which we found to arise from existing the durithment of the interctions of in were thicker, and in so it is considerable extent by between the was also a good deal between the were partially glued together was also from the were partially glued together was also a good deal between the were partially glued together was also a good deal between the were partially glued together was also a good deal between the were partially glued together was a so a good deal between the were partially shaded to good the whole by the were partially shaded to good the whole by the were partially shaded to good the whole by the weight was depressed as between the depressions between the depressions between the depressions between the depressions and the whole by the depressions between the depressions between the depressions between the depressions and the whole by the depressions between the depressions between the depressions and the whole by the depressions between the depressions and the whole by the depressions between the depressions are depressions between the depressions and the depressions are depressions and depressions are depress

c vered nearly the whole surface on the Posterior lart of the brain at these places, and attack the brain, at these places, and attack the the brain at these places, and attack the brain was found in the brain was found in the ventral less. At the

Not girl aged 9, as

2d.—Pulse 108; no complaint; much disposed to

sleep; pupils rather dilated.

3d.—Pulse 112; appearance much improved; ey natural; bowels open; tongue clean; no unusual drowsiness.

4th.—Pulse 103; functions natural; a good deal

disposed to sleep.

5th.—Pulse 70; had an attack of vomiting, and complained much of his head; afterwards fell into a degree of stupor; was sensible when roused, but was impatient of being disturbed, and still complained of his head; eyes natural; repeated vomiting.

6th.—Perfect eoma, with frequent convulsion; pulse from 120 to 160; he frequently lay with the one hand pressing his forehead, and the other on the occiput.

7th.—In profound coma the whole day; died during

the night.

Inspection.—On raising the dura mater, the surface of the brain in many places had a yellow appearance, which we found to arise from extensive deposition of adventitious membrane under the arachnoid. It was in general about the thickness of a wafer; some portions of it were thicker, and in some places masses of it of eonsiderable extent lay between the eonvolutions. There was also a good deal between the hemispheres, which were partially glued together by it. The principal seats of this deposition were, the anterior part of both hemispheres, and the whole base of the brain, especially the depressions betwixt the lobes; and it also covered nearly the whole surface of the cerebellum. On the posterior part of the brain it was wanting, and there the pia mater was evidently inflamed. The surface of the brain, at these places, had also an inflamed appearance, but this did not penetrate into its substance. Some fluid was found in the base of the eranium, after the brain was removed, but there was no offusion in the ventricles, and the brain in other respects was healthy.

Case IX .- A girl, aged 9, awoke suddenly in the

night of 20th September, 1817, screaming from violent headach, and exclaiming that some person had given her a blow on the head.

21st.—She complained of pain in the forchead, but she was not in bed, and the pain was not severe.

22d.—Little change; partly in bed, and complaining

of headach, but the complaint excited no alarm.

23d.—Was seized with violent and long continued convulsion, which was immediately succeeded by profound coma.

24th.—I saw her for the first time; found her in perfect coma; the cyclids open, the cycs distorted upwards, the pulse quite natural. Continued in the same state on the 25th, and died on the 26th.

Inspection.—On removing the dura mater, the other membranes appeared highly vascular as if inflamed, except where this appearance was concealed by a layer of yellow adventitious membrane, spread out betwixt the arachnoid and the pia mater. This deposition was distributed in irregular patches, over various parts of the surface of the brain, but was most abundant on the upper part of the right hemisphere. It was in general of the thickness of a wafer, and in some places extended downwards betwixt the convolutions. There was also a considerable quantity of it on the surface of the cerebellum. There was a good deal of gelatinous effusion about the optic nerves, and about an ounce of colourless fluid in the ventricles. The substance of the brain was throughout unusually vascular.

Case X.—A child aged 2 years, 21st May, 1826, was suddenly seized in the morning with severe and long continued convulsion. It left her in a dull and torpid state, in which she did not seem to recognise the persons about her. She had lain in this state for several hours, when the convulsion returned; and, during the following night, it recurred a third time, and was very severe and of long continuance. I saw her on the morning of the 23d, and while I was sitting by her, she was again attacked with severe and long continued

corumin, which affected every face and the eyes in particular beed. The countenance was pale, haustion, the pulse frequent: I freely opened by medicine, pre-Dr. Beil' v. and the motions were Further purging was employed, 1 cold applications to the head, a this attack, she continued free fro afternoon of the 23d; in the inte el in a partially comatose state, v pulse frequent, but feeble, pupi tion some food. In the afternoo vulsi- returned with great sever there was a constant succession the whole day, with sinking of she died early in the evening. Inspection .- On removing the face of the brain appeared in man deposition of adventitious membran noid and pia mater. It was chiopenings between the convolutions appeared to dip a little way between noid membrane when detached ap but the Jia maier was throughout of rascalanty, especially between t when the brain was cut vertically, t cour on ne were most strikingly te of virid redness, produced by France. There was to effusion in other morbid appearance.

MUNINGILIS.

WITH YERY OBSCURESS

Lating mildly in the mild lie of June

Late A coly four or five days.

convulsion, which affected every part of the body, the face and the eyes in particular being frightfully distorted. The countenance was pale, and expressive of exhaustion, the pulse frequent; her bowels had been freely opened by medicine, previously prescribed by Dr. Beilby, and the motions were dark and unhealthy. Farther purging was employed, with topical bleeding, cold applications to the head, and blistering. After this attack, she continued free from convulsion till the afternoon of the 23d; in the interval she had remained in a partially comatose state, with frequent starting, pulse frequent, but feeble, pupil rather dilated; she took some food. In the afternoon of the 23d, the convulsion returned with great severity; and on the 24th, there was a constant succession of paroxysms during the whole day, with sinking of the vital powers; and she died carly in the evening.

Inspection.—On removing the dura mater, the surface of the brain appeared in many places covered by a deposition of adventitious membrane, betwixt the arachnoid and pia mater. It was chiefly found above the openings between the convolutions, and in some places appeared to dip a little way between them. The arachnoid membrane when detached appeared to be healthy, but the pia mater was throughout in the highest state of vascularity, especially between the convolutions; and when the brain was cut vertically, the spaces between the convolutions were most strikingly marked by a bright line of vivid redness, produced by the inflamed membrane. There was no effusion in the ventricles, and no

other morbid appearance.

§ II.—MENINGITIS OF UNUSUALLY GREAT EXTENT, WITH VERY OBSCURE SYMPTOMS.

Case XI.—A child aged between 3 and 4, had searlatina mildly in the milddle of June 1824, having been confined only four or five days. He had been down stairs for several days, and once or twice out of doors;

when, on the evening of the 23d, he became feverish. and complained of his bowels. After the operation of some laxative medicine he was much relieved on the 24th; his pulse, however, continued frequent. On the 25th, he again complained of his bowels, and was feverish; but in the evening he was again relieved, and no symptoms was remarked by Mr. White, except that his pulse continued slightly frequent, and at one time he complained of uneasiness in his eyes. In the night he was restless, but still complained only of his belly; his bowels had been freely moved, and the motions were natural. On the 26th, he had frequent vomiting, and in the evening became oppressed; pulse 120. I saw him for the first time at night. He was then in a state of oppression, evidently verging towards coma; could be roused, but without taking much notiee of objects; pulse 120; countenance and eye natural. Topical bleeding, purgatives, cold applications, &c. were employed. In the night there was frequent vomiting, every medicine being brought up, and the bowels were not moved. On the 27th, the coma was increased, and there were through the day frequent convulsive affections of the face and arms; pulse 120, and weak; pupil dilated, and the eye insensible; died early in the morning of the 28th.

Inspection.—On removing the dura mater, the whole surface of the brain was found to be eovered by a continued stratum of yellow adventitious membrane, deposited betwixt the arachnoid and pia mater. It was thickest above the openings between the convolutions; in many places, it was traced dipping between them to the depth of half an inch; and in some places, on the right side of the brain, it followed the course of the pia mater through the whole depth of the convolutions. The deposition was general over the whole brain, and on the upper and anterior parts of the eerebellum; and there was a good deal of it about the optic nerves. The pia mater and the arachnoid adhered everywhere very firmly together by means of it; when they were separated, the arachnoid presented no unusual appearance,

noter so acid tin 1.21 walarity; the depositor to the space between the mer use of it could be traced either on the cracanid or the inner surface. There was no serous effusion, and er belom were perfectly healthy; many places irregularly distended w

MII.—MEXINGITIS OF TERY SMA

Cast XII.—A child aged G year had severe headach and some vom treme e'stinaey of the howels, wh rive medicines for six days. I complained constantly of healac recurred from time to time, but pair varying from 40 to 100. seating, with the most active p ins. h dreen employed with ever Dr. Hay. On the 6th day, in the little, there we to be duch nearly gene. T aired for two days; the hear er oil following day, the 13th s is 11 bestation of speech was or rium covering at intervals. (in these respects better, but still ed which was referred to the fore Just frequent. On the loth, s remarked soveral times through the the toplied was still complaint to making distinct emplained of lea lack; pulse the tuke varied from 90 to 14 the Pune Tana in perfect, but but the pia mater showed throughout the highest degree of vascularity; the deposition was entirely confined to the space between the membranes, for no vestige of it could be traced either on the outer surface of the arachnoid or the inner surface of the pia mater. There was no serous effusion, and the brain and the cerebellum were perfectly healthy; the bowels were in many places irregularly distended with flatus.

rime per to 1) a ti

The state of the s

· sa marries in reging towards

re nerronce and re ne-

they was inquest

n the un, and the

mi ams; Inle 12)

i. I a re insensible; died

...i. . . rrell- g va.

TID. THOS.

TO THE PARTY.

TO THE PARTY.

TO THE PARTY.

TO THE PARTY.

THE PA

III.—MENINGITIS OF VERY SMALL EXTENT, WITH SEVERE SYMPTOMS.

Case XII.—A child aged 6 years, 24th January, 1822, had severe headach and some vomiting, followed by extreme obstinacy of the bowels, which resisted the most active medicines for six days. During this time, she complained constantly of headach, and the vomiting recurred from time to time, but was not severe, the pulse varying from 90 to 100. General and topical bleeding, with the most active purgatives and injections, had been employed with every possible assiduity by Dr. Hay. On the 6th day, the bowels began to yield, and about the 10th, there was a remarkable improvement of all the symptoms, pulse from 80 to 90, and the headach nearly gone. This favourable state continued for two days; the headach then returned, and on the following day, the 13th of the disease, considerable hesitation of speech was observed, with slight delirium occurring at intervals. On the 14th, she was in these respects better, but still complained of headach, which was referred to the forehead; pupils dilated; pulse frequent. On the 15th, slight convulsion was remarked several times through the day, and the pain of the forchead was still complained of. On the loth, she was in the morning distinct and intelligent, but still complained of headach; pulse 120. Through the day, the pulse varied from 90 to 140, the pupil was dilated, and the vision imperfect, but she continued quite intelligent till eight o'clock in the evening; she was then seized with severe convulsion, which continued without intermission for two hours, when she died. This very important ease was most minutely attended to through its whole course, and all the usual remedies were employed in the most active manner.

Inspection.—There was no effusion in the ventricles, and every part of the brain presented the most healthy appearance, except a small part on the lower surface of the anterior lobe of the right hemisphere, where it lies over the orbit. There was, at this place, a distinct deposition of adventitious membrane of an extent seareely larger than a shilling. Immediately connected with it, the substance of the brain was sensibly hardened, to an extent corresponding to the size of a large nut. No other disease could be discovered in any organ.

§ IV.—MENINGITIS OF THE BASE.

Case XIII.—A young lady, aged 14, was affeeted with symptoms resembling those of mild continued fever, which excited no alarm till about the end of the seeond week, when the headach became more severe, with some oppression and transient incoherence. I saw her, for the first time, in the beginning of the third week; there was then a degree of oppression, tending to coma; the pupil was dilated; pulse from 110 to 120; the tongue foul. For some days the symptoms varied considerably; sometimes shewing a degree of eoma, but generally rather exhibiting the characters of typhus. The eyes, however, appeared to be insensible to the light, and once or twice a degree of squinting was observed, but it went off; sometimes she answered questions distinctly, and sometimes not; the pulse varied from 110 to 130. On the day before her death, she was much more sensible, and upon the whole considerably relieved; but next day she was more comatose, and her strength was sinking; and she died at night, about three weeks from the commencement of the disease. Several of the family had died of hydrocephalus.

MENINGILIs.

I specion.—The substance of the rentricles contained about two was a considerable deposition of a content surface of the Pons Varolit ward along the base of the braidal of it in a more recent state along it was traced upwards towards

§ V.—Meningitis with supp surface.

Case XIV.—A child, aged March 1318, of an illness which than three weeks. It began with quick breathing; afterwards ther vulsive affections, with much opporter of vulsions, squinting, and period of the complaint, there was able prominence of the anterior for cond week, this increased considerind week, it was elevated into a distance which was soft and fluctual upon it occasioned convulsion. It is small puncture, and discharged at the in the symptoms, and the collapse.

Introction.—The opening whin through the fontanelle, was found the dura mater and the araclino surface of the brain to a consider mater, which extended between the analytic was a similar deposition between the analytic was a good deal of it also caused the medulla oblongata; and the rentricles.

Inspection.—The substance of the brain was healthy; the ventricles contained about two ounces of fluid; there was a considerable deposition of adventitious membrane on the surface of the Pons Varolii, which extended forward along the base of the brain; there was a good deal of it in a more recent state about the optic nerves, and it was traced upwards towards the third ventriele.

§ V.—Meningitis with suppuration on the surface.

Case XIV.—A child, aged 8 months, died 13th March 1818, of an illness which had continued more than three weeks. It began with fever, restlessness, and quick breathing; afterwards there were frequent eonvulsive affections, with much oppression, and at last severe convulsions, squinting, and coma. At an early period of the complaint, there was observed a remarkable prominence of the anterior fontanelle; in the seeond week, this increased considerably; and in the third week, it was elevated into a distinct eireumscribed tumour, which was soft and fluetuating,—and pressure upon it occasioned convulsion. It was opened by a small puneture, and discharged at first some purulent matter, afterwards bloody serum. No change took place in the symptoms, and the child died four days after.

Inspection.—The opening which had been made through the fontanelle, was found to lead to a deposition of thick floeeulent matter mixed with pus, betwixt the dura mater and the arachnoid, and eovering the surface of the brain to a considerable extent. There was a similar deposition between the arachnoid and the pia mater, which extended between the convolutions, and there was a good deal of it about the optic nerves and under the medulla oblongata; there was considerable effusion in the ventricles.

§ VI.—Meningitis with suppuration within the ventricles.

Case XV.—A child, aged 5 months, previously in perfect health, was seized with convulsion on the evening of the 21st November 1817. The attack, which was not of long duration, was ascribed to dentition; the gums were divided over several teeth that appeared to be producing irritation, and the other remedies were employed that are usual in such affections. He continued well through the night; on the 22d, he was oppressed, with quick breathing, and in the afternoon, without any return of eonvulsion, he fell into a state of This continued several hours, and then subsided, after topical blecding, active purging, and the use of eold applications to the head. On the 23d, he was much relieved; eye natural; he took notice of objects, and was disposed to play, and no complaint was remarked, except oeeasional starting. On the 24th, he eontinued through the day in the same favourable state; but late at night he was seized with convulsion, which continued without intermission through the night, and he died early in the morning.

Inspection.—There was an extensive deposition of adventitious membrane betwixt the arachnoid and pia mater; it covered a great part of the upper surface of the brain, and there was a considerable quantity of it on the inferior surface of the anterior lobes, between the hemispheres, and on the cerebellum. In the lateral ventricles, there was about an ounce of purulent matter, and the substance of the brain surrounding the ventricles was very soft; there was no serous effusion. There was much gelatinous deposition about the optic nerves, under the base of the brain, and under the eerebellum. Below the medulla oblongata, there was a similar deposition mixed with some purulent matter.

There seems reason to believe that the araelmoid, lining the ventricles is more frequently the seat of in-

famoui n than has been commonly cases which terminate either by si ventules, or by the deposition th purifirm fluid. M. Gendrin has cases of this description, in which t of the ventricles was much thick which the posterior part of both vill false membrane, and their ca rilly fuil. The case was that of ened by a succession of absecesses; card with meningitis in the or evolume were pain in the left sid mining.-fever,-delirium,-palsy (centraction of the right,-and sl coma, in about five days. Dr. seried several cases in which the pus-but they were not distingu tims from the other inflammatory a

MEYL OURS.

§ VII.—MENIXGITIS OF THE

Case XVI.—A lady, aged 45, 1 of the left ear, complained of pain in Kell. On the two following days. through the head, with fever; and emplained of general headach, and A feeling of throbbing in the bac See yas deaf and inclined to dr sensity; palse 120 and very strong and the other usual remedies we on this and the following days the late Mr. Bryce, I saw her on then a good deal of coma, but si Exist complained of headach w Desirated, but did not make an Vuen she was much roused. Th Childright reduced in strength, to es en vel. In the evening e flammation than has been commonly supposed, in those cases which terminate either by simple effusion in the ventricles, or by the deposition there of a floceulent or puriform fluid. M. Gendrin has described several cases of this description, in which the lining membrane of the ventricles was much thickened; and one in which the posterior part of both ventrieles was lined with false membrane, and their eavities filled with a milky fluid. The ease was that of a girl of 13, weakened by a succession of absecsses; and it was complicated with meningitis in the ordinary form. symptoms were pain in the left side of the head,-vomiting,-fever,-delirium,-palsy of the left arm, and contraction of the right, and she died in a state of coma, in about five days. Dr. Bright has also described several eases in which the ventricles contained pus,-but they were not distinguished by any symptoms from the other inflammatory affections.

§ VII.—MENINGITIS OF THE CEREBELLUM.

Case XVI.—A lady, aged 45, liable to suppuration of the left ear, complained of pain in that ear, May 11, 1821. On the two following days, the pain extended through the head, with fever; and on the 14th, she complained of general headach, and a violent and painful feeling of throbbing in the back part of the head. She was deaf and inclined to drowsiness, but quite sensible; pulse 120 and very strong; large bloodletting and the other usual remedies were actively employed on this and the following days by Dr. Thateher and the late Mr. Bryce. I saw her on the 16th; there was then a good deal of coma, but she was sensible when roused; the eye natural, the tongue clean, pulse 130; she still complained of headach when she was closely questioned, but did not make any complaint except when she was much roused. The pulse being now considerably reduced in strength, topical bleeding only was employed. In the evening she was more easily roused, and said she felt better; in the night, she became again extremely restless and incoherent, and died early in the morning. There had been a slight discharge of matter from the left ear early in the disease.

Inspection.—There was slight effusion in the lateral ventrieles; the brain in other respects was healthy, On the outer surface of the eerebellum there was a uniform deposition of thick puriform matter; it was most abundant on the left side. The pia mater of the eerebellum was highly vascular, the dura mater was healthy; there was some purulent matter about the pituitary gland, and in the eavity of the ear, but there was no appearance of disease of the bones connected with the ear, or of the dura mater covering them.

Uncombined meningitis of the eerebellum seems to be an uncommon affection. An interesting example of it is mentioned by Mr. Duglison in the London Medieal Repository. A boy aged 5, pale and delicate, after being slightly indisposed for four or five days, was seized in the night of 9th August with violent convulsion. On the 10th, there was fever with delirium; a vaeant look of the eye, and an evident imperfection of vision, which appeared by his attempting to lay hold of objects that were presented to him, and missing them. There was dilated pupil, and slight strabismus. 11th, 12th, 13th, and 14th, Symptoms gradually increasing; 15th, eoma; eonstant motion of the right arm and leg; the left appeared to be paralysed. In the night was seized with violent convulsion, which continued till his death; this took place on the morning of the 16th. The brain was healthy. There was a remarkable vascularity on the tuber annulare, forming a thick web of vessels. It was connected with the arachnoid coat of the right side of the eerebellum, which was thickened with some deposition of coagulable lymph. About 5iv. of fluid was found in the base of the skull, but not above a tea-spoonful in the ventrieles.

These eases will serve to illustrate the remarkable

NENINGIAIS!

direstive of symptoms which accommodistive them as calculated meningitis unconnected with any disease of the brain. The convulsifiers, which are apt to be indiscrited in the cases. In such cases, instead of adventitions membrane, we frequently extensive coating of puriform floit the pia trater.

VIII.—A DANGEROUS MODIFIC EASE WRICH SHOWS ONLY INCRE

Another important modification in an insidious and highly dangero think has been little attended to by eases of the brain. It is apt to be or, in females, for a modification this manner the dangerous nature of been overlaked, until it proved ra edly fatal. It sometimes commen of spirits, which after a short time dealy, and is at once succeeded by of cheefulness, rapidly followed 1 ment. In other cases, these prelim remarkable; the affection, when it tion, being in its more confirmed for neral distributed by remarkable rapy incressant talking, and ramble to another, with obstinate watch frequent Jedse. Sometimes there con chiou of beisous or things a by in others this is entirely wanti the affection is generally tapid; in in constitution and come; but in g a sudden sinking of the vital power the high excitement, without con Estel di Catal (v 18 à liche vace diversity of symptoms which accompany this affection. I have selected them as calculated to exhibit the pure meningitis unconnected with any other considerable disease of the brain. The convulsive affections of children, which are apt to be indiscriminately ascribed to dentition, are, I think, frequently connected with this disease. In such cases, instead of the deposition of adventitious membrane, we frequently observe a thin but extensive coating of puriform fluid on the surface of the pia mater.

§ VIII.—A DANGEROUS MODIFICATION OF THE DIS-EASE WHICH SHOWS ONLY INCREASED VASCULARITY.

Another important modification of the disease occurs in an insidious and highly dangerous affection, which I think has been little attended to by writers on the diseases of the brain. It is apt to be mistaken for mania, or, in females, for a modification of hysteria; and in this manner the dangerous nature of it has sometimes been overlooked, until it proved rapidly and unexpectedly fatal. It sometimes commences with depression of spirits, which after a short time passes off very suddenly, and is at once succeeded by an unusual degree of cheerfulness, rapidly followed by maniacal excitement. In other cases, these preliminary stages are less remarkable; the affection, when it first exeites attention, being in its more confirmed form. This is in general distinguished by remarkable quickness of manner, rapid incessant talking, and rambling from one subject to another, with obstinate watchfulness, and a small frequent pulse. Sometimes there is hallucination, or conception of persons or things which are not present, but in others this is entirely wanting. The progress of the affection is generally rapid; in some cases, it passes into convulsion and coma; but in general it is fatal by a sudden sinking of the vital powers, supervening upon the high excitement, without coma. The principal morbid appearance is a highly vascular state of the pia

mater, sometimes with very slight effusion betwixt it and the araehnoid. The disease is one of extreme danger, and does not in general admit of very active treatment. General bleeding is not borne well, and the treatment must in general be confined to topical bleeding with purgatives, antimonials, and the powerful application of cold to the head. The affection is most common in females of a delieate irritable habit, but also occurs in males, especially in those who have been addieted to intemperanee. I have however seen it in one ease, in a gentleman between 40 and 50, of stout make and very temperate habits. The eause of death is obseure; it seems in general to be a sudden sinking of the vital powers, supervening upon the high excitement without any of the actual results of inflammation.

Case XVII.—A lady, aged 23, had suffered much distress from the death of a sister, and had been affected. in eonsequence, with impaired appetite and want of sleep; this had gone on for about two months, when on the 4th of August 1825, she sent for Dr. Kellie, and said she wished to consult him about her stomach. He found her rambling from one subject to another with extreme rapidity and eonsiderable incoherence; and on the 5th, she was in a state of the highest exeitement, with incessant talking, alternating with sereaming and singing; pulse from 80 to 90. In the evening she became suddenly calm and quite sensible after an opiate; continued so for an hour or more, then fell asleep, and after sleeping two hours, awoke in the same state of excitement as before. The same symp. toms continued on the 6th; the pulse in the morning was little affected, but after this time it became small and very rapid. On the 7th, after a night of great and eonstant excitement, she had another lucid interval, but her pulse was now 150. The excitement soon returned, and continued till four in the afternoon, when she fell asleep. She awoke about eight, ealm and colleeted, but with an evident tendency to eoma; pulse

Listed the night partly in a state and partly comatose; and died ith, having continued to talk inc those about her, and in general was said to her.

TENNO, 115

Inspection.—The only morbid be discovered was a highly vase mater, with numerous red point the brain.

Case XVIII.—A gentleman, make, and very temperate habits facted, without any known cause sion of spirits, accompanied by and want of sleep. After this cofir two days, it went off sudden excellent spirits and talked cheeri was soon succeeded by a state of excellent spirits and talked cheeri was soon succeeded by a state of excellent spirits and talking and obstinate the pulse rose rapidly to 160.

The period of the plan morbid and interpretation.—The only morbid and sight serious effusion betwirk them

This obscure and dangerous a acute theumatism and other inti- It is unnecessary to give a length which do not tend to throw any the nature of it. A young lady, the nature of it. A young lady, there days, her pulse from 90 to 90 acute deal and rather incoherenty at high day, the pulse from 90 to 90 acute deal and rather incoherenty at high the incoherent talking.

10 M

the states of

and of rightering their

The Walling

- in a ille no estal are

a Lohi ill' m.

tro it trong this when

Charles Dr. K. P

150, and small. She now took food and wine, and passed the night partly in a state of similar excitement, and partly comatose; and died about mid-day of the 8th, having continued to talk incoherently, but knowing those about her, and in general understanding what was said to her.

Inspection.—The only morbid appearance that could be discovered was a highly vascular state of the pia mater, with numerous red points in the substance of the brain.

Case XVIII.—A gentleman, aged 44, of a stout make, and very temperate habits, became suddenly affeeted, without any known eause, with extreme depression of spirits, accompanied by a good deal of talking and want of sleep. After this condition had continued for two days, it went off suddenly, and he recovered exeellent spirits and talked eheerfully. This, however, was soon sueeeeded by a state of excitement, with rapid incoherent talking, and obstinate watchfulness; and the pulse rose rapidly to 160. This state continued without abatement for about four days, when he suddenly sunk into a state of collapse and died.

Inspection.—The only morbid appearance was a highly vaseular state of the pia mater and arachnoid, with

slight serous effusion betwixt them.

This obscure and dangerous affection is sometimes met with in connexion with other diseases, especially acute rheumatism and other inflammatory affections, and sometimes attacks females in the puerperal state. It is unnecessary to give a lengthened detail of eases, which do not tend to throw any additional light upon the nature of it. A young lady, whom I saw with Mr. Turner, had acute rheumatism in a very slight form for three days, her pulse from 90 to 96; on the fourth day, the pains eeased, and in the evening, she began to talk a great deal and rather incoherently, but made no complaint. On the fifth day, she was more tranquil, but at night the incoherent talking returned. I then saw

ted by some family occurrence, no to talk wildly and incohered excuement, talking incessantly, ging, with a wild expression of small rapid pulse. She was treate Luatives, cold applications to the ide or no benefit; and on visitin ing day. I found her sitting up in xreme wildness, both her hands taking incessant'y and wildly; a

MENINGITIS

had not ceased talking for one insthours. Her pulse was now rapid countenance expressive of exhaus with a highly intelligent friend w case, I mentioned my experience the affection, and proposed to m

by stimulants. A glass of wine to with evident abatement of the sy ordered to be repeated every hour. fourth hour, she was perfectly com

Let Julee about 90 and of good , class time there was no return of the

tum r in the right side increased was open I and healed favourably. extinced in perfect health, and thrugh another acconchment in the

This case I have given as anoth incressing affection. I have employed of treatment, with similar benefit in but of males and females. The dending upon the particular cases

Laine treatment is applicable. The in which the excitement is accompan Till fully catherines along the first of 10

The When these characters are his The czciement may be I have from the Practice, and in a consideral

her for the first time; she was talking a great deal wildly and incoherently, but, when her attention was arrested, she answered questions distinctly; the pulse was 120; the tongue rather loaded, but moist; and she did not complain of any uneasiness. On the sixth day, these symptoms continued; in the evening she became eomatose, and died in the night. Bloodletting was employed, and various other remedies, without benefit. A soldier, aged 34, for whose ease I am indebted to the late Dr. Hennen, had acute rheumatism in a severe form, combined with pneumonic symptoms. He was relieved by bloodletting, but his pulse continued frequent, and he had some palpitation of the heart, but not severe. On the fifteenth day of the disease, he beeame suddenly eomatose, and died in a few hours. In both these eases the appearances on dissection were altogether unsatisfactory.

The above remarks on this highly dangerous and interesting affection, I leave as they stood in the first edition of this work. Since that time I have seen several examples of it, and have been induced to adopt a different mode of treatment, which seems to promise some interesting results. Without at present venturing upon any general eonelusions, I shall merely submit the following ease.

CASE XIX.—A lady, aged about 38, was recovering from her eleventh accouchment, when, at the end of a fortnight, she became affected with a deep seated hard swelling in the right side of the pelvis, which was tender to the touch, and was accompanied by a considerable degree of fever. After repeated topical bleeding and other remedies, the febrile state subsided, the swelling lost its tenderness, and seemed to be gradually diminishing in size; but its progress was very slow, and, after three or four weeks, she was still confined to bed, and suffering a good deal of uneasiness; her pulse was now calm, but she was considerably reduced in strength. At this time, she became, one day, alarmed and agin' u

. 10 · July 1.

Die Cetti I Wils em-

the eminued fre-

· · · i h.m.lut

in an Illantion were at-

en renture.

tated by some family occurrence, and immediately began to talk wildly and incoherently, and after a restless night was found next day in a state of the highest excitement, talking incessantly, screaming and struggling, with a wild expression of countenance, and a small rapid pulse. She was treated by topical bleeding, laxatives, cold applications to the head, &e., but with little or no benefit; and on visiting her on the following day, I found her sitting up in bed, with a look of extreme wildness, both her hands in constant motion, talking incessantly and wildly; and I learnt that she had not ceased talking for one instant for the last twelve hours. Her pulse was now rapid and feeble, and her countenance expressive of exhaustion. In consultation with a highly intelligent friend who had charge of the case, I mentioned my experience of the fatal nature of the affection, and proposed to make trial of treatment by stimulants. A glass of wine was accordingly given, with evident abatement of the symptoms; and it was ordered to be repeated every hour. At the end of the fourth hour, she was perfectly composed and rational, her pulse about 90 and of good strength; and from this time there was no return of the symptoms. The tumor in the right side increased in size, suppurated, was opened and healed favourably. From this time she continued in perfect health, and has since passed through another accouchment in the most favourable manner.

This case I have given as another example of this interesting affection. I have employed the same mode of treatment, with similar benefit in several other cases, both of males and females. The chief difficulty is in deciding upon the particular cases to which the stimulating treatment is applicable. They appear to be those in which the excitement is accompanied by a small and rapid pulse, and an expression of paleness and exhaustion. When these characters are present, however violent the excitement may be, I have not been deterred from the practice, and in a considerable number of in-

stances have found much reason to be satisfied with it. I have tried it, but without the same benefit, in some of the common eases of insanity, accompanied by paleness and bodily weakness, but with a natural pulse. When there is frequent and strong pulse, with flushing and other marks of increased vascular action, it would of course be injurious.

An affection analogous to this occurs in habitual drunkards. The symptoms, in such cases, may either follow a particular instance of excess, or they may appear in connection with some incidental febrile disturbance produced by cold, or any other ordinary cause; and sometimes they follow slight injuries. There is generally great irritability and restlessness, with sleeplessness or disturbed sleep, sometimes delirium, almost amounting to mania: and generally a small rapid pulse. This state of excitement may either be followed by sudden sinking and death,—or it may pass into coma and be fatal more gradually. In other eases there is not the high delirium, but a febrile state of restlessness, passing into coma. On dissection, there is often little seen, except increased vascularity of the membranes, and some serous effusion under the arachnoid, and sometimes a little in the ventrieles. In other eases a deposition of puriform matter is found under the arachnoid.

An affection occurs in children which presents the same obscurity in the morbid appearances as in these remarkable cases, though with different symptoms. The child is generally attacked with a succession of convulsions, and is cut off within various periods, from one to three or four days. It is apt to occur in connexion with other diseases, especially hooping cough.

CASE XX.—A child, aged two and a half years, affected with hooping cough in a very mild form, was attacked, in the end of May 1822, with a convulsive

twister, of the han's, to which shibbed an early period of life; the all the 4th of June, when she was a revision, accompanied with fever obstinate state of the bowels. All yet employed with activity, but a timed to neur several times in the and favourable form.

MENINCITIS.

In person.—There was slight ince
of the pia mater, with numerous re
the medullary substance of the bre
case could be discovered on the me
tion, and all the other organs were

Case XXI.—A child, aged 3. a cough, on 5th June 1022, was a cough, on 5th June 1022, was and fever; had afterwards irregular with occasional squinting, then which recurred frequently and altered he died in three days. After died wered, on the most careful edinceased vascularity of the pia material

Case XXII.—A child, aged three had been for several days slightly fe early but the complaint was consider see resisting at table on the ever April when the saidenly lost her of ietral's was gived with general constant as with complete insensi livy for se of the night the curplate iced the lower of swallowing. W to k pagative medicine, who int. On the 4th, the convulsion r' ence she had a contain succes during the day, and in the interval Anny in way were still on the Jth. the discovered execut? twisting of the hands, to which she had been formerly liable at an early period of life; this excited no alarm, till the 4th of Junc, when she was seized with general convulsion, accompanied with fever, headach, and an obstinate state of the bowels. All the usual remedies were employed with activity, but the convulsions continued to recur several times in the day, and she died on the 8th. The cough had gone on, but in a mild and favourable form.

Inspection.—There was slight increase of vascularity of the pia mater, with numerous red points throughout the medullary substance of the brain. No other disease could be discovered on the most careful examina-

tion, and all the other organs were healthy.

Case XXI.—A child, aged 5, affected with hooping eough, on 5th June 1822, was seized with headach and fever; had afterwards irregular motion of the eyes with occasional squinting, then violent convulsions, which recurred frequently and alternated with coma; and he died in three days. After death, nothing could be discovered, on the most careful examination, except increased vascularity of the pia mater in several places.

Case XXII.—A child, aged three years and a-half, had been for several days slightly feverish, with some cough, but the complaint was considered as triffing, and she was sitting at table on the evening of the third of April, when she suddenly lost her speech, and soon afterwards was seized with general convulsion. continued in a state of constant and violent convulsion, with complete insensibility, for several hours; in the course of the night the convulsion abated-she recovered the power of swallowing, which had been lost, and took purgative medicine, which operated powerfully. On the 4th, the convulsion returned with great violence; she had a constant succession of paroxysms during the day, and in the intervals was in a state of coma. She died early on the 5th. On inspection, no disease could be discovered, except increased vascularity of the membranes of the brain, and turgidity of the veins upon the surface.

I have notes of several eases remembling this in the symptoms, and presenting the same obscurity in the morbid appearances. They occurred in strong healthy ehildren from two to four years of age, and were fatal generally about the third day, and under various modes of treatment.

It is unnecessary to multiply examples of this kind, which only serve to shew us the imperfection of our knowledge on the pathology of the brain. In the following singular ease, the affection here referred to seemed to have taken place in the course of another disease of the brain, and to have been the immediate eause of death, before the primary affection had been so far advanced as to have the nature of it distinctly eharaeterized.

CASE XXIII.—A child, aged 4 years, of a family who had lost many elildren from various forms of disease, had been affected for about ten or twelve days, with a feverish disorder, which had not shown any alarming symptom. The complaint appeared to be subsiding, and, on the day on which he died, he had been considered as eonvaleseent by two medical men of the first eminence. In the afternoon of that day, his mother observed that his eyes became suddenly fixed and vacant. Soon after, he was seized with most violent general convulsion, which continued, without intermission, for about five hours, when he died.

Inspection.—There was considerable effusion in the ventricles, and a good deal of ramollissement of the septum and fornix. The only other morbid appearance was a most extensive and high degree of vascularity of the pia mater.

Inflammation of the arachnoid and pia mater appears to oecur in a more chronic form, in which it may go to for a considerable time, spread the brain to another, and prod symptoms, as the parts become A lady, mentioned by Mr. Hows ach, impatience of light, and pa and leg. After a short time the p but the arm continued so painful a The pain of the head continued, a extended downwards upon the had then retention of urine, sev the tack and loins, convulsive con ders, and pain shooting through breast. She had at last intense back, and whole body, so as t single limb, and died gradually after the commencement of the d serous effusion was found unde extensive deposition of coagulable lateral, and inferior parts of the l part of the medulla oblongata: was found to have extended alo the spinal cord. Chronic disease of the pia ma

MENINGITIS.

met with in various forms; in son including of the membranes tl with old depositions of false men the affection is complicated with

A contenan mentioned by Dr been affected for a fortnight wi came incoherent, with a conside dilated pupils, and indistinct ar in another fortnight. The pup Date dilated than that of the] before his death, the right side

inspection, effusion was found · Househip's Practical Observations I technology as of the College of

on for a considerable time, spreading from one part of the brain to another, and producing a succession of symptoms, as the parts become successively affected. A lady, mentioned by Mr. Howship,* had severe headach, impatience of light, and paralysis of the left arm and leg. After a short time the paralysis was removed, but the arm continued so painful as to be nearly useless. The pain of the head continued, and, after two months, extended downwards upon the neck and back. She had then retention of urine, severe throbbing pain of the back and loins, convulsive contraction of the shoulders, and pain shooting through from the back to the breast. She had at last intense pain in the head, neck, back, and whole body, so as to be unable to move a single limb, and died gradually exhausted, four months after the commencement of the disease. On inspection, serous effusion was found under the arachnoid, with extensive deposition of coagulable lymph on the upper, lateral, and inferior parts of the brain, and the anterior part of the medulla oblongata: and the same disease was found to have extended along the membranes of the spinal cord.

Chronic disease of the pia mater and arachnoid is met with in various forms; in some cases, consisting of thickening of the membranes themselves; in others, with old depositions of false membrane; and in some, the affection is complicated with tubercular disease of

the pia mater.

. . i il i Vai ode Rioles

A gentleman mentioned by Dr. Powel,† after having been affected for a fortnight with slight headach, became incoherent, with a considerable degree of stupor, dilated pupils, and indistinct articulation; and he died in another fortnight. The pupil of the right eye was more dilated than that of the left, and, a short time before his death, the right side became paralytic. On inspection, effusion was found in the ventricles, and

† Transactions of the College of Physicians of London, vol. v.

^{*} Howship's Practical Observations in Surgery and Morbid Anatomy.

THE COURT OF THE REAL PROPERTY.

i. . A the left side of the l

tierelt. An adventitious met

the wirle right hemisphere of

thinner on the lower parts of

he as the base; the left her

HEMISPHER

Is the symptoms accompanying

starge of the brain, there are

ing probably on the exte

"- particular part of the brain y

We fin in some cases, head when

aralia. A frequent and r

the disager is characterized by

and are one or more " which

treels but a paralytic. ()

respondence to the ord

in it as scarcely to be dist

revisione Seature of the

s that the disease in the brain

cal the state of simple in

sand through

minated in fatal car a.

Tall be also of the distance

. ns cicur, arising from the Fath

we was a tech dates in the the Day of Health Lat. Co. d.

deposition of coagulable lymph about the pons Varolii. At the anterior part of the middle lobe of the brainhe does not say in which hemisphere—the pia mater was much thickened, and its inner surface was studded with small tubercles, like large pin heads. Similar tubercles were observed in other parts of it, especially where it lies betwixt the convolutions. This tubercular disease of the pia mater does not appear to be a common affection, but a very remarkable case of it is mentioned by Dr. Clark.* A man, aged 35, addicted to intoxication, was seized with fever and cough, followed by vomiting, bloody stools, drowsiness, and muttering; but he was not entirely confined for the first fourteen days; after this he became worse, with severe headach, much cough, subsultus, drowsiness and deafness, pulse 116, tongue dry and brown. He had then delirium, impatience of light, and a degree of coma; but he was relieved by bleeding, and the pulse fell to 96. He died suddenly on the 24th day, having been out of bed and eating heartily the day before. On inspection, the dura mater was found perforated by small orifices, which transmitted flesh-coloured tubercles. These appeared to arise from the pia mater, and had no connexion with the brain; some of them were of the size of small peas, and were received into depressions of the cranium, some of which were one-sixth of an inch in depth. The arachnoid was thickened, and in some places adhered to the pia mater; in other places, coagulable lymph was deposited betwixt them; there was some fluid in the ventricles.

Thickening of the membranes, and adhesions to each other, are met with in many cases, probably the result of inflammatory action of old date. Such cases are mentioned by Wepfer, Willis, and others, in some of which the patients had been long liable to headach. Similar appearances have been observed in old maniacal cases. A man is mentioned by Dr. Powel, who had been two years insane, and died fatuous; he had

Edinburgh Medical Journal, vol. v. p. 261.

been liable, at uncertain intervals, to convulsive attacks, in which the left side of the body suffered more than the right. An adventitious membrane of the thickness of three sheets of writing paper, was found eovering the whole right hemisphere of the brain; it became thinner on the lower parts of it, and was gradually lost at the base; the left hemisphere was entirely healthy.

SECTION V.

ma a material

er i en interior

There of

I was alluin maner.

INFLAMMATION OF THE SUBSTANCE OF THE HEMISPHERES.

In the symptoms accompanying inflammation of the substance of the brain, there are considerable varieties, depending probably on the extent of the disease, and the particular part of the brain which is the seat of it. We find in some eases, headach, followed by high delirium, and this by eoma; in others, a sudden attack of convulsion. A frequent and very important form of the disease is characterized by headach, followed by convulsion of one or more limbs, the affected limbs afterwards becoming paralytic. Other eases again assume a close resemblance to the ordinary attack of hemiplegia, so as searcely to be distinguished from it; and a very interesting feature of the affection in these eases is, that the disease in the brain may not have extended beyond the state of simple inflammation, though the symptoms have passed through their usual course, and have terminated in fatal coma.

In the progress of the disease, considerable modifieations occur, arising from the various ways in which the inflammation terminates; in these we are chiefly to attend to the following varieties.

I. It may be fatal in the inflammatory stage; a certain defined portion of the cerebral substance presenting the appearance of deep redness without any

ehange of structure.

II. The simple ramollissement; which consists in a part of the brain being broken down into a soft pulpy mass, retaining the natural colour of the part, without any appearance of suppuration, and without fetor. This condition we often find as the only morbid appearance, but we frequently find it combined with the former, one portion of the diseased mass presenting the deep red colour, while another is in the state of ramollissement.

III. The preceding appearance mixed with a propor-

tion of purulent matter.

IV. The undefined suppuration. This might perhaps be considered as a modification of the former, but with the purulent matter prodominating in quantity. It presents a large ragged undefined cavity, filled partly with fetid purulent matter, and partly with broken down cerebral substance, the surrounding substance being soft and disorganized.

V. The defined or encysted abseess. This consists of a well defined regular cavity, filled with purulent matter, generally lined by a soft cyst, and surrounded by eerebral

matter in a healthy state.

VI. Ulceration of the surface of the brain.

Important modifications also occur in connexion with the character of the disease in regard to activity. In particular, there appear to be some very interesting phenomena, connected with a chronic form of it, in which it may continue for a considerable time without advancing to a fatal termination, or in which the symptoms may remit so as to assume a periodical character. These various modifications will be illustrated by the following s election of cases.

& L-THE INFLAMMATION OF STANCE FATAL IN THE INFL

Case XXIV.-A woman, t under bad health in a variety of besore her death. Her complai Leadach, and frequent attacks sime time, these symptoms subsid vith cough, bemoptysis, quick ar and searchy of urine. The affe came on in paroxysms, during was 80 or 80 in a minute, and this state for soveral days tog constantly frequent. After she mintle from these complaints, without any obvious cause. She with violent paroxysms of pain in and romining. The pain was prin of the abdomen, which was swell thou beside; the baroziems in pous discharges of puriform fluid there was a temporary alleviation of discharge of this fluid. The last t was a few weeks before her death sweeting and hardness occupying of the abdomen, extremely tend Consecond the impression of external and see her in the fatal atte bead; it began with severe heada and ferer; these were succeede this ly coma; and she died comar the commencement of this attack. In all mas present at 1 bidy and found the surface of the ct s dark red colour. This app some places to the depth of an inc of the brain, and was principally of action parts of both hemispher

terior for the left hemist here

§ I.—THE INFLAMMATION OF THE CEREBRAL SUB-STANCE FATAL IN THE INFLAMMATORY STAGE.

CASE XXIV.—A woman, aged 26, had laboured under bad health in a variety of forms, for 18 months before her death. Her complaints began with severe headaeh, and frequent attacks of convulsion. After some time, these symptoms subsided, and she was seized with cough, hemoptysis, quiek and laborious breathing, and scareity of urine. The affection of her breathing eame on in paroxysms, during which her respiration was 80 or 90 in a minute, and sometimes continued in this state for several days together, her pulse being constantly frequent. After she had suffered for many months from these complaints, they subsided entirely without any obvious cause. She then became affected with violent paroxysms of pain in the abdomen, dysuria, and vomiting. The pain was principally in the right side of the abdomen, which was swelled, tense, and painful upon pressure; the paroxysms were succeeded by copious discharges of puriform fluid from the vagina; and there was a temporary alleviation of the pain after every discharge of this fluid. The last time I saw her, which was a few weeks before her death, there was a general swelling and hardness occupying the whole right side of the abdomen, extremely tender to the touch, and conveying the impression of extensive organic diseasc. I did not see her in the fatal attack, which was in the head; it began with severe headach, impatience of light, and fever; these were suceeeded by convulsion, and this by coma; and she died comatose about a week after the commencement of this attack.

... 108 S 27 11 . Diane.

Inspection.—I was present at the examination of the body, and found the surface of the brain in many places of a dark red colour. This appearance extended in some places to the depth of an inch into the substance of the brain, and was principally observed in the upper and anterior parts of both hemispheres, and on the posterior part of the left hemisphere. The parts so affected

were rather softer than the other parts of the brain, and appeared to be more vascular, for drops of blood exuded from them when they were cut. The internal parts of the brain were healthy, and there was no serous effusion. The longitudinal sinus near its posterior part was thickened in its coats, so as considerably to diminish its area. The hardness of the abdomen, which was so remarkable a short time before death, had disappeared; and not a vestige of disease could be detected in any of the viscera of the thorax, abdomen, or pelvis.

Case XXV.—A lady, aged 40, had been for some time affected with irregularity of the menstrual discharge, such as she supposed to be a prelude to its eessation. But, for some days previous to the attack to be now described, the discharge had been present, and very copious, so that she felt weakened by it. This continued on the 26th October 1825; and, in the evening of that day, on rising suddenly from her chair, she fell down on the floor in a state of syneope, but soon recovered, and felt no farther inconvenience. She passed rather a restless night, but without any particular symptom, except that early in the morning she complained of slight uneasiness in the back of her head. Soon after this, she was sitting up in bed taking her breakfast with appetite, when, without any warning, she fell backwards in a state of the most violent general convulsion, with every charaeter of perfect epilepsy. The convulsion soon subsided, leaving her in a state of eoma; after a short time, the fit returned, and, from 9 in the morning to 4 in the afternoon, she had about fifteen attacks of most severe and general convulsion, without ever recovering her senses in any degree between the attacks. During all this time, she was ineapable of swallowing; the eye was insensible, and the pupil rather contracted; the face pale and sallow. The pulse varied exceedingly, being sometimes of good strength, and little increased in frequency; at other times, especially after the convulsion, it was frequent and feeble. General and topieal bloodletting were employed with cold applications TALLY THE INCLUME

the head, &c.; and at 4 P.M.
Laving her in a state of coma,
Laving her in a state of coma,
The coma continued during the
ing of the 29th, she revived a
liquids and seemed to take some
her. During the day, she gene
then, but showed little appearant
that once or twice she named he
of the natural standard, and re
taxaire medicine, by the operation
to be relieved, but recovered
In the tight, the convulsions re
gree than firmerly, but were
coccurring every 15 minutes.

29th She was in a state of cf exhaustion, incapable of sw Jupil natural, pulse feeble and after mid-day, she recovered the soon lost it again. In the extremed, with rapid failure of in the night. No paralytic sympand the convulsions seemed to a body.

Is pection. A small quanti Grain; the dura mater. On the han, there was a slight app forming three small patches. hemist ness there was found in a und derned partion of the dark red c lour; it was about tinety circumseribed, and sur bral salistance. In its struc frmuers from the other parts across, it presented internally meale small red points, in Pints, but the red the most ab ab re the level of the rentricle hemisphere; and, in the very nest hemsphere, there was to the head, &c.; and at 4 P.M. the convulsions ceased, leaving her in a state of coma, the pulse rather weak. The coma continued during the night, but in the morning of the 28th, she revived a little, began to swallow liquids, and seemed to take some notice of those about her. During the day, she generally lay with her eyes open, and at times appeared to follow objects with them, but showed little appearance of sensibility, except that once or twice she named her sister; pulse nearly of the natural standard, and rather weak. She took laxative medicine, by the operation of which she seemed to be relieved, but recovered no farther intelligence. In the night, the convulsions returned in a slighter degree than formerly, but were very frequent, sometimes occurring every 15 minutes.

(29th) She was in a state of coma, with appearance of exhaustion, incapable of swallowing, eye insensible, pupil natural, pulse feeble and of natural frequency; after mid-day, she recovered the power of swallowing, but soon lost it again. In the evening, the convulsions returned, with rapid failure of strength, and she died in the night. No paralytic symptom had been observed, and the convulsions seemed to affect equally the whole

body.

2 8 th | 15 cm | 1 dis 1.

substitution

n cresport and very

er a rest

Sol hadishe

Inspection.—A small quantity of fluid escaped in opening the dura mater. On the upper surface of the brain, there was a slight appearance of ecchymosis, forming three small patches. On cutting into the left hemisphere, there was found in the upper part of it a round defined portion of the ccrebral substance of a dark red colour: it was about the size of a walnut, distinctly circumscribed, and surrounded by healthy cerebral substance. In its structure, it did not differ in firmness from the other parts of the brain; when cut across, it presented internally the appearance of innumerable small red points, interspersed with yellow points, but the red the most abundant. It was situated above the level of the ventricle, about the centre of the hemisphere; and, in the very same situation in the right hemisphere, there was another diseased part exactly similar, except that it was a little softened in the centre. The brain in other respects was healthy, and there was no effusion in the ventricles. The arachnoid of the base was remarkably vascular on the right side; the cerebellum was healthy. In the centre of the medulla oblongata, there was a small dark portion, as if produced by a drop or two of extravasated blood. This remarkable case I saw along with the late Dr. George Wood.

The following case seems to be referable to this class, showing the disease in a stage somewhat more advanced with the first approach towards softening.

Case XXVI.—A gentleman aged 36, of very intemperate habits; had suffered repeated attacks of a nature allied to delirium tremens, but occasionally accompanied with symptoms of an apoplectic character. In October 1829, he had recently recovered from one of these attacks, and was in excellent health: went to the country, and was amusing himself with coursing, when, on the 6th November, he was affected with a slight epileptic fit. He had a second attack on the 7th, after which he became considerably incoherent in his conversation; and he had a third and more severe paroxysm on the 8th, in his carriage, on his way to Edinburgh. After the usual treatment, he was much better on the 9th, 10th, and 11th. On the 12th, he was excited and restless, walking frequently up and down stairs without any object; and in the evening he had a slight return of convulsion. On the 13th he was confined to bed, and was slightly incoherent. He was again attacked with convulsion at night. On the 14th he was more incoherent; and in the night had a very severe attack, in which he continued in a state of constant convulsion for several hours. Pulse frequent and weak. On his recovery from this paroxysm, he remained speechless and with a degree of paralysis of the right side; but he seemed to recognise those about him, and made attempts to express himself.—15th and 16th, continued in the

same condition.—17th, there verally is and the pulse became sunk into perfect coma and died

Inspection.—On raising the appearance was presented by the left hemisphere, which was over very deep dark red colour, nearly into it, the same colour was found substance, and in a slighter degriptions of the anterior and midderadually lest in the healthy to affected was sensibly softer the substance, but not disorganized was some fluid found in the ballotain in other respects was entire

II.—THE AFFECTION IN

CASE XXVII.—A young lady on the 20th of February 1817. complaint had the appearance o the second week, the pulse came became clean and moist, while severe, with a sense of weight, r head a look of great oppression, ire. Brodletting purgatives, leading of cold, aborded part 5th of March, the pain return accompanied by violent throb squinting. The same remed internal of partial relief; the bat it was less severe than in there was constant throbbing lock of much oppression; the p On the 11th, there was headach followed by convulsion lieted by bleeding but on the 130 confusion of the same condition.—17th, there was an increase of the paralysis and the pulse became more feeble. He now sunk into perfect come and died on the 19th.

is was healthy,

The arach-

... all on the ritt

· . ma.. dara portion, as

it extravasated blod.

n r. 1.36, of very intem-

pared these of a nature

the operation

- will nation; when on

e, of why a single by

the grant the grant

The Fridel at.

On the hier

Inspection .- On raising the brain a very peculiar appearance was presented by the middle lobe of the left hemisphere, which was over its whole surface of a very deep dark red colour, nearly purple. On cutting into it, the same colour was found to extend through its substance, and in a slighter degree into the contiguous portions of the anterior and middle lobes, where it was gradually lost in the healthy texture. The part thus affected was sensibly softer than the sound cerebral substance, but not disorganized or broken down. There was some fluid found in the base of the skull, but the brain in other respects was entirely healthy.

§ II.—THE AFFECTION IN A CHRONIC FORM.

CASE XXVII.—A young lady, aged 22, was taken ill on the 20th of February 1817. For the first week her complaint had the appearance of continued fever; in the second week, the pulse came down, and the tongue became clean and moist, while the headach continued severe, with a sense of weight, much throbbing in the head, a look of great oppression, and occasional vomiting. Bloodletting, purgatives, blistering, and the application of cold, afforded partial relief; but, on the 5th of March, the pain returned with great severity, accompanied by violent throbbing, and a degree of squinting. The same remedies again procured an interval of partial relief; the pain was not removed, but it was less severe than in the violent paroxysms; there was constant throbbing in the head, and a look of much oppression; the pulse varying from 84 to On the 11th, there was a violent paroxysm of headach followed by convulsion; she was again relieved by bleeding, but on the 15th, she had loss of recollection, much confusion of thought, difficulty of ar-

tieulation, and numbucss of the right arm and right side of the face, -most remarkable in the latter, which had no feeling when it was touched. These symptoms disappeared on the following day, but the pain continued to recur in paroxysms; and, about the 24th, had assumed so much of a periodical character, that, by the advice of an eminent physician, she was treated with arsenie, which remedy, having occasioned nausea, was given up after a week. She then continued for a fortnight or more, in nearly the same state, constantly eonfined to bed, and affected with frequent returns of the pain, but without any violent attack, until the 20th of April, when it returned with great violence, accompanied by vomiting, pain in the abdomen, and double vision during the paroxysm; the pulse was at this time natural. From the beginning of May, the complaint began to diminish in violence; on the 20th, she was first able to be out of bed, and from that time rceovered gradually. Soon after her recovery, a large glandular swelling appeared upon her neek, which continued stationary for many months. During the summer and the following winter, she enjoyed tolerable health, but continued liable to headach, and throbbing in the head, and required the most eautious regimen. In spring, 1818, she had severe peetoral complaints, on rccovering from which, she began again to complain of headaeh, with sense of weight in the head, and oceasional giddiness. In the beginning of June, she had several attacks which resembled syncope, except that the pulse continued of good strength; and, soon after this, she began to be oceasionally forgetful, and slightly incoherent. These symptoms were followed by a tendeney to stupor, which was relieved for a time by purgatives, and repeated blistering; at this time, her pulse was generally from 96 to 100, and her countenance was pale and exhausted. As these symptoms advanced, her pectoral complaints disappeared, and, after various turns of the symptoms in the head, she was found speechless in the morning of the 3d of July. She lay with her eyes open, appeared to take notice of objects: pulse

CHRANIC TO

fer. 1 to 100 and weak, fa m the same state on the 4th increase of coma, with loss of t and paralysis of the right side. (ith) Recovered the power 121: expression of the count natural; but she made no attent (7th) In the same state; to hand, and appeared to be amus paralytic; great obstinacy of the 130. She died in the evening. I specion.—The dura mate the left hemisphere of the brain half-crown piece, about the mi n'ar the falx. At this place the size of a large walnut, wa sed colour, and this redness ap per surface, where the membran on the inner surface, where it the fals. When cut into, this r irmer than the healthy cerebral wards the centre, where it was s to supportation. The external circ the retained the deep red colour, half an inch; the central parts vid interspersed portions of a On the upper surface, where the in the new as a deposition of false tent of the adhesion, and the du of the adhesion, was thickened of the longitudinal sinus also ap at the place where it came in co Joseph and no other disease in

The large were extensively tuber

Ling the diaphragm, on the left

ingular from numerous small fin

Solder Teem announce on

from 90 to 100 and weak, face pale. She continued in the same state on the 4th; on the 5th, there was increase of coma, with loss of the power of swallowing, and paralysis of the right side.

(6th) Recovered the power of swallowing: pulse 130; expression of the countenance intelligent; eye

natural; but she made no attempt to speak.

(7th) In the same state; took flowers in her left hand, and appeared to be amused by them; right side paralytie; great obstinacy of the bowels.

(9th) More oppressed. (10th) Perfect coma; pulse

130. She died in the evening.

at the 24m

े । भारती सार्थ

Maria 14

Inspection.—The dura mater adhered intimately to the left hemisphere of the brain, at a spot the size of a half-erown piece, about the middle of the hemisphere near the falx. At this place a portion of the brain, the size of a large walnut, was externally of a deep red colour, and this redness appeared both on the upper surface, where the membranes adhered to it, and on the inner surface, where it was in contact with the falx. When cut into, this portion appeared rather firmer than the healthy eerebral substance, except towards the centre, where it was soft, as if approaching to suppuration. The external circumference of the portion retained the deep red colour, to the depth of about half an inch; the central parts were of an ash colour, with interspersed portions of a dark reddish-brown. On the upper surface, where the membranes adhered to it, there was a deposition of false membrane to the extent of the adhesion, and the dura mater, at the place of the adhesion, was thickened and spongy; the coats of the longitudinal sinus also appeared to be thickened, at the place where it came in contact with the diseased portion of the brain. There was no effusion in the ventrieles, and no other disease in any part of the brain. The lungs were extensively tubercular, and the pleura lining the diaphragm, on the left side, was rough and irregular, from numerous small firm exerescences on its surface, resembling warts.

CASE XXVIII .-- A lady, aged 60, for whose ease I am indebted to Dr. Hay, in the end of September, 1824, suffered an apoplectic attack with partial paralysis of the right side. She was relieved by bleeding, and appeared to be recovering favourably, until the 8th of October, when she had another attack. She did not then become insensible, but complained of a strong pulsation over the body, particularly on the right side, the arm and leg of which were again considerably paralysed. From this time, she gradually lost the power of these parts, first of the leg and then of the arm; she had oeeasional returns of the feeling of pulsation, and frequently applied her hand to the right side of her head, in which she said she felt uneasiness, and to which it was observed, that, during sleep, her hand was frequently earried; the bowels were extremely torpid. The usual treatment was employed by Dr. Hay, in the most judicious manner, without relief; her strength gradually declined, and she died on the 26th of December, having fallen into a comatose state, with loss of the power of swallowing, about a week before her death.

Inspection.—The dura mater was found to adhere very firmly to the brain, at a spot about the centre of the left hemisphere, on the upper part. The substance of the brain beneath this portion seemed firmer than natural, and when cut into, was of a bright red colour. This portion was about an inch and a half in extent downwards, and of nearly the same breadth; and the eerebral substance surrounding it appeared more vaseular than the other parts of the brain. Deeper in the substance of the brain, a similar portion was met with, the size of a hazel nut, which was of a deeper red eolour than the former. The eorpus striatum of the same side was of a red colour, inclining to purple, soft in its texture, and presenting, when eut aeross, numerous points of vessels. The right hemisphere was healthy; there was a small quantity of fluid in the lateral ventricles; and, in both ventricles, the choroid plexus was

in l'e d', and contain a surface of the left hours are fille deep to a volution appearance of ecchymosis.

S III.—THE INFLAMED MAR

Cast XXIX-A girl, aged It about two moths had no he cough, with a nailytable estaci was good. On the 221 of July the come's, with diarrhem, and s streptimes were relieved by the u sed on lained of pain in her l 22. The e or four days after "I cially and her speech was a tur this time, also, she compla raitest. Some peculiarity of spec ed before on one or two occasions ti en about. On the 27th, she wi Buly, who found her affected with or the ear; with considerable embar and a small frequent pulse. On the she was considerably relieved in reg symptoms avained more the cla ferer. I saw her on the 30th, w detable toma, so that she could answer a question; Julse 90; the and there had been considerable On the 31st, she was speechless, coma; pulse 80. She continued i the let of August, with the pulse On the 24 she becan to be affected by The limbs of the left side ap TO THE REAL

: al of Sorte there

A V Tanal pan-

. tree! Sadilat

a immerced if a strong pul-

rulerin, and fre-

a compose and to which

r go on, by and was fre-

" : Wile " Allem : A forbig

and before his

is the west on I to adhere

· · · · · · · It the centre of

reart. The distant

The state of the s

Service Line of the service of the s

turgid with blood, and contained in its substance numerous small cysts of a bluish colour. The vessels on the surface of the left hemisphere, and betwixt the convolutions, were very turgid with blood; and, in some of the deeper convolutions, there was a slight appearance of eechymosis.

§ III.—The inflamed mass passing into RAMOLLISSEMENT.

CASE XXIX.—A girl, aged 7, had been falling off for about two menths before her death, having some cough, with considerable emaciation; but her appetite was good. On the 22d of July 1826, she had pain in the bowels, with diarrhoea, and some vomiting. These symptoms were relieved by the usual remedies, but she still complained of pain in her bowels, and had some eough. Three or four days after this, she complained of headach, and her speech was sensibly impaired; about this time, also, she complained of pain in the right ear. Some peculiarity of speech had been observed before on one or two oceasions, when she was able to go about. On the 27th, she was first seen by Dr. Beilby, who found her affected with headach and pain of the ear; with considerable embarrassment of speech, and a small frequent pulse. On the two following days, she was considerably relieved in regard to pain, and the symptoms assumed more the character of continued fever. I saw her on the 30th, when there was consi-Total minimum red on a soft minimum red on a derable eoma, so that she could scareely be made to answer a question; pulse 90; the pupil much dilated, and there had been considerable return of headach. On the 31st, she was speechless, with nearly perfect coma; pulse 80. She continued in the same state on the 1st of August, with the pulse becoming frequent. On the 2d, she began to be affected with paroxysms of convulsions, which attacked only the right side of the body. The limbs of the left side appeared to be paralytic, or at least were never observed to move, even during the convulsions of the right side. These paroxysms continued to recur for four or five days; she then sunk into a state of perfect coma, and died on the 10th. She had retained the power of swallowing liquids when they were put into her mouth, and seemed to recover a

slight degree of motion of the left arm.

Inspection.—On removing the dura mater, several patches of false membrane were found on the outer side of the right hemisphere, chiefly at the openings of the convolutions, and dipping down considerably betwixt them. On cutting through this hemisphere, a defined portion was met with in a state of recent inflammation, presenting a uniform red colour, and a natural consistence. It was about $2\frac{1}{2}$ inches in length, extending from before backwards, about an inch in breadth, and as much in thickness. At its interior part, it was connected with another portion, about an inch in extent in all its dimensions, in a state of perfect ramollissement, and of a yellowish white or ash colour; and the two structures evidently passed into each other, the inflamed portion becoming gradually softer as it approached the softened part. Along the whole of that part of the hemisphere, through which the inflamed mass extended, all the convolutions were firmly glued together through their whole extent, by a deposition of very firm adventitious membrane; and there was a similar adhesion of the anterior to the middle lobe. There was slight effusion in the ventricles, but the eentral parts were healthy. In various parts of the brain very minute tubercles were observed; and, on the base of the brain, at the junction of the left erus cerebri with the tuber annulare, there was an irregular tubercular mass of considerable extent, mixed with adventitious membrane. In the lungs there were numerous minute tubercles, all in a solid state. In the mucous membrane of the intestines, especially at the lower extremity of the ileum, there were observed numerous minute black spots, each of which, when viewed by a lens, appeared to be surrounded by a minute circle of inflammation.

PASSING INTO RAMOLL

Cast XXX.—A lady, aged 24 to severe attacks of headach, wh lar intervals, and were excited ly as warm rooms, and hodily exe she had used a variety of treatm They had not, however, affected 1 she was recovering favourably from ment, under the care of Dr. Mac the beginning of the second week severe headach, and considerable bled with relief, and continued ral days, though with occasional On Sunday, 14th January 1827. with some delirium, she com the day of slight uneasiness in liar feeling of numbness in th neck; but she was otherwise w all about ten o'clock at night, w plained of numbness and loss hand. These feelings spread which very soon became entirely speedily followed by loss of spee menth. She was immediately Ler soon after the bleeding. I fo intelligence, but without any a Take quick and feeble, the rig less, and with a degree of spas times after, the right leg beca communed without any farther o'clock in the morning, when vice and general convulsion, a log, but strongest on the le returned three times betwirt lish after which the attacks stant; and from this time sl of sensibility. She had from difficulty, but every attempt to excited general convulsion. face was much distorted, and e the limbs of the left side w , ... na liquis r en

1. s. rined to recover a

the out most, second

were the long the outer

in the contribute, a

it 2' nen sin length, ex-

de int on noh in breadth.

And the rest it was

A A San Specific ramole

the assistant as there

ing gridually siter as it .. Along the while of

were firmly glued

en 12. Fra deposition of

ertel: unl on

The little and the li

See placed with ad-

To the mit

Limercu

Case XXX.—A lady, aged 24, had long been liable to severe attacks of headach, which occurred at irregular intervals, and were excited by various causes, such as warm rooms, and bodily exertions, and for which she had used a variety of treatment with little benefit. They had not, however, affected her general health, and she was recovering favourably from her second accouchcment, under the eare of Dr. Mackintosh, when, about the beginning of the second week, she was seized with severe headach, and considerable oppression. She was bled with relief, and continued tolerably well for several days, though with occasional complaint of headach. On Sunday, 14th January 1827, after a disturbed night. with some delirium, she complained in the course of the day of slight uneasiness in her head, and a peeuliar feeling of numbness in the back of the head and neck; but she was otherwise well, and in good spirits, till about ten o'clock at night, when she suddenly complained of numbness and loss of power of the right hand. These feelings spread rapidly along the arm, which very soon became entirely paralytic, and this was speedily followed by loss of speech, and twisting of the mouth. She was immediately bled, and when I saw her soon after the bleeding, I found her with a look of intelligence, but without any attempt at speech; the pulse quick and feeble, the right arm entirely powerless, and with a degree of spasmodic rigidity. A few hours after, the right leg became also paralytic. She continued without any farther change till about three o'clock in the morning, when she was seized with severc and general convulsion, affecting both sides of the body, but strongest on the left side. The convulsion returned three times betwixt this and mid-day, of the 15th, after which the attacks became much more frequent; and from this time she showed no appearance of sensibility. She had from the first swallowed with difficulty, but every attempt to make her swallow now excited general convulsion. During the attacks, the face was much distorted, and equally so on both sides; the limbs of the left side were violently convulsed,

while the right arm was affected chiefly with a rigid spasmodic contraction, and a tremulous motion. The convulsions now returned with great violence and frequency, sometimes every half hour, and each attack continued for ten or fifteen minutes. The pulse was generally rapid; sometimes extremely feeble, and sometimes of tolerable strength. The breathing was sometimes frequent and convulsive, and sometimes slow and oppressed, as if she were moribund; and on many occasions she was considered as being within a few minutes of death; but she continued to live in this state till the evening of the 16th, being forty eight hours from the attack. On the second day, the rigid contraction of the right arm had disappeared, and it continued

entirely paralytic, except when it was affected by the

IV.—Extensive ramoul striati

Ke, ie, and Dr. Scott.

convulsion. Inspection.—On the upper surface of the left hemisphere, and between the convolutions, there was a considerable ecehymosis, produced by a very thin layer of extravasated blood betwixt the arachnoid and pia mater. The veins on the upper part of this hemisphere were remarkably turgid, and were found to be distended with dark blood in a perfectly firm fleshy state, mixed with some firm white matter; and their coats appeared to be thickened. Where these veins entered the longitudinal sinus, there was a remarkable diminution of its area, arising partly from the thickening of its eoats, and partly from deposition of firm white matter on its inner surface. In the substance of the left hemisphere, about the centre of its long diameter, towards the outer side, and rather above the level of the ventriele, there was a distinctly defined portion about the size of a small walnut in a state of complete ramollissement, but retaining entirely the natural white colour; and immediately bordering upon this part, there was a considerable portion in a state of the dccp redness deseribed in the former cases; the brain in other respects was healthy, except a small softened spot in the right hemisphere.

(Lee XXXI. - A man, ago fore his death was first affecte storng ach n of the heart. irregular pulse; after some relieved, but about a year a became dropsical, and abo seized with palsy of the lef and coma. The coma subs recovered the use of his lin Le was able to return to le symptoms in his chest, how give it up, the strong actio with small irregular pulse, May 1821, he was again attaside, accompanied by coma ar in a few weeks. In these to Liter had been any compl Mech 1823, he was attacked Fred by loss of memory, C=2 He again recovered a'. to walk about; the sy azved as before, 20th Oct time attacked with paler o by violent pain referred to ronal suture, a little to the lowed by maniacal deliniu colat, the mouth twisted. After some time he recove able to walk with a little but continued to be occas dars before his death, whe Emplete, with much delimin escons, but no coma, He This important ease was also seen by the late Dr. Kellie, and Dr. Scott.

§ IV.—Extensive ramollissement of the eorpus striatum.

Case XXXI.—A man, aged 25, about four years before his death was first affected with difficult breathing, strong action of the heart, dropsical symptoms, and irregular pulse; after some time he was considerably relieved, but about a year and a half after this he again became dropsical, and about this time was suddenly seized with palsy of the left side of the body, delirium and eoma. The eoma subsided in a few days, and he recovered the use of his limbs in a few weeks, so that he was able to return to his work as a joiner. The symptoms in his chest, however, soon obliged him to give it up, the strong action of the heart continuing, with small irregular pulse, and much dyspnæa. In May 1821, he was again attacked with palsy of the left side, accompanied by coma and delirium, and recovered in a few weeks. In these two attacks of palsy, there never had been any complaint of headach; but in March 1823, he was attacked with severe headach, followed by loss of memory, palsy of the left side, and coma. He again recovered in a few weeks, so as to be able to walk about; the symptoms in the thorax eontinued as before. 20th October 1823, he was a fourth time attacked with palsy of the left side, accompanied by violent pain referred to a particular spot on the eoronal suture, a little to the right side. This was followed by maniaeal delirium, the pulse feeble and irregular, the mouth twisted, and the left eye distorted. After some time he recovered considerably, so as to be able to walk with a little assistance, dragging his leg, but continued to be oceasionally delirious till a few days before his death, when the palsy again became complete, with much delirium, and some convulsive afections, but no coma. He died on the 17th December.

, . . . rielfilei-

in the listend-

3 | willow the

Inspection .- There was nothing unusual on the surface of the brain, and no effusion in the ventricles. The right corpus striatum was externally of a peculiar dull yellow colour, and when cut into was found to be throughout its whole substance in the extreme state of ramollissement, extending to a great depth; this was mixed with a slight appearance of pus, and the soft undulating mass was separated from the ventricle by a delicate membrane. There was also ramollissement, but of small extent, in the left corpus striatum. The heart was generally and considerably cnlarged; the right ventricle thickened; the left ventricle enlarged without thickening; the left auricle much enlarged, and containing a large organized polypus firmly attached to its sides, and deposited in successive layers like the deposition in the sac of an aneurism.

§ V.—THE AFFECTION IN A CHRONIC FORM, WITH RAMOLLISSEMENT OF SMALL EXTENT, AND REMARKABLE SYMPTOMS.

CASE XXXII.—A gentleman, aged 26, of a plethoric habit, had suffered occasionally for two or three years from headach and vertigo, which were always relieved by depletion. On 12th April 1827, while walking out, he was seized with confusion and giddiness, embarrassed speech, and a considerable degree of paralysis of the right leg. He was rather pale; his pulse was 70 and soft; and he did not complain of any headach. The usual treatment was adopted with activity by Dr. Combe of Lcith, without much relief. On the contrary, after several days he began to complain of acute headach, accompanied by vomiting and hiccup; and the other symptoms continued nearly as before, his speech being laboured and slow, and his memory very defective. After some weeks these symptoms subsided, so that he was able to walk out; but the headach eontinued with frequent vomiting. The pain was chiefly referred to the left side of the head, sometimes

the count and there was eright arm. When I saw (ce and Dr. Kelly in July, et frequent and irregular attacks daily, or repeatedly during the suddenly, without previous naucrukened in the night by the su ing. He had now a pale sick paralyti affection, and little co th wat he still had occasional t sometimes referred to one part another. When he did refer i the principal seat of the pain temple or the occiput. But the slight and transient, and the s were so much the more promi er c' much doubt whether th disease in the head. The vomiti the subnitrate of hismuth, so tha several days. But it soon return i re, with increasing debility, gre "Heart; pulse little affected. I mercadiness of his limbs, so th in a standing posture, he stag and attent, he had accomplished this arms. The symptoms of to the of October, when I with the eat and continued conv I pection.—In the substance the left hemisphere of the brain eral rentricle, there was a pr ! te ramollissement, about an i at i an inch in its other dimensi to late appeared unusually received Characte healthy. No other in e discovered in the head, and

NIC WITH RAY 11

11: - ,

or or talking. To.

promat dil

the state of the s

in the soft undu-

The heart

EXTENT. AND REMARKS

no. v . r . r three

1 -11 - 1, 5 1 1 1 ha

The standard

n st. helore, nervij

to the occiput, and there was occasional numbness of the right arm. When I saw him, along with Dr. Combe and Dr. Kelly in July, his chief complaint was of frequent and irregular attacks of vomiting, occurring daily, or repeatedly during the day. It came on very suddenly, without previous nausea, and he was often awakened in the night by the sudden attack of vomiting. He had now a pale sickly look; there was no paralytic affection, and little complaint of headach; though he still had occasional uncasiness in the head, sometimes referred to one part of it and sometimes to another. When he did refer it to a particular part as the principal seat of the pain, it was either the left temple or the occiput. But the headach at this time was slight and transient, and the symptoms in the stomach were so much the more prominent, that it was a matter of much doubt whether there was now any fixed disease in the head. The vomiting was much relieved by the subnitrate of bismuth, so that he was free from it for several days. But it soon returned and went on as before, with increasing debility, great listlessness, and bad appetite; pulse little affected. He had now a peculiar unsteadiness of his limbs, so that on first getting up into a standing posture, he staggered very much and required some time and attention to steady himself. When he had accomplished this he walked with tolerable firmness. The symptoms went on in this manner till the 27th of October, when he was suddenly seized with violent and continued convulsion, and died in nine hours.

Inspection.—In the substance of the middle lobe of the left hemisplicre of the brain, about the level of the lateral ventricle, there was a portion in a state of complete ramollissement, about an inch and a half in length, and an inch in its other dimensions, and the neighbouring parts appeared unusually vascular. The tuber annulare and pons Varolii were softer than usual, but otherwise healthy. No other morbid appearance could be discovered in the head, and all the other viscera were healthy.

It is unnecessary to point out the very remarkable features of this case. The sudden attack so closely resembling the ordinary paralytic attack, must have been connected with the commencement of the inflammatory stage. The remarkable symptoms in the stomach in the farther progress of the disease, and the mode of its termination, make it altogether a case of great value in the pathology of this remarkable affection. The following case shows the same morbid appearance, with a train of symptoms considerably different, but with a remarkable similarity in the mode of its termination.

Case XXXIII.—A gentleman, aged 38, during two years before his death had suffered several epileptic attacks, from which, however, he had always speedily recovered. On the morning of 27th December 1827, he was found in bed speechless and paralytic on the right side. He recovered his speech in the course of the day; the palsy continued in the usual manner, and after some time he began to recover a degree of motion of the parts. When he came to Edinburgh about a month after the attack, he had recovered the use of his leg so far as to be able to walk once or twice across his room with much exertion; his arm was improved in a much less degree; his speech was distinct, but his mouth was considerably distorted, and his mind was somewhat impaired. He now consulted Dr. Thomson, and under the usual treatment he was progressively improving, so that at the end of another month he could walk along the streets to a considerable distance, though with a dragging motion of his leg, and could nearly raise his arm to his head. In the evening of 22d February he went to a supper party, and seemed remarkably well; but departed considerably from the abstemious regimen to which he had been previously restricted. About 8 o'clock on the morning of the 23d he was found in bed in a state of complete insensibility, accompanied by severe and general convulsion, which was strongest in the limbs of the right side. The face was much convulsed, the eyes rolling and insensible, the respiration laborious and convulsive. Blood-letting

and the other usual means without any relief. The C bated in the state now descri elever, and he died at two. Inspection.-The brain ex cept some old adhesion of t previor part of the falx, and der the arachnoid. The ventr very small quantity of fluid. lett vertricle, and separated fr of healthy cerebral substance, The portion thus affected wa ab. ur half or 3-4ths of au in per part, and became gradua ed by the side of the ver amost in a point. There of part of the medulla oblong the spinal cord. No other v discovered on the most carefu I do not attempt to offer start as in these two most reca ile them with the old eass f the brain. I give the cerated and faithfully rela factor observations on this vo

TXTENSIVE RAMOLLISAL

DISTASE OF THE EASILAR

CASE VIXIN

CASE XXXIV.—A your the chest, and was supposed the chest, and was supposed light December 1819, he sure thisting of the mouth. Will all the chest and indicate the sure and motion, and participal the mouth.

ं भीर हि.

in the fact of the been

· identify

In the stretch in

e. and her deef its

1 4 1/ 27 1 71/13 16

I reparance, with a

con la will a re-

in and a wars speedly

i 27th December 1827,

.: nd paragrate on the on ech in the course of

a the usu i manner, and

- 13 h -: f motion The Line about a

r valle across his

in was imposed in a

nis distinct. Let his

i of his mind ras

· L. F. T. MS.D.

The tradition wi

Fred it die For Bully

See the search

. . I see bed Fellula. M. High

Bris.

and the other usual means were actively employed without any relief. The convulsion continued unabated in the state now described, when I saw him at eleven, and he died at two.

Inspection.—The brain externally was healthy, exeept some old adhesion of the membranes near the posterior part of the falx, and very trifling effusion under the arachnoid. The ventricles contained the usual very small quantity of fluid. On the outer side of the left ventriele, and separated from it by a thin partition of healthy eercbral substance, there was a defined portion in a state of complete and diffluent ramollissement. The portion thus affected was about an inch in depth; about half or 3-4ths of an inch in diameter at the upper part, and became gradually narrower as it deseended by the side of the ventriele, until it terminated almost in a point. There was considerable softening of part of the medulla oblongata, and the upper part of the spinal cord. No other vestige of disease could be discovered on the most eareful examination.

I do not attempt to offer any explanation of the symptoms in these two most remarkable eases, or to reconcile them with the old notions in regard to discases of the brain. I give them as facts carefully aseertained, and faithfully related, to be illustrated by farther observations on this very remarkable disease.

§ VI.—THE AFFECTION IN A CHRONIC FORM, WITH EXTENSIVE RAMOLLISSEMENT, AND REMARKABLE DISEASE OF THE BASILAR ARTERY.

Case XXXIV.—A young man aged 18, had been for six or eight weeks affected with cough and pain of the ehest, and was supposed to be phthisical; but for several days he had been much better, when on the 15th December 1819, he suddenly fell down deprived of sense and motion, and paralytic on the left side, with twisting of the mouth. When partially recovered, he complained of severe pain in the right temple; his

speech was very indistinct; countenance expressive of great stupor. The usual treatment was actively employed, but without much benefit, and he continued for about ten days with little or no improvement; the left side perfectly paralytic; a great degree of coma; the speech very indistinct; but he still pointed to the right temple as the seat of fixed uneasiness. During this time his pectoral complaints had disappeared. In January 1820, he began to improve, so as to have less uneasiness in his head, and considerable motion of the lcg, but the arm continued entirely paralytic. His eough now returned, with considerable pain in the right side of the ehest. He continued without farther change till the 15th of February, when he complained of pain in the back of his head, and was seized with loss of speech, and of the power of swallowing. He soon recovered his speech, but the power of swallowing was permanently lost, so that from this time he was constantly fed by liquids introduced into the stomach through an elastic gum tube. He was now quite distinct, and did not complain of any pain; the cough again abated; pulse of natural frequency but feeble. In the beginning of March he seemed to improve a little in strength, so that he was several times taken out in a carriage; there was considerable motion of the left leg, but the arm continued perfectly paralytic; no return of the power of swallowing; speech and intellect entire. He died rather suddenly on the 20th of March, having the day before become extremely weak and pale without any obvious eause.

Inspection.—On removing the dura mater, there appeared on the middle of the right hemisphere a remarkable depression, which, when cut into, was found to arise from an extensive mass of pure ramollissement; the part being in the state of a soft white pulp, without any appearance of pus, and without fetor; it extended the whole depth of the hemisphere. In the ecrebral matter adjoining to this disease, there was a small absees, no larger than a beau, lined with a firm soft cyst of coagulable lymph. There was very little effusion in

- THE RAMOLLISSEMENT AND

the rectricles, and no other disease was found in the basilar at tent of about an inch it was rehard, and this portion was for filed up by a firm white matter ance of blood. Anterior to this small coagulum of blood in the art to a coagulable lymph, forming the between the right lung and the lower part immediately above the

VII.—RAMOLLISSEMEN SUPPURATI

Case XXXV.—A man, agei f: two years to headach, which y the fight side of the head. In F tracted syphilis, which being ne tetate, and continued fourteen p time the headach became more se referred to the right temple. In effected with numbness of the le duly extended over the arm, a complice paralysis of the left arm Figurate right temple. This lacal delitium, which continued was relieved by copious bleeding I be y recovered within a mont affected in the same manner, estrated. He continued well till he conclained of violent pain or in he not was observed to ha the power of his left side; the ensible, and expressed The OR small and member . The the good; on the 99th, the body F. 8",

בון וניייני את המדון , יי

. 1 Symen. 1. In Ja-

1 -: , 1 1 1 1 155

-1 frequency to the feetle,

Second States a

swend in splen

1 - Franchie; no

and Werb

the ventricles, and no other disease in the substance of the brain. On raising the brain, a remarkable appearance was found in the basilar artery; through the extent of about an inch it was very much enlarged and hard, and this portion was found to be completely filled up by a firm white matter without any appearance of blood. Anterior to this portion, there was a small coagulum of blood in the artery. The lungs were tolerably healthy, but there was a considerable deposition of coagulable lymph, forming a thick firm mass betwixt the right lung and the pleura costalis at the lower part immediately above the diaphragm.

§ VII.—RAMOLLISSEMENT COMBINED WITH SUPPURATION.

CASE XXXV.—A man, aged 24, had been liable for two years to headach, which was always referred to the right side of the head. In February 1818 he contracted syphilis, which being neglected, became inveterate, and continued fourteen months. During this time the headach became more severe, and was always referred to the right temple. In June 1819, he was affected with numbness of the left thumb, which gradually extended over the arm, and he had afterwards complete paralysis of the left arm and leg, with severe pain in the right temple. This was followed by maniacal delirium, which continued for three days. He was relieved by copious bleeding, &c. and was completely recovered within a month. In August, he was affected in the same manner, and again entirely recovered. He continued well till 27th November, when he complained of violent pain over the whole head, and in the night was observed to have lost his speech and the power of his left side; the jaws were locked; he appeared sensible, and expressed his feelings by signs; pulse 98, small and irregular. There was no change on the 28th; on the 29th, the body was rigid as if tetanic; he then became comatose, and died in the evening.

Inspection.—The anterior and lower part of the right hemisphere was extensively diseased, forming a mass in which softened eerebral matter was mixed with pus of intolerable fetor. There was very little fluid in the ventrieles, and no other disease could be detected in any part of the brain.

§ VIII.—Undefined suppuration.

Case XXXVI.—A gentleman, aged 18, had been for many years affected with a considerable degree of deafness, and had been liable to suppuration of the ears. In 1810 he was affected with a chronic abscess behind the left ear, by which a probe could be passed to a great depth into the cells of the mastoid process. This sore discharged more than a year and then healed, leaving a deep cicatrix. From this time he was liable to headach, which became more severe in the beginning of the year 1813.

May 14, 1813, after having been for some days languid, and eomplaining a little of his head, he was seized with severe headach and frequent vomiting. He was much oppressed, and lay in a dozing state, impatient of being disturbed; pulse 60. He was treated in the usual manner, by free, general, and topical bleeding, purgatives, blistering, &c. On the 15th the headach was still violent, but the vomiting had abated; pulse 60; had several severe attacks of shivering, was oppressed and disposed to sleep, but sensible; eyes natural. (16th,) Headach relieved; increasing oppression. From this time he lay in a state of partial stupor, with much talking, which was generally coherent; pulse varying from 80 to 120. He died on the 22d, rather unexpectedly, and without perfect coma. He had continued to know the persons about him till about twelve hours before his death. His sight continued natural except on the day of his death, when he appeared to be blind: no paralytic affection, and no convulsive symptom had been observed.

WITH ENDEFINED SEL

in half its depth, was entire fend pus; in the centre, it was external parts, it was more of a this mass, there were found some and the ventricles contained a collected which while.

Ose XXXVII.—A gentlema low, was effected with violent he the real rand lock parts of the by severe pain in the neck, when by the m than of the head. The pulse natural; face rather eves natural. He had been ill is not the dearn years affected with deafned in of the ears. The usual second and topical blood-letting the second in the second in the second in the ears.

The bleeding gave great relief and the blood was sizy; but the On the 13th, he had squinting an estimed on the 14th, but the return. The headach continued in decree; sometimes he made l other simes, was in violent pain a i me ei delinum, but it wa there was much oppression but lysis. He died on the 17th r last visit, he had raised himself tan e. atswered questions dis Tere - about him; pulse 60; s te grad a few minutes after 1 In the whole of t ied Limisphere of the brain wa supportion. There was consider cialle lamb on the surface (Per es (cir lly under the inte a try sual quantity of fluid in Inspection.—The right hemisphere of the brain, to about half its depth, was entirely reduced to a mass of fetid pus; in the centre, it was fluid, and towards the external parts, it was more of a pulpy consistence. In this mass, there were found some small coagula of blood, and the ventricles contained a considerable quantity of bloody fluid.

Case XXXVII.—A gentleman, aged 18, (10th July, 1815,) was affected with violent headach, extending along the upper and back parts of the head, and accompanied by severe pain in the neck, where it was much increased by the motion of the head. There was much oppression; pulse natural; face rather pale; tongue clean; eyes natural. He had been ill three days, and the complaint had commenced with shivering; he had been many years affected with deafness, and liable to suppuration of the cars. The usual practice was employed; general and topical blood-letting, purgatives, blistering, &c.

The bleeding gave great relief at each repetition of it, and the blood was sizy; but the relief was transient. On the 13th, he had squinting and double vision, which continued on the 14th, but then went off and did not return. The headach continued with many variations in degree; sometimes he made little complaint, and at other times, was in violent pain; there was sometimes a degree of delirium, but it was slight and transient; there was much oppression but no coma, and no paralysis. He died on the 17th rather suddenly. At my last visit, he had raised himself in bed with little assistance, answered questions distinctly, and knew every person about him; pulse 60; sight natural. His death occurred a few minutes after I had left the house.

Inspection.—The whole of the posterior part of the left hemisphere of the brain was one mass of undefined suppuration. There was considerable deposition of coagulable lymph on the surface of the brain in several places, especially under the anterior lobes. There was a very small quantity of fluid in the ventricles, and con-

STEPPRATES.

the man and 10th been from the first are to be also are the area.

and communed quite natural, cutt; he passed his urine an

Inspection.—On removing t hemisphere of the brain felt sof its whole extent like a bag of a safe pulpy state; but the gree From this mass of disease, the nerely by the membrane which a small quantity of serous fluid. the left thalamus, there was a coa ize of a walnut.

Lis mental faculties seemed to when it was offered him, and defied; his eye was natural, a countenance intelligent. His peared to be perfect, but he no He often screamed as if from laving his hand on his foreher tears. He continued in this st when he became comatose, and

WITH EXCUSTE

there was about half an inch is rebral substance, the remainde found nearly reduced to a fluid of purulent matter, and partly o

§ X.—THE EXCUSTED

LAST XXXX — A girl, ageor efter having complained for some seized on the 11th of January which continued about half an h 12th, and found her affected with Para las of the right arm, which) dialer after the convulsion. The tractice fool; the face rather Pale, Being bled from the arm and put the head, she was much Title, the pulse was natural, the et sed, and she had tompound

siderable ramollissement of the fornix. In the substance of the brain, near the base, there was a small tumor of an ash-colour, which contained a cheesy matter approaching to suppuration. A portion of the dura mater eovering the temporal bone behind the auditory portion was thickened and spongy, and there was slight appearance of caries in the portion of the bone with which the diseased membrane was connected.

Dr. Bright has described a remarkable case, in which a mass of this kind of undefined suppuration occupied nearly the whole of the right hemisphere. The ease began with puerperal convulsions, after which the patient lay for seven days, with very obscure symptoms, and sensible, till she died suddenly after violent con-

vulsion.

§ IX.—EXTENSIVE UNDEFINED SUPPURATION WITH EXTRAVASATED BLOOD.

Case XXXVIII.—A man, aged 40, had complained for two months of frequent pain and throbbing in the left side of his head. In March 1814, he began to be affected with convulsive motions in the right arm and leg, which attacked him in paroxysms, and usually continued about a minute, leaving him in the intervals able for his usual employment as a blacksmith. After blood-letting and purging, these paroxysms became less frequent, and after eight or ten days eeased. He was then affected with giddiness and confusion of thought, and considerable torpor of the right side. After some time, this was attended with motions, in the right arm and leg, exactly resembling those of chorea. The muscular power of these parts was at the same time diminished, and, at the end of two months from the first appearance of the spasmodie affections, the arm and leg became entirely paralytic. His speech was then affected, being first inarticulate, and afterwards gradually lost, so that after the middle of June he never was able to articulate a word. His pulse, which till this time

inella (gesti, alter

24 shipd the ulitary

no after with the pa-

had continued quite natural, now became a little frequent; he passed his urine and feces involuntarily, but his mental faculties seemed to be entire. He took food when it was offered him, and put out his tongue when desired; his eye was natural, and the expression of his countenance intelligent. His sight and hearing appeared to be perfect, but he never attempted to speak. He often screamed as if from pain, at the same time laying his hand on his forchead, and frequently shed tears. He continued in this state till the end of July, when he became comatose, and died in three days.

Inspection.—On removing the dura mater, the left hemisphere of the brain felt soft and fluctuating through its whole extent like a bag of fluid; on cutting into it, there was about half an inch in thickness of sound cerebral substance, the remainder of the hemisphere was found nearly reduced to a fluid mass, partly consisting of purulent matter, and partly of cerebral substance, in a soft pulpy state; but the greater part was purulent. From this mass of disease, the ventriele was separated merely by the membrane which lines it, and contained a small quantity of serous fluid. In the substance of the left thalamus, there was a coagulum of blood, of the size of a walnut.

§ X.—The encysted abscess.

Case XXXIX.—A girl, aged 11, thin and delicate, after having complained for some days of headach, was seized on the 11th of January 1817, with convulsion, which continued about half an hour. I saw her on the 12th, and found her affected with severe headach, and paralysis of the right arm, which had taken place immediately after the convulsion. The pulse was 100; the tongue foul; the face rather pale, and the eyes languid. Being bled from the arm and purged, and cold being applied to the head, she was much relieved. On the 13th, the pulse was natural, the headach was much abated, and she had recovered considerable motion of

without being disturbed, and opensed. On the 11th, this learns in which she continued to the 14th.

WITH EXCESTED!

Inspect on.—In the upper part of the brain, there were two dist containing together from six to eight. They were lined by a firm a thin septum of firm white matter each other; the one was in the a masphere, very near the surface, and behind it; they had no corother, or with the ventricle. In right hemisphere, there was a sabout half an ounce of pus. The sign in any part of the brain, an peamore.

Case XL—A gentleman, against years affected with cough a rann, years affected with cough a rann, which was often in consider as Lad repeated attacks of home copius. He was stinted in his gubball, but in other respects on to a subject, till the beginning of this ice had observed occasionally deals, a deficiency of sight, but it.

This imposs began with headact pulse, and so continued without exciting any alarm. I be recovering manner by Mr. Jo quite rone. I saw king considerably then fallen to Jo, he was feedle an analysis.

the arm. On the 15th, the headach being increased, and the arm more paralytie, she was bled again; and on the 16th and 17th, she was much relieved, the pulse natural, and the motion of the arm much improved. On the 18th, after being affected with increase of headach, and some vomiting, she became convulsed, the convulsion being confined entirely to the head and the right arm. The head was drawn towards the right side with a rolling motion of the eyes, the arm was in eonstant and violent motion; she was sensible, and complained of headach; pulse 100. Being bled to zviii the convulsion ceased instantly, and the headach was relieved, but the right arm continued in a state of complete paralysis. (19th and 20th.) The arm had recovered a little motion; some headach continued, with oceasional vomiting; pulse 60. On the three following days, the convulsive attacks returned several times; they did not now affect the head or face, but were entirely confined to the right arm, which, after the 23d, was left in a state of permanent paralysis. Hitherto no other part of the body had been affected by the eonvulsion; but on the 24th, it attacked the right thigh and leg, and left them in a state of paralysis; pulse 60. The former remedies were again employed with activity, without any effect in arresting the progress of the disease. The thigh and leg now went through a course precisely similar to that described in regard to the arm, and on the 29th, remained in a state of permanent paralysis. When the convulsion first began to affect the leg, the arm was affected at the same time; but afterwards it was confined to the thigh and leg, the arm remaining motionless.

February 4th. Complete paralysis of the whole right side; no return of convulsion; she continued quite sensible, and made little complaint; pulse from 50 to 60. She now continued for several days without any change, and except the palsy of the right side, every function was natural. She was quite sensible, appetite good, pulse and vision natural, and she made little complaint of any uneasiness. She was, however, inclined to lie

11 111 (4)

· I all and the

mem od, Caright gle

, , , e sim had reco-

1 2 4 1 1 1 1 1 11 11. 11.

without being disturbed, and gradually became more oppressed. On the 11th, this had increased to perfect coma, in which she continued for three days, and died on the 14th.

Inspection.—In the upper part of the left hemisphere of the brain, there were two distinct defined abscesses, containing together from six to eight ounces of very fetid pus. They were lined by a firm white membrane, and a thin septum of firm white matter separated them from each other; the one was in the anterior part of the hemisphere, very near the surface, and the other immediately behind it; they had no communication with each other, or with the ventriele. In the posterior part of the right hemisphere, there was a small abscess containing about half an ounce of pus. There was no serous effusion in any part of the brain, and no other morbid appearance.

Case XL.—A gentleman, aged 21, had been for many years affected with eough and puriform expectoration, which was often in considerable quantity; he had also had repeated attacks of hemoptysis, some of them copious. He was stinted in his growth, and of a feeble habit, but in other respects enjoyed tolerably good health, and was able to attend to his business as clerk to a solicitor, till the beginning of July 1822, when he began to complain of headach. For some time before this he had observed occasionally, while sitting at his desk, a deficiency of sight, but had taken little notice of it.

This illness began with headach, loaded tongue, and quick pulse, and so continued for eight or ten days without exciting any alarm. He was treated in the most judicious manner by Mr. Johnston, and seemed to be recovering gradually, the pulse coming down, and the headach being considerably relieved, though not quite gone. I saw him about the 15th. The pulse had then fallen to 50, he was feeble and languid, with some headach, and a look of oppression. The pupil was rather dilated; there was an evident imperfection of vi-

sion, and about this time there was first observed a weakness of the left arm and lcg. The headach had been at first referred chiefly to the left side of the head, but now it was principally on the right side, though he often described it as extending across the forehead. The eough continued, with considerable expectoration of a tenacious puriform fluid. There was no pain in the chest, and no uneasiness in breathing, but the pulsation of the heart was felt entirely in the right side of the thorax. This peculiarity had been observed for several years, but it could not be ascertained at what period it had commenced.

His pulse was now feeble and languid, and his general appearance pale and exhausted. For several days there was little change, the pulse continuing about 50, sometimes 48. After three or four days there was a slight convulsive attack, and a second about two days after; these, however, made no change in the symptoms. About the 24th there was some incoherence, but it was slight, and soon went off. The pupil was still considerably dilated, though sensible to the light; a degree of headach continued, but it was not much complained of. He was now disposed to lie without being disturbed, but when spoken to was quite intelligent. About the 26th, there was a remarkable improvement in his appearance, and much less headach, the pulse beginning to rise. (27th) Pulse 108; more comatose, but sensible when roused. (28th) Pulse 120; had copious purulent expectoration in the morning, and seemed much exhausted. He lay much oppressed, but when roused answered questions distinctly. He could still move the left arm, but slowly and with difficulty, and with an awkward motion, somewhat resembling that of chorea, or as if he threw the whole arm forward by a strong effort of the museles of the shoulder; he had seldom attempted to move the leg for several days. In the course of this day there was observed a slight degree of squinting; and he died in the night without any other change.

Inspection.—The brain was externally healthy. In

the of anterior part of wir near the surface, there was zh it an ounce of very fetid pus of the same hemisphere, there v ther smaller. These abscesses t lat not very distinctly lined by cerebral matter surrounding then In the anterior part of the left he r-der the surface, and at the ver over the orbit, there was a small one is two drams of pus, and The all above the level of the went de The a little behind the with eater, and there was no The right lung was reduced to is resembling the spleen, ar s.i. s of absoesses, communicat vicitle trachea. The heart le the fight side of the thorax; as colleged as to fill all the remo the healthy, except a small tra state, in the upper part of

WITH EXCUSTED !

The following case shows the control of the control

because for ten days, but has for ten days, but has a small employment of the first state of his face, a small property by. When he was a small property by. Hule, these synthetic states and the face of his face skin hor; the property is no later than hor; the property is not a small property is not a small property in the property is not a small property in the property in the property is not a small property in the property in the property is not a small property in the property in the property is not a small property in the property in the property is not a small property in the property in the property is not a small property in the property in the property in the property is not a small property in the p

r ench fi

1 41 110 23

the upper and anterior part of the right hemisphere, very near the surface, there was an abscess containing about an ounce of very fetid pus. In the posterior part of the same hemisphere, there was another abscess rather smaller. These abscesses were distinctly defined, but not very distinctly lined by a membrane, and the cerebral matter surrounding them was slightly softened. In the anterior part of the left hemisphere, immediately under the surface, and at the very angle of it which lies over the orbit, there was a small abscess containing from one to two drams of pus, and another rather larger in the posterior part of the hemisphere. These abscesses were all above the level of the ventricles, except the one in the posterior part of the right hemisphere, which went down a little behind the ventricle. The ventricles were empty, and there was no other disease in the brain. The right lung was reduced to a small dark coloured mass, resembling the splcen, and internally presented a series of abscesses, communicating with each other, and with the trachca. The heart lay in contact with it on the right side of the thorax; and the left lung was so enlarged as to fill all the remainder of the cavity. It was quite healthy, except a small tubercular mass in a firm state, in the upper part of it.

The following case shows the encysted abseess with symptoms remarkably different from those mentioned in the preceding cases.

Case XLI.—A man, aged 43, had complained of headach for ten days, but had not been prevented from following his usual employment. At one o'clock in the morning of the 9th May, 1827, he was seized with palsy of the left side of his face, and became incoherent and unmanageable. When he was seen some hours afterwards by Dr. Huie, these symptoms continued; the pupils were contracted, and the eyes were in perpetual motion; the skin hot; the pulse 90, full and strong. There was no palsy of any of the limbs, but, on the contrary, he made the most powerful resistance when

Dr. Huie attempted to bleed him, which, however, he accomplished to the extent of thirty ounces. In the afternoon there was eonsiderable coma with stertorous breathing, but both these symptoms disappeared after another bleeding. On the 10th, the palsy of the face was gone, but he was still incoherent and restless; pulse 100. Topical bleeding was employed, and purging with croton oil, &c. On the 11th, he was coherent and quiet, pulse 108; but he became incoherent in the afternoon. On the 12th, he was sometimes drowsy and sometimes restless; pulse 120 and small. He died in the night.

Inspection.—Three abscesses were found in the brain, all completely encysted, and filled with well formed pus. The first was in the anterior lobe of the left hemisphere, and contained about three drams of pus. The second was in the posterior lobe of the same hemisphere; it was considerably larger, and had burst into the ventricle, which was filled with the matter. The third was in the posterior part of the right hemisphere, and appeared to be making its way towards the surface.

A still greater obscurity of symptoms occurred in the following remarkable case, for which I am indebted to Dr. Allison. It occurred under his care in the Clinical Ward, in June 1827.

CASE XLII.—A man, aged 26, was seized with shivering, headach, siekness, and sudden loss of strength, with fits of delirium in the night. Two days after the occurrence of these symptoms, he was admitted into the Clinical Ward. At this time, he was able to walk when supported on one side, but with feebleness and difficulty, his legs, particularly the right, being at each step dragged along, rather than raised from the ground; his expression was dull and listless, but he said he was free from pain. A few hours after, he complained of violent pain in the occiput, with frequent vomiting. The pain was relieved by a bleeding. In the evening, he was oppressed, and answered questions slowly and

with difficulty; there was still nausea; the skin hot and dry; 80 to 100, sharp, and modera jupils natural; respiration some About half an hour after this rep into perfect coma, with dilated pr bleeding was employed without r an hour he died.

WITH EXCUSTED A

Inspection.- The brain was ex brown colour. On the right si was a spot the size of a half-cro chour. On removing a very spot, an irregular abscess was well formed pus, and which se ed to the cineritious substance of the left hemisphere, on a le I sum, there was another abser seated in the medullary matter, softened cerebral substance of a the posterior part of the right two other abscesses, one in the the other in the medullary. I was found, of a very small size, a pea, but surrounded by a mor cf the others; there was exte the fimix, septum lucidum, an e Tas callosum. The left corp ed, and had a greenish-rellow left thalamus was ranged and its natural colour.

§ XI.—Arscess of the co SMALL E Case XLIII.—A gentlen 1617, had a severe attack of p of carditis, from which he reco ing been bled to the extent of

The some time after he felt his

- 1 F 4.

Thees. In the

The delicable

- the pair of the fre

· Litert and restess:

is ein red, and pro-

elle. La was orber te

same in oberent in the

ice minimas le may aid

He diel in

The third was

mish ere, and ap-

with difficulty; there was still some headach, with nausea; the skin hot and dry; the pulse varying from 80 to 100, sharp, and moderately full; tongue dry; pupils natural; respiration somewhat short and hurried. About half an hour after this report was taken, he sunk into perfect coma, with dilated pupils, for which another bleeding was employed without relief, and in less than an hour he died.

Inspection.—The brain was externally of a reddishbrown colour. On the right side of the vertex, there was a spot the size of a half-erown of a greenish yellow colour. On removing a very thin portion from this spot, an irregular abseess was opened, which contained well formed pus, and which seemed to be entirely limited to the eineritious substance. In the posterior part of the left hemisphere, on a level with the eorpus callosum, there was another abseess, which seemed to be seated in the medullary matter, and was surrounded by softened eerebral substance of a livid yellow colour. In the posterior part of the right hemisphere, there were two other abseesses, one in the eortical substance, and the other in the medullary. Here also a fifth abseess was found, of a very small size, being about the size of a pea, but surrounded by a more defined eyst than any of the others; there was extensive ramollissement of the fornix, septum lucidum, and the lower part of the corpus eallosum. The left eorpus striatum was softened, and had a greenish-yellow colour; the surface of the left thalamus was ragged and almost fluid, but retained its natural eolour.

§ XI.—Abscess of the corpus striatum of very SMALL EXENT.

Case XLIII.—A gentleman, aged 33, in January 1817, had a severe attack of pneumonia with symptoms of earditis, from which he recovered perfectly, after having been bled to the extent of 160 ounces in five days. For some time after he felt his breathing a little uneasy,

ANI - ABSCESS OF THE

Act and Of THE MEDIT

CASE XLIV.—A child, ag saw only a week before his c clining state of health for ten of his bad health was ascribed surp sed to have sustained an et the head or neck. From th conessed, and had been gr months before the time when and leg. The squinting we and leg was never entirely i 1-ared weaker than the lim seld in attempted to raise th saffered occasionally slight en I saw him there was no very considerable emaciation: the the bowels very confined. having been evacuated from 1- ered. After some day sowness of the pulse, and in Le was attached with violen several times during two (I we was no coma; the e Inspection.—There we rentricles of the brain. Jungata, where it is cro was an abscess which app meter. It had the appear

and was contained in a c

was of a yellow colour, a

There was consider

but this gradually subsided; and he enjoyed very good health till the middle of February 1819, when, on awaking one morning, he found his whole left side numb and insensible, but without any remarkable diminution of motion. The loss of feeling extended along the half of his face, the line being drawn with much precision along the centre of the nose; he had no other complaint; had no headach, and the pulse was natural. He was freely bled and purged; the symptoms then gradually subsided, and in four or five days were gone. From this time, however, his friends remarked that he was less acute in business than formerly, and that his memory was somewhat impaired. In the month of May, this deficiency rather increased; and, about this time, he complained of slight uneasiness in his head, for which he was again bled. He continued, however, to attend to his business as a solieitor, till the 16th, when he appeared considerably confused, and eomplained of his head; his pulse was now feeble, so as not to indicate farther general bleeding. After a purgative and topical bleeding, he was much relieved, and in the evening was quite distinct and made no complaint. About two in the morning of the 17th, he was heard to make a remarkable noise in his sleep, which was found to be owing to a kind of convulsive breathing. This was speedily followed by perfect coma, with loss of the power of swallowing. He lay in this state till nine o'eloek at night, and then died. All the usual remedies had been employed without the slightest effect.

Inspection.—Every part of the brain was found in the most healthy state, till we came to the left corpus striatum; in the lower part of this there was a small irregular abscess, not exceeding the size of a small bean, eontaining purulent matter of remarkable fetor. In the centre of the right eorpus striatum, there was also diseovered a minute abseess regularly and nicely defined, but no larger than a small pea. No other disease could be detected in any part of the body.

§ XII.—ABSCESS OF THE MEDULLA OBLONGATA.

Ti .elajpo

the house of the

I was an feebre. St

Case XLIV.—A child, aged 16 months, whom I saw only a week before his death, had been in a declining state of health for ten months. The beginning of his bad health was ascribed to a fall, in which he was supposed to have sustained an injury of the back part of the head or neck. From this time he was often much oppressed, and had been gradually wasting. Three months before the time when I saw him, he had squinting, and appeared to lose the power of the right arm and leg. The squinting went off after some time, but afterwards recurred occasionally. The use of the arm and leg was never entirely recovered. These always appeared weaker than the limbs of the other side, and he seldom attempted to raise the arm at all. He had also suffered occasionally slight convulsive affections. When I saw him there was no very marked symptom, except considerable emaciation: the pulse was frequent, and the bowels very confined. Much dark-coloured matter having been evacuated from his bowels, he seemed to be relieved. After some days, there was a remarkable slowness of the pulse, and in the course of the same day he was attacked with violent convulsion. This recurred several times during two days, and then proved fatal. There was no coma; the eyes continued sensible during the intervals; and he took notice of objects a very short time before death.

Inspection.—There were several ounces of fluid in the ventricles of the brain. In the substance of the medulla oblongata, where it is crossed by the Pons Varolii, there was an abscess which appeared to occupy its whole diameter. It had the appearance of a scrofulous abscess, and was contained in a cyst, the inner surface of which was of a yellow colour, and had an appearance of ulceration. There was considerable disease in the glands of the mesentery.

§ XIII.—Abscess of the cerebellum.

Case XLV.—A young lady, aged 18, was seized on 4th March 1813, with inflammation of the bowels. The inflammatory symptoms were subdued by two full bleedings, but the bowels continued very obstinate, and were not moved in a satisfactory manner till the 12th. During this time, a variety of purgatives had been given, with repeated tobaceo injections; and by calomel, given as a purgative, her mouth had been affected as early as the 7th.

From the beginning of the attack, she had been affeeted with pain in the left ear, and about the 7th began to complain of headach. This was at first slight, and, amid the urgency of her other symptoms, excited little attention. It increased, however, and on the 11th had become violent, so that she lay pressing her temples with her hands, and screaming from pain. The pulse was at this time natural, and she was free from vomiting and uneasiness in the bowels. On the 11th, there was a considerable discharge of matter from the left ear. On the 13th, the pulse rose suddenly to 160, and there was such a degree of sinking as required the use of wine. The pulse soon subsided, so that on the evening of the 14th it was at 80, and on the 15th at 60. The headach continued unabated. On the 14th, there was a tendency to coma, which was increased on the 15th, with dilatation of the pupil. There was now little room for active treatment; and topical bleeding, blistering, &c. were employed without relief On the 16th, the pulse began to rise again, but was very variable, in the course of a few minutes varying from 80 to 120. She lay in a state of great oppression, but when roused talked sensibly; headach still severe. (18th) Had lost the power of swallowing, but often asked for drink, though she was nearly suffocated in the attempt to swallow it; the pulse varying from 90 to 150. (19th) Squinting and dilated pupil; pulse varying from 96 to 160. (20th) Squinting

intrased; swallowed a little atother times was nearly sur was still quite sensible when riolent headach. She now st the 22d; she had continued sknew those about her till an he had also retained the sense of were much dilated.

mere much disated.

Inspection.—The surface of the substance showed marks and the ventricles were dister The left lobe of the cerebell into a haz of purulent matter intolerable fetor. It was co ized sac, which appeared to portion of the dura mater of was thickened and spungy coput coli, and about eighter the leum, were of a dark their structure.

Another case of abscess of described under a former art

ETIV.—ULCERATION

Tats appearance is unc described by several write in Executation, had violen the was relieved by topical week, the symptoms increased to violent as to produce the went on without relief, that he lay with his evelic that he lay with his evelic that he misphere of the branch the branch of the lower part

word ff alo

I dilly may soized on

the distant were

r nl ut the 7th be-

This was it first slight.

in the little tras

to the finite.

With the transferred party

and John Catanga

increased; swallowed a little once or twice with effort; at other times was nearly suffocated in attempting it; was still quite sensible when roused, and complained of violent headach. She now sunk gradually, and died on the 22d; she had continued sensible when roused, and knew those about her till an hour before her death. She had also retained the sense of sight, though the pupils were much dilated.

Inspection.—The surface of the brain was natural; the substance showed marks of increased vascularity, and the ventricles were distended with colourless fluid. The left lobe of the cerebellum was entirely converted into a bag of purulent matter, of a greenish colour and intolerable fetor. It was contained in a soft and organized sac, which appeared to be of recent formation. A portion of the dura mater on the outer side of the abscess was thickened and spungy; the bone was sound; the caput coli, and about eighteen inches of the extremity of the ileum, were of a dark livid colour, but sound in their structure.

Another case of abscess of the cerebellum has been described under a former article.—See Case III.

§ XIV.—Ulceration of the surface of the BRAIN.

This appearance is uncommon, but it is distinctly described by several writers. A man, mentioned by Dr. Scoutetten, had violent headach, followed by great disturbance of the stomach and prostration of strength. He was relieved by topical bleedings, &c.; but, after a week, the symptoms increased, with fever, and the pain was so violent as to produce screaming. In this manner he went on without relief, and died on the twenty sixth day,-no other symptoms being mentioned, excepting that he lay with his eyelids closed, and his fore arms bent. On the lower part of the anterior lobe of the right hemisphere of the brain, there was a superficial

ulcer measuring 13 lines by 7. It was of a yellowish appearance, and its edges were unequal and ragged. The dura mater and pia mater covering the spot were destroyed by erosion, and the pia mater was in some other places inflamed; the brain in other respects was healthy. A similar appearance on the posterior part of the brain was observed in a man who died of protracted intestinal disease; he had been affected for three days before his death with cedema of the forehead and left eyelid, headach, delirium, and convulsive motions of the upper extremities.* The same appearance in the ccrebellum is mentioned by Mr. Howship. † A soldier at Gibraltar lay down and fell asleep in the sun in a very hot day; he soon awoke in great pain, and was confined to bed for six weeks, with constant and violent pain in the forehead. He then returned to his duty, and was not heard of for six months, when he went into the hospital again, affected with pain in the forehead. It now became remittent, generally returning every morning, but sometimes missing a day, or varying in the hour of attack; there was no fever. Two months after his admission he became suddenly delirious in the night, and soon after expired. On dissection, there appeared a general increased vaseularity of the brain, without any decided disease, until the tentorium was raised, when there appeared upon the upper surface of the cerebellum an ulcerated superficial excavation, the size of a shilling, containing a thin ichorous matter. The pia mater at this place was destroyed, and the dura mater was discoloured. Dr. Bright has also given two examples of defined ulceration of the surface of the brain, with loss of substance. In one of them the symptoms were very obscure. In the other, the affection followed an injury of the perieranium, and was fatal after several weeks.

Li ces described under Sect Immie the principal phenomena co matin of the substance of the ho XXIV, we see it in its recent sta the brain, and in XXV, we and f-ming a distinctly defined portion infammation. In Case XXIX. pation of this kind passing gradu ment; and in Case XXX, we see the am re advanced state. In the st se mue complete ramollissemen and mixed with purulent matter. inflammation passing into a distin seess; and finally we observe it terr of the surface of the brain. (varieties of termination we at pre-I have thrown ort a conjecture that ones chiefly in the white matter, Le mer; but it is mere conjecture. sement however is a result of inflan arrearances described in some of t yead a doubt. I have already state ess ames from another cause, nar arenal system, being thus analog ther parts of the body, which we se the very opposite causes. In this ind in to note the diversities of Insent exist among pathologists in Tearne. In the symptoms which Lation of the substance of the hemito be such a diversity as must preve attempting any general statement Council appear to be headach [6] den attack of convulsion, without p Jan, the convulsed parts afterwards But in Case XXV no localistic street of the most frightful er Case MAY, Paralysis Was the first Day a Lob place at a sub-

TO TIME

^{*} Arch. Gen. de Med. January 1825. † Med. and Phys. Journal, March 1810.

The cases described under Section V. appear to illustrate the principal phenomena connected with inflammation of the substance of the hemispheres. In Case XXIV. we see it in its recent state on the surface of the brain, and in XXV. we find it in the substance forming a distinctly defined portion in a state of active inflammation. In Case XXIX. we see an inflamed portion of this kind passing gradually into ramollissement; and in Case XXX, we see the ramollissement in a more advanced state. In the subsequent cases, we see more complete ramollissement, both uncombined and mixed with purulent matter. We then find the inflammation passing into a distinct and encysted abscess; and finally we observe it terminating by ulceration of the surface of the brain. Of the cause of these varieties of termination we at present know very little. I have thrown out a conjecture that the ramollissement occurs chiefly in the white matter, and suppuration in the grey; but it is mere conjecture. That the ramollissement however is a result of inflammation, I think the appearances described in some of these eases place beyond a doubt. I have already stated my belief that it also arises from another cause, namely, disease of the arterial system, being thus analogous to gangrene in other parts of the body, which we see arising from these two very opposite eauses. In this manner I have proposed to reconcile the diversities of opinion which at present exist among pathologists in regard to this appearance. In the symptoms which accompany inflammation of the substance of the hemispheres, there appears to be such a diversity as must prevent us at present from attempting any general statement of them. The most eommon appear to be headach followed by convulsion, either of one limb, or of a more general kind; or a sudden attack of convulsion, without previous complaint of pain, the convulsed parts afterwards becoming paralytie. But in Case XXV. no paralysis was observed after three days of the most frightful convulsion; while in Case XXX. paralysis was the first symptom, and convulsion took place at a subsequent period. In other

e state in the

The translate

cases again, we find paralysis of one side of the body and convulsion of the other.

On this intcresting subject, however, we have not at present a sufficient collection of facts to cnable us to advance to any general statement in regard to the symptoms, or to refer particular symptoms to the particular seats or terminations of the disease. But there are numerous facts of very great interest which deserve to be recorded, without attempting any thing farther than a simple statement of them in connexion with the principal morbid appearances. They refer chiefly to the affection in the various conditions of simple inflammation, ramollissement, suppuration, and ulceration; and to some interesting phenomena connected with the disease in a chronic form.

I. In the state of SIMPLE INFLAMMATION, the affection seems in general to be characterized by headach and eonvulsion; but in the more chronic form of it, as in Cases XXVII. and XXVIII., we see it productive of paralysis without convulsion, and fatal in a state of simple inflammation, with all the symptoms of perfect apoplexy. On the other hand, in Case XXX., the palsy preceded the convulsion. In some of the eases which terminated by the cueysted absccss, there is reason to believe that the inflammatory stage was characterized by convulsion of one or more limbs, followed by temporary paralysis, and that the permanent paralysis took place when the disease passed into suppuration. In some of the other eases, again, it seems probable that the inflammatory state was productive of an attack of palsy, exactly resembling the ordinary hemiplegia from other eauses. This probably took place in the very interesting case, (No. XXXIV.) Of the disease in its more chronie form, an important example is related by Dr. Treutler.* A woman, aged 30, had been ill for two months with dropsy, which had followed intermittent

tern, and was connected to the third menth of her illi ing or weight in the occipt dinness of sight, and a gr Learing became obruse, he and her memory was lost. de fower of every volunta disa suddenly about the en Less that is, less than ! Leat of the exaptoms in Lucial ventricle, a portior frestes r-giæ juglandis.) 1-in in several places; wh was serons effusion under I haid in the ventricles; Coroid plexus, which were sile. The spleen was much 1 and to the amount of ser the old then; it was contain i's omerum, partly between e. n. and partly under the S. Ally C. A.

II. The RAMOLIESEMEN SERVICE does not appear to italized for the pear to italize for the pear to be any ioundation of the French writers, that curred in case WXX at with affecting of the ment which affecting of the ment of the extended for the cerebral substance; where there is much every to the cerebral substance;

^{*} Treutler. Auctarium ad Helminthologiam Humani Corporis, p. 1.

fever, and was connected with disease in the splcen. In the third month of her illness, she complained of a feeling of weight in the occiput towards the right side, with dimness of sight, and a great propensity to sleep. Her hearing became obtuse, her speech was very indistinct, and her memory was lost. She at last seemed to lose the power of every voluntary muscle, so that she could neither move her legs nor arms, nor raise her head. Finally, she had convulsions and apopleetic attacks, and died suddenly about the end of the third month of her illness, that is, less than a month from the commencement of the symptoms in the head. In the posterior lobe of the right hemisphere of the brain, behind the lateral ventricle, a portion the size of a large walnut, (fruetus regiæ juglandis,) was in a state of high inflammation; the membranes adhered to the surface of the brain in several places; where this did not occur, there was serous effusion under the arachnoid. There was no fluid in the ventricles; there were hydatids in the choroid plexus, which were most numerous on the right side. The spleen was much enlarged; and extravasated blood, to the amount of several pounds, was found in the abdomen; it was contained partly in the eavity of the omentum, partly between the laminæ of the mesoeolon, and partly under the periton al coat of the deseending eolon.

II. The Ramollissement of the Cerebral Substance does not appear to be characterized by any uniformity of symptoms. In particular, there does not appear to be any foundation for a statement made by some of the French writers, that it is distinguished by tonic contraction of one or more limbs. This symptom occurred in Case XXX, at an early period, and afterwards disappeared. It is also met with in connexion with affections of the membranes, without any disease of the eerebral substance; and with the encysted abseess; and it is frequently observed in eases of typhus, where there is much cerebral disturbance, but which

in our and

That, we have not at

the conable us to althe regard to the sympthat was to the particular
the sympthat was to the particular
the sympthat there are nuthat there are nuthat the principal
that to the affection
that the principal
that the principal that the principal
that the principal that the principal that the principal that the principal that the principal that the principal that the

I ny headach

I ny headach

I ny headach

I nas i na sain of

on total in a sain of period

on total in a sain of both of the one of t

araban di productione di productione

terminate favourably. Lallemand* remarks that he had taken up the idea of the rigid contraction of the limbs being diagnostic of ramollissement, and was very much perplexed when he met with a case in which all the limbs were in a state of the most remarkable relaxation.

The cases which terminate by ramollissement seem in general to be characterized by convulsion, more or less extensive, followed by paralysis and coma, the convulsion ceasing for some time before death, and being succeeded by the coma; but in Case XXX. the convulsion continued with the utmost violence till the very time of In case XXXIV., on the other hand, there was no convulsion, but a sudden attack of palsy, exactly resembling the ordinary attack of hemiplegia from other causes. In the very remarkable Cases, XXXII. and XXXIII., we find ramollissement of very limited extent, as the only morbid appearance, in connexion with symptoms of long standing; both cases being at last rapidly fatal by a sudden attack of convulsion. In some of the subsequent cases, again, we find most extensive destruction of the cerebral substance, without either paralysis or convulsion, and even without coma. In one remarkable case to be afterwards described, namely, the last case under tubercular disease, we shall find destruction of the cerebral substance, to as great an extent perhaps as is upon record; while the patient went to bed in the state of health in which she had been for many months before her death, and was found dead on the morning.

We find the same difficulty in attempting to ascertain the effect of ramollissement of particular parts of the brain, in producing symptoms in particular organs. Convulsion on the same side with the disease, and paralysis on the opposite side, appear to be frequent symptoms, but, as we have seen, by no means uniform. In several of the cases, the speech was remarkably affected, but they present no uniformity in the seat of

A Rose. The record Tio ren arkable occurr d there was resoluti a it the ramellissen. count, there was squint curalive motions, and

RETILIT C

III. In the cases wh ve ind to e same divers his ly being in some co retal alexess, and in oth : distase, in which pur tis drith circles subst The latter form 2: Chir exceedingly of 30 is Casts IIIIVI, and sees, they appear to be ster. The course of s Singly temarkable. I singly the state of the arm indicated its motion ed the paralysis along w che streta attacks of th come terminent. The th is some course. In s

to belie, that the conve

Latery state is ging on,

teles is indicated by the

Language Commander of the

^{*} Lallemand, Recherches sur l'Encephale.

the disease. The recovery of speech in Case XXXIII., was a remarkable occurrence. In a case by Lallemand, in which the upper part of both hemispheres was affected, there was resolution of all the limbs; and in one in which the ramollissement was scated in the tuber annulare, there was squinting, with resolution of all the limbs, and distortion of the head backwards. The same writer describes two eases in which the disease was in the cerebellum. In the one, there were headach, phrensy, convulsive motions, and sudden death; in the other, in which it was in the left lobe, there was loss of speech, with palsy of the right side, and stupor; it was fatal in eight days.

III. In the cases which terminate by Suppuration, we find the same diversity of symptoms as in the eases now referred to. The suppuration, we have seen, varies, by being in some cases confined in a distinct encysted abscess, and in others forming an undefined mass of disease, in which purulent matter is more or less mixed with cerebral substance in a state of ramollissement. In the latter form of the disease, the symptoms are often exceedingly obscure and undefined, as we see in Cases XXXVI. and XXXVII. In the encysted abscess, they appear to be in general more marked and severe. The course of symptoms in Case XXXIX. was very remarkable. The sudden attack of convulsion, followed by paralysis of one arm, probably occurred in the inflammatory stage, for when the symptoms were relieved by the bloodletting and other remedies, the arm recovered its motion. The convulsion returned, and the paralysis along with it, and again subsided; and after several attacks of the same kind, the paralysis became permanent. The thigh and leg then went through the same course. In such a ease, it appears highly probable, that the convulsion occurs while the inflammatory state is going on, and that the period of suppuration is indicated by the permanent paralysis. In this case, three abscesses were met with; but, whether the successive formation of these had any relation to the

successive attacks of the disease in the arm and leg, must be matter of conjecture. In a similar ease, related by Bartholinus, the leg was first affected, and afterwards the arm. One absecss only is mentioned, of which it is merely stated that it was on the opposite side. In a case by Schenkius, there occurred paralysis of the left side, and convulsion of the right; there was a superficial abscess on the right side of the brain. Something similar to this occurred in a ease to be afterwards mentioned, (Diseases of Bones,) in which there was paralysis of the left side, with convulsive agitation of the right arm. In a girl, aged 5, whose case is described by Dr. Bateman,* an absects was found in the posterior part of the right hemisphere, inclosed in a fine vascular sac, and containing four ounces of pus. She was first affected with convulsion of the whole body, which continued for nearly two days; during this time, the left side was in a state of rigid extension, and the right was in constant motion; and when the attack subsided, the left side remained paralytic. She then had headach, squinting, blindness, and repeated convulsion; and died after an illness of fifteen weeks, having been comatose for only one day before death. In some cases of this kind, paralysis has occurred without convulsion, and in others, convulsion without paralysis; but one or other of these affections appears to be a common attendant on the encysted abscess. In a case described by Morgagni, the prominent symptoms were, pain of the left side of the head, delirium, loss of speech, and weakness of the muscles of the left side of the neck; the man died in 14 days, gradually exhausted; and an abseess was found in the right corpus striatum, which had burst into the ventricle. In a case by Valsalva, in which the disease was in the corpus striatum, the speech was much affected, and one side was paralytic. In another, there were indistinctness of speech, and paralysis of the right side, connected with an ulcerated cavity at the base of the brain on the left

NEVIEW OF

sue. In a third case by and se of the right side · h an ulcerated cavity it under the choroid plexus of rarieties occur in the symp is unnecessary to enter into a case by Lallemand there Fixed by a sudden attack After three days the affecte visions, which occurred for with pain in the right side left arm. This was follo flexion and extension of days passed into palsy. sire motions of the limbs was in the right side of t el by Broussais, an exten centre of each hemisphere, on a peculiar dulness of at last come after 37 days. kind, the abscess is often tubercular matter or indura have probably supervened lain, which, after continu has at length passed into espechas been found in the vaich indicated its existen the posterior part of the Congress of the nates, wi A man, mentioned by D Bar holomew's hospital at I bloody expectoration or min in the hospital, fire his death in a dozing without coma, and I head. His large were we size of a large walnut

and the anterior

· Hotel Trans. Cal

Edir, Mcd. Journal, vol. i, p. 150.

of the pt There

paiansis

ar Plan there was

. . . of the brain,

- 1 1 - 1 3 8 m 1 3 The restable B.

the said

side. In a third ease by the same writer, there were paralysis of the right side, and convulsion of the left, with an ulcerated cavity in the substance of the brain under the choroid plexus of the left side. Many other varieties oeeur in the symptoms, in regard to which it is unnecessary to enter into any lengthened detail. In a case by Lallemand there were eramps of the limbs, followed by a sudden attack of palsy of the right side. After three days the affected limbs were seized with convulsions, which occurred for several days, and ended in fatal coma. Another ease, by the same writer, began with pain in the right side of the head and tremor of the left arm. This was followed by a continued convulsive flexion and extension of the left arm, which after some days passed into palsy. There were then some convulsive motions of the limbs of the right side; the abseess was in the right side of the brain. In a man mentioned by Broussais, an extensive abseess was found in the eentre of each hemisphere, without any other symptom than a peculiar dulness of manner, with taeiturnity, and at last coma after 37 days. In eases of a more ehronic kind, the abseess is often found inclosed in a mass of tubereular matter or indurated eerebral substance. These have probably supervened upon chronic disease of the brain, which, after continuing long in an indolent state, has at length passed into suppuration. In a few eases, abscess has been found in the brain without any symptoms which indicated its existence. Morgagni found one in the posterior part of the brain in a man who died of gangrene of the nates, without any symptom in the head. A man, mentioned by Dr. Powel, was received into St. Bartholomew's hospital on account of cough, dyspnoea, and bloody expectoration. He died after he had been a month in the hospital, having been for some time beforc his death in a dozing state, with oceasional delirium, but without coma, and he had never complained of his head. His lungs were much diseased, and an abseess the size of a large walnut was found in the substance of the brain, under the anterior part of the corpus callosum."

^{*} Med. Trans. Coll. of Phys. London, vol. v.

In the encysted abseess of the cerebellum, the symptoms seem to be less violent than when the disease is in the brain. A very slight convulsion occurred once in Case III. In Case XLV, the most remarkable symptom was the loss of the power of swallowing. In a ease by Planeus, there was paralysis of one side, and it is stated to have been ou the same side with the disease." In Case III, though the disease was in the cerebellum, the principal seat of pain was in the forehead, and this has been observed in other eases of the same kind.

IV. THE SUPERFICIAL ULCERATION OF THE BRAIN appears to be a rare occurrence, and some of the eases of it present phenomena of rather an interesting character. A man mentioned by Dr. Powel, t was affected with a convulsive motion of the left side of his body, whieli very much resembled chorea; he was free from it during sleep, and had no other complaint. This affeetion continued five weeks, and then suddenly terminated in palsy of the affected side. Soon after this, his right hand and arm became convulsed, but in a slighter degree; he then became gradually comatose, and died two months after the commencement of the complaint. On the anterior part of the right hemisphere of the brain, there was a superficial loss of substance from uleeration, two inches in length and as much in breadth; it presented an irregular exeavated appearance, and a thin layer of eurdled matter was deposited in it. There was a similar disease, but much less extensive, on the anterior part of the left hemisphere, and there was much fluid in the ventrieles. A lady mentioned by Dr. Thomas Anderson; of Leith, had been for several years liable to headach, which was most violent at the crown of the head. After she had suffered for a considerable time from this pain, she was seized with a convulsive affection of the left arm and leg. It oeeurred in paroxysms, attacked her several times every day, and generally eontened about half an hour; le ame gradually more an brame slightly affected it was afterwards liable to att often lay for 24 hours at gradual exhaustion. On bemisphere of the brain, t substance from ulceration, ore and a half broad, and the bottom of it there we a firm brownish matter, w which broke into sand on

The effect of superficial its membranes, is well ill by Dr. Anderson, in which Lis eve. A boy suffered, the depression of a consider retal bone, the depressed the dura mater, and driv He had paralysis of the lo insusable. The depressed petalysis was greatly dimin a considerable degree of vis the operation, the nound is ed, with considerable tume left leg and arm became p established by containing Cine again insensible. If these parts for several day the least affected, when, al the symptoms subsid riden web an outlet a to patier, the suppure tropions, would probable c. w and fatal coma. L. suffered, from an in travation of blood on t

res temored by repeated

the ente, which of

... . The brain supputat

Storia Med. d'una Postema del lobo destro del cervelletto.

[†] Trans. Coll. Phys. London, vol. v.

[†] Trans. Roy. Soc. Edin. vol. ii.

Lat 3 Shill is

= n in lonce in

and le symp-

Tre-rain!

Training and

t ap's termi-

and diel

tinued about half an hour at each time. This complaint became gradually more and more severe; the right side became slightly affected in the same manner, and she was afterwards liable to attacks of coma, in which she often lay for 24 hours at a time. She died at last of gradual exhaustion. On the upper part of the right hemisphere of the brain, there was a superficial loss of substance from ulceration, two and a half inches long, one and a half broad, and nearly an inch in depth. the bottom of it there were found some thin laminæ of a firm brownish matter, with stony concretions, some of

which broke into sand on the slightest touch.

The effect of superficial inflammation of the brain, or its membranes, is well illustrated by another ease related by Dr. Anderson, in which the disease took place under his eye. A boy suffered, from an injury of the head, the depression of a considerable portion of the right parietal bone, the depressed portion being forced through the dura mater, and driven inwards upon the brain. He had paralysis of the left side, and the left eye was insensible. The depressed portion being removed, the paralysis was greatly diminished, and the eye recovered a considerable degree of vision. On the third day after the operation, the wound in the dura mater was inflamed, with considerable tumefaction; and immediately the left leg and arm became paralysed, the paralysis being accompanied by convulsion; and the left eye also beeame again insensible. He had frequent convulsion of these parts for several days, the right side not being in the least affected, when, suppuration having taken place, all the symptoms subsided. Had the disease occurred without such an outlet as was in this ease afforded to the matter, the suppuration, instead of relieving the symptoms, would probably have induced permanent paralysis and fatal coma. A man mentioned by Mr. John Bell, suffered, from an injury of the head, extensive extravasation of blood on the surface of the brain, which was removed by repeated applications of the trephine. During the cure, which occupied three mouths, the left side of the brain suppurated five or six times. The attack of inflammation was always accompanied by fever, stupor, and difficult deglutition; but these symptoms were removed by the suppuration. These attacks occurred at various parts of the brain. When they were towards the anterior part, he had double vision, which also was removed by the suppuration; when they were towards the posterior part, there was not double vision, but a state of vision in which a candle was seen with a halo around it.

Ulceration of the surface of the brain I have seen only in one instance, in a preparation which was shewn me by Dr. Maeintosh. There were on various parts of the surface of the left hemisphere, spaces of superficial ulceration of various extent, with ragged edges, and sensible loss of substance. The affection occurred in a child of 18 months, and was complicated with effusion in the ventricles, and ramollissement. The pia mater and arachnoid were destroyed at the ulcerated spots; and the pia mater in other places was studded with minute tubercles. The symptoms were not to be distinguished from those of hydrocephalus in its ordinary form. There were also numerous granular tubercles in the lungs.

V. THE INFLAMMATION OF THE CEREBRAL SUBSTANCE occurs in a chronic form, in which the symptoms may continue for months, and the disease then prove fatal by suppuration, or without having suppurated. In Cases XXVII. and XXVIII. we have remarkable examples of this form of the disease proving fatal without suppuration. In Case XXVII. we can have little doubt that the disease had existed in the first attack, and, after a protracted illness, had been removed or in a great measure subdued. It then took place again, and was fatal with loss of speech, palsy, and coma; yet after all, it had not advanced beyond the state of simple inflammation. The progress of this more chronic form of the disease seems to differ considerably from the other modifications of it. We have seen that it may continue for a considerable time in a state of simple inflammation. and in that state may be fatal with all the symptoms of REVIEW OF T

ieffeet apoplexy. It may a time in this state, pass into ti.a; but it appears, that it induration of the part of the seat of it. A degree of this and it appears probable that. the inflammatory appearance left in a state of simple indu vanced period may pass in This state of disease may vortion of the brain, from substance of the hemisphe rounded by a cret, and the a tumour in the brain. I a part of the cerebral subs ful us inflammation; that ease which may be cured; n of a crst of coagulable 1 induration of the part, are tl give it the character of orga either of these states it m symptoms, or it may term affection, in its first stage, v the anterior part of the right died after an illness of four ed with constant pain of the paralysis of the left side, a occurred at intervals. For in the corpus callosum, i affected with epileptic pa atose and convulsed. In senus found one the size Pen of the right hemist tare, in a man who had b with intense headach, a while body, which were He found another in the P de tentorium, in a woman L. L. S. Br. Chi. Co.

A. Timilan flat men

on the double rish.

· in the sixin the

--- (L COMPRESSIONE

e e den fr te

perfect apoplexy. It may also, after continuing for some time in this state, pass into ramollissement or suppuration; but it appears, that in some cases it terminates by induration of the part of the brain which has been the seat of it. A degree of this occurred in Dr. Hay's case, and it appears probable that, as the induration advances, the inflammatory appearance subsides; the part is then left in a state of simple induration, and at a more advanced period may pass into unhealthy suppuration. This state of disease may either affect a considerable portion of the brain, from the surface downwards, or may be confined to a small eireumseribed portion in the substance of the hemisphere. In this case, the affected portion appears, in some instances, to be afterwards surrounded by a cyst, and this appearance has been called a tumour in the brain. It is probable that it is merely a part of the cerebral substance in a state of low scrofulous inflammation; that in its early stage, it is a disease which may be cured; and that the formation around it of a cyst of coagulable lymph, or its termination by induration of the part, are the points in its progress which give it the character of organic or hopeless disease. In either of these states it may be fatal after protracted symptoms, or it may terminate by suppuration. This affection, in its first stage, was observed by Burserius in the anterior part of the right hemisphere, in a man who died after an illness of four months; he had been affected with constant pain of the head near the vertex, fever, paralysis of the left side, and convulsive affections which occurred at intervals. Fantonus found a similar disease in the corpus callosum, in a man who had been long affected with epileptic paroxysms, and at last died comatose and convulsed. In the state of suppuration, Burserius found one the size of a pigeon's egg in the outer part of the right hemisphere under the squamous suture, in a man who had been affected for several months with intense headaeli, and convulsive tremors of the whole body, which were most severe on the left side. He found another in the posterior part of the brain near the tentorium, in a woman who had been ill for several months with severe headach without fever: the pain was so intense as almost entirely to deprive her of sleep, and she seems to have been gradually worn out by the severity of it without any other remarkable symptom.

This form of chronic inflammation of a small part of the brain is a disease of much interest. The symptoms may go on for several months, so as to assume the character of organie disease; they may remit, so as to resemble periodical headach; the disease may be fatal with symptoms resembling apoplexy; or it may pass into permanent induration of the part affected; or, after it has appeared to resist all our remedies, it may gradually subside. This agrees exactly with the course of chronic or scrofulous inflammation, as we observe it in external parts. We see it in the eye, in the lymphatic glands, in the testicle, in the mamma, and in the cellular texture. It takes place rapidly, producing enlargement of the parts, and dcrangement of the functions; it may continue stationary for a considerable time; it may then terminate by unhealthy suppuration or ulceration, or by permanent induration of the part; or, after resisting for a long time all our remedies, it may gradually subside, without leaving any permanent change in the organization of the part. I think there is little doubt that something of this kind takes place in the brain, and if this doetrine be admitted, the practical application of it will be, that we shall be less disposed than we usually are, to eonsider such eases as depending upon organic disease, and eonsequently not the objects of active treatment.

The progress of this interesting affection is well illustrated by Case XXVII., and there are others on record which show it under some varietics in the symptoms. A gentleman, mentioned by Dr. Powell, was affected with severe headach, which occurred in paroxysms; during the paroxysms, which often continued for several hours, he had double vision, mental depression, and at one time museular twitches and numbness of the left side. The pulse was variable, being sometimes a little frequent, and sometimes rather below the natural standard. By large and repeated bloodletting, &c. he was

RELIEF OF THE SERVE

ruch relieved, but after a short in emplaint returned with great viole remained permanently double. Af nins and remissi ns of this kind, he three weeks, an interval of ease for night. The pain then returned with accompanied with spasmodic affects of the neck. He then derived ter narrotics, and, soon after this, the so much of a periodical character the bak; the pulse at this time was ! treatment the paroxysms became re not less frequent; and they were by convulsive motions, which chi side. The paroxysms occurred a vals. They sometimes consisted of times of pain aecompanied by th He died suddenly in a convulsive after the examencement of the time he had been eonsidered as befor two hours on the day preceding be died. The anterior part of the fund much changed in its structu that it is described as a tumour. vas first removed, the part thus the ligher than the neighbouring al systance surrounding it was La contain here described is pro c' the disease which occurred in XXVIII.; and there was a cons symptoms to the first attack in (The affection may likewise chr nic state of induration, in w ed for a greater length of time sand may at last be f vident having suppurated; or surrhead ports of the brain, it weration of the surface functive amioned by Dr. Anderson, rece Let back of his head, from the y to the state of the

Lut some tons

The second sector to

Sect Life Dead Life Co.

much relieved, but after a short interval of relief, the complaint returned with great violence, and his vision remained permanently double. After several aggravations and remissions of this kind, he had, at the end of three weeks, an interval of ease for more than a fort-The pain then returned with violence, and was accompanied with spasmodic affections of the muscles of the neck. He then derived temporary relief from narcotics, and, soon after this, the complaint assumed so much of a periodical character that it was treated by bark; the pulse at this time was natural. Under this treatment the paroxysms became rather less severe, but not less frequent; and they were attended occasionally by convulsive motions, which chiefly affected the right side. The paroxysms occurred at very uncertain inter-They sometimes consisted of pain only, and sometimes of pain accompanied by the convulsive motions. He died suddenly in a convulsive attack, two months after the commencement of the complaint; for some time he had been considered as better, and had sat up for two hours on the day preceding the night on which he dicd. The anterior part of the right hemisphere was found much changed in its structure and indurated, so that it is described as a tumour. When the dura mater was first removed, the part thus affected appeared to rise higher than the neighbouring parts, and the cerebral substance surrounding it was very soft. The morbid condition here described is probably a different stage of the disease which occurred in Cases XXVII. and XXVIII.; and there was a considerable similarity in the symptoms to the first attack in Case XXVII.

The affection may likewise pass into a still more chronic state of induration, in which it may be protracted for a greater length of time, but producing urgent symptoms; and may at last be fatal by suppuration, or without having suppurated; or, if it be scated in the superficial parts of the brain, it may terminate by the ulceration of the surface formerly referred to. A man mentioned by Dr. Anderson, received a violent blow on the back of his head, from the boom of a ship, which

Indsubstance is an affection deserv t. den. There is every reason to l in various degrees of activity; that firm it advances speedily to ramollis tion; but that it also exists in a chr in progress is very slow, so that it in symptoms for a considerable length having advanced beyond that stage i chance of recovery. This latter form sin to believe may afterwards pass i may terminate by induration of the and may thus assume the character The disease may affect any part of appears to commence in a very sm to extend gradually over a large to be in cases of this kind that sime singular examples of gradual perhaps in a very slight degree, or and advancing very gradually to me extensive palsy. A small part of the is probably undergoing this low st. gradually gaining ground, and at either by fatal coma or permanent In the palsy connected with this tins, there is sometimes, especially violent pain in the affected lin.bs. of power is accompanied by in chars, the feeling remains entir site examples are met with, in n. A dly increased. A case of t ready referred to; another is me In this case there had been, after Falach, impaired intellect, and Ve veeks after, there was a su spech, with palsy of the right sic the parts, so that a top ders after this, there was an attac wide, with fatal coma. There was e a mation and extensive ramolic s. . . e of the left side, and on

fell upon him as he was stooping under it. After some time he had pain in the part, which became gradually more severe, and, after 18 months, brought on convulsive paroxysms of both upper and lower extremities, the violence of which put an end to his life, after he had suffered from them for several months. Both hemispheres of the brain at the posterior part were found inflamed and much hardened. The diseased parts adhered closely to the dura mater, and to the falx; and the dura mater at that part, was thickened and indurated. A man, aged 45, mentioned by the same writer, had been liable for several years to convulsive paroxysms resembling epilepsy, but with this peculiarity, that the convulsion was confined to the right arm and leg. The attacks occurred at irregular intervals, generally once in three or four weeks, and were succeeded by stupor which continued about half an hour. Without any change in the complaint he was killed by an injury of the head. A portion of the left hemisphere of the brain was found indurated, and closely adhering to the dura mater, which at that place was much thickened and hardened. Extravasated blood was found in another part of the head, which appeared to have been the effect of the injury, and the immediate cause of death. In a man, aged 35, who had suffered for several months from violent pain in the forehead with epileptic paroxysms, Morgagni found the anterior part of the right hemisphere of the brain indurated, and adhering to the dura mater. Bauder relates the case of a man, aged 40, who became suddenly epileptic, with pain at a particular part of the left side of the head. There was exquisite sensibility of the surface of the left hand and arm, so that the slightest breath of cold air upon them brought on convulsive twitches. After an illness of five years he died rather suddenly. At the part which had been the seat of pain, there was superficial induration of a portion of the brain, and under the indurated part there was an abscess the size of an egg.

From the imperfect view now given of this subject; I think it will appear, that the inflammation of the cere-

NEVIEW OF THE SURV

All of some

. Ir plant (prul.

era. . over extre thes the

d to be it, and the lid

red men's Bith hemi-

consist at wise band in-

d. The listabel parts ad-

ter, and to the falk; and

. - Lickeped and indurat-

od ir the same writer,

AFTER FOCULARY FIXE DULOZIAMS

th t is peculiarity, that the

ricter L. perally once in

et su enbret prwhich

. Viall or clange in

f by an eligy of the had.

cent ad 113 Later, Which

and the time heat,

or or the in urr,

ે 1]. ા ગ્રામક શ્રાણી હતે.

more significant pain

and the street. Hereall

... To drs. Lair. Bast s

Hard English

r lin mil the left

the service of the

1 1 1 6 2 168

of Allin

bral substance is an affection deserving accurate inves-There is every reason to believe, that it exists in various degrees of activity; that in the most active form it advances speedily to ramollissement or suppuration; but that it also exists in a chronic form, in which its progress is very slow, so that it may produce urgent symptoms for a considerable length of time, without having advanced beyond that stage in which there is a chance of recovery. This latter form we have seen reason to believe may afterwards pass into suppuration, or may terminate by induration of the cerebral substance, and may thus assume the characters of organic disease. The disease may affect any part of the brain, and often appears to commence in a very small portion of it, and to extend gradually over a larger portion. It appears to be in eases of this kind that we chiefly meet with some singular examples of gradual paralysis, beginning perhaps in a very slight degree, or, in a single muscle, and advancing very gradually to more perfect and more extensive palsy. A small part of the brain in such cases is probably undergoing this low state of inflammation, gradually gaining ground, and at length terminating either by fatal coma or permanent paralysis.

In the palsy connected with this inflammatory affections, there is sometimes, especially in the early stages, violent pain in the affected limbs. In some eases, again, the loss of power is accompanied by total loss of feeling; in others, the feeling remains entire; and some remarkable examples are met with, in which the feeling is morbidly increased. A case of this kind has been already referred to; another is mentioned by Lallemand. In this ease there had been, after a blow on the head, headach, impaired intellect, and weakness of the limbs. Six weeks after, there was a sudden attack of loss of speech, with palsy of the right side, and increased sensibility of the parts, so that a touch was painful. Ten days after this, there was an attack of palsy of the left side, with fatal coma. There was an appearance of inflammation and extensive ramollissement of the ecrebral substance of the left side, and on the right side, extravasation of blood, which had obviously been the origin of the fatal attack.

The disease occurs in the cerebellum in the same chronie form which has now been referred to in regard to the brain; it in some cases exhibits nearly the same symptoms, and in others the symptoms are extremely obscure. A man mentioned by Mr. Douglas had been for three months affected with pain in the forehead, which generally obliged him to sit with his head leaning forward; he had bad appetite and disturbed sleep, but no other symptom. He died suddenly in an attack resembling syncope, having been for a day much better, with good appetite and quiet sleep. An encysted abscess was found in the middle of the cerebellum, and a rupture of the left lateral sinus, which probably was the immediate cause of death.* A man, mentioned by Serres,† after a blow on the back and lateral part of the head, which stunned him at the time, had a certain unsteadiness in walking, which made him always anxious to take the arm of a friend; and he had a delicacy of his head, which made him much affected by a small quantity of wine. This continued about eighteen months, when he became sad and irritable, with trembling of the limbs. Soon after, the left leg became paralytic, and the arm of the same side was numb and weakened. After the insertion of a seton in the neck, the arm recovered, and, three months after this, the patient died with fever, delirium, and an affection of the bowels. There was disease in the right lobe of the cerebellum, with an abseess, and extensive softening. In another man, mentioned by the same writer, who died in forty days, there was palsy of the right leg with wasting of the limb, but without loss of sensibility, the arm being little if at all affected. There was ramollissement of the left lobe of the cerebellum, occupying chicfly the centre of the left peduncle.

INFLAUMATION OF TH

SECTIO

THE CORPUS CALLOSUM, S.

THE morbid conditions which this head, embrace the vario have usually been included drocephalus. In venturing the general arrangement of of the brain. I may perhaps too rapidly to a conclusion of this important class of d I have observed of the affect the analogy of the correspond of the brain, I have now re ranging them in this manner, which have induced me to ject, and, confining myself failtful relation of facts, sha quiv as one of much interest The disease seems to prese ent forms. In the one, the sested in the membrane lin other, in the white matter lucidum, and corpus callos we find the ventricles fills fluid, & metimes containing and sometimes having entire matter. These appearance deposition of flocculent matt serioce of the choroid plexu the meriatione lining the rei renollissement of the cereb toming them. In the latter the dia the form of ratiollic

^{*} Edip. Med. Ess, and Obser, vol. vi.

[†] Recherehes Sur Le Cervelet.—Journal de Physiologie, 1822—23.

SECTION VI.

v = : rltingd

a wer We che this with

... but

er i n an chack re-

... it a dis much better,

to the An energial about

a it a perabellum, and a

nrolally was the

A r n. menti ned by

i al peral part of the

. . in Lilae main un-

parairie, and

the arm hand separate of the s

INFLAMMATION OF THE CENTRAL PARTS OF THE BRAIN;—
THE CORPUS CALLOSUM, SEPTUM LUCIDUM, FORNIX,
AND THE MEMBRANE LINING THE VENTRICLES.

THE morbid conditions which I mean to consider under this head, embrace the various forms of disease which have usually been included under the term acute hydrocephalus. In venturing to refer them to a place in the general arrangement of the inflammatory affections of the brain, I may perhaps be considered as advancing too rapidly to a conclusion in regard to the pathology of this important class of diseases. But from all that I have observed of the affections themselves, and from the analogy of the corresponding diseases in other parts of the brain, I have now very little hesitation in arranging them in this manner. I shall state the grounds which have induced me to take this view of the subject, and, confining myself in a great measure to a faithful relation of facts, shall merely propose the inquiry as one of much interest for farther observation.

The disease seems to present itself under two different forms. In the one, the inflammation appears to be seated in the membrane lining the ventricles; in the other, in the white matter forming the fornix, septum lucidum, and corpus callosum. In the former case, we find the ventricles filled with a turbid or milky fluid, sometimes containing shreds of coagulable lymph, and sometimes having entirely the characters of purulent matter. These appearances are often combined with a deposition of flocculent matter or false membrane on the surface of the choroid plexus, or on the inner surface of the membrane lining the ventricles, and sometimes with ramollissement of the cerebral matter immediately surrounding them. In the latter case, the affection presents itself in the form of ramollissement or white pulpy de-

generation of the parts affected. The septum lucidum is found perforated by a ragged irregular opening, from the softened portion having fallen out. The fornix has lost its consistence in the same manner; and either has lost its figure, by having fallen down into a soft irregular pulpy mass, or, retaining in some degree its figure, while it is not disturbed, falls asunder when the most gentle attempt is made to raise it. The lower part of the corpus callosum is often affected, though, I think, more rarely than the other parts; and there is frequently a similar degeneration of the eerebral matter immediately surrounding the ventrieles. It is generally, but not always accompanied by effusion in the ventricles of limpid fluid. The substance which is the product of the disease, is of a pure white colour, without fetor, and without the slightest resemblance to purulent matter. It sometimes shows a slightly fibrous texture, but in general is entirely of a soft pulpy consistence without any echesion of parts.

From all that I have observed of this affection, I have no hesitation in considering it as the termination of inflammation in these particular parts. It is an appearance of very frequent occurrence, and seems to hold an important place in the pathology of the brain, and particularly in the pathology of acute hydroeephalus. A most interesting point in the history of it is, that it may be fatal without effusion, and without any other morbid appearance, though with all the symptoms which are usually eonsidered as indicating acute hydrocephalus. The first ease of it which I shall present seems to establish the inflammatory origin of the affection, by showing the perforation of the septum lucidum, surrounded by a ring of inflammation; I shall then show it as the only morbid appearance in eases which were fatal with the usual symptoms of acute disease in the brain; and finally, shall submit a selection of eases, showing its connexion with serous effusion in the various forms of acute hydroeephalus. In regard to the pathology of this affeetion, I may also refer to the facts formerly adduced with respect to the ramollissement in other parts of the brain.

INFLAMMATION OF

Some of them seem to fur deare of the inflammator, enabling us to trace, in the of inflammation, and anoth and the one distinctly pas I shall begin this part of an affection, which see confined to the membrane

§ I.—INFLAMMATION O

Case XLVI.-A cl 1819) had fever, starting bowels of stinate. After his sleep became calm, but the vomiting continu Lis manner, he continu change in the symptoms became affected with squi rapid pulse, and the romi days after the occurrence was preceded by a slight of Inspection.—The ventr oraces of fluid, which we hakes of rollow coagulable of the rentrick was this by dissection: its inner coating of soft yellow septum lucidum appeare gland was distended w lestenor part of the ce alventitions membrane at this place, there was A case considerably si Some of them seem to furnish the most satisfactory evidence of the inflammatory origin of this appearance, by enabling us to trace, in the same mass, one part in a state of inflammation, and another in a state of ramollissement, and the one distinctly passing into the other.

I shall begin this part of the subject by an example of an affection, which seems to be rare,—inflammation

confined to the membrane lining the ventricles.

§ I.—INFLAMMATION OF THE MEMBRANE LINING THE VENTRICLES.

CASE XLVI.—A ehild, aged 10 months (January 1819) had fever, starting and vomiting; tongue white; bowels obstinate. After a week, the symptoms abated; his sleep became calm, and he was at times playful; but the vomiting continued, with frequent pulse. In this manner, he continued without any remarkable change in the symptoms for nine or ten days; he then became affected with squinting and blindness, and very rapid pulse, and the vomiting continued; he died three days after the occurrence of these symptoms, and death was preceded by a slight convulsion.

Inspection.—The ventrieles were distended with six ounces of fluid, which was turbid, and contained in it flakes of yellow eoagulable lymph. The lining membrane of the ventricles was thickened, and was easily separated by dissection: its inner surface was covered by a thick coating of soft yellow adventitious membranc. septum lucidum appeared to be thickened, and the pineal gland was distended with a greenish fluid. On the posterior part of the eerebellum, the arachnoid, to the extent of a crown piece, was thickened and covered by adventitious membrane; betwixt it and the pia mater at this place, there was some deposition of puriform matter.

A ease considerably similar to this in the morbid ap-

our, without fet it, and withn oppurulent matter. It finas texture, but in geneconsistence without any er defelis if cion, I have ritas the termination of inlus paris. It is an appearance and seems to hill an impor-

The Paris

To septim lucidum

and in the gening, from

th. n ii. The forms has

me m paer; and either has

" or Lown into a soft integra-

I in some degree its figure,

i. - asunder when the most

ine it. The lower part of

man ithere is frequently

The land of the land . . . Am st interest. of the morbil appear. ermy out which are usually te aylır cephatus. The ant result spenie to eval lish the Contract to the state of the u ili sur il le (y a ring on some standing

The are and find. C. III JORY The Country of the Co

pearances, is related by Golis,* though the progress was much more rapid, and the symptoms were more violent. A child, aged 14 months, after a restless night, was seized with violent fever and general convulsion, which subsided after topical bleeding, but soon returned with great violence, accompanied by spinal cramps, hemiplegia, blindness, dilated pupil, and distortion of the face; he died the same night, about thirteen hours after the attack. The ventricles contained three ounces of turbid fluid; the inner surface of the ventricles and the surface of the choroid plexus were covered by adventitious membrane; and a similar deposition was found on the corpus callosum, and on the convolutions of the brain. The same appearance is mentioned by this author in several other cases. Inflammation must have existed in the same part in a case formerly described (Case XV.), in which, along with extensive meningitis, there was purulent matter filling the ventricles. Morgagni describes a case in an adult, in which the left ventricle was found full of purulent matter without any disease of the cerebral substance. The characters of this case were fever, apoplectic symptoms, delirium, convulsions, and palsy of the right side. An interesting case is also mentioned by M. Gendrin, in which both lateral ventricles, and the third ventricle, were distended with turbid fluid; their lining membrane thickened, and covered with a thick greenish-yellow matter; and the fourth ventricle was full of pus. The patient was a man 41 years of age, who, after complaining for five days of headach, lassitude and impaired digestion, was seized with fever, with increase of headach and vomiting, followed by drowsiness, delirium, rigidity of the neck, and dilated pupils, and he died comatosc in six days.

INFLAMMATION OF THE (

SIL-THE INFLAMMATORY O

CASE XLVII .- A girl, aged lefore her death, had a violent a by which she was much emaciat weeks it abated considerably, a was better. She was then seiz the belly, vomiting and headach obsinate. The pain of the 30 to 40 in a minute, and ther sive motion of the right arm remarkable change in the syr aly into stupor, and died after about a fortnight from the coma.b. The convulsive motion o continued through the whole co almost to the moment of death from 30 to 40 in a minute until death, when it rose to 70, and o Inspection.—The ventricles of ed with colourless fluid. In the The a ragged integular opening Eth: opening was surrounde Laion. The inner surface of state of light tasenburity, and immediately bounding them, w detaily softened and broken Text of the left hemisphere, a deek-coloured and firmer than Led tal ercles were imbedded of the caput coli and of the a descried on ur, and large pate

^{*} Golis on Hydrocephalus Acutus, Case II.

§ II.—THE INFLAMMATORY ORIGIN OF THE RAMOL-LISSEMENT OF THE SEPTUM LUCIDUM.

Case XLVII .- A girl, aged 6, about two months before her death, had a violent and obstinate diarrhea, by which she was much emaciated; after three or four weeks it abated considerably, and for a fortnight she was better. She was then seized with severe pain of the belly, vomiting and headach, the bowels being rather obstinate. The pain of the head was violent, and chiefly referred to the forehead. The pulse was from 30 to 40 in a minute, and there was a constant convulsive motion of the right arm and leg. Without any remarkable change in the symptoms, she sunk gradually into stupor, and died after two days of perfect coma, about a fortnight from the commencement of the headach. The convulsive motion of the right arm and leg continued through the whole course of the discase, and almost to the moment of death. The pulse continued from 30 to 40 in a minute until a few days before her death, when it rose to 70, and occasionally to 80.

Inspection.—The ventricles of the brain were distended with colourless fluid. In the septum lucidum, there was a ragged irregular opening from loss of substance, and the opening was surrounded by a ring of inflammation. The inner surface of the ventricles was in a state of high vascularity, and the ccrebral substance immediately bounding them, was in some places considerably softened and broken down. In the anterior part of the left hemisphere, a portion of the brain was dark-coloured and firmer than natural, and some small hard tubereles were imbedded in it. The inner surface of the caput coli and of the ascending colon was of a dark-red colour, and large patches were elevated into a

dark-red fungus.

25 Fr. Mile Fiolent.

" a series picht, was

seed conveying which

er, Ica. 18. hemiplegia,

dis etien fithe face; he

in in urs after the ab-

in was found on the corous

most us at the brain. The

this auch r in several

most have existed in the

ir low ribed (lase XV.), in

ning is, if he was puru-

13. s. M.r. mi describes a

the left ventucle was found

in it my isease of the cere-

one is of this case were fever,

and palsy

their with much fluid; their

Land . - e. I with a thick

of the state of the mas

. 3 3 min il years of age,

tre dars of headach, lassi-

. . . : अरहेरी मार्ग दिनहर, मांने

rom and filoned of drawis.

o Deta, 150 Miled pupils.

§ III.—RAMOLLISSEMENT OF THE CENTRAL PARTS FATAL WITHOUT EFFUSION.

Case XLVIII.—A woman, aged 30, (18th Junc, 1816,) was affected with violent pain in the head, which extended across from temple to temple. She was extremely restless, tossing from one side of the bed to the other, owing to the intensity of the pain; eyes slightly suffused, and impatient of light; pupils contracted; the pulse 60, soft and rather weak; tongue white. She was blcd repeatedly, both generally and topically, and used purgatives, cold applications to the head, blistering, &c. For three days she appeared much relieved; the violent pain was removed, and she complained of pain only when she moved her head; pulse from 80 to 90. She was quite sensible, but considerably oppressed and inclined to lie without being disturbed. On the 22d, her speech was affected; she was sensible of it herself, and said that "she felt a difficulty in getting out her words;" pulse 112. (23d and 24th,) Increasing stupor, and at times incoherence, but, when roused, she answered questions distinctly; double vision; made no complaint, but said her head was better. Pulse from 112 to 120. (25th,) Increasing stupor. (26th,) Complete coma and dilated pupil; pulse 108 and of good strength; died in the night.

Inspection.—The fornix and septum lucidum were broken down into a soft white pulpy mass. There was no effusion in the ventricles, and no other disease in

any part of the brain.

CASE XLIX.—A man, aged 36, a blacksmith, had been for some months affected with pectoral complaints, which were considered as phthisical. On the 10th of November, 1818, being suddenly told of the death of his daughter, who died of phthisis, he instantly complained of headach; and, after another day or two, a remarkable change was observed in his temper, which became uncommonly fretful and irascible. He still com-

FATAL WIT

need of constant heada motion; his pulse var state he continued for a of the headach. In the slightly delinous, with a ach continuing very severe and more oppressed, and perfect come of four days. His pectoral symptoms ha commencement of the con not see this patient during the examination of the bo

The two cases now described have occurred to me the segum and forms be modified appearance. The other was elected years of age, join of the belly and your pain in the forehead, which several days; and, after a continuous appearance of age of the belly and your pain in the forehead, which is diated pupil, and distinct of the head; she die disease, without perfect of the head; she die disease without perfect of the h

brain contained but a few extensive ramollissement of senn, Recherches sur 1

plained of eonstant headach, which was much increased by motion; his pulse varied from 70 to 110. In this state he continued for a week, without any alleviation of the headach. In the second week, he began to be slightly delirious, with a tendency to stupor, the headach continuing very severe. He became gradually more and more oppressed, and at last comatose; and, after perfect coma of four days' continuance, died on the 27th. His peetoral symptoms had entirely subsided after the commencement of the complaints in his head. I did not see this patient during his life, but was present at the examination of the body.

Inspection.—The membranes of the brain were very vaseular. There was no effusion in the ventrieles beyond the usual quantity. The septum lucidum was much broken down, and a large opening was formed through the centre of it. The fornix was reduced to a soft white mass, which could not be raised. There was no other morbid appearance in any part of the brain. The lungs were extensively tubercular, and in some

places suppurated.

7 1

1 4 1

- 428d 30. 1 th June,

" at thin the lead, which

to temp. s. She was ex-

months it the bel to the

in the commeted; the

Tern y and topically, and

. P T P : L ich relieved :

. . and she can sined of

1. - ali pulse fr m 80 to

. oppressed

o ten a will rivin getting

2 2.1 and 24th Increase

perence, but, when roused,

:: dr: double rision; made

Lid wis letter. Pulse

lact. May super. (26th.)

dr Filitase his and of

- - | willing decipied were

There was

Les, Led L. Class Weether in

ni i ib to ib t

The two cases now described are the only examples which have occurred to me, of the ramollissement of the septum and fornix being fatal without any other morbid appearance. The only cases in which I find it taken notice of by other writers are, one by Senn and one by Lallemand. In the ease of M. Senn,* the patient was eleven years of age. After some days of fever, with pain of the belly and vomiting, she complained of violent pain in the forehead, which was constant and severe for several days; and, after a day or two, was accompanied by dilated pupil, and distortion of the eyes upwards. This was followed by delirium and a spasmodic retraction of the head; she died on the eighteenth day of the disease, without perfect coma. The ventricles of the brain contained but a few drops of fluid. There was extensive ramollissement of the corpus eallosum, septum

^{*} Senn, Recherches sur la Meningite Aigue des Enfans, Case VIII.

lucidum, and fornix, without any change of colour of the parts. The vessels of the membranes were distended with blood; there was no other morbid appearance in any part of the brain. The patient of M. Lallemand* was a woman of 40 years of age, who died after an illness of about fourteen days; the principal symptoms were, fever with violent delirium, and convulsive movements. There was extreme loquacity for some days, afterwards somnolenee and contraction of the limbs, with extreme sinking. The brain was found entirely sound, with the exception of the corpus callosum and fornix, which were transformed into a species of white pulp.

§ IV.—RAMOLLISSEMENT OF THE CENTRAL PARTS COMBINED WITH SEROUS EFFUSION, CONSTITUTING THE MOST COMMON FORM OF ACUTE HYDROCE-PHALUS.

Case L.—A boy, aged 12, (August, 1818,) had been for several weeks observed to be languid and declining in strength, with some cough and pain in his breast. A fortnight before death, he began to complain of his head, and was then first confined to bed. After a week, when he was first seen by a medical man, he still complained much of his head, was oppressed, and answered questions slowly and heavily; had some diarrhæa and frequent pulse. The oppression increased, and four days before his death he lost his speech and the power of the right side. This was followed by blindness and perfect coma, and he died about the 14th day from the commencement of the affection of the head, the pulse having continued uniformly frequent through the whole course of the disease.

Inspection.—All the ventricles were distended with fluid; the septum and fornix were so completely broken down, that the two lateral ventricles and the third ven-

* M. Lallemand, Recherches sur l'Encephale, tome i. p. 184.

WITH EFFECTION, OR

the seemed to form one tire ramellissement of the amerior part, so that the rentricles extended within part of the brain.

Cast LI.—A boy, at ferer, and headach, which back part of the head; an After six or seven days, natural standard. The him remarkable symptom till when he fell into a gene whole body. He died to three hours about the had been in this case squire sensible till the turn.

Inspection.—The vent and there was extensive and forms, and of the ce rounding the ventricles.

Case LH.—A strong September, 1814.) was extreme resilessness and pulse 60. He had been for a week, but had been for the former days from bloodletting, and the placed with activity.

(19th and 20th.) Name a good deal of delays and 22d.) Lee

64. Co. 25th.) A tendency

tricle seemed to form one cavity; there was also extensive ramollissement of the cerebral substance on the anterior part, so that the cavity thus formed by the ventricles extended within half an inch of the anterior part of the brain.

Case LI.—A boy, aged 7, (October, 1818,) had fever, and headach, which was referred chiefly to the back part of the head; and the bowels were obstinate. After six or seven days, the pulse came down to the natural standard. The headach continued without any remarkable symptom till a few hours before his death, when he fell into a general state of tonic spasm of the whole body. He died after continuing in this state two or three hours about the 14th day of the disease. There had been in this case no coma, but he had continued quite sensible till the attack of the convulsive affection.

Inspection.—The ventricles were distended with fluid, and there was extensive ramollissement of the septum and fornix, and of the cerebral matter immediately surrounding the ventricles.

Case LII.—A strong young man, aged 20, (18th September, 1814.) was affected with violent headach, extreme restlessness and some delirium; face flushed; pulse 60. He had been unwell so as to keep the house for a week, but had been only occasionally in bed; the symptoms had been much increased for two days; pulse on the former days from 80 to 90. Large and repeated bloodletting, and the other usual remedies, were employed with activity.

(19th and 20th.) No improvement; violent headach, and a good deal of delirium; pulse from 75 to 80.

(21st and 22d,) Less delirium; pulse 80.

(23d and 24th,) Continued better; pulse from 80 to 84.

(25th,) A tendency to stupor; began not to know those about him.

. TET MON. TONSTITUTING TITE HYDROCE.

7 17 17 1 1 1 of

The step distented

. . this is ableaunce in

1 1. 10 lied after an

.. the billion of brown

n of the limbs,

and entirely

in a law a states of white

and deconstruct and pain in his and a ferminal contains

. J. A. Let, 1812 Jul

nd fat f The thing is the

(27th,) Perfect coma, in which he lay for four days, and then died. His pulse had continued from 75 to 84.

Inspection.—Much fluid in the ventricles, and a good deal found in the base of the skull. The fornix was broken down into a shapeless mass of white pulpy matter. From similar destruction a large opening had been formed in the septum lucidum, and there was also considerable softening of the eerobral matter immediately surrounding the lateral ventricles. There was a deposition of false membrane on the upper surface of the cerebellum.

Case LIII.—A man, aged 21, (3d Sept. 1816,) was affected with violent headach, impatience of light, and frequent vomiting; had an oppressed look, with a fixed expression of his cyes; pulse 70 and strong; had been ill six days; and for three days had vomited almost every thing he had taken. After bloodletting and the other usual remedies, his headach was very much relieved, and he was free from vomiting for two days. On the 7th, he was free from headach, and his look was natural; but his pulse had fallen to 48, and he had oceasionally double vision. On the 9th, he was sitting up and dressed, his pulse 60. He was free from headach; tongue clean, and he had some appetite, but the double vision was constant.

(10th,) Vision natural, in other respects as before.

(11th,) Pulse 96; made no complaint, but his look was vacant, and the pupils were dilated; there had been some delirium in the night.

(12th,) Pulse 96; considerable delirium, vision na-

tural.

(13th,) Increasing stupor. (14th,) Perfect coma,

pulse 120. Died on the 15th.

Inspection.—All the ventricles were distended with fluid. The fornix was broken down into a soft pulpy mass which could not be raised. The other parts of the brain were healthy.

LASE LIV.—A gentleman, age ome time affected with o ugh an tres. In the beginning of Decen to complain of headach; he was I the contrary, walked in one day a nine miles after the headach begut creased gradually, but he was not the 7th day. From the 7th to th caffeed chiefly to bed, complaining ness and giddiness, and occasional durs there was headach; on others Monday the loth, he was up at burs, but had double vision. ppressed and much disposed to sl continued. I saw him for the f he was then almost entirely com the pulse below 60. On the 18t he revived considerably, and ans thedy; squinting and double vis dated pupil; he made no complai the 19th, the Julse began to rise; a deal of incoherent talking. On t constant incoherent talking, with and he died in the night. From the

ACTTE HYDROCEPHA

the head symptoms, his pectoral arely disappeared.

Interest in.—There was partial rassium lacidum and of both the third tabercular, and there were several ing a bloody fluid.

Before learing this subject, it is reactive in the symptoms, and should ages and under various circular the symptoms.

Ase LV.—Solden allack of contact boy, aged 6, had been for

Case LIV.—A gentleman, aged 21, had been for some time affected with cough and occasional hæmoptysis. In the beginning of December 1823, he began to complain of headach; he was not confined, but, on the contrary, walked in one day a distance of eight or ninc miles after the headach began. The headach encreased gradually, but he was not confined till about the 7th day. From the 7th to the 14th day, he was confined chiefly to bed, complaining principally of sickness and giddiness, and oceasional vomiting. On some days there was headach; on others, little or none. On Monday the 15th, he was up and dressed for some hours, but had double vision. On the 16th, he was oppressed and much disposed to sleep; the double vision continued. I saw him for the first time on the 17th; he was then almost entirely comatose, with squinting, the pulse below 60. On the 18th, after free purging, he revived considerably, and answered questions distinctly; squinting and double vision continued, with dilated pupil; he made no complaint of his head. On the 19th, the pulse began to rise; and there was a good deal of ineohercnt talking. On the 20th, there was constant incoherent talking, with a small rapid pulse, and he died in the night. From the commencement of the head symptoms, his peetoral complaints had entirely disappeared.

Inspection.—There was partial ramollissement of the septum lucidum and of both the thalami; the ventricles were distended with fluid; the lungs were extensively tubercular, and there were several small cavities contain-

ing a bloody fluid.

are remained a stall a good

in the fortix was

हर किया है है है है है है है

na, en ceringuidicen

. and the Te was also con-

-1"er immedinely

: There was a depo-

e we to suffer it the

ime is or of light, and

" I'm and the

- him was your much re-न्या रहत आजू हेता हुए। विहा

ech, and his lisk was to of the and be had

Total White Was sitting

He was tree from Local

and a morale, but the

April 18 th bill

Before leaving this subject, it may be right to add a few cases illustrative of some of the most important varieties in the symptoms, and showing the disease at various ages and under various eireumstances.

Case LV .- Sudden attack of coma without previous headach—the pupils dilating on the admission of light.— A stout boy, aged 6, had been for several days feverish and complaining of pain in his belly. After the operation of laxative medicine, his pulse came down to the natural standard; he continued languid and listless, but made no complaint of any uneasiness, and had never been heard to complain of headach. About the 5th or 6th day of his illness, 10th July, 1816, without any farther warning, he was found in the morning in a state of perfect coma, speechless, and his pupils much dilated; pulse 120. He continued in this state of perfect coma, with frequent convulsive motions of the left arm and leg, for six days, and then died, his pulse having continued steadily at 120 and upwards. On the 12th and 13th, being the 9th and 10th days of the disease, the pupils, which were partially dilated, were distinctly observed to dilate farther upon the admission of light.

Inspection.—The ventricles contained about four ounces of fluid. There was extensive ramollissement of the septum and fornix, and of the eerebral substance immediately surrounding the ventricles; this was most

remarkable on the left side.

Case LVI .- Two distinct periods of coma .- A boy, aged 13, (13th June, 1822,) had slight headach, with some vomiting and fever. After four days, the headach increased and the pulse fell to 60.—5th day, Coma. He came out of the coma on the following day, and the only prominent symptom was remarkable obstinacy of his bowels, which was only got the better of after two days by repeated dozes of eroton oil; he then seemed much relieved, made very little complaint of his head, was quite free from stupor, and the pulse was natural. On the following day, he complained rather more of his head, then relapsed into coma, and died on the 12th day after some convulsion.

Inspection.—The ventricles were distended with fluid, and there was extensive ramollissement of the fornix and septum, and of the lower part of the corpus eallosum.

CASE LVII.—Hydrocephalus with Hemiplegia.—A girl, aged 3, after being three days languid and complain-

ing to me headach and po cuiped to bed on the 4th Dessed, the pulse 100; the chiefly to the right side of the usual remedies were empl change in the symptoms. (t ok place in the left arm at ins time entirely motionless they were moved by conviin a dezing state, with di which happened on the 25 Inspecti 1.—The ventr

ACT. HYDI

In the substance of the ri ventricle, there was a concomplete ramollissement; reciv. there was a long and bral substance in a state of

Case LVIII. - In an adu and talal after the coma ha 30, about the 5th June, 185 Lique during the flow of t magrely. After this, she the remarkable languid, Fine was natural; the co I a her appearance had exof abendien of mind than in this manner the affection I saw her on the lith; s res, alrupt and absent, b to: complained of slight h On the 16th, she was mu in a state of nearly perf the 16th. On the 10th, che came out of the co to every thing, and no alar

tied, and sometimes de

ing of some headach and pain in the bowels, was first confined to bed on the 4th June, 1822. She was oppressed, the pulse 100: there was some vomiting, and she complained of headach, which seemed to be referred chiefly to the right side of the head. For a week the usual remedies were employed, and there was little change in the symptoms. On the 13th, complete palsy took place in the left arm and leg, which continued from this time entirely motionless, except at one time when they were moved by convulsion. After this, she fell into a dozing state, with dilated pupil and slow pulse; but complete coma took place only two days before death, which happened on the 22d.

Inspection.—The ventricles were distended with fluid. In the substance of the right hemisphere, very near the ventricle, there was a considerable portion in a state of complete ramollissement; and, contiguous to this, anteriorly, there was a long and narrow portion of the cerebral substance in a state of remarkable induration.

Case LVIII.—In an adult with very obscure symptoms and fatal after the coma had disappeared. A lady, aged 30, about the 5th June, 1824, was exposed to cold and fatigue during the flow of the menses, which ceased prematurely. After this, she was for some days observed to be remarkably languid, dull, and depressed. pulse was natural; she complained of slight headach, but her appearance had excited an apprehension rather of abcreation of mind than of any bodily complaint; and in this manner the affection went on for 9 or 10 days. I saw her on the 15th; she was then odd in her manner, abrupt and absent, but quite sensible when spoken to; complained of slight headach: pulse a little frequent. On the 16th, she was much oppressed, and on the 17th, in a state of nearly perfect coma, which continued on the 18th. On the 19th, after free purging with croton oil, she came out of the coma entirely, was quite sensible to every thing, and no alarming symptom remained, except that she sometimes saw objects remarkably distorted, and sometimes double. At other times, her

d'un to the

an d'un to the

an d'un to the

in ss. I had never

at he bin or

7. I III, without any

he mair g in a state

he prive come,

he of the best arm and

he of the best arm and

he of the lith and

he is the disesse, the

tener error assement of the cereoral substance

hemiach, with the beadach with the beadach with the beadach with the bally in the bally in the ball was a sent I mach the ball was a sent I make the ball was a sent I make the ball was a sent I make the ball with th

vision was quite natural; the pulse was frequent, and the tongue loaded. In this state she continued for several days; she then complained again of headach; there was oceasional incoherence: the sight was more indistinct, and the pupil dilated: and the pulse was increasing in frequency. The pulse continued to rise, with much incoherent talking, and sinking of strength; and she died on the 25th, without coma.

Inspection.—The ventricles were distended with fluid, and there was extensive ramollissement of the septum and fornix. There was no other morbid appearance.

Case LIX.—Remarkable remissions and apparent convalescence. A boy, aged 7, (20th October, 1824,) complained of pain in the back of his head, with fever and some vomiting. Topical bleeding, purgatives, &c. were employed, and, after being an object of some anxiety for several days, (a brother having a short time before died of an affection of the brain,) he gradually improved, and on the 27th and 28th, was free from complaint, and going about the house apparently in his usual health. On the evening of the 28th, he was suddenly seized with violent convulsion, which returned through the night every two hours, leaving him in the intervals in a state of eoma; the pupils dilated, and insensible. On the 29th, he was nearly comatose the whole day, the pulse weak, and varying in frequency from 60 to 120. General and topical bleeding, purgatives, &c. had been employed. (30th,) Beeame quite sensible; the eye natural; pulse still frequent. He complained slightly of the back of his head, for which more topical bleeding was employed, with purgatives He then improved progressively; the pulse was from 80 to 90: and he was free from complaint, except that the bowels were torpid and the stools unhealthy, and that the pupil was large, and contracted slowly on the admission of light. In this state he continued several days, when the convulsion returned with greater severity five or six times, leaving him as before in a state of coma. From this he recovered partially, but sunk graACCITE HIDROCEL ALTS.

dand, and died in a few days. For the left arm and leg.

In perion.—There was extensive effectively lamina of the septum lucidum when lamina of the septum lucidum when lamina and the left lamina was in the in its posterior half; there was no performance.

An interesting modification of this which supervenes upon other disease chomic nature, especially affections of the remarkable circumstance in these pectoral symptoms generally cease affects of the symptoms in the head, ing cases will illustrate the principal feature.

Case LX.—An ingenious artist, ag affected for some years with cough ar rt ch was decidedly purulent; but, the find to the house, he was able to atten wan engrater. In the beginning of Je one day considerably agreated in the di beings in which he thought himself theasness in his head, and soon after h very indistinct. The headach increase fer in the left side and back of the ho extended to the upper part of the neck tinced much impaired; the pulse fro tend remedies were employed, with p er lenent. The ease was drawn or weeks, without any remarkable change Et sale gradually into coma, and d confiants having subsided as those Insection.—There was extensive eff The return. the selimination forms. of and

. . . e continued fr

laga i headach;

... The said was made

d and the dee was in-

se confinued to rise,

in straint of strength;

rojet nl I vidi Hid.

in real the so turn . I . I . I al predative.

sons and apparent

as of his head, with fever

Feating, ougatives &c.

as B jone ift De DZ-

- Lorga dan tine

at Litu. wis frie from

e Louse apre pint y in his of the Couche was suf-

.... p. which returned

one learned that in the

in my die,

I (Inc. P. ame quite

mitter H. com.

opin paring He The property of the

. . I san on the ad-

Stall of the ... I Lift d. I. or will dually, and died in a few days. For two or three days before his death, there appeared to be considerable palsy of the left arm and leg.

Inspection.—There was extensive effusion in the ventrieles, and extensive ramollissement of the fornix. The right lamina of the septum lueidum was in a state of ramollissement at the anterior part, occupying about the half of it; and the left lamina was in the same condition in its posterior half; there was no perforation.

An interesting modification of this affection is that which supervenes upon other diseases, chiefly of a chronic nature, especially affections of the lungs; and the remarkable eireumstance in these eases is, that the pectoral symptoms generally eease after the commencement of the symptoms in the head. The three following eases will illustrate the principal forms of this affection.

Case LX.—An ingenious artist, aged 30, had been affected for some years with cough and expectoration, which was decidedly purulent; but, though much confined to the house, he was able to attend to his business as an engraver. In the beginning of June, 1819, being one day considerably agitated in the discussion of some business in which he thought himself ill used, he felt uneasiness in his head, and soon after his speech became very indistinct. The headach increased, and was chiefly felt in the left side and back of the head, and the pain extended to the upper part of the neek; his speech continued much impaired; the pulse from 90 to 96. The usual remedies were employed, with partial and temporary benefit. The case was drawn out to nearly three weeks, without any remarkable change in the symptoms. He sunk gradually into coma, and died; the pectoral complaints having subsided as those in the head advanced.

Inspection.—There was extensive effusion in the ventrieles of the brain, and complete destruction by ramollissement of the septum lucidum, fornix, part of the corpus eallosum, and the ecrebral matter bounding the ventricles. In the upper part of each lobe of the lungs, there was a portion the size of a small orange in a state of great induration, and internally presenting an irregular mass of ulceration; the lungs in other respects were healthy.

Case LXI.—A gentleman, aged 24, had been affected for about eight months with eough and expectoration. In August, 1824, he was seized with copious hæmoptysis, and had frequent attacks of it during August and September. In October this eeased, but the eough eontinued severe, with copious purulent expectoration and great loss of flesh and strength. In the end of November, he began to complain of headach, which continued from this time to affect him considerably, accompanied by oceasional vomiting; the eough and expectoration continuing. From this time he became much less able for exertion than formerly, but no remarkable change was observed in the symptoms till the first week of January, when one evening he suddenly lost his speech. He recovered it again next day, but complained of headach, and was listless and languid. On the third day he lost his speech again, and recovered it on the 4th. He lost it again on the 5th, and on the 6th recovered it. From this time his speech continued tolerably distinct, but he gradually sunk into a kind of fatuous state, with oceasional paroxysms of high delirium, and repeated convulsive affections of the face and upper extremities. The pulse continued nearly natural; the expression of the eountenance was remarkably vacant, and he still frequently complained of his head. He thus gradually sunk into eoma, and died in about three weeks from the time when he first lost his speech. From the commencement of this attack his eough eeased entirely, until a few days before his death, when it returned in a very slight degree.

Inspection.—There was considerable effusion in the ventricles, and extensive ramollissement of the septum, fornix, and adjoining parts. Along the base of the brain, there was an extensive deposition of yellow ad-

CCCTRRING IN PHINISICAL TECHNOLOGY membrane of considerable was extensive tubercular disease it may with numerous large vomices

Case LXII.—A lady, aged 28. menths in winter 1823-24 affected detable expectoration, some uneagreat loss of flesh and strength, an come to Edinburgh about the 20th crash then subsided remarkably, w ber friends to the change of air, and mely ceased. She then continued for the next three days she was d absent and low-spirited, and com was dim. She was partly in bed, tural. On the 31st, the pulse beg was considerable incoherent talking and time on the following day, the was then absent, vacant, and anxio Bute incoherently, but understood w there was double vision and slight very frequent. (2d,) Sight seem pepel dilated, much wild talking at those about her, and answered dis to: julse rapid and feeble,—died j

I spection.—The ventricles of the ed with a large quantity of fluid, sive ramolissement of the septum considerable deposition of coaguing their structure, opaque state. The lungs chance indiannation of the ple

his unnecessary to multiply carefully variety in the phenome

ventitious membrane of considerable thickness. was extensive tubercular disease in both lobes of the lungs, with numerous large vomicæ.

n. 1: 124.101' ein affected

Trong. It's execut ration.

... I with copious Lamon-

in the during August and

the sien

on an attagest rain and

the end of Novem-

n and m 'r accompanied

in the last exception

the state of the sea able

Are well of Jan-

orthograph. He

- 'ye'r raned f by dath.

. The Little belst

with the fill. He lat

resident he

ा १०७ % वर्षाः, पानि १८०३-

CASE LXII.—A lady, aged 28, had been for some months in winter 1823-24 affected with cough, considerable expectoration, some uneasiness in the ehest, great loss of flesh and strength, and quick pulse. She eame to Edinburgh about the 20th of May 1824; the eough then subsided remarkably, which was aseribed by her friends to the change of air, and in a few days it entirely eeased. She then continued pretty well till about the 27th, when she began to complain of headach, and for the next three days she was dull and silent, seemed absent and low-spirited, and complained that her sight was dim. She was partly in bed, but her pulse was natural. On the 31st, the pulse began to rise, and there was eonsiderable incoherent talking. I saw her for the first time on the following day, the 1st of June; her look was then absent, vacant, and anxious, and she talked a little incoherently, but understood what was said to her; there was double vision and slight squinting, the pulse very frequent. (2d,) Sight seemed much impaired, pupil dilated, much wild talking at times, but she knew those about her, and answered distinctly when spoken to; pulse rapid and feeble,—died in the night without coma.

Inspection.—The ventricles of the brain were distended with a large quantity of fluid, and there was extensive ramollissement of the septum, and all the central parts. About and above the optic nerves, there was a considerable deposition of coagulable lymph in a firm, dense, opaque state. The lungs were tolerably healthy in their structure, but there were marks of extensive ehronic inflammation of the pleura on the right side, with considerable deposition of coagulable lymph.

It is unnecessary to multiply cases which present no particular variety in the phenomena; those which have been described will probably seem sufficient to illustrate the principal forms of this affection, and at the same

hydreghalus which present in the train; and, with regit think it right to add, that they task kind which I find among taskic hydrecephalus. It will tit the disease in its most ins and present a remarkable continue in some of the former cas

CASES OF SIMPLE

time to exemplify some of the most remarkable varieties in the symptoms. From a fair and eandid review of the whole subject, I think we can have little hesitation in concluding, that this is the ordinary form of the disease, which is commonly called acute hydrocephalus; that it is originally an inflammatory affection, chiefly seated in the substance of the central parts of the brain; that it generally terminates by ramollissement of these parts, combined with serous effusion in the ventricles; and that it may be fatal by the ramollissement alone, even of small extent, but with all the symptoms which are commonly considered as characteristic of acute hydrocephalus. The eases likewise exemplify various important varieties in the symptoms. We have seen in some of them, perfect come of long continuance without any effusion; and in others, extensive effusion without any degree of eoma. We have seen again the coma entirely removed, and yet the disease go on to its fatal termination. We have seen every variety in the state of the pulse, of the vision, and of the intellectual functions; and we have seen the disease run its eourse without any complaint of pain or any symptom indicative of danger, until the patient was unexpectedly found in a state of profound eoma. These and many other varietics, presented by the cases which have been described, show us the danger of being guided by system in our diagnosis of affections of the brain, and the necessity that there still is for extensive and eareful observation of facts in regard to this class of diseases.

{ V.-CASES OF SI

Cast LXIII .- A bor, a slight Leadach, foul tongue, 1 stor: julse from 96 to 100. ness was passed with these one dy better and another re was structimes gone for a gr never severe. Towards the these appeared to be a want startoms, the headach being g tent than accorded with the de on the 13th and 14th days, the the appearance of the mildest and was considered in that lig first emine the second the second hereach had become more seve stml' ms had been diminish the pulse sunk rather suddenly was increased. On the 10th d wisten. On the 17th, ther Emning: the pulse below the the late, the pulse hegan to r minished. On the 19th and 5 inteligent, tengue clean, some the 1011 Millor day, his appeara te that such gradually 1110 co died about the 30th day of the

The form of the disease which has now been described, I conceive to be the more common modification of acute hydrocephalus; but it is to be kept in mind that serous effusion takes place in the brain under other forms. In some of these it is connected with inflammatory affections of other parts of the brain or of the membranes; but it may take place without exhibiting any other appearance, excepting the simple effusion. As a contrast to the cases now described, I shall add two examples of

hydrocephalus which presented simply serous effusion in the ventricles, without any other morbid appearance in the brain; and, with regard to these two cases, I think it right to add, that they are the only examples of this kind which I find among my notes of cases of idiopathic hydrocephalus. It will be seen that they exhibit the disease in its most insidious and chronic form, and present a remarkable contrast to the active symptoms in some of the former eases.

§ V.—Cases of simple effusion.

CASE LXIII.—A boy, aged 9, was affected with slight headach, foul tongue, bad appetite, and disturbed sleep; pulse from 96 to 100. The first week of his illness was passed with these slight symptoms; he was one day better and another rather worse; his headach was sometimes gone for a great part of the day, and never severe. Towards the end of the second week, there appeared to be a want of correspondence in the symptoms, the headach being greater and more permanent than accorded with the degree of fever: but, even on the 13th and 14th days, the complaint had still much the appearance of the mildest form of continued fever, and was considered in that light by a physician of the first eminence. During the second week, however, the headach had become more severe, while the other febrile symptoms had been diminishing. On the 15th day, the pulse sunk rather suddenly to 70; and the headach was increased. On the 16th day there was a slight convulsion. On the 17th, there was coma, with some squinting; the pulse below the natural standard. On the 18th, the pulse began to rise, and the coma was diminished. On the 19th and 20th, he was distinct and intelligent, tougue clean, some appetite, pulse 96. On the following day, his appearance was less favourable; he then sunk gradually into coma, with squinting, and died about the 30th day of the disease. The pulse had

on the state state. Action, and at the same ... trimarkable varieties di an and dreview of the in have the besitation in Ticar i In of the disease, are hydrocephalus; that it accorion, chiefly seated in assement of these parts, n in the ventricles; and and market and even ev mplify various important We have seen in some of e min lance without any eferie efusion virbout any 13 ar .1 'De coma entirely s is to its tatal terminrestant in the state of the I the intellectual functions; DEPTH AS CUTSE Without any Ton in the fire of darger,

many fact rathers, premany fact rathers, prenative meressive that there
a level that there
and the necessive that there
are the command of facts in

Pic and the man an

risen to 120, and in the last week there had been some

CASES OF MMPLE

slight return of convulsion.

Inspection.—All the ventricles of the brain were found distended with clear serous fluid; there was no other morbid appearance, except considerable turgidity of vessels on the surface of the brain.

Case LXIV.—A gentleman, aged 24, was affected

Case LXV.—A man, aged was standing on a cart at Leith
moving forward, he lost his ball
ear, striking his head upon the
time no inconvenience, and for a
business, but complained freque
was then confined to the house
ach, with vomiting, and slight
he became oppressed, then co
end of the second week.

with slight headach, and unusual listlessness and inactivity. He ascribed the complaint to cold, and for the. first week continued to attend to his business. second week, he had considerable headach, shivering, debility, bad appetite, foul tongue, and disturbed sleep, pulse about 112. Towards the end of this week, his friends observed once or twice a slight and peculiar forgetfulness. In the third week his pulse eame down rapidly to 72; his tongue became clean; he made little or no complaint of his head, but there was oceasionally a degree of incoherence, which was slight and transient, and a singular forgetfulness on particular subjects, which was observed by his friends, but did not appear in his intercourse with his medical attendants. The pulse continued slow for two days, and then rose rapidly to 130, with increase of delirium. After a few days more, the delirium again subsided, and great hopes were entertained of his recovery; but the delirium soon returned, and was rapidly followed by blindness, coma, and He died about the middle of the fourth week of his illness. I did not see this patient during his life,

In rection.—All the ventricl distended with serous fluid, was appearance.

but was present at the examination of the body.

Inspection.—All the ventrieles of the brain were found distended with clear serous fluid, without any other morbid appearance.

Case LXVI.—A girl, aged 1 street her head with some violent that time she complained of head field, nor was her health otherweeks after the accident, when I have vomiting soon subsided, but takes or six days, and then died In the source of the source of

The pathology of eases of this kind is perhaps the more obscure than that of the eases formerly referred to; but that, in these eases likewise, the effusion arises from a low degree of inflammatory action in the brain, is probable from the fact, that similar appearances are occa-

In journ.—All the ventricles appearance, with serous fluid, will

A general review of this implead to some results of much pratical legs of affections of the brain seems of the brain facts on record, which ferming strong the legislation having resulted to gren and

this of the or in were found in the rest other

e tur ling of

in. ig 1 24, was affected

to tangue, and disturbed sleep,

1 5 the end of this week, his

! " a sight and peculiar for-

, " a his pulse came down ra-

in the new grasionally And is off and transient,

n ss of utility spligets, which

the fill not appear in his

The pulse

. d ug man tose tabigh to

Arerates for more

in all man land were en-

num : a return.

to Table of the fourth week

instruction during his life

er in a limb body. And whom is

sionally met with in those instances in which the disease supervenes upon injuries of the head, as in the following eases.

Case LXV.—A man, aged 40, of a serofulous habit, was standing on a eart at Leith races, when the horse moving forward, he lost his balance and fell out of the eart, striking his head upon the sand. He felt at the time no inconvenience, and for a week attended to his business, but complained frequently of headach. He was then confined to the house from increase of headach, with vomiting, and slight fever; after a few days, he became oppressed, then comatose, and died at the end of the second week.

Inspection.—All the ventrieles of the brain were found distended with serous fluid, without any other morbid appearance.

Case LXVI.—A girl, aged 13, fell from a swing, and struck her head with some violence on the ground. From that time she complained of headach, but was not confined, nor was her health otherwise affected, until six weeks after the accident, when her headach increased, and was accompanied by vomiting and frequent pulse. The vomiting soon subsided, but was followed by slight delirium, and this by coma. She lay in a state of coma for five or six days, and then died, two months after the fall.

Inspection.—All the ventricles of the brain were found distended with serous fluid, without any other morbid appearanee.

A general review of this important subject seems to lead to some results of much practical importance in the pathology of affections of the brain, particularly in regard to that class of them which terminate by effusion. There are many facts on record, which show us the presence of fluid in the krain in large quantity, without any alarming symptom having resulted from it. Morgagni found eight ounces in a man who died suddenly of suffication

in an advanced stage of pneumonia; and Dr. Heberden found the same quantity in a man who died suddenly, after being weakened by a febrile attack, without any symptom of an affection of the brain. It is therefore not the mere presence of a certain quantity of fluid in the brain, that gives rise to the symptoms of hydrocephalus; and, on the other hand, we have seen a disease go through all the usual symptoms of hydrocephalus, and terminate fatally without any effusion. The fair conclusion from these facts appears to be, that the prominent symptoms in these cases are not the result of the effusion, but of that disease of the brain of which the effusion is one of the terminations. From a variety of facts which have been adduced, there seems little reason to doubt that this disease is of an inflammatory naturc. If these conclusions shall be considered as well founded, it will follow, that our practice ought to be directed principally to subduing the inflammation at its earliest period, and preventing it from passing into effusion, and particularly from passing into ramollissement, which we have seen to be a fatal termination of the disease, even though of small extent and without any effusion. termination, I think, we have every reason to consider as the result most to be dreaded in this class of the inflammatory diseases of the brain; for in regard to the mere effusion, were the parts otherwise in a healthy state, there does not seem to be any very satisfactory reason for considering it as a hopeless affection. In other words, I mean to submit, that we have no good reason for doubting the possibility of serous fluid being absorbed from the ventricles of the brain. We are warranted in this supposition, both by the analogy of other serous cavities, and by what we actually see take place in the brain itself. In the other serous cavities, we have every reason to believe, that there is constantly going on an absorption of the old fluid, and a deposition of new fluid in its place; and we see them in a state of disease, relieve themselves by an increased absorption from an excess of fluid which has been deposited. The ventricles of the brain are unquestionably to be considered as seCENERAL REFIER (

carines; and there seen considering them as differing them as differing the carines of the same kit apparatus may be by which the language of the actual exist brain, we have the most satisfaction, we have the most satisfaction the rentricles, and is sance of the brain. Upon the sufficient ground for receiving in regard to this class of affects

lst, That in the ordinary of coma and other symptoms considered as the direct effect merbid condition of the brathe consequence.

24. That we have no certa upon as indicating the present winess of the pulse followe double vision, dilated pupil.

Perfect coma, we have seen emain.

At That all these symptoms with a state of the brain, which assume the action while the disease treatment, and while by such decision at an early period, we resing us progress in a consist in particular to the great of progness in particular to the more they appropriate inflammation, our progression of them, the period for active inflammation, the period for active of the disease.

These Principles bear immediate cases have recovered who

rous cavities; and there seems to be no good reason for considering them as differing in their functions from the other cavities of the same kind, whatever the particular apparatus may be by which the function is carried ou. In regard to the actual existence of absorption in the brain, we have the most satisfactory proof, in the gradual disappearance of coagula of blood, both from the surface and from the ventricles, and from cavities in the substance of the brain. Upon the whole, I think we have sufficient ground for receiving the following conclusions in regard to this class of affections of the head.

1st, That in the ordinary cases of hydrocephalus, the coma and other symptoms attending it are not to be considered as the direct effect of the effusion, but of that morbid condition of the brain of which the effusion is

the consequence.

Topper of Tallibergen Cod suldenly,

The day

.. or main of durin

' t n. . if hydroce.

r disease

rotte of hydrocephalus.

is musion. The fair

I and it is that the pro-

1. A starp scames little reason

an ind a motory nature.

tring the light effusion, and

and the disease, even

· late ur any effusion. This

TIT 1 SON to consider in the class of the in-

of the firm regard to the

ear's court he in a healthy . Tr. 1 - apr rer satisfactor

is to the manual reason

to the server of the less in the

is the operet

The state of the office of a

ren mi

n mot an es

2d, That we have no certain mark which we can rely upon as indicating the presence of effusion in the brain. Slowness of the pulse followed by frequency, squinting, double vision, dilated pupil, paralytic symptoms, and perfect coma, we have seen may exist without any effusion.

3d, That all these symptoms may exist in connexion with a state of the brain, which is active, or simply inflammatory, while the disease is the subject of active treatment, and while by such treatment, adopted with decision at an early period, we have the prospect of arresting its progress in a considerable proportion of cases. The ground of prognosis in particular cases depends perhaps in a great measure upon the activity of the symptoms. The more they approach to the character of active inflammation, our prospect of cutting them short will be the greater; and the more they partake of the low scrofulous inflammation, it will be the less. of them, the period for active practice is short, the irremediable mischief being probably done at an early period of the discase.

These principles bear immediately upon the question, Has hydrocephalus been cured? There is no doubt that many cases have recovered, which exhibited all the usual symptoms of it, several examples of which will be mentioned in the sequel. Such cases have by some been confidently brought forward as examples of hydrocephalus cured, while others have only considered them as remarkable from their singular resemblance to that disease. If the principles now referred to be admitted, we shall see reason to believe, that we have no certain rule by which we can decide upon the presence of effusion in the brain; but that all the symptoms usually attending it exist in connexion with an inflammatory condition of the brain, which, if allowed to go on, would probably lead to effusion, but which, if treated with decision in its early stage, may, in a certain proportion of cases, be treated with success. Whether the fluid can be absorbed, or the disease cured, after effusion has taken place, must remain matter of conjecture; but, from the facts which have been adduced, we have every reason to believe, that, in the ordinary eases of hydrocephalus. the removal of the fluid, if it did take place, would in no respect improve the situation of the patient, -because there would still remain that deep-seated disease of the central parts of the brain, which accompanies the effusion in so large a proportion of cases, and which we have seen may be fatal without any effusion, yet with all the usual symptoms of hydroeephalus.

SECTION VII.

OF THE CAUSES OF THE INFLAMMATORY AFFECTIONS OF THE BRAIN.

In a great proportion of the cases of the inflammatory affections of the brain, the causes elude our observation; the circumstances under which they most frequently occur, are chiefly the following:

CATSE

.. Ther often appear in t diseases, as continued fever (ne of the most frequent ar the disease arising from this s supervenes upon scarlatina. scarlatina, which may have seized, perhaps after some ex ach, which after a short time and this by blindness and cor have been preceded by the supervenes upon scarlatina, art to be ascribed to sudder the disease is entirely inflar be saved only by the most v letring, purgatives, and of this plan, many such cases sent the usual appearance tions of the brain; and so ered from the affection, ha erdeptic paroxysms. A si tinged fever, especially in it. If it has come on gra generally hopeless; if it be janent may frequently be la connexion with low and condition frequently occurs racters of the most dangero these pass off when the fer 4 and 3. whom I saw wi the character of low fever. ed joyil and blindness v had loss of speech; and a fr maily a month gradu Linued only six days: presented by copious disc Gars. About three mont ct a head affection, and the brain, with effusion. which terminated favoura Early letfect coma, wit . 777, B.

has been

Cherel them as

- if tesperal is to that dis-

Correlate Admitted we

· the responsibilities

n de pasen e of effusion in ms usual y actending

and I at I'v condition of

in the control of probably

f treat 1 weil decision in

t not with not cases, he

ari r to fluid can be ab-

I for effus n has taken

· of taxe play will in

... This is syompanies the

in it was and which me

and the state of the state of

I. They often appear in the course of other febrile diseases, as continued fever, searlatina, measles, &c. One of the most frequent and most severe examples of the disease arising from this source, is an affection which supervenes upon scarlatina. A child recovering from searlatina, which may have been in a mild form, is seized, perhaps after some exposure to cold, with headach, which after a short time is followed by convulsion, and this by blindness and eoma. These symptoms may have been preceded by the anasarea which frequently supervenes upon searlatina, and on that account, are apt to be ascribed to sudden effusion in the brain; but the disease is entirely inflammatory, and the patient ean be saved only by the most vigorous treatment,—by bloodletting, purgatives, and other similar remedies. Upon this plan, many such eases recover; others die and present the usual appearances of the inflammatory affections of the brain; and some of those who have recovered from the affection, have been afterwards liable to epileptie paroxysms. A similar disease occurs in continued fever, especially in the more advanced stages of it. If it has come on gradually and insidiously, it is generally hopeless; if it be in a more acute form, the patient may frequently be saved by active treatment. In connexion with low and protracted fever, however, a eondition frequently occurs, which puts on many characters of the most dangerous affections of the brain, but these pass off when the fever subsides. A boy, between 4 and 5, whom I saw with Dr. Begbic, with much of the character of low fever, had stupor followed by dilated pupil and blindness with some squinting; he then had loss of speech; and after lying completely speechless for nearly a month gradually recovered. The blindness continued only six days: the recovery of his speech was preceded by copious discharge of matter from both his cars. About three months after, he died in the country of a head affection, and tubercular disease was found in the brain, with effusion. In another ease, in an adult, which terminated favourably, there was for several days nearly perfect coma, with that spasmodic rigidity of some of the limbs, which the French have considered as characteristic of ramollissement of the brain.

II. They may follow injuries, and this perhaps is a more frequent eause of the affections than we are generally aware of, especially in children; the injury being often slight, and the interval very considerable betwixt it and the appearance of any alarming symptoms. I have given two remarkable examples which seem to be referable to this head in Cases LXV. and LXVI.

III. Suppressed evacuations. One of the most common examples of this is suppression of the menses, which in young women of unsound constitution is very often followed by dangerous affections of the brain. Headach, or any symptom in the head occurring under such circumstances, is always to be considered as requiring most minute attention. Case LVIII. affords an interesting example of the disease coming on in this manner, and running its course with a very remarkable train of symptoms. Another affection which seems to be referable to this head, is that effusion in the brain which is apt to supervene upon urinary disorders, particularly on that remarkable affection, the Ischuria Renalis. In this obseure disease, the prominent symptom is a very sudden diminution of the secretion of urine, amounting frequently almost to a complete suspension of it. Generally about the third day from the occurrence of this symptom, the patient is found passing into a state of eoma, in which after a few days more he dies. The ventrieles of the brain are found distended with fluid. In the following singular ease, the same symptoms supervened upon another and rather uncommon modification of the disease, namely, Ischuria Uretalis.

CASE LXVII.—A gentleman, aged 70, (in February 1816,) complained to me that he could pass no urine; he made no other complaint, and on introducing a catheter, the bladder was found to be empty. For six days he continued in this state, keeping the house, but

canning of nothing, exceeding questioned, of slight the seventh day, he had slight indistinctness of speech. On took, and died on the 13th effusion was found in the vehilader was empty. Both ki urine. Both urcters were large caluli, the one immediat the other about three inches

IV. The affections often (ease of a chronic or scrofule of the body. The most free train becoming affected i phthisis. Of this I have gi have seen many more, assum sae of them, the head sympt death, with attacks of loss of only a few minutes at a time. a sensation of prickling and p of the face. After the paties attacks for a fortnight, he had num, followed by stupor, w fraight. In another man, ire neeks with severe pulme Fig. 20 was duble vision, p Find of dysuna, and his p In such cases the first di considered as the cause of the marks the tendency to inf second us character; and, affection of the brain may elida our observation. Or in the brain may appear in any other organ, especially such cases the liver has often funded upon this observation Te seems alone of the The same observation

complaining of nothing, except once or twice, when closely questioned, of slight uneasiness in his back. On the seventh day, he had slight confusion of thought, and indistinctness of speech. On the 9th, he became comatose, and died on the 13th. On dissection, extensive effusion was found in the ventricles of the brain; the bladder was empty. Both kidnics were distended with urine. Both ureters were completely obstructed by large caluli, the one immediately at its upper extremity, the other about three inches below the kidney.

in the speedings is a

The Rays

outh out of feeting by pathizt

of theming samptons. I

Tr 3 mich seem to be

... The of the most com-

of the grant such cir-

the state of the most

. I.I. Fr's on interesting

and in this proper, and

e rain which is apt to

in manifestually in that

. Renaus In this h. m is a fell sudden

ing an and singlett.

Contraction of the Contraction o

: : 10 d s. 2 1 coma, in

Los. To ronth de f

a gring flesh. In the file

Same in the 10d of the

TAY ILXVI.

IV. The affections often occur in connexion with disease of a chronic or scrofulous character in other parts of the body. The most frequent example of this is, the brain becoming affected in the advanced stages of phthisis. Of this I have given several examples, and I have seen many more, assuming various characters. one of them, the head symptoms began a month before death, with attacks of loss of speech, which continued only a few minutes at a time, and were accompanied by a sensation of prickling and numbness of the right side of the face. After the patient had been liable to these attacks for a fortnight, he had headach and slight delirium, followed by stupor, which was fatal in another fortnight. In another man, aged 32, who had been ill five weeks with severe pulmonary complaints, the first symptom was double vision, without headach. He complained of dysuria, and his pulse was irregular.

In such cases the first disease is not properly to be considered as the cause of the head affection. It merely marks the tendency to inflammation of a chronic or scrofulous character; and, in habits so disposed, the affection of the brain may be excited by causes which elude our observation. On the same principle, disease in the brain may appear in connexion with disease of any other organ, especially in unhealthy children. such cases the liver has often been found diseased; and, founded upon this observation, diseased liver has been improperly stated as one of the causes of hydrocephalus. The same observation perhaps applies to worms and

various other affections of the bowels, which in unhealthy children are often found to aeeompany hydroccphalus, and have sometimes been considered in the relation of a cause. Some of the more acute affections of the bowels, however, scem to be entitled to more attention, though the connexion betwixt them and the affections of the brain is very obscure. In some of them, it perhaps merely arises out of the general febrile excitement of the system; but, in others, there seems to be a connexion distinct from this. One of the most remarkable examples is in the inflammation of the mucous membrane of the bowels, which occurs in young children of the age of from eight to twelve months. This, affection frequently terminates by coma, and the eoma appears to be frequently preceded by a remarkable diminution of the secretion of urine. I have clswhere thrown out a conjecture that this disease, in its relation to the affeetion of the brain, bears an analogy to isehuria renalis, but perhaps the connexion in both cases is equally obseure.

In the dissection of eases of hydroeephalus in young ehildren, we very often meet with intus-susceptio in the bowels, and it generally exists in several places. I have repeatedly seen six or seven of them, and in one ease fourteen. They appear in general to be quite recent, being free from inflammation or thickening of the parts; and in the eases which occurred to me, there did not exist any unusual obstinacy of the bowels. The affection, therefore, is probably to be eonsidered as recent and incidental; or perhaps, as arising out of an inversion or derangement of the peristaltie motion of the bowels. This may be produced by the affection of the brain in the same manner as we see urgent vomiting connected In some eases, however, the intus-suseeptio appears to have been of longer standing, and to have preceded the affection of the brain. A girl, aged 6 years, mentioned by Dr. Coindet," had severe pain in the belly, vomiting, and constipation; on the fifth day, symptoms appeared, an Y. Crusion was found in the extraction was found in the extraction of intestine, six or seven I and the Sened.

11 1 %

V. Various other causes m & passions of the mind, stimul sh art enter upon these, and is of frequent occurrence, and paracuena namely, exposure sun. It appears that in som membranes are chiefly affected stance of the brain. Some produced, which is fatal in a quently, an affection of an signally assuming the charact paurile symptoms occur at a c.ma. The affection of cou warm climates, but also occurf lowing case, for which I am eccess in Selkirk.

Last LXVIII.—A young is claimed to the second of the secon

[&]quot; Coindet, Memoire sur l'Hydrencephale.

0 1

. " halicotta.

1 ... in the relain

. La to mera attention,

ar the ement as

. neal bille extrement

to a ring this care

This affection

Lar the coma spears to

en that ed inution of

a lightly dring out a

. A Kriffen the office.

a ni grandis.

D .2 1 Cases is equally

: Tritocepholis in riung

mucsus equipin the essessives lpless. Thate

a in mark in the case To the little recent.

La sur of the parts: there did not

The office.

A PERSON P. 1. 3 PROPER

Service of the particular

organism of the brees

intrinsery of a line in a

head symptoms appeared, and she died on the 12th. Much effusion was found in the brain, and there was an extensive intus susceptio in the ileum, where a portion of intestine, six or seven inches long, was inflamed and thickened.

V. Various other causes might be mentioned, such as passions of the mind, stimulating liquors, &e.; but I shall not enter upon these, and shall only add one which is of frequent occurrence, and presents some singular phenomena, namely, exposure to the intense heat of the sun. It appears that in some cases of this kind, the membranes are chiefly affected, and in others the substance of the brain. Sometimes an apopletic state is produced, which is fatal in a few hours; but, more frequently, an affection of an inflammatory nature, occasionally assuming the character of mania; and in others, paralytic symptoms occur at an early period followed by coma. The affection of eourse is chiefly a disease of warm climates, but also occurs in this country, as in the following ease, for which I am indebted to Mr. Clarkson, surgcon in Selkirk.

Case LXVIII .- A young man, aged 15, on the 5th of June 1818, bathed twice in the river Tweed. ter coming out the second time, he lay down on the bank and fell asleep without his hat, exposed to the intense heat of the sun. On awaking, he was speechless, but walked home, and seemed to be otherwise in good health. He was bled and purged, and next day recovered his speech, but lost it again at intervals several times during the three or four following days. He was forgetful, and his look was dull and heavy; he made little complaint, but, when closely questioned, said he had a dull uneasiness in the back part of his head. After a few days more, he had squinting and double vision, with a very obstinate state of bowels, and his pulse was 60. After farther bleeding, &c. the pulse rose to 86, but he sunk gradually into coma, and died on the 30th.

Inspection.—The substance of the brain in general seemed highly vascular, and a very considerable extent of it was in a state of ramollissement mixed with suppuration. The ventricles were distended with fluid, and the membranes in many places were much thickened. The inner surface of the cranium was very unequal at the upper part, and one spot, the size of a sixpence, was as thin as writing paper, and transparent.

SECTION VIII.

OF THE TREATMENT OF THE INFLAMMATORY AFFECTIONS OF THE BRAIN.

In the treatment of this important elass of diseases the remedies are few and simple; but every thing depends upon the use of them being adopted at an early period, and in the most decided manner. Those on which we chiefly rely are bloodletting, general and topical, active purgatives, and cold applications to the head. Benefit is also derived from antimonials, and in some states of the disease from digitalis. feet of blistering in the early stages is rather ambiguous. When it is employed, it should perhaps be on the back part of the head and neek; in these situations it is probably more likely to be useful than on the upper part of the head, while it does not interfere with a more powerful remedy, the application of eold. After the first activity of the disease has been subdued, blisters applied in succession to various parts of the head, and the upper part of the spine, appear to be in many cases extremely useful. Mercury has been strongly recommended in that class of eases which terminate by hydrocephalus, but its reputation seems to stand upon very doubtful grounds. In many eases, especially during the first or more active stage, the indisTREATM

crimite employment of me In the adaptation of the parti deal cases, we must of course and habit of the patient, and racter of the disease in regard cases which assume the more general bloodletting must be us manner: while in the cases carcaic character, as many of t driver halus, it has less control not borne to the same extent. disease, active purging appear which we find the most say though brodletting is neve earlier stages of the disease, I more recoveries from head aff ing aspect take place under puring, than under any other mest of these cases indeed fu had been previously employed tent effect in arresting the syn renient medicine for this purpo regard to local remedies, by f the application of cold. It may rued manner by means of a bl edice mixed with a small q sil more effectual mode of active cases, is by a stream against the crown of the head siderable time, until the full e Applied in this manner, it is that it requires to be used wit der the operation of it, I thrown, in a very few minute ing to asphysia, who immed the highest state of maniacal increase of strength, defeating the immediate effect of it in the disease. A string . L. 1

. It tor and the extent

and there moved with sup-

was described with fluid,

Ly p 143 wire much thick.

I the Coop of was very on-

ing of the size of a six-

I Well, and transcerent.

TO FLAMM TORK AFFEC.

more as of liseases the

Har overy time depends

and at an easily period,

T'ese on which

and topi-

er gers in in any in-

in the interest of the state of

. : अने देवा on the

less me jeterhen

criminate employment of mercury must be injurious. In the adaptation of the particular remedies to individual cases, we must of course be regulated by the age and habit of the patient, and particularly by the character of the disease in regard to activity. In those eases which assume the more acute or active forms, general bloodletting must be used in the most decided manner: while in the cases which assume a more chronic character, as many of the common cases of hydroeephalus, it has less control over the disease, and is not borne to the same extent. In all the forms of the disease, active purging appears to be the remedy from which we find the most satisfactory results; and although bloodletting is never to be neglected in the earlier stages of the disease, my own experience is, that more recoveries from head affections of the most alarming aspect take place under the use of very strong purging, than under any other mode of treatment. most of these cases indeed full and repeated bleeding had been previously employed, but without any apparent effect in arresting the symptoms. The most convenient medicine for this purpose is the croton oil. In regard to local remedies, by far the most powerful is the application of cold. It may be applied in a continued manner by means of a bladder containing pounded ice mixed with a small quantity of water: but a still more effectual mode of applying it in the more acute eases, is by a stream of cold water directed against the crown of the head and continued for a considerable time, untill the full effect be produced from it. Applied in this manner, it is a remedy of such power, that it requires to be used with much discretion. Under the operation of it, I have seen a strong man thrown, in a very few minutes, into a state approaching to asphyxia, who immediately before had been in the highest state of maniacal excitement, with morbid increase of strength, defeating every attempt of four or five men to restrain him. The following case shows the immediate effect of it in another modification of the disease. A strong plethorie child, aged five years,

after being one day feverish, oppressed and restless, fell rather suddenly into a state of perfect coma. She had been in this state about an hour when I saw her; she lay stretched on her back, motionless and completely insensible; her face flushed and turgid. She was raised into a sitting posture, and, a basin being held under the chin, a stream of cold water was directed against the crown of the head. In a few minutes, or rather seconds, she was completely recovered, and next day was in her usual health. The same remedy I am in the habit of using with the best effect in the convulsive diseases of children; and it appears to be much more useful in such eases than the warm bath, the indiscriminate employment of which is often decidedly injurious.

In the preceding observations, I shall perhaps be considered as having attached too little importance to mercury in the treatment of this class of diseases, particularly in the treatment of hydrocephalus; but in doing so, I have stated simply what is the result of an extensive observation. When mercury was first employed as a remedy for hydrocephalus, it was given with a view to promote the absorption of the cffused fluid, which was supposed to constitute the essence of the disease; it is now given to correct the biliary secretion, and the functions of the digestive organs, which, according to certain modern doctrines, hold so prominent a place in almost every class of diseases. In affections of the brain, as in all other diseases, it is highly proper that these secretions should be attended to, but it is not thus that we are to expect to cure hydrocephalus; and I confess the result of my own observation is, that when mercury is useful in affections of the brain, it is chiefly as a purgative.

Under the treatment which I have now mentioned, I have seen many cases recover which exhibited all the usual symptoms of the most dangerous affections of the brain, and even the most advanced stages of them. The eases which thus terminate favourably form, it must be confessed, but a small proportion of icas which come under the considerable practice; but the ratement to persevere in the diseases, which, after a certain we are too apt to consider as clude this part of the subject illustrating the favourable term rarious firms, and under the constances. Some of these arrested in the early or acute illustrate the favourable termin toms which have usually be teristic of the more advance affection is generally consid these cases are compared v here already been described, to be every reason for consid ples of this dangerous affection

Case LXIX - A girl, aged and remiting, with great obst these symptoms were followed degree of stupor bordering u 130. She had been ill five blistering, and mercury to saliv without benefit. One bleeding imm. Late turn to this case; the pulse came down; the ro were freely acted upon by the former'y resisted; and in a fo

Case LXX - A slender had scarlatina in a farourable April 1629. About the 16th ed as to be allowed to go about efter this, she was affected w test some medicine with p e. L. Lowerer, the anaeatea siderally, especially in the fa Taid In the following ally that

A In a Challeton

i , a con 10 be much

· a war am I th, the in-

min my was fire to

The second of the second

those which come under the view of a physician of considerable practice; but they hold out every eneouragement to persevere in the treatment of a class of diseases, which, after a certain period of their progress, we are too apt to consider as hopeless. I shall conclude this part of the subject by a selection of cases illustrating the favourable termination of the disease in various forms, and under the most unpromising circumstances. Some of these will show the affection arrested in the early or acute stage, while others will illustrate the favourable termination of it with the symptoms which have usually been considered as characteristic of the more advanced period, in which the affection is generally considered as hopeless. When these cases are compared with the fatal cases which have already been described, there will, I think, appear to be every reason for considering them as fair examples of this dangerous affection of the brain.

CASE LXIX.—A girl, aged 11, had violent headach and vomiting, with great obstinacy of the bowels, and these symptoms were followed by dilated pupil, and a degree of stupor bordering upon perfect coma; pulse 130. She had been ill five or six days; purgatives, blistering, and mercury to salivation had been employed without benefit. One bleeding from the arm gave an immediate turn to this case; the headach was relieved, the pulse came down; the vomiting ceased; the bowels were freely acted upon by the medicines which they had formerly resisted; and in a few days she was quite well.

CASE LXX.—A slender and delicate girl, aged 11, had searlating in a favourable form in the beginning of April, 1820. About the 16th, she was so much recovered as to be allowed to go about the house. A few days after this, she was affected with anasarca, for which she took some medicine with partial benefit. About the 26th. however, the anasarea had again increased considerably, especially in the face, which was very much swelled. In the following night she had vomiting.

On the 27th, she complained of headach, which inereased rapidly in violence; towards the afternoon, she became delirious, the pulse very frequent, about 160. Soon after this she was seized with violent and general convulsion, which recurred very frequently through the early part of the night, leaving her in a state of profound The treatment adopted during the course of these symptoms was repeated general bleeding, to the amount of 28 ounces, followed by topical bleeding, purgatives, antimonial solution, &c. Towards midnight the convulsions ceased, and sometime afterwards she gradually recovered from the coma. On the 28th, she was free from any alarming symptom during the early part of the day; pulse about 108. In the evening she was seized with severe symptoms of pneumonia, on account of which she was bled during the next 24 hours to the amount of upwards of 30 ounces, besides bleeding with leeches and the other usual remedies. In a few days more she was restored to perfect health.

Case LXXI.—A young man, aged 16, in the beginning of October 1823, had eough with severe dyspucea, for which he was freely bled from the arm with much relief, and on the morning of the 10th, he was considered as convalescent. In the evening of that day he had headach and some vomiting. About midnight, having got out of bed to go to stool, he fell down in a state of violent and general convulsion. The convulsion returned during the night six or seven times with such violence that one of the attacks continued without intermission for about an hour. The pulse during the night varied from 60 to 120. At first it was found impossible to bleed him on account of the violence of the convulsions, but about 7 in the morning a full bleeding was obtained, though with some difficulty, after which the convulsions eeased, except some slighter attacks during the day, which appeared to be arrested by pouring cold water over his head. During the 11th, he was oppressed, with oceasional tremors of the limbs and some vomiting, and he had one or two threatenings of cornsion; pulse about 80 at does of active purgatives will morning of the 12th he appearance of perfect coma; pulse 5 given, which operated powerful He passed a good night, and out ompaint. This very importance of Dr. Huie. I saw the from mid-day of the 11th.

TREATME

CASE LXXII .- A genilema fected with confusion of thou loss of recollection. He then and after a day or two had d jects being placed the one a time he was out of bed the gr was restless and confused, and was tuen confined to bed, and much incoherence and oppres continuing. The pulse was at gradually, and sunk below the the symptoms went through a c that which has been described cases. As the pulse fell in free and more oppressed, until he su por, from which he could scare answer a question of the most went on in this manner for ei which time he was treated by pical bleeding, cold application the smallest effect in arresting toms. The bowels were very of the most active purgatives the seemed to be on the and the case was considered began to take the croton oil, every two or three hours. I perced very actively nine or ten ne he was relieved from every in a few days was free from ear convulsion; pulse about 80 and soft; he took repeated doses of active purgatives with little effect, and on the morning of the 12th he appeared to be sinking into a state of perfect coma; pulse 50. Croton oil was now given, which operated powerfully seven or eight times. He passed a good night, and on the 13th was free from complaint. This very important case was under the care of Dr. Huie. I saw the patient along with him from mid-day of the 11th.

Case LXXII.—A gentleman, aged 21, was first affected with confusion of thought and very eonsiderable loss of recollection. He then complained of headach, and after a day or two had double vision, the two objects being placed the one above the other. At this time he was out of bed the greater part of the day, but was restless and confused, and at times incoherent. He was then confined to bed, and had constant headach, much incoherence and oppression, the double vision continuing. The pulse was at first frequent, but fell gradually, and sunk below the natural standard; and the symptoms went through a course exactly similar to that which has been described in many of the fatal eases. As the pulse fell in frequency, he became more and more oppressed, until he sunk into a state of stupor, from which he eould seareely be roused so as to answer a question of the most simple kind. The ease went on in this manner for eight or ten days, during which time he was treated by repeated general and topieal bleeding, cold applications, blistering, &c. without the smallest effect in arresting the progress of the symptoms. The bowels were very obstinate, and large doses of the most active purgatives were given with little effect. He seemed to be on the brink of perfect coma, and the case was eonsidered as desperate, when he began to take the croton oil, in full doses, repeated every two or three hours. In a few hours, he was purged very actively nine or ten times; the same evening he was relieved from every alarming symptom, and in a few days was free from complaint.

i of In Jack, which inover is the afternoon, she The forguest, as ut 160. d von volent and general Terr in 11 new through the er in a state of profound all during the curse of d s peral blieding, to the d'virgeal b'eeding, pur-1. in Twites midnight ma. On the 28th, she symptom during the early i. In the evening she in me of pheumonia, on ac-I bring the next 24 hours 199 . Mere hasides bleedin the leadies. In a

Tors of The BRAIN.

or in coold lift in the begin.

I strict the arm with much

I first the arm with much

I first the arm with much

I first the was consider.

The contulsion re
seven times with such

as continued without as

the raise during the

bau sentioned without the property of the continued of th

CASE LXXIII.—A girl, aged 2 years and 3 months, previously very strong and healthy, had recently recovered from measles, when about the 7th July 1821, she suddenly lost the power of both her lower extremities. She continued without any improvement, but without any further symptom, till the beginning of August, when she became affected with squinting and drowsiness, and her countenance was expressive of fatuity. On the 7th, she was seized with smart fever, urgent vomiting, and frequent slight convulsions; the face flushed, the pulse strong and frequent. She was treated by Dr. Begbie, by bleeding and purgatives; and on the 8th, she was eonsiderably relieved. On the 9th, however, the symptoms returned, with stupor bordering upon coma, oppressed breathing, and dilated pupil. The squinting eontinued, with complete palsy of the lower extremities. Farther bleeding with leeehes was now employed, and active purgatives, followed by blistering on the neek, and under this treatment the more urgent symptoms speedily disappeared. The palsy of the lower extremities then subsided gradually, and was entirely removed in about three weeks.

Case LXXIV.—A lady, aged 45, after the menses had eeased for four months, was seized with headach, sense of weight in the head, much oppression and double vision: the pulse was at first 72, but soon rose to 100. On the first day, she was bled to twenty-eight ounces, with little relief. On the 2d, topical bleeding, blistering, and smart purging were used, but the symptoms continued unabated. On the 3d day, another bleeding of twenty ounces gave a turn to the complaint, and in a few days more, with brisk purging and spare diet, it terminated favourably. The last symptom that yielded was the double vision. It subsided slowly, the two images gradually approaching nearer to each other, but it was not entirely gone for nearly a fortnight.

CASE LXXV.—A girl, aged 7, had severe headach, impatience of light, fever and slight delirium, followed

The topper, squinting, and gree The topper was at first fill the top two. Topical bleeding ploved, with various active pure firle effect; and the symptom a week, during which she was hopeless state of hydrocephalu week, strong purging being propodir, and in a few days was

Cast LXXVI.—A young lab in which several had died of in which several had died of tember 21, 1817, had severe much vomiting; the pulse bleeding and purgatives, she von the 23d, she still complainter was much headach, with proaching to coma, and dilatatic proaching from the arm were not relief; the second produced synthe pulse was from 80 to 90, and relieved. The complaint then subpressives and cold applications; in the she was in her usual health.

Case LXXVII.—A lady, aged ach fit several days, with impaties for transient fits of delirium; a lowels very obstinate, with occur pole was very variable, being standard. There occurred paroxys of the whole body, and at times the restated general and at opical bleed to the standard and the policy was referenced by the pain, which produced so of the whole body, and at times the restated general and to pical bleed to the standard and referenced bleed.

the day

- - - rall ments

. aptle reco-

in a lange 1 21. she

. . et . Tet extretolies.

.... Trill In the Minne

a ming of Anglist, when

the correction to

in Timir. Clier (the

time, ungent volving, and

to the ned by In Bush?

y i on the 6th, are no 1. 11.7 however the samb.

" r 'or enny upon corri, op-: d payl. The squinting

· o se of the hover extremi-

in berein memployed

I thereing on the

s and similar

· I I the lower

I traduction and wis entire

1 - S. Was . I mail lendar

The same of the sa Band of

(17 the 31 month of light

tre with the

by stupor, squinting, and great obstinacy of the bowels. The tongue was at first foul, but became clean after a day or two. Topical bleeding and blistering were employed, with various active purgatives, which produced little effect; and the symptoms continued unabated for a week, during which she was considered as being in a hopeless state of hydrocephalus. At the end of the week, strong purging being produced, she recovered rapidly, and in a few days was free from complaint.

Case LXXVI.—A young lady, aged 11, of a family in which several had died of hydrocephalus, on September 21, 1817, had severe headach, giddiness, and much vomiting; the pulse natural. After topical bleeding and purgatives, she was relieved on the 22d. On the 23d, she still complained of headach, and the pulse fell to 60. On the 24th, the pulse fell to 50; there was much headach, with great oppression approaching to coma, and dilatation of the pupil. bleedings from the arm were now employed with much relief; the second produced syncope. On the 25th, the pulse was from 80 to 90, and all the symptoms were relieved. The complaint then subsided under the use of purgatives and cold applications; and in five or six days more she was in her usual health.

CASE LXXVII.—A lady, aged 15, had violent headach for several days, with impatience of light, followed by transient fits of delirium; and this by squinting, double vision, and stupor bordering upon coma; the bowels very obstinate, with occasional vomiting. pulse was very variable, being sometimes extremely frequent, and at other times little above the natural standard. There occurred paroxysms of violent aggravation of the pain, which produced screaming and agitation of the whole body, and at times there was a threatening of convulsion. This very violent case was treated by repeated general and topical bleeding, blistering, purgatives, and mercury given so as to affect the mouth. Under this treatment the complaint subsided; but after she appeared to be well, it suddenly returned with the same violence as before, and was again treated by the same remedies. In this manner she relapsed five or six times, and at last got well after the case had been drawn out to many weeks.

CASE LXXVIII .- A lady, aged 21, in July 1815, had symptoms of continued fever, which went on for three weeks. The pulse then came down to 84, and the tongue became clean, but she had much headach, transient fits of delirium, and stupor bordering upon coma, and the pulse rose again to 120. In this state she continued a fortnight, with every appearance of an affection of the brain of the most formidable character, and without being at all relieved by the remedies which were employed, namely, repeated topical bleeding, blistering, and large doses of calomel. The calomel did not affect the mouth, and had very little effect upon the bowels. At the end of the fortnight she was suddenly seized with eopious discharge of blood from the bowels. This continued three days, and left her extremely pale and exhausted, but she was free from stupor, and the headach was much relieved. In five or six days more she was well.

Case LXXIX.—A gentleman, aged 17, 1st February 1810, had symptoms of continued fever for a week: the skin then became eool and the tongue clean; but he had severe headach with considerable stupor; pulse 100. General bleeding was then employed, followed by purging and mercurial frictions; and after a few days the symptoms were alleviated; but there was still much headach, with oppression, and a remarkable slowness of speech. On the 14th, there was increase of stupor; pulse 86; the tongue clean; the skin cool. On the 16th, there was much incoherent talking and unmanageable delirium; after which the stupor again inereased, the pulse continuing about 84. On the 19th, there was partial relief after smart purging; but on the 20th, the stupor had returned as before, and by the 22d, had increased to perfect coma; the pulse about

10). He now lay in a st dars, during which time with difficulty, and with On the 27th, purging was tent of fourteen evacuation with complete relief of all I there was some delirium, day. For a week he cont headach, and a feeling of the 10th of March, he was s

To these cases, as they s shall only add the following tares of much interest.

CASE LIXX. - A boy : friend, had scarlatina mile Nearly a month after, he was sarca of the face, and after days, he had some vomicio About a week after the appe complained one morning of vomiting; pulse slow and rat o'clock in the forenoon, he st towards the afternoon, he par on coma. He still complaine was not above the natural si Topical bleeding baving been I saw him at night, and a sail to be followed by activ cations to the head. Duri rose both in strength and fr found him quite sensible, bu tth some headach, but less t Was stronger, and not freque to sain, and the purgatives re tracuations from the bowels, and in the evening was entire was free from complaint, and :78 1.

is the fact that I by

or the file two Lai been

i 1 21, in July 1815,

rhich went on fer

: e wi much headach.

n to 120. In t is state

T. 1 HT. FT A PATEANCE of an

The The galaxel did

irom the 'orrels.

1 Tr. and the headard

The Lors more she was well

Conn. 20117. Ist February

Contribution Clean; but

A real rate super pulse

on the said to cate

market a fe

- in that is a re

All the new increase

E. T. Letter to sair cond.

in her of that win it

100. He now lay in a state of perfect coma for four days, during which time various medicines were given with difficulty, and with little effect upon his bowels. On the 27th, purging was at last produced to the extent of fourteen evacuations in the course of the day, with complete relief of all his symptoms. On the 28th, there was some delirium, which subsided in another day. For a weck he continued to complain of some headaeli, and a feeling of weight in his head; but, by the 10th of March, he was free from complaint.

To these eases, as they stood in the former edition, I shall only add the following, which presents some features of much interest.

CASE LXXX.—A boy aged 12, the son of a medical friend, had searlatina mildly in the spring of 1833. Nearly a month after, he was affected with slight anasarea of the face, and after this had continued several days, he had some vomiting, and appeared languid. About a week after the appearance of the anasarea, he complained one morning of headach, and had some vomiting; pulse slow and rather languid. About eleven o'eloek in the forenoon, he suddenly lost his sight; and towards the afternoon, he passed into a state bordering on eoma. He still complained of headach, but the pulse was not above the natural standard, soft and languid. Topical bleeding having been employed without relief, I saw him at night, and advised general bleeding to 5xii to be followed by active purging, and cold applications to the head. During the bleeding the pulse rose both in strength and frequency. Next morning I found him quite sensible, but entirely blind; there was still some headach, but less than formerly, and the pulse was stronger, and not frequent. He was again bled to 3xii, and the purgatives repeated. After five or six evacuations from the bowels, his sight began to return, and in the evening was entirely restored. Next day he was free from complaint, and has ever since enjoyed good health.

APPENDIX

TO

PART FIRST.

THE preceding observations conclude the present imperfect outline of the first part of our subject, The inflammatory affections of the brain. Before proceeding to the second part, I shall introduce in this place a few observations upon certain affections, which are most allied to the first class, and in a practical point of view arc often objects of very great interest; they are referable to the following heads:

I. Tubercular Disease of the Brain.

II. Certain Affections of the Bones of the Cranium.

III. Certain Affections of the Pericranium.

SECT. I.

OF TUBERCULAR DISEASE OF THE BRAIN.

When we have an opportunity of observing tubereles in the brain in their early stages, in consequence of the patient having died of some other disease, we find them presenting the same characters as in other parts of the body. They are generally solid bodies, of firm consistence, and whitish colour, varying from the size of a pin head, or a small pea, to that of a walnut or a small egg. We find them in every part of the brain, either embedded in its substance, lying on the surface, or attached to the membranes. When they have attained a considerable size, they present, when cut into, the usual whitish-coloured or cheesy matter generally enclosed in a cyst;

TEBERITLAR DI

and in the fatal cases, we filter to a softened state, or They occur in persons tendency to tubercular distalf; and they are very cular disease in other of exemplified in the first of all the three great cavit

The symptoms accomthe brain, in its early st seare and variable; perh to headach, which assu sometimes assumes the symptoms may go on f without exciting any ala assumes a more active c This termination seems in inflammatery action of the find upon dissection, either sive ramollissement of th the principal tubercular n cases, we have every proo size had existed without til an attack took place m ourse of hydrocephalus disease in the brain have with some of the disease the following cases as more pure and simple fo

Case IXXXI.—A y beach in the beginning at that time chiefly of properties; and she became through the usual cours under the care of learnt benefit; but after cape, with uncasinese;

and in the fatal cases, we find them more or less approaching to a softened state, or partial unhealthy suppuration. They occur in persons and in families, in whom a tendency to tubercular disease has otherwise manifested itself; and they are very often combined with tubercular disease in other organs. This is remarkably exemplified in the first of the following cases, in which all the three great cavities were at once extensively affected.

The symptoms accompanying tubercular disease of the brain, in its early stages, are often exceedingly obseure and variable; perhaps little more than a tendency to headach, which assumes no formidable character, or sometimes assumes the appearance of what has been called the periodical headach, or the sick headach. The symptoms may go on for a long time in this manner without exciting any alarm, until the disease suddenly assumes a more active character, and is speedily fatal. This termination seems in general to be connected with inflammatory action of the cerebral substance; and we find upon dissection, either extensive effusion or extensive ramollissement of that part of the brain in which the principal tubercular masses are situated. In other cases, we have every proof that masses of a very large size had existed without producing any symptoms, until an attack took place which went through the usual course of hydrocephalus. Examples of tubercular disease in the brain have already occurred in connexion with some of the diseases formerly referred to. the following eases as illustrating the affection in its more pure and simple form.

Case LXXXI.—A young lady, aged 15, fell into bad health in the beginning of the year 1822, complaining at that time chiefly of pain in the bowels, with bad appetite; and she became languid and sallow. She went through the usual course of treatment for such affections, under the care of Mr. William Wood, with apparent benefit; but after some time she began to have cough, with uneasiness in the chest, and these symp-

DIZ

IRAT

ornal da via present unart et ur suljut, Tunuxren vans. Belve produ introloce in this place et a all tons, which are a ling a practical point of e victoral interests to spare

ja Perin. 10 P. – s of the Cranium. 110 P. – s canium.

The state of the s

The state of the s

toms then became the object of attention. Some time after this she began to complain of headach, for which she was treated with topical bleeding and blistering, and again experienced relief. In this manner, she went on for several weeks more, complaining sometimes of her belly, sometimes of her breast, and sometimes of her head. The pain was never severe in any of these situations, but she was seldom without uneasiness in one or other of them. Her bowels at first had been rather loose, but afterwards were natural, or easily kept open by mild medicines. When I saw her along with Mr. Wood, in the beginning of March, she was considerably reduced in flesh and strength; she was confined to the house, but able to be up and dressed during the day. She had a small frequent pulse, little appetite, some cough, and occasional uneasiness in the chest; there was frequent pain in the head, and febrile flushings took place in the evening. She now made little complaint of her bowels, which were easily kept open, and the stools were natural. It was evident that there was disease in all the three cavities, though it was doubtful in which of them it was to assume the fatal character, until the 15th March, when the headach became more severe, so as to confine her to bed. It then went on in the usual manner with dilated pupil, squinting and coma; and she died on the 20th.

Inspection.—The ventricles of the brain were distended with fluid. In the substance of the right homispliere, there was a tubercular mass of considerable size, partly softened; and there were several smaller masses of the same kind in the substance of the cerebellum. The lungs were studded throughout with innumerable small tubercles, all in the solid state. The abdomen presented a most extensive mass of disease, the whole of the intestines being agglutinated together by adhesion; and the mass thus formed likewise adhered extensively to the parietes of the abdomen and to the

omentum. Case LXXXII.—A young lady, aged 18, had en-

pred good health, except fro let arm, till about the midd she began to complain of h with oppression and loaded became so severe, that Sir duced to treat her in the most and topical bloodletting, &c. with him, about the end of th she had still much headach, w sion, but was quite sensible. ferred to the back of the hea aggrarated by motion, even in the most gentle manner. with a dense white crust, and rather weak. After fr gatives, &c., there was a gra the end of the second week, the look of oppression and sti ber general aspect was now not free from uneasiness in t recover strength. After an the headach again increased, guor and oppression. After this state, she died rather su visit of the day in which she d is every impression, and answhile trused. Her death too ains the original attack. Impedia.—There was ed vencticles of the brain. In hemist here, there was a sof size; and there was consider cerebral substance surrounce smaller tomors of the sam There were numerous tuber

Purated. There was much oraria, which were consider Fall lian tubes, in particular ed, and distended with a soft joyed good health, except from a serofulous sore on the left arm, till about the middle of February 1822, when she began to complain of headach. There was fever, with oppression and loaded tongue; and the headach became so severe, that Sir George Ballingall was induced to treat her in the most active manner by general and topical bloodletting, &c. When I saw her along with him, about the end of the first week of her illness, she had still much headach, with a look of great oppression, but was quite sensible. The pain was chiefly referred to the back of the head and neck, and was much aggravated by motion, even by being raised up in bed in the most gentle manner. The tongue was covered with a dense white crust, and the pulse was frequent and rather weak. After farther topical bleeding, purgatives, &c., there was a gradual improvement; and at the end of the second week, the tongue was clean, and the look of oppression and stupor was gone. But though her general aspect was now greatly improved, she was not free from uneasiness in the head, and she did not recover strength. After an interval of partial relief, the headach again increased, with a look of much languor and oppression. After continuing a few days in this state, she died rather suddenly. At the morning visit of the day in which she died, she appeared sensible to every impression, and answered questions distinctly when roused. Her death took place about five weeks after the original attack.

Inspection.—There was eonsiderable effusion in the ventricles of the brain. In the substance of the right hemisphere, there was a soft tubercular mass of large size; and there was considerable ramollissement of the cerebral substance surrounding it. There were two smaller tumors of the same kind in the ecrebellum. There were numerous tubercles in the lungs not suppurated. There was much disease of the uterus and ovaria, which were considerably enlarged; and the Fallopian tubes, in particular, were very much enlarged, and distended with a soft cheesy matter of a yellow

colour.

- - ach, fr which

is all thering, and

. .. i ner ch. Went on

. If were ires of her

ini. thes of her

er reinary flusse sica.

in the less in one of

it ral. I vaery kept open

I am her away with Mr.

in and dressed during the

unt ples little appetite,

a . . . siness in the chist;

on. Lerma, le little

a life call beginned

or was evident that there

o grilles, though it was

: as to assume the fatal

confine hir hed Irthen

w . III - I pupil, squint.

: It'm' and were distend-

so of the right bemise

The state of Carry Land Size

of the call are.

1120 Me 110

In this case it seems probable that the attack of the middle of February was continued fever, and that the disease in the brain was thereby excited into action and hurried on to a fatal termination.

Case LXXXIII.—A boy, aged 9, in January, 1821, began to complain of headach. It was usually accompanied with pain about the umbilicus, and attacked him daily, the attack commonly continuing from half an hour to two or three hours. The headach at first came on about two o'clock in the morning, and generally continued about one hour, but the period of its duration was gradually extended to three or four hours. The period of attack also gradually became later, until it advanced progressively to five in the afternoon; it did not become later than this. The attack usually occurred every day, and generally went off with vomiting. During the attack, the pain was most violent, so as to incapacitate him from any exertion; but during the rest of the day, he was lively and playful, and made no complaint. He went on in this manner for six months. In the beginning of July, he was seized with fever and pain in the bowels, and was confined to bed. The headach now became constant, and there was frequent vomit-After some days the vomiting ceased, but he continued to have fever, with considerable permanent headach; and at the end of a fortnight from the commencement of the febrile attack, he died rather suddenly without coma or any affection of the senses.

Inspection.—The brain was quite healthy, and there was no effusion in the ventricles. In the left lobe of the ccrebellum, there were two tubercular masses, the size of large hazel nuts; and there was another similar tumor betwixt the two lobes; they were round and firm, and internally presented a yellowish cheesy consistence. In the thorax, there was extensive adhesion, but the substance of the lungs was tolerably healthy. In the abdomen there were slight adhesions of the

viscera.

CASE LXXXIV .- A chi who had suffered much fro disease, had been for some able swelling on the arm. O was hable to discharge of m was otherwise in good her April, 1827, when he was o unsteadiness in his limbs i want of control over his arm of any object. From this til tion to walk, but no other of till the middle of May, w in the back of his head, es hind the ear. He was no fretful and fererish. On t mencement of these symptom about the same time to be tacks, which generally occu a day; they affected at first wards were confined to the rally accompanied by distorti gree of stupor, which howeve his pulse was generally abor state for twelve days, and no tons took place, except tha the pupils became dilated and to be comatose only on the] continued till that time to ! and to take his food readil Mr. Macfarlane, and all th plored without relief.

Inspection.—There was ventricles: the brain was in the posterior part of the coupling and long and of a yellow colour; in the appearance of unhealth appearance of unhealth and of a relow colour; in the coupling and of a yellow colour; in the coupling and of a yellow colour; in the coupling and of a yellow colour; in the colours appearance of unhealth appearance and old a yellow colour; in the colours and of a yellow colours.

and arack fine on to rand that the

Carefield and

a. 19. in January, 1921,

it was usually accom-

Una ni stracked him

". " nan g from haif an

1) . wash at first came

man generally con-

ep n dot in dorati n was

r four h urs. The period

in a it dila become

T. 17 T. Fr. Daing the

or organic test of

and made no com-

tor six months.

and twith fever and

the was tro lent romit.

ra instant, but he

i sidera e p manent

the con-

hadiedrainer audien's

the hearing, and there

To the left John of

the Translation of the

79.14.176

Case LXXXIV.—A child, aged 3 years, of a family who had suffered much from various forms of ehronic disease, had been for some months affected with a moveable swelling on the arm, of a strumous character, and was liable to discharge of matter from the left car. He was otherwise in good health until the beginning of April, 1827, when he was observed to have a pceuliar unsteadiness in his limbs in walking, and a peculiar want of control over his arms in attempting to lay hold of any object. From this time he showed a disinelination to walk, but no other symptom was taken notice of till the middle of May, when he complained of pain in the back of his head, especially in the left side behind the ear. He was now confined to bed, and was fretful and feverish. On the third day from the commeneement of these symptoms, he began to squint, and about the same time to be affected with convulsive attacks, which generally occurred three or four times in a day; they affected at first the whole body, but afterwards were confined to the right side, and were generally accompanied by distortion of the eyes, and a degree of stupor, which however was of short continuance; his pulse was generally about 120. He lived in this state for twelve days, and no particular change of symptoms took place, except that a few days before death the pupils became dilated and insensible. He appeared to be comatose only on the last day of his life, having continued till that time to be sensible to every thing, and to take his food readily. I saw him along with Mr. Macfarlanc, and all the usual remedies were employed without relief.

Inspection.—There was considerable effusion in the ventricles: the brain was in other respects healthy. In the posterior part of the ccrebellum there were two tubercles the size of large walnuts. They were situated one in each lobe, and completely imbedded in the substance of the cerebellum. Externally they were firm and of a yellow colour; internally they showed the usual appearance of unhealthy suppuration; there was extensive ramollissement in the substance of the cerebellum; and there was extensive effusion in the spinal canal, both betwixt the bones and the dura mater of the cord, and betwixt that membrane and the pia mater. The substance of the eord seemed much softer than natural, especially at the upper part, where in consequence of its softness it had given way in opening the spine.

On the subject of tubercular disease in the eerebellum, I shall only add the following remarkable ease, showing in a very striking manner, the remissions which take place in the symptoms in diseases of this elass, and the periodical character which they sometimes

assume.

CASE LXXXV .- A gentleman aged 34, in the year 1825 first began to be affected with occasional attacks of headach, which were usually accompanied by vertigo and dimness of sight. In 1827, the pain became more severe, and was distinctly referred to the occiput and superior part of the neck. He had generally remission of it through the day, and aggravations in the evening. In the spring of 1828, the symptoms increased in severity, but he received considerable relief from blistering. In the summer he went to the country, where his general health was much improved, and his headach greatly mitigated. He continued in this improved state till May 1829, when the attacks of headach were again aggravated, accompanied by giddiness, and on one oecasion he fell from his chair. In October of the same year, he began to be affected by a most distressing sensation of throbbing referred to the back part of the head; and he was also affected with vomiting, which continued without intermission for The paroxysms of headach were now three weeks. aggravated to an intense degree of severity. They occurred chiefly in the evening, from six o'clock till midnight,—but also at other times of the day. During the more severe attacks, his face was flushed,—the vessels on the temples were remarkably distended, and he lay in a state nearly of unconsciousness, unable to

gene and with his hands and raned. He still had occasio acidity of the stomach, and of double vision. The pulse His situation was now consid and no relief was obtained t after five or six weeks of inte tems gradually remitted, and December and January, he cor headach; he was able to wa bealth was greatly improved. symptoms again increased; chieffr complained of above t also were more complete, and ferings were less severe than vember. In March, his co and he was able to take a good oren air, and to attend a ge He had still oceasional attac were not severe, and his conmuch more favourable than it In the middle of April, the pa came more severe, but by no which they had occurred on fo Let confined; and no degree (cited until the 24th, when, in he suddenly expired. Irapedia. The rentricles

from three to four ounces of a rounding parts were entired the substance of the left hole was a tubercular mass, the small walnut. Externally in the usual appearance of the of unbeathy scrofulous supply the capture of the capture o

dir. Hi

a rive dura mater of

emorane and the pia mater.

seam of much sifter than

per jurt, matte in conse-

yen way in opening the

r di use in the cerebel.

lowing remarkable case,

inner, the remissions which

in diseases of this class,

er wich ther s metimes

ntleman aged 34, in the

were usually accompanied

the. In 1827, the pain

the nock. He had gene-

the lay, and aggravations

g if 1828, the symptoms

received considerable relief

ner he went to the coun-

was much improved, and

. He continued in this

2), when the attacks of

ed, active familed by giddi-

h. fell from bie chair In

Liveran to be affected by a

s sheet ing recorred to the

to be was and affected with I michout in pussion fr

remi . Flea Li nere non

There is creative. There of

n. from it oclas till mid.

- mes i he day. Durie,

h: sace mas based an

M Div. 120 24 Ind 12

speak, and with his hands and arms spasmodically contracted. He still had occasional vomiting and intense acidity of the stomach, and several times complained of double vision. The pulse was generally natural. His situation was now considered as nearly hopeless; and no relief was obtained from any remedies; but after five or six weeks of intense suffering, the symptoms gradually remitted, and during several weeks in December and January, he continued almost free from headach; he was able to walk out, and his general health was greatly improved. In February 1830 the symptoms again increased; but the pain was now chiefly complained of above the eyes; -the remissions also were more complete, and upon the whole his sufferings were less severe than during the attack in November. In March, his complaints again subsided, and he was able to take a good deal of exercise in the open air, and to attend a good deal to his business. He had still oceasional attacks of headach, but they were not severe, and his condition was considered as much more favourable than it had been for a long time. In the middle of April, the paroxysms of headach became more severe, but by no means in the degree in which they had occurred on former occasions. He was not confined; and no degree of apprehension was excited until the 24th, when, in one of those paroxysms, he suddenly expired.

Inspection.—The ventricles of the brain contained from three to four ounces of limpid fluid; but the surrounding parts were entirely healthy. Imbedded in the substance of the left lobe of the cerebellum there was a tubercular mass, the shape and size of a very small walnut. Externally it was firm, and presented the usual appearance of the scrofulous tubercle; internally it was softened, with the common appearance of unhealthy scrofulous suppuration. The substance of the cerebellum around it was entirely healthy. No other appearance of disease was discovered in the head;

and the other viscera were sound.

The following case, for which I am indebted to Dr. Combe, of Leith, while it affords a good example of tubercular disease of the brain, is interesting from the singular coincidence of the two forms of paralysis, on the opposite sides of the face; the one connected with the division of the portio dura, the other with the disease in the brain.

Case LXXXVI.—A man, aged 36, about a year before his death, had a tumor extirpated from behind the angle of the jaw, on the left side, and immediately after the operation, paralysis took place in the left side of the face, in consequence of which his mouth was distorted to the opposite side in a most extraordinary degree. About six months after this, he began to complain of headach, and giddiness, which often gave him the appearance of intoxication, and after some time these symptoms were followed by impaired vision, occasional strabismus, and a considerable degree of deafness; and at last by drowsiness, coma, convulsions, and death. As these symptoms advanced, he became affected with numbness, and loss of power of the right side of the face, which increased very gradually. During the increase of this, the distortion of his mouth gradually diminished, and for some time before his death, his countenance had become entirely symmetrical. Both sides of his face were now entirely paralytic, but with this difference, that on the right side, the feeling was also lost, while on the left the feeling was entire.

Inspection.—In the centre of the middle lobe of the right hemisphere of the brain, there was a tuberele about an inch long, and three-fourths of an inch in breadth. At its lower part it was attached to the cerebral substance, but the rest of it was detached, being surrounded with dark coloured pus. In the vicinity there was increased vascularity with softening of the cerebral substance.

I shall only add on this subject one remarkable case of a tubercular mass of very great size attached to the

fals, which must have existent

OE THE BI

CASE LXXXVII.—A bo more than a year affected t during that time had been in a without any 1 cal internal syn fore his death, when he began the forehead, and considerable men. His pulse was natural, his tongue foul, and his sle usual treatment, the pain in t the beadach was much reliev he made little complaint. ' with much severity, and, wi the symptoms, he became gra after three days of profound co Inspection .- There was muc eles of the brain, and considera cerebral substance in several pl mor adhered by its base to the the right side. It was nearly ence at the breadest part, and a in thickness. Internally, it w or ash colour, and of a consist cosgulated albumen. It was in of the right hemisphere, where sion for uself, but without any noid of the part. There were size of large puts, and of the si tached to the falx,—the one other at its anterior extremity An ther tumor of the same k anterior labe of the left hemis by a slender filament to the pic

There is reason to believe to the pix tubercular matter in the brain, is often the result in the brain, is often the result.

r'h I am indebted iv Dr. tris a god example of on is the time from the tivo forms di paralysis, on ; the one connected with -13, the other with the

and Dietar

in, aged 36, about a year n r xunated from behind ook place in the left side of which his mouth was in a most extraordinary s liter this, he began to comfires, which of en gave him ation and offer some time T r nivered vision, oc-12 35, "O. 1. convulsions, and is advinced, he became afthe set power of the right Red very gradually. Durha distortion of his mouth ir some time bef re his her me entirely symmetrical. ropinely raralytic, but n the side the feeler in the man man entire. of the middle lobe of tife a, there my a teherle our e fourts in much it er : 910. in the extension they belt In 1 P. Solvening of the falx, which must have existed for a long time without producing any symptoms.

CASE LXXXVII.—A boy, aged 7, had been for more than a year affected with scrofulous sores, and during that time had been in a declining state of health, without any local internal symptom, till six weeks before his death, when he began to complain of pain in the forehead, and considerable uneasiness in the abdomen. His pulse was natural, but his appetite was bad, his tongue foul, and his sleep disturbed. usual treatment, the pain in the belly was removed, and the headach was much relieved, so that for a fortnight he made little complaint. The headach then returned with much severity, and, without any other change in the symptoms, he became gradually comatose, and died after three days of profound coma.

Inspection.—There was much effusion in the ventrieles of the brain, and considerable ramollissement of the eerebral substance in several places. A large firm tumor adhered by its base to the middle of the falx on the right side. It was nearly five inches in eireumference at the broadest part, and about an inch and a half in thickness. Internally, it was of a yellowish white or ash colour, and of a consistence resembling that of coagulated albumen. It was imbedded in the substance of the right hemisphere, where it had formed a depression for itself, but without any adhesion to the arachnoid of the part. There were two smaller tumors the size of large nuts, and of the same appearance, also attached to the falx,—the one at its posterior, and the other at its anterior extremity, both on the right side. Another tumor of the same kind was imbedded in the anterior lobe of the left hemisphere, and was attached by a slender filament to the pia mater.

There is reason to believe that the deposition of tubercular matter in the brain, as in other parts of the body, is often the result of inflammatory action of a low scrofulous character; that it may at first be excited

by injuries or other causes of inflammation; and that it may then advance gradually in a slow insidious manner.

Case LXXXVIII.—A boy, aged 8, in June 1821, fell from a height, and received an injury on the head, which was followed by considerable stupor. He was relieved for a time, by the usual remedies; and though he was never altogether well, no remarkable symptom occurred till the middle of October, when he complained of a sense of weight in the head, followed by some stupor, with slight paralysis of the right arm and leg. He continued in this state without any farther change, till the 2d March, 1822, when he was seized with severe headach, fever, restlessness, and dilated pupil. After partial relief, by the usual remedies, he sunk gradually into coma. and died on the 17th.

Inspection.—The ventricles of the brain contained about eight ounces of fluid. In the lower part of the posterior lobe of the right hemisphere, there was a firm tumor, the size of an almond. The right lobe of the eerebellum was reduced to nearly a purulent consistence. Below it, and immediately behind the petrous portion of the temporal bone, there was a tumor, the size of a hen's egg, externally of a firm consistence, but internally approaching to suppuration. It adhered firmly to the dura mater, which was much thickened at the place

of the adhesion.

Case LXXXIX.—A boy, aged 7, (for whose case I am indebted to the late Dr. Gregory,) in the beginning of the year 1811, received a severe injury of the forehead and nose by a fall, his nose being nearly flattened by it. From this time, he complained of headaeh, and after two or three months, became near-sighted. Soon after, his sight became indistinct, and after four or five months more, this was followed by blindness. About this time he began to be epileptie, and to be affected with weakness of the lower extremitics, which gradually encreased to perfect paraplegia. He died in April,

1012 after coma of three days timed entire till that time.

Inspection —A firm white large bean, lay over the jum The rentricles contained twel The left libe of the cerebellu

OF THE BE

Nearly analogous to tubered appear to be those cases in what a pure state is deposited in ey brain, or under the membrat nected with some of these are

and the right lobe was reduced

screfulous suppuration.

Case XC.-A woman, age fir a year or more before her part of which time she had able to be out of it only a part fected with violent paroxysms o attacked her in the night, or a morning, and generally contin hours, when it subsided, and le the same time the following attack was of shorter duration, half an hour. During the paro interes, and was sometimes as by delirium, and sometimes by en sectal occasions squinting v was rather sudden; she went edinary health, and was seiz ven, which went off about t returned a second and a third

Ventricles of the brain, without the Part, there was a firm without the following of an ounce of transpare

i. J. A d St. W ingil 13

r. rd 9, m Jun 1821.

well in micry in the head,

colribert to He was

or recodes; and though

il no congekalle spriptin

in al, redorted by some

is of the right arm and leg.

n withour any farther change.

then in was seized with severe

is he sunk gradually

ser the fron contained

11. In the lower part of the

s lie here, there was a firm nd. The rait libe of the

arta protent considence. dt.e petrous portica

w. a rimor, the size (1)

and instance, but inter--in . It a thered firmly to

well his and at the place

T. Those case!

the beginn : Take just the lie

Pattent Andrews and Angree and

. Par F. Frankel, Sin

1812, after coma of three days, his intellect having continued entire till that time.

Inspection.—A firm white flat tumor, the size of a large bean, lay over the junction of the optic nerves. The ventricles contained twelve ounces of clear fluid. The left lobe of the cerebellum was much indurated; and the right lobe was reduced to a mass of unhealthy scrofulous suppuration.

Nearly analogous to tubercular disease in the brain, appear to be those eases in which albuminous matter in a pure state is deposited in cysts in various parts of the brain, or under the membranes. The symptoms conneeted with some of these are very remarkable.

Case XC .- A woman, aged about 50, had been ill for a year or more before her death, during the greater part of which time she had been confined to bed, or able to be out of it only a part of the day. She was affeeted with violent paroxysms of headach, which usually attacked her in the night, or about four o'clock in the morning, and generally continued for two or three hours, when it subsided, and left her tolerably easy till the same time the following night. Sometimes the attack was of shorter duration, going off in a quarter or half an hour. During the paroxysm the pain was most intense, and was sometimes accompanied or succeeded by delirium, and sometimes by coma of short duration; on several oceasions squinting was observed. Her death was rather sudden; she went to bed at night in her ordinary health, and was seized with her usual paroxysm, which went off about the common time; but it returned a second and a third time, and she died early in the forenoon.

Inspection.—There was considerable effusion in the and the four of the state of th ventricles of the brain, without any disease of the substance. Between the lobes of the cerebellum, at the upper part, there was a firm white eyst containing upwards of an ounce of transparent albuminous matter of a pretty firm consistence, and in the lower part of the eyst there was some coagulated blood mixed with it.

Case XCI.—A man, aged 50, had been for some time affected with eough and bloody expectoration. In June, 1818, he was seized with headaeb, and some eonfusion of thought, which appeared chiefly in a tendency to misapply words. The pain, which was referred ehiefly to the forehead, increased in severity, and attacked him in violent paroxysms. The sight of his right eye was impaired, and soon after lost; and his speech became indistinct, and after some time inarticu-Six weeks after the commencement of these complaints, all the symptoms were increased. Violent paroxysms of pain were excited by the least motion, and even by change of posture in bed. He seldom attempted to speak, but he often pressed his hand on his forehead, and seemed to have uneasiness in his right arm. He had some squinting, with general weakness and paleness, and his intellect was evidently impaired. He died in August in a state of coma. The pulse had been usually natural, sometimes slow.

Inspection.—In the substance of the left hemisphere of the brain, towards the posterior part, there was a soft and vascular eyst, containing about two ounces of a thick colourless albuminous fluid, coagulable by heat, and exactly resembling the albumen of an egg. The cerebral substance around the ceyst was softened; the brain in other respects was healthy. The ventricles contained a small quantity of scrous fluid, and had no communication with the ceyst.

CASE XCII.—A child, aged at the time of his death $3\frac{1}{2}$ years, died in May 1823, after having been for nearly three years affected with almost constant convulsion. The disease began at the age of eight months, and at first assumed the form of a singular convulsive starting of the left arm and leg, compared by an intelligent surgeon who saw him at the time, to the motion which is produced by the electric shock. By degrees this passed

the rate regular convulsion the rate body. It occurre the rate day; occasionally the erry day; occasionally the treat and at one time of two terrals, the disease generally reny. For a year or more been in a state of general motion of the left hand. Historism, and never attempte food when it was put into the expressed his wants by pecucame to understand. Not want of voluntary power, continued with great severities were twisted the extremities were twisted.

OF THE

Inspection.—The bones of the extremit bead was of a natural size, was open. The left bemisph more than its anterior half, by a mass of rellucid albunded under the arachnoid; the albumen of an egg, but pieces of it could be separated up. Parts of the mass being became immediately opaque; in other respects was healthy

In these cases the fluid co an albuminous character.

Land the case is mentioned the case is mentioned left side, which continued affected, however, weaker the case of the ca

A STATE

. .] - Mod Last of the

I internal bear for some

old have exercise ration. In

wit neader, and some con-

peared chi Ar in a tendency

· tain, w'i,h was referred

or asel in severity, and at-

The sight of his

n after best and his

.. Latta some time inarrien-

e manyement of these com-

were increased. Violent par-

· dir the least motion, and on it. He sell mattempt-

- si l'his hand on his fore-

1 412 sin dis right arm.

Record weakness and ms Let ily impaired. He

forma. The pulse had been

tice if the left hemisphere

i strict parts there was a soft Hang d' at two ounces of a

us I I. cognable by heat

anin i an erg. The I the east this oftened; the

the int. The renther

1. arris tras tanto of his death Laring been for nearly

o must represent consultant transmit and a

3 (136.

. d'. l' a l'auxed with it.

into more regular convulsion, which afterwards affected the whole body. It occurred generally five or six times every day; oceasionally there were intervals of a day or two, and at one time of two weeks; but, after such intervals, the disease generally recurred with double severity. For a year or more before death, the child had been in a state of general palsy, except an oceasional motion of the left hand. He was in a state of perfect idiotism, and never attempted to speak; he swallowed food when it was put into his mouth; and oceasionally expressed his wants by peculiar eries, which his mother came to understand. Notwithstanding the complete want of voluntary power, the convulsive movements continued with great severity, and all the long bones of the extremities were twisted by them in a most singular manner.

Inspection.—The bones were all very soft, and the long bones of the extremities singularly twisted; the head was of a natural size, and the anterior fontanelle was open. The left hemisphere of the brain, over rather more than its anterior half, was remarkably depressed by a mass of pellueid albuminous matter, which was lodged under the arachnoid; it resembled in appearance the albumen of an egg, but was much firmer, so that pieces of it could be separated from the mass and lifted up. Parts of the mass being thrown into boiling water became immediately opaque and coagulated. The brain in other respects was healthy.

In these eases the fluid contained in the cysts was of an albuminous character. But it may also be found serous even in eases of very long standing. A very remarkable ease is mentioned by Andral. The patient was affected, at the age of 8 years, with palsy of the left side, which continued till puberty, and then gradually disappeared, leaving the limbs which had been affected, however, weaker than those of the other side, and much smaller in size. He lived in this state to the age of 72, and then died exhansted, without any symptoms in the head, or palsy. About the middle of the right hemisphere, there was found a cyst, formed in the sub-arachnoid cellular texture, full of a serous fluid, and the size of a small apple,—("pomme d'api.")

I conclude this part of the subject with the following remarkable case, showing the most extensive destruction of the substance of the brain that has ever occurred to me. It seems to have been originally a tubercular mass mixed with some masses of an albuminous character, and at last terminating by most extensive ramollissement. When we consider the extent of the disease, and the state of health of the patient a few hours before death, it is probably almost unique in the history of diseases of the brain, and shows us in a very striking manner the imperfection of our knowledge in regard to the symptoms arising from cerebral disease.

Case XCIII.—A young lady who, between her 14th and 17th years, had suffered considerably from chronic ophthalmia, was attacked in her 18th year with paralysis of the face. The mouth was twisted to the right side; the orbicularis of the left eye was affected, so that the eve could not be shut without a great effort; the sight of that eye was much impaired, and there was numbness of the whole left side of the face; the pulse was natural. The affection had begun with pain referred to the left ear. She was bled generally and topically, and freely purged, and the affection disappeared in six or eight days. Some time after, she had a second attack of the same kind, which also subsided in the same manner. After this she became liable to attacks of giddiness, accompanied by indistinct vision, and followed by vomiting. These attacks were of frequent occurrence, but did not in general continue above a day or two, and in the intervals she was in perfect health. These symptoms went on for about a year. In her 19th year, while she was one day sitting at dinner, she suddenly fell from her chair in a state of eomplete insensibility, with general muscular contraction or rather rigidity, but without convulsion; and in this state she re-

marked for nearly two maid of June 1822, an the attack till December exactly similar. A third and a fourth in June of th occurrence of these paroxy became more distressing, time accompanied by head to the left temple and th were often followed by this ear. After the fourth par tion, she began to have this period she used sea-b was increased, and the ed into a considerable the latter affection, an er to her, the operation of wl by a violent attack of th and these continued to rec time of her death. In reg occurrence, the account of formight they attacked her for the next fortnight she wa They continued to exhibit as formerly described, name cular rigidity; and there ne contiguon, except in one The disease. The from half an hour to an ho fection of vision, her gener, the was married in Febru two months before her dea came under the eare of my I am indebted for the prece ing symptoms then were, Par Arims of insensibility, I Lattied by giddiness and siek derice of amauosis, but the Lidith in other respects good test of strangalum, the paro

of T

Year, it, it's serous fluid, and ;- found diani.") of any mit the following ar most extensive destruction rain that has ever occurred to un eine garubercaur mes in inous character, and . Steament randlissement. . 4º in the history of diseases of is in a very striking manner the will fige in regard to the symptoms

The finita est, formed in the

TLAR DISEASE

12 mly that terren her 14d riens endly fr m chrone In er hid year with part mouth was twisted to the night 'e cre was affected, so that auf with ut a great effert; th impaired, and there may it side the face; the plan on a i an with pain refe one and the second and the I in the extrap disopper are simp after, she lad a sec. a Was a log subsided in the sea . Lama habit to attacks the indiction than and i The Bill shi mere of frequen grand attack bire and C. The side finds in firstless began a. rabout a rear. In her h 1 - Elitady it dimers the see

This occurred in the mained for nearly two hours. month of June 1822, and there was no recurrence of the attack till December following, when she had one exactly similar. A third took place in February 1823; and a fourth in June of the same year. From the first occurrence of these paroxysms, the attacks of giddiness became more distressing, and were then for the first time accompanied by headach, which was chiefly referred to the left temple and the left ear; and the attacks were often followed by thin watery discharges from the ear. After the fourth paroxysm of the comatose affection, she began to have indistinctness of vision. At this period she used sea-bathing, by which the headach was increased, and the indistinctness of vision passed into a considerable degree of amaurosis. the latter affection, an emetic was now recommended to her, the operation of which was immediately followed by a violent attack of the paroxysm of insensibility, and these continued to recur at short intervals to the time of her death. In regard to the period of their occurrence, the account of her friends was, that for a fortnight they attacked her generally every day, and for the next fortnight she was entirely free from them. They continued to exhibit nearly the same characters as formerly described, namely, insensibility, with museular rigidity; and there never was any appearance of convulsion, except in one instance, during the whole course of the disease. The attack generally continued from half an hour to an hour; and, except the imperfeetion of vision, her general health was so good, that she was married in February 1824, which was about two months before her death. At this time she first came under the eare of my friend, Dr. Ross, to whom I am indebted for the preceding history; and the leading symptoms then were, frequent recurrence of the paroxysms of insensibility, with violent headach, accompanied by giddiness and siekness. There was a great degree of amaurosis, but the pulse was natural, and her health in other respects good. Under the use of extract of stramonium, the paroxysms were now suspended, the vision was very much improved, and her general health and spirits were such, that the evening before her death was spent cheerfully with a party in the house of a friend. She returned home about eleven o'clock at night, and went to bed apparently in her usual health. About eight o'clock in the following morning, she was found in a state of insensibility with rigidity of the body; she was supposed by her friends to be in one of her usual attacks, but when she was seen by Dr. Ross, a short time after, he found that she was dead. I was present at the examination of the body.

Inspection.—The brain externally appeared healthy, but when a thin section was cut from the upper part of the left hemisphere, a cavity was exposed, through which a probe passed in every direction without any resistance, through nearly the whole extent of the hemisphere. This, upon farther examination, was found to arise from the whole hemisphere being in such a remarkable state of decomposition or softening, that it formed one great cyst, full of soft pultaceous matter, inclosed in a very thin covering, formed by the healthy cerebral matter on the surface. The healthy portion forming this covering, in many places did not exceed a quarter of an inch in thickness; and at the thickest parts, which were on the upper surface of the brain, did not exceed one-half or three-fourths of an inch. The contained matter was a thin soft pulp, mixed with portions of a pellucid albuminous substance, which coagulated when thrown into boiling water. This matter was chiefly in irregular masses, but there were some firmer portions of it which could be separated in the form of distinct round nodules, resembling hydatids. On examination, however, they were found not to be hydatids, but uniform masses of the albuminous matter in a more concrete state. On the external part of the hemisphere, lying over the petrous portion of the temporal bone, there was a tumor the size of a pigeon's egg, adhering firmly to the inner surface of the dura mater. Externally, it was irregular as if formed of a

constites of smaller tumors reed partly of a reddish soft partly of a semipellucid alb dales of various degrees of into boiling water, the whole opaque white colour, and a The left ventricle was entire; tity of serous fluid, and was si mass by a very thin septum was healthy, except on the lobe, which was considerably every one who witnessed th hemisphere had been cons right diminished in the sam sensibly pressed towards nerves seemed softer than n

OF THE

SECTIONS

CF CERTAIN AFFECTIONS

CRANI

I was led to make some res

Case XCIV.—A woman fore her death, fell down injuries especially one on the bed for some days. From the same senerally complained as a very disordered dinary duties of her family, cattageous delirium.

1 1 U 75 .. 7

and Maria water

2.2 evening befor.

this will a part in the

r mm d home about eleven

arraren er in ber

is o sees in the framing

t state of insense, and with

's supposed to her friends

apooks, but m'en she was

me after, he found that she

t the examination of the

externally appeared healthr.

as cut from the upper part of

na y was expised, through

- re direction with ut and · i i extent f the hem-

er stening, that is

og fir d is he healthy

The 'ealthy portion -- Jes 111 Dut exceed a

es; and the thickest

unper surface of the brain, r lare journes of an inch.

this soft pulp, mixed with

in. 19 20 Hance which co. water. This matter

"Issa's "or there were some

is cruid be separated in the

. L Maha shall be to be

he al'um nous marer

n the extense part of the

nto estern the test

The strain of th

congeries of smaller tumors; internally, it was composed partly of a reddish soft flesh coloured matter, and partly of a semipellucid albuminous substance, in nodules of various degrees of firmness. When thrown into boiling water, the whole mass assumed a uniform opaque white eolour, and a hard cheesy eonsistence. The left ventricle was entire; it contained a small quantity of serous fluid, and was separated from the diseased mass by a very thin septum. The right hemisphere was healthy, except on the inner part of the anterior lobe, which was considerably softened. It appeared to every one who witnessed the dissection, that the left hemisphere had been considerably enlarged, and the right diminished in the same proportion, the falx being sensibly pressed towards the right side. The optie nerves seemed softer than natural; the eerebellum was healthy.

SECTION II.

OF CERTAIN AFFECTIONS OF THE BONES OF THE CRANIUM.

I was led to make some researches on this subject by the following Case,—

Case XCIV.—A woman, aged 48, about a year before her death, fell down a stair, and received various injuries, especially one on the head, which confined her to bed for some days. From this time her health was bad; she generally complained of fixed pain of the head, and had a very disordered state of the stomach and bowels. She was able, however, to attend to the ordinary duties of her family, till about three weeks before her death, when she was seized with fever and outrageous delirium. These symptoms subsided after

a bleeding; and next day, she had crysipelas of the face, which went off in a few days. She was then able to be out of bed, but complained of a fixed and deep-seated pain in the right side of the head, a little above the ear, and there was discharge of matter from the right ear. She continued in this state, sitting up part of every day, till three days before her death, when she became comatose, with partial paralysis of the left side, and frequent convulsive motions of the right arm. She died on the third day after the occurrence of these

symptoms.

Inspection.—The cranium was very easily opened, the bones being remarkably soft. On raising the skullcap, the inner surface of the whole upper part of the eranium exhibited a singular state of disease. The inner table seemed to be wanting through its whole extent, and there appeared the rough, irregular, and cancellated structure of the central part of the bonc. Betwixt this surface and the dura mater, there was a deposition of soft adventitious membrane of a yellowish colour, varying from one-twelfth to one-eighth of an inch in thickness. In raising the skulleap, this membrane, in some places, adhered to the dura mater, leaving exposed the irregular cancellated structure of the bone; and in other places, it adhered to the bone, exposing the dura mater of its natural appearance. parts affected by this singular state of disease were, the frontal bone above the orbitar plates, the whole of both parietal bones, the squamous portion of both temporal bones, and rather more than the upper half of the occipital bone. The greatest erosion was on the parietal bones, where several portions were very thin and transparent, and a few points were perforated. The external surface of the cranium was of a natural appearance, except at a few points where the erosion had perforated the bone by very small apertures. In the lower part of the right hemisphere of the brain, towards the posterior part, there was an extensive abseess. The brain in other respects was healthy. On the petrous portion of the right temporal bone, the dura mater was

DISEASES OF THE

cfaduk colour, and de luce was healthy. I find no case describe bling this remarkable affe a complete destruction of of the cranium; and in it adrentitious membrane, i ererywhere agglutinated This disease must have be time; the abscess of the and the immediate cause respectable married wom for suspecting a syphili fore is probably to be co inflammatory action at destroving it by caries. in an injury, or may c cause. It affects most the skull, though it may but I have seen no cas which it was entirely con lady mentioned by Mr. 1 received a slight blow on for 30 years after, was li was constantly referred to drowsy, and her vision w 50 she died comatose. jury, the bone, to the e thin from absorption as dura mater at this part v brain beneath was of indurated; and this dismiddle lobe. In a cas followed a blow on th was externally sound, but the internal table w extent of one of the adhered to the bone as f

Practical Observations

. For Which

anifold mainers of the

and the god and deep.

" is had, a little above

20 of water from the

in state, sitting up part

. .: u = d-M; n, to she

i. Ma ris ri the lift side.

or the market of these

- " is "LIT came penel.

. On raising the skull-

to while upper pirt of the

r state of disease. The in-

r sing through its whole

the ruth urem r. and

. - 1 11 · f 7 10 ; took

Local digital lian in

saulusp, this mem-

a lated structure of the

I'm I to the bone, ex-

priarance. The

- again of the again were, the

tempore

Protest of the Co.

- 2 mi a the total.

the state of the

a lad frak

of a dark colour, and detached from the bone; but the bone was healthy.

I find no case described by any writer exactly resembling this remarkable affection of the bone. There was a complete destruction of nearly the whole inner table of the cranium; and in its place, a deposition of a soft adventitious membrane, by which the dura mater was everywhere agglutinated to the diseased bony surface. This disease must have been going on for a considerable time; the abscess of the brain was probably recent, and the immediate cause of death. The patient was a respectable married woman, and there seemed no ground for suspecting a syphilitic taint. Such a disease therefore is probably to be considered as the result of a slow inflammatory action affecting the bone, and gradually destroying it by caries. Such a disease may originate in an injury, or may commence without any obvious cause. It affects most commonly the external table of the skull, though it may likewise affect the internal; but I have seen no case described by any writer in which it was entirely confined to the internal table. A lady mentioned by Mr. Howship,* at the age of 15, received a slight blow on the right side of the head, and for 30 years after, was liable to severe headaeh, which was constantly referred to that spot. She then became drowsy, and her vision was impaired, and at the age of 50 she died comatose. At the seat of the original in jury, the bone, to the extent of a crown piece, was so thin from absorption as to be almost transparent. The dura mater at this part was altogether removed, and the brain beneath was of a dark livid colour, and much indurated; and this disease extended through the whole middle lobe. In a case mentioned by Desault, death followed a blow on the head after a month; the bone was externally sound, and its coverings were healthy; but the internal table was blackened through the whole extent of one of the parietal bones; the dura mater adhered to the bone as firmly as to the other parts of the

Practical Observations in Surgery and Morbid Anatomy.

cranium; and there was suppuration on the surface of the brain. This was probably an earlier stage of that disease which occurred in Case XCIV, and in a more

limited form in Mr. Howship's ease. A man, aged 28, whose ease is related by Mr. Wathen, was affected with a swelling the size of a pigeon's egg on the left parietal bone. It gave him no pain, and continued nearly stationary for a year and a half, when a similar tumor appeared on the left side of the os frontis. These swellings increased, and after several weeks were united, so that they nearly covered the left side of his head. The swelling was colourless and without pain, and about this time he suffered some convulsive attacks. Caustie was applied to the posterior part of the tumor, and when the eschar separated, the integuments were found to be two inches in thickness; and the bone beneath was extremely irregular, sending up sharp bony spiculæ into the tumor, some of which were an inch in length. A similar eschar being taken out from the anterior part showed the same appearances. Much thin ichorous matter was discharged from the openings with some pus. He had now frequent pain and fever, with occasional convulsion and delirium; but eontinued to go about, and could walk many miles. He died gradually exhausted, but retaining his faculties to the last, two years and a half after the commencement of the complaint. On dissection, the whole left side of the eranium was found perforated by numerous openings, between which there were bony ridges, filaments, and processes of a variety of shapes; the sharper spiculæ piercing the substance of the diseased integuments. The two largest perforations corresponded to the seats of the two original tumors, and corresponding to these there were two small abscesses in the brain. The inner surface of the bone was diseased in the same manner as the outer, and the dura mater was connected to it by a soft fungus, which arose from every part of the diseased bone.* Morgagni mentions extensive

cariti of the back part of th thickening of the dura n low, and proved fatal after man who died epileptic, aft intense headach, Zacchias fo occipital bone carious to a si being sound. A man menti epileptic after a blow on the ed several times a day for th peaceived at the seat of th posed by an incision, was the bone, namely, a part o place the trephine was app aring it was found "cellul the midst." The man die the operation, and on insp cular asperity on the inne the size of a crown piece,

in the membrane the size of

SEASES OF THE BO

The cases now referred to ples of an uncommon modif bines of the head, in which the inner table. The more that which occurs in the or the whole depth of the b paer mena are connected r ease. It appears to be the inflammatory action, which often very slight; or may vious cause. Its progress when it has been excited. how far it may extend. I of a part of the outer tab depth of the bone; and mater and brain, and then mentioned by Mr. O'Hallo tat Bolis II. It.

^{*} Medical Observations and Enquiries, vol. v.

FIRE RALLE

radia on the surface of In earlier stone of that

* XCIV. and in a more

e is related by Mr. Wa-

ling the size of a pigeon's

It gave him no pain,

The a year and a balf,

on the left side of the

reased, and after several

T Dearly covered the left

ry was end priess and with-

he suffered some consul-

polied to the posterior part sich is seporated, the inte-

in thes in thickness; and

ely interder, sending ap

umer, some of which were

e the being taken out d the same appearances.

is discharged from the

h d'n w frequent pain

rulsion and delirium; but

could walk many miles.

but retaining his faculties

the after the commence.

lisection, the whole left

of porturated by numerous

ere were h or ridges, fila.

riety (i hapes; the sharper

nce of the diseased interne-

From and Test oding

e 1735 13. Sel in the same

a fara mater was connected

i r se fe na erent part of The Death is extension

Mi Eil and

s case.

caries of the back part of the cranium, with remarkable thickening of the dura mater, which originated in a blow, and proved fatal after six years; and in a young man who died epileptic, after having suffered long from intense headach, Zacchias found the inner table of the occipital bone carious to a small extent, the other table being sound. A man mentioned by Dr. Clossy became epileptic after a blow on the head, and the fits returned several times a day for three years. A fulness was perceived at the seat of the injury, which, being exposed by an incision, was found to be an elevation of the bone, namely, a part of the left parietal. place the trephine was applied, and the bone on perforating it was found "cellulous and spungy, with pus in the midst." The man died comatose a few days after the operation, and on inspection, there was found a circular asperity on the inner surface of the bone about the size of a crown piece, with several small abscesses in the membrane the size of peas.*

The cases now referred to may be considered as examples of an uncommon modification of the disease of the bones of the head, in which it is principally confined to the inner table. The more common modification of it is that which occurs in the outer table, or which affects the whole depth of the bone; and some remarkable phenomena are connected with the history of the disease. It appears to be the result of a peculiar low inflammatory action, which may arise from injuries often very slight; or may commence without any obvious cause. Its progress is often extremely slow; but when it has been excited, it is impossible to conjecture how far it may extend. It may terminate by exfoliation of a part of the outer table, or may affect the whole depth of the bone; and it may extend to the dura mater and brain, and then be speedily fatal. A man mentioned by Mr. O'Halloran, was seized, without any

[·] Clossy's Observations on some of the Diseases of the Human Body, p. 17.

injury, with a pain in the upper part of the os frontis, which increased in violence with throbbing, so as to unfit him for his employment. After nearly four months, an abseess was formed on the part, which burst; the bone was found earious, and perforated by an opening, through which the dura mater could be seen eovered with pus, and by this opening matter was discharged at each dressing to the amount of a table spoonful. The piece of bone became loose, and separated in ten days; another piece, which was also earious, was separated in another week, and in a fortnight from this time the wound was healed.* This may be eonsidered as an example of the idiopathic form of the The inflammatory action probably began in the perieranium, and afterwards affected the bone. The disease arises more commonly from injuries, and is often remarkably slow in its progress. A man, mentioned by the writer now referred to, received a blow on the head with a eudgel, which left some heaviness and headach, but without any urgent symptom, until many months after, when a tumor formed on the part, and attained the size of an apple. It was opened, and under it there was found a eireular aperture in the eranium the size of a half-erown, exposing the dura mater, which was eovered with pus. After some time, a fungus arose from it; and after this had been destroyed by alum, the sore healed. A boy, aged 7, mentioned by Sir T. Cullum, fell with his head in the fire, it was supposed from a fit, and was much burned before he was ob-The eonsequence was an extensive eschar, which did not separate for a very long time. It then left the bone quite bare, and after three months more a separation of bone took place in one piece, consisting of the whole of one parietal bone, part of the other parietal, and part of the occipital. Granulations springing from the dura mater then presented themselves, and in six months the sore was healed, except a part about the size of the mouth of a small tea eup; the boy being "MEASIS OF THE B

ethernise in perfect health. after there was still a sor which discharged considera Ettle ossification had been] tion of the injury."

A remarkable circumstan of the bone is, that when it not always confined to the the injury, but may spread over other parts of the cran Mr. Norris, after a fall wh alarming symptoms, was a It generally fixed with gr tis, which had been the se place, a tumor formed, s three months after the fal carrous. The trephine w belief that matter might be f.und; the disease was co mater being bealthy. A sir on the occiput, under which carious; after some time thrown off the size of a sixp In this manner tumor after jets of the head, and wer For several months pieces of thrown off; afterwards the separated, at each time e from this period the sore hea. She died nine mor of the exfoliations; and skull were entirely mantin judged from the engraving citial bone, more than on and a considerable portion There was not in this c syllis.* A woman men . Ironsactions of the Medic

^{*} O'Halloran on Injuries of the Head, p. 58.

Es Tall Radions

ger part of the 's frontis, . . i.g. tipg, so as to

mer. All healy four

= . 1 n the jan, which

and perforated by

columnier and be end a figure of matter was

". the am all of a table

came! se, and separated

which was also carious.

. i. ar i in a f-staight from

b wiel. This may be

the un rathic f m of the

r action probably began in

rela fected the bone. The

вина Апп. шеп-

· * i to, received a flow on

h leit some heaviness and

rain: start om, until many

er med on the part, and

It was opened, and under

or of mure in the cranium

ag the dura mater, which

r some time, a fungus arese

ten to red by alum, orly, mentional by Sir T.

be was ob-

n : on extensive eschal,

a rity ing the le then

el come mulias more d in one gives a painting of

Fart : e other parietal

That is spile in for

ard in a

Tort a latt of the

otherwise in perfect health. Between five and six years after, there was still a sore the size of a crown piece, which discharged considerably; and at that time, "very little ossification had been produced towards the reparation of the injury."

A remarkable circumstance in the history of disease of the bone is, that when it has once been excited, it is not always confined to the part which was the scat of the injury, but may spread gradually and extensively over other parts of the cranium. A lady mentioned by Mr. Norris, after a fall which produced at the time no alarming symptoms, was affected with pain in the head. It generally fixed with greatest severity in the os frontis, which had been the seat of the injury; and, on that place, a tumor formed, which was opened more than three months after the fall, when the bone was found carious. The trephine was then applied, under the belief that matter might be lodged within, but none was found; the disease was confined to the bone, the dura mater being healthy. A similar tumor soon after formed on the occiput, under which also the bone was found carious; after some time it exfoliated, a piece being thrown off the size of a sixpence, and the wound healed. In this manner tumor after tumor formed on various parts of the head, and went through the same course. For several months pieces of the outer table only were thrown off; afterwards the whole dcpth of the bone was separated, at each time exposing the dura mater; and from this period the sores in the integuments did not heal. She died nine months after the commencement of the exfoliations; and on dissection portions of the skull were entirely wanting, consisting, as far as can be judged from the engraving, of the upper half of the occipital bone, more than one-third of both parietal boncs, and a considerable portion of both temporal bones. There was not in this case the slightest suspicion of syphilis.* A woman mentioned by Saviard, who was

Transactions of the Medical Society of London, vol. i.

received into the Hotel Dieu, in consequence of an injury of the head from a fall, suffered successive exfoliations of both tables of the eranium, to such an extent, that the pieces, when put together, resembled the skulleap as it is sawn off in dissection. This process occupied two years, at the end of which she was dismissed in good health, but with the upper part of the brain eovered only by integuments. Hildanus relates the case of a man, on whose eranium a number of tumors formed, from which pieces of bones were discharged, at each time exposing the dura mater. The sores had healed, and the man was alive at the time when the account was written; but affected with paraplegia. eases are related by Portal; in two that were under his own eare, and in which he had no reason to suspect any syphilitic taint, the disease was arrested by mereury and antiscorbuties.

Another peculiarity in the history of these affections is the slowness with which the bone falls into disease, and the length of time during which a disease, of small extent, may exist, producing urgent symptoms, but making very little progress. A lady mentioned by M. Mareehal, after a slight blow on the head, suffered eonstant pain in the part, often aggravated into violent paroxysms, which the most active treatment had failed to remove. After severe suffering for several years, an ineision was made, when a small portion of the bone was found earious. This portion was removed by the trephine, and the patient got well. The disease in this case was probably superficial, and it is likely that simply exposing the bone, and promoting its exfoliation, might have answered as well as this formidable operation. In other cases of this kind, the disease is at first eonfined to the inner table, from which it may, after a long interval, extend inwards, terminating by fatal discase in the brain: some examples of this have already been referred to. In other eases, again, it appears that the disease may be first external, and afterwards, leaving its original seat, extend to the internal parts. A boy mentioned by Mr. Howship, received at school a

DISEASES OF THE BONE

blow on the head with a rule small sore, which continued rears. It then healed, and impaired, and he became opplied at the seat of the injure on the third day after the odura mater were sound, but seat of the injury had eviden infammation, and the brain wat the whole extent of the middle

Many surgical writers teach the bone becomes diseased af the head, it is the separation mater that kills the bone. must have seen numerous ca ium was separated without a others, in which the bone l pericranium had not been s ready quoted from Desault, i blow on the head after a monally sound and its covering ble was blackened through the the parietal bones, yet the du portion as firmly as to the sor be the inflammatory action that arin, we have seen, may lear and spread from one part to a is arrested by the powers of t a manner which eludes our very little under our control. Pears, that there is in genera for meddling with such cases toms indicate the formation o this must be evacuated; but only the danger from the lodg other effects on parts thus lial are extremely ambiguous, cases of this kind have proved pication of the trephine, which

blow on the head with a ruler. It was followed by a small sore, which continued to discharge matter for six years. It then healed, and soon after his sight was impaired, and he became epileptic. The trephine was applied at the seat of the injury without relief; he died on the third day after the operation. The bone and dura mater were sound, but the pia mater under the seat of the injury had evidently suffered from chronie inflammation, and the brain was much indurated through the whole extent of the middle lobe.

Many surgical writers teach us that in cases in which the bone becomes diseased after wounds and injuries of the head, it is the separation of the pericranium or dura mater that kills the bone. But every practical surgeon must have seen numerous eases in which the perieranium was separated without any such consequence; and others, in which the bone became carious, though the pericranium had not been separated. In a case already quoted from Desault, in which death followed a blow on the head after a month, the bone was externally sound and its covering healthy; the internal table was blackened through the whole extent of one of the parietal bones, yet the dura mater adhered to this portion as firmly as to the sound bonc. It appears to be the inflammatory action that kills the bone, and this action, we have seen, may leave the seat of the injury, and spread from one part to another, until its progress is arrested by the powers of the constitution, acting in a manner which eludes our observation, and which is very little under our control. On this principle it appears, that there is in general very little encouragement for meddling with such cases by the trephine. If symptoms indicate the formation of matter beneath the bone, this must be evacuated; but perforations will remove only the danger from the lodgment of matter, and their other effects on parts thus liable to inflammatory action are extremely ambiguous. It is certain, that many cases of this kind have proved fatal soon after the application of the trephine, which had been going on for a considerable time without exhibiting any unfavourable

Fired sire extoliations im, to sign an extent, that ther, some led the skullcap a. This process occupied v¹ .h sue was dismissed in . I part of the brain cover-. Lanus relates the case of number of tumors formed, s were discharged, as each r. The stres had healed the time when the account l with paraplezia. Similar ; in two that were under his had no reason to suspect any was arrested by mercury and h copy of these affections ne fal's into disease, or which a disease, of small urgo toymptoms, but mak-A lady menti ned by M. m a the head, suffered

n actrarated into riolent a fre treatment hal failed

Hering for several rears, an

small It not the bone

tion was removed by the

The disease in this

and it is likely that sim-

al rom or y its expliance. re 35 ° S 1 rm. I le opera.

said the day so is at time

in which is not after a is a rainging by foral is

es i chi chi alient

in it uppers to

THE CREATER.

1. in consequence of an injury

symptom. In a remarkable ease which has been reported to me by an intelligent friend, and which had this termination, the inner table of the skull was found on inspection to be perfectly sound. The disease was confined to the external table, which was found to a considerable extent completely separated from the internal, being confined only by the integuments. The case had originated in a slight wound which had fallen into an ill-conditioned state, and the caries had been going on for a considerable time. Free incision of the integuments is the only practice that can be required in such a case, and then promoting the separation of the diseased portion

of bone by the usual means.

Even in the ordinary cases, so familiar to praetical surgeons, in which the formation of matter takes place within the eranium in eonsequence of external injuries, it is probable that the main object of attention ought to be the inflammatory action which has been excited, rather than the mere changes which are going on in the bone; and that the formation of matter is to be eonsidered not as an effect of the disease of the bone, but as a result of the inflammation of parts from which the bone itself has also suffered. Cases are related by Morgagni and others, in which, after such injuries, matter was formed between the cranium and the brain, without the least appearance of diseasc in the bone. The communication of inflammatory action from the bone itself to the brain and its membranes, is strikingly illustrated by two cases related by De Haen, in his remarks on the application of the actual cautery to the cranium. This remedy seems to have been at that time very much employed in various affections of the head; and it was performed by first turning back a portion of the integuments, and then applying the cauterizing iron to the surface of the bone. In the two eases referred to, namely, a boy of 12, and a young woman of 20, this practice was employed on account of amaurosis. They both died with symptoms of cerebral inflammation; the former on the fourth day, and the latter on the fifth after the operation. On dissection, extensive inflammation

of the membranes was found, and in one of the cases, the d stace of the brain. The case ing the direct communication from the bone to the parts be er any injury which could dire the bone, for no caries or destr was observed in either case.

In the affections of the bott subject of the preceding observ which was the seat of the dis by caries through its whole co able variety of the affection h fessor Russel, in which the u advances in a narrow line in to insulate a piece of bone of ternards thrown out. The some cases perfectly healthy, a than in the healthy state, being a piece of ivory, and without d cases, the disease took place aft with at any apparent cause.* Another singular variety of which after an injury of the hea disappears by absorption withou Ethic A child, aged nine Mr. Howship, received an inju bone from a fall. There was n symptom at the time; but seve dent, the pulsation of the brain at the seat of the injury, and the on the left side. At the age o cont was written, she had rec sile, which had been improvin otherwise in good health; but derable deficiency of bone on the

and when she cried or coughed burgh, v. j. of the Medico. Co 1 Pm 2 - 4

EN STATE OF THE THE SE

in the les

e follows for a

and. The deep was con-

the massiound to a consi-

· parted from the internal,

it raments. The case had

d which had fallen into an

ne caries had been going on

somethin of the integuments

n' r , nired in such a case,

ses, so familiar to practical

main n of matter takes place

n i nee if external injuries,

a his die f attention ought to Lis ben excited, ra-

is be going on in the

a fa ter is to le consi-

old stade fill. I new huras n of parts from which the

! Coses are related by Mor-' giter such inj ties, matter

(a zion and the inin, without

12.35e in the lane. The com-

gran a from the hone itself

mes, 15 str bingly illustrated

D Hon, in his remarks on the a. Ser of the contum. This

e a - that time very much em-

or as of the boad; and it may - that is the integral

it if a market in to the

I have not the state of the sta

A Ball Hill

the after

Sand Transfer Chamber

of the membranes was found, with formation of matter; and in one of the cases, the disease had affected the substance of the brain. The cases are interesting, as showing the direct communication of inflammatory action from the bone to the parts beneath, without contusion or any injury which could directly produce the death of the bone, for no caries or destruction of the bone itself was observed in either case.

In the affections of the bone, which have been the subject of the preceding observations, the piece of bonc, which was the seat of the disease, is in general eroded by caries through its whole extent; but a very remarkable variety of the affection has been described by Professor Russel, in which the ulcerative or carious process advances in a narrow line in a circuitous manner, so as to insulate a piece of bone of some extent, which is afterwards thrown out. The part thus separated is in some cases perfectly healthy, and in others is more dense than in the healthy state, being smooth and white like a piece of ivory, and without diploc. In some of these cases, the disease took place after injuries, and in others

without any apparent cause.*

Another singular variety of the affection occurs, in which after an injury of the head, a portion of the bone disappears by absorption without ulceration of the intcguments. A child, aged nine months, mentioned by Mr. Howship, received an injury of the right parietal bone from a fall. There was no wound, and no urgent symptom at the time; but several weeks after the accident, the pulsation of the brain was distinctly perceived at the seat of the injury, and the child became paralytic on the left side. At the age of four years, when the account was written, she had recovered the use of the left side, which had been improving gradually, and she was otherwise in good health; but there was still a considerable deficiency of bone on the right side of the head, and when she cried or coughed, this part became tense

^{*} Transactions of the Medico-Chirurgical Society of Edinburgh, vol. i.

and evidently swelled. A boy, aged 14, mentioned by Mr. Wilmar, received a blow on the head, which was immediately followed by a soft tumor about two inches in diameter at the base. After this tumor had continued stationary for two months, it was opened by a free incision, but discharged only blood in a fluid state. Under it the bone was found to be completely wanting to an extent exactly corresponding to the base of the

tumor. The wound healed favourably.**

Many cases have occurred in which tumors of the dura mater have occasioned absorption of a portion of the bone, and have appeared under the integuments. A remarkable case of this kind, which I saw along with Mr. Wishart, has been described by him in the Edinburgh Medical and Surgical Journal, (vol. xviii. p. 393.) Many others are on record, some of which present interesting phenomena from complications of disease. girl, aged 19, mentioned by Mr. Hill, was first seized with numbness of the left hand, which gradually extended upwards along the arm, and was accompanied by vomiting and violent headach. After two months, the whole left side became paralytic. After another month, a small tumor like a pea appeared by the side of the bregma, which being repeatedly opened with a laneet, discharged matter with some relief. After seven months more, Mr. Hill found a small opening in the left parietal bone about a quarter of an inch in diameter, but which was plugged up by a hard substance from within. The trephine being applied at this place, discovered an abseess, which discharged four ounces of matter, and a small excreseence like a wart, which had completely plugged up the opening in the bone, and had prevented the escape of the matter. There was much relief after the discharge, but protrusion of the brain took place, and she sunk gradually and died in about two months, retaining her faculties till the last two days. Much effusion was found in the ventrieles of the brain, and destruction of the brain by suppuration about two inches

anied the opening of the that in this singular cas on the dura mater had p and thus afforded a par many instances are on re cause of this kind, matte has found for itself an exi amples of this have been only add another. A ma in the Medical and Physic affected with great derang in the back of his head. motion. His sight and h during the more severe sight was nearly lost. H nearly a year, when a turn ture, which being opened and, on examining the we was an opening in the sutur from within the cranium, in a few weeks, and from t complaint.

DISEASES OF

OF CERTAIN AFFECTIONS Some obscure affections of very argent symptoms, hav nected with a disease of th

SECT

of which presents some r In the cases related by s

Hill's Cases in Surgert p. 19

1417274

- size 14 minthened by

The hall which was

and the state of t

1. . . the tur or ball of inut.

. .: The chened it a free

air ooi in a fluid state.

I to be completely wanting

of miling to the last of the

- d in which rimors of the

1 1 - rution of a portion of

a dund r the integuments. A

and, which I sav along with

ser ed by him in the Edin-

- Lurnal, vol. xviii. p. 393.

I come of which present in-

na Contras f disease. A

in II: IIII mas first seized

. I of which gradually es-

rm, and was accompanied br

Arex in months, the

.a After another mont

rened with a lancel After seven m old

n. Lin bimeer, bit which

- 12 hance it m with it. Th ar to Pace discovered on ... inces of mater, and

3 mar. which I complete There are not bed prefer

and a fine brain 100% place.

a 1 . 1 . ur tho mouths

the list two date. Huch The truin and a Lat. 13 de las ja-

around the opening of the skull.* It seems probable that in this singular ease, the small warty exereseence on the dura mater had produced absorption of the bone, and thus afforded a partial exit to the matter. many instances are on record, in which, without any cause of this kind, matter formed within the eranium has found for itself an exit through the bone; some examples of this have been already referred to; I shall only add another. A man mentioned by Dr. M'Turk, in the Medical and Physical Journal for April 1819, was affected with great derangement of the stomach and pain in the back of his head, which was much increased by motion. His sight and hearing were impaired, especially during the more severe paroxysms of pain, when his sight was nearly lost. He had continued in this state nearly a year, when a tumor formed on the sagittal suture, which being opened, discharged matter freely; and, on examining the wound, it appeared that there was an opening in the suture, and that the matter came from within the eranium. The wound healed gradually in a few weeks, and from that time he was free from eomplaint.

SECT. III.

OF CERTAIN AFFECTIONS OF THE PERICRANIUM.

Some obscure affections of the head, accompanied by very urgent symptoms, have been found to be connected with a disease of the perieranium, the history of which presents some very singular phenomena. In the eases related by Sir Everard Home, t the

[&]quot; Hill's Cases in Surgery, p. 130.

⁺ Transactions of a Society for the Improvement of Medical and Surgical Knowledge, vol. iii.

symptoms in general were headach, with various uneasy feelings in the head, and a painful tenderness of the sealp at a particular spot, with some degree of swelling or thickening of the integuments at the place. In one, the sight and hearing were considerably impaired, and in several of the cases there were fits resembling epilepsy. They were treated by dividing the integuments and pericranium freely down to the bone, and then dressing the wounds with lint, so as to allow them to heal slowly with suppuration. In making the incision, the pericranium was found morbidly sensible, and eonsiderably thickened; and in some of the eases, indurated, approaching to the structure of cartilage. This treatment was in some of them followed by immediate and permanent relief; in others, the patient continued liable to fits or head-symptoms upon any exeess. In some of them, the ineisions healed without any affection of the bone being discovered; in others, a portion of the bone appeared white and porous or honey-combed, and a limpid fluid appeared to percolate through it, which returned immediately as often as it was wiped off. In one of these cases, the porous piece of bone exfoliated after the wound had been dressed with dry lint for six weeks; the wound then healed, and the cure was permanent. In another, after waiting eight weeks for the exfoliation, he touched it repeatedly with diluted nitric acid, after which it exfoliated, and the eure was permanent. In one fatal ease, he found the perieranium thickened into a mass of a fibrous bony texture, and, corresponding to this part internally, there was a similar thickening and induration of the dura mater. Most of these eases had been treated by long eourses of mereury without benefit, in some of them with aggravation of the symptoms.

This affection seems to correspond with the disease which has been described by Mr. Crampton under the name of Periostitis.* Among his cases, affecting various parts of the body, there are two remarkable exam-

DISEASES OF T

placefit in the head; the In the former, a boy of 1small angry tumor on the which, after some days, a right evelids and forehead, tous inflammation and fev became suddenly comatese, the 12th. On dissection, t frontal bone was found re from the bone, much pure them. Internally the dura extent corresponding to t greenish puriform fluid wa bone. The inner surface covered with pus; the pia and covered with pus to the part corresponding to pericranium. The other ca 32, who was affected with a over the left parietal bone. and its origin was ascribed to there was an opening in probe could be passed down intense pain in the left side o was wasted and paralytic, a tracted; both lower extremit was indistinct; she had vomi fits. The tamor was divided and in doing so the periora firm. fibrous, and morbidly principal part of the turn tumer was found rough an portion of it was removed dura mater under it appeared thickened. For six days a terer, extensive erysipelas convulsions. Suppuration all these symptoms were relie cure a slough was detached

^{*} Dublin Hospital Reports, vol. i.

The Boll of the B.

political and a property 4 Juntal tenderness of

t of the wife to be desired of

f the i temments at the

t and hearing were consi-

significant the cases there

. They were treated by

I pericaniam ireely lown

.. by the wounds with link.

action plan with suppuration.

'ne perieranium was found

d, arrore hing to the struc-

r at nt was in a me of them

el per vane tre lef; in others,

a've to his it held-symptoms

o of them, the Loisins heal-

is the hope being discovered;

Fore appeared white and

A la Compit Build appeared

h roumed is mediately as

In one of those cises, the

tel after it's wound had

t for six weeks; the wound

v s permanent. In another,

to the extollation, he touched

ed nationally after which it

The Total America. In one fatal

rantum thickened into a mass

e, and prospending to this

similar Lickening and in-

T. West Chine cases had

TSC: I mercur without bent-

or e ries and with the disease

Tyle Crompt in under the

mulping under the company waste control of the cont

ples of it in the head; the one acute, the other chronic. In the former, a boy of 14, the complaint began with a small angry tumor on the right side of the nose, from which, after some days, a swelling extended along the right eyelids and forehead, with considerable erysipelatous inflammation and fever. On the ninth day, he became suddenly comatose, then convulsed, and died on the 12th. On dissection, the pericranium covering the frontal bone was found red, thickened and detached from the bone, much purulent matter lying between them. Internally the dura mater was detached to an extent corresponding to the external disease, and a greenish puriform fluid was effused between it and the bone. The inner surface of the dura mater was also covered with pus; the pia mater was red, very vascular, and covered with pus to the extent of two inches on the part corresponding to the principal disease of the The other case is that of a woman, aged pericranium. 32, who was affected with a tumor the size of a walnut over the left parietal bone. It was soft and elastic, and its origin was ascribed to a blow six months before; there was an opening in the tumor, by which a probe eould be passed down to the bone. She had intense pain in the left side of the head; the right arm was wasted and paralytic, and the fingers were eontracted; both lower extremities were feeble; her speech was indistinct; she had vomiting, and frequent epileptie fits. The tumor was divided freely down to the bone, and in doing so the pericranium was found thickened, firm, fibrous, and morbidly sensible. It formed the principal part of the tumor. The bone under the tumor was found rough and superficially carious. A portion of it was removed by the trephine, and the dura mater under it appeared very vascular, and rather thickened. For six days after the operation she had fever, extensive erysipelas of the head, delirium, and Suppuration was then established, and convulsions. all these symptoms were relieved. In the eourse of the cure a slough was detached from the dura mater. A

fortnight after the operation she recovered the use of her

arm, and was free from complaint.

Tissot* seems to have met with this disease, and to have treated it upon the same plan, though he gives a different explanation of the effect of his treatment. He describes a ease in which an intense pain was confined to a very small spot, at the posterior angle of the right parietal bone. It had resisted for a long time all the most powerful remedies, veneseetion, arteriotomy, issues, cupping, &e. He eured it immediately and permanently, by dividing the part down to the bone, and eneouraging suppuration from the wound. He ascribes the cure to the division of the subeutaneous nerves. A woman mentioned by Pouteau received a blow behind the left ear, from the immediate effects of which she soon recovered, but she continued to be affected with pain in the spot for four years. She then had convulsions, paralytic affections, inarticulate speech, and a long train of the most urgent symptoms, which sometimes resembled mania, and sometimes tetanus. She had still pain at the place of the injury, where a small portion of the integument was red, and very gentle pressure upon the spot produced convulsion. By a free ineision down to the bone, and allowing the wound to suppurate, all these complaints were removed. A boy mentioned by the same writer received an injury on the crown of the head by a fall, at the age of 8 years. painful feeling continued in the scalp at the place of the injury, and for 10 years he was liable to intense headach, which afterwards became so violent as often to oecasion insensibility. At the age of 24, there was. at the upper part of the right parietal bone, the original seat of the injury and of the subsequent uneasiness, a spot slightly red and a little swelled; the hair upon it was coarse, and stood out like bristles, and pressure upon the spot produced intense pain. The pain extended to the right eye, the vision of which was obscurthe pain was the pain was the pairs every symptom is related by M. Gervai pariodically, and the pation of the alight touch on the align the integrant face of the bone was found, and the patient recoverable monitor of a remarkal num, in a case of long-simula delivium, and at seconds effusion in the brastate of the dura mater of

DISTASTS OF

This singular affective ginning in the dura in commences in the persecus to be the more properties of the disease, both the at to be affected.

The following is the besto me of this remarkable :

CASE XCV.-A Serv. backwards with a child in fall force of the fall upor the oxipital bone. She diate effects of the injury in the Fart; and after se Paraplegia and retention fined to bed for three of recovered the use of her the retention of unne co burgh in the beginning of a rear after the accide nearly removed, but she quining the constant use of the injury on the occip size of a crown Piece was

[&]quot; Tissot Epist. Med. Var.

ed when the pain was violent. By a free division of the parts every symptom was removed. A similar case is related by M. Gervais, in which the pain returned periodically, and the patient suffered epileptic fits daily. A slight touch on the affected part produced syncope. On dividing the integuments and pericranium, the surface of the bone was found carious; this soon exfoliated, and the patient recovered perfectly. Valsalva has taken notice of a remarkable thickening of the perioranium, in a case of long-continued headach with occasional delirium, and at last convulsion. There was serous effusion in the brain: but he says nothing of the state of the dura mater or the bone.

This singular affection Sir E. Home considers as beginning in the dura mater. Mr. Crampton thinks it commences in the pericranium. The latter opinion seems to be the more probable; for, in some of Sir E. Home's own cases, it was cured by simply dividing the pericranium. It appears, however, that in the progress of the disease, both the bone and the dura mater are

apt to be affected.

TARICRAVILLE

wine recorded the use of int

of will this diesese, and to

me plan, though he gives a

Sect of his treatment. He

1 interese pain was confined

interer ingle of the right

end for a long time all the

esection, art motomy, issues,

Later and permanently,

n t the bone, and encou-

e wound. He ascribes the

re sulcutaneous nerves. A

cau received a flow behind

mins d to be affected with

carries te see h, and a ent sympt us, which some-

d semer mes tetanus. She

'he m'ury, where a small

· 1735 red, and very gentle

· d: nrulin. B-a free as I all ring the wound to

nrs were removed. A box

r received an injury on the

at the age of 8 years. A

n t e scalp at the place of

ars he was thate to intense

b came so riolent as often

At the age of 24, there was

the parital hone, the original

he subscriped un sincis.

muled; the bat year

to the brisks and present

tense pain. The pain exper-

The following is the best example that has occurred to me of this remarkable affection.

Case XCV.—A servant girl, aged about 20, fell backwards with a child in her arms, and received the full force of the fall upon the most prominent part of the occipital bonc. She soon recovered from the immediate effects of the injury, but continued to have pain in the part; and after several months, was seized with paraplegia and retention of urinc. She was now confined to bed for three or four months, after which she recovered the use of her limbs in a tolerable degree, but the retention of urine continued, and she came to Edinburgh in the beginning of 1828, which was more than a year after the accident. The paraplegia was now nearly removed, but she had still retention of urine, requiring the constant use of the catheter. On the seat of the injury on the occipital bone, a round portion, the size of a crown piece was acutely tender, and very mo-

derate pressure upon it produced complete insensibility, which continued a minute or two, and returned as often as the pressure was repeated. It had the appearance of syncope, but the pulse was not affected. In this state I saw her along with Mr. Lizars, and it was agreed to make a free crucial incision through the part, and to keep the wound open by dressings so as to promote suppuration. In doing so, the pericranium was found tender and somewhat thickened, but the bone was sound. On the following day she passed her urine freely, and she continued free from complaint as long as the wound continued to discharge. It healed at the end of a fortnight, and the retention of urine returned immediately. The incision was now repeated with the same result as before, her urine being freely passed almost immediately. Various means were then employed to promote a more complete suppuration from the wound, but it healed after two or three weeks, and the retention of urine returned as before, with considerable tenderness in the affected spot. A third incision was then made with the same effect as before, and various applications were made with the view of promoting exfoliation of bone, as in Sir Edward Home's eases, but without success, and the wound again healed after three or four weeks. The fits of insensibility on pressure now returned, which had not returned after the former incisions, and along with them the retention of urine.

After that time repeated incisions were made with similar results. The principal change in her situation then was, that she got free of the fits of insensibility upon the spot being pressed; and the effect of the incisions continued longer, as on several occasions she remained free from the retention of urine for several weeks after the incisions were healed, and at one time enjoyed good health for three months. She was thus gradually restored to perfect health.

Since the publication of the former edition of this volume, I have seen several cases of this very interesting affection, presenting characters similar to those

which I have mentioned it and yielding to a free in symptoms had been of lor sisted much active treatme the symptoms were very se standing, has been describe Edinburgh Medical Journal of the patients, a clergyma have been produced by a s fell on his head from the C jur at the time was of the this affection gradually st train of anomalous nerv impaired his general heal unable for his duty for cured by the incision, whi In these cases, the seat indicated by the tenderness of the pericranium. But some features of great inter which was afforded by t there had been no tenderne that led distinctly to the be brame existed. It has led t cases of untractable affection treatment might be benefic by the symptoms indicating to these observations.

CASE XCVI.—A many viscos ago, received an invised of a wargon. It is no about ten days. When I long intervals. When I tense pain in the head of this time he had it whole of this time he had it whole for any kind of exercise.

which I have mentioned in the general description of it, and yielding to a free incision of the part, after the symptoms had been of long continuance, and had resisted much active treatment. One of them, in which the symptoms were very severe, and of eighteen months standing, has been described by Mr. Blacklock in the Edinburgh Medical Journal for July 1831. In another of the patients, a clergyman, the affection seemed to have been produced by a small piece of plaster which fell on his head from the ceiling of a church. The injury at the time was of the most trifling description, but this affection gradually supervened, accompanied by a train of anomalous nervous symptoms, which greatly impaired his general health, and rendered him entirely unable for his duty for many months. He was quite cured by the incision, which had to be repeated twice.

In these cases, the seat of the disease was distinctly indicated by the tenderness on pressure of a defined spot of the pericranium. But the following case presents some features of great interest, from the complete relief which was afforded by the same operation, though there had been no tenderness at the part, and nothing that led distinctly to the belief that disease of the membranc existed. It has led mc to suppose that there are cases of untractable affections of the head in which this treatment might be beneficial, though not distinguished by the symptoms indicating the disease which has led

to these observations.

HE SERVICES IN

... Ic mp de asensibility,

fir and attend as of-I had the appear-

, it was not affected. In

vill Mr. L'zars, and it was

a mansion through the part,

of dressin 3 30 as to pro-

g en the perioranium was

ra "Thened, but the lone

I lay she passed her unne

fire from complaint as ling

in starge. It healed at the

e retration of urine returned

n was now repeated with the

us means were then employ-

wo or three weeks, and the

l is before, with on siderable

spot. A third incision was

as Liore, and various

the view of promoting ex-

e Edward Home's cases, but

round again healed after three

if insensibility on pressure

returned after the former

han the ratent, nof urine.

A L. IS TES were made with

apal shape in her situation the of the his of insensibility

::01: and the effect of the in-

In 15 on several course as she

e retients of trace for several

s we had and at one time

The superior special states

this tymer edition of this

Company () has been underest.

ally Per Merce.

Case XCVI.—A man, aged 39, upwards of eight years ago, received an injury on his head from the wheel of a waggon. It produced a sore which healed in about ten days. About eight months after this he began to be affected with attacks of headach, which had continued to recur from that time, though sometimes at long intervals. When I saw him, along with Mr. Kennedy, in autumn 1833, he had been suffering from intense pain in the head for two months. During the whole of this time he had been confined to bed, and unable for any kind of exertion; every kind of active

treatment had been employed without any relief; and the ease now exhibited every character of a fixed and formidable disease of the brain. As the principal seat of the pain, he referred to a spot on the vertex, and from this the acute pain seemed to dart into the centre of the brain, and particularly towards the left ear. The spot to which he pointed on the vertex, corresponded with that which he represented as the seat of the original wound; but no cicatrix could be discovered, and there was no tenderness of the integuments, nor any other appearance of superficial disease. All the usual remedies, however, having been employed without benefit, I suggested a crueial ineision at this part, which was done with complete relief. The wound healed in nine days; he soon after returned to his usual employment as a baker, and, through the winter, enjoyed good health. During the present summer, (1834,) he has had a return of headach, after exposure to great heat. After it had resisted various remedies, a repetition of the incision was contemplated, but, at present, the affection seems to be subsiding.

OF THE APOPI

THE remarkable condi pression of the brain, a rations to be connected conditions of that organ. extensive effusion, and have seen extensive effus of the cerebral substance ing it. We have seen th regard to the various of have been the subjects of and upon the whole, if y dinon of the brain which answer must be, that we ever, to sit down conten ignorance, but ought, or conclusion as a position of we are to commence In this course, putting a have been so often receimust restrict our inquiri the phenomena of disease In the investigation of perly referable to the h same difficulties which

PART II.

a fixed and
As a mind sent
ton the max, and
ton the centre

the international name and

n en wed without

int' winter chierol good

1 . U. m.y. 1934, he has

ur r r un extrait beat.

of the

u, ar present, the Lifertica

OF THE APOPLECTIC AFFECTIONS.

THE remarkable condition which we call coma, or oppression of the brain, appears from the preceding observations to be connected with various and very different conditions of that organ. We have seen it existing with extensive effusion, and without any effusion; and we have seen extensive effusion and extensive destruction of the cerebral substance taking place without producing it. We have seen the same want of uniformity in regard to the various other morbid conditions which have been the subjects of the preceding observations; and, upon the whole, if we are asked, what is that condition of the brain which produces coma, I think our answer must be, that we cannot tell. We are not, however, to sit down contented with this profession of our ignorance, but ought, on the contrary, to consider this conclusion as a position of much importance, from which we are to commence a new course of investigation. In this course, putting away from us the theories which have been so often received as established principles, we must restrict our inquiries to a patient investigation of the phenomena of disease.

In the investigation of the cases which are more properly referable to the head of apoplexy, we find the same difficulties which have met us in the inflammatory affections. A person previously in perfect health

falls down suddenly, deprived of sense and motion, and dics, after lying for some time in a state of coma. We find on examination a large coagulum of blood compressing the surface of the brain, or filling its ventricles, and the phenomena of the disease appear to be distinctly accounted for. Another person is cut off with the same symptoms, and we expect to find the same appearances, but nothing is met with except scrous effusion, in no great quantity, in the ventricles, or only on the surface of the brain. A third is seized in the same manner, and dies, after lying for a considerable time in a state of coma, from which nothing can rouse him for an instant; and on the most careful examination, we cannot detect in his brain the smallest deviation from the healthy structure.

These facts have not escaped the observation of pathologists at various periods, and much difficulty was experienced in accounting for them upon the old doctrine of compression of the brain. Hence arose many speculations in regard to those cases in which no morbid appearance was met with on dissection, or none that was considered adequate to account for the disease.

In a remarkable case of this kind, which occurred to Willis,* he supposes that the animal spirits were suddenly extinguished or suffocated by certain malignant or narcotic particles. Seelmatter ascribes the affection to a sudden relaxation of the nerves; Nicolai to a spasm of the meninges; and Lecat and Weikard to a spasm of the nerves and vessels of the brain. Kortum endeavours to reconcile the discordant opinions of his predccessors, by referring all these cases to a new species of apoplectic affections, which he styles Apoplexia Nervosa. Upon the same principle, other modifications of apoplexy have been contended for, which have been supposed to include these obscure and inexplicable cases, as the Apoplexia Convulsiva, and Apoplexia Hysterica of Burserius, Tissot, and other writers. Tissot mentions a woman, who, after complaining for some time of headAPOPLECTIC

ach was attacked with a rain accompanied by loss time. On dissection 110 detected. A young won writer, baving, during the from a fright, the discharge liable to frequent leipothy this and various other sym fell into a profound sleep, rouse ber; this continued out of it and appeared to several days, she was soiz iety, and convulsions, and could be detected in any much importance to a ca which, after fatal apoplexy ance except a small quanti exceeding a tea-spoonful. account for the disease upo but was to be considered; cause, of that spasm of the y to be the proximate cause of tion did not satisfy his conte trines were brought forward the disease. Some maintain stance of the brain is much pression than the cinemious was, that there are certain by retarding the course causes of compression are co urgent symptoms. Hence controversy respecting the co saimal spirits, and the cour exit from the brain. This one assigned to the aquedue the fourth rentricle; by a th by a fourth, to the choroid and fatal apoplest was supply eight eauses, existing at thes

tr causes so minute as altoge

Willis De Anima Brutorum, part 2. p. 276.

aguira of land compress. or alling its rentricles, and esse appear to be distinctly son is cut of with the same f. I the same appearances, ept scrous effusion, in no les, or only on the surface azed in the same manner, neil-rable time in a state of an rouse him for an instant; inition, we cannot detect leviati n from the healthy mped the observation of pais, and much difficulty was r them upon the old doctrine If nee arese many specucases in which no morbid on dissection, or none that account for the disease. is kind, which (coursed to animal spirits were sudwood by certain malignant Active aseribes the affection e n'ivesi Vicolai () aspasm of and Welkard to a spain t e braia. Korran endea. ordeast opinions of his prede-DESP MASS TO A DEW Species of h be spokes Apaplexia Yerpurie, ber and literations of - led for, which have been : 17 and inexplicable cases, 17. and Applexia Hesterica

AFFICTIVE:

el f sense and mount, and

ne in a state of coma. We

ach, was attacked with a great and sudden increase of pain, accompanied by loss of sleep, and died in a short time. On dissection no morbid appearance could be detected. A young woman, mentioned by the same writer, having, during the flow of the menses, suffered from a fright, the discharge stopped, and she became liable to frequent leipothymia. After suffering from this and various other symptoms for several months, she fell into a profound sleep, from which nothing could rouse her; this continued four days; she then came out of it and appeared to be recovering, when, after several days, she was seized with severe headach, anxicty, and convulsions, and died. No morbid appearance could be detected in any of the viscera. Lecat attaches much importance to a case which occurred to him, in which, after fatal apoplexy, he found no morbid appearance except a small quantity of extravasated blood, not exceeding a tea-spoonful. This, he contends, could not account for the disease upon the principle of pressure, but was to be considered as an effect, rather than a cause, of that spasm of the vessels, which he conceived to be the proximate cause of apoplexy. This explanation did not satisfy his contemporaries, and various doctrines were brought forward to account for this form of the disease. Some maintained that the medullary substance of the brain is much more susceptible of compression than the cincritious; but the prevailing opinion was, that there are certain parts of the brain, where, by retarding the course of the animal spirits, slight causes of compression are capable of producing the most urgent symptoms. Hence arose a new and extensive controversy respecting the origin and progress of these animal spirits, and the course by which they make their exit from the brain. This important function was by one assigned to the aqueduct of Silvius; by another, to the fourth ventricle; by a third, to the infundibulum; by a fourth, to the choroid plexus and straight sinus; and fatal apoplexy was supposed to be produced by very slight causes, existing at these particular parts, and even by causes so minute as altogether to elude observation.

From the number and variety of these speculations, we perceive the difficulties which attend the pathology of apoplexy, and learn the important fact, that apoplexy has, by extensive observation, been ascertained to be fatal without any morbid appearance, or with appearances so slight as to be altogether inadequate to account for the disease.

The most simple illustration of the apopleetic state, is derived from those eases in which it is distinctly traced to an external cause, and ceases when that cause is re-A boy mentioned by Zitzilius, had drawn his neckcloth remarkably tight, and was whipping his top, stooping and rising alternately, when, after a short time, he fell down apopleetie. The neckloth being unloosed, and blood being drawn from the jugular vein, he speedily recovered. Strangulation, when the neck is not dislocated, appears to be simply apoplexy. A man brought after execution to Sauvages was recovered by three bleedings, and sat up and talked, his breathing and deglutition being natural. After a short time the part of his neck where the eard had been applied began to swell, so as evidently to impede the circulation in the veins of the neck: he then became drowsy, his pulse and respiration slow, without dyspnæa, and in a few hours he died apoplectic. A woman mentioned by Wepfer recovered after execution under the same treatment. After her recovery she was for some time affected with vertigo, which subsided gradually. To eases such as these, we may add the numerous examples, in which persons fall down suddenly in a state of perfect apoplexy, and very speedily recover under the appropriate treatment, without retaining any trace of so formidable a malady.

The apopleetic attack, as it occurs in such examples as these, must be supposed to depend upon a cause which acts simply upon the circulating system of the brain, producing there a derangement which takes place speedily, and is often almost as speedily removed. What the precise nature of that derangement may be, is a point of the utmost difficulty to determine, and per-

has we have not data upon her legimate induction.
This of a very interesting I that they are in themselves tical, and that their applicat. Hery is also conjectural in may be worthy of some atterity distinct from our pressecuting which, I shall not principal varieties of sympto of apoplexy.

TARRETS FORMS OF TH

The apoplectic attack is the brain. The most rem lowing:-headach, giddin ness in the head, violent confused noises in the ears. accompanied by epistaxis, w temporary relief; by loss of talking resembling slight in the sight, d-uble vision, and drowsiness and lethargic ten clserve indistinct articulatio te affections. These are s limb or part of a limb; so producing inability either to and frequently impair the p ing a slight distortion of the and others of a similar kin apoplectic state, and often time before the attack actual itself occurs chiefly under t is of importance to distingu

I. In the first form of the like a person in a deep sleep this breathing stertorous, his breathing stertorous, his

haps we have not data upon which it can be determined by legitimate induction. The subject leads to speculations of a very interesting kind, but it must be confessed that they are in themselves in a great measure hypothetical, and that their application to the phenomena of apoplexy is also conjectural in a very great degree. may be worthy of some attention, but must be kept entirely distinct from our present course of inquiry, in prosecuting which, I shall now take a general view of the principal varieties of symptoms which occur in the attack of apoplexy.

The apoplectic attack is generally preceded by symptoms indicating some derangement of the circulation in the brain. The most remarkable of these are the following:—headach, giddiness, sense of weight and fulness in the head, violent pulsation of the arteries, and confused noises in the ears. These symptoms are often accompanied by epistaxis, which may give a partial and temporary relief; by loss of recollection, and incoherent talking, resembling slight intoxication; by affections of the sight, double vision, and temporary blindness; by drowsiness and lethargic tendency. We also frequently observe indistinct articulation, and other partial paraly-These are sometimes confined to one tic affections. limb, or part of a limb; sometimes affect the eyelids, producing inability either to shut the eye or to open it; and frequently impair the muscles of the face, producing a slight distortion of the mouth. These symptoms, and others of a similar kind, mark the tendency to the apopleetic state, and often appear for a considerable time before the attack actually takes place. The attack itself occurs chiefly under three distinct forms, which it is of importance to distinguish from each other.

I. In the first form of the attack, the patient falls down suddenly, deprived of sense and motion, and lies like a person in a deep sleep; his face generally flushed, his breathing stertorous, his pulse full, and not frequent, sometimes below the natural standard. In some cases

nance, or with appearances inulegrate to account for n of the aporticetic state, is buch it is distinctly traced e's when that cause is re-- Ziziiris, had drawn his I was whirping his trp, ate v. when, after a short own from the jugular rein,

and ation, when the neck

ty of their explanous, we that the pathology of

count int that apoplexy

n. 'en assertained to be

17. 75.

) 3 simple poplers. A Saragas was recovered in ad: la la bis breathing i. le After a short time L. orl hal been applied v ra impede the circulation he then became drowse, v. without dyspaces, and lecia. A woman menafter sporting under the

recovery she was for some while of idea gradually, ngy add the numerous exi on sudden'r in a state LA 25 - 10 LA LAST Ander the winder on the of so

or occurs of such examples in Fiel upon a cause ingular state 1 of the - Mach Apires types blace TOTAL OF THE STREET 此。

eonvulsion occurs, in others rigid contraction of the muscles of the extremities; and sometimes contraction of the museles of the one side, with relaxation of the other. In this state of profound stupor, the patient may die after various intervals, from a few minutes to several days; or he may recover perfectly, without any bad consequence of the attack remaining; or he may recover from the coma, with paralysis of onc side. This paralysis may disappear in a few days, or it may subside gradually, or it may be permanent. Other functions, as the speech, may be affected in the same manner, being specdily or gradually recovered, or permanently lost; and recovery from the apoplectic attack is sometimes accompanied by loss of sight.

II. The second form of the disease begins with a sudden attack of pain in the head; the patient becomes pale, sick, and faint; generally vomits, and frequently, though not always, falls down in a state resembling syneope; the face pale, the body cold, and the pulse very feeble. This is sometimes accompanied by slight convulsion. In other eases, he does not fall down, the sudden attack of pain being only accompanied by slight and transient loss of recollection. In both eases he generally recovers in a few minutes from the first effects of the attack, is quite sensible and able to walk, but continues to complain of headach; after a certain interval, which may vary from a few minutes to several hours, he becomes oppressed, forgetful, and incoherent, and then sinks into coma, from which he never recovers. In some eases paralysis of one side occurs, but in others, and I think the greater proportion of this elass, no paralysis is observed.

III. In the third form, the patient is suddenly deprived of the power of one side of the body, and of speech, without stupor; or if the first attack be accompanied by a degree of stupor, this soon disappears; he seems sensible of his situation, and endcavours to express his feelings by signs. In the farther progress of this form of the dis-

ease great variety occurs. allr into apoplexy, perhap under the proper treatmen mely recovers. In many and it is only at the end of the complaint is removed. tient recovers so far as to b and to walk, dragging his after this makes no further tinue in this state for years attack, or may die of som recurrence of the sympto variety, the patient neith plectic; he is confined to but in possession of his c all exhausted, without months after the attack. These three forms of di another; but they are ver here described, forming a ably from each other; and to arrange themselves into here been referred to :- fire ately and primarily apople

TARIOTS FORMS OF T

OF THE CASES PR THE apoplectic attack is and motion, the patient f sleep, the face being gener

bein with a sudden attack

ally into apoplexy; thirdly,

by pair, and loss of speec

ATOPLECTIC ATTA A.

ticl orraction of the i men exportation of

h relaxation of the other.

of or, the patient may die

a few minors to several

ert the, without any bad

andir; of he may reco-

Tres of one side. This

ow lays, or it may subside

manent. Other functions,

ct d in the same manner.

recovered, or permanently

apoplectic attack is some-

the distase begins with a

bead: the fatient becomes

by vomes, and frequently,

ern in a state resembling

e Mr cold, and the pulse

as accompanied by slight

he Les not fall down, the

en'y accompanied by slight

mun. In loth cases he

onutes from the first effects

and all to malk, but

h, airer a certain inter-1 3 few minutes to several od, fro the and incoherent, a, fr m w jeh he never reco. tone elexum, but in ger projection of this class,

he garing is suddenly depris-, ice body, and of speech.

- read a companied by

Test by spent spate

progress, the im the day

ease great variety oceurs. In some cases, it passes gradually into apoplexy, perhaps after a few hours; in others, under the proper treatment, the patient speedily and entirely recovers. In many cases the recovery is gradual, and it is only at the end of several weeks or months that the complaint is removed. In another variety, the patient recovers so far as to be able to speak indistinctly, and to walk, dragging his leg by a painful effort, and after this makes no further improvement. He may continue in this state for years, and be cut off by a fresh attack, or may die of some other disease, without any recurrence of the symptoms in his head. In a fifth variety, the patient neither recovers, nor becomes apoplectic; he is confined to bed, speechless and paralytic, but in possession of his other faculties, and dies gradually exhausted, without apoplexy, several weeks or months after the attack.

These three forms of disease frequently pass into one another; but they are very often met with, as they are here described, forming affections which differ remarkably from each other; and they appear very naturally to arrange themselves into the three classes which have here been referred to:-first, those which are immediately and primarily apopleetic; secondly, those which begin with a sudden attack of headach, and pass gradually into apoplexy; thirdly, those which are distinguished by palsy, and loss of speech, without eoma.

SECTION I.

OF THE CASES PRIMARILY APOPLECTIC.

The apopleetic attack is a sudden deprivation of sense and motion, the patient falling down as in a profound sleep, the face being generally flushed, and the breathing stertorous. In tracing the farther history of such an attack, the following circumstances deserve our particular attention.

I. In many cases the patient speedily and perfectly recovers.

II. In many cases the disease is speedily fatal, and we find on inspection extensive extravasation of blood.

III. In other cases which are fatal, generally after a longer interval, we find only serous effusion, often in no great quantity.

IV. In many fatal cases, no morbid appearance whatever can be detected after the most careful exami-

nation.

Thus the disease, in a pathological point of view, again resolves itself into three very important divisions; -apoplexy with extravasation of blood; -apoplexy with serous effusion; -and apoplexy without any morbid appearance, or what I propose to call simple apo-The latter affection leads to speculations of very great interest; for the phenomena of the disease appear fully to establish the important fact, that there is a modification of apoplexy depending upon a cause of a temporary nature, without any real injury done to the substance of the brain; that the condition upon which this attack depends may be removed almost as speedily as it was induced; and that it may be fatal without leaving any morbid appearance in the brain.

As one of the terminations of the apoplectic attack, I have mentioned extensive extravasation of blood; but, in point of fact, it will be found that this is not a common termination of those examples which are immediately and primarily apoplectic. The cases which terminate in this manner, in general belong to another class already referred to, and to be afterwards partieularly described, which begin with a sudden attack of violent headach, and pass into coma more gradually. The remarks to be offered under this section, therefore, will be confined to the two other forms of the disease, which seem to be nearly allied to each other, namely,

apoplesy without any me with scrous effusion.

SIMPLE

[] - APOPLEXY WITHOU OR SIMPL

WHEN a person previous ridenly deprived of sense lying for a certain time in a on the inspection of such the brain any satisfactor structure, this is the affe simple apoplexy. I abst lations in regard to the n ti-n, and shall confine my culated to establish its exis which may in this state be

CASE ZCVII.—A wome balit, some years before her symptoms in the head, accom and partial loss of recollectio tack had continued for a conher speech, but by degrees sl zi enjoyed excellent liealth the anack now to be describe a washing tub, when she was sneezing: she almost imm and would have fallen down and supported by some per carned her to bed in a state the usual remedies were en manner without the least effe symptoms—she lay with all perfect apoplexy, and died inspection no restige of dise the brain, or in any other or

CT ZCAIII-4 Eculi

apoplexy without any morbid appearance, and apoplexy with serous effusion.

§ I .- APOPLEXY WITHOUT ANY MORBID APPEARANCE, OR SIMPLE APOPLEXY.

la : See Prie Iwe

The safet a

in militar carance

a. ; a e al si careful exami-

relegical raint of view,

or tying man divisions;

in flowd: -a, oplexy

I imple apo-

and the same of

's fact the disease

opportant their that there

Tr erending up n a cause " in real injury done to

in the the continue upon

and to removed almost as

-]; and that it may be futel

I appear and in the brain.

the armheric attack, fillod; but,

half und the trans me a come

State Swhich to immediate The 1883 which ter-

to be all multi-farticule

The state of the s

Constitution of the state of th

The name!

WHEN a person previously in perfect health falls down suddenly deprived of sense and motion, and dies after lying for a certain time in a state of apoplexy; and when, on the inspection of such a ease, we cannot discover in the brain any satisfactory deviation from the healthy structure, this is the affection which I propose to eall simple apoplexy. I abstain at present from any speeulations in regard to the nature of this remarkable affeetion, and shall confine myself to a statement of facts caleulated to establish its existence as a disease of the brain, which may in this state be fatal.

CASE XCVII.—A woman, aged about 30, of a full habit, some years before her death had been affected with symptoms in the head, accompanied by impaired speech, and partial loss of recollection. Some effects of this attack had continued for a considerable time, especially in her speech, but by degrees she had perfectly recovered, and enjoyed excellent health for a long period preceding the attack now to be described. She was stooping over a washing tub, when she was seized with a violent fit of sneezing; she almost immediately became insensible, and would have fallen down had she not been observed and supported by some persons standing by her, who earried her to bed in a state of perfect apoplexy. All the usual remedies were employed in the most active manner without the least effect in alleviating any of the symptoms—she lay with all the symptoms of the most perfect apoplexy, and died on the following day. On inspection no vestige of disease could be discovered in the brain, or in any other organ.

CASE XCVIII .- A gentleman, aged 24, had been

observed for some days to be dull and drowsy, and he frequently complained of his head. Not having appeared at his usual time onc morning, his friends went into his room, and found him lying across his bed, half dressed, in a state of perfect apoplexy. The attack was evidently recent; and it was supposed that he had been seized while he had stooped over his basin in washing. His face was rather livid, his breathing stertorous, his pulse slow, and of good strength. All the usual remedies were employed with assiduity, but through the day there was no change in the symptoms. In the course of the night he recovered considerably, so as to know those about him; but in a short time after he relapsed into coma, and died early on the following day, little more than twenty-four hours after the attack.

Inspection.—There was a slight turgescence of the vessels on the surface of the brain; no other appearance of disease could be detected after the most careful examination. All the other viscera were in a healthy state.

The following very important case I received from my friend the late Dr. Duncan; it occurred under his care in the Clinical Ward, in May 1829.

Case XCIX.—A man, aged 54, of a plethoric habit and short necked, was admitted into the Clinical Ward on 30th May. He was in a state of nearly perfect coma, speechless, and with palsy of the right side to such an extent, that even the intercostal muscles of that side did not act. The leg and arm of the left side were occasionally affected with convulsive motions. Breathing stertorous—deglutition much impaired. Pulse 74. The affection was of three days standing, and had come on with vertigo—loss of vision—violent headach and vomiting.

All the usual remedies were employed in the most judicious and active manner without benefit. On the 1st of June, there seemed to be a slight return of intelligence, but he soon relapsed into coma, and died on the 3d, without any change in the other symptoms.

Log tun.—A mos was m de of the hrain act of disease, except wher darker than us dessed at one spot. B a spot of the cerebral su corn, which appeared so br. Duncan considered to

These, I think, may of simple apoplexy in following examples of other diseases.

Case C.-A lady, a rears to attacks of coup perally relieved by opiat of December 1816, she anacks in the ordinary fo ter, though her breathing ed. On the morning of headach, and wished not this she appeared to her sleep; but some time after apoplexy, from which noth died about five o'clock in mis an hour before her de erma, her lips livid, her b and her pulse frequent and Inspection,—On the s were turgid, and the subst a temarkable degree of v appearance of disease. and much loaded with ture was tolerably health

Case CI.—A lady, aged toms,—nausca and a pecul

a lai, and drowsy, and he is read. What laying appearationing, his facults went into process has been had been in his lasin in washing, a steathing steet took, his nature, and the awal remetal ty, but through the day symptoms. In the course of had y, but through the day is a further through through through through the day is a further through t

PIPLITY.

A the didden in the state of the errain; no other appearance of the most careful example a ware in a healthy state.

nant use I received from my to curred under his care v 1,29.

and 54 of a piethoric habit that into the Clinical Ward a state of nearly perfect in a state of nearly of the right side to he policy of the left side were and arm of the left side were and

lars sanding and had come
the sanding and had come
the most
the mo

Inspection.—A most minute and eareful examination was made of the brain, without discovering any appearance of disease, except that the choroid plexus seemed rather darker than usual, and the basilar artery was diseased at one spot. By the side of the artery there was a spot of the cerebral substance, no larger than a barleycorn, which appeared somewhat softened, but even this Dr. Duncan considered as extremely doubtful.

These, I think, may be considered as fair examples of simple apoplexy in its idiopathic form; I add the following examples of the affection supervening upon other diseases.

Case C.—A lady, aged 50, had been liable for many years to attacks of cough and dyspnæa, which were generally relieved by opiates and blistering. On the 20th of December 1816, she was scized with one of these attacks in the ordinary form. On the 22d she was better, though her breathing was still considerably oppressed. On the morning of the 23d she complained of headach, and wished not to be disturbed. Soon after this she appeared to her family to fall into a sound sleep; but some time after, it was found to be perfect apoplexy, from which nothing could rouse her, and she died about five o'clock in the afternoon. I saw her only an hour before her death; she was then in perfect coma, her lips livid, her breathing quick and oppressed, and her pulse frequent and feeble.

Inspection.—On the surface of the brain the veins were turgid, and the substance, when cut into, exhibited a remarkable degree of vascularity; there was no other appearance of disease. The lungs were distended, and much loaded with thin mucus, but their structure was tolerably healthy. The other viseera were

sound.

Case CI.—A lady, aged 45, had for three months before her death been affected with the following symptoms,—nausea and a peculiar uneasy feeling about the

stomach, particularly after meals; a feeling of distention of the abdomen, costiveness of the bowels, and anasarea of the feet and legs. The appetite was tolerable, and the pulse natural, but from being remarkably strong and active, she became feeble, sallow, inactive, and listless. A variety of practice was employed for three months, with little benefit; the anasarea gradually extended; effusion took place in the abdomen, and there was much reason to suspect that it had also taken place in the thorax; the pulse, however, continued of natural frequency and good strength. On the evening of the 18th of May 1816, she was observed to talk hurriedly and incoherently. On the morning of the 19th, she was in a state of stupor, from which at first she could be partially roused; but soon after mid-day it increased to perfect coma. She then lay in a state of perfect apoplexy, with stertorous breathing and much moaning, the face rather pale, the pulse 72, and of good strength, and she died on the morning of the 20th. The eatamenia had been regular, except at the last period, which should have happened about the 12th of May.

Inspection.—No disease could be detected in the head after the most careful examination. There was considerable effusion both in the thorax and the abdomen. In the heart there was considerable hardness about the root of the tricuspid valves. No morbid appearance

could be discovered in the other viscera.

I have already referred to various cases mentioned by the older writers, in which apoplexy was fatal, without leaving any morbid appearance; and others are related by later authors of undoubted authority. A man, mentioned by Dr. Stark,* after complaining of headach and giddiness, fell down in a state of insensibility, with some convulsion. He then lay in a state of profound apoplexy for forty-five hours, when he died. No morbid appearance could be discovered in the brain on the most careful examination. A young lady mentioned by Dr.

TOOPLETT W P-rel, after appearing

pixel to sleep, fell into was interrupted only b coardision. Without de died on the third da mination, no morbid ap ine brain. Andral has plete and sudden attacks enall be discovered but rasularity on parts of was fatal in two days, Dr. Bught has also de plicated with diseases strongly marked sym nothing was to be d appearance of increas related by other writers tare sufficient ground is a modification of a sering any morbid app is accounting for the sy

§ II. - APOPLEX

Case CH. - A gentle white, and of nather; June, 1813, began to tica, indistinctness of He appeared to have arm, being observed the right hand, but h weakness of it. He giddiness, but said he self right; the pulse s After a bleeding from and a regulated diet, 1 he had in a great m and had lost the flushing

Land Hore dictions

al ileli.

- des a feel prof detending

the way and unasarea

e accetile was therable, and

ing towards in each and

. and listless.

to or d for three months,

... a matu. v extended;

are n. and there was much

ini also taken the in the

r confirm I of normal tre-

On the evening of the 18th

To 1 : 1 % harredy and

but at first she could be par-

ther mid-day is increased to

av in a state of perfect apo-

thing and much meaning,

de 71 and of good strength. of the Mil. The cata-

or the est period, which

in him. There was consito -x and the "I men.

il to le hardness, ut the . Vi a rhil ar earance

to micus casas menion dif

i - perr res fat . nite at and change related

du dan headh

in a sale of any little in with

- 13v 19 3 (21) 1 rolound

THE THE STATE OF

in mention of the

the rivers.

Powel, after appearing for one day very heavy and disposed to sleep, fell into a state of perfect coma, which was interrupted only by occasional attacks of general Without any change in the symptoms, she died on the third day. After the most minute examination, no morbid appearance could be discovered in the brain. Andral has described several eases of complete and sudden attacks of apoplexy, in which nothing could be discovered but slight appearances of increased vaseularity on parts of the brain. One of them, which was fatal in two days, was accompanied by hemiplegia. Dr. Bright has also described several eases, chiefly complicated with diseases of the lungs, in which there were strongly marked symptoms of oppressed brain, while nothing was to be discovered on dissection but some appearance of increased vascularity. Similar eases are related by other writers, and, upon the whole, I think we have sufficient ground for stating it as a fact, that there is a modification of apoplexy which is fatal, without leaving any morbid appearance that can be considered as accounting for the symptoms.

§ II. —APOPLEXY WITH SEROUS EFFUSION.

Case CII.—A gentleman, aged 80, but vigorous and active, and of rather a spare habit, about the 9th of June, 1813, began to be affected with loss of recollection, indistinctness of speech, and flushing of the face. He appeared to have at times a weakness of the right arm, being observed oceasionally to drop things from the right hand, but he did not admit that he felt any weakness of it. He complained neither of headach nor giddiness, but said he was weak, and did not feel himself right; the pulse was natural, and of good strength. After a bleeding from the arm, followed by purgatives and a regulated diet, he seemed to be much improved; he had in a great measure recovered his recollection, and had lost the flushing of his face; and his speech was much more distinct. He walked out regularly, and his step was firm and vigorous. Soon after, however, he began to have a recurrence of confusion of thought, particularly on the 27th, when, in endeavouring to write a letter, he was obliged to relinquish the attempt. He complained that he could not make sense of it, nor spell the words; the writing was searcely legible, and the lines were very erooked. On the 28th he seemed much better. On the following night he slept ill; got up about four o'clock in the morning, and said he felt restless and uneasy; he walked about his room for some time, and then returned to bed. Having soon after this become quiet, his family did not disturb him till between eight and nine o'clock, when he was found in a state of perfect apoplexy, his pulse 80 and full, the appearance. of the countenance natural; he was incapable of swallowing, and in a state of complete insensibility, except that he occasionally moved his right hand. He was largely bled, after which he became exceedingly pale, and the pulse continued for a considerable time very weak, but without the smallest abatement of the coma. The other usual remedies were then employed without any benefit. In this state of perfect apoplexy he lay for seven days, during which time there was very little ehange in the symptoms. He frequently moved his right arm and leg, but not the left; he occasionally seratched a herpetic eruption which was on the thigh, and several times moved his night-eap. Once or twice he was observed to open his eyes slightly for a few seconds; the pupil was natural, and contracted when a candle was brought near it. He passed his urine in bed. He never swallowed a drop of any thing. His pulse at first varied from 80 to 100, but afterwards rose to 120. In this state of perfect apoplexy he died on the 5th of February. A few days before his death, a glandular swelling appeared on his neek, from which he evidently felt pain, as he drew away his head when it was touched.

Inspection.—A good deal of fluid escaped when the cranium was opened; there was considerable effusion under the arachnoid, and in the ventricles; the quan-

APOPLEXT WITH SE

tiry collected was probably to cher morbid appearance part of the brain.

CASE CIII.—A gentleman plexion, but rather infirm in leasted attacks of loss of received attacks of loss of received from the illness of wather the recovered from this but his speech was now in power of his limbs, and his ward. He was then conherent, at other times more oppressed, bordering upon very inarticulate, and his loss. His strength sunk cular change in the sympto of five weeks.

Inspection.—The ventric distended with colourless fit denote quantity under the other morbid appearance.

Case CIV.—A man, ag had been for some time a and anasarca of the legs, deniv incoherent, and so breathing was much opput the pulse somewhat of that kind out of which cody so as to answer que often incoherently. He inspection.—Much fill of the brain. The lung and there was considerate the size of a goose-quilt the size of a goose-quilt.

. 1511 E. 835 IL

S on a track to

re de l'indicapat, par-7. A en lear 103 to mite a

the night attempt. He

n c make serve fin, nor spell

is carer epitle, and the

On the 28th he seemed much

n _ · he sleve ill; got up

many, and said he felt test-

ed about his from for some

had. Having soon after this

ad not disturb him till between

(1) and full, the appearance

he was incarationisma-

e milete i e ng ility, except

ved his right hand. He was

he became exceedingly pale,

by an enderable time very

a statement of the coma.

er tha employed without

in the pervibe lay for

me there was very little

H ite leady moved his

the left; he occasi naly , a which was on the thigh.

. night-cap. Once or twice

me ches epidatha fit a few se-

rural, and connacted when a

. . He passed his urine in

d 3 hap of any thing. His

to 114), by afterwards rose

better on by the died on

terr in seine his death, a

ed on his neces, it in which he

Tew 1" y his nead when it

· i duri so on I when the

L R. S. V. L. S. JESTON

tity eollected was probably from three to four ounces. No other morbid appearance could be detected in any part of the brain.

Case CIII.—A gentleman, aged 70, of a florid complexion, but rather infirm in his limbs, had suffered repeated attacks of loss of recollection, which were said by his family to resemble fainting fits. At the commeneement of the illness of which he died, he fell down suddenly deprived of sense and motion. After some time he recovered from this state of perfect insensibility, but his speech was now inarticulate; he had lost the power of his limbs, and his right eye was distorted outward. He was then confined to bed; at times incoherent, at other times more distinct, but always much oppressed, bordering upon coma; his speech continued very inarticulate, and his pulse was generally about His strength sunk gradually, without any particular change in the symptoms; and he died at the end of five weeks.

Inspection.—The ventricles of the brain were found distended with colourless fluid, and there was a eonsiderable quantity under the araehnoid. There was no other morbid appearance.

CASE CIV.—A man, aged 41, of a very full habit, had been for some time affected with cough, dyspnæa, and anasarca of the legs, when he became one day suddenly incoherent, and soon after fell into coma. His breathing was much oppressed; his face livid and turgid; the pulse somewhat frequent. The coma was of that kind out of which he could be roused with difficulty so as to answer questions slowly, and heavily, and often incoherently. He died on the 3d day.

Inspection .- Much fluid was found in the ventricles of the brain. The lungs were much loaded with blood, and there was considerable effusion in the cavity of the pleura. In the heart the foramen ovale was open, of

the size of a goose quill.

In concluding this part of the subject, I shall only add the following remarkable case, for which I am indebted to Professor Turner, of extensive effusion in the cranium without any apoplectic symptom.

Case CV.—A gentleman, aged about 70, a man of talent and of genius, had been valetudinary and hypochondriacal for upwards of 30 years, having been affected with a variety of uneasy sensations in the stomach, as indigestion, a sense of tightness across the lower part of the abdomen, and occasionally attacks of dysuria. the beginning of 1817, he became feeble, listless, and unable for any exertion either of body or mind; during the day he was drowsy, but his nights were restless and feverish. His countenance was pale and sallow; his pulse from 76 to 84; his tongue slightly loaded; his bowels generally costive, but easily moved by medicine, the operation of which was sometimes followed by diar-A variety of remedies were employed without benefit. He passed the summer without improvement, and in the winter his complaints were aggravated. They consisted as formerly of heaviness, feebleness, and want of sleep, to which were now added a troublesome cough, and constant pain in the lower part of the abdomen, with strangury. His appetite failed; his pulse increased in frequency; and he became daily more and more feeble and emaciated. In the beginning of March, 1818, he was confined to bed; his strength then sunk gradually, and he died on the 14th, having retained his memory and all his faculties entire till within a few hours of his death. He had never complained of headach or giddiness, and never had any paralytic or convulsive affection.

Inspection.—A copious effusion of transparent fluid was found over the whole surface of the brain under the arachnoid membrane, which in various places, particularly at the posterior part, elevated that membrane in the form of small bladders, and separated some of the convolutions from each other, so as to form depressions

on the surface of the build and with fluid, he discorded with fluid, he discorded with fluid, he discorded with fluid, he discorded with the responsibility and thickened, but there are prostate gland or the ure former part of several cases in which extend cases in which extend the brain, without any a in one of them amount other cases of the same shall mentions a manifest feet; a few hours rational, yet effusion the brain and in the year.

a pound.

THE PAINT FELL

The apoplectic cas effusion, constitute ti which has been called this affection, or rathe submit the following o I. The distinction w sanguineous and sero observation. The form fushing of the count executing in persons i paleness of the count and by affecting the tance has been att ground, that the proin the one case, wo other. I submit t upon observation; that many of the ca sion, exhibit, in the which have been as while many of the Paleness of the coun on the surface of the brain. The ventrieles were also distended with fluid, but not much enlarged. brain was in other respects sound; the viscera of the abdomen were healthy. The bladder was contracted and thickened, but there appeared to be no disease of the

prostate gland or the urethra.

. ILBELLI TATATALI.

of the surface I shall only add

e. the which I am indebted

La collection in the cranium

1. Led about 70, a man of

een valetudinary and hypo-

U rear har goeen affected

eat one in the stomach, as

iess a resthe lower part of

lly attacks of desona. In

became feeble, listless, and

her of body or mind; during

A his nights were restless and

e was pale and sallow; his

rgue slightir loaded; his

s meames fored to diar-

hes were employed without

er without improvement,

umis were aggregated. They

riness, feebleness, and want

added a troublesome cough,

ver part of the abdomen,

e fai'd: his pulse increased im: daily more and more

ine trinking of March,

-d: his strength then sunk

al4:b. having retained his

a s extire w. within a lew

nd never compained of head-

e, and any paralytic or con-

actision of transparent fluid

of the brain under the

is rarius places patien.

rul it memirum in

The state of the

: 1 C 172 d press, in

In the former part of this work, I have referred to several cases in which extensive effusion was found in the brain, without any apoplectic symptoms. The fluid in one of them amounted to eight ounces, and several other cases of the same kind arc on record. Dr. Marshall mentions a maniae, who died of mortification of his feet; a few hours before death, he became perfectly rational, yet effusion was found both on the surface of the brain and in the ventricles, amounting to more than a pound.

The apoplectic eases in which we find only serous effusion, constitute that modification of the disease which has been called serous apoplexy. In regard to this affection, or rather to this mode of expression, I

submit the following observations.

I. The distinction which has been proposed betwixt sanguincous and serous apoplexy is not supported by observation. The former is said to be distinguished by flushing of the countenance and strong pulse, and by occurring in persons in the vigour of life; the latter by paleness of the countenance and weakness of the pulse, and by affecting the aged and infirm; and much importance has been attached to this distinction, upon the ground, that the practice, which is proper and necessary in the onc case, would be improper or injurious in the other. I submit that this distinction is not founded upon observation; for, in point of fact, it will be found that many of the cases which terminate by serous effusion, exhibit, in their carly stages, all the symptoms which have been assigned to the sanguineous apoplexy; while many of the cases, which are accompanied by paleness of the countenance and feebleness of the pulse,

will be found to be purely sanguineous; and one modification of the disease in particular will be described, in which these symptoms are very strikingly exhibited, while the disease is found to be sanguineous apoplexy in its most hopeless form. Portal has described a series of cases which afford the same result; of three, which presented all the symptoms of serous apoplexy, one was saved by repeated bleeding, and in the other two, which were fatal, there was found extensive extravasation of blood. Case CI. lately described, forms a remarkable addition to these observations. If any case could be confidently considered as serous apoplexy, this was such. Dropsical effusion had existed in the body for months; and in defiance of every remedy, it had been progressively gaining ground. There were symptoms indicating its existence both in the thorax and in the abdomen; the patient then became comatose, with pale countenance, and died; but though dropsy was found in the other cavities, none could be detected in the brain.

II. In other parts of the body, serous effusion is very seldom a primary disease; it arises as a result either of inflammatory action, or of impeded circulation, and takes place slowly, not accumulating at once in such quantity as to induce urgent symptoms. It is, therefore, in the highest degree improbable, that it should occur in the brain as a primary disease, and accumulate with such rapidity as to produce the symptoms of an apoplectic attack.

III. The quantity of fluid effused bears no proportion to the degree of the apoplectic symptoms. We find it in small quantity though the apoplectic symptoms had been strongly marked and long continued; we find it in large quantity when the symptoms have been slight; and, finally, we find most extensive effusion in the brain where there have been no apoplectic symptoms at all. The direct inference from these facts is, that in the cases of apoplexy with effusion, the presence of the fluid cannot be considered as the cause of the apoplectic symptoms.

The facts which have Jear to warrant the follo 1. There is a modifica without leaving any mon covered in the brain. 2. There is another n serous effusion, often in s 3. The cases which ar are not distinguished fro versity of symptoms as essential difference in t 4. Without any apo effusion in the brain in niv than in the cases 5. It is therefore effusion was not the ca 6. It is probable, th tion depend upon a cau a derangement of the from inflammation. 7. It is probable, tha cation are, at their comp with those of the first; be considered as the res of the circulation, which appless. In other s alrection which has b be considered as sim

OF THE CYPES OF I

The cases to be descr markably from those

The facts which have been related in this section appear to warrant the following conclusions.

1. There is a modification of apoplexy which is fatal, without leaving any morbid appearance that can be dis-

covered in the brain.

TEROTS APPRETT.

sangines; indone modi-

fur cular note described, in

are very stall real bired.

d to be entired as aboblezh

Prai has described a series

same result; of three, which

s chiler as apoplezy, one was

and in the other two, which

d extensive extravalation of

eriled, forms a remarkable

nions. If any case could be

aprile apoplexy, this was such.

sed in the body for monito;

remedy, it had been progres-

La re were symptoms indicat-

the therax and in the abdo-

jecame comatose, with pale

H though dieter was found in

u I'e detected in the brain.

F. Arms officion is very it attes as a result either of

peled inculation, and takes

ring at once in such quantity etoms. It is, therefore, in

I that it should occur in

... se, and accumulate with

the symptoms of an apople c.

A - sed hears no proportion We find it during the sympology bad l ny contract; we find it samptons larguen slight;

(I Teres Huging in the brain r into the last in the

n, tap presence of the duid of the of flective 2. There is another modification, in which we find

serous effusion, often in small quantity.

3. The cases which are referable to these two classes are not distinguished from each other, by any such diversity of symptoms as can be supposed to indicate any essential difference in their nature.

4. Without any apoplectic symptoms, we find scrous effusion in the brain in an equal or in a greater quantity than in the cases of the second modification.

5. It is therefore probable, that in these cases the effusion was not the cause of the apoplectic symptoms.

- 6. It is probable, that the cases of the first modification depend upon a cause which is entirely referable to a derangement of the circulation in the brain distinct from inflammation.
- 7. It is probable, that the cases of the second modification arc, at their commencement, of the same nature with those of the first; and that the serons effusion is to be considered as the result of that peculiar derangement of the circulation, which constitutes the state of simple apoplexy. In other words, it is probable, that the affection which has been called scrons apoplexy is to be considered as simple apoplexy terminating by effusion.

SECTION II.

OF THE CASES OF THE SECOND CLASS NOT PRIMARY APOPLECTIC.

THE cases to be described under this section differ remarkably from those which are properly styled apoplexy. They are not at first apoplectic; or, if there be at the very first attack loss of sense and motion, this state is recovered from in a few minutes, or perhaps seconds, without any remedy. The prominent symptom, at the commencement of the disease, is a sudden attack of violent headach, the patient often starting up and screaming from the violence of it. Sometimes he falls down pale, faint and exhausted, often with slight convulsion, but recovers from this state in a very short time. In other cases he does not fall down, but feels a sudden and great uncasiness in his head, generally with paleness, sickness, and often vomiting. The first attack being so far recovered from that the patient is often able to walk home, the symptoms go on under various modifications. The fixed pain in the head generally continucs, often referred to one side of the head; and generally there is vomiting. The patient continues for some time, perhaps an hour or two, cold and feeble, with cadavcrous paleness of the countenance; his pulse weak and generally frequent. He is quite sensible, but oppressed. By degrees he recovers heat and the natural appearance of the countenance, and the pulse improves in strength. The face then becomes flushed; he is more oppressed; he answers questions slowly and heavily; and at last sinks into coma, from which he never recovers. The period occupied by these changes varies exceedingly in different cases. In one case to be described, there intervened, from the first attack to the commencement of coma, 5 hours, in a second, 12 hours, in a third, 3 days, and in a fourth, not more than 15 or 20 minutes. Death followed the appearance of coma in the first of these cases in 7 hours, in the second in 32 hours, and in the third in two days. Other varieties occur which will be exemplified by the cases. times the coma follows so speedily, that the case closely borders upon the attack of simple apoplexy. But I think there is almost always a certain interval of sense, generally with violent complaint of pain, and not that immediate and complete loss of sensibility which occurs in what may be strictly called the apoplectic attack.

It (456 CXI, agair interval of a fortur me complaint then I Cse CXII. which ine coma had contin tlete recovery from This, after seven da which in three day there was also, after

As far as my o belong to this class modification of the the simple apoplect none of those varieti apoplectic cases, but tion of blood. From there is every reason the immediate ruptur any previous derange thre probably arising par which gives way ture occurs, there see ment of the functions coreted from. The interraption, antil so extratasated as is suf whole progress, the those of extravacation external injuries. mediate effects of t s me time, perhaps a and at last comatose this case removed b coma disappears. The occur in this form of expect upon this view

some cases it is prol

of broutestitely

: II. 272.1723

1 confitting to street . or be of the its

in in a perfect to is,

of Dinent committee at the

13. La solden cha k of

toften caring up and

of the Some limes he falls

d. of on with sight one.

his a - in a very short

and the fown, but feels a

s in his had, generally with

ny miting. The first attack

in it the patient is often able

ps on in under various modi-

in the head generally con-

r ile f the lead; and

. Te paint autiques for

our wind, all and feeble,

the approance; his pulse

He is nite sepsible, but

- - you heat and the natural

- I the pulse improves

en 'ecom's flushed: Le is

tors laterinas strate and

nto come from which he

1 - revied by these changes

tent lies. In one rase to be

Lie Pairst tack to the

i : us in a second. La bours

a furt, not mire than li

nred in appearant of como

dia and it meet receipt

The Cases of the The Cases of the Third the case of the Third the Cases of the Third the Cases of the Third that the Cases of the

The state of the s

In Case CXI. again, after the first attack there was an interval of a fortnight, without any urgent symptom; the complaint then returned, and was speedily fatal. In Case CXII. which seems to belong to this class, after the coma had continued three days, there was a complete recovery from it, succeeded by maniacal delirium. This, after seven days, was again followed by coma, which in three days more was fatal. In Case CIX. there was also, after evacuations, a temporary recovery from the coma, about 12 hours after its appearance, and 20 hours before death.

As far as my observation extends, the eases which belong to this class are generally fatal. They form a modification of the disease, remarkably different from the simple apoplectic state; and, on inspection, we find none of those varieties and ambiguities which occur in the apoplectie eases, but uniform and extensive extravasation of blood. From the whole history of them, I think there is every reason to believe, that they depend upon the immediate rupture of a considerable vessel, without any previous derangement of the eireulation, the rupture probably arising from disease of the artery at the part which gives way. At the moment when the rupture occurs, there seems to be a temporary derangement of the functions of the brain, but this is soon reeovered from. The circulation then goes on without interruption, until such a quantity of blood has been extravasated as is sufficient to produce coma. In their whole progress, these cases are strictly analogous to those of extravasation on the surface of the brain, from external injuries. The patient recovers from the immediate effects of the injury, walks home, and after some time, perhaps an hour or two, becomes oppressed and at last comatose. The extravasated blood being in this case removed by the operation of trephine, the coma disappears. The varieties of the symptoms which oeeur in this form of the discase, are such as we might expect upon this view of the nature of the affection. In some eases it is probable that the extravasation goes on progressively, until such a quantity has been accu-

mulated as is sufficient to produce the fatal coma. In others there is reason to believe that soon after the rupture has taken place, the hæmorrhage is stopped by the formation of a coagulum, and after a considerable interval bursts out afresh and is fatal. This probably occurred in Cases CX. and CXI.; and in such cases, the two extravasations can sometimes on inspection be distinguished from each other by their appearance. In other eases, again, the second extravasation takes place in another part of the brain; and this probably occurred in Case CXII. In this ease, the temporary recovery from the coma was remarkable—the apopleetie state having taken place two hours after the attack, and having continued for three days. At that time, it is probable, the evacuations employed had the effect of restoring the circulation, which then went on in a very imperfect manner, until it was again interrupted by the fresh extravasation. The rapidity with which the disease advances, in eases of this class, will of course depend in a great measure upon the size of the vessel from which the hæmorrhage has taken place. In some cases, it will be seen to be very slow in its progress, and, in others, extremely rapid,—a very short interval taking place betwixt the first attack and the occurrence of perfect coma. Even in some of these eases, however, the patient survives a considerable time; but in others the fatal event likewise takes place with very great rapidity. In some eases, again, the slowness with which the symptoms advance is very remarkable. A man mentioned by Dr. Bright, first lost the power of the thumb and two next fingers of the left hand, but continued his work for four days, when he lost the use of the whole arm. A few days after this his leg became weak, and gradually completely paralytic. The ease was fatal in a month, without perfect coma, and a coagulum was found in a cyst in the right hemisphere.

The following selection of eases will illustrate the principal varieties of this very interesting modification of the disease.

I-THE COM.

APOPLES

CASE CVI, -A ing his sermon durin 13th Mar, 1827, wa to his head; he ther distinctly, and had out, and at this ti the right side, but rapidly more and I minutes from the c come entirely come taken down from th his pulse extremely when I saw him, al that, though a vein v be obtained. Gradus another hour, a full } relief. All the other without benefit. Fro Place, there perer wa lay with his eyes sho but placed and withou boust of engllowing afterwards slow and all Monday at mid the attack.

Inspection.—The left with the left with the right by lace to have made its we stance of the brain where there was a left of coagulated blood ventricle; all the article.

EXTRACTION.

roduce the fire coma. In ere to soon after the : Amorrhage is stopped by

n, and after a considerable

I is fatal. This probably

CNI; and in such cases,

metimes n inspection be

r by their appearance. In

l extravasation takes place

1: and this probably occur-

case, the temporary recovery

raa le—the apoplectic state

hours after the attack, and

days. At that time, it is

m 1 and had the effect of re-

ch then went on in a very

was again interrupted by the

r firm'h which the dis-

10 8 .200, will of course de-

on the size of the vessel from

raken place. In some cases,

s' w in its progress, and, in

a very short interval taking

mass and the occurrence of

me I these cases, however,

e Terible nae; but in others

tak's place with very great

n, the slowness with which

Registration of the second

he, are lost the power of the

73 of the left hand but con-

. 12 when he had the use of

wide after this his leg became

no ready the The case

in the said and a con-

1 35 3 Will Wattake the

is rury increases a bindion

it with temps here.

§ I .- THE COMA RAPIDLY SUPERVENING ON THE FIRST ATTACK.

CASE CVI.—A clergyman, aged 55, while delivering his sermon during the morning service of Sunday, 13th May, 1827, was observed to stop and put his hand to his head; he then attempted to go on, but talked indistinctly, and had evidently lost his recollection; he supported himself by grasping the side of the pulpit. Assistance being immediately given him, he was taken out, and at this time was speechless and paralytic of the right side, but appeared to be sensible. He became rapidly more and more oppressed, and, in about twenty minutes from the commencement of the attack, had beeome entirely eomatose. From the time when he was taken down from the pulpit, he was pale and eold, and his pulse extremely feeble; and this state continued when I saw him, about an hour after the attack; so that, though a vein was opened, very little blood could be obtained. Gradually the eireulation rallied, and, in another hour, a full bleeding was obtained without any All the other usual remedies were employed without benefit. From the time when the eoma took place, there never was the slightest abatement of it; he lay with his eyes shut, his countenance pale and sallow, but placed and without distortion,—his pulse weak, the power of swallowing lost, the breathing at first stertorous, afterwards slow and oppressed. He lived in this state till Monday at mid-day, about twenty-four hours after the attack.

Inspection.—There was extensive extravasation of blood in the left ventricle, which had passed partly into the right by laceration of the septum. It seemed to have made its way into the ventricle from the substance of the brain on the outer and anterior part, where there was a large irregular lacerated eavity, full of eoagulated blood, and communicating with the ventriele; all the arteries of the brain were extensively ossified.

CASE CVII.—A man aged 32, of a very full habit, while sitting by the fire on the evening of the 3d September 1804, was suddenly seized with violent headach, followed by vomiting. After a few minutes he began to talk incoherently, and soon after fell down in a state of insensibility, accompanied by a slight convulsion. His face was extremely pale, his body cold, and his pulse scarcely to be felt. From this state, which resembled syncope, he passed gradually into the appearance of apoplexy; and, three hours after the attack, his breathing was stertorous, the body of natural heat, the pulse 72 and of good strength. The face was still pale, he had frequent vomiting, and was incapable of swallowing, and there had been no diminution of the coma. He now lay in a state of profound coma, and died 29 hours after the attack, without any change in the symptoms, except that, during the last 12 hours, the pulse varied from 100 to 112. Large bloodletting and the other usual remedies had been employed without the least benefit.

Inspection.—All the ventricles of the brain were found distended with coagulated blood, which appeared to have burst into them from an irregular lacerated opening in the substance of the brain.

§ II.—AN INTERVAL OF PERFECT RECOLLECTION FOR SEVERAL HOURS BETWEEN THE ATTACK AND THE OCCURRENCE OF COMA.

Case CVIII.—A gentleman, aged 46, of short stature, full flabby habit, and sallow complexion, a literary man, and very sedentary, while speaking in a public meeting on the 28th April, 1807, was seized with an uneasy sensation in his head, "as if his head would have burst," or "as if the brain had been too big for the skull." This feeling soon went off, and he continued his speech; but when he had finished it he left the room, and felt himself extremely unwell. He had cold shivering, nausea, and repeated vomiting; comAPOPLEXT

1. I'd of headach and his pulse feeble.

walk home, where I s three after the attack. I in the right side parveysms, and in the he had nausea and re celd and funt : his fac weak and rather frequ much or ressed, and He was imm diately l improving under the 30 cances, but with more and more oppi into coma, with sterti sensibility. In this s on the following mort had been taken from th waal remedies employe During the last six ho exceedingly, being some times frequent and full, one state to the other w before death it was stron the eye had retained in Parie symptom was Impution.—A large was found spread over the dura mater, in all side. The origin of its of the right hemispher raids by a large ragge municated with a cavity

sphere, which also was f coamia were likewise for

around the cerebellum, a

spinal cord. In the vent

ETTRATALITY.

Jed 90. 4 17.77 1. havit. e en golibe?d Sep-

of seized with motors head-

. After a it i minutes he

= 1 -ora ther fill down in

mpanied to a sight con-

ore, we pale to Vir cold.

le ili. Er m lan state,

. Set I gradually into the

to I strength. The face was

t ron ting, and was incor ble

ad been no diminution of the

a star of profound coma, and

1: 's, with it and change in

. ing the less ly hours.

Wooll! Large lo disting

les a teen emp ved with.

a riolis fiche brain were found

" I which appeare I to have

in Julia lacerated opening in

- Free RE USETION FOR

THEN THE ATTA AND THE

्या गुजरा, पाने मित्र में श्रीत अव. and solve some in a state of the solve of th

120. 1917. This is the second

h. I. "as it his head mould be for

man and to con and to left to the left to

and recognition 12 18

plained of headach and faintness; his face was pale, and his pulse feeble. After some time he was able to walk home, where I saw him at nine P. M. an hour or more after the attack. He then complained of violent pain in the right side of his head, which came on in paroxysms, and in the intervals, he was much easier; he had nausea and repeated vomiting; he felt himself eold and faint; his face was pale and sallow; his pulse weak and rather frequent; he was quite sensible, but much oppressed, and answered questions very slowly. He was immediately bled from the arm, and, the pulse improving under the bleeding, it was continued to about 30 ounces, but without relief. He became gradually more and more oppressed, and by 11 P. M. had sunk into eoma, with stertorous breathing, and complete insensibility. In this state he continued till six o'eloek on the following morning, when he died. More blood had been taken from the temporal artery, and the other usual remedies employed without the smallest benefit. During the last six hours of his life, the pulse varied execedingly, being sometimes slow and oppressed, sometimes frequent and full, and the transitions from the one state to the other were very sudden; a short time before death it was strong and frequent. The pupil of the eye had retained its natural appearance, and no paralytic symptom was observed in any period of the attack.

Inspection.—A large quantity of eoagulated blood was found spread over the surface of the brain, under the dura mater, in all directions, chiefly on the right side. The origin of it was evidently from the substance of the right hemisphere, from which it had burst outwards by a large ragged opening. This opening communicated with a eavity in the substance of the hemisphere, which also was full of eoagulated blood. Large coagula were likewise found under the base of the brain, around the eercbellum, and about the upper part of the spinal cord. In the ventricles there was about an ounce of serous fluid.

Case CIX.—A lady, aged 70, healthy and active for her years, had complained for a day or two of headach, but without being confined, or her health otherwise affected, till the evening of the 7th August, 1816, when she suddenly screamed out from violent headach, vomited, and then fell down in a state resembling syncope; her face was extremely pale, and her pulse scarcely to be felt; and there was some slight appearance of con-She recovered in a few minutes and went to Through the night she was restless, vomited repeatedly, and three or four times fell into a kind of fainting fit, of a few minutes duration. In some of these she was reported to have made a gurgling noise in her throat, and to have shown some convulsive motions of the arms; in the intervals she was quite sensible, and complained of headach. About eight o'clock in the morning of the 8th she sunk into coma. I saw her for the first time about ten; she was then completely comatose; breathing stertorous; face rather pale; pupil contracted; pulse of good strength and a little frequent. The usual remedies were employed, and in the evening she had so far recovered, that, when raised up in bed, she took into her hand a glass containing some purgative medicine, and drank it. She seemed to attempt to speak, but could not; and soon after relapsed into perfeet coma; pulse at night 112; there seemed to be no paralysis. (9th,) continued in perfect coma, and died at four in the afternoon.

Inspection.—In the anterior lobe of the right hemisphere of the brain, there was a cavity containing a mass of coagulated blood the size of a small hen's egg. From this eavity the blood had forced a passage through the substance of the brain downwards, and had spread in all directions under the base of the brain, and upwards on both sides, betwixt the dura mater and the arachnoid, to such an extent, that portions of it were found on the upper surface of the brain on both sides of the falx. The substance of the brain surrounding the eavity was soft and much broken down. There was nothing

APOPLEX

in the rentricles, and

§ III.—ÁN INTERV ATTACK AND

CASE CX - A SI gyd health, after us ferencen, had return sitting near the fire started up, pushed l exclaimed, "Oh m floor insensible, and within ten or fifteen time he had recovere chair, and was quite pale, and his whole b plained of severe head rather frequent. Blood ed, and his pulse impr after a few hours, with the other usual remedi went off after some tim of severe beadach, with and pain extending dow bæ; bis palse was rath He continued in this varying very much in plained chiefly of his ·120 or more, and of go were natural; he was his limbs, and could ge and sit up a considera began to be more opposed forcetfal: the other syr he sunk very gradually oth. His pulse had con had been no paralytic s there was repeated conThe marting.

294 70, he 'y aplactive for to y they of healach.

or than otherwise

it . r. nt up den romitn is the resembling syncope;

ce, and by presentely to the fire to arrace of one

of men has estimated and went to

· T s I siless, romited re-

: Laray a. In some of these

om a mongling a ise in der

my - me convulsing motions of mas she was juite sensible, and

A cighe of dock in the morn-

. . . . I saw her for the

. . . . o fest. [4p] contract.

er, d rive requent. The

1 of and in the evening she , vin tassed up in bed, she

and some purgative

To strad to attempt to

from after relapsed into per-

. 13. there spenied to be no

" in period orma, and died

भारत है के भी कि लेखें है hems

o mix of the conto min a mix To some new From

Arryl 1 [See the Up the

17 January 17 Jad spread in

, les vi he rise and upwards

Truffet and the arach

in a could it nere found

new the state of the

1 1 1 m. nuit ming

in the ventricles, and all the blood-vessels appeared remarkably empty.

§ III.—AN INTERVAL OF THREE DAYS BETWEEN THE ATTACK AND THE OCCURRENCE OF COMA.

CASE CX .- A gentleman, aged 18, previously in good health, after using rather violent exercise in the forenoon, had returned home before dinner, and was sitting near the fire, when, without any warning, he started up, pushed his ehair backwards with violence, exelaimed, "Oh my head!" and instantly fell on the floor insensible, and slightly convulsed. I saw him within ten or fifteen minutes after the attack. By that time he had recovered his recollection, was sitting on a chair, and was quite distinct. His face was extremely pale, and his whole body cold and shivering: he complained of severe headach, and his pulse was weak and rather frequent. Bloodletting was immediately employed, and his pulse improved under it. It was repeated after a few hours, with the addition of purgatives, and the other usual remedies. The eoldness and paleness went off after some time, and he then complained only of severe headach, with a feeling of stiffness of his neek, and pain extending downwards along the eervieal vertebræ; his pulse was rather frequent and of good strength. He continued in this state for two days, the headach varying very much in degree, and frequently complained chiefly of his neek; his pulse was frequent, ·120 or more, and of good strength; the other functions were natural; he was quite distinct; had the use of all his limbs, and could get out of bed with little assistance, and sit up a considerable time. On the third day he began to be more oppressed, and a little confused and forgetful; the other symptoms as before. On the fourth he sunk very gradually into eoma, and died on the 5th. His pulse had continued from 120 to 140; there had been no paralytic symptom; but, on the fifth day, there was repeated convulsion. Bloodletting and all

the other usual remedies had been employed without benefit.

Inspection.—All the ventrieles of the brain were completely filled with eoagulated blood. In the substance of the left hemisphere there was a eavity formed by laeeration of the eerebral substance, filled also by the coagulum, and communicating with the ventricle. There was no other morbid appearance.

§ IV .- THE FATAL COMA OCCURRING A FORTNIGHT AFTER THE FIRST ATTACK.

Case CXI.—A lady, aged 56, enjoying good health, except oceasional disorders in the stomach, on Tuesday, the 30th July 1816, walked out in perfect health; had gone but a very short distance, when she was seized with violent pain in the head and giddiness; soon after, she lost her recollection and fell down. She very soon recovered her recollection, and was earried home, being unable to stand. She was then seen by Mr. White, who found her pale and faint; the pulse 70 and weak. She was a little incoherent, complained of severe headach, and had repeated vomiting. The vomiting recurred frequently for two days, and then subsided; the severe headach continued a week. During this period, she was generally confined to bed, but was sometimes able to sit up for a short time; her face was pale; her pulse from 70 to 76 and rather weak; she had some appetite, but bad sleep. She had no paralytic symptom, and made no complaint except of the constant pain of her head, which was always referred to the back part. At the end of the week, this pain became much less severe; she then complained chiefly of pain in the back and limbs, and some dysuria; her pulse was as formerly, and her mind entire. In this manner she passed another week, still confined to bed, but, towards the end of the week, she appeared to be much better. On Tuesday, 13th August, exactly a fortnight from the first attack, she was suddenly seized with violent pain in the

best, chiefly re then an hour sh more was dead. rabe natural. life, but was pre Inspection .the right hemis filled by a coam venincle, and by coagulated under the pos cavity in the brain was muc kilnies were u was a remarkal ance of extrar

CASE CZII.the lith May. sized with he diarrhera: and herendy. Sh h urs, and the she was then the skin rathe the pulse 65 Miemoon, she diantheea; no Full bleeding ut she was in 18th, She con

opened her ere

that she drew a

William Land

en ent et min at

of the Linguiste com-

a' . d. In the substance

va on rion ed by la-

Comminde The

MA (CURRE & A FORING) I

rs in the stomach. In Tuesday,

ked out in perfect health; Lal

distance, when she was seized

he land ni inex; som offer,

idld of the text son

In a medicare being

Tion as a by Mr. Waite . - be puis 70 ni was. . or bolofarishad

The vomiting recurof, old then sold sted; the

in a Depog this peri !

1: J. Tr. was sometimes

. . intime we fair by

-1. I were see had a not

In pur rie sport w.

exist the colling rain (f

vary Livel . Le lak put.

krin in . m. miles

The training book

er (138 mas a former y,

A S TROUB I SEE SEE AND SEE SEE

Olympia (I)

E P ST ATTACK.

head, chiefly referred to the back part of it; in less than an hour she became comatose; and in three hours more was dead. The face had continued pale, and the pulse natural. I did not see this patient during her life, but was present at the examination of the body.

Inspection. In the substance of the anterior lobe of the right hemisphere of the brain, there was a cavity filled by a coagulum of blood, the size of a hen's egg. From this eavity a lacerated opening led into the right ventricle, and all the ventricles were completely filled by coagulated blood. A thin stratum of blood was also found under the base of the brain, which scemed to have escaped from the ventricles, by foreing a passage under the posterior pillars of the fornix. Around the cavity in the right hemisphere, the substance of the brain was much softened and broken down. Both the kidnics were unusually vaseular; about the right, there was a remarkable turgeseence of veins, and an appearanee of extravasated blood in the cellular membrane behind it.

§ V.—Two distinct extravasations.

Case CXII.—A lady, aged 40, of a spare habit, on the 15th May, 1811, at two o'elock P. M. was suddenly seized with headach, accompanied by vomiting and diarrhœa: and at the same time began to talk ineoherently. She continued to talk incoherently for two hours, and then sunk into eoma. I saw her at five; she was then in a state of perfect eoma; face pale; the skin rather cold; the breathing soft and natural; the pulse 65, soft and rather weak. During the afternoon, she had frequent vomiting and repeated diarrhœa; no other change took place in the symptoms. Full bleeding was employed and a blister on the head; but she was ineapable of swallowing. 16th, 17th, and 18th, She continued in a state of perfect coma; never opened her eyes nor showed the least sensibility, except that she drew away her arm with violence when she was

bled. She frequently moved all her limbs, and occasionally turned in bed. The pupil contracted a little when a candle was brought near it: the face was sometimes a little flushed, but generally pale. The pulse was from 70 to 80, and of good strength. There had been no return of the vomiting or diarrhea after the 15th. Bleedings, both general and topical, were employed, with purgatives, &c. On the evening of the 18th, she came out of the coma rather suddenly, like a person awaking from sleep; looked around her, put out her tongue when desired, and took what was offered to her; she also talked a little, but incoherently. (19th and 20th,) Much incoherent talking; appeared at times to understand what was said to her, but could give no account of her feelings, only said, she was "very bad;" pulse from 70 to 80. (21st, 22d,) Incessant talking and delirium; at times unmanageable and attempting to get out of bed; at these times the face was flushed, at other times it was pale; pulse varying from 90 to 120, weak and irregular; appeared to be blind, but had the use of all her limbs. (23d,) Highly delirious and maniacal. (24th, 25th,) Became calm and manageable, and at times very weak. Pulse small and feeble, skin cold with a clammy sweat; appeared at times to sec and to know those about her. (26th,) Relapsed into coma; lay with her cyclids half shut, and the eyes distorted outwards; pulse from 80 to 100, and rather weak; face pale; was incapable of swallowing. Continued in a state of perfect coma on the 27th and 28th, and died in the afternoon of the 29th;—the pulse had continued about 90.

Inspection.—All the ventricles of the brain were full of a dark-coloured fluid like coffee. In the substance of the right hemisphere, there was a cavity containing a coagulum of blood, the size of a hen's egg. This cavity communicated with the ventricle, and the substance of the brain immediately surrounding the cavity was very soft and much broken down. In the left hemisphere, at its upper and posterior part, there was a cavity the size of a large walnut. It contained a dark-

coloured matter but considerabl in its texture colour mixed w appeared to be scance of the b softened and but

Some part '
as in these e
origin of the
however, som
more rarely,
the third an

FI. — TE

THIRD AS

ABLE DISE

CASE CXI

chance C

appearing bled again freely, bu comatose: Luspectic idetable qu

TATRAVAS TA

relation and or

To the interest a little

the fig. of the mas some.

In rail pair The pulse

2 d stantin. The had

the grant and after the

in and topical, were em-

: (In the evening of the er of randdenly, like a

o: 10k A around her, put

1. 201: k what was offered

refo, ha incoherently, fluth

Aing: appeared at times

in ther, but could give no

" i is " " s " rery bad;"

a the far was Auslied, at

-r :- : from 90 to 120, to exial. Lit had the

. It has del'mous and ma-

and manageable,

Polici small and feeble, skin

preared at times to see and Relatised into e ma;

and the eves distorted

1 · 14, and rather weak;

i snal. ming. Continued

1 7 the 27th and 20th, and

the 20th; the pulse had

Miles of the brain more full

Live mas a song ? staining

h, sire of d 163 C. This

or in marri la, and the sub-

or it attempted the cast

In the left

Transfer and a

coloured matter which appeared to be eoagulated blood, but considerably changed in its appearance, being firmer in its texture than recent blood, and of a brownish colour mixed with portions of a lighter colour, which appeared to be diseased cerebral substance. The substance of the brain surrounding this eavity was much softened and broken down.

Some part within the substance of the hemispheres, as in these examples, seems to be the most common origin of the hæmorrhage in eases of this class. It is, however, sometimes found in the ventricles only, though more rarely. In the following Case it was confined to the third and fourth ventricles.

§ VI. — THE EXTRAVASATION CONFINED THIRD AND FOURTH VENTRICLES, WITH REMARK-ABLE DISEASE OF THE ARTERIES OF THE BRAIN.

CASE CXIII.—A gentleman, aged 55, of a thin spare habit, had, about six months before his death, an attack of hemiplegia, which, after the usual treatment, subsided gradually. On the 10th October, 1819, he complained suddenly after dinner of giddiness and siekness; he went into another room, where he was found a few minutes after, supporting himself by a bed-post; he was then confused and pale. Being put to bed, he soon became partially eomatose, with muttering and frequent attempts to speak. I saw him more than an hour after the attack. He was then pale and sallow, pulse soft, languid, and rather slow. His eyes were open, but he did not seem to comprehend what was said to him. A vein was opened, which bled very little, the circulation appearing extremely languid. Some time after, he was bled again by Dr. Aitkin, when the blood flowed more freely, but without relief. He became completely comatose, and died about three o'clock in the morning.

Inspection .- In the lateral ventrieles there was a considerable quantity of bloody serum; the third and fourth ventricles were full of coagulated blood. The arteries of the brain were in a great many places in a remarkably diseased state, being extensively ossified; and there was in many places a singularly diseased state of the inner coat of the artery. It was much thickened, and of a soft pulpy consistence; and large portions of it could be squeezed out when a piece of the artery was dompressed between the fingers.

In the cases now described, the hæmorrhage appears to have taken place from the deep-seated arteries of the brain. In the two following cases, for which I am indebted to Dr. Barlow of Bath, and Dr. Hunter of this place, it appears to have been from the superficial

vessels.

§ VII,—Extravasation on the surface of the Brain.

Case CXIV.—A gentleman, about 63 years of age, tall and slender, and of temperate habits, was seized with apoplexy on the morning of the 2d of May, 1822. He was promptly relieved by bleeding, continued well through the day, and, on the morning of the 3d, appeared free from complaint. About two o'clock, however, there was a return of the attack, when he was again bled copiously, but without the effect of restoring consciousness. He was now seen by Dr. Barlow, and all the usual remedies were employed in the most active manner without relief. On the 4th, he was still comatose, and continued so till ten o'clock at night, when consciousness returned, but continued only for a very short time. On the 5th, he had an interval of recollection which lasted three hours; and he was again sensible for about a quarter of an hour in the evening. He had a similar interval for about an hour and a half on the 6th, but on the 7th was comatose nearly the whole day. On the 8th, there was a slight return of consciousnesss in the morning; and towards the evening, he was sensible for several hours. During

puse had con puse that con visit of any fit was still lether Heeling and the relieved; passe the 10th he was served that he

was distorted of eyes a lut, but telligibly when lethargic, but was roused: the afternoon stupor, with partially relief

th 16th.

Inspection—
found extended x'y adherer
of the a men
Lealthy. The
In the com
is steel me i
"the frequen
rant a hope

teerme grad

cuineous ef guineous ef leshargy owi under a per variable ?" attempt to a

Case (Nature)
tavem, and
rits, lad bee
betwist the
seven o'cloc

related | The arteries in a remark.

Particle Particle Stated; and a storm by diseased state of the artery was

THE TELL TITLE TO

the itemorrhage appears
the deep-seated arteries of
ong cases for which I am
of P the and Dr. Hunter of
een from the superneial

ANY OA SHE STREAME OF THE

and a series of age. t raperate balits, was stized ery of the 2d of Mar 1820. I'r breding, continued well the 3d. ap-1. At ut two o'click, how. of the act ck, when he was without the exact of restoring TREE IT D. Barlow, and ra empioved in the most ac-: On the 20, he was still so the tim oil is at night, to continued only for a is an internal of they house and he was d marter of an hour in the it interval is about an hour of a the 7th was complete 3 Line was a South rains During these changes, the bowels had been fully opened, the pulse had continued about 72 and soft, and no paralysis of any limb had been observed. On the 9th, he was still lethargie, with some stertor; but, after topical bleeding and the operation of a purgative, he was much relieved; passed a quiet night, and on the morning of the 10th he was quite sensible. It was now first observed that he had lost the sight of the right eye, which was distorted outwards. On the 11th, he lay with his eyes shut, but took food, and answered questions intelligibly when he was spoken to. On the 12th, he was lethargic, but eapable of answering questions when he was roused; and this state continued on the 13th. On the afternoon of that day, there was an increase of stupor, with difficulty of swallowing. He was again partially relieved by leeelies, a purgative, and a blister to the neek, but the relief was only temporary. He became gradually more comatose, and died early on the 16th.

Inspection —A eopious extravasation of blood was found extended over the surface of the brain; it was closely adherent to the dura mater, and could be peeled off like a membrane. The substance of the brain was healthy. There was no effusion in the ventricles.

In the communication with which Dr. Barlow has favoured me in regard to this singular case, he remarks, "the frequent returns of consciousness seemed to warrant a hope that no irremediable extravasation had taken place: yet the event proved that extensive sanguineous effusion had existed throughout. Was the lethargy owing to the extravasation?—and if so, why, under a permanently existing cause, was the effect so variable?" These interesting queries I do not at present attempt to answer.

Case CXV.—A man, aged about 35, keeper of a tavern, and addicted to the constant use of ardent spirits, bad been drinking to intoxication during the night betwixt the 12th and 13th July, 1816; and, about seven o'clock in the morning, was found lying in a

state of violent eonvulsion. No account eould be obtained of his previous state, except that, during the evening he had drunk a very large quantity of whisky, and that, when he was last seen about three o'clock in the morning, he was walking about his house, but unable to speak. He was seen by Dr. Hunter, at a quarter before eight. He was then lying on his left side, in a state of perfect insensibility, with laborious breathing; saliva was flowing from his mouth; his eyes were much suffused, and greatly distorted,—the cornea of both being completely concealed below the upper eyelid; pulse 120, full and soft. While Dr. Hunter stood by him, he was again seized with convulsion; it began in the muscles of the jaw, which was drawn from side to side with great violence, producing a loud jarring sound from the grinding of the teeth. The spasms then extended to the body and extremities, which were first thrown into a state of violent extension and then convulsed for one or two minutes; they then subsided, and left him as before in a state of perfect insensibility. Similar attacks took place four times while Dr. Hunter remained in the house, which was about half an hour; and he expired in another attack of the same kind about ten minutes after. Bloodletting, and every other remedy that the time admitted of, were employed in the most judicious manner.

Inspection.—On removing the skull cap an appearance was observed on the surface of the dura mater, of coagulated blood in small detached portions. These appeared to have been discharged from small glandularlooking elevations on the outer surface of the dura mater, which were very vaseular, and highly gorged with blood. There were depressions on the inner surface of the bone, which corresponded with these bodies. On raising the dura mater, there came into view a coagulum of blood, eovering and completely concealing the right hemisphere of the brain; it was about two lines in thickness over the middle lobe, and became gradually thinner as it spread over the anterior and posterior lobes, and dipped down below the base of the

bain The coagu aucunt to about 5 sphere, the veins w the of the right, surce of the har These was no fluid the was discovered 2 Lel, was found Fra. Y Braces.

The following o m ist rapidly fatal

CASE CXVI.

meeting on the ev satt fell down i impeliately carried wis Las pened to Calif insensible, a Lilies from the fi I spect on .- The I aled with blood. was a thin but very b' od, or rather i who le surface of an at the of Strain of blood i Total Were 629

When the dis Wit, the sym P. 2005 than wh E. t. Coloning

for a ding was

bret, and a small

brain. The coagulum being removed, was found to amount to about zv. On the surface of the left hemisphere, the veins were turgid with blood; on the surface of the right, they were entirely empty; but the source of the hæmorrhage could not be discovered. There was no fluid in the ventrieles, and no other disease was discovered. The stomach being earefully examined, was found to contain nothing but air and some healthy mueus.

The following ease, for which I am indebted to Dr. Macaulay, is altogether a remarkable one. It is the most rapidly fatal case of eerebral disease that has oc-

eurred to me.

I ETTRITIBLE X.

· No along and be ob-

are, organization the

T. Plate graphy (impiky,

to and state of the in

ar at at his some, but un-

n'y Dr. Hunter, at a war-

" 17' 7 to les lest si e, in

The state of the property of the state of th

. I'm; his eyes were a leh . 1.—t. o ermer f in be-

era original enelli: The

a Dr. Hanter st od by bim,

or one it began in the

as revn fr m sile to side I ga ud jarring sound

ram wes, wared were first

' nagrada nari ren con-· : · r: n subsided, and

The Smalle Dr. Hupter

was us half an bour;

· araca of the same kind

Letting and every other

i were e spayed in

no the shall can an ar ear-

The of the dea Rath of

the ed prints. These . I wen same abaddlar.

The still into and the sound

- Valide Lides

ing view 1.9. 1. 42 L (CD a3] Wi

17 mile 12 (170

" Sul KAUSS

at at a and

Land 1 1 The St. 1 St.

Case CXVI.—A woman, aged 54, who had been for several years liable to headach, attended a crowded meeting on the evening of 25th June 1829, and seemed in perfect health. Towards the conclusion of the meeting she uttered a loud and convulsive scream, and instantly fell down in a state of insensibility. She was immediately earried out and was seen by Dr. Maeaulay, who happened to be present: he found her pale and totally insensible, and the pulse feeble: and within five minutes from the first seizure she was dead.

Inspection.—The integuments of the head were much loaded with blood. On removing the dura mater, there was a thin but very extensive appearance of extravasated blood, or rather eechymosis, which covered nearly the whole surface of the brain. In the substance of the anterior lobe of the right hemisphere there was a coagulum of blood the size of a large bean. All the other viscera were examined in the most accurate manner, but nothing was discovered, except a tuberele on the liver, and a small spot of ossification on the abdominal aorta.

When the disease takes place in the ecrebellum, or below it, the symptoms appear to be more rapid in their progress than when it is in the substance of the brain: the two following cases will illustrate this modification of the disease; for the second of them I am indebted to the late Dr. Hennen.

§ VIII.—Extravasation in the cerebellum.

CASE CXVII.—A woman, aged about 70, a midwife, of a full habit and short stature, while sitting by the bed of a lady whom she was attending, suddenly exclaimed, "I am gone!" and almost immediately fell down in a state of coma, with some vomiting. She lay in a comatose state, without any change in the symptoms for 40 hours, and then died.

Inspection.—A coagulum of blood, the size of a pigeon's egg, was found in the right lobe of the ccrebellum. There was no other morbid appearance.

CASE CXVIII.—A private in the 10th Hussars, of a spare habit, about a month before his death, was attacked with a pain in the back of his head, for which a blister was applied, and the pain soon went off. On the 22d July, 1819, he was seized with giddiness and fell down; on being raised he vomited, and complained of violent headach and faintness, but was quite sensible; he was very pale, and his pulse was slow and languid. Being earried to the hospital, he continued in the same state; asked for cold water, which he swallowed, and seemed relieved of the faintness, but continued very pale. In a few minutes his eyes became fixed; he drew deep inspirations, and in two minutes more was dead. From the moment of seizure, he did not move either the upper or lower extremities.

Inspection.—Nothing unusual was discovered in the brain. On raising the tentorium, the vessels of the eerebellum appeared very turgid. On removing the eerebellum, a coagulum of blood of about two ounces was found under it, and surrounding the foramen magnum.

IX.-Extra

CASE CXIX.several months in signal tightness of He had also sever romining, a rellor uneasiness in the plaints be had b in the north, to found his pulse his expression chiefly of tightne the region of the along the right sid ædema of the leg he was considerab pressed bimself a continued frequen suddenly seized w his head, and nun res oppressed, by distinctly, but in ner. He comple tight and crampe much prickling when desired to the muscular p The expression (tuons: the eye torred, and the s

The polse was 1

After large ble
symptoms
aspect, and, after
deted as being

§ IX.—Extravasation in the substance of the tuber annulare.

Case CXIX.—A gentleman, aged 37, had been for several months in bad health, being affected with oceasional tightness of the ehest and difficulty of breathing. He had also severe dyspeptic complaints, with occasional vomiting, a yellow tinge of his skin, and considerable uneasiness in the region of the liver. For these complaints he had been advised by his medical attendants in the north, to go to Cheltenham, and arrived in Edinburgh with that intention on 22d March, 1823. I saw him on the following day along with Mr. Wishart. We found his pulse frequent, his countenance sallow, and his expression febrile and anxious. He complained chiefly of tightness across his chest, with some pain in the region of the liver. Respiration was very imperfect along the right side of the thorax, and there was some ædema of the legs. By topical bleeding, purging, &c. he was considerably relieved; and on the 24th he expressed himself as feeling much better, but his pulse continued frequent. On the morning of the 25th he was suddenly seized with giddiness, noise and confusion in his head, and numbress of the whole right side. was oppressed, but not comatose; answered questions distinctly, but in a loud voice, and with a peculiar manner. He complained chiefly of noise in his head, of a tight and cramped feeling of his right arm and leg, with much prickling and loss of command of the parts, but when desired to grasp another person's hand with his. the muscular power did not seem to be diminished. The expression of his countenance was vacant and fatuous; the eye was natural. The face was slightly distorted, and the speech was in some degree embarrassed. The pulse was 120,

After large bloodletting and the other usual remedies, the symptoms gradually assumed a more favourable aspect, and, after four or five days, he was considered as being out of any immediate danger, though

AT IT THE CEREBELT M.

2. Aged about 70. a milwife, it stature, while siving by the great and almost immediately fell in which seme vomiting. She by the change in the symptom.

- Clot them I am ind bica

Sudm of block the size of a in the right of e of the cerebelfor moral appearance.

the Hussars, of a and a life which a Mixter or agailiness and fell down: · In Contiaco 1. Existent · — s ar te sets l'et he was ... word impud. Being min din the same rate; ing strong and stimed . The contract rery pale. In a THE TIRE IS SEEN deep inm on the man dead. From 1 17 more Werthe upper ment was discovered in the AND THE YESSELS OF THE in removing the The Print of the Park

the effects of the attack were by no means removed. His pulse was now natural, his speech was distinct, and his mind entire; his sight was good, and the appearance of the eye natural, except a slight degree of paralysis of the upper eyelid of the right side. His breathing was easy, and he made no complaint, except of the tight and eramped feeling with numbness of the right arm and leg. His look, however, continued vacant and peculiar. His appetite and digestion were good, and his bowels easily regulated. He was improving in strength, and was able to be out of bed part of the day. This favourable state continued till the 14th of April, on which day he was found with a very frequent pulse, without any other change in the symptoms. This febrile state continued on the two following days with rapid failure of strength, and he died on the evening of the 16th. He continued sensible to the last, and during this febrile attack, he seemed to have acquired an inereased command over the limbs of the affected side.

About the commencement of his illness of 25th March, he complained of considerable uncasiness in passing his urine; for a day or two it was bloody, and there was a good deal of tenderness in the region of the bladder. After a few days this subsided, and he began to pass considerable quantities of puriform fluid of remarkable fetor, which subsided to the bottom of the chamberpot, after the urine had stood for a short time. This continued during the remainder of his life, though it had greatly diminished in quantity for several days preceding the last febrile attack. The urine was in sufficient quantity and passed without difficulty.

Inspection.—The brain and eerebellum were found in every respect in the most healthy state, and no vestige of disease was discovered until the cerebellum was separated from the tuber annulare. In doing so a eavity was exposed about the size of a large hazel nut, lined by a soft cyst, and full of dark grumous blood of a firm consistence. This remarkable cavity was formed partly in the substance of the tuber, and partly betwixt it and the base of the eerebellum. It was decidedly

APOPLEXY WITH

more to the left side that ing substance was softed points, as if from inject existent in the thorux. The right lung was contact; the left was mutical. The liver was year a pale ash-colour and kidney was pale, indurate surface of the bladder was places showed distinct an inch in diameter.

X.—EXTRAVASATION
ALONG THE WHOLE

The following case si vascion of blood that he also remarkable from the affection took place, and to one of the common inflig by effusion.

CAR CILL - A bor, bealth awoke in the nig plaining of headach; ha sion. On the 19th, he who found him still com sinal remiting but Under the usual treatm dually to subside, and entitely recovered. Bu he had a return of conv Plained much of headacl said he was better, but Bowels obstinate, 28th the second of which was ereral hours, affecting cl Pulse 130, On the Sent LA EZISTANALA

torse by no mins removed.

. . . . s. A. L residerinet, and

was mid and the appearance

it is the different paralysis of

right le. His breathing was

my un except if the tight and

aess if the right arm and

co invest recent and peculiar.

n were good, and his bowels

as improving in strength, and

f red part of the day. This

and the little lith of April, on

I win a very frequent palse, 1 2 .n t 2 sv aptoms. This fe-

a the two following days with

the and a laden the evening of

hare arquired an iniche michel side.

ace it liness of 25th

f of considerable uneasiness in

a life reprose was blo dr. and trees in the region of the

I rest is artifled, and he began 1 iles francom Ail of re-

134 Still the bottom of the

the state of for a start time.

a o manit (t servial dass

and k. The unas was in suf-

on a cert and reserve

half sales and restrict

Land the Carbinin My is.

I lyne so a control lined by a broad not lined

part letvist

more to the left side than the right, and the surrounding substance was softened, and tinged with dark red points, as if from injection of dark blood. There was effusion in the thorax to the amount of at least lb.ii. The right lung was contracted, and extensively hepatised; the left was much loaded with sero-purulent The liver was very considerably enlarged and of a pale ash-colour and granular texture. The left kidney was pale, indurated, and tubercular. The inner surface of the bladder was deeply injected, and in several places showed distinct round ulcers about a quarter of an inch in diameter.

X.—EXTRAVASATION IN ALL THE VENTRICLES AND ALONG THE WHOLE COURSE OF THE SPINAL CORD.

The following ease shows the most extensive extravasation of blood that has ever occurred to me. It is also remarkable from the period of life at which the affection took place, and its similarity in the symptoms to one of the common inflammatory affections terminating by effusion.

Case CXX.—A boy, aged 9, previously in perfect health, awoke in the night of 18th May, 1829, complaining of headach; had vomiting and slight eonvulsion. On the 19th, he was seen by Mr. W. Brown, who found him still complaining of headach with oceasional vomiting, but without any urgent symptom. Under the usual treatment the complaint seemed gradually to subside, and on the 25th he appeared to be entirely recovered. But on the afternoon of that day, he had a return of convulsion, and in the evening complained much of headach. Pulse 64.—26th and 27th, said he was better, but seemed drowsy. Pulse slow. Bowels obstinate.—28th, had two attacks of convulsion, the second of which was very severe, and continued for several hours, affecting ehiefly the left side of the body. Pulse 130. On the 29th he was again better; but from this time he became gradually more and more drowsy, and at last comatose with squinting, and occasional convulsive motions of the limbs, and he died on the 3d of June. His death was preceded by severe convulsion of several hours duration. I saw him along with Mr. Brown from the 29th.

Inspection.—The surface of the brain was healthy. The lateral ventricles were distended with dark bloody fluid, and each of them contained a mass of coagulated blood; that in the right was the size of a large walnut, the other smaller. The 3d and 4th ventricles were quite filled with coagulated blood in a very firm state, and from the bottom of the fourth ventricle, the coagulum was traced outwards and spread along the base of the brain and cerebellum, and around the medulla oblongata. The spinal canal being now laid open, the dura mater of the cord appeared remarkably distended, and the cord was found through its whole extent entirely enveloped by a very firm and uniform stratum of coagulated blood. The brain and cord were in their substance healthy, and the source of the hæmorrhage could not be discovered.

§ XI.—Extravasation in a cyst, formed by separation of the laminæ of the dura mater, from rupture of the middle meningeal artery.

The following remarkable case was lately communicated by Dr. John Gairdner, to the Medico-Chirurgical Society of Edinburgh, and will appear, in a more detailed form, in the next volume of their transactions.

Case CXXI.—A man, aged 48, about the 12th of November, 1814, was assisting a neighbour to carry a heavy load to the top of a high stair, when he felt a sudden attack of headach. He was, from that time troubled with headach and occasional giddiness, increased by stooping;—and after these symptoms had

APPLEXT WITH

or more it said of some imperfect to the Gardner on the 2d talent headach. Puls were at this time sensible coma, without any other on the 13th.

Inspection.—On the lof found, in the course of corupying the region of eard upper part of the by a separation of the contained about four or portion of the dura mediater thickened and depression on the surfact the crist.—and the ven parties of serous fluid especiance.

The source of the hæn tip in the head appears (

I The most common vessel of moderate size i from which the blood by the ventrales, or to the tions at once, as in a crisin vain in general to executive laceration in ceneral, numerous time executive laceration from had taken place in the substance which has been case is described by Ser this the blood had burst in the blood had burst in the substance.

IN ARMINE

" Esta of Esta quali-

ar a - a l and occasione

to clevel 4 or stacks collangion

- I saw him a reg with Mr.

e die train men belichen.

is orden ed with dark boody

t Till size of a large walnut,

- d and Ath rentricles were

· l ' l in a very time state,

turil venricle, the cagu-

and spiral along the base of

m. In around the medulla obeing now hill open, the

in and remarks a dissended, ri is na e extent en-

of the stratum of

reas and were in their

rd the ence of the Lemonthage

and the property of the property of the

YE FIRE "AL MATER,

DEE MARKET AR

dia i i case was lately communi-

The Medios Chirurgical

in it is appear, is a more te-

S. S. roy J. William D. Con.

The state of the s

The Marie Williams

St. ma Chill and Mr.

eontinued rather more than a fortnight, he became sensible of some imperfection of vision. When seen by Dr. Gairdner on the 2d of December, he complained of violent headach. Pulse 40, and feeble.—The pupils were at this time sensible to the light, but after a few days became insensible. He sunk very gradually into coma, without any other remarkable symptom, and died on the 13th.

Inspection.—On the left side of the head, a eyst was found, in the course of the middle meningeal artery, occupying the region of the lower part of the parietal and upper part of the temporal bone. It was formed by a separation of the laminæ of the dura mater, and contained about four ounces of coagulated blood. The portion of the dura mater forming the eyst was eonsiderably thickened and very vascular. There was a depression on the surface of the brain, corresponding to the cyst,—and the ventricles contained a considerable quantity of scrous fluid. There was no other morbid appearance.

The source of the hæmorrhage in eases of extravasation in the head appears to be exceedingly various.

I. The most common is probably the rupture of a vessel of moderate size in the substance of the brain, from which the blood bursts by laceration either into the ventricles, or to the surface, or in both these directions at once, as in a case described by Morgagni. It is in vain in general to attempt tracing it to particular vessels; Dr. Cheyne was able to do so in some instances; but, in general, numerous vessels must be laid open by the extensive laceration, and hence probably the appearance which has been observed, as if the extravasation had taken place from various points at once. A ease is described by Serres in which the rupture took place in the substance of the pons Varolii; and from this the blood had burst forth into the occipital fossa."

^{*} Annuaire Med. Chirurg.

it was diste

pound of b

it. This m

weight in th

to an indesc

be bodily e

Archives Ge

small aneu

middle cere

VII. In

senbed by

place betwi

of a vessel in

of the pariet

suidenly seiz

of the bone w

(TII. I have

מו ,מעמפיבה

ripiate of the r

er separation o

In the most

t. ha northag

of the brain, I

in a disease o

that congestive

to constitute t

(List according

the cases of the

scation of

ethers, of that

has described a

the artery will

aby narrowed (

II. The superficial vessels. This probably took place in the remarkable cases communicated by Dr. Hunter and Dr. Barlow. This appears to be the meningeal apoplexy of Serres. The blood seems in general to be accumulated betwixt the dura mater and the arachnoid; and two cases of this kind have been described by Andral; but cases have been described by Fernelius and Tulpius, in which the blood appeared to be confined beneath the pia mater, and to have been discharged from the retiform plexus of vessels at the base of the brain. In Case CXXXI. again, the cyst, which seemed to have contained the extravasation, appeared to have been formed in the cellular tissue of the grachnoid itself.

III. From ulceration and rupture of one of the principal arterial trunks. Dr. Mills has described a case in which the hæmorrhage was distinctly traced to ulceration and rupture of the basilar artery; and a similar affection of the internal carotid is described by Morgagni and by Serres.

IV. From the vessels of the choroid plexus, as in a case described by De Haen. This may probably be the source of hæmorrhage in those cases in which it is eonfined to the ventricle, without any laceration of the substance of the brain. In Case CXIII., it was confined to the third and fourth ventrieles. Dr. Bright, also, has described a ease which was fatal in twenty minutes, in which the extravasation, amounting to about three ounces, was confined to the ventricles, without any rupture of the cerebral substance. He supposes it to have proceeded from the vessels of the velum interpos'tum.

V. Rupture of one of the sinuses, as in a ease described by Dr. Douglas,* in which the left lateral sinus was ruptured.

VI. From the rupture of small aneurisms in various parts of the cerebral vessels. In a ease by Serres, such an aneurism oceurred in the basilar artery, which, when

^{*} Edin, Med. Essays and Observ. vol. vi.

· Lancet of 1- Dr. Hunter

I set : In a rough to the

· The state to broid;

and bearing and dept

a and sold to his and

1 . 1 premi to be confined

: in lito lare) en discharged

The de at the lase of the

1. an, the erst, which seemed

in a watting appeared to have

contribute and the same and

m witerporte of the of the bin-

[. VI s I s d serit in case in

n - Clisticity world to a result in rateria la soulu afection

I sodow felly Morg gai and by

Silve of the lighters as in a

This nav probably be the

e to sees in which it is con-

a, will it any neerati a of the

- in Case CXIII., it was een.

nel Cari, valtiles, Dr. Bright,

desprish we just in twenty

e tin -: 17100, am anting to about

. I the Tolines, with ut

stages, the supposes it

I TO TO SEE TO THE POLICE OF

To brick sinuses. A ig a case de-

The Day to the left term in the

small anothers in rainus

To 1 CASE by SOTTES SUCH

rese or certes such relea

And the second

it was distended, was as large as a small hen's egg. pound of blood had been discharged by the rupture of it. This man had long been subject to a feeling of weight in the head, and, according to his own statement, to an indescribable stupidity, which was much increased by bodily exertion, and by strong liquors. Archives Generales de Medecine, a case is described, in which apoplexy followed the bursting of a small aneurism in the circle of Willis; and Dr. Bright describes a case, which occurred in a lad of 19, from the rupture of a small aneurism of one of the smaller branches of the middle eerebral artery.

VII. In the Medical and Surgical Register of the Hospital of New York, a very uncommon ease is described by Dr. Watts, in which the hæmorrhage took place betwixt the dura mater and the bone, from erosion of a vessel in connexion with caries of the inner surface of the parietal bone of the left side. The man was suddenly seized with hemiplegia of the right side, and died in five days. The earious spot on the inner surface of the bone was not so large as a sixpence. In Case CXXI., I have described a form of the disease, equally uneommon, in which the extravasation took place, from rupture of the middle meningeal artery, in a eyst formed

by separation of the laming of the dura mater.

In the most common form of this affection, in which the hæmorrhage proceeds from a vessel in the substance of the brain, I have supposed the rupture to take place from disease of the artery itself, without any relation to that eongestive or hamorrhagie condition which seems to constitute the state of simple apoplexy. Such disease, accordingly, will be very generally found to exist in cases of this class. It eonsists in some instances of ossification of the arteries in various places, and in others, of that peculiar earthy brittleness, which Scarpa has described as leading to aneurism; and the canal of the artery will be found in many places to be considerably narrowed or contracted at the hardened parts, and sometimes entirely obliterated. In other cases again,

numerous branches of the principal arteries of the brain will be found to present a succession of small opaque osseous rings, separated from one another by small portions of the artery in a healthy state. This is a very common appearance in the brains of clderly people, and the rings are generally from half a line to a line in breadth, and are separated from each other by healthy portions of about the same extent. In some cases again the inner coat of the artery is much thickened, of a soft pulpy eonsistence, and very easily separated; so that, when a portion of the artery is compressed between the fingers, a considerable quantity of this pulpy matter is forced out. This was very remarkable in Case CXIII. In a case of apoplexy very rapidly fatal, which occurred to the late Dr. Dunean, and Mr. Wishart, they took particular notice of the remarkably diseased state of the arteries of the brain, which they describe as exhibiting everywhere the "earthy brittleness of Scarpa."

There is much reason to believe, that this diseased condition of the arteries of the brain may give rise to a variety of complaints in the head; and that, after going on for a considerable time in this manner, it may at length be fatal by rupture. This appears to be probable from the history of many cases. I shall only give the

following as an example.

CASE CXXII.—A gentleman, aged about 50, was for several years affected with complaints in his head, which assumed a great variety of characters. He had at first attacks of giddiness and headaeh, with loss of recollection and impaired speech. These occurred from time to time, and went off without leaving any bad consequences. After a year or two, the symptoms became more permanent, and he had violent paroxysms of pain, which at one time were much relieved by arsenie. He then had attacks bordering upon mania, with loss of recollection for several days. Afterwards he had epileptie attacks, alternating with these maniacal paroxysms. He next was affected with attacks of stupor of various duration. The disease went on in this way for

citial Years; and , apoplectic attac 1. med 1.-Com was a congulum of b

stance of the right l

d appearance was -b-li arterial system sir in cashed, with much afficied, es

enlarged, and its (The state of the the partial separatio : be productive of 1 Another case will be ie attacks; the pat wittin obstacted

with the state

It are are that a

the rolls of the by

case, with which I "Dellin, CASE CHAIN. T temperment, it an early life. Al is Ler husband u tress, and from that was liable to freque several years; and he died at last in May 1820, after an apoplectic attack which continued eight or nine

days.

THE THE PARTY OF T

Inspection.—Connected with the fatal attack, there was a coagulum of blood, the size of an egg, in the substance of the right hemisphere. The only other morbid appearance was a remarkably diseased state of the whole arterial system of the brain. It was most extensively ossified, with a thickened and very diseased state of the inner coat of the arteries, and partial separation of it from the other coats in many places. Scarcely any branch could be traced through the whole brain entirely free from disease. The vertebral arteries were also much affected, especially the left, which was much enlarged, and its coats thickened, ossified in spots, and brittle.

The state of the arteries in such a case as this, with the partial separation of the inner coat, could not fail to be productive of much disturbance of the circulation, and much derangement of the functions of the brain. Another case will be afterwards mentioned, in which a similar disease appeared to have led to frequent paralytic attacks; the patient died at last of gangrene of the toes. (Case CXXV.) See also the disease in the basilar artery described in Case XXXV., in which it was entirely obstructed and distended by a firm white matter, without any appearance of blood.

It appears that a disease somewhat similar occurs in the veins of the brain, as in the following remarkable case, with which I have been favoured by Dr. Cheyne

of Dublin.

CASE CXXIII.—A lady, aged 42, was of a melancholy temperament, and had been subject to headachs from early life. About ten years before her death, she lost her husband under circumstances of peculiar distress, and from that time confined herself to the house, and laboured under the greatest dejection of mind. She was liable to frequent attacks of bilious diarrhea, and her old headachs became more constant and more severe.

In one of these attacks she became apoplectic and died.

Inspection.—There was a turbid effusion betwixt the araehnoid and pia mater, and the whole surface of the brain was blood-shot. The venous system of the brain was diseased after an unusual manner. There was a deposition of a firm yellowish-white substance between the lining and outer coat of the veins; it was universal all over the brain, giving to the veins a mottled or rather ribbed appearance. The appearance of the whole of the arterial system was precisely the same as the venous, and both the arteries and veins were thicker but more fragile than usual. The medullary portion of the brain was more than usually vascular; on the inner side of the posterior horn of the left lateral ventriele, there was an irregular eavity about an inch in length and half an inch in breadth. The portion of the brain which formed the walls of the eavity was much diseased, soft and yellow; its structure was destroyed, and it was penetrated by a number of enlarged and unsupported vessels. The left choroid plexus contained an hydatid the size of a large pea.

This important subject has been little investigated, but there seems every reason to believe that disease of the venous system of the brain may have a most extensive influence in the affections of that organ. Various examples of this class will be found in the preceding observations, particularly the complete obstruction of the lateral sinus which occurred in Cases IV. and V., and the remarkable disease of the veins on the upper surface of the brain in Case XXX. The subject is worthy of eareful investigation, and promises important results. A lady mentioned by M. Gendrin, having been exposed to mental agitation on the seventh day after aceouehement, became insensible, and continued so for three quarters of an hour. On her recovery, she complained of acute pain in the left side of the head, which eontinued with little change for ten days, notwithstanding topical bleedings, and various other remedies. There

by palsy, first right leg. Th with partial s hismus; and s On inspection hemisphere, w was found re stance which for several an irregular nith purules This affection child, aged S three weeks, r rulsion, he for Ingitudinal s Hin a rellow 13 ected with che et tho et endinal sinus ing the exact

the ventricle

brain.

The then a gro

elby rain in

I : MIRALASATINE

learne apportion and

the permitting of the second

I the way a stage of the

.. 'n 1:57" m of the brain

. . Francis There was a

of the second state of the en

from institutes universal

· + ven s a mottled or ra-

The offerance of the whole

a president the same as the ve-

veins were thicker but

To me follary portion of the

Ly rate in, on the inner side

1 I deval ventricle, there

e promot the brain which

were was much lisewed, soft

- a s learned, and it was

e'r larl unsupported

I z z z nained an hydaid

e 🔩 and little orestigated,

in the lieve that disease of

. Is mir pare a most exten-

ingtory in Various

T. in the preciding

bstructo of

The Court of the section of the sect

Tak Plan pris

was then a great and sudden increase of it, accompanied by pain in the left ear, and this was soon followed by palsy, first of the right arm, and soon after of the right leg. Three days after this, there was loss of speech with partial stupor, then convulsive attacks, and strabismus; and she died on the 17th day of the disease. On inspection, the middle eerebral vein on the right hemisphere, where it approached the longitudinal sinus, was found very large and containing a puriform substance which entirely filled it; and the corresponding vein on the left side was in the same state. also extensive disease of the longitudinal sinus, its eavity, for several inches, being entirely degenerated into an irregular eellular mass, infiltrated with purulent matter mixed with blood. In the posterior part of the left hemisphere, there was extensive ramollissement, mixed with purulent matter. The ventricles were empty. This affection is also described by Dr. Bright. In a ehild, aged 20 months, who died after an illness of three weeks, with headach, squinting, and frequent eonvulsion, he found all the larger veins running into the longitudinal sinus, quite round and hard, being filled with a yellow-eoloured eoagulum, as if they had been injected with wax. This appearance extended through one or two subdivisions in some parts, and the longitudinal sinus itself was found full of a coagulum, taking the exact form of the sinus, which seemed to be almost entirely composed of fibrin, with a little of the red blood in parts and cavities. There was effusion in the ventrieles, and ramollissement in various parts of the brain.

SECTION III.

OF THE CASES OF THE THIRD CLASS, OR THE PARALYTIC CASES.

Under this class I have included a description of cases which resemble each other in their symptoms only, but are found to differ most remarkably in the morbid conditions of the brain with which they are connected. We are not possessed of sufficient information to enable us accurately to discriminate them from each other; and all that we can attempt, at present, is to give a statement of the facts relating to them, under a simple ar-

rangement.

The leading phenomenon of this class is the paralytic attack without coma, or at least without that complete and permanent coma which occurs in the former classes. Some of those cases, indeed, which begin as a paralytic attack, after a certain time pass into apoplexy, the paralytic attack being only the prelude to, or the first stage of, the apoplectic; these of eourse belong to another class, particularly the second. The cases which I mean to include under this third elass are those in which, either there has been no apoplexy, or the apoplectic state has soon passed off, leaving the paralysis as the more prominent and permanent character of the disease.

The attack appears under various forms; the most common of which is hemiplegia with loss of speech; but in some eases the speech is not affected; while in others, the loss of speech is at first the only symptom. In some eases, again, one limb only is affected, which is most commonly the arm, though sometimes the leg. Numerous other modifications occur, as, palsy of one cyclid; or of the orbicularis of the eye; distortion of the eyes; double vision; twisting of the mouth, &c. Loss of the power of swallowing also occurs occasionally, though more rarely in the cases which do not pass into apoplexy. The patient frequently appears quite sen-

express himse measure what is merimes, ho of speech, his ble.

In the farthe

serve remarkab to the followin I. Such an apoplecie, an These cases h II. The at off speedily a

no trace of it
III. The r
affected limbs
months.
IV. The pa
after a certain
walk about, di
t. speak very i

the improvement of the second of the second of this condition and dies grad of this in coma for a fee In endear of the brain

The find cousing sale point of the sade.

I. Many of the same the sade and the sade

II. Estrava

sible of his situation, and makes anxious attempts to express himself; generally understanding in a great measure what is said to him, and answering by signs. Sometimes, however, when he retains a partial power of speech, his answers are incoherent and unintelligible.

THE STORY

the state of cases

. . . . simplim objective

'n' i'' . . . fin to ena P us

. In fire 1 each other; and

i i undir a si i le ar-

e di se d'essis de paral tic

· this this complete

1 - 1: ' ing a. . paralitie

is a course belong to an-

. . . The sas which I

so alless are those in

They had paint to

Than of Callage Cibe

notate mid as no seed;

AND LEVEL Fille in

Art to a the sempton.

1. 1. c. b. . . C. rhich

of the specimes the i.g. The state of the s

In the farther progress of cases of this class, we observe remarkable varieties, which may be ehiefly referred to the following heads.

I. Such an attack may be merely the prelude to the apopleetie, and may pass into it after a short interval. These eases belong ehiefly to the second class.

II. The attack may, under the proper treatment, pass off speedily and entirely, leaving, after a very short time, no trace of its existence.

III. The recovery may be very gradual, the use of the affected limbs being restored after several weeks or months.

IV. The palsy may be permanent; that is, the patient, after a certain time, may recover so far as to be able to walk about, dragging his leg with a painful effort, and to speak very imperfeetly; and after this, makes no farther improvement to the end of his life, which may be protracted for many years.

V. In a fifth variety the patient makes no recovery; he is confined to bed, speechless and paralytic, but possessed of his other faculties in a considerable degree, and dies gradually exhausted, after several weeks or months; in some eases without eoma, in others with coma for a few days before death.

In endeavouring to investigate the morbid conditions of the brain which are connected with these varieties, we find eonsiderable diversities, which, in a pathologieal point of view, may be referred to the following

I. Many of the eases appear to have a close analogy to simple apoplexy; and when they are fatal, present either no satisfactory appearance, or only serous effusion, often in small quantity.

II. Extravasation of blood of small extent, contained

in defined eysts in the substance of the brain or under the membranes.

III. Ramollissement of the cerebral substance.

IV. Inflammation and its consequences.

§ I.—PARALYTIC CASES, WITH SEROUS EFFUSION, OR WITH SLIGHT MORBID APPEARANCES.

When a paralytic attack of the most formidable appearance passes off speedily and entirely, without leaving any trace of disease, we may suppose that no very serious injury has been done to the substance of the brain; and that the disease bears a close analogy to the affection which I have termed Simple Apoplexy; or, in other words, that the cause had consisted of a state of the circulation of the brain, which is capable of being speedily and entirely removed. Many cases again are fatal, and present, on dissection, only serous effusion, often in small quantity. A man, mentioned by Morgagni, had palsy of the right arm, and died apoplectic in two days. On dissection, no morbid appearance was discovered, except serous effusion, both in the ventricles and on the surface of the brain. Another had loss of speech, and palsy of the left side, and died comatose at the end of a month. Considerable effusion was found on the surface of the brain, but very little in the ventricles. A third had loss of speech and palsy of the right side, then became comatose, and died in five days. The ventricles contained about two ounces of fluid; there was also a good deal on the surface of the brain, which appeared to be most abundant on the right side.

I have formerly given my reasons for believing, that serous effusion in apoplectic cases is not a primary disease but a termination of simple apoplexy; and I have described cases in which it existed to a considerable extent without paralysis. In the cases, again, in which it has been accompanied by paralysis, the quantity of fluid has borne no proportion to the symptoms, and has been equally distributed over the brain; except in the

ruse nour quot worthr of rema the same side v tions, I think t referred to, the but the effect of carolation in a had been con disease. The bear evidence a cause, while of being very hemiplegia t very rapidly stance, conn we occasiona ment for ma Eme change take a turn fi

I do not kno lawing case, by remarkable exe continued pals PETALCE.

C728 GZZ it 3 in the str his speech; walked home the evening chair, speech without come and answerin for several w At the end o motion of his

ging forward

side of his h

ally in bodily

case now quoted from Morgagni, in which too, it is worthy of remark, it appeared to be most abundant on the same side with the disease. From these considerations, I think we may conclude, that, in the cases now referred to, the effusion was not the cause of the paralysis, but the effect or the termination of a certain state of the circulation in a part of the brain, with which the paralysis had been connected from the first invasion of the disease. The whole phenomena of palsy, do indeed bear evidence, that certain cases of it depend upon a cause, which is of a temporary nature, and eapable of being very speedily and entirely removed. hemiplegia take place in the highest degree, and yet very rapidly disappear; but the most singular circumstance, connected with certain eases of palsy, is, that we occasionally see it continue without any improvement for many weeks or months; and then, from some change which entirely eludes our observation, take a turn for the better, and very suddenly disappear.

I do not know to what class I ought to refer the following case, but I shall introduce it here as the most remarkable example that has occurred to me, of longcontinued palsy, without any satisfactory morbid ap-

pearance.

The state of

e . . The of the 'min or under

. Cere til sibiling.

ALL MILLS AND REELISION

" If he most froidable ap-

iv su; - se that no very seri-

thicker became of the brain;

es a store and cy to the affec-

- I Simple Apoplexy; or, in

tan unit consisted of a state of

n vil. Many cuses again are

de see n. only serous effusion,

A man on the by Mor-

. . . m. onlitted apprelection

n. mir' l'appearance was

constructed in the rentricles

An ther had loss

: - , 'e, and it I comatose

. C detable edusion was rain, "at very little in the

the state of the state of the

. min se, and field in thre dars.

wo uses of fluid;

In the surface of the brain,

at I am not no the right side.

THE REAL PROPERTY LIGHT

of assist or a famour dis-Supply 1 - exy; and 1 hare

In rop cases, ordin, in which

The standard of the standard o

out if Lan Steel in the

A CONTRACTOR ARABORS.

of the Decided :

Case CXXIV.—A gentleman, aged 35, while standing in the street, conversing with a friend, suddenly lost his speech; he recovered it after a few minutes, walked home, and made no particular complaint. the evening of the same day, he suddenly fell from his chair, speechless, and paralytic on the right side, but without coma; being sensible of what was said to him, and answering by signs. He was then confind to bed for several weeks without any change in the symptoms. At the end of three months, he had recovered so far the motion of his leg, as to be able to walk a little, dragging forward the leg by a motion of the whole right side of his body. He afterwards improved considerably in bodily strength, so that he could walk for several

miles; but his thigh and leg continued to be dragged forward by the same kind of effort, without any farther improvement. He never recovered any degree of motion of the arm or hand; he could not even move the fingers; his speech was very inarticulate, and his countenance was expressive of great imbeeility of mind. In this state he continued without relapse, and without any farther improvement, for fifteen years, when he died at the age of 50. For a month before his death, he had been declining in strength. I saw him about four days before he died, and found him in a state resembling typhus; his pulse frequent and weak; his tongue very foul, and dry in the middle; he made no complaint. He was not then in bed, but was confined to it next day, and died in three days more, of rapid sinking without coma.

Inspection.—The membranes adhered firmly to each other, and to the brain, at a spot the size of a shilling, on the upper part of the right hemisphere. There was a large quantity of fluid under the arachnoid membrane, and a considerable quantity in the ventricles. Near the posterior part of the longitudinal sinus, a small part of the sinus appeared to be thickened in its coats, and the inner surface of this part was dark-coloured and slightly fungous. The cauda equina was of a remarkably dark colour, as if it had been soaked in venous blood, but without any change in its structure. No other morbid appearance could be detected, on the most careful examination, in any part of the brain or spinal cord.

The remarkably diseased state of the arterics of the brain, which has been already referred to, as a very eommon appearance in elderly people, may probably be the cause of temporary interruptions of the circulation and slight paralytic attacks, which after some time may pass off from changes which clude our observation. Perhaps something of this kind occurred in the following case, for which I am indebted to Dr. Simson.

CASE CXXV.—A gentleman, aged 58, in 1805,

rastracked we cma. After dolly; and a reavered, exc reaker than the tack, preceded he gradually reless perfect that other attacks bried off by the ing. In 181, wise in the and his mountelieved by battack he did

ed with ganger and terminates of his first atta always became tempted to remediately to of was able to runeasiness, an which he had thickened; was very va arteries of

indistinct.

in many pla the principal was likevise internal cannitation and their coand their loassill greate where the lits branches M. Genda Take of Mining

all a continued to be diagnal

d of East thin at any . He have to overed any degree

The d: Le could a teren more

n was viry inarreal ste, and his

teasts of meat imberility of mind.

or I will ut relative, and without

at, for hieren years, when he

· I cam ath before his death,

I saw him about i and fixed bim in a state re-

, The frequent and weak; his

I ly in the mille; he made no

n the n in bed, but was confined

I in three days more, if rapid

--- : there in it to each

exister. There was 1.1 - r in artina il membrane,

the remarkles. Near the

ng na. sinus, a small part of

the gared in its east, and the the predants lightly

a j a remarkally dark

n - in in ven us blood, but

2 15 . 22. No other morbid

a the most careful ex-

gard state of the arration of the

The state of the Labor. do may prophylic

Asy acute time may

end at light for

din the come

· Wils Span

rain or spinal cord.

was attacked with hemiplegia of the right side, without coma. After the usual treatment, he improved gradually; and at the end of five months, he had quite recovered, except that his right leg continued rather weaker than the other. In 1812, he had another attack, preceded by violent headach. From this likewise he gradually recovered, though his recovery was much less perfect than after the former attack. He had four other attacks betwist 1812 and 1817, which were earried off by the usual remedies, bloodletting and purging. In 1817, he had another and severe attack, likewise in the right side; his speech was unintelligible, and his mouth much drawn to the left side. He was relieved by bloodletting, &c. but from the effects of this attack he did not recover. He remained paralytic in the right side, his mouth twisted, and his speech very indistinct. In November, 1818, he began to be affected with gangrene of the toes, which advanced slowly, and terminated fatally in April 1819. From the time of his first attack, in 1805, to the second, in 1812, he always became confused and felt headach, when he attempted to read or write, so that he was obliged immediately to desist; but after the attack in 1812, he was able to read and write without any confusion or uneasiness, and even without the use of spectacles, which he had formerly employed.

Inspection.—The dura mater seemed considerably thickened; the pia mater also seemed thickened, and was very vascular. There was extensive disease in the arteries of the brain, their coats being thickened, and in many places ossified. This was very remarkable in the principal trunks of the carotids and vertebrals, and was likewise traced into the smaller branches. The internal carotids seemed considerably larger than usual, and their coats were much thickened; and the vertebrals and their branches were affected in the same manner in a still greater degree, particularly about the tuber annulare, where the basilar artery was quite brittle, and gave off its branches in the same condition.

M. Gendrin has described a ease of several months

standing, in which nothing could be discovered but a discased state of one of the posterior arteries of the brain, and a very slight softening of part of the cerebellum. There seems every reason to believe that such cases often depend upon disease of the arteries of a portion of the brain.

§ II.—PARALYTIC CASES ACCOMPANIED BY EXTRA-VASATION OF BLOOD OF SMALL EXTENT.

THE symptoms which appear in connexion with extravasation of blood in the brain, seem to depend in a great measure upon the quantity that has been extravasated. In the cases which go on to apoplexy, the blood seems in general to burst by laceration of the cerebral substance, either to the surface, or into the ventricles. In the paralytic cases, it seems to be confined to a certain defined cavity in which the hæmorrhage at first took place. This may be in any part of the substance of the hemispheres; the corpus striatum is a very common seat of it; and it may be found in the substance of the pons Varolii, or of the medulla oblongata. It may likewise take place on the surface of the brain, as in Case CXXXI. in which the cyst which had contained it was distinctly seen in the cellular structure of the arachnoid. Extravasation of a certain extent, either in the substance or on the surface, seems, in general, to produce palsy of the opposite side; and as the quantity increases, the case seems to pass into apoplexy; but it appears that extravasation may take place and produce fatal apoplexy, without having induced paralysis. Several cases have been already described in which this took place, though in all of them there was a considerable interval betwixt the attack and the occurrence of coma.

When the extravasation is of more limited extent, so as to be confined to a cavity of moderate size in the substance of the brain, the patient is in general affected with palsy and loss of speech, wthout perfect coma; or,

it Lere be come it passes off afte caracter of the less. In the fe we find remarket certain time, into the not blood is hand, we shall it to to the effects

extensive extens

When the coagula of rabsorbed. It as very e When we he

late in produ

from. The

from a disease

if there be coma for a time immediately after the attack, it passes off after a certain interval, and the prominent character of the disease comes to be the state of paralysis. In the further progress of the cases of this class, we find remarkable varieties. Some of them pass, after a certain time, into fatal coma, even when the extravasation of blood is of no great extent; while, on the other hand, we shall find that the patient may recover entirely from the effects of extravasation of a certain extent, and may even recover from the immediate effects of very extensive extravasation, and survive in a paralytic state for many years. The cause of this difference seems to depend, in a great measure, upon the state of the surrounding eerebral substance. When extravasation of small amount is fatal, it seems in general to be counected with ramollissement of the cerebral substance to some extent around the cavity which contains the coagulum. There is also some reason to believe, that extravasation of very small extent, in fatal cases, may sometimes be considered as the effect of the state of simple apoplexy; and that, in these instances, the fatal event is not to be ascribed to the extravasation, but to the state of simple apoplexy, which we have seen may be fatal without either extravasation or effusion. This may be considered as in some measure conjectural, but the other is more a matter of fact; namely, the effect of ramollissement of the cerebral substance surrounding the coagulum in producing a fatal disease, while we see in other cases, extravasation of greater extent entirely recovered from. The ramollissement in these cases seems to arise from a diseased state of the arterial system of the part, the same probably which generally gives rise to the extravasation.

When the eerebral substance surrounding the extravasation continues in a healthy state, we find that coagula of very great size are gradually and completely absorbed. This remarkable change seems to commence at a very early period, but to advance very slowly. When we have an opportunity of seeing the eoagulum,

15- 1-1 - IAM JIA EZIST. TOTAL 11. P. 1

"Z.D.47.45.1"

The Control of Aut a

I the cordet.

a se of the dienes fa por-

and the interior with exwhen to depend in a rily that has been extraran to pilexy, the blood grand acertin of the cerebral or arrive, or it of the ventricles. e was a be enfined to η π' à ce homorrhage at in ry part of the . r . t. : r is striatum is a or, incomande found in the or item. Ta oblaon the strace of the AN the writer the ever which s of Diffisher in the cellular Erramanian of a certain where the first prince, seems, to death to wife to soil it Service of Paix in a nay the To mill pring indiced in a file direction The state of the s . W. M. Tr. Milly 324 He ne. so early as fourteen or fifteen days from the attack, we find it already eonsiderably changed in its character from the appearance of recent blood. The thinner parts have considerably disappeared, and the eoagulum has become firmer in its texture, and of a dark brownish colour. In its farther progress, it assumes a firm and fibrous texture; the dark red colour is gradually lost, and the last portion that remains is a small mass of fibrin of a slight reddish eolour, which, after a certain time, also entirely disappears. The time required for this process must of course depend in a great measure upon the size of the eoagulum, but seems likewise to be in part regulated by other circumstances. In Case CXXVII. a coagulum, which must have been of very considerable size, had entirely disappeared in less than five months. In Case CXXX. it was seen partly absorbed at the end of three months. On the other hand, Moulin found a small eoagulum not quite gone at the end of a year; and Riobé observed some of the blood still remaining in a eavity of small extent, after twenty months. two eases, Serres found a hard coagulum of blood remaining, in the one at the end of two years, and in the other at the end of three years.

While these changes are going on in the coagulum, the eavity in which it is contained becomes lined with a distinct firm membrane of a yellowish colour; and when the eoagulum has entirely disappeared, we find the eyst remaining, and forming a distinct and well defined cavity, which is generally entirely empty. Bands of the same yellow matter which forms it are frequently seen erossing it in various directions, and producing a connexion betwixt its opposite sides at these points. The French writers believe that the cyst is at last entirely obliterated; but I have never seen any thing to satisfy me that it is so. I have examined such eysts at various periods of their progress, but have seen nothing like an approach to obliteration, except the bands which I have now mentioned, connecting their opposite sides, unless in Case CXXXII. in which a part of the eavity did appear to be obliterated by the adhesion of its sides.

The ist appears T. Es blood vessels Erupon it. It d uis remarkable. cibes it in one ca L.k; and, in an frmati n of it be e agulum being striæ. The coa aur change : an be, that the abso mence till this m In the cases w orting, after the I werer, that it see us floid is dep Embone, and is That disting Catien 3 to d th critical in my observati entirely empty total case, in ser us Luid, ma

Jerd.

Noulin has c

of in which the

wasting of the

his speech. H And which was

As the absor

The cyst appears to be distinctly organized, and numerous blood vessels have sometimes been observed ramifying upon it. It does not appear precisely at what period this remarkable membrane is deposited. Riobé describes it in one case, as existing three weeks after the attack; and, in another, he thought he observed the formation of it begun in a very soft state as early as thirteen days. M. Gendrin has given an interesting description of it in a case which was fatal in thirty-six days. The cavity was the size of a pullet's egg, and was situated between the thalamus and corpus striatum. The coagulum being carefully removed, the cavity was found to be lined by a delicate semipellucid membrane; which presented, when held up to the light, numerous vascular striæ. The coagulum did not appear to have undergone any change: and the opinion of M. Gendrin seems to be, that the absorption of the coagulum does not commence till this membrane is fully formed.

In the cases which I have had an opportunity of observing, after the disappearance of the coagulum, the cyst has in general been entirely empty. It appears, however, that it has been frequently observed by the French writers full of serous fluid. Their idea is, that serous fluid is deposited from the exhaling vessels of the membrane, and is again absorbed, after dissolving a part of the coagulum; that in this manuer the coagulum gradually disappears; and that the membrane then continues to deposit and reabsorb the serum, until the cavity is obliterated. I have already stated, that in my observation, cavities even of large size are found entirely empty. Andral, however, has described several cases, in which the cysts were found containing serous fluid, many years after the symptoms had disap-

peared.

California II. The Committee of the

iliting (8)

1 . 4 1 - 2 7 7 7 1

n a i siguina. I mista i silat

St. - 1 .. [] appl

B. Alla

Moulin has described a case of seventeen years standing, in which the patient had continued paralytic, with wasting of the affected limbs, and had never recovered his speech. He found a cyst containing four ounces of fluid which was tinged with blood.

As the absorption of the coagulum goes on, the

symptoms in some cases subside gradually, and entirely disappear; but in others the improvement is but partial, and we find that the eoagulum had been entirely removed, while the patient continued to be affected with a great degree of palsy to the end of his life. In other eases again, the symptoms appear to go off speedily, though there was every reason to believe that a eoagulum was present, and could not yet be absorbed. This probably occurred in Case CXXX. It appears that extravasated blood may be absorbed in the same manner from the ventrieles, though in cases of this kind it more rarely occurs in that situation. A man, mentioned by Riobé, had an attack of apoplexy, which left him affected with palsy of the left side. He improved very gradually, and was entirely recovered at the end of eighteen months, when he died of peripneumony. In the right lateral ventriele, there was a small quantity of eoagulated blood, and the membrane lining the ventricle was of a yellowish colour, and much thickened. Case CXXXI. I have described an example of absorption from the surface of the brain, the eyst being formed in the cellular structure of the araehnoid, but having the same characters as the eysts which are found in the substance of the brain.

The following selection of cases arranged under several heads, will illustrate this modification of the disease. I shall describe the first case at some length, as it shows very remarkably the various stages of this interesting affection.

A. The cyst empty—the patient dying of another disease.

CASE CXXVI.—A elergyman, aged 29, had complained for several weeks of frequent headach, which affected him chiefly in the morning. On Tuesday, 30th November, 1819, he walked out in his usual health about 11 o'clock in the forenoon, and about half an hour

cher rent into a shop, less, and with his mou immediately taken ho his limbs, and was al talked incoherently an very much twisted to know his friends. Soot rent and partially comat he was bled. Pulse of sion after the bleeding the pulse natural; he n when disturbed, some speech was quite inarti comprehend what was ing, purging, &c., he b following day, 1st of sensible; he knew the answered questions disti recessary was very short this, he wandered into in very anxious to describe could be understood. II and occasionally got out 6 tain something which no make the attendant Farber bleeding and purp таз а ргодтестте порго able to speak correctly, t al engent aring to recoll make use of. He now seizure on the 30th; he attack him suddenly whi in wediately before going ziter he went out; he re of a person whom he nam that he was very ill and i this time he improved p was in his usual health, e dickness of speech, and a e few minutes after first an

ABSORPTIO

- sees out tiple or duality, and country ration improvement is but parand had been entirely e continued to be affected with the end of his life. In of proms appear to good speedily. The rest of the final a congre-I nt disabet. Ibis in appears that y to.d in the same man-. . . . 14 in eases of this kind it 120 & 1 grop : xv, which left him to the state. He improved very at the end of il l'f pripaeumony. In that there was a small quantity of in it - me i rine lining the rentricle a r. a brita thickened. In -, feer lan example of absorprara, the crst being formed and arreinford, our having the needs with are trund in the sub-· · · a ut cases arranged under We write of the dis-- Ma the family stages of this

NOTALITED IN

after went into a shop, when he was found to be speechless, and with his mouth twisted to one side. He was immediately taken home; he had then the use of all his limbs, and was able to walk about his room; he talked incoherently and inarticulately, his mouth was very much twisted to the left side, but he seemed to know his friends. Soon after, he became more incoherent and partially comatose, but resisted violently when he was bled. Pulse of natural frequency. I saw him soon after the bleeding; he was then rather pale, and the pulse natural; he made eager attempts to speak, and when disturbed, sometimes became violent; but his speech was quite inarticulate, and he did not appear to comprehend what was said to him. After farther bleeding, purging, &e., he became more intelligent, and on the following day, 1st of December, he was much more sensible; he knew those about him, and oceasionally answered questions distinctly, when the answer that was necessary was very short; when he attempted more than this, he wandered into incoherence, and often appeared very anxious to describe something,—but not a word eould be understood. He had the use of all his limbs, and oeeasionally got out of bed with great agility to obtain something which he wanted, when he could not make the attendant comprehend what he meant. Farther bleeding and purging were employed, and there was a progressive improvement. On the 3d, he was able to speak correctly, though slowly and heavily, as if endeavouring to recollect a word which he meant to make use of. He now gave a distinct account of his seizure on the 30th; he said "he felt a violent headach attack him suddenly while he was pulling on his boots immediately before going out, and that it continued after he went out; he remembered going into the shop of a person whom he named, and the person telling him that he was very ill and must be taken home." From this time he improved progressively, and by the 18th was in his usual health, except some slight remains of thickness of speech, and a slight degree of confusion for a few minutes after first awaking in the morning. These symptoms soon disappeared, and he enjoyed very good health till about 15th November, 1826, when he was suddenly seized in the afternoon with loss of speech and palsy of the right arm. I saw him in an hour after the attack; little or no blood could be obtained from a vein, but the temporal artery, being opened very low down, bled freely to 20 ounces, when he became faint. He then took purgatives; next day he was much better, and in a few days the symptoms were entirely removed.

He now continud well for about a month. On 16th December, 1820, he went into the country on horseback; about three miles from town he was observed by a person who passed him, running by the side of his horse nearly speechless, and with the appearance of a person intoxicated. In this state he went to the house of a person with whom he was aequainted, but could not make himself understood, and soon after his arrival became completely comatose. The usual remedies were employed without any immediate effect. During the remainder of the 16th, and through the whole of the 17th, he continued in a state of perfect coma, notwithstanding repeated bleeding to faintness, and the other usual remedies. On the 18th, about five o'elock in the morning, he came out of the coma, and from this time recovered gradually. On the 21st, he was able to be out of bed and to walk steadily, and was soon after restored to his usual health, except that his speech continued eonsiderably indistinct. After some time, he began to complain of headach, notwithstanding very abstemious diet; this was relieved by bleeding, and for a considerable time it was necessary to repeat small bleedings once in two or three weeks. In this manner he enjoyed tolerable health, but never entirely recovered from the effects of the last attack; his speech continued thick and somewhat indistinet; his mind was evidently weakened; his countenance was vacant, and his temper was irritable. But he engaged in all the ordinary transactions of life, and in the lighter duties of his profession, such as baptism and marriage; he never preached, though he was very anxious to attempt it; he had the

use of all his lidexectise. It he was bled on he moptysis, wh tinued in this sibugan to be affer pulse; and of the 7th of June, with the head.

Inspection-

of the brain, a from the vent inch and a hi empty, but we considerable separated fro which it adheres the former, there is not the former, there is no diameter which the other quite vellow membra failed in the ven ance. In the learners we disease

CASE CXX
the last days of the last days of the last days of the sexzed with lead some associated with the use of his hearly comat repeated blee autoes as some as a sex of the last of the

ed to empre

T. H. STRAFFELL K.

en ved very good

vaca he was n w Loss of speech and

in a an hour after the

of all behavior from a rein,

n b me faint. He

area the monach to terrand

wing his the escatty on horseback:

. , mh m, 'mrei by a per-

, I will the appearance of a person

is the lie went to the house of a

1 is was acquainted, but could not

and soon after his arrival

The arral remedies were

: During the

I A it is the whole of the

includes coma, notwith-

ing to flatness, and the other

and the o'clock in the

and it m this time

1 . . L. Olso, he was able to be

a. a. .- i. ni was soen after

ar . I of that his speech con-The same time of

the programming rety

... Priprel by l'ending, and for

na i gerena in reputament

refer carrier percent

Whalf

If E in a local to his remainer To the family

in a their arrangement ary many soon.

The state of the s

. I To entire tramoved. da nath. On 16th use of all his limbs, and was able to take a great deal of exercise. He continued liable to headach, for which he was bled occasionally, and once had an attack of hæmoptysis, which went off in a few days. tinued in this state till the 20th of May, 1822, when he began to be affected with cough, dyspnæa, and frequent pulse; and of this affection in the chest he died, on the 7th of June, without any recurrence of the symptoms in the head.

Inspection.—In the substance of the left hemisphere of the brain, about the centre, and about equally distant from the ventricle and the surface, there was a cyst an inch and a half long, and one inch dcep. It was quite empty, but was lined by a yellowish firm membrane of considerable thickness. This membrane could be easily separated from the surrounding cerebral substance, to which it adhered very slightly. In the substance of the right hemisphere, in a situation exactly corresponding to the former, there was another cyst of a similar character but smaller. It was a narrow sinus, and of a diameter which could have admitted a quill; it was like the other quite empty, but lined by the same kind of yellow membrane; there was a small quantity of clear fluid in the ventricle; there was no other morbid appearance. In the lungs, there was slight hepatisation and extensive disease of the bronchial membrane.

Case CXXVII.—A gentleman, aged 56, in one of the last days of June 1826, while walking through the museum of the University of Edinburgh, was suddenly seized with loss of speech. He walked with difficulty and some assistance to the house of a friend in the neighbourhood, where it was first observed that he had lost the use of his right side. After a short time he became nearly comatose, and continued so for some days. After repeated bleeding, purging, &c., he became gradually more sensible; but it was now found that he had lost almost entirely the memory of words, though he appeared to comprchend what was said to him. He gradually recovered the use of his leg, so as to be able to walk a little. But his arm made very little improvement, and both his speech and his memory of words continued very imperfect; his recollection of persons and events seemed to be tolerably good. He was improving very gradually in all respects, till about the end of October, when he began to be affected with a disease of the chest, of which he died in the end of November. The paralytic symptoms continued in a very considerable degree to the last, especially in the right arm, and in his speech, which continued very indistinct. I saw him a short time before his death, along with Dr. Alison, to whom I am indebted for the history of the previous attack.

Inspection.—In the substance of the left hemisphere, on the outer side of the ventricle, we found a cyst about an inch and a half long and one inch deep; it was quite empty, and lined by a yellowish membrane similar to that which has been described in the former case.

CASE CXXVIII.—A lady, aged about 50, was attacked with hemiplegia in April, 1817, and after stupor of several days continuance, came out of it gradually with palsy of the right side, and very indistinct speech. It was several months after the attack when I first saw She was then in pretty good general health, but with very little improvement of the limbs. She could drag the lcg forward a very little, the arm she could not move at all, and the fingers of the affected hand were bent inwards, and could not be made straight but by Her farther improvement was very slow. some force. In the course of 1818, she acquired more use of her leg, being able to support herself with a stick, and to walk a few steps; her speech also became more distinct, but the arm continued completely paralytic. She had made no farther improvement, when, in August 1819, she began to complain of breathlessness, and died rather suddenly in a fit of dyspnæa.

Inspection.—The ventricles of the brain contained several ounces of fluid, and it appeared quite evident to all who were present at the examination, that the left

rearricle was n ade of the left cerebral substan ness, there was former cases; inches, and was below in an an of the middle ! of the sphenou the base of th tirely empty tersected it surfaces, whi quite unconn the whole car: angular termin in other respec sion in the ple

B. The cysl er

fem mucus in

CASE CYN
April, 1821, April, 18

inned long

THE TEXT EXTRACTION OF

to the instrument, and

- 11 ha - - cry fra is continued . Thun of the coand events

He was important very an above the first of October.

and with a disease of the chest,

n ne o l i Normbet. The par-

and a very considerable de tree

e in arto, and in his speech,

Thirting I saw him a shirt

L F2 in Dr. Alison, to whom

t. " stance of the left hemisphere,

ventriels, we found a cretabore

notich it p; it was quite

11 - 1 str. pol store ill, was at-

a Articoloff and after stupor

e i e roogt (f it gradually

vyv in listinet speech. Sant indict king a light saw and the second bealth, but

er en of te im's. She could of a string in the arm she could not

the affected hand mere

1 din le made straint bur br

THE STORES WAS TEST STORE.

of her less

milit a sick, and to milk

hap me min district but

Traffitti Chandle de

with in Armis (Bid, she to discusses, and died talk to the total arms).

brita validade ta

a so I in the former case.

: : . rv of the previous attack.

ventriele was much larger than the right. On the outer side of the left ventricle, and separated from it by sound cerebral substance of about a quarter of an inch in thickness, there was a eyst similar to those described in the former eases; it extended longitudinally nearly three inches, and was as much or more in depth; it terminated below in an angle, corresponding with the narrow edge of the middle lobe of the brain, which lies in the angle of the sphenoid bone, behind the elinoid process; the cavity extended here to within a quarter of an inch of the base of the brain. This remarkable eavity was entirely empty; it was lined by a fine yellow membrane, and bands of the same substance with the membrane interseeted it in several places, connecting the opposite surfaces, which in other places, though in contact, were quite unconnected. This membrane existed throughout the whole eavity, and was quite obvious even in the sharp angular termination already mentioned. The brain was in other respects healthy. There was considerable effusion in the pleura, and extensive accumulation of puriform mueus in the bronchial canals.

B. The cyst empty—the patient dying of a fresh attack.

CASE CXXIX .- A lady, aged 40, on the 10th of April, 1821, complained in the morning of violent headach, and had some vomiting; soon after she was seized with perfect palsy of the right side, with very inarticulate speech, and a considerable degree of coma. She was relieved by the usual treatment; the symptoms subsided gradually, and in eight or ten days she was quite well. She oceasionally felt a slight degree of weakness of the side which had been affeeted, but she merely expressed it by saying that it was different from the other, and she continued to enjoy good health until August 1822, when she had another attack in which the right side was again affected. She soon recovered from the immediate effects of this attack, but the leg and arm continued long very weak, and her speech was indistinct,

with eonsiderable confusion of thought; and, during the following winter, she was able for very little exertion. In the summer of 1823, she improved considerably, so that she could walk a good deal leaning upon the arm of another person; her speech was more distinct, and her mind very considerably improved. It was, however, obvious that the effects of the attack were not entirely removed, as she still dragged her leg a little in walking, and had less command of the right hand than of the left. She was going on in this manner, and in other respects enjoying pretty good health, when, in Deeember 1824, she was suddenly seized, while sitting at breakfast, with palsy of the left side, and twisting of the mouth; and soon after became comatose, with total loss of the power of swallowing. She died in four days.

Inspection.—In the right hemisphere of the brain, towards the anterior part, there was a coagulum of blood the size of a pigeon's egg; it lay on the outside of the ventriele, and closely bordering upon it, but without any communication. In the corresponding situation in the left hemisphere, there was a cyst, running obliquely backwards on the outside of the ventricle, and quite distinct from it. It was about an inch and a half long, and nearly an inch in depth; it was quite empty, and lined by a soft yellowish membrane. This lady was likewise affected with extensive disease of the ovarium, on aecount of which I had seen her at different times, both before and in the intervals of the paralytic attacks along with Dr. Beilby.

C. Two cysts empty—the coagulum partly absorbed from a third—the patient dying of a fresh attack.

CASE CXXX.—A man, aged 56, in the end of November, 1822, had an attack of hemiplegia of the right side, with loss of speech, from which he recovered after the usual treatment; and at the end of a fortnight was in his usual health, except that he felt a degree of stiff-

aint, but atrier of a tap which was eatil continued to go TIST 1823, W. cellar, lying in a thing-six bours Inspection. Was boody ser of the hemis This carrier Lizeon's ent. a small ragge stance was in hind this cavit substance, ther in the posterior a small quantity ker, but not suf being in a col carity, in the po est abother car It was quite em of a rell or colo ting of the brain substance of th Jone Varolii;

Fean, but emp membrane. (this man, I a

tacks previous

the one eighte at a former per

slight, and to

for a few hours

account.

r of the al

ness of the affected limbs. He, however, made no complaint, but returned to his usual employment, as keeper of a tap-room, and to his usual mode of living, which was eating and drinking without restraint. He continued to go on in this manner till the end of February 1823, when he was found one afternoon, in his cellar, lying in a state of perfect apoplexy. He died in

thirty-six hours.

Inspection.—In the left ventricle of the brain there was bloody serum, with some coagulated blood, which appeared to have burst from a cavity in the substance of the hemisphere on the outer side of the ventricle. This cavity contained a coagulum of the size of a pigeon's egg, and communicated with the ventricle by a small ragged opening. The surrounding cerebral substance was in some places considerably softened. Behind this cavity, but scparated from it by sound cerebral substance, there was a smaller cavity, which was seated in the posterior part of the left thalamus. It contained a small quantity of grumous blood, of a very dark colour, but not sufficient to fill it, a great part of the cavity being in a colapsed state. Exactly opposite to this cavity, in the postcrior part of the right thalamus, there was another cavity capable of containing a small bean. It was quite empty, but lined by a firm soft membrane, of a yellow colour. In prosecuting farther the dissection of the brain, a fourth cavity was met with in the substance of the medulla oblongata, or rather under the pons Varolii; it was capable of containing a very small bean, but empty like the other, and lined by a similar membrane. On inquiring further into the history of this man, I afterwards found that he had had two attacks previously to the first of those above described: the one eighteen months before his death, and the other at a former period. Both were said to have been very slight, and to have produced only numbness of his arm for a few hours; I could not obtain a more particular account.

The That have the rian of a success, doing The series to for terr line exer-In the 1973 who improved a paid ree ce 14 and a facil tall leading about To the section of the disiτ or ceraby improved It was, Precision the attack were not . - se stal ranged her leg a intie in and of the right hand than way no in this manner, and in d health, when, in Deis a clearly serzed, while sitting p sy if the left ide, and twisting of orn iter became comatose, with ower i swallowing. She died in four - n 'right hemisphere of the bmin, to-" | FE 1' was a complem of blood I have the suiside of the · Frocient up nil, out without any e orresponding situation in the . . . rgs 1 (rs. ranging obliquely er-prode and quite dis-- s 1 at an inea and a half long, and the work of the same of the said hard of men rane. This lady was likewise I - - - a di 850 (1 the marium on ac ling on her of little hides but · . m'er ; of the frairie attacks alog on retributions. 11-1 man and in the end of No-The state of the s

D. The cyst on the surface.

CASE CXXXI.—A gentleman, aged 74, in April 1823, had an apoplectic attack which seized him suddenly in the evening. He fell down deprived of sense and motion, and on partially recovering, was found to be without palsy, except in his speech, which was quite unintelligible. He had then considerable stupor, bordering upon coma, and at times showed great restlessness and impatience in his ineffectual attempts to make himself understood. After large and repeated bleeding, and the other usual remedies, he gradually improved, so that after six or seven weeks he was able to walk out, and was in good general health, but with very inarticulate speech, and considerable confusion of mind. In conversation, he was evidently aware of what he meant to say, but could not make it intelligible to others; he put one word for another, or the name of one article for another, often in a ludicrous manner; he could not name persons, though he evidently recognized them; and on one occasion, while he was walking in the street with a friend, being very anxious to say something to him in regard to another gentleman whom he could not name, he hurried his friend along to the door of the gentleman's house and pointed to the name plate. In this manner he passed the summer, and the following winter, and great part of the following summer, being in good bodily health, but restless and unhappy in his mind, and with the same confusion of thought and inarticulate speech. He was incapable of reading a word, or of expressing himself intelligibly on any subject, except to those who were constantly with him, who got into the way of understanding him on ordinary topics. In the end of summer 1824, he began to have complaints in his chest of which he died on the 19th of December. On the day on which he died, he was more distinct in his mind than he had been at any time since the attack

Inspection.—There was an unusual quantity of fluid under the arachnoid, so that at least eight ounces were

collected; and w semed remarkab ria mater were co morbid appearance matter, on the out tended about three in depth correspon bemisphere. This was found to be a rartly involved i the substance w stance of the br that it had been been absorbed. arteries of the healthy. There with enlargemen

Attempts have establish a conner and the particular exempts do not se states Series 1 affected, when the of the hemispher riot part, of in been at pains to the disease is i this has been where he descri Was a prominen the anterior par & the middle le of his cases, a n Paler of the left ed after some m emlarrassed. A

facy of the rich

collected; and when it was all discharged the brain seemed remarkably collapsed. The arachnoid and the pia mater were considerably thickened. The only other morbid appearance was a deposition of a firm yellowish matter, on the outer side of the left hemisphere; it extended about three inches from before backwards, and in depth corresponded to about the lower half of the hemisphere. This substance, when closely examined, was found to be a collapsed cyst; and it appeared to be formed betwixt the arachnoid and the dura mater, or partly involved in the araclinoid. It exactly resembled the substance which is found lining the cysts in the substance of the brain; and there seemed to be little doubt, that it had been the seat of an extravasation which had been absorbed. There was extensive ossification of the arteries of the brain; the substance of the brain was healthy. There was considerable offusion in the thorax, with cnlargement of the heart, and disease of the valves.

Attempts have been made in eases of this class to establish a connexion between the seat of the disease and the particular organs which are affected; but these attempts do not seem to have been attended with much success. Serres has concluded that the arm is chiefly affected, when the extravasation is in the posterior part of the hemisphere, and the leg when it is in the anterior part, or in the corpus striatum. Bouillaud has been at pains to prove that the speech is affected when the disease is in the anterior part of the brain. But this has been disputed in a memoir by Cruvcilhier, where he describes several cases in which loss of speech was a prominent symptom, while the disease was not in the anterior part of the brain, but in some other part, as the middle lobes, and even the cerebellum. In one of his cases, a man was seized, in a fit of passion, with palsy of the left side and impaired speech. He recovered after some months, but his speech continued a little embarrassed. After eight years, he was attacked with palsy of the right side, and difficulty of swallowing, and

"TEAT1873 FT. 1". T' he or ce I - A gendeman and 14 in April in him seized him sud-2. H. C. down deprived of sense tom: It ent-not was found to be े र के किस्सी में दी मिश्र प्रिंग . e (* .) - He stap n. b eieris the sectioned great restlesiness he make him. Ver and replat d bleeding, Le Tribuily improved, . . pm Laib, but wil very ina. 1911 on siderable confus in of mind. of mh.t he I mit have it intelligible to 1 . j. j r r the name of r - C - h wirdendy recognized or one of white to was nothing in n . ng vert anxi 333 to say somether citieman whom he the Methy of 12 to the goot 120 inted to Law name plate. Comments and the following the interest symmetry in THE STATE OF THE S and of the sound of sound of sound of T. A S. O. F. With Dura wipo no of niner topics.

10 0 of niner topics.

10 10 of niner topics.

10 10 of niner topics. de la standard de la died in ten days. In the middle lobe of the left hemisphere, there was a coagulum of blood the size of a nut, surrounded by some ramollissement. In the left lobe of the cerebellum, there was a cyst half an inch in diameter, lined by an organized membrane, and containing a small quantity of limpid serum. Another of his eases is sufficiently remarkable: A man, aged 48, was first attacked with loss of speech and twisting of the mouth, which continued. After six months, he was seized with palsy of the right side. He recovered from this, but his speech continued much impaired. After two years more, he had a succession of attacks in which the right leg was first affected, and afterwards the left leg; the embarrassment of his speech was increased in each attack. Finally, at the end of another year, he had a fatal attack, with loss of speech, loss of the power of swallowing, and some vomiting. In the left hemisphere, there were three cysts near the surface. In the right hemisphere, there were two cysts in the corpus striatum, and two in the thalamus. In the substance of the tuber annulare, there was a cavity containing recent blood, not coagulated. In one of Dr. Cheyne's cases, there were three distinct extravasations; one in the substance of each corpus striatum, and one in the third and fourth The symptoms were apoplectic with some ventricles. convulsion, and after some time paraplegia. In another, the extravasation was in the substance of the pons Varolii, from which it had foreed its way into the fourth ventricle. The symptoms were severe headach, followed by perfect apoplexy without paralysis. In a case which oeeurred to a friend of mine, there was a round coagulum, the size of a musket-bullet, in the iter ad quartum ventriculum. The attack eonsisted of paralysis of the left arm, in a few minutes followed by apoplexy, which was fatal in a few hours. In a singular ease described by Mr. Howship, the extravasation was distributed in the substance of the medulla oblongata, in such a manner as to form several thin strata, alternating with strata of the eerebral matter. The case was a sudden attack of perfect apoplexy, which was fatal in two days. A re-

mable rase of Decan in his C immon occurrer i has been dou effection of the l paraplegia, with extravasation of the cerebellum. the third and for by Boethaare, in Lowever, that amination of th not entitled to sobject deserves I conclude thi ing case, showing the disease, name

> travasation had be CHE CZZZI wild with an att Fe recovered and gras imperfection of the lett side. attack, and in J raldia, in whi 36 hours, and fortaight. From it 1850, he b an unting in a

rerr considerable

and paralytic o - Medica and I

Mai menerally al

fach left him mo

The Property of

· P. Marin of the Politice

the year a nut,

for the In the letter the

Translate of range and contain-

. An ther of his

relate: A tr n. : g. 1 48, was

es ferench and thing of the

. I. A or six menths, he was

the recovered from

... I mer a impaired. After two

so n of attacas in which the

i is a disterwards the left leg:

the second was increased in each

of a in ther year, he had a

- - h. S of the nower of

To v - J. In the left bemisphere, ... ar : said of In the right he-

o () hais a in oras striatum,

ne si stance of the tuber orr continue recent blood, not

there were

in the substance of . I so in the third and fourth

u te 3 rectic mili some

- marari mu. In an ther,

top six size of the poss

d. Prodist Winto the furth

n raserere he dach, followed

The state of the state which

Was a round (Capu-

..... teil fad partun

a section of the left

THE THEO THE

A. 1.1. The described by

The same was distributed in the i at the in this it was not

II such a proper The state of the s

The state of the state of the

markable case of the same kind is mentioned by Dr. Duncan in his Clinical Reports. Paraplegia is an uncommon occurrence in cases of this class, insomuch that it has been doubted whether it ever arises from an affection of the brain.* Serres has described a case of paraplegia, with palsy of the left arm, connected with extravasation of blood under the right hemisphere of the cerebellum. It occurred also in a case just quoted from Dr. Cheyne, in connexion with extravasation in the third and fourth ventricles. Another is mentioned by Boerhaave, in which it preceded apoplexy, and was connected with extravasated blood under the ccrebellum, and about the top of the spine. It does not appear, however, that in any of these cases there was an examination of the spinal canal, so that perhaps we are not entitled to found any conclusion upon them; the subject deserves careful examination.

I conclude this part of the subject with the following case, showing a remarkable feature in this form of the disease, namely, loss of the cerebral substance to a very considerable extent, at the place where the ex-

travasation had been situated.

CASE CXXXII.—A gentleman, aged 64, was first seized with an attack of apoplexy in 1824, from which he recovered under the usual treatment, but retained some imperfection of speech, and a degree of weakness of the left side. Some months after, he had a second attack, and in July 1825, a third, accompanied by convulsion, in which he lay in a state of insensibility for 36 hours, and was not able to leave his room for a fortnight. From this time to the period of his death in 1830, he had a succession of apoplectic attacks, amounting in all to twelve. After these attacks, he was generally able to leave his room in a few days, but each left him more and more embarrassed in his speech, and paralytic on the left side, with distortion of the

^{*} See an able and ingenious paper by my friend Dr. Burder, in the Medical and Physical Journal, for June 1827.

mouth, and he died in the 12th attack in 1830, after an illness of eight or ten days; during which, he lay in a state of nearly perfect coma, with total loss of

speech and perfect palsy of the left side.

Inspection.—On removing the dura mater, a remarkable depression was found on the surface of the right hemisphere, forming a deep and well-defined cavity. eapable of containing from three to four ounces of fluid. It had been filled by a clear serous fluid, which escaped when the dura mater was wounded in opening the head. The surface of the cavity presented nothing different from the ordinary appearance of the cerebral surface, being covered by the pia mater and arachnoid; but the dura mater had been separated by the fluid which had filled the eavity. On cutting into the cerebral substance which formed the cavity, it was found more dense than natural, and a cavity was exposed in the substance of the hemisphere immediately beneath it, presenting the usual appearance of the collapsed cyst which had been the seat of extravasation. It was about an inch and a half in length,—lincd by a yellow membrane of the usual appearance, and part of it was obliterated by the adhesion of its opposite surfaces. Several other very small cysts were observed in various parts of the hemisphere, but they were all empty, and no appearance could be discovered capable of accounting for the fatal attack.

§ III.—OF THE CASES ACCOMPANIED BY RAMOLLISSEMENT.

In an early part of this work, I have submitted a conjecture that the ramollissement of the eerebral substance is analogous to gangrene in other parts of the body; and that, like gangrene, it may arise from two very different causes. These are inflammatory action, and failure of circulation depending upon disease of the arterial system. Ramollissement arising from the former eause I conceive to be an affection which holds

productions

apprinent place ef the brain, occur socied by sympton gren my reasons fo zant respects distin icated with such co particularly M. Ross of the aged,—the co chiefly occurred in It is accompanied extravasation of 1 frequency and the system of the bra to be considerab this mar be the cases of this class, of casification, wi quanty to a great in of the inner c the state of the ar Exitede in other po re and feet of old have described a rem the inner cost of the the visite extremity this form, is Let a

which occur in the frequently preceded dicating a tenden beadach, giddiness or price some time, there are for of power of on of spreech, but with is then confined in there or less of pal

* Edin.

a prominent place in the pathology of acute affections of the brain, occurring in early life, and being accounpanied by symptoms of an acute character. I have given my reasons for considering this as an affection in many respects distinct from the ramollissement, investigated with such care by the French pathologists, and particularly M. Rostan. This appears to be a disease of the aged,—the cases described by M. Rostan, having chiefly occurred in persons from 70 to 80, and upwards. It is accompanied by symptoms of a paralytic and comatose character, and is frequently complicated with extravasation of blood. I have already alluded to the frequency and the extent of the disease of the arterial system of the brain in advanced life; and there appears to be considerable probability in the conjecture, that this may be the source of the ramollissement in the cases of this class. The disease of the arteries consists of ossification, with thickening and contraction, frequently to a great extent, and sometimes with separation of the inner coat. It corresponds precisely with the state of the arteries, which we know to produce gangrene in other parts of the body, particularly in the toes and feet of old people; and, in another place, I have described a remarkable case, in which separation of the inner coat of the iliac artery produced gangrene of the whole extremity, which was fatal in four days.*

The symptoms accompanying the ramollissement, in this form, do not appear to differ remarkably from those which occur in the other cases of palsy. The attack is frequently preceded by some of the usual symptoms indicating a tendency to disease of the brain; such as, headach, giddiness, partial loss of recollection, and numbness or prickling of some of the limbs. After some time, there occurs suddenly or more gradually a loss of power of one or more limbs, with embarrassment of speech, but without loss of intelligence. The patient is then confined to bed, helpless and oppressed, with more or less of palsy, but with a certain degree of in-

TIS HIT RAYOULISTERS. the 12th attack in 1800, after r on lays; during which, he perfect toma, with total loss of · fur fife eit side. of the program dura mater, a remarkof and in the surface of the right my s 1 m and well-defined cavity. in three 'n iter ounces of fluid. 1 ; 1 Par serous fluid, which escaped ter was wounded in opening the the carrity presented nothing difand it is bearance of the cerebral The pia mater and arachnoid; r has been separated by the fluid if e ra "v. On cutting into the ceren e formel the carnty, it was found erra, od a carity was exposed in he immediately beneath Sum of the colleged cret n ese of war Estin. It was about - let "1. - lined" ga gellow memrance, and part of it was obi sin of its opposite surfaces. Se-The same of the served in various To it was were all empty, and - 1 Deshaw regal capable of accounting - 1- 1-2 -1:1: ACC ANALED BE AN Lingth Line in Scat of the cerebral subin the parts of the interpretation in the interpretation in the parts of the interpretation in the interpretation in the parts of the interpretation in the parts of the interpretation in the parts of the interpretation in the mond reaction.

The mond of action of the control o

^{*} Edin. Med. Journal, vol. xvi. p. 308.

telligenee; and dies after various intervals, either with gradual sinking, or with coma for a few days before death, or sometimes with symptoms of low fever. The symptoms seem frequently to advance more slowly than in the cases from extravasation,—one organ, as the tongue, being first affected, and then one or more limbs after some interval. Pain in the affected limbs is also a frequent occurrence; and rigid contraction of them has been much insisted on, as a symptom characteristic of the ramollissement. It is, however, by no means a uniform symptom, for it is frequently wanting altogether; when it is present in the early period of the disease, it frequently disappears in the course of it; and in some of Rostan's cases, it left the limbs of the paralytic side and affected those of the other. It is also frequently observed in cases entirely of another kind as in certain states of fever which terminate favourably. Convulsive affections of the limbs are also occasionally met with.

The patient is frequently, in the early stages, quite intelligent, and observant of every thing, although unable to speak, or able to speak but imperfectly. As the disease advances, he frequently becomes more oppressed and somnolent; but he is intelligent when roused, not entirely comatose till the last period, and sometimes never entirely so. In other eases, there is at first a considerable degree of coma, which after the first day goes off, the patient becoming quite intelligent, and giving appearances of recovery, which are found to be The sensibility of the affected limbs is in fallacious. some cases impaired, in others little affected; and, in some eases, they are found aeutely painful. The ramollissement is of various extent. It seems to be most eommonly seated in the more external parts of the brain, near the surface, but sometimes is found in more deep-seated parts, particularly in the eorpus striatum. A small coagulum of blood is sometimes found involved in the softened part; and sometimes the softening is found to have taken place around the cyst of an old extravasation.

There not see rit, in its un lar frequent of two following co among my notes considered as hi inflammatory cha tan's own cases a

nine o'clock in plaint, was four about half past rorm: he had What was said put out his to word. He did Lis head, his pu and his face flus! es through the desimptoms. I to be affected wit end the topque, 1 ide; he was still ब इंडिस्ट्री. He was lay fo and the same of the was quite intell tirned entirely Then put out. wards it became saffer no pair conned comp he began to have could not bear t manner withou

about the lim'

I rabout a fort

r stellen ently

Tell 4

set. The

it. in the after the first of than

17 m .: 6,-0 : 17.70, is the

The last open to limbs

--- 1 " - all -- 1 "... \ is also

at tail e nuccion filem

. . I I' Manda in it made

and the course of it; and

s it can the limbs of the para-

erve service voi another kind-

in a series at the maximally

and the lates, quite

the state of the state of the

eromes more oppressed Thur well tought up

se to the first all emericaes

ta the medicant and

are included and

To a last the design and in

miss in in the case of the cas

It is to be nest that

The state of the state of the

mes is find in me remaining the first smired in the first smired in the first smired in the first is an old in the first in

The state of the s

I have not seen much of this form of the ramollissement, in its uncombined state: but it seems to be of very frequent occurrence in the French hospitals. The two following cases are the best examples of it I find among my notes. The second of them perhaps may be considered as having some affinity to the cases of the inflammatory character; and, indeed, some of M. Rostan's own cases afford traces of inflammation.

Case CXXXIII.—A man, aged 58, of a full habit and florid complexion, on the 7th of March 1817, about nine o'clock in the morning, without any previous eomplaint, was found to have lost his speech. I saw him about half past ten, and found him walking about his room; he had the full use of all his limbs; understood what was said to him, and answered by signs; he could put out his tongue freely, but could not articulate a word. He did not admit that he felt any uncasiness in his head, his pulse was natural and of good strength, and his face flushed. The usual remedics were employed through the day, without producing any change in the symptoms. In the morning of the 8th, he was found to be affected with perfect hemiplegia of the right side; and the tongue, when put out, was turned to the right side; he was still quite intelligent, but made no attempt at speech.

He now lay for a month without any change in the symptoms; he slept well in the night; in the day he was quite intelligent, and answered by signs, but continucd entirely speechless. For some time his tongue, when put out, was turned to the right side, but afterwards it became strait. He took his food, and appeared to suffer no pain; the pulse was natural; the right side continued completely paralytic. About the 10th of May, he began to have violent pain in the paralytic limbs, and could not bear to have them moved in the most gentle manner without screaming; nothing was to be seen about the limbs that accounted for the uneasiness. For about a fortnight he now suffered constant pain; his strength sunk, and he lost his appetite. He then had some vomiting, but not urgent; his pulse became feeble, and his features collapsed; and he died in the end of May, of gradual sinking, without coma. There had been no recovery of speech, or of the motion of the

right side.

Inspection .- On opening the head, there appeared a remarkable depression on the upper part of the left hemisphere of the brain, about two inches in length and somewhat less in breadth, the dura mater sinking into it to the depth of about half an inch. On removing the dura mater, the substance of the brain at this place was to a great extent broken down, soft and pulpy; and this appearance extended along nearly the whole upper part of the left hemisphere. Tracing this mass backwards, it was found to be terminated by a coagulum of blood, not larger than a small bean. The coagulum was soft like recent blood, and was situated about two inches from the posterior surface of the hemisphere, nearly on a level with the horizontal part of the lateral ventricle. There was no effusion in the ventricle.

CASE CXXXIV.—A man, aged 60, of rather a slender and feeble habit, had complained for nearly two months, of frequent pain in the right side of the head, and an occasional feeling of numbness in the left arm. In the end of September, 1818, this pain rather increased; he had twisting of his mouth, dimness of vision of the left eye, and slight numbness of the left hand. After bleeding and the other usual remedies, he was much relieved, and returned to his usual employment. About a week after this, he was suddenly seized with palsy of the left side, and inarticulate speech; his mind was distinct; he seemed to have some headach, but not severe; his mouth was drawn to the left side. usual remedies were employed without relief. He continued in the most helpless state of paralysis, being unable to turn from off his back, but quite distinct, and able to express all his feelings: pulse natural. In this state he lived a month without any change of the sympable to move the paragree of motion continue ceased. Two days be seized with perfect loss in a few hours by coma, Inspection.—The pianthemispheres appeared it vascular. Both lateral affaid. The substance of on the outer part of the was a considerable portion lissement. There was a crachnoid membrane.

SIV.—PARALYSIS FRO

This part of the subject to very briefly in this pl general arrangement of the been already considered a part of this essay, particu hanmation of the cerebral seen paralysis, which had co dity as in the cases consider connected with simple in of the brain,-with this in mollissement,—and with have likewise seen it comir ber, in connexion with a v in the cerebral substance, w inducation of the affected only add the following exam

Case CXXXV.—A gentle four years affected with Mr. Wil

The same

· · 45 t; L3 · 14 became

wal, out onto. There

: ... rrithe main of the

I had there appeared a

te mir part of the left

. It is two inches in length

the dura mater sinking

haif an inch. On remov-

stance of the bain at this

the sphere. Tracing this

1 term nated by a ror than a small bean. The re ent to 11, and was situated

· corn i surface of the he-

the ... - z. atal part of The wond effusion in the

man, ac 160, of rather a slen-

or compained for nearly two

n in the right side of the head,

numbress in the left am.

r. 318, this poin rather in-

this prough, dimpess of rision

I is now house of the left hand.

se to il remedies, he was

on d to the next employment.

nas stant selfanti

i white speeds his mind

1 11: " med autoch but not

is Iran , the left side. The

or her riber in this care of punitrish benchmark and a full distinct, and in this care of punitrish this care of punitrish this care of punitrish the care

toms, except that about a week before his death he was able to move the paralytic leg a little; this slight degree of motion continued three or four days, and then ceased. Two days before his death he was suddenly seized with perfect loss of speech; and this was followed in a few hours by coma, from which he did not recover.

Inspection.—The pia mater on the upper part of both hemispheres appeared thickened, and was remarkably Both lateral ventricles were distended with The substance of the brain was healthy, except fluid. on the outer part of the right hemisphere, where there was a considerable portion in a state of complete ramollissement. There was considerable effusion under the arachnoid membrane.

§ IV .- PARALYSIS FROM INFLAMMATION, AND ITS CONSEQUENCES.

This part of the subject it is only necessary to refer to very briefly in this place, in connexion with the general arrangement of the sources of paralysis. It has been already considered at some length in a former part of this essay, particularly in connexion with inflammation of the cerebral substance. We have there seen paralysis, which had come on with the same rapidity as in the cases considered under the present section, connected with simple inflammation of the substance of the brain,—with this inflammation passing into ramollissement,—and with the encysted abscess. We have likewise seen it coming on in a more gradual manner, in connexion with a very low inflammatory action in the cerebral substance, which seems to terminate by induration of the affected part. I shall in this place only add the following example of this modification of the disease.

Case CXXXV.—A gentleman, aged about 60, whom I saw along with Mr. William Brown, had been for four years affected with paralysis of the right side, and indistinctness of speech. Without any increase of these symptoms he died gradually exhausted by dyspnæa and general dropsy, connected with disease of the heart.

Inspection.—In the anterior part of the left hemisphere, we found a portion of the cerebral substance the size of a large walnut, very much changed in its appearance, being of a brownish-yellow colour; this portion was likewise much firmer than the healthy cerebral substance, except at its lower part, where it was soft and approaching to suppuration.

It is chiefly when the patient dies of some other disease, that we find this affection in the state of simple induration; when it becomes itself the fatal disease, it is generally by passing on to partial suppuration or ramollissement. Examples of this kind have been former-

ly referred to.

In regard to the paralytic state in general, there are several important circumstances which may be referred to very briefly. In some cases of palsy there is loss of motion without loss of feeling; in others, the feeling is lost also. But some singular cases are on record in which loss of feeling took place without loss of motion. Several examples of this are described in the Memoirs of the Royal Academy of Sciences. most remarkable is the case of a soldier, a very strong man, and able for all his duties, who had so completely lost the feeling of his right arm and leg, that he allowed the parts to be cut, or red hot irons applied to them, without complaining of any pain. A gentleman mentioned in the same paper had a similar peculiarity in his right arm.* Some interesting examples of the same kind are described by Mr. Broughton in the Medical and Physical Journal for 1827. In a case which is related in the Ephemer. Naturæ Curios., there was loss of motion on the one side, and loss of feeling without any diminution of motion on the other. † A gentleman who was under the care of Dr. Hay of

GENERAL PATI

Edi burgh, had two par eight months from each perfect loss of feeling, w in the second there we only partial loss of fee from the first attack at the second, though he rec to drag his leg, and after plexy. It is unnecessary the light which has been by the discoveries of Sir

In cases in which ther

and motion, we frequent without recovery of mo hand, describes a case in m tion without recovery related by Burserius.† in paralytic limbs has also referred to a case, in which the brain, there was such a arm, that the least breath (Dr. Falconer, in the Mem. den, vol. ii., mentions a ger lytic attack, had such a mor old bodies felt to him as When he first put on his sh and as they gradually acqu feet, they appeared to him sometimes hecome intensel cause: examples of this l has also been referred to, i was accompanied by such useless. When paralytic]

body, and extends gradually same rariety occurs in the fi Act, Helvet, tom. + Institut, Mediai

covery sometimes begins

limb, as the fingers and toe

wards; and sometimes it

Mem. de l'Acad. Royale des Sciences, anno 1748.

[†] Eph. Naturæ Curios. Cent. II. Obs. 196.

H TO: CE PARALLEIS.

Without any increase of these
the exhlusted by dyspace and
with disease of the heart.
In the part of the left hemition of the cerebral substance the
tion and the healthy cerebral
ower part, where it was soft and

the pair and dies of some other diss affection in the state of simple specomes itself the fatal disease, it and to partial suppuration or ras of this kind have been former-

mly to state in general, there are mstances which may be referred me cases of palsy there is loss es of feeling; in others, the Bu: 4 me singular cases are on ret cling took place without loss ramples of this are described in ov Andemy of Sciences. The e case of a soldier, a very e for all his duties, who had so poline of his right arm and leg, that - be cut, or red bot irons applied mil ming of any pain. A gentlee same caper had a similar wit Mal. Some interesting examof the themped by Mr. Broughton Phrsial Journal in 182. Carios, rion on the ne side, and loss of Duty of mild and the other. The care of Dr. Har of N. R. P. M. Co. D.

Edinburgh, had two paralytic attacks at the distance of eight months from each other. In the first there was perfect loss of feeling, with only partial loss of motion; in the second there was perfect loss of motion, with only partial loss of feeling. He recovered perfectly from the first attack after a short time; but, after the second, though he recovered partially, he continued to drag his leg, and after a year or more died of apoplexy. It is unnecessary to refer the scientific reader to the light which has been thrown on this curious subject has the discrepance of Sin Charles Bell.

by the discoveries of Sir Charles Bell.

In cases in which there has been loss both of feeling and motion, we frequently observe recovery of feeling, without recovery of motion. Berdotus, on the other hand, describes a case in which there was recovery of motion without recovery of feeling; a similar case is related by Burserius.† Increased acuteness of feeling in paralytic limbs has also been observed; and I have referred to a case, in which, connected with disease in the brain, there was such an increased sensibility of the arm, that the least breath of cold air excited convulsion. Dr. Falconer, in the Mcm. of the Med. Society of London, vol. ii., mentions a gentleman, who, after a paralytic attack, had such a morbid state of sensation, that cold bodies felt to him as if they were intensely hot. When he first put on his shoes, he felt them very hot, and as they gradually acquired the temperature of his feet, they appeared to him to cool. Paralytic limbs sometimes become intensely painful without any obvious cause; examples of this have been given, and a case has also been referred to, in which recovery from palsy was accompanied by such pain, that the limb remained useless. When paralytic limbs are recovering, the recovery sometimes begins at the extreme parts of the limb, as the fingers and toes, and extends gradually upwards; and sometimes it begins in the part next the body, and extends gradually to the extreme parts. The same variety occurs in the first attack of paralysis, when

^{*} Act. Helvet. tom. vi. p. 191. † Institut. Medicin. Pract. vol. iii. p. 76.

it takes place so slowly as to enable us to observe its progress. It seems in general to begin in the more extreme parts, but I have seen one patient who could write distinctly with his arm supported upon a table after the arm from the shoulder to the elbow was completely paralytic; in a few hours after the hand was paralytic also. M. Velpeau has described the ease of a soldier in the hospital of Tours, who had complete palsy of the right arm from the shoulder to the middle of the fore-arm, while the hand was not in the least affected. He recovered in three months.*

In regard to the temperature of paralytic limbs, I think it is generally supposed, that they are colder than the healthy limbs; but this does not appear to be the The truth seems to be, that they have lost in some degree that remarkable power, possessed by the living body in a healthy state, of preserving a medium temperature; and that, according to the temperature to which they have been exposed, paralytic parts become hotter or colder than sound parts, which have been exposed to the same temperature. A Case has been related to me by a friend, in which a medical man paying a visit to a paralytic patient, found the paralytic arm so intensely hot that it was painful to touch it. This, upon inquiry, was found to be owing to the application of very hot bran, which the patient had made to the arm by the advice of a neighbour, though he was himself insensible of the change of temperature.

Some interesting phenomena are presented by the conditions of the mental faculties, connected with paralytic affections, or which remain after recovery from the apoplectic. One of the most common is a loss of the memory of words, and this has sometimes been observed to be confined to words of a particular class, as nouns, verbs, or adjectives. The patient is frequently observed to have a distinct idea of things and their relations, as well as of persons, while he is entirely unable to give them names, or to understand them when they are

samed to him. A singular tion has been related to me it referred could not be ina of an object when it was spi was written he comprehende frequent modification of the one word, or one name of a other; and a very singular c of this kind is, that the patie in the same manner, so the with him come to understa In one case of this kind, a respects pretty well recov put upon his fire, always o wanted paper, he called fo alwars used in the same patient seems to invent nar stranger are quite unintell them in the same sense, and to know what he means by

In the general pathology obscurity. We find it conn of morbid conditions of the buse we find all these existing we cannot attempt to explain the content ourselves with a simulation of the present state of found paralysis connected working appearances.

I. Simple and recept in substance.

II. This inflammation party. Induration of a poor stance.

Extravasated blood in stance of the brain; and in control of the brain.

^{*} Archives Generales, January 1825.

as to graphe as to observe its - ral to begin in the more exen ne julient who could write urr : I up 1 a table after the of A 1.00% was completely parr t'e band was paralytic also. the case of a soldier in the d complete falsy of the right the middle of the fore-arm, n the least affected. He re-

T LOGI OF PARALTEES.

r erature of paralytic limbs, I sed, that they are colder than to is does not appear to be the s to be, that they have lost in rka'le p wer, possessed by the e je, of preserving a medium the temperature to resol. Paralyte Parts become rature. A Case has been n which a medical man paying : f und the paralytic arm so in fil to truck it. This, upon e wing to the application of patt Et had made to the arm do ur though he was himself nt a are presented by the conmand after covery from the ipo.

rest endrate a sof the me. ; has sime mes hem berred

, 3 Per, - Chix, 33 nouns,

rent is in their religions as

h is entirely unable to give are

ere walk of Min

pamed to him. A singular modification of this condition has been related to me. The gentleman to whom it referred could not be made to understand the name of an object when it was spoken to him, but if the name was written he comprehended it immediately. Another frequent modification of the affection consists in putting one word, or one name of an object in the place of another; and a very singular circumstance in some cases of this kind is, that the patient always applies the names in the same manner, so that those who are constantly with him come to understand exactly what he means. In one case of this kind, a gentleman who was in other respects pretty well recovered, when he wanted coals put upon his fire, always called for paper, and when he wanted paper, he called for coals, and these names he always used in the same sense. In other cases the patient seems to invent names, being words which to a stranger are quite unintelligible, but he always uses them in the same sense, and his regular attendants come to know what he means by them.

In the general pathology of paralysis there is much obscurity. We find it connected with a great variety of morbid conditions of the brain, and on the other hand we find all these existing without producing it. We cannot attempt to explain these difficulties, and must content ourselves with a simple view of the facts as they stand in the present state of our knowledge. We have found paralysis connected with the following variety of morbid appearances.

I. Simple and recent inflammation of the cerebral substance.

II. This inflammation passing into ramollissement.

III. The encysted abscess of the brain.

IV. Induration of a portion of the cerebral substance.

V. Extravasated blood in the ventricles; on the surface of the brain; and in cavities or cysts in the substance of the brain.

VI. The empty cysts from which extravasation has been absorbed.

VII. Serous effusion on the surface of the brain.

VIII. Extensive disease of the arteries of the brain.

To this enumeration we have also to add the following points which have not arisen so directly out of the pre-

ceding observations.

IX. Morbid changes in small portions of the cerebral substance. Several years ago I attended a gentleman who was affected with very slight palsy of the right side, which continued for eight or ten months without becoming either better or worse; he was pale and of a very spare habit, and had made very little complaint of his head. He at last died comatose, after a few days illness. The only morbid appearance was a portion of the left hemisphere, at the very lower part of the middle lobe, which was altered in its texture so as to have very much the appearance of fungus hæmatodes. The part so diseased was about the size of a large walnut. Several cases are described by Andral under the name of cancer of the brain, in which small portions were found in a state of disease resembling this. The symptoms in general were long-continued pain, referred to one part of the head, with paralytic symptoms.

X. Loss of a considerable portion of the cerebral substance. One of the most remarkable examples of this on record is a man mentioned by Mr. O'Halloran, who, after an injury of the head, lost a great part of the frontal bone on the right side. The bone had been completely broken to pieces; some of the pieces were extracted immediately after the injury, and others were discharged after a day or two. A great opening was thus formed, and extensive suppuration having taken place, there were discharged through it at each dressing immense quantities of purulent matter, mixed with large pieces of the cerebral substance, making, after some time, "a frightful cavern" in the very substance of the brain. On the 8th day of this affection the left hand and arm became paralytic, and the left thigh and leg on the 10th day. The man lived to the 17th, retaming his faculties to the last, the whole course of the disease intelligent, and his pulse quite intelligent, and his pulse quite intelligent; but the report is been very great. On the 8th marks,—" the sore continued insomuch, that when I affirm ounces of the brain, with a horr dressing, I am certain that I at quantity;"—and, again, on the was terrible, and I feared that of the right side of the brain conclusion of this remarkable

man "preserved his intellec

dissolution."*

GENERAL PATHOLOGY

XI. Cold. A man mentio. paralytic in both legs, and p consequence of being much l travelling on the top of a coach mercury and warm bath, and eight or ten months.† I have which was referred to this cause it last, had continued for about improvement. Dr. Powel has paralysis of one side of the face. of the month, and in one of th erelids. The affection came Posure to cold, by a cold wind the face; it was not accompani two of them were well in e third, a child, was not free fr months. They seemed to de and the application of steam affection of the Portio dura.

XII. Local affections of n

O'Halloran on Injuries of the 1

Edinburgh Medical Journal;
Transactions of the College of the

from which extravasation has in the surface of the brain. To of the arteries of the brain. It is also to add the following on an directly out of the pre-

H rock of brategies

small portions of the cerebral a_o I attended a gentleman very slight palsy of the right r eight or ten months without worse; he was pale and of a I ale very little complaint of d comatose, after a few days d appearance was a portion of or ry lower part of the middle a its texture so as to have very i his bematoles. The part Le of a large walnut. Several Iru ander the name of cancer mai, portions were found in a this. The symptoms in gefrom, referred to one part of a'e pyrion of the cerebral

st remarkable examples of this or d by Mr. O'Halloran, who, and by Mr. O'Halloran, who, are holders part of the side. The bone had been side. The bone had been was a me of the pieces was to be about a man having taken with his at each dressor was supprincipally in the area distribution in the rety substitute of the life of the l

taining his faculties to the last, and having been through the whole course of the disease perfectly composed and intelligent, and his pulse quite natural. No account is given of the dissection, or of the actual loss of the cerebral matter; but the report shows that it must have been very great. On the 8th day Mr. O'Halloran remarks,—" the sore continued to discharge greatly, insomueh, that when I affirm that not less than three ounces of the brain, with a horrid smell, followed every dressing, I am eertain that I am a good deal under the quantity;"—and, again, on the 13th day,—" the cavern was terrible, and I feared that the remains of the lobes of the right side of the brain would follow."-In the conclusion of this remarkable case, it is added that the man "preserved his intellect to the very moment of dissolution."*

XI. Cold. A man mentioned by Dr. Clark, became paralytic in both legs, and partially in the arms, in consequence of being much benumbed with cold in travelling on the top of a coach; he derived benefit from mereury and warm bath, and was nearly recovered in eight or ten months.† I have seen a case of paraplegia which was referred to this cause, and which, when I saw it last, had continued for about four years with very little improvement. Dr. Powel has described three eases of paralysis of one side of the face, producing great twisting of the mouth, and in one of them, inability to shut the eyelids. The affection came on immediately after exposure to cold, by a cold wind blowing upon one side of the face; it was not accompanied by any other symptom; two of them were well in eight or ten days; but the third, a child, was not free from the complaint for three They seemed to derive benefit from sudorifics and the application of steam. This was probably an affection of the portio dura. ‡

XII. Local affections of nerves. For the facts con-

O'Halloran on Injuries of the Head, p. 103.
Edinburgh Medical Journal; vol. iv. p. 266.

[‡] Transactions of the College of Physicians, London, vol. v.

nected with this eurious subject, I refer to the beautiful investigations of Sir Charles Bell. One of the most common examples is paralysis of one side of the face from an affection of the portio dura. I have seen several examples of it; in some of them it has been a transient affection, and apparently connected with some inflammatory action about the external car or the parotid gland; and it has yielded readily to topical bleeding and blistering. In other cases it is connected with disease of the bone, and proves most untractable. The temporary paralysis which arises from accidental pressure upon a nerve is familiar to every one; but singular cases oceasionally occur in which the effects are more permanent. An instance of this kind has been related to me in which the paralysis did not go off for several months, and another in which it was permanent. In the latter case, it took place in the fore arms and hands of both sides, and was induced by pressure in consequenee of leaning for a long time upon a bar of wood while the person was stooping forward in his anxiety to witness some public exhibition. Mr. Brodie has deseribed a ease of paralysis of one side of the face which followed a blow on the cheek, and recovered in three months.

XIII. There is a modification of paralysis which seems to be connected with the state of the circulation in the affected part. A lady, mentioned by Dr. Storer,* was recovering from a pneumonic attack, when one morning, after a restless night, she was suddenly seized with an acute pain in the left shoulder, extending to the arm, and at the same time the whole left side became paralytic. The leg retained an obscure degree of motion and feeling, but the hand and foot were insensible to the prick of a needle. The parts were cold, and all the arterics in them were without pulsation. On the right side of the body, the pulse was of good strength, and a little frequent. After a few hours the pain shifted to CENERAL PATHOL

the leg and foot; and she

in the forehead, which wa leeches. The pain of the twelve hours, and she had the paralysis. For several proving a little in the motio tipued cold and without J had an uneasy feeling in the suffocation; her breathing and she died in the night; A gentleman, mentioned in with paralysis of the right complain of any pain, bu part of it without pulse; natural. After four hour. and laborious breathing, two hours more, he died. In the same journal, Dr. 1 ef a gentleman, subject t awoke one morning with a in the afternoon it becam The pain then ceased, and vithout pulse. He continu without any other compla he died suddenly, as he largithe arm only was exno morbid appearance cou

This singular affection extensive disease of the ago, I saw a woman, age vith violent pain of the by pulpitation of the he fain extending across the back; the pulse of the weak; in the other am

^{*} Trans. of a Society for the Improvement of Medical and Surgical Knowledge, vol. iii.

interdar. After a day o the arm without pulse, a field paralytic. After a mere affected in the s

maliges. I refer to the beautiful r & B. R. One of the most alves of one side of the face a pertin dara. I have seen n some of them it has been a fur atly connected with some the external ear or the paroded readly to topical bleeding r cas s it is connected with troves most untractable. The aris s from accidental presar ') every one; but singular in which the effects are more ce f this kind has been related a veis did ant go off for several n with it was permanent. In lice in the fore aims and hands induced by pressure in conse-Ing time upon a bar of wood ny forward in his anxiety to Vr. Brodie has des in poside of the face which cleek, and recovered in three

IL JOY OF PARALTIES.

with the state of the circulation with the state of the circulation with the state of the circulation and the circulation attack, when one a namonic attack, when one is left shoulder, extending to the circulation with the left side became the whole left side becam

the leg and foot; and she had also some obscure pain in the forehead, which was removed by bleeding with leeches. The pain of the leg and foot abated after twelve hours, and she had then no complaint except the paralysis. For several days she seemed to be improving a little in the motion of the parts, but they continued eold and without pulse; on the fifth day, she had an uneasy feeling in the epigastrium, with sense of suffocation; her breathing became short and hurried, and she died in the night; the body was not examined. A gentleman, mentioned in the same paper, was seized with paralysis of the right arm as he sat at breakfast, having been previously in perfect health. He did not eomplain of any pain, but the arm was pale, and every part of it without pulse; in the left arm the pulse was natural. After four hours he became faint, with quiek and laborious breathing, and frequent pulse; and, in two hours more, he died. The body was not examined. In the same journal, Dr. Wells has described the case of a gentleman, subject to cough and dyspnoea, who awoke one morning with a severe pain in the left arm; in the afternoon it became benumbed and paralytic. The pain then ceased, and the arm was found to be without pulse. He continued in this state for two days without any other complaint; and, on the third day, he died suddenly, as he got up to go to stool. The paralytic arm only was examined after death, and in it no morbid appearance could be detected.

This singular affection was probably connected with extensive disease of the arterial system. Some years ago, I saw a woman, aged 73, who was suddenly seized with violent pain of the whole right arm, accompanied by palpitation of the heart, inclination to vomit, and pain extending across the thorax from the breast to the back; the pulse of the affected arm was extremely weak; in the other arm it was 120 and strong, but irregular. After a day or two the pain ceased, leaving the arm without pulse, and very weak, but not completely paralytic. After ten days, the right thigh, and leg were affected in the same manner; after five days

more, the left arm, and ten days after this, the left thigh and leg went through the same eourse. She was then confined to bed in a state of extreme weakness, and no pulsation could be felt in any artery except the carotids, and a little in the right humeral; in the earotids it was strong and frequent. The radial artery felt under the finger like a firm cord, as if permanently distended She still had pain in the region of the with blood. heart, which at times was very severe, impeding respiration, and preventing her from lying on the left side. She lived a month in this state; the dyspnœa and palpitation became gradually more and more severe; and she died gradually exhausted, two months after the eommeneement of the disease. Some days before death, slight pulsation was perceived in the arteries of the left arm, and in the right it was more distinct than formerly. On inspection much fluid was found in the pericardium, and in the right cavity of the pleura. The heart was flaecid, and none of its eavities contained any blood; in the right sinus venosus, there were two firm fleshy tumors or polypi; the one the size of a pigeon's egg, attached to the side of the sinus by a slender pedicle, the other smaller and attached more extensively. The whole arterial system was extensively ossified; in some places the diameter of the artery was considerably diminished by the ossification, and several of the great arteries were completely obstructed by firm coagula of blood in the contracted parts. This was most remarkable in the right common iliac, which was filled through nearly the whole extent of the common trunk, by a darkcoloured coagulum, which was firm, elastie, and dry. The left subclavian was also much diseased and considerably contracted, and the aorta near the bifurcation was for about two inches almost entirely ossified.

There are other singular facts which seem to indicate peculiarities in the circulation in particular parts of the body, probably originating in the obscure relation betwixt the vascular and nervous systems. An esteemed medical friend of mine, now no more, when heated by exercise, perspired very freely on one-half of his body

and not on the other, the line precision from the forehead alo and 50 downwards. When he the other side perspired also, occasionally from great exertion ration of the one side was a observation. I knew another ge same peculiarity, after being affect the head, which had threatened Everard Home has mentioned a the lower extremities from a wo there was free perspiration of al of the injury, but none below i occurred in a remarkable mann the spinal cord to be afterwa mentioned by Dr. Falconer bec. on the whole left side of the b notion of muscular power, the healthy; she recovered by the u-

The various forms of comatose been described by systematic write varieties in degree, or modificat linle practical importance; but s are deserving of attention. The example, presents some interestin to the extent in which it may ex apoplexr, and without permanent of the brain, though they are for crerpowered and suspended. Mr. John Bell, who had been much activity, was confined from by an extensive fistula which he of a full habit, and his appetit Suply into a state of complete whole time being spent in sle attempted to answer questions, incoherent, and his speech inarti

* Mem Med c

LOT OF PARALYSIS. ad ten days after this, the left th the same course. She was in a state of extreme weakness, be test in any aftery except the he right humeral; in the carotids nt. The radial artery felt under d, as if permanently distended had pain in the region of the 3 very severe, impeding reg her from lying on the left side. ns, state: the drspnæa and palally more and more severe; and ase. Some days before death, eroused in the arteries of the left t was more distinct than formerly. il was found in the pericardium, the pleura. The heart was s - contained any blood; there were two firm fleshy rete size of a pigeon's egg, e sinus by a slender pedicle, bel more extensively. The s 'Z' respely ossified; in some of the artery was enastdenably a. and soveral of the great or contracted by firm coamila of This was most remark. e, which was alled through of the congress truck bradurk. w ca res arm, elastic, and dry, 18 . Tuch diseased and coasinon course nour recondly ossided. writery ossumed indicate and it is projected from the the the day heard he n wir Dire. when hoard be is an one-ball of his by

and not on the other, the line being drawn with great precision from the forehead along the ridge of the nose, and so downwards. When he was very much heated, the other side perspired also, but this only occurred oceasionally from great exertions; the singular perspiration of the one side was a matter of almost daily observation. I knew another gentleman who had the same peculiarity, after being affected with complaints in the head, which had threatened a paralytic attack. Sir Everard Home has mentioned a man who had palsy of the lower extremities from a wound of the spinal cord; there was free perspiration of all the parts above the seat of the injury, but none below it. The same peculiarity occurred in a remarkable manner in a ease of disease of the spinal cord to be afterwards described. A child mentioned by Dr. Falconer became pale and emaciated on the whole left side of the body, without any diminution of muscular power, the right side remaining healthy; she recovered by the use of warm pumping.*

The various forms of comatose affections which have been described by systematic writers, seem to be merely varieties in degree, or modifications of the disease, of little practical importance; but some of these conditions are deserving of attention. The state of lethargy, for example, presents some interesting phenomena, in regard to the extent in which it may exist without passing into apoplexy, and without permanently injuring the functions of the brain, though they are for the time completely overpowered and suspended. A man mentioned by Mr. John Bell, who had been accustomed to a life of much activity, was confined from his usual employment by an extensive fistula which he had concealed. Being of a full habit, and his appetite unimpaired, he soon sunk into a state of complete lethargy, nearly his whole time being spent in sleep. When roused, he attempted to answer questions, but his answers were incoherent, and his specch inarticulate; he had been a

^{*} Mem. Med. Soc. of Lond. vol. ii.

long time in this condition when Mr. Bell saw him. His fistula being cured, he recovered gradually by evaeuations, blistering on the head, and a proper regulation of his diet, so that in a few weeks he was well, returned to his former employments, and managed with correctness the affairs of a company.* Hippocrates mentions a priest, subject to annual fits of gout, in whom the paroxysm terminated regularly for several years in a state of lethargy, from which he could only be roused to take food or drink. It was accompanied by tremors, stupor, and forgetfulness, immobility of the eyes, and a completely enervated state of the whole body; it generally continued one or two weeks. A man mentioned by Willis, at the crisis of a putrid fever, lay for four days in a state of profound sleep, from which nothing could rouse him. He then came out of it after blistering, but his faculties were gone, so that he knew nobody, remembered nothing, and understood nothing, "vix supra brutum saperet." He continued in this state for two months, and then gradually recovered. ago I saw a young man, who at the end of a tedious fever fell into such a degree of stupor that I apprehended effusion in the brain. He recovered, however, after a good many days, and his bodily health was soon restored, but his mind was in a state approaching to idiotism. In this condition he was taken to the country, and recovered gradually after several months. A most remarkable ease of this kind is related by Dr. Pritchard, on the authority of the late Dr. Rush of Philadelphia. patient was an American student, and a person of eonsiderable acquirements, who on his recovery from

* Bell's Principles of Surgery, vol. ii.

fever, was found to have lost all his acquired knowledge.

On recovering his health, he began to apply to the Latin

Grammar; had passed through the elementary parts,

and was beginning to construe, when one day, in making

a strong effort to recollect a part of his lesson, the whole

of his lost impressions suddenly returned to his mind,

and he found himself at once in possession of all the

acquirements that he possessed before his illness.

CENERAL PATHOLOGY OF P.

A state of the mental faculties cerationally occurs in diseases of terationally occurs in diseases of Many years ago, I attended a ludy and neglected diarrhea, was reduced weakness, with remarkable failure of had lost the recollection of a particular or twelve years. She had formed ity, and the period of which she lection was that during which she burgh. Her ideas were consistent to they referred to things as they stood. She recovered her health after a conference of the property of old age.

The state of the brain in such from apoplexy, but is nearly allied condition of the mental faculties s prelade to apoplexy, or it may be l of it, after every other symptom has gentleman mentioned by Wepfer wa plegia of the right side and profe second day, the right side was convu the palsy disappeared. He then lay for nine days, having during seven Table of taking any food. On the (take what was offered him, and on t of the state of stupor, but his facul knew nobody, and neither remember any thing. After several weeks he more particular friends, then began to repeat the Lord's prayer, and to Lann, rather than German, which guage, but only a few words at a tir to read more, he said that he forme things but now did not. He could irequently wrote lines both of Germ in elegant characters, but without m tine he began to pay more attention alound him, and to look after his ho then lamented his want of undareter

A state of the mental faculties somewhat analogous oceasionally oceurs in diseases of simple exhaustion. Many years ago, I attended a lady, who, from a severe and neglected diarrhoa, was reduced to a state of great weakness, with remarkable failure of her memory. She had lost the recollection of a particular period, of about ten or twelve years. She had formerly lived in another city, and the period of which she had lost the recollection was that during which she had lived in Edinburgh. Her ideas were consistent with each other, but they referred to things as they stood before her removal. She recovered her health after a considerable time, but remained in a state of imbecility resembling the dotage

of old age.

TO UF PARALLING.

durn when Mr. Beil san him. . . Touveled gr. 172 1 6 . erd.

the bod and a typer regulation

far weeks be was med, returned

Are and managed with correct-

ap ny.* Hippocrates mentions

inual are of your, in who a the

errioly for several years in a

The he could only be roused

It was accompanied by tremors,

s immobility of the eres, and a

state of the whole body; it gene-

two weeks A man mentioned

s in Pril fever, lay for four days

l steep, from which nothing could

came out of it after olistering, but

so that he knew nobody, remem-

and read neithing, "ein supra

provinged in this state for two

1. The at the end of a tedious

- e of stupor that I apprehended

He rec. verel, however, after a

is k lily health was soon restored,

1-3th orne aching to idiotism. In

tanto ile country, and recovered

fil min's. A nost remarkable

r' ted by Pr. Pritchard, on the

. Dr. Rush of Philadelphia. The

The student and a person of

who on his recovery from

A va of he achined knowledge.

3 . J. e harin to apply to the Latin

the elements parts.

The when one lay in making the property of the property o

and it immed to his minh in present to his mind

The state of the brain in such eases as these differs from apoplexy, but is nearly allied to it; for a similar condition of the mental faculties sometimes occurs as a prelude to apoplexy, or it may be left as a consequence of it, after every other symptom has been removed, A gentleman mentioned by Wepfer was seized with hemiplegia of the right side and profound sleep; in the second day, the right side was convulsed, and after this the palsy disappeared. He then lay in a state of sleep for nine days, having during seven of these been ineapable of taking any food. On the 8th day he began to take what was offered him, and on the 9th he came out of the state of stupor, but his faculties were gone; he knew nobody, and neither remembered nor attended to any thing. After several weeks he began to know his more particular friends, then began to remember words. to repeat the Lord's prayer, and to read a few words of Latin, rather than German, which was his own language, but only a few words at a time. If he was urged to read more, he said that he formerly understood these things, but now did not. He could write, however, and frequently wrote lines both of German and Latin words. in elegant characters, but without meaning. After some time he began to pay more attention to what was passing around him, and to look after his household affairs. He often lamented his want of understanding, and expressed his hope that he should recover it. While thus making slight and gradual progress, he was after three or four months cut off by an attack of apoplexy.

SECTION IV.

OUTLINE OF THE TREATMENT OF APOPLEXY.

From the facts which have been related, we have seen reason to believe, that there is a modification of apoplexy which is fatal without leaving any morbid appearanee, and which probably depends upon a deranged condition of the eireulation in the brain; we have also seen grounds for believing, that the eases which terminate by effusion are probably at their commencement in this state of simple apoplexy. We have seen farther, that we have no eertain mark by which we can ascertain the presence of effusion; and finally we have found, that even extensive extravasation of blood in the brain may be entirely recovered from by the absorption of the coagulum. These eonsiderations give the strongest encouragement to treat the disease in the most active and persevering manner. They teach us, also, not to be influenced in our practice, by the hypothetical distinction of apoplexy into sanguineous and serous; and, finally, not to be hasty in concluding in any particular case, that the disease has passed into a state in which it is no longer the object of active treatment.

In the treatment of apoplexy, our remedies are few and simple. Those in which our chief reliance is to be placed are, large and repeated bloodletting, active purgatives, and cold applications to the head, aided by an elevated position of the body, cool air, and the absence of all stimuli. Antimonials may occasionally be useful as an auxiliary, from their known effect in restraining rescular action, provided in a

TREATMENT O

Our first great object is blod from the arteries of the to such an extent as shall pow the system, and by repeating as these effects begin to subshould probably be from the a seems to be an evident advan locally either from the tempo Much importance has been at ing from the jugular vein, as diate relief to the head; but the only jugular vein that car jugular, which has very little brain, and consequently that I much inferior to bleeding fi As soon as possible after the b taken for inducing strong purgi remedy by far for this purpose the patient cannot swallow, it n introduced into the stomach, su or mucilage, through an elastic g shald be expedited by strong This is always to be considered a leading point in the treatment of in arresting the progress of the d is upon large and repeated ble improvement of the patient is go ence of powerful purging. The old to the head is the third rep and it is equally applicable to the disease, whether arising from s entravassion. It may be applied water as annual in a popular iced water, or pounded ice in a stream of cold water directed ag head, and received in a basin bei the patient is supported in a sit formerly given an example of a p

vaseular action, provided in the early stages they do not occasion vomiting.

Our first great object is to take off the impulse of blood from the arteries of the head by bleeding carried to such an extent as shall powerfully and decidedly affect the system, and by repeating it at short intervals as soon as these effects begin to subside. The first bleeding should probably be from the arm, but, after this, there seems to be an evident advantage in abstracting blood locally either from the temporal artery or by cupping. Much importance has been attached by some to bleeding from the jugular vein, as most likely to give immediate relief to the head; but we must remember, that the only jugular vein that can be opened is the external jugular, which has very little communication with the brain, and consequently that bleeding from it is probably much inferior to bleeding from the temporal artery. As soon as possible after the bleeding, means are to be taken for inducing strong purging. The most efficient remedy by far for this purpose is the eroton oil, and, if the patient cannot swallow, it may be very conveniently introduced into the stomach, suspended in thick gruel or mucilage, through an elastic gum tube; the operation should be expedited by strong purgative injections. This is always to be considered as a most important and leading point in the treatment of apoplexy; and though, in arresting the progress of the disease, our first reliance is upon large and repeated bleeding, the first decided improvement of the patient is generally under the influenee of powerful purging. The effectual application of eold to the head is the third remedy on which we rely, and it is equally applicable to the different states of the disease, whether arising from simple apoplexy or from extravasation. It may be applied either by means of iced water, or pounded ice in a bladder; or by a full stream of cold water directed against the crown of the head, and received in a basin held under the chin, while the patient is supported in a sitting posture. I have formerly given an example of a patient restored in a few

7 PARLETY.

"dea of an elege.

1 17.7 it. Wh. state making

The was after large or four

have een related, we have seen t there is a modification of apowithout leaving any morbid appearalle depends upon a deranged conin the brain; we have also seen , is to the cases which terminate or at their commencement in this we have seen farther, that by which we can ascertain the al itally we have found, that wat a of blood in the brain may from y the absorption of the coe dera. as give the strongest enthe disease in the most active and They teach us, also, not to be inrice, by the arpsthetical distinction ruin by and serous; and finally, villing in any particular case, that lin)); te in which it is no long. finipers, our remedies are few a la which our chief revance is to be ard bloodering active purious to be absence is to the head, aided by an art ood air, and the absence in a di mar occasionili de useful m there is the effect in restaining

minutes or rather seconds by this remedy from a state

of perfect apoplexy.

The active use of these remedies is sometimes followed by a very speedy removal of the apopleetie state. other eases, though little immediate effect may be produeed, yet by a persevering repetition of them, the eoma begins to subside after some time, perhaps a good many hours, or even several days. In other eases again, they may be used in the most active manner without relieving the patient, and after all we may find upon dissection, that the disease was still in the state of simple apoplexy. This important fact cannot be too often repeated or too earefully kept in mind; and it should lead us to proseeute the treatment of every ease of apoplexy with the utmost vigour and perseverance. In one ease that oeeurred to me, the bleeding was repeated to the extent of upwards of one hundred ounces, assisted by purging from the eroton oil, repeated to the extent of above twenty drops, and the ease terminated favourably, after the symptoms had continued in a very doubtful state for three or four days.

In the extent of our evacuations indeed, a due regard is certainly to be had to the age and constitution of the patient, and the strength of the pulse; but I think we have sufficient ground for saying, that there are no symptoms which characterize a distinct class of apopleetie affections, requiring any important distinction in the treatment; or in other words, a class, which in their nature do not admit of bloodletting. On this important point, we may refer with some confidence to the facts which have been related. Weakness of the pulse, and paleness of the countenance, we have seen to be frequent symptoms of the worst form of sanguineous apoplexy; and, on the other hand, we have seen eases terminate by serous effusion, which were accompanied by strong pulse and flushing of the countenance. Finally, we have seen one remarkable ease in which there existed every eireumstanee that could lead us to consider the disease as serous apoplexy, but which was

fistal without any effus was most extensive symptom. It is liked apoplectic affections the uncertain guide, for not it upon the first attack compressible, and become brain has become in son letting.

TREATME.

It would be quite st plectic cases treated st But it may be of use, subject, to select a f and infirm people, m examples of serous apease not admitting of treatment terminating

CASE CXXXVI. babit, and thin and with in her usual health, fell and paralytic on the rig hours after the attack. but not entirely comatos less and paralytic; her ETERTH. She was bled cine was ordered, with On the following day both in speech and in t having become rather again largely bled, and nued. From this time end of a week she ma ance, and in a few do

Case CXXXVII...

Space and feeble habit,
chair on the floor in a si

and by its remedy from a scale ese reme lies is sometimes followed n vol. f a' e apopleccio state. In mmediate effect may be proi I repetiti a of them, the coma we time, perhaps a good many avi. In other cases again, they se active manner without relieving we may find upon dissection, In the state of simple apoplexy. an, to too often repeated or too d, and it should lead us to prosef every case of apoplexy with the ersever ince. In one case that ocd. I was repeated to the extent In I mees, assisted by purging , repeated to the extent of above e case orminated favourably, after ne ued in a very doubtful state for

TEST F AP PLEAT.

runtims indeed, a due regard · ile age and constitution of the gia if the pulse; but I think we of for saming, that there are no a terize a distinct class of apople. raz any important distinction in a that words a class, which in t a mit i bloodletting. On this myr.iii with some confidence to hash related. Weakness of the · e e unrenance, me have seen 1 Es i e wist from of sanguine. o : b = - ber bank me have seen in is except, which were accome , and diships of the countenance. o tennikilih case in which . - mil nee that could head us to as a fish a say, but which was

fatal without any effusion; and another in which there was most extensive effusion without any apoplectic symptom. It is likewise to be kept in mind, that in apoplectic affections the strength of the pulse is a very uncertain guide, for nothing is more common than to find it upon the first attack of apoplexy, weak, languid, and compressible, and becoming strong and full after the brain has become in some degree relieved by large bloodletting.

It would be quite superfluous to detail common apoplectic cases treated successfully upon these principles. But it may be of use, in connexion with this part of the subject, to select a few cases, which, occurring in old and infirm people, might have been considered either examples of serous apoplexy, or modifications of the disease not admitting of active treatment, yet under such

treatment terminating favourably.

Case CXXXVI.—A woman, aged 70, of a spare habit, and thin and withered aspect, having walked out in her usual health, fell down in the street, speechless and paralytic on the right side. I saw her four or five hours after the attack. She was then much oppressed, but not entirely comatose. She was completely speechless and paralytic; her pulse about 96, and of tolerable strength. She was bled to 15 ounces; purgative medicine was ordered, with cold applications to her head. On the following day she was considerably improved both in speech and in the motion of the right side; but, having become rather worse towards night, she was again largely bled, and purgative medicine was continued. From this time she improved rapidly. At the end of a week she was able to walk with little assistance, and in a few days more was restored to perfect health.

Case CXXXVII.—A gentleman, aged 70, of a spare and feeble habit, and very infirm from frequent attacks of asthma, without any warning fell from his chair on the floor in a state of perfect apoplexy, accom-

panied by violent convulsion. When I saw him, an hour after the attack, he was still in a state of perfect coma; the convulsion had recurred at short intervals, and had affected chiefly his arms and his face. His face was palc; his pulse was of good strength and a little frequent. He was largely bled from the arm; and an active purgative was given, assisted by a purgative enema, and cold was applied to his head. The convulsions continued for some time to recur with great violence; they then became less severe, and at length ecased about three hours after the attack, leaving him in a state of coma. But the purgative having soon after operated freely, he recovered his recollection. Next day, he complained of headach, and took more purgative medicine; and after a few days more he was in his usual health.

CASE CXXXVIII .- A lady, aged 82, on the morning of Sunday, 8th March, 1818, complained of headach, but went to church. While in church she lost her recollection, talked incoherently, and was brought home with difficulty, being unable to stand. She was still incoherent and partly comatose; and when put to bed was seized with violent convulsion, which affected chiefly her face and the left side of her body. The convulsions recurred frequently, leaving her in the intervals in a state of profound coma, and the left side appeared to be paralytic. The pulse was of good strength, and a little frequent. She was bled to 20 ounces; cold was applied to her head, and an active purgative was given as soon as she could swallow. On the following day there was little change; more purgative medicine was given. On the 10th the coma was diminished, but it was succeeded by much unmanageable restlessness with incoherence and some eonvulsion; pulse 112. More purgative medicine was given; and small doses of the tartrate of antimony seemed to be very beneficial. On the 11th there was little change, but on the 12th she was much improved—began to know her friends, and her pulse was coming down. In a few days more she for several years. Lectic attack in 181

CASE CXXXIX. spare habit, and rathe his recollection; was whither he was going prehend that he was sisted upon getting u then fell down on th him about an hour a in a state of profoun and of good streng became sensible, and head was shaved and relapsed into coma. ounces without any is haring soon after beg du lly relieved; and flaint.

By bloodletting and perhaps properly be sa here the ressels of th general circulation, an Pedicett to the recov resuming their health is removed. But we these evacuations ma propriety, and yet the atalihy action. Hay tions as far as we c relieving the patient, other means we have bute to his relief unde and other external sti eficet, and I think I strong friction of the h tale not much to be re When I saw him, an in a state of perfect recurred at short interrals, us arm, I his face. His listen, the arm; and a red from the arm; and red from the arm; and his he l. The convultes to recur with great violes sever, and at length procure the attack, leaving him procure the attack, leaving soon after last recording. Next day, then, an took more purguire level as more he was in his usual

TAZAPOPERTA

.- 1 dr. og 182 on the morn-7 J. 17 ? amplained of headin I ruh she list her and was brought home - 2 30 stand. She was still and when put to bed it urulei n, which affected e is the of her body. The 1 Mair, Living her in the in-Translers, and the left side The Pass of good The Saw was tied to 20 her heal, and an active s, as she could smallow. On was hele chapte; in to partie On C. Just the coma rais s id it much unmanudit of the state of th M. P. St. Mar. J. St. Mar. And J. D. Per St. Mar. J. Co. M in the little change, mas unite (Manipe). a few days more she was in her usual health, and lived for several years. This lady had also suffered an apoplectic attack in 1814.

CASE CXXXIX.—A man, aged 70, tall and of a spare habit, and rather infirm—10th April, 1815—lost his recollection; walked unsteadily without knowing whither he was going, and could not be made to comprehend that he was ill. He was put to bed, but insisted upon getting up again, staggered a few steps, and then fell down on the floor in perfect apoplexy. I saw him about an hour after the attack, when he was still in a state of profound coma; his pulse a little frequent and of good strength. Being bled to 25 ounces, he became sensible, and took purgative medicine; and his head was shaved and blistered. After three hours he relapsed into coma. He was then bled again to 15 ounces without any immediate relief, but, the purgative having soon after begun to operate briskly, he was gradually relieved: and in a few days was free from complaint.

By bloodletting and the other evacuations, we cannot perhaps properly be said to cure apoplexy; we only relieve the vessels of the brain from the impulse of the general circulation, and thus take off one principal impediment to the recovery, which consists in the vessels resuming their healthy relations after this impediment is removed. But we have every reason to believe, that these evacuations may be earried as far as they can with propriety, and yet that the vessels may not recover their healthy action. Having therefore pushed these evacuations as far as we consider safe or expedient without relieving the patient, our next object is to inquire, what other means we have in our power which may contribute to his relief under these circumstances. Blistering and other external stimulants may perhaps have some effect, and I think I have seen decided benefit from strong friction of the body, but these remedies are perhaps not much to be relied on. There are however two

remedies, which have been at different times strongly contended for in the treatment of apoplexy, and which may come under consideration, at that period or in that condition of the disease which I have now referred to: these are, emeties and internal stimulants. The use of emeties in apoplexy is as old as the days of Aretæus, and they have been employed at different times by physicians of the first eminence, among whom may be mentioned, Etmuller, Sydenliam, Boerhaave, and Lieutaud; and the practice must therefore have some foundation in observation and experience. There can be little doubt that in the early stage of any apoplectic affection, the use of an emetic would be a very hazardous practice, and, at any period of apoplexy with extravasation of blood, it probably would be injurious; but in simple apoplexy, after the system has been reduced by repeated evacuations as far as seems expedient, and yet the eoma has not been removed, it seems very probable that the action of a mild emetic might be heneficial. delicaey of the practice, however, consists in the diffieulty of distinguishing simple apoplexy from apoplexy with extravasation of blood. Nearly the same observations apply to the use of internal stimulants. We must make an important distinction betwixt the action of stimulants in a vigorous and plethoric state of the system, and their action when the system has been reduced by large and repeated evacuations; and I think there are conditions of apoplexy in which stimulants may be used with safety and advantage.

The observations which have now been made, in regard to apoplexy, apply equally to the earlier stages of paralysis. In regard to the more advanced cases, after the immediate effects of the attack have been removed, there are some very interesting points of investigation. Perhaps we have been too much in the habit of believing that paralysis of any considerable standing depends upon a fixed and irremediable disease of the brain. Many cases are on record which tend to shake this opinion. We see recent cases of it completely earried off in a few days; we see others recover more gradually,

so that, in a few weeks or the disease; and in many continued palsy, the patien fection, we find no morbic none adequate to account ald to these facts many sin den recovery from palsy eve A man mentioned by Dr. attack with hemiplegia, rec six weeks, but the lower paralytic. After twelve n improvement, he was one had some degree of motion only a few minutes. Or beadach, and in the night fit, in which the paralytic and after this he had sligh ht returned next day, and left him completely free fro health; he had continued time when the account was similar, though of shorter st of mine. A middle-aged n with hemiplegia and loss of volent exercise in walking Linai practice was employed for a month; the paralytic er idealy convulsed, and wi was gone. In a woman hemiplegia of considerable attack of fever.

A man whose case is me was twenty-three years of out any previous complaint

London Med. Oh

T - APOPLITY.

n + A Trent times strongly

to the apertury and which

t in, at they remoder in that

r ich I harn now referred to;

em I star 'ants. The use f

of as the days of Aretiens,

red at different times by play-

n e. 1 ii. 2 waam mar he men-

10. Dierhaare, and Lieutaud;

artione have some foundation

menco. There can be little

stage of any apoplectic affection,

: 1 l b. a very hizardous prac-

f ap place with extravasation

' 'e m'unious; but in simple

n l, bein reduced by repeated wern expelient, and ret the

v I, it seems very probable that

n is mignt to hereficial. The

Term more in the diffi-

I. V sly he same observa-

fortai st.mulares. We must

work a betwire the action of

s in I per one tate of the sys-

I crow they and I think there

est in which simulants mor be

th have now been made in re-

the Mariet Stages of

(to . area alrunced cases, after

and the part k have been removed,

. The points f investigation.

in to print of poiler.

To albra'de standing depends

in the brills of the triple of the this opin Service State of the service of the so that, in a few weeks or months, there is no trace of the disease; and in many cases, in which, after longcontinued palsy, the patient has died of some other affection, we find no morbid appearance in the brain, or none adequate to account for the disease. add to these facts many singular examples of very sudden recovery from palsy even in cases of long standing. A man mentioned by Dr. Russel,* after an apoplectic attack with hemiplegia, recovered the use of his arm in six weeks, but the lower extremity remained perfectly paralytic. After twelve months, in which he made no improvement, he was one day astonished to find that he had some degree of motion of the leg, but it continued only a few minutes. On the same evening he had headach, and in the night he was seized with a sort of fit, in which the paralytic limb was strongly convulsed, and after this he had slight power of moving it. The fit returned next day, and again in the night, and then left him completely free from paralysis, and in perfect health; he had continued well for eight years at the time when the account was written. A case somewhat similar, though of shorter standing, occurred to a friend of mine. A middle-aged man was suddenly attacked with hemiplegia and loss of speech, while he was using violent exercise in walking quick or running; all the usual practice was employed without any improvement for a month; the paralytic limbs then became one day suddenly convulsed, and when this subsided the paralysis was gone. In a woman, mentioned by Dr. Home, hemiplegia of considerable standing was removed by an attack of fever.†

A man whose case is mentioned by Mr. Squire, thad been liable to convulsions from his childhood till he was twenty-three years of age. The fits then left him, and he enjoyed good health for three years; when, without any previous complaint, except a cold, he suddenly

[·] London Med. Observ. and Enq. vol. i. + Home's Clinical Experiments.

[#] Philosophical Transactions, vol. xlv.

lost his speech. He had no other paralytic symptom, and was otherwise in good health, but continued perfectly speechless for four years. He was in general a man of temperate habits, but having at this time been one evening much intoxicated, he fell from his horse three or four times on his return home, and was at last taken into a house near the road and put to bed. He soon fell asleep, and had a frightful dream, during which, struggling with all his might to call out for help, he did call out, and from that time recovered his speech perfectly. A young woman mentioned by Dr. Watson* had been long liable to severe convulsions, the attacks of which were frequently followed by temporary paralysis of those muscles which had been most severely affected. After one attack she lost her sight entirely for five days. At length, after one of the fits, she lost her speech, and recovered it after a short time; but the convulsion returning soon after, was again followed by loss of speech, and she continued entirely speechless for fourteen months. During this interval she had no return of the convulsion, and was otherwise in good health. Having one evening violently heated herself by dancing for four hours, she recovered her speech, and from that time continued free from complaint. Several cases still more remarkable are related by Diemerbroeck. A woman who had been paralytic from the age of six to forty-four, suddenly recovered the pcrfect use of her limbs, when she was very much terrified during a severe thunder-storm, and was making violent efforts to escape from a chamber in which she had been left alone. A man, who had been many years paralytic, recovered in the same manner when his house was on fire; and another, who had been ill for six years, recovered suddenly in a violent paroxysm of anger.

A remarkable case has been communicated to me of a gentleman, who, after an apoplectic attack lost his sight, and continued about seven years. day out in his carria, and it was found that in drawing, for which the attack.

TREAT

These examples po in regard to paralysis long standing, sometic capable of being rem in an instant; and interesting subject of fections, which of althe most hopeless.

The restoration of gener of the attack entirely a work of n mon description of c absorption of the coa of a more protracted employed, chiefly of a and internal. To the friction, electricity, an tard, ammonia, campl stimulants. All the must be used with a Pethaps the use of th carried on with a gre ral system, at the san by spare living and imagine, is always to of the treatment, ar respectable writers, cases ought to be n this precaution, I thi cases of paralysis in v with much benefit, class are to be prefer mended the fincture

^{*} Philosophical Transactions, vol. i.

⁺ Observat. et Curationes Medicæ. Obs. x.

sight, and continued in a state of perfect blindness for about seven years. After that time, while he was one day out in his carriage, he suddenly recovered his sight; and it was found that he had entirely retained his skill in drawing, for which he had been distinguished before the attack.

These examples point out a most important principle in regard to paralysis, namely, that cases of it, even of long standing, sometimes depend upon a cause which is capable of being removed entirely, and removed almost in an instant; and they direct our attention to a most interesting subject of research in regard to a class of affections, which of all diseases are usually considered as the most hopeless.

The restoration of paralytic limbs, after the first urgency of the attack has been removed, is in many cases entirely a work of nature, and seems, in the most common description of cases, to depend upon the gradual absorption of the coagulum. In the treatment of cases of a more protracted kind, various remedies have been employed, chiefly of a stimulating nature, both external and internal. To the former class belong warm baths, friction, electricity, and galvanism; to the latter, mustard, ammonia, camphor, and nearly the whole class of stimulants. All the remedies of this class, however, must be used with a considerable degree of caution; perhaps the use of them may be more safe, and may be carried on with a greater degree of activity, if the general system, at the same time, be kept in a very low state by spare living and occasional evacuations. This, I imagine, is always to be considered as an essential part of the treatment, and I cannot agree with some most respectable writers, who hold that the diet in paralytic cases ought to be nourishing and restorative. this precaution, I think it probable, that there are many cases of paralysis in which stimulants may be employed with much benefit. I cannot say what remedics of this class are to be preferred. Some have strongly recommended the tincture of Cantharides, others have em-

d n) ther paralytic symptom, . ed al-h. but cratinued perur years. He was in general a s, but having at this time been texterned, he fell from his horse his rath home, and was at last er e had and put to bed. He oal a frightful dream, during all his might to call out for nd from that time recovered his rening w man mentioned by Dr. e to severe convulsions, the ir quently followed by temporary w ich had been most severely artick the lost her eight entirely orth, after one of the fits, she lost r 1 ter a short time; but the so n aler, was again followed by e conuna d'entirely speechless for iring this interval she had no re-- - I was otherwise in good THE TO violently heated herself ours, she recovered her speech, un od free from complaint. Seare to are to ared by Diemer. who had been garalytic from the anddenix recovered the pern' en the was very much terrified rd r.s. rm, and was making tio. -im a hamber in which she had 2. w. had been many years para. Same marger when his hose who had been ill for six deal, in a riolent paroxim of to me of ar an af Perice attack lost bis [W-", 1 1, 10 s.r.

TITAPPETTE.

ployed the balsams, turpentine, mustard, arnica montana, guaiacum, seneka, and various others; also several articles of a narcotic quality, as the Rhus toxicodendron, Aconitum napellus, &c. In Germany, phosphorus is said to have been given internally with advantage; and the favourite remedy lately has been the strichnia. It is apt to occasion convulsion, and the first proposal of the use of it as a remedy, is said to have been founded on the observation, that when paralytic limbs become convulsed, they frequently soon after recover their power. In the most favourable examples, however, that have been given of its efficacy, a long time was required for the recovery; and as we know that a considerable proportion of paralytic limbs recover spontaneously, we must receive very cautiously the statements in regard to the efficacy of any particular remedy. M. Gendrin states, that he has had extensive experience in the use of the strichnia, in all its forms, and the result of his observation is certainly not encouraging. In all his cases it exercised an immediate and powerful influence,—producing a sense of heat and formication in the limbs, and spasmodic contractions, which were, in some cases, general, in others confined to the paralytic limbs. These effects were continued for weeks, and, in most of the cases, were repeated several times, but no diminution of the palsy was observed in any of them. Emetics have been recommended; also iodine and mercury pushed to salivation. Mr. Wardrop has described a singular case of eighteen months standing, which scemed to derive benefit from tickling the parts with a feather; it recovered in two months. M. Gross mentions a cure by stinging with nettles; and Celsus seems to have employed a similar practice. In the treatment of paralytic limbs, however, we can expect to do nothing, unless the cause be removed; and their recovery, after the cause has been removed, is chiefly to be regarded as the work of nature. As auxiliaries, it is probable, that, in general, we can employ nothing better than much dry friction, and particularly persevering exercise

of the limbs them the slightest degree capable of it.*

For a variety of per of apoplesy and a Nerrous Disease arrentine, mustard, arres mon-1. I ranous others; also serem! ity, as the Raus locicodendron, ? In Germany, phosphorus is n _ with advantage; and

er as Gen the stricknia. It and the first proposal of y, is id to have been founded two notalistic limbs become or nafter recover their far trabe examples, however, t is efficacy, a ing time was ry; and as we know that a conoralytic links recover spontanvery cauti usly the statements

ENT PAPIPLETY.

| | extensive experience in i, a. s f rms, and the result ra, voos encouragios. In all ate and powerful ine i heat and fermication in opportunes, which were, in ers en ned to the paralytic re connued for weeks, and, in re 11 several times, but no

was served in any of them.

v of any perticular remedy. M.

en ed; also i line and mer. Mr. Wardrin has described n m 18 standios, which in m ticking the parts with a a we maths. M. Gross meawho ne less, and Colsus seems or proof ee. In the treatment Y I. W can expect to do nothing, r d is chieff to be regarded As aux. aries it is probable, an e fr nahing fetter than of the limbs themselves, as soon as they have recovered the slightest degree of motion which shall make them capable of it.*

* For a variety of important matter relating to the whole subject of apoplexy and palsy, see the learned work of Dr. Cooke, "on Nervous Diseases and on Palsy."

APPENDIX

TO

PART SECOND.

CONJECTURES IN REGARD TO THE CIRCULATION IN THE BRAIN.

In our preceding investigations on the pathology of apoplexy, every attention has been paid to confine the observations that were offered, to a direct induction from the facts which were before us. Nearly connected with these investigations, however, there are certain views relating to the circulation in the brain, which perhaps may be regarded as legitimate conjectures. I place them in this manner distinct from the other parts of the inquiry, because they cannot be considered as

entirely divested of hypothesis.

When a person previously in good health falls down suddenly in a state of perfect apoplexy, and when, the appropriate treatment being promptly applied, this person is speedily restored to perfect health, it is impossible not to feel the deep interest of the inquiry,—what the state of the brain was which produced symptoms of so formidable a kind, and yet was so speedily and so entirely removed? If the patient shall die after lying for a considerable time in a state of perfect coma, and we cannot discover in his brain the smallest deviation from the healthy structure, we feel in no small degree the increasing interest of the inquiry. It is probable that the source of these remarkable derangements in the

ON THE CIRCULATIO

brain, in as far as it is within for in an interruption of the to exist betwixt the arterial brain. On this subject the which appear to result from ture of the head, and which organ in the body.

The facts, on which this founded, are derived from the in animals which have been such eases, all the other orga found completely blanched brain has in general presen appearance, and, in some c veins have even been found one writer has proposed the have been hled to death, o able and most satisfactory are those of the late Dr. K animals bled to death under The brain in most of these appearance, its blood-ressels others, the appearances were one, the sinuses were loaded vessels of the pia mater were blood. In another, the sinus the reins of the pia mater choroid plexus was remark only of the examples it is r the brain contained sensibly other cases, and in all of the serous effusion. On the ot timents were repeated on opening had been made in the brain was found as my

Transactions of the Med burgh, vol. Besides the expension for a safety declaration for a second to the second transaction for a second transaction

brain, in as far as it is within our reach, is to be sought for in an interruption of the due relations which ought to exist betwixt the arterial and venous systems of the brain. On this subject there are certain principles which appear to result from peculiarities in the structure of the head, and which do not apply to any other

organ in the body.

The facts, on which this investigation is primarily founded, are derived from the appearance of the brain in animals which have been bled to death. While in such cases, all the other organs of the body have been found completely blanched or drained of blood, the brain has in general presented in this respect its usual appearance, and, in some cases, the superficial eerebral veins have even been found in so distended a state, that one writer has proposed the paradox, that animals which have been bled to death, die of apoplexy. The most able and most satisfactory observations on this subject are those of the late Dr. Kellie of Lcith, " made upon animals bled to death under a variety of circumstances. The brain in most of these cases, presented its usual appearance, its blood-vessels being well filled; while in others, the appearances were still more remarkable. In one, the sinuses were loaded with dark blood, and the vessels of the pia mater were delicately filled with florid blood. In another, the sinuses were loaded with blood, the veins of the pia mater were well filled, and the choroid plexus was remarkably turgid. In a very few only of the examples it is remarked, that the vessels of the brain contained sensibly less rcd blood than in the other cases, and in all of these there was observed some serous effusion. On the other hand, when these experiments were repeated on other animals after a small opening had been made in the cranium by the trephine, the brain was found as much drained of blood as any

PPENDIX

TRECOND.

FGARD TO THE CIRCULATION IN THE BRAIN.

then has been paid to confine the ore offered, to a direct induction may be reas. Nearly connected as however, there are certain being in the brain, which is a latimate conjectures. I have connected as her cannot be considered as her cannot be considered

their according to the individual of the individ

[•] Transactions of the Medico-Chirurgical Society of Edinburgh, vol. i. Besides the experiments alluded to, I refer to this valuable communication for a variety of most interesting facts and speculations in regard to the whole of this curious subject.

other part of the body. Dr. Kellie adds to these experiments, an account of observations which he made along with Dr. Monro, on the brains of two men that had been hanged. On dividing the scalp, in these eases, the blood flowed in such quantities as to afford ample proof of the eongestion in the vessels exterior to the eranium, but nothing unusual was observed in the brain. "The sinuses contained blood, but in no extraordinary quantity; the larger vessels on the surface, and betwixt the eonvolutions, were but moderately filled, and the pia mater was, upon the whole, paler and less vascular than we often find it in ordinary eases."—To these important facts I have only to add another of a very interesting nature, mentioned by M. Gendrin. With the assistance of M. Beelard, he examined minutely the brains of two persons who had been put to death by decapitation; and they were both greatly astonished at the turgid state of the eerebral vessels, which they had expected to find empty.

These remarkable facts lead our attention to certain peculiarities in the structure of the head, to which they may probably be traced in a very satisfactory manner. The eranium is a complete sphere of bone, which is exactly filled by its contents, the brain, and by which the brain is closely shut up from atmospheric pressure, and from all influence from without except what is communieated through the blood-vessels which enter it. In an organ so situated, it is probable, that the quantity of blood eireulating in its vessels eannot be materially increased, unless something give way to make room for the additional quantity, because the eavity is already eompletely full; and it is probable, that the quantity eannot be materially diminished, unless something entered to supply the space which would become vacant. In this investigation it is unnecessary to introduce the question, whether the brain is compressible, because we may safely assert that it is not compressible by any such force as can be conveyed to it from the heart through the earotid and vertebral arteries. Upon the whole then I think we may assume the position as being in

ON THE CIRCULATION

the highest degree probable of the parts, no material absolute quantity of blood the brain.

But the blood circulating divided in a certain ratio be of the brain; and it is pro ce this organ will depend u the circulation in these two pose a case in which more blood was accumulated in t effect would be a correspon because the whole mass of the supposition, remain th a derangement of the eirc car in any other part of the other organ so situated cautious, however, of spec to avoid falling into error with attempting to trace, in various ways by which, in derangements of circulation

I. Let us suppose a very in which the general race more than the average or The arteries going to the he ral condition, and there which tends to propel an the arteries of the brain. whole quantity of blood i I ace, because the ressels the constant impulse will an additional quantity, an range the healthy relation venous systems; for any i Tetem could not take pl diminution of the quantity for example, that the wh ly. Dr. Kellie adds to these exf . erratina which he made . In the brains of two men that n I vi ling the scarp, in these cases, 1 h quantines as to afford ample 1, the ressels exterior to the 1. Dan was observed in the brain. ord, it in no extraordinary ssees on the surface, and betwirt but moderately filled, and the 10 wh 1: palet and less vascular t in ordinary cases."-To these on'v to add another of a very sentioned by M. Gendrin, With , who had been put to death by th greatly astonished at · c re ra ressels, which they had

CALL STATE BEAUTY

feel our attention to certain . 170 of the head, to which they I n a very satisfactory manner, e spece of 'ne, which is exonts, the brain, and by which the in in a mosphesic pressure, and Lit out excelt what is commu-1 Tesses which enter it. In d. it is probable, that the quantity in its resses cannot be materially n. 1917 - give way to make room for Legause the carity is already I it is proba e, that the quantity of the profit miss something en-- 5 mp. 7 ming pecome racant Macressart to introduce the . In 18 compressible perance me n conpressible by any such in the heart through The first have been in armanine file pisiti d as being in

the highest degree probable, that, in the ordinary state of the parts, no material change can take place in the absolute quantity of blood circulating in the vessels of the brain.

But the blood circulating in these vessels must be divided in a certain ratio betwixt the arteries and veins of the brain; and it is probable that the healthy state of this organ will depend upon the nice adjustment of the circulation in these two systems. If we could suppose a case in which more than the usual quantity of blood was accumulated in the one system, the necessary effect would be a corresponding diminution in the other, because the whole mass of blood in the brain must, by the supposition, remain the same. Hence would arise a derangement of the circulation, such as could not occur in any other part of the body, because there is no other organ so situated as the brain. We must be cautious, however, of speculating where it is difficult to avoid falling into error, and must satisfy ourselves with attempting to trace, in a very general manner, the various ways by which, in such an organ as the brain, derangements of circulation may be supposed to take place.

I. Let us suppose a very plethoric state of the body, in which the general vascular system is loaded with more than the average or healthy quantity of blood. The arteries going to the head will partake of this general condition, and there will be an effort or impulse which tends to propel an undue quantity of blood into the arteries of the brain. Though no addition to the whole quantity of blood in the brain can actually take place, because the vessels of the brain are already full, the constant impulse will be such as tends to introduce an additional quantity, and consequently tends to derange the healthy relation betwixt the arterial and venous systems; for any increase of quantity in the one system could not take place without a corresponding diminution of the quantity in the other. Let us say, for example, that the whole blood circulating in the

of probability; and it appears we can make towards a distinct dition to which we give the m

rain.

ON THE CIRCULATION

II. If there be any conside return of the blood from the v rangement will take place very posed under the former head. which is actually returned by the diminished, there will be a corr the quantities which can enter t impulse from the general circu in reference to the actual state brain in this case, what the un other. But I forbear from urg such a derangement as we had take place from causes retarding from the head, such as tumors of affections of the heart and lungs; cake place, it might give rise to s sample apoplexy.

Two plats, however, may be regard to the parts of this specular the two preceding heads. (1.) as his been supposed, really took system of the brain, it would foll from the general circulation would introduce into the arteries of the l oil, od than could actually ente rould be an increased flow of bi remels of the head, and there are te I to show that something of the take place in the apopleotic attack the face, turnility of the features, total results and other appearan referred to the doctrine of determ Namerous writers have remarked f blood which is discharged from

cairg the heads of persons who i

brain is as ten, and that it is divided between the arteries and veins as five to five. In the loaded state of the system now referred to, we can suppose a case, in which, by some sudden impulse from the general eirculation, the arteries of the brain are, at a particular moment, distended by a quantity as six. In any other part of the body, this would be followed by a similar distention of the corresponding veins, and the healthy balance of the circulation would be speedily restored. But in the brain the very reverse would happen; for as the whole mass of blood must continue as ten, if the arteries were thus distended by a quantity as six, the quantity in the veins must be, by the same impulse, diminished to four, because the increased capacity in the one system of vessels, can be gained only by an instant and corresponding diminution of capacity in the other. The result of the condition so produced would be the following. The arteries of the brain would contain a quantity of blood as six, while the veins would contain and could transmit a quantity only as four. The quantity transmitted by the veins would then be the measure of the quantity that could enter the arteries from the general circulation, namely, a quantity as four. But the impulse from the general circulation would be such as tended to introduce a quantity as six, supposing the continuance of the undue impulse from which the disease originated, or a quantity as five, supposing the impulse to have subsided to the state of health. In either case the impulse would be such as tended to introduce a greater quantity than could enter, and consequently to keep up the deranged state of the cerebral vessels which had The farther result of this would be, an taken place. increased flow of blood into the external vessels of the head, producing probably flushing, turgidity of features, and other marks of increased determination to the external parts. I am aware that this is hypothetical and eonjectural; but, from the nature of the subject, our speculations respecting it must ever remain so. Various faets have been stated, and others remain to be mentioned, which give the conjecture a considerable degree

to a cric d terrosa the arte-. In the leade i state of the . Terra . Pose acce in which, n .. (3 juticular moment, . . In any other part of ... I by a simila distension t, and tel althy bacance of is restored. But in the The ta; icr as the whole . 3 t n. if the atteries were as six, the quantity in the Le 1 17 1.50 diminished to four, cacty in the one system of lar by an instant and correan City in the ther. The result I walt he the following. will entain a quantity of while the and could , r es l'ur. Le quantity transbe the measure of the 1 f 'e ar nes firm the general ratur. But the impulse n wull be such as tended to . , y Z, s-73 y no che continuance The dispass on manded, to have In et et case the inin a plad to introduce a reater I april and consequently to keep up the cite and resease which had t large result of this would be, an the external reservation of the de unitary of features, Tast determination to the exter, re Lat this is a transferred and mere Las this is appurarious and parties of the subject our martine of the subject our martines. Starte Femaling to the men. 115 7 C.D. State of Godes

TO A N DA LIBE BENTA

of probability; and it appears to be the nearest approach we can make towards a distinct conception of that condition to which we give the name of congestion in the brain.

II. If there be any considerable interruption to the return of the blood from the veins of the brain, a derangement will take place very analogous to that supposed under the former head. If the quantity of blood which is actually returned by the veins be considerably diminished, there will be a corresponding diminution of the quantities which can enter the arteries. The healthy impulse from the general circulation will then become, in reference to the actual state of the circulation in the brain in this ease, what the undue impulse was in the other. But I forbcar from urging the inquiry, whether such a derangement as we have now supposed might take place from causes retarding the return of blood from the head, such as tumors on the neck, and certain affections of the heart and lungs; and whether, if it did take place, it might give rise to symptoms analogous to simple apoplexy.

Two points, however, may be briefly alluded to in regard to the parts of this speculation referred to under the two preceding heads. (1.) If such a derangement, as has been supposed, really took place in the vaseular system of the brain, it would follow, that the impetus from the general circulation would be such as tended to introduce into the arteries of the brain a larger quantity of blood than could actually enter. One effect of this would be an increased flow of blood into the external vessels of the head, and there are various facts which tend to show that something of this kind does actually take place in the apoplectic attack,—as the flushing of the face, turgidity of the features, throbbing of the external vessels, and other appearances which have been referred to the doctrine of determination to the head. Numerous writers have remarked the unusual quantity of blood which is discharged from the integuments, in opening the heads of persons who have died of apoplexy. In some of Dr. Cheyne's dissections, upwards of a pound was collected in this manner; and Dr. Kellie made the same observation on the two men whom he examined after execution. Mr. John Bell remarks, that having injected the head of a person who died of an affection of the brain, he found the features so distorted by the injection, the lips so protruded, and all the superficial vessels so much enlarged, as to make the preparation The remarkable turgidity of the features and of the neck, which often occurs in apoplectic cases, must indeed be familiar to every one; and it appears to be most remarkable when the disease has proved rapidly fatal, without any means having been employed. gentleman, whom I saw with Mr. Whyte, after some symptoms showing an apoplectic tendency, was one morning found dead in bed, his body being scarcely His neck and features were of a deep purple colour, and turgid in a most uncommon degree, but no turgidity was observed in the vessels of the brain. (2.) Upon the grounds already referred to, there is reason to believe, that we cannot, by our cvacuations, diminish in any material degree the quantity of blood But if these conjectures shall be consiin the head. dered worthy of any credit, it will appear probable, that the effect of our evacuations will be to take off from the cerebral vessels, the excessive impulse from the general circulation, or even to reduce it below what would now be considered as a healthy impetus, and thus to leave the vessels of the brain in a state favourable for recovering their healthy relations.

III. A similar derangement might be supposed to take place from causes which directly diminish the capacity of the venous system of the brain. If a depression has been produced of a portion of bone, so as considerably to encroach upon the cavity of the eranium, or if a coagulum of blood has been deposited, so as to occupy a considerable space upon the surface of the brain, the diminution of space thus produced would probably affect chiefly or entirely the venous system of

ON THE CIRCULATION

the brain, the veins being and more immediately exameries. It would not time which tends to enter the awould diminish in proportion of the veins, and thus derang two systems of vessels, in a convict has been supposed un analogous in its effects upon twelves, in the former of the depressed portion of bone has systems recover their health toms disappear.

It is probable that a caus smaller degree, in which it nent interruption of the circ give rise to derangement wi increase of impetus in the ei of these essays. I have descr which a tumor, formed by minæ of the dura mater, occ on the surface of the brain. little inconvenience from it when in motion, he was hab! tic nature, from which he re A gentleman, mentioned b suffered from hemicrania, n 50 with intense pain in the an attack of apoplexy, from ed; but from this time he ! or twice every month. I lowing autumn and winter, in one of the attacks, Ur frentis, the membranes wer nected with the thickened Justine on the surface of the tuese, it is probable, that, w very tranquil state, or when Lis Jeen reduced by evacual brain goes on in a healthe the brain, the veins being in general more superficial, and more immediately exposed to the pressure, than the arteries. It would not diminish the quantity of blood which tends to enter the arteries of the head, but it would diminish in proportion to its extent the capacity of the veins, and thus derange the relations betwixt the two systems of vessels, in a different manner from that which has been supposed under the former heads, but analogous in its effects upon the circulation in the brain. When, in the former of the cases now supposed, the depressed portion of bone has been elevated, the two systems recover their healthy relations, and the symptoms disappear.

It is probable that a cause of this kind may exist in a smaller degree, in which it shall not produce any permanent interruption of the circulation in the brain, but may give rise to derangement when there is any occasional increase of impetus in the circulation. In the first part of these essays, I have described a remarkable case, in which a tumor, formed by deposition betwixt the laminæ of the dura mater, occupied a considerable space on the surface of the brain. The patient had experienced little inconvenience from it when he was at rest, but, when in motion, he was liable to attacks of an apoplectic nature, from which he recovered in a few minutes. A gentleman, mentioned by Lancisi, who had long suffered from hemicrania, was seized about the age of 50 with intense pain in the temple, and soon after had an attack of apoplexy, from which he speedily recovered; but from this time he had an apoplectic attack once or twice every month. This went on through the following autumn and winter, and he at last died suddenly in one of the attacks. Under the right side of the os frontis, the membranes were much thickened, and, conneeted with the thickened portion there was a kind of polypus on the surface of the brain. In cases such as these, it is probable, that, when the circulation is in a very tranquil state, or when the general mass of blood has been reduced by evacuations, the circulation in the brain goes on in a healthy manner; but that any in-

s its In Chile brilli. If a depres Tipi Pytin (f bone so as is a to exact of the transme, . I has been deposited, so as to and the attract the ny rue F now instead of

LON I . ILE BUVIN

s . et.ops upwards of a pound

; al Dr. Ke lie made the

Ir. John Lell remarks, that having

a pers n who died of an affection

11 . h · 15 so distorted by the

or med and all the superficial

. 1 is to make the preparation

turg lity of the features and

'n cur in apopicetic cases, must

reff ne; and it appears to be

n the di ase has proved rapidly

m and having be a employed. A

or with Mr. Whyte, after some

a. a p. ctic tendency, was one

i . . . o l, his body being scarcely

i il ma'ures were da deep purple

. . . st uncompon degree, but no

The restals of the brain.

tends re red to, there is

the national data of the sacrations,

er and p quantity of blood

· h se un tures shall be consi-

r fr, it will appear probable, that

..... will be in take off from the

To serve impulse from the general

t : lup it helon what would now

be in impage, and thus to leave

and in a serie faroundly for recover.

i min temposed to

see al a free of diminsh the

crease of the quantity of the blood, or any considerable increase of its impetus, leads to the derangement. It is probable that similar affections might be traced to causes diminishing the area of the sinuses, or of the principal veins of the brain; and I have formerly mentioned some remarkable cases, in which frequent attacks of an apoplectic and paralytic nature appeared to be connected with extensive disease of the arteries of the brain. Facts are wanting on this interesting subject; but many cases are on record in which an individual has suffered in a few years fifteen or twenty apoplectic attacks, without experiencing in the intervals any bad effects from them. Minute attention to such cases may probably lead to results calculated to throw much light upon the pathology of apoplexy.

IV. There are many interesting facts which lead us to believe, that the circulation in the brain may be deranged in a manner remarkably different from any of the preceding cases. Let us suppose that the general volume of blood in the body is very much diminished. The effect of this upon each individual artery is, that its calibre is contracted, and that it acts upon the veins with which it is connected with diminished momentum. The arteries of the brain will partake of the general state of the system, so that the quantity of blood transmitted to the head will be diminished in the same ratio. But while this change is going on, a corresponding accumulation would probably be taking place in the veins, because the whole quantity in the head must continue nearly the same. Upon this increased mass of blood in the veins, the volume in the arteries would now act with a correspondingly diminished and inadequate impetus. It is probably in this manner that there arises the appearance of congestion in the superficial veins of the brain, which has been observed in animals that have bled to death; and many curious facts occur to us in practice, which appear to be referable to a derangement of the circulation in the brain, which can only be accounted for in this manner. I shall relate ON THE CIRCULATI

some of these facts without A gentleman, aged abou time losing considerable qu hemorrhage from the rectui ly hæmorrboida!, be had par his friends became alarmed From being strong and rathe weak, exhausted, pale and I of his legs,—his pulse was fr excited by the least exertion toms, he was liable to stron heart, and complained of violent throbbing in the he bing headach. On exam tumor was found within th which a small artery was was fied, and there was no and under the use of nou a owance of wine, all his of He made up so rapidly in fle Fer. apprehensions were e Cming too plethoric, and it Lis regimen, but under these return of the symptoms in hi A lady, aged twenty-five ra account of symptoms in vened upon an injury. Con ed each bleeding; but the so as to lead to a repetiti in ervals, and this had been Whin I saw her, she was ises of the most death-lik raieness of a stucco figure, small as a thread, her gener mass of blood appeared to Point that was compatible pained of frequent headae heal, confusion and giddin cracuations could be carried A. . 13 THE BRAIN.

Fi 1, or any considerable erangergens. It is

nor in the to acses

cases, or of the principal

of the property of the some

in it arm as of an apo-

of red to be connected

. the brain. Facts

thought of court any cases

in a suffered in a

of the ameks, without

as any bad effects from them.

i ca . m v proba ly lead to

w much light upon the path).

n' s'prilects which lead us

r in to bain mar be de-

reit'r iffere fr nang of

e es sin e inat le general

is is not much din missed.

"r.du I retery is, that its

that it arts upon the reins

two dimensional percentum.

A of I make of the general

the standings.

in A din the same ratio.

S - 12 of, a Mrs. roughing

Paint play in the

, their is the real must

The state of the s

"we in it's Letter and i

The second

The same of the same

the spectral

in alimit;

al security de facts of the

some of these facts without indulging farther in specu-

A gentleman, aged about forty, had been for some time losing considerable quantities of blood by arterial hæmorrhage from the rectum. Considering it as merely hæmorrhoidal, he had paid little attention to it, until his friends became alarmed by his altered appearance. From being strong and rather plethorie, he had become weak, exhausted, pale and haggard. He had anasarca of his legs,-his pulse was frequent and feeble, and much excited by the least exertion. Along with these symptoms, he was liable to strong and irregular action of the heart, and complained of giddiness, tinnitus aurium, violent throbbing in the head, and frequently of throbbing headach. On examining his rectum, a fungous tumor was found within the sphineter, on the apex of which a small artery was bleeding per saltum. This was tied, and there was no return of the hæmorrhage; and under the use of nourishing dict, and a liberal allowance of wine, all his other complaints disappeared. He made up so rapidly in flesh and blood, that not long after, apprehensions were entertained that he was becoming too plethorie, and it became necessary to reduce his regimen, but under these circumstances he had no return of the symptoms in his head.

A lady, aged twenty-five, had been frequently bled on account of symptoms in the head which had supervened upon an injury. Considerable relief had followed caeh bleeding; but the symptoms had soon returned so as to lead to a repetition of the bleeding at short intervals, and this had been going on for several months. When I saw her, she was stretched upon a couch, her face of the most death-like paleness, or rather of the paleness of a stuceo figure, her pulse very rapid and as small as a thread, her general weakness extreme. mass of blood appeared to be reduced to the lowest point that was compatible with life, but she still complained of frequent headach, violent throbbing in the head, confusion and giddiness. It was evident that evacuations could be carried no farther, and, in consultation with a very intelligent medical man who had the charge of her, it was agreed as a last experiment to make trial of the opposite system, nourishing diet and tonics. In a fortnight she was restored to very tolerable health.

Under similar circumstances a friend of mine was called to visit a lady who had suffered from long-continued uterine hæmorrhage. Her general aspect was that of great exhaustion, but she complained so much of throbbing in the head, that her medical attendants were treating her by evacuations and very spare diet. She was restored by nourishment and wine and as she recovered strength, the feelings in her head entirely

disappeared.

I have been repeatedly consulted under the following circumstances. A gentleman accustomed to very full living, is seized with an apoplectic attack, or with symptoms indicating the most urgent danger of apoplexy; he is saved by bleeding and other free evacuations, and is kept for some time upon a very spare dict. His complaints are relieved, and as long as he keeps quictly at home, he goes on without any uncasy feeling. But when he begins to go abroad, he becomes liable to attacks of giddiness and confusion, generally accompanied by palpitation of the heart and an uneasy feeling about the præcordia. His pulse is now soft and rather weak, and his general appearance indicates the very reverse of plethora; and these symptoms are removed by a cautious improvement of his regimen. This curious fact I have repeatedly had occasion to attend to in the treatment of cases of this kind, and it has always appeared to me to be one of very great interest in reference to the pathology of the brain.

Various other facts will present themselves to the practical physician, which bear upon this curious subject. In the last stage of diseases of exhaustion, patients frequently fall into a state resembling coma, a considerable time before death, and while the pulse can still be felt distinctly; and I have many times seen children lie for a day or two in this kind of stupor, and

recover under the use of wine often searcely to be distinguish accompanies diseases of the after some continuance of exha tedions and neglected diarrhæs a state of insensibility, the pupi and insensible, the face pale, at may cominue for a day or two ably, or it may be fatal. This i respond with the apoplexia ex writers. It differs from synco ally, and in continuing a cons day or two; and it is not, like den and temporary causes, hui haustion going on for a confrom mere exhaustion, in the sense and motion, while the pr and is in some cases of tolerable in adults the same affection, th uncommon than in children. ranced in life, in consequence o fell into a state closely resembli and collapsed, but his pulse of elderly lady from the same cau and squinting. Both these co and oplates; in the former, bli also employed. Richter states produced by harn triage, chole and he mentions particularly became blind when the fluid aldimen by tapping. On t shall at present only aild the f tration from an affection of about 30 years of age, came tance for advice in regard to ferred chiefly to the stomach, to a state of extreme weaking the delifity had advanced, he deaf, and when I saw him he The state of the

J. J. H. J. EZ. (1987) service and

the a first finine was

Can the Car

· It Town a state was

it is a med so much

t, creini attendants

. . at I very spare diet.

A T I I WE WIND S

to sister al entreiv

on their te diet. His

the resolution of their

- pro vy feeling. But

ile to at-

rea confapied

. In Tray the intaling

now ser an rather weak.

The field of reverse of

. . . C re tel. vil by a cau.

This curius fiet I

. . to early to the treat-

1 - 11 : a miss a period

- - sort it marines to the

h r r r n i got our sub-

Pin Sent Mantelle Pe

A Charles of Charles

L. Spinson

two miles in the second

recover under the use of wine and nourishment. It is often scarcely to be distinguished from the coma which accompanies diseases of the brain. It attacks them after some continuance of exhausting diseases, such as tedious and neglected diarrhea; and the patients lie in a state of insensibility, the pupils dilated, the eyes open aud insensible, the face pale, and the pulse feeble. It may coutinue for a day or two and terminate favourably, or it may be fatal. This affection appears to correspond with the apoplexia ex inanitione of the older writers. It differs from syncope in coming on gradually, and in continuing a considerable time, perhaps a day or two; and it is not, like syncope, induced by sudden and temporary causes, but by causes of gradual exhaustion going on for a considerable time. It differs from mere exhaustion, in the complete abolition of sense and motion, while the pulse can be felt distinctly, and is in some cases of tolerable strength. I have seen in adults the same affection, though it is perhaps more uncommon than in children. A man considerably advanced in life, in consequence of a neglected diarrhea, fell into a state closely resembling coma; his face pale and collapsed, but his pulse of tolerable strength. An elderly lady from the same cause, had loss of memory and squinting. Both these cases recovered by wine and opiates; in the former, blistering on the neck was also employed. Richter states that amaurosis has been produced by hæmorrhage, cholera, and tedious diarrhæa; and he mentions particularly a dropsical woman, who became blind when the fluid was evacuated from her abdomen by tapping. On this interesting subject, I shall at present only add the following remarkable illustration from an affection of hearing. A gentleman, about 30 years of age, came to Edinburgh from a distance for advice in regard to an obscure affection, referred chiefly to the stomach, which had reduced him to a state of extreme weakness and emaciation. As the debility had advanced, he had become considerably deaf, and when I saw him he was affected in the folowing manner. He was very deaf while sitting erect or standing, but, when he lay horizontally, with his head very low, he heard perfectly. If, when standing, he stooped forward so as to produce flushing of his face, his hearing was perfect, and, upon raising himself again into the erect posture, he continued to hear distinctly as long as the flushing continued; as this went off the deafness returned.

Upon the whole, it seems highly probable that a eertain balance of the circulation of the brain is necessary for the healthy condition of its functions; that they are equally impeded by the interruption which takes place in apoplexy, and the diminished impulse which oceurs in syncope and in many affections of extreme exhaustion; and that there is a remarkable similarity in the symptoms which occur in these opposite conditions. What indeed is syneope, but an abolition of sense and motion? It is preceded by giddiness, tinnitus aurium, and impaired vision, and is accompanied by blindness, dilated pupil, perfect insensibility, and not unfrequently passes into convulsion. It differs then from apoplexy, chiefly or entirely in the state of the general circulation, the symptoms accompanying the two affections being remarkably similar, and the effect upon the sensorial functions almost entirely the same.

Here however some questions occur: If the circulation in the brain be so nicely and so peculiarly balanced, why is it not seriously deranged by the numerous ehanges which are constantly occurring amid the variety of circumstances to which the body is exposed? Why is not apoplexy produced by every increase in the mass of blood, or why is it not excited by every instance of intemperance, violent exercise, or strong mental emotion? Is there any provision by which the effects of these causes are averted in their daily occurrence, though in a certain condition of the system, each of them may be capable of producing perfect apoplexy? It seems probable that there are several circumstances in the anatomy of the head which contribute to this important end, but I shall merely allude to them with-

one is, that all the the head through continued the head through continued the head through continued the head through considerable sudden impulse of blood, an external branches. Hence turgidity of the features, and ressels, which often occur in tion in the brain follows. Assems to contribute to the sliar structure of the sinuses at all times must contain the venous blood of the brain the tenous blood of the brain the sinuses.

CN THE CHICTLATTO

ments of the circulation w the preceding speculations, ated as the brain is, must from very slight causes.

structure it seems probab

have their area either inc

considerable degree. This

TATE OF THE BRAIN. n he ly h tiz tally, with his at of A.T. If, when standing, as to produce flushing of his face, et. . . l. abon raising himself again Le continued to hear distinctly contraed; as this went off the the highly probable that a at the brain is neces. a of its functions; that they of the interruption which takes It e aim nished impulse which in many affections of extreme t tere is a remarkable similarity h cur in these opposite condiis in re, but an ab lition of li is preceded by gidliness, tinred visi a, and is accompanied real post representative, and . ; ; o envulsion. It differs r entirely in the state of r proms accompanying mark bly similar, and the to soccur. If the circulay and an peculiarly balanced, delt the low the numerous or y ocur ing amid the nbihtebly sesposed? I he every forcesse in the to the training by every int excluse of string . . . r - ror via by which the Ta lin dally eccur. A STATE CONTROL CONTRO pr. 1 or 7 Perfert apoplet? ore serera croundstance e beed it is entitled to the in the state to their rich

out entering upon the speculations to which they might lead. Onc is, that all the arteries of the brain enter the head through continued canals of bone. These appear to have considerable influence in arresting any sudden impulse of blood, and in directing it off to the external branches. Hence the flushing of the face, turgidity of the features, and throbbing of the external vessels, which often occur in such cases, while no affection in the brain follows. Another circumstance, which seems to contribute to the same purpose, is the peculiar structure of the sinuses of the dura mater. at all times must contain a considerable proportion of the venous blood of the brain, and from their peculiar structure it seems probable that they are not liable to have their area either increased or diminished in any considerable degree. This remarkable structure must operate very considerably in preventing those derangements of the circulation which have been referred to in the preceding speculations, and which, in an organ situated as the brain is, must otherwise have taken place from very slight causes.

PART III.

OF THE ORGANIC DISEASES OF THE BRAIN.

By organic diseases of the brain we understand, either permanent changes of the eerebral substance itself, or new formations within the head. These may be either embedded in the substance of the brain, or attached to its surface. The principal forms under which we meet with these affections may probably be referred to the following heads:—

I. Tumors formed by thickening of the membranes of the brain, or by deposition of new matter betwixt their laminæ. Of this I have already given a very remarkable example, (Case VI.) in which a tumor five inches long, three inches broad, and half an inch in thickness, was formed in this manner by a deposition of new matter betwixt the laminæ of the dura mater.

II. Deposition of a pellueid or semi-pellucid substance having the characters of albumen. This may either be formed in undefined masses under the membranes of the brain, particularly under the arachnoid, as in Case XCII., or contained in distinct cysts in various parts of the brain, as in the Cases XC. and XCI. The substance which is deposited in these cases coagulates into a firm mass in the heat of boiling water. It is met with in various degrees of consistency, and there is some reason to believe that it undergoes remarkable

CELANIC DISE

changes in density, assum class of its progress. actific, and exhibiting writes of coagulated album tear to be covered by any which grew on the falx are iches in circumfere lated albumen. The re case was, that no ur, Lungs of this kind som sarface of the dura mater izequently known to pro and to rise externally w Lad, so as to be mistak ilis kind are mentioned s me of them, the distance excited by injuries; and i Lare accelerated the proc LE 115 way through the have deed fashly meddle ST. La. P been the case Itsentile those of this c attached to the chor id each lateral ventricle, the 1 an who died suddenly le je attacks at long i s are time effected wit

1V. Tumors externally present a reddish or flesh co ci the kidner. These are the will be described the

changes in density, assuming a firmer texture in certain

stages of its progress.

III. A very dense tumor, of a uniform whitish or ash colour, and exhibiting the appearance and the properties of eoagulated albumen. This substance is found in distinct rounded tumors of various sizes, which are generally attached to the dura mater, and do not appear to be covered by any eyst. I have described one which grew on the falx in Case LXXXVII., nearly five inches in circumference, and uniformly white and firm in its consistence; it did not appear to be organized, and when analyzed exhibited the properties of coagulated albumon. The remarkable circumstance in this case was, that no urgent symptoms arose from the presence of this mass until a few weeks before death. Tumors of this kind sometimes arise from the external surface of the dura mater; in this case they have been frequently known to produce absorption of the bone, and to rise externally under the integuments of the head, so as to be mistaken for wens. Many eases of this kind are mentioned by the French writers. In some of them, the disease seems to have been originally. excited by injuries; and in others, an injury appears to have accelerated the process by which the tumor was making its way through the bone. When these tumors have been rashly meddled with by incision, death has generally been the consequence. Small tumors which resemble those of this class, are sometimes met with attached to the choroid plexus. I have seen one in caeh lateral ventricle, the size of small hazel nuts, in a man who died suddenly after having had repeated epileptic attacks at long intervals, and having been for some time affected with symptoms threatening apoplexy.

IV. Tumors externally resembling those of the former class, but internally presenting an organized appearance, and a reddish or flesh-colour, resembling the substance of the kidney. These are met with in various situations; one will be described, the size of an egg, which grew from the tentorium. The two appearances, described

A III.

DISEASES OF THE

a w understand, either
te rand states itself, or
line may be either
it in, or attached to
let which we meet
'a' y be referred to the

the membranes we matter betwind we matter betwind the winds a run of the winds at time the winds at it is at it

under this and the former heads, seem to include the most common characters of what may be properly called tumors of the brain. Steatomatous and fatty tumors are likewise described, but they appear to be more uncommon.

V. Tubereular disease. Of this very frequent appearance several examples have already been given. It oecurs in masses, varying in size from the smallest size to that of an cgg; and these may be either embedded in the substance of the brain, or attached to the membranes. In their earlier stages, they present to us a whitish coloured cheesy matter, generally enclosed in a cyst; but, in their more advanced forms, we generally find them presenting a greater or less degree of un-

healthy scrofulous suppuration.

VI. Induration of the cerebral substance. Several examples of this important affection have been already referred to under the first part of these essays. I have there stated the grounds for believing, that it is the result of a slow inflammatory action; that it may eontinue for a very considerable time in a state of simple chronic inflammation, and then pass gradually into a state of induration; and, it is probable, that there is in some eases formed around the diseased portion, a sac of eoagulable lymph, giving it the appearance of a new formation embedded in the substance of the brain. In the state of simple induration, this disease may continue for a long time, producing urgent symptoms, and may at length be fatal by passing into suppuration, or without having suppurated.

VII. Ossifications. Under this head are to be ineluded both osseous projections from the inner surface of the eranium, and internal ossifications, which are commonly found in the dura mater, most commonly in the falx. They generally appear to be formed of thin laming of bone in the substance of the membrane, and many eases of them are on record which did not appear to have produced any symptoms in the brain. In other cases, however, they seem to produce urgent symptoms, especially when they are in the form of sharp spiculæ, the brain or its membranes. Saviard, there was in the bi small triangular piece of bon and, where the dura mater c angles, it was livid and discha-La Motte, which was connecte spiculæ were directed against t by Van Swieten, there was an an inch long, and half an inch the cerebellam.

VIII. Hydatids. This several affections of the bra appear to be really hydativesicles which are often met ther seem to be merely the l organ, elevated into vesicles in a case by Dr. Baillie, the the veins. Real hydatids, brain, as in a case which will which there were numerous size of an egg, and containing in it. Crsts containing a w in various parts of the brain; they are to be considered mentioned by Bonetus, after head, had headach for a year then died apoplectic. In hemisphere, there was a cre contained a clear floid. In writer, who died, on the 1 which ended in coma, the the two hemispheres, a co touch, and discharged him ounces. Bonetus mention size, one especially attached aibulum, which burst on t fluid to the amount of two complained of fixed pain in

I was long inclined to doub

or have acute angles which are so situated as to irritate

at they be properly called or is in alous a 1 fatty turn is I they appear to be more unthe brain or its membranes. In a case of this kind by Saviard, there was in the broadest part of the falx a small triangular piece of bone with very sharp angles; and, where the dura mater came in contact with these angles, it was livid and discharged pus. In another by La Motte, which was connected with epilepsy, the bony spiculæ were directed against the pia mater; and in one by Van Swieten, there was an irregular piece of bone an inch long, and half an inch broad, in the substance of the cerebellum.

VIII. Hydatids. This name has been applied to several affections of the brain, some of which do not appear to be really hydatids. Of this kind are the vesicles which are often met with in the choroid plexus; they seem to be merely the loose cellular texture of that organ, elevated into vesicles by a watery effusion; and in a case by Dr. Baillie, they could be injected from the veins. Real hydatids, however, do occur in the brain, as in a case which will be quoted from Zeder, in which there were numerous hydatids, one of them the size of an egg, and containing three small hydatids within it. Cysts containing a watery fluid likewise occur in various parts of the brain; but it is doubtful whether they are to be considered as hydatids. A woman mentioned by Bonetus, after a blow on the back of the head, had headach for a year with constant vertigo, and then died apoplectic. In the substance of the left hemisphere, there was a cyst the size of an egg, which contained a clear fluid. In a girl mentioned by the same writer, who died, on the 12th day, of a febrile disease, which ended in coma, there was found, on separating the two hemispheres, a cyst which burst on a slight touch, and discharged limpid fluid to eight or nine ounces. Bonetus mentions other cysts of a still larger size, one especially attached to the nates and the infundibulum, which burst on taking it out, and discharged fluid to the amount of two pounds. The patient had complained of fixed pain in the vertex for four months. I was long inclined to doubt the accuracy of these ac-

e. Of this very frequent apis lar already beingiven. It ng in size from the smallest size e may be either embedded in , or attached to the memr stages, they present to us ar. generally enclosed in a advanced firms, we generally I grater or less degree of un-

TASS OF THE BRAIN,

r r } ls, som to mointe the

the cere 'ml substance. Several an: affection have been already et of these essars. I have of it lateria, that it is the y in n; that it may conof etime tha state of simple nd then pass gradually into a or pro able that there is in . It'e diseased pathon, a soc it the appearance of a new the brain. In 17a n. this disease may e minue erriurgent symptoms, and may was into supronation, or with-

[: 'T this head are to be inthe inner surface To I sold and as, which are ica m ter, mast commonly in r. The rear to be formed from the membrane, and ectri which did not appear in the brain. In other he ince nuchui shulu me tre in the form of sharp spice.

counts, and to suppose that, in such cases, the fluid had really been contained in the ventricles, until I received, through my friend Dr. Frampton, the remarkable case by Mr. Headington, to be afterwards described, in which a cyst was found in the left ventricle containing sixteen ounces of fluid.

The affections now briefly described seem to include the principal modifications of the organic diseases of the brain. Others, however, are met with which do not properly belong to any of these elasses, such as the stony tumor in a case to be quoted from Schenkius, the bloody tumor of Rochonx, and the real fungus hæmatodes of the brain, of which there are some examples on record. Fungous protrusion of the cerebral substance itself, such as occurs after the operation of the trephine, is occasionally met without any such cause. A man mentioned by Dr. Donald Monro, had a pulsating tumor over the left eyebrow, pressure on which produced headach and giddiness. It increased in size, and after seven months he died lethargic. On inspection the tumor was found to arise from the anterior part of the left hemisphere of the brain, and to have made its way through the frontal bone. It was the size of a China orange; in its structure it resembled the medullary substance of the brain; and it appeared to be covered by the dura mater.*

When we endeavour to trace the leading symptoms connected with these various states of disease, we do not find any uniformity, by which particular symptoms can be distinctly referred to the various forms of the morbid affections; we can therefore attempt only a very general outline of the principal modifications of the symptoms, which are connected with organic disease of the brain. They appear to be chiefly referable to the following heads.

I. The first class is distinguished by long-continued

and severe headach, without imptom. The Jain raties ve and in its severity; and one s if the affection is, that the pa regular paroxysms, leaving int complete relief. Some remark ready been given of this in Case and their will be afterwards re in some cases acute and lancin and it is sometimes referred to crown of the head, or the occip be general, or it may be referr the head, as the occiput or of violent paroxysms the pain jutient to remain for a consid to n, the slightest motion agg tire; but the remissions from hen so remarkable as to lead ; the belief that it is merely peri ach connected with dyspepsia tion is also couptenanced by quendy much disordered, and attack, being often accompani dagnosis, indeed, is sometimes non, it wil be found that the the pain must lead to a suspice something is one than common the stemach is at times disorde is often most servere when n stomach that can account for canni bar a warm room, even the execution of cheerful ing distressed and his headach effects are produced by wine seeks quietness, coolness, and respects, the disease differs re headach, which is commonly of theerful company, Cometine Contained by romiting and

CRIANIC DISPUSES OF

^{*} Trans. Col. Phy. vol i.

William a Part out, in such axes, the fluid had until I received, Fr. 7, the remarkable case to ards described, in which : remittele containing sixteen the despit I spon to include of the escapetural greet in a T. T. Et with which do not There's ses, such as the story e quick from Schenkius, the a a d the real fungus hamaman of the cerebral substance · I was care. A man n. W. r. lad a plisating to not Salte of Manager da. I head-. 112 size, and air r seven (1) inspection the tumor er of the less hemisi de its way through 1 S.Za f 3 China orange; dia Lidd by substance of to be correct by the dars or organie in Ling symptoms The way to fine case, the day of read that had skind medicing The state of the miles ar Art - fra refr Petra P discharge in the second The little

and severe headach, without any other remarkable symptom. The pain varies very much both in its seat and in its severity; and one very remarkable character of the affection is, that the pain sometimes occurs in regular paroxysms, leaving intervals of comparative or complete relief. Some remarkable examples have already been given of this in Cases LXXXIII. and XC., and others will be afterwards referred to. The pain is in some cases acute and lancinating, in others obtuse; and it is sometimes referred to a particular spot, as the erown of the head, or the oeciput. In many cases it is accompanied by a violent throbbing, and this also may be general, or it may be referred to a particular part of the head, as the occiput or one temple. In the more violent paroxysms the pain is intense, obliging the patient to remain for a considerable time in one position, the slightest motion aggravating it to perfect torture; but the remissions from this severe suffering are often so remarkable as to lead a superficial observer into the belief that it is merely periodical headach, or headach connected with dyspepsia. This latter supposition is also countenanced by the stomach being frequently much disordered, and by the more violent attacks being often accompanied by vomiting. The diagnosis, indeed, is sometimes difficult, but, by attention, it will be found that the duration and violence of the pain must lead to a suspicion that the complaint is something more than common headach, and that, though the stomach is at times disordered, yet that the headach is often most severe when no disorder exists in the stomach that can account for it. The patient generally cannot bear a warm room, the noise of company, or even the exertion of cheerful conversation, without being distressed and his headach increased; and the same effects are produced by wine and bodily exertion. He seeks quietness, eoolness, and darkness; and in these respects, the disease differs remarkably from dyspeptic headaeh, which is commonly dissipated by exercise and cheerful company. Sometimes the paroxysms are accompanied by vomiting, and sometimes by violent

throbbing in the head. If, along with these local symptoms, the face be pale and the pulse feeble, and if much active treatment has been employed without relicf, we must suspect the presence of organic disease. The terminations of the cases of this first class are various; they may be suddenly fatal by convulsion, or more gradually by coma, or by gradual exhaustion without either coma or convulsion. A very frequent termination is by the accession of chronic inflammation, terminating by effusion or otherwise. In Case LXXXVII. I have given an example in which there was a remarkable mass of organic disease attached to the falx, while no symptoms had indicated its existence, until the occurrence of the symptoms of chronic inflammation a few weeks before death.

II. In the second form, after some continuance of fixed headach, the organs of sense become affected, as the sight, the hearing, the taste and smell, and occasionally the intellect. The loss of sight generally takes place gradually, being first obscured, and after some time lost; and very often one eye is thus affected before the other is at all impaired. Double vision also occurs, which either may be permanent or occur at intervals. One remarkable case will be referred to, in which the blindness took place rather suddenly, and, after it had continued for some time, sight was restored under the action of an emetic. It remained distinct for an hour, and then was permanently lost. The intellect is frequently impaired in cases of this class, and sometimes the speech is lost. The morbid appearances present no uniformity; in two of them there were tumors so situated, as directly to compress the optic nerves; in another, a large tumor pressed upon the corpora quadrigemina; in a third, the disease was situated at the lower part of the anterior lobe; and in another, in which the right eye only was affected, it was in the substance of the left hemisphere, near the posterior part. In a case by Drelincurtius, the disease was an enlargement of the pineal gland; and in another, in which,

there were both blir was situated between

ORGANIC .

III. The third cla the pain and affection of paroxysms of con some degree of regu place only at particula to be aggravated, and have a resemblance apoplectic attacks. to, in which there wa speech, and at last of The cases of this (m rbid appearance as meter can be traced in in the diversities o except in regard to tho situated, as directly This seems invariably other cases, it will appe teir situation, and near cases accompanied with others by blindness with by pain alone, without case which will be refer

longs became affected, of the lungs being fatal IV. The fourth class without any affection of complaint of pain, and and constant pain which The consulsion in some form of epilepsy; in oth occurring repeatedly for a f: a considerable inter I sysms of headach man

circumstance, that the

II, at no with these trad symples feel e, and if much the lovel without to feel we could be declared. If termination or more than expansion or more to the lovel expansion of more to the lovel expansion of more to the lovel expansion of the lovel expansion and the lovel expansion of the lovel expan

. SOFT THE BRAIN.

irm. were me continuance of r, is disense heerme affected, as of the ord smell, and occa-· I less of sucht generally . I now wish ned, and after 1 - ry 2 n one eye is thus afr - Im gire l. Double vision - he pertonent croy or at ryll or rejerred to, in K 129 Thing suddruly, and, ्रेस्ट्रां ३ स्क्रीत हाथ हर्षे The lit manied distinct fr The intellect lin as t this class, and some any mythid if reagrances pre-A LAST TOTAL TOTAL MELE TIME IS 71. of 33 '23 Office nectotion is the corpus quality in the state of th be in another in res at the hand part

there were both blindness and deafness, a large tumor was situated between the brain and the eerebellum.

III. The third class corresponds with the second in the pain and affections of the senses, with the addition of paroxysms of convulsion. These may occur with some degree of regularity like epilepsy, or may take place only at particular periods, when the disease seems to be aggravated, and to be combined with some degree of inflammatory action. Sometimes the paroxysms have a resemblance to tetanus, and in other to slight apoplectic attacks. A case of this kind will be referred to, in which there was loss of sight, hearing, smell, and

speech, and at last of the power of deglutition.

The eases of this class present the same varieties of morbid appearance as the former, and no peculiar charaeter ean be traced in them, which enables us to explain the diversities of symptoms in the three elasses, except in regard to those eases in which the disease was so situated, as directly to compress the optic nerves. This seems invariably to produce blindness; but, in other eases, it will appear that tumors corresponding in their situation, and nearly of similar size, were in some eases accompanied with blindness and convulsion; in others by blindness without convulsion; and in others by pain alone, without either of these affections. One ease which will be referred to was remarkable from the circumstance, that the convulsions eeased when the lungs became affected, and did not return, the affection of the lungs being fatal.

IV. The fourth elass is distinguished by eonvulsion, without any affection of the senses, often with very little eomplaint of pain, and in general without that fixed and eonstant pain which occurs in the other elasses. The eonvulsion in some cases appears under the regular form of epilepsy; in others, in more irregular attacks, occurring repeatedly for a short time, and then eeasing for a considerable interval. Sometimes violent paroxysms of headach precede or accompany the convul-

sions, and, generally, after some time, the memory is impaired. The cases of this class may be fatal in one of the attacks of convulsion, or by coma of some days continuance. The morbid appearances are very various. The most remarkable in the cases to be referred to were. tubercles in the cerebellum, an hydatid in the right hemisphere of the brain, induration of the pons Varolii or of the substance of the brain, and tumors and bony spiculæ in various situations. An important variety of the disease occurs, in which the convulsion is confined to one side of the body. In one case of this kind, there was a tumor on the surface of the opposite hemisphere, and in another a portion of the opposite hemisphere was indurated; the former case was also remarkable from the long continuation of the disease, and from the weakness and diminution of size of the lower extremity of the affected side.

V. The fifth class leads our attention to a new set of symptoms, namely, the paralytic. These may occur in the form of hemiplegia, paraplegia, or paralysis of all the parts below the neck, and in some cases one limb only is affected. The disease is distinguished from the ordinary paralytic cases, by coming on more gradually; one limb, perhaps, or part of a limb, being first weak, and the weakness extending very gradually, until it amounts to paralysis. In some cases the paralysis is preceded by violent pain in the limb. The speech is generally affected, and in many cases the memory; there may be fixed uneasiness in the head, or headach occurring in paroxysms. In one case, there was blindness of one eye; in another, of both. In one, there occurred convulsion, but not till an advanced period; in another, epilepsy for more than a year. The inspections exhibit tumors or indurations, variously situated; in the eases of hemiplegia, on the opposite side of the brain; in those of paraplegia, in the cerebellum or tuber annulare. It must, however, be confessed, that the cases of this class, with paraplegia, are rather unsatisfactory from want of attention to the condition of the spinal cord. In severa it will be found that brain, the real cause in the spinal cord; an as a point not yet asce arises from disease con.

ORGANIC I

VI. The sixth class much interest; a train of the brain, the ston which I now allude, as in the stomach being th there is often, through gress, very little compla so fixed and urgent as brain as the seat of the however, some pain or t oceaning in paroxysms LOZISMS accombanied p monly called sick headac external heat, p mulating liquors; there is ad deep, oppression of the ming. The vomiting so ing on first awalings and ras, and very suddenly i There are, in general, un rious organs, by which the discuised in its earlier time, symptoms referable to appear, such as fits of paroxysins, and affections the disease, death may oc centration, or it may be p salering. In cases of this bone misled in regard to the by observing that the symp spinal cord. In several cases to be afterwards described,

it will be found that though there was disease in the

brain, the real cause of the paraplegia appeared to be in the spinal cord; and, perhaps, it may be considered

as a point not yet ascertained, whether paraplegia ever

to all designed by the second to be of in the falal in one er reinfender A PARTITION OF THE PARTIES. ्रा । अक्षण के जुन स्थापित **प**राहर - 171, project I in the right · n. 'ur in of the 25 Varoli. 1 1 m is ad boar . . . i e charu a a sconfi i in the residence hemisphere, A time in the promite legisphine of the mean with a section remarkable. - tipe disase and from ing in the set of

मास गर्भ मा इन मा इन एसमा व

in . in or pararists of cl

a. The same cases one limb

anguished from the

branie a m pe grafually;

1.20. being his meak,

Till will it to the paralysis is

The constants

Tipe speed is

the memerical

The date

Teer. In the party of the fine

T. J. In C. carpect

The state of the s

artist Transferiors
Transferiors
Transferiors
Transferiors
Transferiors

The Project months

AND THE PLANE.

arises from disease confined to the brain. VI. The sixth class calls our attention to a subject of much interest; a train of symptoms which are referred to the stomach, but which really depend upon disease in the brain. In many of the cases of organic disease of the brain, the stomach is affected; but those to which I now allude, are remarkable from the affection in the stomach being the prominent symptom. In these there is often, through a considerable part of their progress, very little complaint of the head, or no complaint so fixed and urgent as to direct our attention to the brain as the seat of the discase. There is generally, however, some pain or weight in the head, sometimes occurring in paroxysms like periodical headach, or in paroxysms accompanied by vomiting, like what is commonly called sick headach. The pain is increased by exertions, external heat, passions of the mind, and stimulating liquors; there is generally variable appetite, bad sleep, oppression of the stomach, and frequent vomiting. The vomiting sometimes occurs in the morning on first awaking, and sometimes at uncertain intervals, and very suddenly without any previous sickness. There are, in general, uneasy sensations referred to various organs, by which the nature of the disease may be disguised in its earlier periods; but, after a certain time, symptoms referable to the head generally begin to appear, such as fits of loss of recollection, convulsive paroxysms, and affections of sight. After this stage of

the disease, death may occur suddenly in an attack of

convulsion, or it may be preceded by a train of severe suffering. In cases of this class, we must beware of being misled in regard to the nature of the complaint, by observing that the symptoms in the stomach are alleviated by a strict regimen, or by treatment directed

un ler the other class s, tu nor and of no larger size, were a convulsions, or paralys's. It diversities depend either up nor, as far as we know at presentation. But these p ints reflections with the nature of the tumors, a characters, as being tumors dismass, or as being indurations of

Oh AND DISEASES

In regard to the treatment there is little to be said. I am we ought not to consider them them have certainly their or gin and, by the proper treatment, suppose that their progress m and the life of the patient produced more comfortable. The leeping the system extremely 1 state diet, cold applications to this in the neck, and avoiding ment.

I conclude this part of the sulimportant case, which I receive have Dr. Kellie of Leith. It illus ing manner, the nature of the exist with most extensive and

CASE CXL. A medical gereather time liable to various ailments, we most defined complaints were of numbness in the point of the first health appeared good, and he was a complaint to the usual of timents.

to the stomach itself. If digestion be impeded from whatever cause, the uneasy symptoms may in this manner be alleviated; but no inference can be drawn from this fact, in regard to the cause of the derangement. In the earlier periods of this affection, the diagnosis is indeed often very difficult. There is generally more permanent and fixed uneasiness in the head, than we should expect to find in a dyspeptic case, and the uncasiness is increased by causes which would probably be beneficial to a dyspeptic headach, such as activity and cheerful company. The prominent morbid appearances in cases of this class seem to be in the cerebellum.

VII. The seventh class is distinguished chiefly by slight and transient affections of an apopletic character, of which I have formerly given some remarkable examples. In some cases, it consists chiefly of an habitual giddiness, which makes the patient afraid to walk alone; in others, there are sudden attacks of loss of all muscular power without loss of recollection, which are soon recovered from. Sometimes there are attacks of perfect coma, which may occur at regular or at irregular intervals: the patient having, in some cases, such warning of their approach that he goes to bed before the attack. There is usually more or less unsteadiness of the limbs, and generally, but not always, headach. In some cases there are affections of sight, and these may cither be permanent or occur in paroxysms; and in some cases, giddiness and loss of recollection are excited by bodily exertion, and go off on desisting from it.

This imperfect outline of a most important class of diseases, I shall illustrate by a selection of cases in an Appendix, partly from my own observation, and partly from other authorities. From these will appear the extreme difficulty of fixing upon any general principles, or of referring the particular character of the symptoms to any thing in the seat or nature of the disease. Tumors, for example, will be found under the first class, unaccompanied by any remarkable symptoms; while,

THE BRA. .

The second

service this in-

o e e e e drava ince

e 1. I Le demnan et.

. . . n, the diamond is

. Love is grown in p

or is in the helt than ve

er i me, and the un-

. 3 " ' in all probably

h. h. su.h as activity

The mirent morbid appear-

to be in t'e cerebe lum.

is tranguished chiefly by

" by fan appoletic clarace

- - - - T some remark the

the state of the day of an da-

I they the parent afril to

or rollemasiffs

· - 18 from Lion, which

The are attacks

if regulation at innens me take such

to bed bet te the

v m te r less unsteadiness of

or now is bradach. In

the of state and these man

- 12 in Paroxysmand in

. It is it is no are excited

e Endrich

is in a important class (

the second of cases in an

T. D. v. All 18 LLI B. 380 Little

From the and attent the by.

The same of the stropping of the stroppi

To the state of th

under the other classes, tumors in the same situation, and of no larger size, were accompanied by blindness, convulsions, or paralysis. It does not appear that these diversities depend either upon the size of the tumors, or, as far as we know at present, upon their particular structure. But these points remain to be investigated; particularly what diversity of symptoms is connected with the nature of the tumors, and especially with their characters, as being tumors distinct from the eerebral mass, or as being indurations of the substance of the brain itself.

In regard to the treatment of this class of diseases, there is little to be said. I am persuaded, however, that we ought not to consider them all as hopeless. Many of them have certainly their origin in inflammatory action, and, by the proper treatment, we have every reason to suppose that their progress may at least be impeded, and the life of the patient prolonged, as well as rendered more comfortable. The treatment will consist in keeping the system extremely low by evacuations and spare diet, cold applications to the head, issues or setons in the neek, and avoiding all eauses of exeitement.

I conclude this part of the subject with the following important ease, which I received from my friend the late Dr. Kellie of Leith. It illustrates, in a very striking manner, the nature of the symptoms which may exist with most extensive and remarkable organic disease of the brain.

CASE CXL.—A medical gentleman, aged 56, of a cultivated mind and temperate habits, had been for some time liable to various ailments, which his medical friends eonsidered as in a great measure hypoehondriaeal. The most defined complaints were occasional uneasiness in the site of the frontal sinus, and a very peculiar feeling of numbness in the point of the thumb. But his general health appeared good, and he was able to enter into all the usual enjoyments of life, having retired from

practice, till he was one day seized, while walking, with sudden siekness and faintness. These were followed by some headaeh, and an obvious difficulty of articulation, or rather a difficulty in finding the expression which he wished to make use of. He was now treated by bleeding and the other usual means; but this peculiar loss of the recollection of words continued and gradually increased, so that he had greater and greater difficulty in recollecting the words which he meant to employ, but he had no difficulty in pronouncing them. His understanding, at this time, was quite entire; his pulse varying from 80 to 112. He was nearly confined to the house, but out of bed during the day; and all the usual remedies were employed in the most assiduous manner. After he had gone on in this way for several weeks, he began to have slight distortion of the mouth, and complained of numbness of the right arm, and soon after of weakness of the right leg. These symptoms gradually increased to perfect hemiplegia; and about this time, also, he entirely lost his speech. He was now confined to bed, but without eoma. He had the perfect use of his sight and hearing, and, as far as could be judged, his understanding was entire. He died with symptoms of bronehitis in the ninth week from the first attack.

Inspection.—The left hemisphere of the brain was found to be diseased throughout in a very singular manner. Some parts of the mass were indurated, others softened; and it presented a variety of colours, chiefly a rose-eolour, grey, and yellow; and the more diseased portions were highly vascular. In some places there were distinct insulated masses, enclosed in vascular cysts; these were generally indurated, but some were softened, and they were of a rose or flesh-eolour passing into grey. The change from those parts which retained a natural appearance to these degenerated portions was abrupt, and marked by a rose-coloured line. These rosecoloured portions were eliefly in the parts nearest the surface: in the central parts this passed into the yellow or the grey, and many portions were in a state of ramollissement. The whole left hemisphere, in fact, presented

little else than a mai softenings of the vario tioned. On the uppl disease did not extended to the various it extended to the various a well-defined spot of a split pea.

A THE BALLY,

To z 1, while walking with

Tain were to how day id thealty famiculation,

and the Art won which he

The Paper and by bleed.

this pecular loss of

s - and gradually in-

r and greater officetty in

is mount in employ, but

istan Haunter the section of the problem of the section of the se

ass lates manner. or swaringerial weeks, he

en. Line, and smaller f . The skilling tagraph of the middle some Arms now control

and some the late his Holi I via symptoms of it mithe ast atrick. en nich sie in mas

wre install others - I with the chiefly

little else than a mass of concentric indurations and softenings of the various colours which have been mentioned. On the upper part of the hemisphere the disease did not extend entirely to the surface of the convolutions; but at the base of the anterior and middle lobes it extended to the surface, and at one place there was a well-defined spot of superficial ulceration the size of a split pea.

PART IV.

OF THE DISEASES OF THE SPINAL CORD AND ITS MEMBRANES.

In its structure, the spinal cord is very analogous to the brain, except that it is more dense in its consistence. The membranes of the cord are usually divided into three, the dura mater, arachnoid, and pia mater; but as that which has been termed the arachnoid seems rather to be a kind of loose cellular texture, scarcely deserving a distinct name, it will answer every practical purpose to consider the membranes as two.

I. The dura mater of the cord does not differ in structure from that of the brain, except in varying considerably in thickness at different parts. The principal facts to be kept in mind in a practical point of view are, that it adheres very slightly to the canal of the vertebræ by a very loose cellular texture, and that it adheres very intimately to the margin of the foramen magnum. In this manner a cavity is produced betwixt the membrane and the canal of the spine, which may be the seat of effusion, and which has no communication with the cavity of the cranium; on the other hand, the space betwixt the dura mater and the pia mater, or the immediate covering of the cord, communicates freely with the cavity of the cranium, so that a fluid may pass easily

DISEASES OF

from the one to the other the body.

II. The pia mater, or a membrane of a loose of the continuous from the parached to the body of thing to the nerves which is

III. The substance of the brain, but in other 1 distinguished into cortica divided into four colun take their origin from posterior from the crur arise by two distinct r and one of the posterior investigations have rend sity of function is conthat is, that the posterio nerves of sensation, and motion. A canal has beof the cord, which is said and to communicate with and onty of Portal, Senac not doubt that such a ca seems very d ubtful, wh state of the parts. In I as the fourth dorsal verte a common quill. It was the rentricles of the brain

By the ancients, muc the spinal cord in conv but their speculations appears to be of very manufactural. A still be considered as being attempting a considered specularity of the considered as being the considered as the co

from the one to the other, according to the position of the body.

II. The pia mater, or proper covering of the cord, is a membrane of a loose or cellular texture. It seems to be continuous from the pia mater of the brain, is closely attached to the body of the cord, and furnishes a covering to the nerves which issue from it.

III. The substance of the eord is firmer than that of the brain, but in other respects analogous to it; being distinguished into cortical and medullary matter. It is divided into four columns, the two anterior of which take their origin from the crura eercbri, and the two posterior from the crura cerebelli. The spinal nerves arise by two distinct roots from one of the anterior, and one of the posterior of these columns; and recent investigations have rendered it probable, that a diversity of function is concerned in the double origin, that is, that the posterior columns give origin to the nerves of sensation, and the anterior to the nerves of motion. A canal has been described in the substance of the cord, which is said to be a seat of serous effusion. and to communicate with the fourth ventricle. On the authority of Portal, Scnac, Rachetti, and others, we eaunot doubt that such a canal has been observed, but it seems very doubtful, whether it exists in the healthy state of the parts. In Portal's case, it extended as far as the fourth dorsal vertebra, and would have admitted a common quill. It was full of scrous fluid, by which the ventricles of the brain were likewise distended.

By the ancients, much importance was attached to the spinal cord in convulsive and paralytic affections, but their speculations seem to have been in a great measure conjectural. A correct pathology of the cord appears to be of very modern date, and perhaps may still be considered as being in a very imperfect condition. In attempting a general outline of it, I shall

RT IV

OF THE SPINAL CORD
MEMBRANES

In a list regranal gras to the source dense in its consistence.

I are usually divided into all and plantater; but as the rearrance scarce, deserving answer every practical purpose answer every practical purpose.

The principal of the reverse representation of the reverse represe

satisfy myself with a simple record of the best authenticated facts, which may be arranged under the following heads:

I. Acute inflammation of the membranes, or meningitis of the cord.

II. Inflammation of the body of the cord, terminating by ramollissement or suppuration.

III. Serous effusion in the spinal canal.

IV. Extravasation of blood in the spinal canal, or spinal apoplexy.

V. Fungoid disease and thickening of the mem-

branes.

VI. Induration of the cord.

VII. Compression of the eord by new formations within the canal, as tubercles, albuminous depositions, hydatids, and ossification of the membranes.

VIII. Destruction of a portion of the cord.

IX. Concussion of the spinal cord.

X. Certain affections of the bones of the spine.

SECTION I.

MENINGITIS OF THE CORD.

Or this remarkable affection, I am enabled to give the two following examples, the second of which I received from the late Dr. Duncan. The other I did not see during the life of the patient, but I was present at the examination of the body. I shall merely relate the eases, without founding upon them any general conclusions in regard to the characters of the disease.

CASE CXLI.—A gentleman, aged 26, had been for several years liable to suppuration of the left ear. It

.72."y discharged at all times citales of pain were followed charges, -the pain on these oc the left side of his head, and neek with much severity. In t 1817, he was confined from his headach, which affected both the par; he lay in bed only part of was bad, and his sleep disturbe er no frequency of pulse, and fo excited little attention. About Le complained of pain extendin the beginning of the second wo nearly ceased, but the pain in severe, and extended farther do It continued for several days to is down, until at last it fixed e lower part of the spine, and sund the body, towards the s ... From this time he never and sellom of the upper parts of come affected with great unea aldomen, and great pain and urine. From the violence of the ferings about the 15th became he in ted for five minutes at a relaing about the house in a s must me the lower part of his and grashing his teeth from And to interval of ease, and nd unmanageable. On the th waking down three sta eset, with little assistance. had be thought himself son e on returned with its for trent lin in the belly, se At ad some difficulty (Fis about 101, and the bow I the ordinary medicines.

DISEASES OF THE ST

To the first awar. e is the mades, or maninin the coll table to? 1. 1. יובי היים פורים! I in the spiral canal, or -1 dilimity of the memthe cird is new formations · . . a. un rous depositions, in min the off ter or the the hos of the spine. . I month sitt in the while I mixed The that I do see The state of the second of the

usually discharged at all times a little matter, but the attacks of pain were followed by more copious discharges; -the pain on these occasions extending over the left side of his head, and often continuing for a week with much severity. In the first week of April, 1817, he was confined from his usual employments by headach, which affected both the forehead and the occiput; he lay in bed only part of the day; his appetite was bad, and his sleep disturbed; but there was little or no frequency of pulse, and for a week the complaint excited little attention. About the end of the week, he complained of pain extending along the neck, and in the beginning of the second week the pain in the head nearly ceased, but the pain in the neck became more severe, and extended farther downwards along the spine. It continued for several days to extend farther and farther down, until at last it fixed with intense severity at the lower part of the spine, and extended from thence round the body, towards the spinous processes of the ilia. From this time he never complained of his head, and seldom of the upper parts of the spine; but he became affected with great uneasiness over the whole abdomen, and great pain and difficulty in passing his urine. From the violence of these complaints, his sufferings about the 15th became extreme; he could not lie in bed for five minutes at a time, but was generally walking about the house in a state of extreme agitation, grasping the lower part of his back with both his hands, and gnashing his teeth from the intensity of pain; he had no interval of ease, and was sometimes incoherent and unmanageable. On the 16th he went to the warm bath, walking down three stairs, and into an adjoining street, with little assistance. After his return from the bath he thought himself somewhat relieved, but the pain soon returned with its former severity, accompanied by great pain in the belly, severe dysuria, confusion of thought, and some difficulty of articulation. The pulse was about 100, and the bowels were easily kept open by the ordinary medicines. On the 17th, the symptoms

were unabated; his speech was considerably affected; there were convulsive twitches of his face, and difficulty of swallowing; some squinting also was observed, but it was not permanent; the pulse was from 120 to 130. At night he became easier after a bleeding from the arm, and lay in bed for some time. After a short time, however, he got up again, and continued till three o'clock in the morning, sitting up, or walking about his house delirious and unmanageable. About three o'clock, while sitting in a chair, he suddenly threw his head backwards with great violence, and immediately fell into a state of coma, in which he continued for two hours, and then died. No paralytic affection had been observed in any period of the disease, except the slight affection of his speech, no difficulty of breathing, no vomiting, and no convulsion except the twitches of the face on the 17th. The pulse had varied from 90 to 130, and was reported to have been generally small and irregular. The bowels were easily kept open, but the pain in the back was much increased by going to stool. Two days before his death he had several attacks of shivering. During his illness, much purulent matter had been discharged from the left ear, and an inflamed tumor had formed behind it.

Inspection.—After the most eareful examination, every part of the brain was found to be in the most healthy state. On taking out the brain, some gelatinous deposition was found under the medulla oblongata, and purulent matter appeared in eonsiderable quantity, flowing from the spinal eanal. The spine being entirely laid open, the cord was found with a coating of purulent matter, which lay betwixt it and its membranes. The matter was most abundant at three places; at the upper part near the foramen magnum, about the middle of the dorsal region, and at the top of the sacrum; but it was also distributed over the other parts with much uniformity. The substance of the eord was very soft, and in some places much divided into filaments. All the other viscera were healthy.

Case CXLII.-A woman, more than three weeks affected tic character, extending over when, on the 11th of April, 18: the clinical ward, under the care then complained of pain in the loins, and at the top of the rig acute pain in the right hypogastr pressure and by inspiration. I ably retracted, and could not be was bent backwards, and the 1 contracted and rigid. She ha fushes of heat, great restlessner respiration 44, with some cou, confined. She was treated by warm bath, &c. On the 12th On the 13th, she had difficulty restlessness; the spine was curv and the bowels were obstinate, p after free purging was produced relieved, and could bring her hea she said the pain was unabated referred to the right shoulder, and thest, sometimes shooting into had also pain in the lower part aldomen felt distended and ten healty of swallowing, and was caring sleep there was much suf enall. On the 15th, the head there was more power of movin elated, except in the abdomen its and tremor; pulse 140 f a. She was much inclined to vien reased. At night she w bath, and expired in the bath. be muscles of the neck became Inspection.—There was some of the brain; and, on the post e of the cerebellum, there was The cervical marriage

MENINGITIS OF TH

Case CXLII.—A woman, aged 22, had been for more than three weeks affected with pains of a rheumatic character, extending over every part of the body, when, on the 11th of April, 1820, she was received into the elinical ward, under the eare of Dr. Dunean. then complained of pain in the back of the neck and loins, and at the top of the right scapula; also of an acute pain in the right hypogastrie region, increased by pressure and by inspiration. The head was eonsiderably retracted, and could not be bent forward; the spine was bent backwards, and the museles of the back felt contracted and rigid. She had alternate rigors and flushes of heat, great restlessness; pulse 148 and full; respiration 44, with some eough; tongue foul; bowels confined. She was treated by large bleeding, purging, warm bath, &c. On the 12th there was little change. On the 13th, she had difficulty of swallowing, and great restlessness; the spine was eurved backwards as before, and the bowels were obstinate, pulse 144. On the 14th, after free purging was produced, she seemed somewhat relieved, and could bring her head a little forward; but she said the pain was unabated. It was now chiefly referred to the right shoulder, and the upper part of the ehest, sometimes shooting into the right axilla. She had also pain in the lower part of the belly, and the abdomen felt distended and tense. She had less difficulty of swallowing, and was inclined to sleep, but during sleep there was much subsultus; pulse 148 and small. On the 15th, the head was less retracted, and there was more power of moving it. The pains were abated, except in the abdomen; there was much subsultus and tremor; pulse 140; bowels open; tongue foul. She was much inclined to sleep, but quite distinct when roused. At night she was put into the warm bath, and expired in the bath. Immediately after death the muscles of the neck became entirely relaxed. Inspection.—There was some fluid in the ventricles

Inspection.—There was some fluid in the ventricles of the brain; and, on the posterior edge of the right lobe of the eerebellum, there was a thread of eoagulable lymph. The cervical portion of the spinal cord was

op ein was considerably affected; of its ace, and dimenty ; of 112 to also was observed, but t: 1 spine was from 120 to 130. rasier after a bleeding from the t some time. After a short time, ni and continued till three o'clock I ip or walking alout his bouse L' a . About three o'clock, while ne sult nly threw his head backe, and immediately fell into a h he continued for two hours, and mirrie affection had been observed od sease, except the slight affection the track breathing, no vomiting, Top the witches of the face on the deried from 10 to 130, and was a grace y shall and irregular. 301 sept open, but the pain in the roased by g ing to stool. Two dars h several attacks of shivering. · h purulent matter h d been dis-. r. and an indamed tumor had r the mast areful examination, every a- tourd to be in the most healthy . In thin, some thatmous deposier to edu a 1 jourst and puris-- 1 12 mg i left de quantiti, flinting nal. The stine b ing entirely half Bi mil 3 ocuting of paralent The 1 - at 1 fee 1/4" : at the Loper on the mildle of the State The said and and the on was rety off, and in

THE CRO.

healthy; the dorsal and lumbar portions were covered by a uniform thin coating of coagulable lymph of a greenish-yellow colour, and soft consistence. It was chiefly on the posterior part, betwixt the cord and its membranes, and the membranes were remarkably vascular.

Several eases have been described by Duchatelet and Martinet, of inflammation of the membranes of the cord terminating by puriform deposition, but they were in general complicated with a similar disease in the membranes of the brain. The prominent symptoms, referable to the spinal cord, were, pain extending along the spine, and tetanic contraction of the muscles of the back and neck, in some of them amounting to perfect opisthotonos. In one there was rigidity of the muscles of the left arm, with a convulsive twitching of the thumb and fingers of both hands; in another, there was a remarkable slowness of breathing, which was not above five in a minute.

Ollivier, in his second edition, has described several interesting cases, which present the same general charaeters. The prominent symptom was, pain referred to some part of the spine increased by motion, and sometimes little complained of except upon motion; it in general extended along some of the limbs, and was aecompanied by museular rigidity or tetanie spasms. Paralysis oceurred in one case, but this seemed to depend upon a degree of ramollissement of the body of the cord. One of his eases was remarkable from the remissions of the symptoms in the first stage. There was an acute pain referred to the neck, which came on with intense severity at ten o'eloek at night, and ceased at three in the morning. After seventeen days this ceased, and was suceeeded by pain in the loins, which afterwards extended along the back and into the inferior extremities; and was then accompanied by museular rigidity, and tetanic spasms of the legs, back, and neek. The patient at last died comatose; and the ease scems to have gone on about five weeks. There was retensive deposition of pustine membranes of the cornin the lumbar region, who outlet betwire two of the under the muscles. In tweet, at first, more observe of suffering, with retention complaint except that the were extremities were movined without loss of feelingidity and partial paralysicutes, and retraction of the cars. Between the membran extensive deposition of extensive deposition of the cars.

culent matter, in some

icielmess. It was most

surface of the cord, and t

MENINGITIS

ed there was some soften Und + To these examples of this cely add a case mentioned b 2), after sudden cessation of induced by mental agitation, tems and romiting; about the ti n of the head, with sever while course of the spine; i ture, but was increased to e notion. She had afterware Manie symptoms, followed Mir, and she died on the t there was found extensive d fice-lent patter, along the and, which seemed to be or clar texture of the arachnol branes of the brain were d nembranous deposition on so

restricted, also on the tentor

extensive deposition of pus and false membrane between the membranes of the eord at various places, especially in the lumbar region, where the matter had found an outlet betwixt two of the vertebræ, and had spread under the muscles. In another case, the symptoms were, at first, more obscure. There was an expression of suffering, with retention of urine, but no defined complaint, except that the patient sereamed when his lower extremities were moved, and they became paralyzed without loss of feeling. There were afterwards rigidity and partial paralysis of the arms, rigidity of the trunk, and retraction of the head; and he died in ten days. Between the membranes of the eord there was an extensive deposition of false membrane and floeculent matter, in some places four or five lines in thickness. It was most abundant on the posterior surface of the eord, and towards its lower extremity; and there was some softening of the substance of the cord.*

To these examples of this remarkable disease, I shall only add a ease mentioned by Andral. A woman aged 28, after sudden eessation of the menstrual discharge, induced by mental agitation, had fever, hysterical symptoms and vomiting; about the fifth day she had retraetion of the head, with severe pain extending along the whole course of the spine; it was not affected by pressure, but was increased to extreme agony by the least motion. She had afterwards difficult breathing and tetanie symptoms, followed by delirium and insensibility, and she died on the tenth day. On inspection there was found extensive deposition of purulent and floeeulent matter, along the whole course of the spinal eord, which seemed to be contained chiefly in the cellular texture of the arachnoid of the cord. The membranes of the brain were deeply injected: there was membranous deposition on some parts, especially on the right side, also on the tentorium and below the eerebel-

of filling were my seq. Philips 177-1 3 s to environce lives . . wire the color and is ades were remarkably raseseri' . I by Durhatelet and the mer 'rangs of the cord

ITE CALD.

- in at they were in prominent symptoms, referpun extending along the n i the muscles of the to a amounting to perfect on spinitr of the muscles vulsive tritching of the 1 m 1; in another, there was brailing, which was not

a. a. has described several · : the same general cha-- perm was, pain referred to the motion, and some if except again motion; it in the of the Knady, and may acr mandr or tetanic spasms. , ... bir this se med to deseement of the body of 18 3 ares remarkable from the There - i to the most match came on (Torres at n int, and cease) die representation durs this we have the in-The least of the

[·] Ollivier, Traité de la Moelle Epinière et ses Maladies. Tome ii. 2d edit.

lum,—and there was extensive effusion of milky fluid in the ventrieles.

Inflammation of the parts surrounding the spinal eord may also be excited by external injuries, without any affection of the bones of the spine. A waggoner, mentioned by Sir Charles Bell, sitting upon the shafts of his eart, was thrown off by a sudden jerk, and pitched upon the back of his neek and shoulders. He was earried to the Middlesex Hospital, where he lay for a week, without complaining of any thing except stiffness of the back part of the neek; he could move all his limbs with freedom. On the 8th day after his admission, he was seized with general convulsions and locked jaw. After a few hours, he was affected with a singular convulsive motion of the jaw, which continued in a state of violent and incessant motion for about five minutes. This was followed by maniaeal delirium. He then sunk into a state resembling typhus fever, and, after four days, was found to be paralytic in his lower extremities. "He lived a week after this, but continued sinking, and still retained about him much of the character of typhus. The day before his death, he was perfectly sensible, and had recovered sensation in his legs." On dissection, a great quantity of purulent matter was found within the spinal canal, which had dropped down to the lower part of it. It appeared to have been formed about the last eervieal and first dorsal vertebræ, and at that place the intervertebral eartilage was destroyed, so that the pus had escaped outwards among the muscles. In another case related by Sir Charles Bell, in which the last dorsal vertebra was fractured, purulent matter was found betwixt the spinal eord and its membranes. In this ease there was no paralysis. The leading symptoms were fever, restlessness, vomiting, and high delirium; death took place from sudden sinking."

To this place, perhaps, should be referred some notice of the appearance of increased vascularity of the

end or its membranes, a he origin of the nerves ginalis of a ntinental wi a steen attached to it as of the principal functions artati a at the origin of has been considered as the rulsions, paralytic affection of those painful affections which take place in co mensituation, abortion, a writers have speculated in take place in the thoracis to throw the blood wit rese's of the spinal cord. typose to take place from ministruation, diseases of the It must however, be confe statances, which are refera eathern, are extremely amb And they are very mu on of the body after deat year it is of writers of hi example of the affections which The A man who died of Ered in the course of his i is of iecung in the lower ex at evenes of that part of t in the dorsal vertebro 3.30d, as if they had been

elers to several other cases, v

the principle, and in which exercise of the extremities (

Ste Flank, Oratio de Vertelo

tint. Birth della Rachial zite, and

Cor d'Answer A

MENINGITIS

^{*} Quarterly Reports of Cases of Surgery, part 2.

Then ive et it is if may but e ports currending the spinal · i y external injeries, with at sof the spine. A wargoner, .. . De l. sitting up n the shafts on oil by a sudden jerk, and of his neck and sinulers. He liber H of it I, where he lay for Tri i by iding except stiffthe nick; he cand move all On the circular after his ada l with general convulsions and a tew hours, he was affected with a roton of the jaw, which continued · I incessant motion for a sut five s followed by maniacal delirium. read resembling typius ferer, and, ind to be profile in his lower o rela nees after this, but ecoof I retained a at 11 much of 18. The day bef re his death, he e, and and recovered sensation in ection, a great quantity of purulent within the spinal canal, which had over partifit. It appeared to i a the last certical and first doral the inelaterretectul earlinge must and escape i commands among die the task tel for fire Charles Sal referrance for our changes betwite the Final cord and its se cere nos no paralisis. The re resiles ness, coming, and or our said a referred some

and the second

. F THE CAD

eord or its membranes, and turgidity of vessels about the origin of the nerves. It constitutes the plethora spinalis of eontinental writers; and much importance has been attached to it as the cause of disease in many of the principal functions of the body. By exciting irritation at the origin of the various spinal nerves, it has been eonsidered as the source of many obscure affections of the thorax and abdomen; of tremor, convulsions, paralytic affections, chorea, epilepsy, and tetanus. It has also been regarded as the seat of many of those painful affections of the back and the loins, which take place in connexion with hamorrhoids, menstruation, ahortion, and continued feverwriters have speculated much on the changes which take place in the thoracie and abdominal viscera, so as to throw the blood with undue impulse upon the vessels of the spinal cord. Such determinations they suppose to take place from violent colies, suppressed menstruation, diseases of the liver, and continued fever.* It must, however, be confessed, that the morbid appearances, which are referable to the head of spinal plethora, are extremely ambiguous; and there is little doubt that they are very much influenced by the position of the body after death; but it is due to the speculations of writers of high eminence, to give an example of the affections which they refer to this class.

(1.) A man who died of peripneumony, had been affected in the course of his illness with numbness and loss of feeling in the lower extremities. On dissection, the arteries of that part of the spinal cord, which is included in the dorsal vertebræ, were found turgid with blood, as if they had been highly injected. Portal refers to several other eases, which he explains upon the same principle, and in which convulsive and paralytic affections of the extremities occurred in various inflam-

matory diseases.

^{*} See Frank, Oratio de Vertebralis Columnæ in morbis dignitate, Brera della Rachialgite, and Ludwig de Dolore ad Spinam Dorsi.

[†] Portal, Cours d'Anatomie Medicale, tom, iii, page 219.

- (2.) An infant was attacked during dentition with convulsions, which degenerated into epileptic fits. When he was five years and a half old, he had four or five fits every day, and became paralytic; he died at six years and a half. The spinal sheath appeared as if injected, and the medullary substance was softened and of yellowish colour about the 6th and 12th dorsal vertebræ.*
- (3.) A young man aged twenty-one, was affected with fever and high delirium. When the delirium subsided, he had convulsive motions of the superior extremities, and soon after died comatose. On dissection, the vessels of the pia mater of the spinal cord, at its upper and posterior part, were found distended with blood, as if they had been highly injected. This was especially remarkable about the origin of some of the spinal nerves. There was a similar appearance on the pia mater of the brain, and some effusion on its surface.†

SECTION II.

INFLAMMATION OF THE SUBSTANCE OF THE SPINAL CORD.

In referring to inflammation of the substance of the cord, the appearances to be described under this section, I am guided by the analogy of the corresponding affections of the brain. I allude more particularly to the ramollissement, which seems to be one of the most common morbid appearances in the acute affections of

INETANIMATION OF

the spinal cord, and which, think has been distinctly to mation. I again leave the judgment of the reader, and of it here, than as a ground portant subject has not yet attention which it merits: I that inflammation of the subcorresponding affection of fatally in f ur different forms.

I. In the inflammatory
II. By ramollissement.
III. By undefined sup
IV. By abscess.

§ I.—INFLAMMATION OF TH FATAL IN THE INFLAMM PIENT RAMOLLISSEMENT.

This part of the subject nation of the disease in the jerhans be considered as n steref re, be doubted wheth properly be referred to this h bearly allied to it, that I find A woman had long been su to n in the left lower extremity espearances of the menses; Jaiod: when the discharge to After the cessation of the me the age of 40, this extremity some time she was affected in tam, and soon after died com membranes of the spinal cord inflammation at some of the ord itself was very red and s on the left it was sound the Pottal Court d'Anatomie ve

^{*} Esquirol Bulletin de la Faculté de Medecino. + Morgagni, Ep. x..

.. . a 1 daring densition with - - 1 ling er bertie fie fits. When the spinal cord, and which, in reference to the brain, I think has been distinctly traced to be a result of inflama dat oil he had but or fire mation. I again leave this doctrine, however, to the pard-in he died at six judgment of the reader, and shall make no farther use I de a hall shain appeared as if of it here, that as a ground of arrangement. This im-1 . The 1th appear was sufficient and portant subject has not yet been investigated with that attention which it merits; but there is reason to believe, that inflammation of the substance of the cord, like the corresponding affection of the brain, may terminate l twenty-one, was affected fatally in four different forms: Tal. Warn the delirium sub-

TO THE SPINAL CAD.

: "tions of the superior extre-

i de ratise. On dissection,

1 1999 file spinal cort, at its

r ... were found distented with y injected. This was ile i dia rigin of some of the re vas a star up parance on the

1-1 1, and some chain a its sur-

. - 12 - 10 is the 30'strace of the

Table of sponding

to the one of the man

in the active all the

I. In the inflammatory stage.

II. By ramollissement.

III. By undefined suppuration.

IV. By abseess.

§ I.—Inflammation of the substance of the cord FATAL IN THE INFLAMMATORY STAGE WITH INCI-PIENT RAMOLLISSEMENT.

This part of the subject is obscure, and the termination of the disease in the inflammatory stage may perhaps be considered as not ascertained. It may, therefore, be doubted whether the following case can properly be referred to this head;—it is the one most

nearly allied to it, that I find on record.

A woman had long been subject to a convulsive affection in the left lower extremity, immediately before the appearances of the menses; this occurred at every period; when the discharge took place freely, it ceased. After the eessation of the menses, which happened at the age of 40, this extremity became paralytic. some time she was affected with convulsions of the left arm, and soon after died comatose. On dissection, the membranes of the spinal cord were found in a state of inflammation at some of the last dorsal vertebræ. The eord itself was very red and softened on the right side; on the left it was sound through its whole extent.*

^{*} Portal, Cours d'Anatomie Medicale, tome iv. page 116.

Lieutaud refers to a case described by Lælius a Fonte, in which death happened on the 14th day of continued fever, after paraplegia and suppression of urine; "in conspectum venit ren sinister, inflammatus et syderatus; læsa etiam erat medulla spinalis in codem latere."

§ II.—RAMOLLISSEMENT OF THE CORD.

This remarkable affection will be illustrated by the following important cases. In the first it was complicated with extensive inflammation of the membranes; the second shows the disease confined to the body of the cord; and the third is chiefly remarkable from its resemblance in the symptoms to an affection of the brain. The fourth shows the affection arising from an injury; and the fifth affords a very interesting example of the disease in a chronic form.

CASE CXLIII.—A gentleman, aged 18, of an unhealthy constitution, had suffered for several years from ulcers in various parts of his body, accompanied by exfoliation of bone, especially from the leg, thigh, and saerum. For several months before the fatal attack, he had a sore on his head with earies of the bone beneath, to the extent of a shilling or upwards. But he was in good general health, and was pursuing his studies at the University of Edinburgh, when, on the 24th September, 1823, he consulted my friend Dr. Hunter, on account of sore throat with slight fever, which passed off in two days; and, on the three following days, he was going about in his usual health. On the 30th, he was again confined to the house, and complained of pain in his loins without fever. On the 2d of October, this pain had increased; it was chiefly seated among the lower dorsal vertebræ, and extended downwards in the course of the urcters, with frequent desire to pass urine. On the 3d, the urinary symptoms were gone, the pain was diminished in violence, and it was lower down, being now chiefly referred to the sacrum. On the 4th.

RAMOLLISSEMENT OF

he continued in the same stat from fever; the pain in the ba vere, but as it was not removed

(5th.) The pain of the bac complained of pain of the bel publs; there was some dysuria, ness on the inner side of both t was retention of urine requiring

6th,) The numbness of the with acute darting pains occasi them, and complete retention of

7th.) Perfect paraplegia of hour loss of feeling; retention o stocks. The most judicious tread without any benefit.

8th.) I saw him for the fir Hunter. There was now performed by the extention of urine; pulse a was some pain, which was refer the dorsal region; there was no ling on the back was employed large blister, &c.

9th 10th, and 11th.) There that the pulse was becoming a mentioned, but it was not severe the numbross was extending upon.

12.h.) The numbness was exited the same pains were complained arms. The sore on the head be matter was discharged, the bone was in consequence of this appear had by a small head of a treph bone. In

Ata day of eo timed of a sound arme, win unhalls of epictates; a tellinate

FILE (ND.

.. 1 (1 The RD.

· Praymel by the From the A was entite gan fithe merfornes: . . commel to fe bely ci de de de de la comparcia de la on right an affection of the at it is arising from an " I, very intresting example

2 - 1 repretal years from

, the ly, accompanied by

The leg, thigh, and re the facal attack, he I with the tone beneath. Par he was in the state of the s It. Hutter, on . The extration of the he IL John Mark John B were the series the I See The Second of the .. W IT well drift to pass wine

he continued in the same state; he was entirely free from fever; the pain in the back was by no means severe, but as it was not removed, a blister was applied to

(5th,) The pain of the back was removed, but he complained of pain of the belly, especially about the pubis; there was some dysuria, and a feeling of numbness on the inner side of both thighs. At night there was retention of urine requiring the catheter.

(6th,) The numbness of the thighs was increased, with acute darting pains oceasionally shooting along

them, and complete retention of urine.

(7th,) Perfect paraplegia of both thighs and legs without loss of feeling; retention of urine, and involuntary stools. The most judicious treatment had been employ-

ed without any benefit.

(8th.) I saw him for the first time along with Dr. Hunter. There was now perfect paraplegia and complete retention of urine; pulse about 90 and soft. There was some pain, which was referred to the lower part of the dorsal region; there was no other symptom. Cupping on the back was employed, followed by another large blister, &e.

(9th, 10th, and 11th,) There was no change, except that the pulse was becoming a little frequent. His mind was entire. Some pain of the back was at times mentioned, but it was not severe, and he made no other complaint. Perfect palsy of the limbs continued, and the numbness was extending upwards upon the abdo-

mien.

(12th,) The numbress was extending upon the thorax; there was very little complaint of the back, but acute darting pains were complained of extending along both arms. The sore on the head being examined, and the opening enlarged, the bone was found earious, and some matter was discharged from it by a very small opening. In consequence of this appearance, a perforation was made by a small head of a trephine, but no disease was found beneath the bone. In the evening, his pulse

the posterier columns anterior part of it fell o The parts above and

RAMOLLISSEMEN

quite firm and healthy. CASE CXLIV .- A.

of March, 1823, was in on the outside of a co with pain of the right : the shoulder, but affect was also considerable some loss of power of at the upper part of th so gradually, that he w he had lost the power elbow. The leg then l dual manner, and after the commencement of arm had become comple tinned in the parts, and in the leg. About this Moncrieff, who found t He was quite sensible headach, and of pain ext the affected arm and leg enag paratires, &c., w was removed. The other the right leg and arm sometimes very painful mind quite entire. He the 26th of April, whe rather suddenly; it di pletely motionless as th left leg was not at all feetle, and his genera haustion. I saw him f slight delition, which he continued quite sens ant bain, except occasio

The Mar, when he be

having become more frequent, farther bleeding was employed with relief.

(13th,) No change; his mind was quite entire, and he made no complaint of anything; stools involun-

tary.

(14th.) The urine came off without the catheter, on raising him up into an erect posture. Pulse frequent and feeble; strength sinking. He died in the night, having continued quite sensible until about six hours before his death. There never had been the least attempt at motion of the lower extremities, but the sensibility remained.

Inspection.—In the brain all was quite sound, except some old thickening of the dura mater in the neighbourhood of the diseased bone. The bone was earious and very thin to the extent of a half-erown piece; around this portion it was thickened, especially on one side, where it was fully double the natural thickness. There was no effusion in the head, and no appearance of any

recent disease.

In opening the spinal eanal some purulent matter flowed out during the sawing, from about the middle of the dorsal region; and one of the vertebræ at that place was found eonsiderably carious. The canal being opened, there was found most extensive deposition of floeeulent matter, of a purulent appearance, on the outside of the membranes of the eord; it was most abundant for some inches about the lower part of the dorsal region, but likewise extended upwards to the fourth eervical vertebra. The dura mater of the eord being laid open, bloody sanious fluid was discharged from beneath it; and the pia mater was found highly The substance of the cord was found most vascular. extensively destroyed in its structure along nearly the whole extent of the dorsal portion. The anterior columns of this part were completely disorganized and broken down into a soft diffluent pulp; on the posterior part, the eord was more entire. When the whole eord was taken out and suspended, it hung together by the posterior columns of the dorsal portion, while the anterior part of it fell off entirely in a soft diffluent state. The parts above and below the diseased portion were quite firm and healthy.

Case CXLIV.—A man, aged 56, in the last week of March, 1823, was much exposed to cold in travelling on the outside of a coach, after which he was seized with pain of the right arm and leg, most severe about the shoulder, but affecting the whole side; and there was also considerable headach. He soon perceived some loss of power of the affected limbs, which began at the upper part of the arm, and extended downwards so gradually, that he was able to write distinctly, after he had lost the power of raising the arm or bending the elbow. The leg then became affected in the same gradual manner, and after about ten or twelve days from the commencement of the disease, the whole leg and arm had become completely paralytic. Some pain continued in the parts, and was sometimes severe, especially in the leg. About this time he was first seen by Dr. Moncrieff, who found the pulse 95, and rather sharp. He was quite sensible and still complained of some headach, and of pain extending from the shoulder along the affected arm and leg. Repeated bloodletting, blistering, purgatives, &c., were employed, and the headach was removed. The other symptoms continued as before; the right leg and arm were completely paralytic, and sometimes very painful; pulse 84, and rather weak; his mind quite entire. He continued in this state till about the 26th of April, when the left arm became paralytic rather suddenly; it did not however become so completely motionless as the limbs of the right side, and the left leg was not at all affected. The pulse was now feeble, and his general appearance expressive of exhaustion. I saw him first about this time. There was slight delirium, which however passed off again; and he continued quite sensible and even cheerful, without any pain, except occasionally in the right leg, till the 7th of May, when he became again delirious; the pulse

THE CRIPE CRO. if her being was em-· ml was q ite entire, a l tanti ne, stale involun-P F Ti at the confidence of three Poles is goent TI. He died in the night, · . . re until about six hours nev riped been the last at-"Ter . Tron di s. but the sensiin n ter in the reightour-. The one was can us and l'a lifer ma pace; around whome I respecting to no one side. to the nat rittle kness. There I, and no appearance of any i raga some jurulent matter saw ny, ir mail or the aiddle of on of the officer at that place in crieus. The canal being of perfective deposition of I pur out appearance, on the THE THE COLD, IT WAS IN A a our the laner fair of the a case extended upwards to the - The duranger of the cord ir sei us thaid nas discharged 1 11 p's mater was found bighty the bull six boal not is structure at its nearly the The anterior The anterior remains the many the m

120, and weak. On the 8th, he lay in a state of stupor, muttering incoherently, but answering questions distinetly when he was roused. He died on the morning of the 9th, having lost his speech a few hours before death. For the last eight or ten days there had been extensive gangrene on the sacrum.

Inspection.—Every part of the brain was found in the most healthy state. Much bloody fluid was discharged from the spinal canal into the cavity of the cranium before the spine was laid open. On laying open the spinal canal, the cord was found in a state of complete ramollissement, from the second to the last cervical vertebra; the parts above and below were quite healthy.

The following case shows the disease running its course with much greater rapidity, and with a different train of symptoms.

CASE CXLV.—A boy, aged 7, had been indisposed from the 18th to the 20th of May, 1823, but so as to attract little notice. There had been some headach and slight feverishness, for which he took purgative medicine, and on the morning of the 22d he scemed almost well. About two o'clock in the afternoon of that day, he was seized with severe and general convulsions. saw him soon after this, and found him confused, incoherent, and partially comatose; the pulse 60 and weak; face pale; the bowels were slow, and some worms had been passed. The usual remedies were employed with little effect.

(23,) In the morning he was partially eomatose, the eye fixed and insensible. In the course of the day he became less comatose, but incoherent, with much talking and screaming; complained of headach, and was impatient of light. In the evening there was slight appearance of squinting, and in the night some convulsions; pulse very variable, being sometimes rapid, and sometimes slow: the bowels were very obstinate, but yielded to repeated doses of croton oil.

(24th,) Seemed much better,—eye natural, face pale,

1 also 127. I on I, kept open I quite sensible, and said t ere but did not appear to suffer vourable state until early in when the convulsions returned which he sunk into a low o early in the afternoon.

TATIBLEST

Inspection.—There was no carce of disease in the brain. a considerable quantity of flui canal; and on laying open th good deal found between the brane. The cord was health but in the upper part of the d ably softened and broken do tended for several inches, but plice a complete separation t mise the cord, the part falling July through its whole diame the dorsal partion it was qui inner membrane of the cord w vascular, and showed evident ; the part corresponding with the

The following case if a which Hamir shows this affection : injury, with ut any affection of

Cast CXLTI - A man, ap was thrown from the top of a ten feet. He alighted upon such a manner, that the shock tact with the top of the pile, between the shoulders. He get up, but fell instantly from the lower extremities; and involuntary discharge of urine veyed home in this state, but die for him excent the pulse 120, howels kept open by the croton oil. He was quite sensible, and said there was still some headach, but did not appear to suffer: he continued in this favourable state until early in the morning of the 25th, when the convulsions returned with much severity, after which he sunk into a low oppressed state, and died early in the afternoon.

Inspection.—There was no effusion, and no appearance of disease in the brain. On removing the brain, a considerable quantity of fluid flowed from the spinal canal; and on laying open the canal there was still a good deal found between the cord and the external membrane. The cord was healthy at the cervical portion, but in the upper part of the dorsal region it was remarkably softened and broken down. This appearance extended for several inches, but varied in degree. place a complete separation took place in attempting to raise the cord, the part falling down into a soft diffluent pulp through its whole diameter. From the middle of the dorsal portion it was guite firm and healthy. inner membrane of the cord was dark-coloured, highly vascular, and showed evident marks of inflammation, at the part corresponding with the softened portion of the cord.

The following case (for which I am indebted to Dr. Hunter) shows this affection arising from an external injury, without any affection of the bones of the spine.

CASE CXLVI.—A man, aged 36, in August 1827, was thrown from the top of a waggon, a height of about ten feet. He alighted upon a pile of small stones, in such a manner, that the shock, on first coming in contact with the top of the pile, was received on his back, between the shoulders. He attempted immediately to get up, but fell instantly from complete loss of power of the lower extremities; and very soon after, he had involuntary discharge of urine and fæces. He was conveyed home in this state, but little appears to have been done for him except the application of sinapisms; and

. He died on the merning en a few hours before . Then does there had been 1 preto either wish and in the of the first discharged * OP CATATION the cranium n. On laying open the s f din a state of complete na to the lat certical veral elow were quite healthy.

T. T. F. IIII and.

. Fin a state of stoper.

destated - diesione gie-

The disease running its t r to div. and with a different

or agal 7. Lalleen i disposed W - 1820, 6 t so as to of I'm name healach and the set purgative medihe seen ed almost on the at them of that day. and gen recommend na. I . nd fundhim confused, inco-- its the prise thand needs Prices of mand some mam: bad I tome to more surfaced with I The Porting of matrie, the Ta the curse of to dir he at in A gent, with much call. or in 1 of beadach, and was , he ren'ng there was slight Al not beet some confulnichold i rapid, and Service of the property of the service of the servi

it was about a month after the accident, when he was received into the Infirmary of Edinburgh under the care of Dr. Hunter. He was then considerably emaciated, and there was complete loss of motion of the lower extremities, without loss of feeling, and all the muscles of the affected parts were in a remarkable state of flaccidity. He complained of deep seated pain on pressure of the region of the third, fourth, and fifth dorsal vertebræ. He had liquid stools, which were discharged involuntarily. His urine was at first discharged involuntarily, mixed with much viscid mucus; afterwards it became obstructed, apparently from the viscidity of the mucus impeding the passage, and he then required the catheter. His breathing was very slow, being generally, when he was asleep, about nine in a minute; and when awake about thirteen. His pulse and other functions were natural; his appetite was moderate, and his digestion good; his mind was quite entire. On the third day after his admission, he began to complain of pain in the temporal and masseter muscles, with inability to open the jaw; and this rapidly increased to perfect trismus. He then had emprosthotonos, and the usual tetanic symptoms; the abdominal muscles being very tense and hard, and the body considerably bent forward. On the following day more general spasms took place, affecting the arms and face, and the muscles about the neck and throat, with great difficulty of swallowing. The spasms now assumed the form of opisthotonos. He died in the night, about forty-eight hours after the first appearance of the trismus. All the usual remedies had been employed in the most active and judicious manner without benefit.

Inspection.—No injury could be detected in any of the bones of the spine. There was a high degree of vascularity of the pia mater of the cord, especially at the upper part of the dorsal region. There was most extensive ramollissement of the body of the cord, which affected chiefly the anterior columns. These were most remarkably softened throughout almost the whole course of the cord, in many places entirely diffluent, and the

softening was traced qui

RAMOLLISSE

and affected the corpo columns were also softe much smaller degree, m breaking down under vo

A remarkable modific which, although it is so cord, the symptoms apmities and adjoining or the lower parts of the br Ullivier, who was li of uneasiness in the th ing, accompanied by a neck, and lower part lowed by fever, difficu then had numbness o extended along the ar after affected in the san day they were both para least offected, nor the binels. There was at 1 extreme difficulty of sw be seen in the threat, a Ling preserved his int extensive ramollissement chiefy seated in the grey colar, with a highly var canecied with the part in the spinal canal, and ecular theme between the of the cord. The lung blood, and there was in clid membrane. In a mollissement at the up there was palsy of all th ence in the morbid appe seems to have been, that ther was ediffer sented in leten cherry nearly " . TILE C.L.

is accident when he was te-

Line 112' under the care of

ing sterab remodated, and

. :- n of e lower extremi-

and all the muscles of the

t state one of faccions.

n. Afrikk indrakte. He

and invitatily.

char 1 av intanis, mixed

: artsit b came obstruct-

vality of the mucus impeding

then required the eatherer. His

x | ng generally, when he was m me; . I when awake about

l riamins were natural;

. die sion ge d; his

im i'r ti ri day after bis al-

of the temporal

r 1 1.b. v to of a the jan;

The rest of the then

the training symptoms;

or pugge and hard, and 1. On the following

. The affering the arms

ine reck and throat. . with The stands have

13. H. A. I m .: 1

of the sold of the

godd Treats diene. and ju visus manner without

- 1.11 detected in any of

THE REPORT IN ART OF

The Total Land

The cart is

These were next

softening was traced quite to the upper part of the cord, and affected the corpora pyramidalia. The posterior columns were also softened in many places, though in a much smaller degree, not diffluent like the anterior, but breaking down under very slight pressure.

A remarkable modification of the disease occurs, in which, although it is seated in the upper part of the cord, the symptoms appear only in the superior extrcmities and adjoining organs, without any affection of the lower parts of the body. A gentleman mentioned by Ollivier, who was liable to epilepsy, complained first of uneasiness in the throat, with difficulty of swallowing, accompanied by an acute pain in the nape of the neck, and lower part of the occiput, and speedily followed by fever, difficult breathing and vomiting. He then had numbness of the left hand, which rapidly extended along the arm; the right was immediately after affected in the same manner, and on the following day they were both paralytic. His legs were not in the least affected, nor the functions of the bladder or the bowels. There was at last increase of dyspnæa with extreme difficulty of swallowing, while nothing could be seen in the throat, and he died on the eighth day, having preserved his intellects to the last. There was extensive ramollissement of the upper part of the cord, chiefly scated in the grey matter, which was of a rosecolour, with a highly vascular state of the membranes connected with the part; there was extensive effusion in the spinal canal, and some extravasated blood in the cellular tissue between the vertebræ and the dura mater of the cord. The lungs were dense and loaded with blood, and there was increased vascularity of the bronchial membrane. In another case, with extensive ramollissement at the upper part of the cervical portion, there was palsy of all the extremities. The only difference in the morbid appearances, betwixt the two cases, seems to have been, that the ramollissement in the former was chiefly seated in the grey matter, while in the latter it extended nearly through the whole thickness of

for several days. After the en risposmodies, this subsided u During the course of these complained of pain in various in the lower part, and afterwa feeling of numbness extended reached nearly the upper part of was felt in a very considerable

RATI LUSTALINE (

After this he became liable pight, terminating in the morn spiration, but this was strictly which were not palsied, and the moisture on the lower extremi unter extremities, a frequent while the lower continued cold t is time a considerable, but m tion continued in the lower

der continued entirely paralytic In April, 1828, he went to ine he had such a degree of n on a smooth gorden-walk, Jean supported by crutches. But so to emplain of pain in the head. for knozines and was often to spet, on rancus parts, especial sometimes to the tip of the ea abate under the use of arsenie Lecame were fixed and perman obs again increased. Alter months, he returned to town i At this time the headach was the timbs so much impaired t ned to bed. In a few days a arm became paralytic, and his laired. After a day or two, sabsided, but in the following

tope and died in the afternoon.

plete loss of sensation of the

Ollivier has also described several cases which followed a course similar to Case CXLV, being fatal in about three days, with violent convulsion without paralysis.

The disease occurs in a more chronic form, in which it may go on for a considerable time, sometimes for years, before it is fatal. There is generally in these eases some uneasiness in the back, with paralytic symptoms, beginning in a part of a limb, and in a slight degree, and advancing very gradually to confirmed palsy. The lower extremities are most commonly affected, but in some eases the arms only, and in others all the limbs. There is sometimes permanent contraction of the affected limbs, and sometimes there are spasmodic affections of them; and the disease may go on in this manner for years, and at last be fatal by ramollissement.

This form will be illustrated by the following ease,

which I saw along with Dr. Alison.

CASE CXLVII.—A gentleman, aged 42, in October, 1827, began to be affected with pain in the lower part of the back, stretching round the abdomen, and frequently shooting into the groins. After a short time this was succeeded by coldness and numbness of his feet, which gradually extended upwards with diminished power of motion, until, after several weeks, it terminated in perfect loss of motion of both lower extremities, with retention of urine. There was pain in some parts of the affected limbs, and in others a painful sensation of cold. This perfect loss of power continued five or six weeks, when after a great deal of treatment by cupping, blistering, &c. he recovered a slight degree of motion, but no power of the bladder. He then began to be affected with spasms of the muscles of the back and abdomen, with a very uneasy sensation of tightness across the abdomen, and at times across the lower part of the thorax. The spasms occasionally assumed the characters of opisthotonos, and at one time he had almost incessant hiccup, which continued in a most violent degree

Col. of Sectional Offices

... (M. ps. the appropriate to the

are referriefra, in which

ic if r. a time, s medi es fo

. The is order by in there

with faralytic er p-

missib, and in a side dis-

are a second relationship affected, but

de la classica de l'abs.

re are spasm die affections of

n by a on in this manner for

strit d'y the following case,

- Vani napril 42, in October,

in in size in the lower part

position of men, and fre-

roms. After a short time

nue nes flis leek

- Is wild diminished

neeki it (etmoste

i il net exilentus.

nt. Lea Luctin sevenue

t ; ; ; at t company fire et

The fine

E Clebukani

the back and the same and the s

Fig THICKS WILL

In Alson.

for several days. After the employment of various antispasmodies, this subsided under the use of musk. During the course of these symptoms he frequently complained of pain in various parts of the spine, at first in the lower part, and afterwards higher up; and the feeling of numbness extended gradually upwards, till it reached nearly the upper part of the dorsal region, and was felt in a very considerable degree along the sides of the thorax.

After this he became liable to feverish attacks at night, terminating in the morning by very profuse perspiration, but this was strictly confined to the parts which were not palsied, and there never was the smallest moisture on the lower extremities. He had also, in the upper extremities, a frequent feeling of intense heat, while the lower continued cold and benumbed. During this time a considerable, but very imperfect, degree of motion continued in the lower extremities, but the bladder continued entirely paralytic.

In April, 1828, he went to the country, and at this time he had such a degree of motion as to walk a little on a smooth garden-walk, leaning on two persons, or supported by erutehes. But soon after this he began to complain of pain in the head. It occurred in irregular paroxysms, and was often referred to a small defined spot, on various parts, especially behind the ear, and sometimes to the tip of the ear. This pain seemed to abate under the use of arsenie; but soon returned, and became more fixed and permanent, and the palsy of the limbs again increased. After an absence of about two months, he returned to town in the beginning of July. At this time the headach was severe, and the power of the limbs so much impaired, that he was entirely eonfined to bed. In a few days after his return, the right arm became paralytie, and his speech considerably impaired. After a day or two, these symptoms rather subsided, but in the following night he became comatose and died in the afternoon. There never was complete loss of sensation of the affected limbs; he had

only complained of it occasionally at particular spots, and of a general feeling of numbness and coldness.

Inspection.—There were some seales of bone attached loosely to the inner surface of the dura mater of the spinal cord. The whole cord was of a pale rose-colour, and in a state of complete ramollissement through its whole extent, being in every part entirely diffluent. The medulla oblongata was tolerably healthy, except a slight degree of softening on its anterior part; and there was also a degree of softening on the tuber annulare, which seemed to involve the origin of the fifth nerve. Beyond this, the ramollissement became again more decided, extending along the crura eerebri and eerebelli, and eon-siderably into the substance of the brain, at the part adjoining the erura. The brain, in other respects, was healthy, and there was no effusion in the ventricles.

It is difficult to trace the precise nature and progress of the affection of the cord, when the disease advances in so gradual a manner as in this ease, and terminates in disorganization so complete and extensive. In tracing the history of the analogous disease of the brain, we found reason to believe, that it is originally an inflammatory affection of a low chronic character, seated in a small part of the cerebral substance; that it may eontinue for a considerable time in the state of simple inflammation, and then subside; or that it may terminate by a permanent change in the structure of the part, generally with some degree of induration. In this state we find it when the patient dies of another disease, as in Case CXXXV. When it is itself the fatal disease, it seems to be so by passing either into ramollissement, or into partial and unhealthy suppuration. It is proble that the same character of disease takes place in the spinal cord; and it is found, in the same manner, sometimes in a state of ramollissement, sometimes in the state of induration, and sometimes one part is found indurated and another softened. In a remarkable ease communicated to Ollivier by Audral, the affection beRAMOLLESEMENT

can with numbress of the fo which gradually extended or some time the other hand ar the same manner, and, after ties. All the limbs then bec near contraction, but without were bent upon the thighs, abdomen, and the arms rigin with the points of the finger of the hands. If attempts limbs from these positions, t modic contractions with mu in this state at the end of mencement of the disease. length of the cord, there w a soft grey mucus. It was ranollissement of the grey and the parietes of the co white matter in a healthy sta in which palsy took place in but affected only the lower ex confined to bed for seven year up upon his body, and wer preserved their feeling. Ther ment of the anterior pillars of markable circumstance was, createst in the upper parts of midalia, and ceveral parts of towards the lumbar portion. had been almost entirely old his arms continued entire to ficulties and obscurities of the A different course of sym are ease described by M. Ri 41. who had slight curvature late was seized with Pain in after several remissions, incr bred by sudden and comple They became ricid, contracte

John

Acca to the spaticular spots, were some scales of hone attached was of a pale rose-colour, the ramollissment through its more remained with the attached was of a pale rose-colour, the ramollissment through its more report a night which was anterior port; and there was a the taken the firm near the fifth nerve. Beyond at the taken and cerebelli, and contains a creek and cerebelli, and contains a the part of the brain, at the part of the brain, at the part of the part of the brain, at the part of the part of the brain, at the part of the part of the brain, at the part of the brain at the brai

Ave vie procise nature and progress the of lawhen the disease advances en r in this case, and terminates and spand extensive. In traci disease of the brain, we it is prignally an inflam-1) Character, seated in a r' m' sal stance; that it may con-A some a tie size of simple iner land it may terminale a die strayare of the part. In this state 1 9:18.77 F \$ 1 ab 24 7 16:28.28 15 Bails hard to had dispute Lower 1 20 true in where r son unit a le is proin the same many transfer ent. : merimes in the The source of th gan with numbness of the fore-finger of the left hand, which gradually extended over the hand and arm. After some time the other hand and arm became affected in the same manner, and, after a year, the lower extremities. All the limbs then became paralytic, with permanent contraction, but without loss of feeling. The legs were bent upon the thighs, and the thighs upon the abdomen, and the arms rigidly fixed across the thorax, with the points of the fingers pressed against the palms of the hands. If attempts were made to move the limbs from these positions, they were thrown into spasmodic contractions with much pain. The patient died in this state at the end of eight years from the commencement of the disease. Along nearly the whole length of the cord, there was a central cavity full of a soft grey mucus. It was considered as arising from ramollissement of the grey central matter of the cord, and the parietes of the cavity were formed by the white matter in a healthy state. In a case by Ollivier, in which palsy took place in the same gradual manner, but affected only the lower extremities, the patient was confined to bed for seven years. His legs were drawn up upon his body, and were entirely motionless, but prescried their feeling. There was extensive ramollissement of the anterior pillars of the cord: and a very remarkable circumstance was, that the softening was greatest in the upper parts of the cord, the corpora pyramidalia, and several parts of the brain, and became less towards the lumbar portion. The intellectual faculties had been almost entirely obliterated, but the motion of his arms continued entire to the last. Such are the difficulties and obscurities of this interesting subject.

A different course of symptoms occurs in a remarkable case described by M. Rullicr.* A gentleman, aged 44, who had slight curvature of the spine at the upper part, was seized with pain in the eurved portion, which, after several remissions, increased rapidly, and was followed by sudden and complete palsy of both his arms. They became rigid, contracted, and entirely motionless,

^{*} Journal de Physiologie, 1823.

and the points of the fingers were forced against the palms of the hands. The sensibility of the parts was not impaired, and the lower extremities were not in the least affected, for the patient could walk about without diffieulty. He lived six years in this state, and died of peetoral complaints. A portion of the eard, six inches in length, occupying two-thirds of the eervical portion, and part of the dorsal, was entirely diffluent, so that before the membranes were opened, it moved upwards and downwards like a fluid. The posterior roots of the nerves of this portion preserved their nervous matter, to their junction with the membranes of the eord, but in the anterior roots it was destroyed, and they were reduced to an empty neurilema. Several other eases are mentioned in the same journal, intended to show the separate origin of the nerves of sensation and motion from the different parts of the eard. In one ease, there was loss of power of the whole body without loss of sensibility, and the disease was in the anterior part of the cord. In another, there was complete palsy of the legs, and partial palsy of the arms, while the sensibility was everywhere morbidly increased. The medullary matter of the cord was singularly contracted in volume. The anterior part of its upper half was of a reddish-brown eolour, and as it were macerated; the roots of the nerves inserted there were so wasted as to be searcely discernible, while the posterior roots were preternaturally large.

A case mentioned by Ollivier seems to establish the inflammatory origin of the ramollissement of the cord, and at the same time shows the insidious and dangerous nature of injuries of the spine. A man having suffered an injury of the spine by a fall, ten months after the accident had prickling of the left lower extremity, which ceased after a month, leaving it paralytic. The right lower extremity became affected in the same manner; and some projection of the vertebræ at the affected part was then first observed. He had afterwards convulsive motions of the limbs, and died about a month after the appearance of the palsy. On dissection there was found false membrane of an inch in extent, with purulent matter, betwixt the bone and the membranes of the cord at the

affected part; and the portion of diseased membrane was entire! Above and below this portion, the consistence, but highly injected, a specially below the softened part

intense

RAMOLLISSEMENT OF

I shall conclude this part of the having very remarkable case, for Dr. Molison. I did not see the, but was present at the latter of the body, when the spinish of the very interesting reflection are from it.

CASE CXLVIII.—A street Lebruary, 1827, had frequently back, and in both sides of the i breathing when making any g ath before his death the pain the severe, and he had great diff the general health, however, was and on Monday, loth July, he Newbaren, three miles from Edin went into the sea to bathe. Whil as he afterwards stated, he became a attempting to come out, fell ; he was taken up, he was bleeding and mouth; and, after he was c horse, he vomited blood in large ie following night he was resile sble, and talked incoherently; h which were represented as com Fres became fixed, and there was ton in his legs but without any which appear to have become later of the adjack. On the lottly affected part; and the portion of the cord included in the diseased membrane was entirely diffluent like eream. Above and below this portion, the cord was of a natural consistence, but highly injected, and of a deep red colour, especially below the softened part, where the redness was intense.

I shall conclude this part of the subject with the following very remarkable ease, for which I am indebted to Dr. Molison. I did not see the patient during his life, but was present at the latter part of the inspection of the body, when the spinal cord was examined. I shall simply relate the case, without entering upon any of the very interesting reflections which might naturally arise from it.

CASE CXLVIII.—A street porter, aged 37, since February, 1327, had frequently complained of pain in his back, and in both sides of the thorax, with difficulty of breathing when making any great exertion. For a month before his death the pain of his back had been more severe, and he had great difficulty of swallowing. His general health, however, was very little impaired; and on Monday, 15th July, he carried a burden to Newhaven, three miles from Edinburgh, and afterwards went into the sea to bathe. While he was in the sea, as he afterwards stated, he became very confused, and, on attempting to come out, fell among stones. When he was taken up, he was bleeding profusely at the nose and mouth; and, after he was carried to an adjoining house, he vomited blood in large quantities. Through the following night he was restless and partially insensible, and talked incoherently; he had several attacks which were represented as convulsive, in which his eyes became fixed, and there was much tremulous motion in his legs, but without any motion in his arms, which appear to have become paralytic at an early period of the attack. On the 16th, he was first seen by Dr. Molison: immediately before his visit, he had brought up a large quantity of blood, which ran from his mouth

The Cond - 13 Were judget region by . All F of the parts was not Time. All S Witte P t in the least nd walk as it without diffithe state, and died of pecor of the end six is besin the state of the port of and in Mt. 30 i at lifte bas shaway 1970.1 II I le proterior roots of the r r it er nerrous matter, to . S if cases are menthe separeserves and motion from r rd. In one cise, there was A to with at less of sensionnon rout of the cord. is salst of the legs, and de Seast in mas every. The m. the ary matter of in the an-1.11 was of a feelflish-brown equal; the talk of the perces 1 . In be scarcely discerni-We preventation, plane. You and seems to establish the is one issement of the ord, es are last if us and dangerous e 1 man baying suffered . n · a in. ten months after the Which the Executive The Hold it and the affected part He had afterfaced a graphite are med are mortis of artistra

in a full stream, and then coagulated. He was somewhat lethargie, but distinct when roused; and complained of pain in his head, chest, and bowels. His head and his legs were in almost constant motion, but his arms were paralytic, being entirely deprived both of motion and feeling. His breathing was easy; his pulse frequent and small; eountenance pale and anxious; and he had involuntary discharge of urine. In the evening, he again vomited blood in considerable quantities. (17th,) There was little change, except that he recovered the power of the bladder; perfect palsy of the arms continued, but his legs were in almost constant motion. There was no return of the vomiting of blood through the day; at night he fell asleep, and slept quietly for some hours, when he awoke quite sensible; but soon after, was seized with vomiting of blood to a great extent, and died almost immediately.

Inspection.—The heart and lungs were healthy; the stomach contained a very large and firm mass of coagulated blood, which entirely filled it, and extended into the duodenum. In the descending aorta, about the 4th and 5th dorsal vertebræ, there was an aneurism the size of an orange, which had burst into the œsophagus by a large opening. The 3d, 4th, and 5th dorsal vertebræ were extensively carious in their bodies, where the substance was destroyed to the depth of a quarter of an inch. On opening the spinal canal, some bloody albuminous-looking matter was found between the bone and the dura mater of the cord, and between the dura and pia mater of the eord, there was a considerable quantity of a tenacious sanious bloody matter, which covered the surface of the pia mater, from about the 2d or 3d to the last dorsal vertebra. The substance of the cord, from about the 3d to the last dorsal vertebra, was of a yellowish colour, and in a state of extensive ramollissement, especially about the centre of this space, where it was entirely diffluent. On removing the cord, the anterior part of the spinal canal, viewed from behind, presented several places where the bones were

TSUCTIMED STI. BARR S

deruded of their covering an most remarkable ab ut the old vertebre.

§ III.—UNDEFINED SUPPURA

It may perhaps be doubted, who which I lave referred to this head, be referable to the ramollissement. conditions were not accurately disc but in the brain there seems every they are entirely distinct; and it may likewise be so in the cord. 1. A woman, aged 23, who had from syphilis, was seized with so mittent, which proved very tedious, usual remedies. After some time. by pain in the lumbar region, diarrl mus general debility, and emaciat months after the commencement of t to be affected with weakness and con to eleft lower extremity, resembling ing the leg was dragged, and, if she string effort, a greater degree of motion ion coarulaive distortions. Soon after came affected in the same manner, also convolve motions of the face e inplaint in the bowels now crased, b t ms increased, and the affection amounted to nearly complete paralysis affected with difficulty of articulation of memory; and these soon terminate come and death, which was precede terrible convulsions. Her death happy than a month after the commencement agretion of the leg. On dissertion effusin was found in the thorax, and in of the brain. The spinal cord was bendrane was in many

denuded of their covering and carious This was most remarkable about the 3d, 4th, and 5th dorsal vertcbræ.

§ III.—Undefined suppuration of the cord.

It may perhaps be doubted, whether some of the cases which I have referred to this head, ought not rather to be referable to the ramollissement. These two morbid conditions were not accurately discriminated till lately: but in the brain there seems every reason to believe that they are entirely distinct; and it is probable that they

may likewise be so in the cord.

1. A woman, aged 23, who had suffered considerably from syphilis, was seized with severe quotidian intermittent, which proved very tedious, and resisted all the usual remedies. After some time, it was accompanied by pain in the lumbar region, diarrhoea, tormina, tenesmus, general debility, and emaciation. About three months after the commencement of the fever, she began to be affected with weakness and convulsive motions of the left lower extremity, resembling chorea. In walking, the leg was dragged, and, if she attempted, by a strong effort, a greater degree of motion, it was thrown into convulsive distortions. Soon after, the left arm became affected in the same manner, and there were also convulsive motions of the face and eyes. The complaint in the bowels now ceased, but the other symptoms increased, and the affection of the limbs soon amounted to nearly complete paralysis. She was then affected with difficulty of articulation, and diminution of memory; and these soon terminated in loss of speech, eoma, and death, which was preceded by general and terrible convulsions. Her death happened rather more than a month after the commencement of the eonyulsive affection of the leg. On dissection, some serous effusion was found in the thorax, and in the ventrieles of the brain. The spinal cord was soft and flaccid, and to a considerable extent suppurated. Its investing membrane was in many places covered by a puriform

e di say I a mi sutte. on to sed; and com-. i. I hora. His to the protection in the but to I or position: its palse di togo of urine. In the - . . . ng . except that be . Les were in alm et conof the second of the complication r. President asleep, and e. The art he quite senorn, and did almost immedi-... The were builty; the ry the min mass of enoughr log and exterded into on into ita, a nut the 4th a three an aneurism the size of a copy agus by a · the following the state of th nhere the sub. denta is quarter of an hodi alba. ence the bone and and the dura me aun natter chief maken to make the M The sil sil sil siy of the Terrora ma nui a a state extensive rample range extensive rample range extensive range range extensive range range range extensive range range

i.

fluid; and there was also serous effusion in the spinal canal.*

2. A young soldier, who had lately recovered from a petechial fever, was affected with pain in the dorsal vertebræ, difficulty of moving the lower extremities, retention of urine, involuntary discharge of feces, general debility and emaciation. A variety of treatment was employed for several months without relief. The weakness of the lower extremities increased to perfect paralysis; and, soon after, the superior extremities became affected in the same manner. He then lost his speech, and, after lying a fortnight in this state, completely immoveable and speechless, but in possession of his intellectual faculties, he died suddenly. On inspection, there was found no trace of disease in the brain, the thorax, or the abdomen. The spinal canal was inundated by a large quantity of sanious fluid. The eard itself was suppurated, dissolved, and disorganized, at the lower part of the dorsal region; above this, it preserved its figure, but was very soft. Its investing membranes, and the periosteum lining the eanal of the vertebræ, were destroyed at the part where the cord was so much diseased; but the vertebræ and their ligaments were sound.*

3. A man, aged 40, was received into the hospital of Crema, in the spring of 1804, with no other complaint than general weakness and depression, for which no cause could be assigned. He lay constantly in bed, but did not complain of any pain; his appetite was good; and he was free from fever. From being lean and pale, he became so fat and ruddy that suspicious were entertained that he was feigning; but as winter approached, he became lean and cachectic. In February, 1805, he became completely paralytic, both in his legs and arms; and he died suddenly in March. On inspection all was sound in the head, the thorax, and the abdomen. In the spinal canal there was

much effusion of blinflammation and su substance of which wildissolution.

8 IV.-A

A woman, aged 56. power of the limbs of the It soon amounted to feeble, and her spee respiration quick. T After four days the pulse feeble; increasing and she died in a wee Inspection .- The b was injected. In the spinal cord, in the mid was a cavity three inch diameter. It was full became more consisten evity. It seemed to be c averted into pus. T firm, and about a line an formed by the healthy w of the same portion of disease, but less extensi and one line in diamo Jurulent, rather research substance of the cord, were hardened at the I g 220 Leuiou't

> † Brera, ul su † Velpeau Re

^{*} Brera Della Rachialgite, cenni patalogici. In Atti dell' Accad. Ital, tom, i.

as efficient in the spinal by the spinal to the spinal to the distance of the

CROD SILL F 7"

h pain in the dors.

"low it extractions, reof fives, general

to the treatment was
the last. The weak-

The function of the brain of the state of the state of the but of the but of the state of the but o

s duid. The cord isset
dissipatived at the lower
reft is it preserted its
somewhat merchans.

where the cord was so

The received into the hospital of the second into the hospital of the second into the hospital of the second into the second i

much effusion of bloody sanious fluid, with marks of inflammation and suppuration in the spinal cord, the substance of which was remarkably soft, and tending to dissolution.*

§ IV.—ABSCESS OF THE CORD.

A woman, aged 56, was affected with sudden loss of power of the limbs of the left side, without loss of feeling. It soon amounted to perfect palsy; her voice became feeble, and her speech embarrassed; pulse natural; respiration quick. The left arm became ædematous. After four days the speech could not be understood; pulse feeble; increasing debility; stertorous breathing; and she died in a week.

Inspection.—The brain was sound, but the pia mater was injected. In the centre of the right column of the spinal cord, in the middle of the cervical portion, there was a eavity three inches long, and two or three lines in diameter. It was full of a soft matter like pus, which became more consistent towards the parietes of the cavity. It seemed to be the grey substance of the cord converted into pus. The parietes of the cavity were firm, and about a line and a half in thickness, and were formed by the healthy white matter. In the left column of the same portion of the cord there was a similar disease, but less extensive, being about one inch long, and one line in diameter; and its contents were less purulent, rather resembling ramollissement of the substance of the cord. The membranes of the cord were hardened at the part, and also at a part in the dorsal region. †

^{*} Brera, ut supra. † Velpeau Revue Medicale, 1826.

SECTION III.

SEROUS EFFUSION IN THE SPINAL CANAL.

I PLACE this appearance by itself, abstaining from any hypothetical speculations in regard to the origin of it. I have already alluded to the ambiguity which attends serous effusion when it occurs between the dura mater and the inner membrane of the cord, on account of the free communication which this space has with the cavity of the cranium, or at least with the cellular texture of the arachnoid of the brain. When the effusion is contained in the cavity formed between the dura mater and the canal of the vertebræ, there can be no doubt of its connexion with disease of the spinal canal.

The following is the most distinctly marked case of this affection that has occurred to me.

CASE CXLIX.—A strong healthy child, aged nearly 2 years, after having been oppressed and feverish for two days, was seized with violent convulsion. The first fit continued about an hour, and left her comatose with distortion of the eyes. She had not recovered out of this state when she had another attack of convulsion, about two hours after the first. During the fits and for some time after them, there was violent and irregular action of the heart, and a peculiar spasmodic action of the diaphragm. The second fit left her in a state of coma from which she never recovered. She took food or medicine when they were put into her mouth, but showed no other appearance of sensibility. The eye was completely insensible, and the pulse very frequent. She had afterwards several slight attacks of convulsion, and one more severe a short time before death, which happened thirty-three hours after the first attack.

Inspection.—No diseexcept some appearance slight effusion under cerebellum being remov of bloody fluid from the laid open, there was colourless fluid, of a gele canal of the vertebræ ar It was most abundant in the dorsal regions. Between the cavit of the cord, at the upperal, and very easily torm and abdomen were perfe

SEROTS LEFT 2005

was pervious by a small
The effusion on the of
The effusion on the of
case, was fairly to be co
the spinal canal; but to
membranes, though some
to be overlooked, especial
duid is bloody, while the
of the brain is colourless.

In a child, aged betwee Ohivier, who died with sy cult deglutition, and comand very consistent fluid, the dura mater of the contain the dorsal region, and the arachnoid of the nous concretion for four

The following cases are whose names are annexed canal.

feeled with acute pain an

N THE BAD HE CAZAL

the t. abstaining from any if the cord, on account of the Tare has with the cavity with the relutar texture of Ween he effusion is coners in the dura mater and r bran be no doubt of its site ajinai and.

n - listingly marked case of ः तं व वा वार. er re' mality child, aged neady resid and ferensh for The first proudsion. The first '-ur, and left her comarce with Pal Borr Crepad out of this a grate in appli maket Dering the fix and for some , may right and irregular action Table Training to artin of the Fr letter in a state of coma ortoned Sacrok food or the line by month par The ere it is a refer to the ere it is a real to the e

have by the lift this.

Inspection.—No disease could be detected in the brain, except some appearance of increased vascularity, and slight effusion under the araehnoid. The brain and eerebellum being removed, there was a copious discharge of bloody fluid from the spinal eanal. The canal being laid open, there was found a copious deposition of colourless fluid, of a gelatinous appearance, betwixt the eanal of the vertebræ and the dura mater of the eord. It was most abundant in the eervical and upper part of the dorsal regions. Between the membranes of the cord there remained a small quantity of the bloody fluid which had flowed into the eavity of the eranium. The substance of the cord, at the upper part, seemed softer than natural, and very easily torn. All the viscera of the thorax and abdomen were perfectly healthy. The foramen ovale was pervious by a small opening.

The effusion on the outside of the dura mater, in this case, was fairly to be considered as a distinct disease of the spinal canal; but the other effusion between the membranes, though somewhat more ambiguous, is not to be overlooked, especially if we should find that this fluid is bloody, while the effusion under the araehnoid

of the brain is colourless.

In a child, aged between 3 and 4 years, mentioned by Ollivier, who died with symptoms of opisthotonos, diffieult deglutition, and coma, he found deposition of a red and very consistent fluid, in the cellular texture between the dura mater of the eard and the canal of the vertebræ in the dorsal region, serosity within the membranes. and the arachnoid of the eord eovered with an albuminous concretion for four inches.

The following eases are given by the eminent writers whose names are annexed to them, as examples of diseases depending upon serous effusion within the spinal canal.

1. Morgagni mentions a man, aged 40, who was affeeted with acute pain and weight in the lower dorsal in the ventricles.*

vertebræ, the pain oceasionally extending upwards or downwards to the top and bottom of the spine. After eleven days he was seized with paralysis of the right lower extremity, and in three days more with retention of urine. The pain was now so acute as to prevent him from lying down, and was soon after accompanied by dyspnæa, vomiting, and tonic convulsions of the trunk and arms, which recurred at intervals, and continued for about fifteen minutes. The left inferior extremity then became paralytic, and he died suddenly; his intellectual faculties had continued entire, except during the paroxysms of convulsion. On inspection much fluid was found in the eavity of the spine, but the cord was sound; there was also fluid on the surface of the brain, but none

2. A child, aged 12 months, whose ease is briefly related by Mr. Chevalier, after appearing to be in much pain, lost the use of the inferior extremities, and died in three days. The spinal eanal was found full of bloody scrum.

3. Bonetus mentions a young woman who, after suffering severely from cholic, fell into paralysis. It began at the upper part of the arms, and extended gradually to the points of the fingers. Afterwards the legs became affected, and she died of gradual exhaustion a year after the first appearance of paralysis. Through the whole extent of the spinal cord, there was a space betwixt its dura and pia mater, full of serous fluid. There was also some effusion on the brain.‡

4. A man mentioned by Portal had numbness of the inferior extremities, followed by paralysis of them, and extensive ædema. After some time the arms became affected in the same manner, and the ædema extended over the whole body. He died comatose. On inspection much fluid was found both in the brain and in the spinal canal. In the centre of the spinal cord there was a

one! It was ful of sets us as the third dorsal vertebra.

SECTION.

S1344 41

STINAL APOPLEST, OR USTRA

Case CL .- A child, aged 7 d was observed not to suck, and prevented by something which 265 tongue. Through the fol uently, and still did not suck seen by Mr. White, who fou spasm, but by very little force tie third day he was seized with and at various intervals, sor ic spasm of the whole body, a configure agreement. On the tuned, and he died in the af Todal "- yo grave on brain. In the spinal canal, the and very firm coars by a of bi I nes and the membranes of the lart, and extending the whole

This is the only case that have remortable affection; but as a land and to present some very land and the following the following after a few days the person was fatal, after continuing five.

^{*} Morgagni de Causis et Sedibus, &c. Epis. 10. Sect. 13.

⁺ Med. Chir. Trans. vol. iii.

I Boneti Sepulchretum Anatomicum, tom. i.

A extensing abusing a to tellate After w o paralysis of the night to a dara to be not be retention Triangle te as to prevent im a 11-7 ac oparied by re re, exceed during the pari = on much fluid was

TE ALMIE CANTE

r rearing to be in much in rext mities, and died in - I was i and full of bloody

- r e ci the brain, but none

rang weman who, after suf-, telling panalysis. It began ere and extended gradually s. Airerwards the legs became That exhibition a rear after r salves. Through the whole there wis a space betwirt its There was also

by Provided and types of the Thy paralysis of them, and 1 sant time the arms became er, al the orient executed nover the speak Fr shigh cold their as: 3 E. W. Ser 13

canal into which a large writing quill could be introduced. It was full of serous fluid, and extended as far as the third dorsal vertebra.

SECTION IV.

SPINAL APOPLEXY, OR EXTRAVASATION OF BLOOD IN THE SPINAL CANAL.

Case CL.—A child, aged 7 days, 1st September, 1818, was observed not to suck, and appeared as if he were prevented by something which impeded the motion of his tongue. Through the following day he cried frequently, and still did not suck; in the evening he was seen by Mr. White, who found the jaw clenched by spasm, but by very little force it could be opened. On the third day he was seized with convulsion, which recurred at various intervals, sometimes in the form of tonic spasm of the whole body, and sometimes of violent convulsive agitation. On the fourth the convulsion continued, and he died in the afternoon.

Inspection.—No disease could be detected in the brain. In the spinal canal, there was found a long and very firm coagulum of blood, lying between the bones and the membranes of the cord on the posterior part, and extending the whole length of the cervical

portion.

This is the only case that has occurred to me of this remarkable affection; but as it appears to be uncommon, and to present some very interesting phenomena, I am induced to add the following examples.

1. A lady, aged 40, had headach and pain of the back; after a few days the pain of the back became very acute, and violent convulsion took place, which was fatal, after continuing five or six hours. All was

sound in the brain, but extensive extravasation of blood was found in the spinal eanal, which was most abund-

ant about the seat of the pain.*

2. A gentleman, aged 61, had just arrived in Paris from a long journey, when he complained of pain of his back, extending from the cervical vertebræ quite to the sacrum. After a few hours he was seized with paraplegia, and incontinence of urine and feces; and he died while the physician was talking to him, who had been sent for on the occurrence of the palsy. There was extensive extravasation of blood in the spinal eanal, under the membranes of the cord. At the lower part it formed a mass like a bouillie of bullock's blood, in which the substance of the cord eould not be distinguished, as far as the third dorsal vertebra; and above this, where the cord was entire, it was of a deep red colour, and very soft.

3. A young lady, aged 14, had headach and pain in the back, with a tendency to sickness on sitting up. At the end of a week there was a sudden and violent aggravation of this pain, followed by general convulsions, which were fatal in five or six hours. The spinal eanal was found filled with extravasated blood, in the lumbar region, which had been the scat of the pain.

The brain and all the other viscera were sound.

4. A miller, in lifting a heavy sack, suddenly lost the use of his lower extremities, and died in fifteen days. Extravasated blood was found, mixed with sanious matter, in the spinal eanal. The membranes were inflained, and the nerves of the cauda equina appeared rotten, as if they had been long macerated in putrid water.

5. A gentleman died of a disease which was consisidered as apopleetic, but in which he retained his men-

* Ollivier, ut supra.

‡ Chevalier Med. Chir. Trans. vol. iii.

Chevalier, ut supra.

tal faculties to the la the brain, but there v blood in the spinal ca 6. A man received lumbar vertebræ, by a he died in four hours in the spinal canal, bu the cord was healthy.

7. A log, aged 14 neck by a cord which was swinging forwa and weak in the lim difficulty in moving l accident the weakness plegia; and soon aff with retention of urin this state when he wa spine; he then had di was first observed duri while he was awake; recely from it for two ten months from the vi leat attack of pain in extravatated blood was the bone and the thece golated, and partly flui the upper part of the cervical vertebra.

The following very Dr. Bright, and was co le affords the only exp r gular apoplectic cys gus is that affection ;

⁺ M. Gaultier de Claubry, Jour. Gen. de Med. 1808.

tal faculties to the last. No disease was discovered in the brain, but there was a great quantity of extravasated blood in the spinal canal.*

6. A man received a violent blow on the three inferior lumbar vertebræ, by a log of wood which fell upon him; he died in four hours. Extravasated blood was found in the spinal canal, but the vertebræ were entire and

the cord was healthy.

ST. 71.

of door respective ar. . W. h was most aland.

. A bust arrived in Paris

he comp, ined of pain of

cerrical remains ruite to

11) is in a spized with

e of unine a life..s; and

unine of the paler.

tra-atten of lled in the

a mass like a bouillie of

a substance of the cord

l, thir as the third dorsal

- the cord was entire, it

14.1 Liea ach and pain in

y to a laneis on sitting up.

nas a Miden and ri lent

red reperation rule.

or sandys. The spinal

strarged blad, in the

ten in sait of the pain.

on it and the in theen

्रमा अस्ति । जारे विश्व कार्यक्षेत्र कार्यक्षेत्र कार्यक्षेत्र कार्यक्षेत्र कार्यक्ष

The membranes

es fife ent enionap.

Line in Lacerated in

. .. . oe H' . h ras (erei.

. hadianilan

. , ; ; ;

THE PER SOUDING 7 177 Set, sudden y lost

7. A boy, aged 14, received a violent jerk of his neck by a cord which was thrown over his head as he was swinging forward in a swing. He felt no bad effect at the time, but after some time, became inactive and weak in the limbs, with stiffness of the neck, and difficulty in moving his head. Nine months after the accident the weakness of his limbs increased to paraplegia; and soon after he had paralysis of the arms, with retention of urine. He had been a short time in this state when he was seized with violent pain in the spine; he then had difficult and quick breathing, which was first observed during sleep, but afterwards continued while he was awake; and he died after suffering severely from it for two days. His death happened about ten months from the injury, and a few days after the violent attack of pain in the spine. A large quantity of extravasated blood was found in the spinal canal, betwixt the bone and the theca vertebralis. It was partly coagulated, and partly fluid, and appeared to have come from the upper part of the canal about the second or third cervical vertebra.

The following very remarkable case is mentioned by Dr. Bright, and was communicated to him by Dr. Stroud. It affords the only example that I find on record of the regular apoplectic cyst connected with the cord, analogous to that affection as it is found in the brain.

Du Hamel, Reg. Scient. Acad. Histor. An. 1683. Sec. 5, cap. 2, p. 264.

⁺ Morgagni, Epis. 54. t Howship's Observ. in Surgery and Morbid Anatomy, p. 115.

A gentleman, aged 48, who had suffered long and severely from rheumatism, about a year before his death had an attack of hemiplegia, from the effects of which he never entirely recovered. The palsy, which at first was hemiplegia of the left side, gradually changed into paraplegia, and he had several minor attacks, characterized by pain of the head, back, and limbs, with feverishness. For two months before death the palsy rapidly increased;—when it reached the trunk he had retention of urine and sloughing of the nates; and during the last 36 hours of his life he gradually lost the power of speech and swallowing, and his mental faculties. There was no disease in the brain except a little serous effusion between the membranes. The cord itself was sound, but its membranes exhibited traces of inflammatory action, and there was between them considerable effusion of a reddish serous fluid. At the upper dorsal vertebræ, on the left side, there was an apopleetic eyst, more than an inch in length, and about half an inch in diameter,-it was external to the cord, and contained the red and broken remains of a coagulum. The eoagulum seemed to be contained in an adventitious membrane, under the pia mater of the cord.

SECTION V.

THICKENING AND FUNGOID DISEASE OF THE MEM-BRANES OF THE CORD, AND FUNGUS OF THE CORD ITSELF.

1. The Count de Lordat, aged 35, received an injury of the neck by being overturned in his coach from a high and steep bank. He felt at the time only some pain in his neck, which went off in a few days. Six months after, he had weakness of the left arm, and some difficulty of articulation, and these symptoms continued

FUNCTS OF TH

nationary for nearly twelve creased, the arm becoming v his speech nearly lost, and he sive motions of the whole b interval, his right arm becam seized with dyspnora and diff his body was much emaciated. his urinary functions were natu ed suddenly, nearly four years intellectual faculties had remai tremities had been for a consid steady, but not entirely paraly! one room to another, leaning hours before his death. Th the cervical vertebræ was fo the membranes of this portion was great difficulty in cutt medulla oblongata appeared tural. The pia mater was the falx, there was some appeara ventricles were full of water. nerves, at their origin, were ver dineas. This hardness was four to be owing to the density of

2 A roung man, aged 14, f second story of a house into t much braised, but without fra ontinued to walk with his b wards. After three years and visent pain in the back, this began to form over the lumbar gradually till it attained to a v ... hert fart of it was red, and nerchage took place from the vas then affected with complete of using and frees, and ext

ragily died gradually exhaust · London Medical Observation stationary for nearly twelve months. They then increased, the arm becoming withered and useless, and his speech nearly lost, and he had involuntary convulsive motions of the whole body. After another long interval, his right arm became benumbed; he was also seized with dyspnæa and difficulty of swallowing, and his body was much emaciated. His bowcls were loose; his urinary functions were natural. His death happened suddenly, nearly four years after the accident. His intellectual faculties had remained entire; his lower extremities had been for a considerable time weak and unsteady, but not entirely paralytic, for he could walk from one room to another, leaning on a man's arm, a few hours before his death. The spinal cord included in the cervical vertebræ was found remarkably firm, and the membranes of this portion were so dense, that there was great difficulty in cutting through them. The medulla oblongata appeared one-third larger than na-The pia mater was thickened, and, towards the falx, there was some appearance of suppuration; the ventricles were full of water. The lingual and brachial nerves, at their origin, were very compact or nearly tendinous. This hardness was found, in the cervical nerves, to be owing to the density of the membrane covering them.*

2. A young man, aged 14, fell from a window in the second story of a house into the street. His back was much bruised, but without fracture; and he afterwards continued to walk with his body bent considerably forwards. After three years and a half, he was seized with violent pain in the back, thighs and legs; and a tumor began to form over the lumbar vertebræ, which increased gradually till it attained to a very great size. The prominent part of it was red, and repeated attacks of hæmorrhage took place from the apex of the tumor. He was then affected with complete paraplegia, incontinence of urine and feces, and extreme emaciation; and at length died gradually exhausted, about six years after

fr 1 the effects of willing The paler, which at first le, gradu 'y changed into il mor ". h., claracter. Tack, and Cals, with is hire death the palsy reached the trunk he had and of the nates; and durng, and his mental faculin the orain except a little membranes. The corditself rines exhibited traces of there was between them 11 sh serious fluid. At the he of side, there was an apoach in length, and about haif s external to the conl, and a remains of a chagulam, to contained in an advictia mer et ine cord.

olo . A suffered any and a year before blood in

DISEASE OF THE CORD IND FIN TS OF THE CORD

London Medical Observations and Inquiries, vol. iii.

the accident. On dissection, the tumor was found to consist of a large fungous mass resembling the medullary substance of the brain, which took its origin from the spinal cord, and had extended itself upwards and downwards, from the third dorsal vertebra to the coccyx. Many of the vertebræ, both dorsal and lumbar, were extensively carious on the posterior part, and some of the lumbar vertebræ had nearly disappeared. There was a general softening of all the bones of the spine and of the sacrum and ilium.*

3. A man, aged 20, in the beginning of 1815, had first impaired digestion, then difficult breathing and palpitation; and, in the end of April, he had anasarca of the legs, and such strong and extended pulsation of the heart, as left no doubt of the existence of dilatation and hypertrophia of the left eavities of the heart. He was rclieved by diureties, and continued better till May, when he had pain, tenderness, and distention of the abdomen. After free evacuation of the bowels, these symptoms subsided, and, about the 18th May, it was first observed that he had weakness of the lower extremitics, without diminution of sensibility. All the other symptoms now disappeared. On the 20th of May, the paraplegia was complete, with retention of urine; and he now, for the first time, complained of pain in the loins. There was still no diminution of sensibility, but, on the contrary, the limbs, when moved, were extremely painful. His digestion was now good, his breathing casy, the action of the heart natural, and his mind entire; and he continued in this state till the 22d of July, when the paralytic limbs became insensible. Grangrene then took place on the sacrum, and he died on the 10th of August.

Inspection.—The bodies of the third, fourth, and fifth cervical vertebra were unequal and slightly softened, and the anterior ligament was destroyed. The outer membrane of the eord at this place had degenerated into a thick fungous tubercular mass, of the firmness of

the rulmonary tubercles not sury vellow colour. This mass ext five millimetres in length, and if and involved in it the ganglies and three first dorsal nerves, covered by this mass was in a which affected chiefly the anteriterior columns were also slight corresponding to the three upper brain was sound, except a small mass and except one small tubercle, not men there were adhesions and

Fungoid discase of the dura met with in connexion with a several cases of this kind are a Bright has described a case of sanding, in which a portion of ated into a soft translucent justice. From the portion which a state of the cord formed a cana downwards, filled with a watery pally diseased.

SECTION.

^{*} New London Med, Journal for 1792,

INDURATION OF THE STATE IN THE Fair of the Pathology of the remarkable case of the Mar of the right side which extend the right side which extend the Series, Anat. Comp. do Co.

THE CORD.

in, the tumor was found to seem ling the medullary the took its origin from the distell upwards and downstal vertebra to the coccyx. In dorsal and lumbar, were part in part, and some of nearly disappeared. There the bones of the spine and the bones of the spine and

e beginning of 1815, had first ficult breathing and pa pita. Arril, he had anasarca of the il extended pusation of the tle existence of dilatation and ar his of the heart. He was d continued better till May and distention of the not the bowels, these . J' it the 18th May, it was 17.4271 sport the lower extreof sensil lity. All the other 1. On the 20th of May, the w'' retention of urine; and named of pain in the a transfers Thy, lun W. I II I C. Wells extreme. wish rending to the national and his mind enichs ear will e and fluts Grangen in the state of the sta and in died on the Joth recipie third south and bith gel s intr stending lace had disponented the firm is of the pulmonary tubereles not suppurated, and of a greenish-yellow colour. This mass extended one decimetre and five millimetres in length, and four millimetres in breadth, and involved in it the ganglions of the seventh cervical and three first dorsal nerves. The portion of the cord covered by this mass was in a state of ramollissement, which affected chiefly the anterior columns; but the posterior columns were also slightly softened, in a space corresponding to the three upper dorsal vertebræ. The brain was sound, except a small tubercle in the right hemisphere; the heart was quite sound, and the lungs, except one small tubercle, not softened. In the abdomen there were adhesions and some puriform fluid.*

Fungoid disease of the dura mater of the eord is also met with in eonnexion with disease of the vertebræ; several eases of this kind are related by Ollivier. Dr. Bright has described a ease of paraplegia of five years standing, in which a portion of the cord had degenerated into a soft translucent jelly of a reddish purple colour. From the portion which was thus chiefly degenerated, in the middle of the dorsal region, the substance of the eord formed a canal, tapering upwards and downwards, filled with a watery jelly. There was also some scrofulous tubercular matter at the portion principally diseased.

SECTION VI.

INDURATION OF THE SPINAL CORD.

This part of the pathology of the cord is exemplified in the remarkable ease of the Marquis de Causan. His eomplaint began with a priekling in the fingers and toes of the right side which extended gradually upwards

^{*} Serres, Anat. Comp. de Cerveau, tom. ii. p. 234.

confletely paralytic. The re fal, and the motion of it was list. The inferior extremition inferior half of the thorax, at c) pletely deprived of sense arm at last also became en g ngrene then took place on gudarly exhausted somewha ficus the commencement of th Lop. clion - On the anterio the body of the cord and the tumor of a reddish-vellow of lines in thickness at the thick anterior surface of the core nerves to the third dorsal: which was covered by it i internally, the tumor was o and of a yellowish white color arachnoid of the cord, carri

COMPRESSON OF T

2. A young man, aged 14, site, between the shoulders states the corner of a chair. mandiately followed the injurstred to hold his chin down that he complained, on raising ing through and across his chose was affected with weakness of till, in a short time, they be About the same time, he lost urine and feces. He had co mo or three weeks, when h and he then lost the power of Ged on the following day, also Certing the injury, baying cont During the progress of the dis baned of great oppression at france of the chest. On dissection, the v

Vellag Arch Carrent

along the arm and leg; the parts wasted, became cold, and lost their feeling; but they retained such a degree of motion, that he could walk with the assistance of a crutch under the arm of the affected side. He had continued in this state more than a year, when the left side became affected in the same manner. He was then confined to bed, and ineapable of any motion, either of the trunk or extremities, the other functions continuing for some time in a healthy state. His sight and hearing were next affected, being first weakened, and gradually destroyed. In the same gradual manner he lost his speech and the power of swallowing; and soon after this he died. The pulse and breathing had continued natural until a short time before death, when both became remarkably slow; the pulse being from 30 to 40 in a minute. On dissection, the brain and all the viscera, were found in the most healthy state. That part of the spinal eord which is included in the cervical vertebrae was so hard as to have the eonsistence of eartilage; and the membranes of this portion were red as if inflamed.*

SECTION VII.

NEW FORMATIONS COMPRESSING THE SPINAL CORD.

THESE occur under the same variety of forms which have been already referred to in regard to the brain. The most common appear to be fleshy and albuminous formations, tubereles, hydatids, and ossifications.

1. A woman, aged 36, had first some eouvulsive motions, which soon eeased; then acute pain of the left arm with headach; the arm became weak, and gradually completely paralytic. She then had convulsive motions of the lower extremities, which also became

^{*} Portal, Cours d'Anatomie Medicale, tom iv.

F I it's wasted. F came (], V relained such a degree A that the assistance of a subject diside. He had cond. a verr, when the left side 10 HAT. He was then ne form tim, ebrof of include as continuing a weakened, and gradually ra' al manner he lost his i and wing; and soon after and breathing had continued series being from 30 to 40 in rain call all the riscera, aracter state. That part of the . I in the cervical vertebrat nce of carril ge; and rong were red as if inflamed,

MPP Leavy THE SPINAL war.

e strag rariety of forms which

ore it in regard to the brain. The

t is assily and albuminous

rdariss and oscilications.

. 1: then wrote pring the left

e and with the lace and contiste

to mind also was the first the first

Marie 1

completely paralytic. The right arm next became painful, and the motion of it was impaired, but not entirely lost. The inferior extremities became ædematous; the inferior half of the thorax, and all the parts below, were completely deprived of sense and motion: and the right arm at last also became entirely paralytic. Extensive gaugrene then took place on the sacrum, and she died gradually exhausted somewhat more than three months

from the commencement of the paralysis.

Inspection.—On the anterior part of the cord, between the body of the cord and the arachnoid, there was a tumor of a reddish-yellow colour; it was about three lines in thickness at the thickest part, and covered the anterior surface of the cord, from the sixth cervical nerves to the third dorsal; and the part of the cord which was covered by it was considerably flattened. Internally, the tumor was of a firm fleshy consistence, and of a yellowish-white colour. On many parts of the arachnoid of the cord, eartilaginous seales were obscrved.*

2. A young man, aged 14, received a blow upon the spine, between the shoulders, by falling backwards against the corner of a chair. The only effects which immediately followed the injury were, that he was observed to hold his chin down towards the breast, and that he complained, on raising his head, of a pain striking through and across his chest. After four weeks, he was affected with weakness of his legs, which increased till, in a short time, they became entirely paralytic. About the same time, he lost the power of retaining his urine and feces. He had continued in this state for two or three weeks, when his arms became paralytic, and he then lost the power of moving his head. He died on the following day, about three months after receiving the injury, having continued sensible to the last. During the progress of the disease, he frequently complained of great oppression and pain darting through the ehest. On dissection, the viseera of the thorax and

Velpeau, Arch. General, de Med. January, 1825.

the cerebellum. From h dently tubercles, and th

abdomen were found to be healthy. Some bloody serum escaped in opening the head, but the brain in other respects was sound. Much bloody serum was diseharged from the spinal canal, and, on opening it, a soft substance was found, four inches in length, lying between the bones and the spinal cord at the place of the injury. When this substance was taken out, and shaken in water, a great part of it was dissolved. Parts of the same substance had protruded through between the transverse processes of the fourth and fifth dorsal vertebræ, and formed two tumors of similar soft matter, lying one on each side of the spine, in the hollow between the spinous and transverse processes. largest of these was between three and four inches long, one and a half broad, and about an inch in thickness. The spinal cord and the vertebræ were sound.*

3. Tubercles are found of various sizes, either in the substance of the cord or attached to its membranes, and they present the same characters as the tubercles of the brain. The symptoms vary exceedingly, according to the seat and size of the tubercles, or as they happen to affeet particular nerves. A child, aged 12, mentioned by Ollivier, had been long subject to convulsive attacks, which occurred at irregular intervals, and affected chiefly the arms: he died of phthisis. A tuberele, the size of a nut, was found betwixt the dura mater and the arachnoid of the cord at the third cervical vertebra. In a ease by Bayle, there was tonic inflection of the forearm, hand, and fingers; and in one by M. Gendrin, there were epileptie paroxysms, which always commenced with a violent attack of hieeup, of one or two minutes duration. There were two large tubereles in the substance of the eord at its very origin. In a ease of paraplegia, mentioned in Magendie's journal, two small tumors were found attached to the cord at its lower extremity. Harderus found a tumor the size of a nutmeg, compressing the spinal cord of a young woman; and there were three similar tumors in

disease of the lungs and t toms were, severe headac few days before death, vic To the various example tubercles of the cord, I Gendrin, which presents A woman, aged 23, after cholera, felt great weakness tremities, with anorexia, rhaa. After two months, found greatly impaired, esp there was also diminished extended from the origin the extremity of the toes; with a sense of coldness this she began to have pain this was succeeded by acuconvulsive retraction of the acute in the left limb, and th sibility of the left foot, so the duced a sense of laceration; afterwards extended to the ki with pectoral symptoms, and in October 1832, which appe six and seven months from disease. The right limb w some degree of motion remain tion, there was found, at t spinal cord, a firm while to enclosed in a cyst, and sligh It lay between the two colun side, and, in some degree, end right; the left auterior column distended and flattened by it, 4. Hydalids in the spinal co by Various Willers. A Woman became epileplie after a frigh crery second or third day men

^{*} London Medical Obs. and Ing. vol. iii.

the cerebellum. From his description, they were evidently tubercles, and the case was complicated with disease of the lungs and the liver. The leading symptoms were, severe headach, oppressed breathing, and, a

few days before death, violent convulsions.

11111/2 1

per . . sime ployde se. on, on the train in other

dy serom was dis-

i. i. of gening it, a

and the principal light, bring

er to late the pice of

or now we taken out, and

- Commission Parts

of the spine, in the bollow

transverse processes. The

thre and fur inches lang

in at an in him thickness.

ratio as sizes, either in the

cir I to its mem' ranes, and

- rs is the tubercles of the

Tree is the aventing to

Lose Likith A pubben ()

A Col 1 201 12 mentioned

grades a to a prulsive attacks,

wit intervals, and affected

at of plains. A tubercle,

food Service the dura mater

a the initial certical ter-

ir . Cops was trace inflection

and rest and in the brill.

read to the final of one

The rege too large tu-

In us ned in Marendie's our the

The similar tunker in

Die De . To i .

ne wer sour l.

To the various examples now given, of tumors and tubercles of the cord, I shall only add a case by M. Gendrin, which presents some interesting characters. A woman, aged 23, after recovering from epidemic cholera, felt great weakness, especially of the lower extremities, with anorexia, thirst, and oceasional diar-After two months, the motion of both legs was found greatly impaired, especially of the left, in which there was also diminished sensation, and a pain which extended from the origin of the sciatic nerve quite to the extremity of the toes; and both limbs were affected with a sense of coldness and prickling. Soon after this she began to have pain in the lumbar region, and this was succeeded by acute pain in both limbs, with convulsive retraction of the toes. This pain was most acute in the left limb, and there was now increased sensibility of the left foot, so that the slightest touch produced a sense of laceration; and this morbid sensibility afterwards extended to the knee. She had then fever, with pectoral symptoms, and died gradually exhausted in October 1832, which appears to have been between six and seven months from the commencement of the disease. The right limb was continually numb, but some degree of motion remained in both. On inspection, there was found, at the lower extremity of the spinal cord, a firm white tumor, the size of a filbert, enclosed in a cyst, and slightly softened in the centre. It lay between the two columns of the eord of the left side, and, in some degree, eneroached upon those of the right; the left anterior column, in particular, was much distended and flattened by it.

4. Hydatids in the spinal canal have been mentioned by various writers. A woman mentioned by Esquirol, became epileptic after a fright, and the fits returned every second or third day with great violence for three years. She then became comatose after one of the paroxysms, and died in five days. The pituitary gland contained a cyst full of a reddish brown fluid, and hydatids of various sizes were found within the sheath of the spinal cord through its whole extent. In a ease of paraplegia of nine months standing, M. Chaussier found a mass of hydatids attached to the spine behind the left kidney, and a branch from the mass entered betwixt the vertebræ into the spinal canal. A similar case is related by M. Reydellet in the Dict. des Se. Med., in which the tumor was opened, and the spinal cord was felt by the finger exposed at the bottom of it, after a large quantity of hydatids had been discharged. The patient remained paraplegie, and afterwards died, gradually exhausted by

the discharge from this eavity.

5. Ossification of the membranes of the cord has been observed in several cases. In a woman who had been epileptic for five years, and died suddenly in one of the fits, Esquirol found the sheath of the spinal cord, on its external surface, covered through its whole extent with osseous scales, from one to two lines in diameter. In a case described by M. Barbier,* the affection began with prickling and numbness of the legs, which extended very gradually, and was afterwards accompanied by acute pain in the limbs, and after several months terminated in complete paraplegia, with incontinence of urine. The patient, a woman of 55, continued in this state about three years. She was then seized with acute pain in the back, extending into the stomach and abdomen, and down the legs, and accompanied by vomiting, fever, delirium, and convulsive motions of the limbs. She died after a short illness, the duration of which is not distinctly stated, but seems to have been eight or ten days. At the third dorsal vertebra, there was an ossification of the membranes of the cord half a line in thickness, three lines broad, and two inches long. The inner surface of this production was concave and covered with a soft membrane; and the por-

tion of the cord incl membrane containi fluid. Above this. low, it was much w 6. The cord may of the spinal canal, b currence. It was, he was diminished one h dered unequal by nun inferior extremities w

DESTRUCTION OF A

A MAN, whose case is a raplagia, dysuria, obstir ing of tightness across hi been bound tightly roun chains for more than a of his complaints was sprained his back in life dir confined to bed n maths, he died of gary no disease could Wishin the last dorsal Itial cord was entirel inches. The membrane, see were unusually va On the other hand, Off ord entirely wanting in of extreme martenus, wi n and loss either of sea

e i cland on D

^{*} Traité Element, de Mat. de Med.

tion of the cord included in it was almost destroyed, the membrane containing only a small quantity of viscid fluid. Above this, the eord was firm and healthy; below, it was much wasted.

6. The eard may also be compressed by a diminution of the spinal canal, but this appears to be a very rare oeeurrenee. It was, however, observed by Portal. The eanal of the last dorsal and two upper lumbar vertchrae was diminished one half, and its inner surface was rendered uncqual by numerous small bony eminenees. The inferior extremities were much wasted.

SECTION VIII.

DESTRUCTION OF A PORTION OF THE SPINAL CORD.

A MAN, whose ease is related by Mr. Copeland, had paraplegia, dysuria, obstinacy of the bowels, and a fecling of tightness across his belly, as if a broad band had been bound tightly round it. His health had been declining for more than a year, and the commencement of his complaints was ascribed to having violently sprained his back in lifting a heavy weight. After being confined to bed with perfect paraplegia for three months, he died of gangrene of the nates. On dissection no discase could be discovered in the vertebræ. Within the last dorsal and first lumbar vertebræ, the spinal eord was entirely wanting for more than two inches. The membranes, which there formed an empty bag, were unusually vaseular and much thickened.* On the other hand, Ollivier found four inches of the cord entirely wanting in a child, aged 8 years, who died of extreme marasmus, with caries of the vertebra, but without loss either of sensibility or motion of the limbs.

transitione of the paye. The piruitary gland ish from fluid, and by-. I within the sheath of e extint. In a case of n ling. M. Chaussier found mes entered twist the des of Mel, in which the o fit of trailinge quantity . 1. Topatient ret ain d I deal ally exhausted by n a woman who had been hed suidenly in one of the armalies muce extent with ero lines in dial etcr. In a r.* the affection began with i the lary, which extended iternate accompanied by and their several morels ferringla, with incominence of In cf. 5, confined in this sho was then seized with The stonach and es, all account and by to and this campos of the 1 sh r. 1 has the inaling of ... I just so that here been 1.6. In a retter to that Int softhe cont half a

see truly and the inches

it is priduction muscomans

and the Little and the Litter

19184

^{*} Copeland on Diseases of the Spine,

Velpeau has described several cases, in which, in connexion with caries of the vertebræ, the cord was completely destroyed for the space of several inches, the patient having died of gradual marasinus without any appearance of paralysis; and in Majendie's journal, a case is described, in which the cord had become quite liquid, through two-thirds of the dorsal region and one-third of the cervical. The arms were paralytic without loss of sensibility, but the legs were not affected. Ollivier has also observed in two cases a remarkable wasting or diminution of the size of the cord. The one was in an old man, without any particular symptoms; the other in an idiot, with permanent contraction and wasting of the limbs.

SECTION IX.

CONCUSSION OF THE SPINAL CORD.

A SEVERE blow upon the spine frequently occasions an immediate loss of power of the parts below the seat of the injury, without producing either fracture or dislocation of the vertebiæ. The extent of the parts affected will of course depend upon the seat of the injury. Paraplegia and retention of urine are the symptoms which most commonly come under our observation; but, if the injury be on the upper part of the spine, there may also be paralysis of the upper extremities, difficulty of breathing, and affections of the voice. In tracing the farther history of this affection, the following circumstances are worthy of attention.

1. Concussion of the cord may be speedily fatal without producing any morbid appearance that can be detected on dissection. Many cases of this kind are on record. Boyer mentions a man who received an injury of the spine by falling into a ditch. He was immediately affected with complete consequence of the injury; not mentioned. On dissection covered either in the head or mentions four fatal cases of c none of which could any mor ed, either in the vertebræ or it 2. It may be fatal by inf place in the cord or its membr ramollissement, suppuration, o affords an example of this aff ment. A remarkable case, f tion, has been already quot Boyer mentions a man who teen feet, and remained for recovering from that conditi lost the use of his lower extr tention of urine and involunt died in twelve days. On bloody serum was found in t tity of which was sufficient to

lower balf of it. 3. Urgent symptoms may for some time may be removed. who, after an injury of the ba of speech, loss of voice, and tremities, the superior extrem After seven days he recove and soon after the palsy also In Summer 1816, I saw ployed in blowing a rock ing retired to a sufficient d his back to the rock when large piece of stone struck lower dotsal and upper lum fell, completely deprived of mities. I found him in this accident, when he also comp ginning in the seat of the in wards along the thighs. On diately affected with complete paraplegia, and died in consequence of the injury; the period of his death is not mentioned. On dissection no disease could be discovered either in the head or the spinal eanal. Frank mentions four fatal eases of eoneussion of the spine, in none of which could any morbid appearance be detect-

ed, either in the vertebræ or in the spinal cord.

2. It may be fatal by inflammatory action taking place in the cord or its membranes, and terminating by ramollissement, suppuration, or effusion. Case CXLVI. affords an example of this affection fatal by ramollissement. A remarkable case, fatal by extensive suppuration, has been already quoted from Sir Charles Bell. Boyer mentions a man who fell from a height of fourteen feet, and remained for some time senseless. recovering from that condition he was found to have lost the use of his lower extremities. He had also retention of urine and involuntary discharge of feees, and died in twelve days. On dissection, a quantity of bloody serum was found in the spinal eanal, the quantity of which was sufficient to fill a little more than the lower half of it.

3. Urgent symptoms may follow the injury, and after some time may be removed. Galen mentions a man who, after an injury of the back, was affected with loss of speech, loss of voice, and paralysis of the lower extremities, the superior extremities remaining unaffected. After seven days he recovered his voice and speech,

and soon after the palsy also disappeared.

In Summer 1816, I saw a man who had been employed in blowing a rock near Edinburgh. Not having retired to a sufficient distance, and standing with his back to the rock when the explosion took place, a large piece of stone struck him on the spine about the lower dorsal and upper lumbar vertebræ. He instantly fell, completely deprived of power in the lower extremities. I found him in this state a few hours after the accident, when he also complained of violent pain, beginning in the seat of the injury, and extending downwards along the thighs. On the back there was an ex-

C. Diakir . cases in which, in con-6. 16 C 14 #33 COM-# f several inches, the l r smus without any 'n Majendie's journal, a e corl had become give e doral rich n and one. onese paralytic without wert ficel. Olior as a remarkable wast--4 the c 1. The one was it if u'r samptoms; the ... at contraction and wast-

e stire frequently occasions the parts below the scat 1 - ingenher tracture or dislo-I som of the pars affectal 1 . reat ithe injury. Par-Trafe the symptoms which r ut 13-may n; but if the e spine, here may a so r Sycamilles, lifewart of brea-Tring, late ing the father The state of the s al mir ha specific fatal withthat on be de um em oc oc. n w o receive an uning The wilder

tensive swelling, which made it impossible to ascertain the state of the vertebre. He was confined to bed for several weeks without any power of his lower extremities, and with considerable difficulty in passing his urine, but gradually recovered, and in a few weeks more was free from complaint. The practice which was employed, consisted chiefly of general and topical bloodletting.

In Hufeland's Journal, vol. xxi. is related the ease of a man who fell from the top of a eart-load of wood, and lighted so that the weight of his body, on first coming to the ground, rested upon the back of his neck and shoulders, his head being bent forwards. When he recovered from the first effects of the shock, it was found that he had lost completely both feeling and motion of all the parts below the neek; he could move no part but his head, and he had retention of urine and obstruction of the bowels. After eight or ten days, he was affected with anasarea of the limbs, and a sense of prickling followed by severe pain, but without any power of motion. After lying several weeks in this state of perfect paralysis, he began to recover a slight degree of feeling and motion, beginning in the fingers; and from this time, the power of motion increased very gradually, so that at the end of sixteen weeks he was able to support himself in a sitting posture on a chair. After another long interval, he was able to drag himself about, supported upon crutehes: and, at the time when the ease was written, he was able to walk a little supported by a stick, and to do a little work with his hands, but he continued to have great weakness and pain of his back, the pain being elicfly referred to the junction of the spine with the sacrum. The progress of the functions of the bladder and the bowels, in this case, is somewhat remarkable. He had first complete retention of urine, requiring the use of the eatheter for four weeks; he then recovered the power of passing his urine, but could not retain it; it flowed involuntarily, and after some time longer, he recovered the power of retention. The bowels were not moved without strong glysters for six wed voluntarily for four natural action.

A man, mention xxviii., fell from a likewise struck the b in the integuments t from which it was for entirely deprived of wards retention of v headach, dilatation of cult deglutition, and was as slow as 38 in ly, and was well in t Some cases of injupanied by loss of m others by loss of feeli singular case described eace of urine, with los tum, and of the anteri the thighs, without any the sensibility of the p and in others the affect 4. It may produce p occar isomediately, or t

be recovered from and place after a consider this have already occur and the slowness of its the following case.

CASE CLI.—A man, ago, fell from the branch the branch the branch the branch the lower part of the span about irrely edges, and in follow his usual associations.

glysters for six weeks; after this the stools passed involuntarily for four weeks, and he then recovered the natural action.

A man, mentioned in the Journal Universel. tom. xxviii., fell from a tree and lighted on his back, and likewise struck the back of his head, in which a wound in the integuments took place. He was for some minutes thrown into a state of syncope, on his recovery from which it was found that the lower extremities were entirely deprived of sense and motion. He had afterwards retention of urine, tumefaction of the abdomen, headach, dilatation of the pupil, extreme anxiety, difficult deglutition, and stertorous breathing, and the pulse was as slow as 38 in a minute. He recovered gradually, and was well in three weeks.

Some cases of injuries of the spine have been accompanied by loss of motion without loss of feeling, and others by loss of feeling without loss of motion. In a singular case described by Ollivier, there was incontinence of urine, with loss of feeling of the penis and scrotum, and of the anterior, posterior, and interior part of the thighs, without any loss of motion. In such cases the sensibility of the parts sometimes returns gradually,

and in others the affection is permanent.

4. It may produce permanent paralysis. This may occur immediately, or the first effects of the injury may be recovered from, and a new diseased action may take place after a considerable time. Several examples of this have already occurred under the foregoing heads. The slight nature of the first symptoms, in such cases, and the slowness of their progress, will be illustrated by the following case.

Case CLI.—A man, aged 54, about twenty-five years ago, fell from the branch of a tree, and lighted on the sacrum. He was carried home, complaining of pain in the lower part of the spine, and entirely paralytic in his lower extremities. In this state he was confined to bed about twelve days, and then recovered, so as to be able to follow his usual employment; but from this time he

efly of general and topical In care le lof wo de and t'e ich of his neck and of he shock, it was found oth feeling and motion of eck . he could more no fair recent in of unine and ob-Af r eight er ten days, be

imbs, and a sense of

rice paid, but without any

fring several weeks in this

le began to recover a slight

n, beginning in the forgers;

wer f motion increased very

eal frixteen weeks be was

in a setting posture on a chair.

rva. he was able to drag him.

n crute est and, at the time

n. 'e was a 'e to walk a little

of to do a little work with his

dilling treat meabaces and

The progress

Viller on the borres in this

He had first complete

Are of the culteter it

the rower of parint his it is in the process of the

The strong

E MIL LEVICE 3

is in presiding to ascertain was crefined to hed fr

met of his I wer extremidith ulty in passing his

ed, and in a few weeks

t. The practice which

CONCUSSION OF THE

was affected with a peculiar feeling of numbness, which was confined to the upper part of the left foot. feeling gave him no inconvenience, but never left him. After he had continued in this state for four years, the numbness suddenly extended upwards along the leg and thigh, and was speedily followed by paralysis of these parts. After some time he was seized with pain, which stretched across the lower part of the back, and into the right thigh, and was soon followed by paralysis of the right thigh and lcg. He was then confined to bed with perfect paraplegia for about two years. Some time after this he recovered so much power as to drag himself about supported upon two crutches. He was in this state without any farther improvement, when I saw him for the first time, upwards of fifteen years ago. His spine was free from distortion, but he complained of deep-seated pain upon pressure about the last dorsal vertebra, and at the top of the sacrum. Two caustic issues were inserted, and under the action of them he made some improvement; he was able to raise his legs a little higher in walking, and occasionally to stand without his crutches, but from that time he continued stationary, and was much distressed with incontinence of urine.

The morbid action which takes place in such a case as this, will be illustrated by the facts which have been already recorded. It is probably of the nature of chronic inflammation of the cord or its membranes, terminating by some of the morbid conditions which have already been referred to. We have seen that such affections may supervene upon very slight injuries of the spine, which do not at the time of receiving them induce any urgent symptoms, and perhaps attract little or no-attention. Sometimes they take place after so long an interval that the patient has forgotten the injury, or, if he remembers it, does not consider it as having any connexion with his disease. A man mentioned by Sir Charles Bell, became paralytic in the lower extremities, several months after a slight injury of the spine, occasioned by striking his back against the corner of a table.

A gentleman walking in the sprained his back slightly in le feat little uneasiness at the time his I wer extremities became [e atiqued four or five mont recovered under the usual treats symptoms take place at an ear activity as distinctly marks in young man mentioned by Dr. J the spine from a stone. In t day he was seized with shive which ran high through the morning. He had at the same and back, with contraction of fellowed by weakness of the leg increased to perfect paraplegia. serted, and he was able to walk Every injury of the spine s deserving minute attention, and should be employed for prevediseased actions which may resu immediate object of anxiety in suc active, which may be of an active and we have seen that it may adve manner, even after injuries whi kind that they attracted at the tin When the injury is of a more is indeed another object of atte or dislocation of the vertebrae. the most argent symptoms may after the injury, and may e without any affection of the v other hand, it is often impossible the vertebre, in consequence of which takes place. It is likewi that fracture of the vertebrae ma displacement of parts, and in suc imposible to discover it. A case is

is which paraplegia took place

SPINAL C RD.

eling of numbness, which art of the left fort. This en e, but never left him. state for four years, the i vards along the leg and red by paralysis of these as a zad with pin, which fine both, and into the red by para vsis of the t en confined to bed with vears. Some time after cruse ies. He was in this revement, when I saw him f afteen rears ago. His in but he emplained of are about the last dorsal the sacrum. Two caustic der the action of them he

der the action of them he owns a feet on his legs and occasionally to stand that time he continued at seed with incontinence a takes which have been to he he is which have been to he is which have bee

ms which have already
ms which have already
ms which have already
ms which have any
middle son moniter
me of the sone,
me of no interme of the sone,
my file of no interme file sone,
my f

A gentleman walking in the fields near Edinburgh sprained his back slightly in leaping over a wall. He felt little uneasiness at the time, but, after several wecks, his lower extremities became paralytic. In this state he continued four or five months, and then gradually recovered under the usual treatment. In other cases the symptoms take place at an early period, and with such activity as distinctly marks inflammatory action. A young man mentioned by Dr. Jebb received a blow on the spine from a stone. In the evening of the same day he was seized with shivering, followed by fever, which ran high through the night, but abated in the morning. He had at the same time pain in the stomach and back, with contraction of the legs, and this was followed by weakness of the legs, which, after ten days, increased to perfect paraplegia. Issues were then inscreed, and he was able to walk in three months.

Every injury of the spine should be considered as deserving minute attention, and the most active means should be employed for preventing or removing the diseased actions which may result from it. The more immediate object of anxiety in such cases is inflammatory action, which may be of an active or of a chronic kind; and we have seen that it may advance in a very insidious manner, even after injuries which were of so slight a kind that they attracted at the time little or no attention. When the injury is of a more violent nature, there is indeed another object of attention, that is, fracture or dislocation of the vertebræ. But we have seen that the most urgent symptoms may take place immediately after the injury, and may even be speedily fatal without any affection of the vertebræ; while, on the other hand, it is often impossible to ascertain the state of the vertebræ, in consequence of the external swelling which takes place. It is likewise to be kept in mind, that fracture of the vertebræ may happen without any displacement of parts, and in such a situation, that it is impossible to discover it. A case is mentioned by Camper, in which paraplegia took place after an injury of the spine, and which gradually recovered after twelve

months. On the death of the patient, which happened some time after from fever, he found that one of the lumbar vertebræ had been fractured in the body without displacement, and had united.

Under this head, I may allude very briefly to the subject of wounds in the spinal cord, in regard to which there are some very singular facts upon record. A young man, mentioned by Ollivier, was struck with a poniard through the upper part of the neck, and fell instantly, deprived of feeling and motion of all the parts below the head. He had also retention of urine, but recovered gradually, and was able to walk a little in about five months. In a similar ease by Boyer, the man recovered, but with palsy of the right arm, and loss of feeling of the left side in all the parts below the thorax. The ease is well known of a man, mentioned by Desault, who lived twenty-four hours, and moved all his limbs freely after the eard had been completely divided by a musket bullet at the tenth dorsal vertebra. A still more remarkable ease is related in the Memoirs of the Academy of Sciences. A man received a wound with a sword among the lower dorsal vertebræ, which soon healed, and he was afterwards able for long marches. After a considerable time, the place became painful, suppurated, and was opened; and a piece of the point of the sword, two inches long, was extracted. He died in thirty-six hours; and it was found that the sword had penetrated between the spinous and oblique processes on the left side, that it had completely traversed the spinal canal, and had lodged in the opposite side. A man mentioned in the first volume of the Archives Generales de Medecine, received a wound by a musket bullet, which entered at the groin, and came out near the first lumbar vertebra. The wound soon healed, but after a short time loss of feeling began around the eieatrix, and gradually extended until it affected the whole left side of the body except the face. Any part of the thorax, the abdomen, or the leg or arm of that side, could be pinched with any degree of force without feelATTECTIONS OF THE BONES

ing. The power of motion we seemed weaker than in the other otherwise unimpaired. After the in this state for years, it was reasoned a succession of large blisters.

SECTION

OF CERTAIN AFFECTIONS OF THE

It would be foreign to my purupon this important subject; be cumstances relating to it, which mention very briefly, in connex this essay.

In the ordinary cases of cario bra, accompanied by puraplegia, the paralysis is not produced sinn for the distortion may exist in a ve out juralysis; and when they have Paralysis may be entirely removed. remains undiminished. It appears majory action of the parts which of the cord; that the effects of the cord may subside, though the dise go on to anchylosis and permane on the contrary, it may terminate the membranes, or chronic disease thus the palsy become irremedial ease appears to be in some eases s and membranes; in others, in the and interverted rad carrilages; and in of the vertebree. It is when the h are extensively affected, that the produces distortion; but even in is not an invariable concurrent

ing. The power of motion was preserved, though it seemed weaker than in the other side. His health was otherwise unimpaired. After the affection had continued in this state for years, it was removed under the use of a suecession of large blisters.

SECTION X.

OF CERTAIN AFFECTIONS OF THE BONES OF THE SPINE.

It would be foreign to my purpose to enter minutely upon this important subject; but there are some eireumstances relating to it, which it may be proper to mention very briefly, in connexion with the object of

this essay.

In the ordinary cases of carious and distorted vertebræ, aeeompanied by paraplegia, it is well known that the paralysis is not produced simply by the distortion; for the distortion may exist in a very great degree without paralysis; and when they have existed together, the paralysis may be entirely removed, while the distortion remains undiminished. It appears that it is the inflammatory action of the parts which deranges the function of the eard; that the effects of this in reference to the eord may subside, though the disease of the bones may go on to anehylosis and permanent distortion; or that, on the contrary, it may terminate by fungoid disease of the membranes, or chronic disease of the cord itself, and thus the palsy become irremediable. The original disease appears to be in some cases seated in the ligaments and membranes; in others, in the articulating surfaces and intervertebral eartilages; and in others, in the bodies of the vertebræ. It is when the bodies of the vertebræ are extensively affected, that the earies which follows produces distortion; but even in this ease, distortion is not an invariable consequence, for the earies may

le verr'ri fly to the - f is u. n rec rd. A ... T. was struck with a in to walk a little in ir as by Bover, the man fit Fifteern, and loss of I tis below the thorax. man, mentioned by Desault, r. "I moved all his limbs hien on pietely divided by a I real vertebra. A still more in the Memoirs of the a rappined a wound with a restates, which soon war is a e for long marches. e, the pare became painful, neligible of the foint me nee extracted. He died it was tound that the sword it minous and oblique proat a lad completely traversed 1. Jin the Proste side a include of the Archives wived a woundly a musket ar in my came our near F. W. Pl Scon healed, but and de authorite steel

we die

in, w, w, p publicat

of and that one of the

Auted in the body without

take place in such a manner as to diminish the size of the vertebræ equally along its whole surface, and thus merely to shorten the spine, without distorting it. This is said to occur most frequently in the lumbar vertebræ. The case of a boy related by Dr. Armstrong, is very important. He had involuntary discharge of urine and feees, difficult breathing, and paralysis of all the extremities except a very imperfect degree of motion in the left arm. There was much pain and tenderness on pressure in the cervical vertebræ, but no distortion. recovered completely in a few months, the vertebræ that had been affected remaining in a state of anchylosis. In this case, the disease was probably confined to the articulating surfaces. Mr. Copeland gives a plate, in which three of the dorsal vertebræ are represented as united by anchylosis, the intervertebral eartilages being removed, but without any loss of substance in the bodies of the vertebræ. In this case, paralysis had taken place, but there was no perceptible distortion. In attending to such cases in practice, therefore, it is not sufficient to ascertain the existence or non-existence of distortion. The whole spine should be examined with care, with the view of detecting the existence of inflammatory action. This will be indicated by pain or tenderness on pressure, or pain on passing a hot sponge over the part in the manner recommended by Mr. Copeland. The disease in its early stages is sometimes of very small extent; in a case which occurred to me some time ago, it was limited to a spot on one side of the spine, which could almost be covered by the point of the finger; but it was of so peculiar a nature, that very moderate pressure upon the spot produced syncope. The patient was an officer in the navy, and got well under the usual treatment.

A minute examination of the spine, therefore, should always be made with the numest care, when any of those symptoms occur which have been observed to be connected with affections of the spine or spinal cord, especially if they do not yield readily to common modes of treatment, or if they have occurred after injuries of

the spine. The principal sy following: - Weakness, num tions of any of the limbs; limbs, occurring chiefly dur full power of the muscles. can walk with sufficient ster such notions as are require nau boess along the margin of oppression and tightness accre mach; various affections of discharging the urine and fe ing tuem. Complaints such been found to be connected or spinal cord, after they had tic or asthmatic disorders, or or rectum. A case has be which an affection of the sp its progress, was accompanie hypertrophia of the left side disappeared long before death on inspection perfectly health; It is indeed true, that diseas pature may exist in the cord through nothing can be detected amination of the spine; but from the particular class of affe ferred to and in Ferral to whi tentive in watching the very symptom in particular, which plated with much suspicion, is constriction along the margin hand were passed across the st accompanied with a feeling of For of the alidomen, as if the the power of propelling their way be considered as merely fi

in many cases, they may in fac

they will likewise be found by

be frequently among the first in

effection of the spille and to

AFFECTIONS OF THE B

to diminish the size of while surface, and thus la 11 distorting it. This in the lumbar vertebræ. r. Armstrong, is very imdischarge furine and ralvis of all the extrelegrie of motion in the in a ditenderness on presbut no distortion. He ew m nths, the vertebra ang in a state of anchylowas probably confined to Ir. I pelant gives a plate, verte ere are represented as serverte ral cartilages being s f substance in the bodies en aralysis had taken place, e Legition. In attending exclore, it is not sufficient to non-existence of distortion. examined with care, with vie nee of inflammatory ac-I by Juin or tenderness on or a list of rige over the part rld 'r Mr Copeland. The s is a meting of very small Tred to me a me time ago, e side of the spine, which while a intell the flower; but TUT . . A. TETY Multrate presand the well under the usual to spine, therefore, should The been observed to be t spind day andes of

the spine. The principal symptoms of this kind are the following: - Weakness, numbness, or convulsive affections of any of the limbs; spasmodic starting of the limbs, occurring ehiefly during the night; loss of the full power of the muscles, so that though the patient can walk with sufficient steadiness, he cannot perform such motious as are required in running or leaping; numbness along the margin of the ribs, and a peculiar oppression and tightness across the region of the stomach; various affections of the breathing; difficulty in discharging the urine and feees, or difficulty in retaining them. Complaints such as these have sometimes been found to be connected with affections of the spine or spinal cord, after they had been mistaken for dyspeptic or asthmatic disorders, or for diseases of the urethra or rectum. A case has been formerly described, in which an affection of the spinal cord, at one period of its progress, was accompanied by all the symptoms of hypertrophia of the left side of the heart; but these disappeared long before death, and the heart was found on inspection perfectly healthy.

It is indeed true, that discases of a most formidable nature may exist in the cord itself or its membranes, though nothing can be detected by the most eareful examination of the spine; but these are quite distinct from the particular class of affections which are here referred to, and in regard to which we cannot be too attentive in watching the very earliest indications. One symptom, in particular, which should always be contemplated with much suspicion, is a feeling of tightness or constriction along the margin of the ribs, as if a tight band were passed across the stomach. This is generally accompanied with a feeling of distention in the lower part of the abdomen, as if the bowels had in part lost the power of propelling their contents. These feelings may be considered as merely flatulent or dyspeptic, and in many eases, they may in fact be nothing more; but they will likewise be found by an attentive observer, to be frequently among the first indications of a dangerous affection of the spine, and to exist before there is any affection of the limbs, or any disease can be discovered in the spine itself. In one of the last eases that occurred to me, symptoms of this kind had existed for nearly three months before a projection was discovered in one of the lower dorsal vertebræ, and this was soon followed by perfect paraplegia.

It is worthy of attention, that symptoms affecting internal organs may exist in connexion with diseases of the spine, without being attended by any affection of the limbs, or any symptom calculated to direct our attention to the spine as the scat of the disease. A girl mentioned by Mr. Copeland, had difficulty and pain in emptying the bladder, pain and tightness round the margin of the thorax, and difficult breathing; her limbs were not affected, except that she was more easily fatigued than her companions. One of the dorsal vertebræ was found to project a little, and by topical bleeding and blistering on this part, and rest in the horizontal posture, all her complaints were removed. A man mentioned by Dr. Jebb, had pain under the short ribs on both sides, eough, and irregular pulse. From the parts affected laneinating pains extended downwards along the thighs, occasioning much uneasiness in walking, resembling the pains of rheumatism. The ninth or tenth dorsal vertebra was found to protrude, and by issues applied at that place, all his complaints were removed.

The remedies on which we chiefly rely in all cases of this kind are topical bleeding, blistering, issues, and rest in the horizontal posture; but some eases are on record, showing in certain conditions of the disease the beneficial effects of mereury. A girl mentioned by Sir Charles Bell, after an injury of the spine, was confined to bed for eight months in the most helpless state, her back bent, and her knees drawn up. She recovered entirely under a course of mercury, given her on account of syphilis, with which it was discovered that she had been affected from the time of the aecident. In the transactions of a Society for the Improvement of Medical and Surgical Knowledge, is related the case of a man, who

AFFECTIONS OF THE BOX

had squinting, difficulty of swo of several of the cervical vert mercury all his complaints dission of the vertebræ was dimin removed. Several cases have a to the borizontal posture with this occurred in Dr. Armstron,

The spine may be affected wi out the existence of any sympt state of disease. A man mentio who had been liable to sovere p of palgitation, died suddenly al oaly morbid appearance observe large scrofulous abscess in the with caries of several of the verte the spinal cord was exposed in se smilar abscess in the posterior me of the bodies of five or six of the v died of plathists. She had compla severe pain in the back, but her en species did not differ from the usual A similar appearance in the lum peras abscess containing two pound described by Mr. Benjamin Bell. so diseased, that large lieces of and the matter was in several place Erian cord. The patient, a man of severe pain in his back and this him from raising his body into there was no distortion of the sp He had considerable difficulty of was accounted for by a diseased Other remarkable cases are on reco disease of the spine without any fat found the atlas so brought forward

· Edin Med Co

the act ases the occurted at ases the occurted had existed for nearly in this discovered in one and this was sion followed

S F TTO PINE

that smarth is affecting to mexicon with diseases in 1 l by any affection to contact the set of the disease. A least thin it is fitted to a disease. A least the life of the disease. A least the life of the disease and the life of the disease and the life of the dorsal verter and by topical bleed.

It rest in the horizone were removed. A many pin under the short ribs were removed. A many pin under the short ribs are a life of the short ribs are a life of the short ribs are a life of the short ribs.

The many are the short ribs are a life of the short ribs are a life of the short ribs are a life of the short ribs. The ninth of the short ribs are a life of the short ribs are a life of the short ribs.

The many are the ribb of the short ribs are a life of the short ribs.

The ninth of the many are a life of the short ribs are a life of the short ribs.

The ninth of the life of the short ribs are a life of the short ribs are a life of the short ribs.

The ninth of the life of the short ribs are a life of the short ribs are a life of the short ribs.

The ninth of the short ribs are a life of the short ribs are a life of the short ribs are a life of the short ribs.

re cliedy rely in all cases of the companies were discharged, same and rest that the companies were discharged to the companies are on record, and the companies are on the compa

had squinting, difficulty of swallowing, indistinct articulation, paralysis of the left leg and arm, and protrusion of several of the cervical vertebræ. Under a course of mercury all his complaints disappeared, and the protrusion of the vertebræ was diminished, though not entirely removed. Several eases have recovered by confinement to the horizontal posture without any other remedy; this occurred in Dr. Armstrong's ease, lately referred

The spine may be affected with extensive caries without the existence of any symptom that marks such a state of disease. A man mentioned by Sir Charles Bell, who had been liable to severe pain in his back, and fits of palpitation, died suddenly after a long walk. The only morbid appearance observed on inspection was a large scrofulous abseess in the posterior mediastinum, with caries of several of the vertebræ, of such extent that the spinal cord was exposed in several places. I saw a similar abscess in the posterior mediastinum, with caries of the bodies of five or six of the vertebræ, in a girl who died of phthisis. She had complained for some time of severe pain in the back, but her complaints in other respects did not differ from the usual symptoms of phthisis. A similar appearance in the lumbar vertebræ, with a psoas abseess containing two pounds of matter, has been described by Mr. Benjamin Bell." The vertebræ were so diseased, that large pieces of them were separated, and the matter was in several places in contact with the spinal cord. The patient, a man of 40, had complained of severe pain in his back and thighs, which prevented him from raising his body into the erect posture, but there was no distortion of the spine, and no paralysis. He had considerable difficulty of breathing, but this was accounted for by a diseased state of the lungs. Other remarkable cases are on record, showing extensive disease of the spine without any fatal result. Duverney found the atlas so brought forward upon the foramen

^{*} Edin, Med, Com, vol. iii.

magnum, that there was not a space of more than two lines in diameter left for the eord; and Bertin has described a preparation in which the atlas was so anchylosed with the occipital bone, that its posterior arch erossed the centre of the foramen magnum. The history of this case is not given, but it is evident from the anchylosis, that it was not speedily fatal. Similar contractions have occurred, though not to the same extent, in the ordinary cases of caries of the spine, terminating by distortion and anchylosis, but without paralysis.

In connexion with this subject, it may be right to allude very briefly to some of the phenomena connected

with the affections of the processus dentatus.

1. It may be affected with caries without producing any urgent symptoms, until it suddenly give way and prove fatal. A man, mentioned by Mr. Copeland, had been using mereury for a disease in the tibia, and had for some time complained of stiffness and pain when he moved his head. On making a sudden turn of his head he was seized with convulsions, and died in a few hours. On inspection, the processus dentatus was found completely detached from the vertebra, having been eroded by earies. A woman mentioned by Ollivier, had pain in the neek and difficult deglutition; the museles of the neck were rigid, and the least motion of the head was insupportable, so that she was constantly confined to the horizontal posture, and almost to one particular position; she then had eough and difficult breathing, and at last died after several months. There was extensive disease of the lungs, and the processus dentatus was entirely destroyed by caries. The posture in which this woman had been long confined, probably prevented her more sudden death.

2. It may be dislocated by violence, of which many examples are on record. A man mentioned by Sir Charles Bell, was making a violent effort to propel a wheelbarrow from the street upon the raised foot pavement, when the wheelbarrow suddenly went from be-

fore him, and he He was dead in was found to hav having given way 3. It appears th tatus may vield in to a course of urge. into the Infitmary consequently being plained of pain in down the neck, pa rather impossibility the æsophagus heir they had passed a s of the neck and bac tion was slow and o complaints had begu been increasing grad one of the first sym sion, his left side be der, the right was a his breathing became dava more, having lo below the neck. On ligaments had given v diviatus, so as to alle No other disease co

AFFECTION

For the following in the observations make the observations make the of the cord.

Lat of the Lear 1857

a space of more than two

rl: —d Benin has

"a be atlas was anche.

that its posterior arch
men magnum. The history
"seevilent from cleanchelily fird. Similar congo to the same extent,
mas of the spine, terin anchylosis, but without

" \$ OF THE SENE.

at ect, it may be right to altipe phenomena connected
to sense dente tus.
aries with ut producing
it sud only give way and

ited by Mr. Copeland, had live so in the time, and had live so in the time, and had live so in the time a sudden turn of his and a sudden turn of his areas and did in a few areas as dentatus was live and difficult deglution, areas and difficult and the least motion areas and almost to one areas in a lanost to one

le unh and difficult

le unh and difficult

le unh and the processus

le unh and the processus

le le unh and the processus

le le unh and the processus

le unh leath of which man

le unh and beath of which man

le unh and the man

le unh a

fore him, and he fell with his chin upon the curb stone. He was dead in a few seconds; the processus dentatus was found to have crushed the spinal cord, the ligaments

having given way.

3. It appears that the ligaments of the processus dentatus may yield in a more gradual manner, giving rise to a course of urgent symptoms for some time before the affection is fatal. Some years ago, a man was received into the Infirmary of Edinburgh, who had been accustomed to carry burdens on his left shoulder, his head consequently being bent to the right side. He complained of pain in the forehead and occiput, extending down the neck, pain in the throat, great difficulty, or rather impossibility of swallowing, articles taken into the esophagus being rejected with some violence after' they had passed a short way. He had rigid contractions of the neck and back, resembling tetanus; his articulation was slow and difficult, and the pulse 54. These complaints had begun about six weeks before, and had been increasing gradually; difficulty of swallowing was one of the first symptoms. Two days after his admission, his left side became paralytic; on the following day, the right was affected in the same manner, and his breathing became laborious. He died in three days more, having lost all power of moving the parts below the neck. On inspection, it was found that the ligaments had given way on the left side of the processus dentatus, so as to allow it to compress the spinal cord. No other disease could be discovered in any of the viseera.

For the following important case I am indebted to Dr. Hunter. It illustrates in a striking manner many of the observations made in this section, and shows, in connexion with the disease of the vertebræ, complete paralysis, without any remarkable affection of the body of the cord.

CASE CLII.—A young lady, aged 15, in the beginning of the year 1825, began to complain of a dull pain

in the neck, which to a certain extent limited its motions. She became languid, depressed, and sallow; and the symptoms went on in this manner, without exeiting much attention, till about the middle of March. Dr. Hunter was then consulted about her, on account of an increase of the uneasiness in her neck, which was accompanied by considerable swelling in the back part of it. Several tumors had also appeared on the sealp, in which fluctuation was felt, and on opening them, the bone beneath was found to be earious. The swelling of the neck gradually increased to a great extent on each side of the spine, and became irregularly softened; and when opened, discharged ill-conditioned strumous matter, in small quantities. The pain in the neek inereased to such an agonizing degree as totally to prevent motion; it extended at times to the left side of the head and face, and fixed, for a certain time every day, with excruciating severity, over the left eye. At an early period of her illness, numbness of the superior extremities took place, which increased to perfect paralysis; there was also rigid contraction of the flexor museles of the legs, with a slight degree of twisting of the mouth. The pulse became frequent; the breathing was natural when she was awake, but during sleep was accompanied by a loud snorting noise. The appetite was tolerable, and the other functions were natural. The earies of the bones of the skull gradually penetrated both tables, without any affection of the sensorium occurring. One or two new openings took place in the swelling on the neek, from which a discharge eontinued. She became gradually more and more emaciated, and died exhausted on the 1st of January, 1827.

Inspection.—An incision being made on the back of the neck, and carried down to the spine, gave vent to a considerable quantity of matter which lay in contact with the vertebræ; and the surrounding soft parts were in a state of pulpy degeneration. The four upper vertebræ were found to be more or less affected with caries, which was most remarkable in the first

and second. In a deep'y eroded, and articulating surfaces cond vertebra, the parated from the broom pletely penetrate was besides consider terior part of the your cord were thickened softened at the uppart of the uppart of the property of

AFFECTION C

A remarkable cash by M. Meyrieu.* It of the neck, his he moveable; difficulty months, palsy of a when his head was necessary office about the neck presented a caries of the right control that is defined there was destruct at as was luxated from

I conclude this part case, which shows di complicated with a ne rectors of fungue harm

CASE CLIII.—A guardian in the early partition on account of a distance of pain and stiffness of pain and stiffness of the lical. The pain largue, and backward

Bulled

of the season

extent in Well in mo-- tracely and sall #;

til, manner, with ut

I' the taddle of March.

a 11 ier, on occupt

in her neck, whi was

elgintel.kjant

apper d in the scalp.

don an other, he

The swelling

1 to a grat extent n

necon in red strum us

the pain in the neck in-

degree as totally to pre-

times to the left side of

in a cert in time every

r. - the lift ere. At and so of he super t

pre-it printfa.

Chara a chipp har

ent defect finisher of

· hert: elrenthing

had a during step to s ernico. Teaffile

Lin dolls these buying

. de gradually : ene.

and a discourge

" " by I ...

. . 12 for let it in next.

or to the like t

in the first to the Large to g

and second. The articulating surfaces of the atlas were deeply eroded, and there was a similar erosion of the articulating surfaces of the occipital bone. In the second vertebra, the processus dentatus was entirely separated from the body of the bone, the caries having completely penetrated it at its attachment, and there was besides considerable loss of substance on the posterior part of the vertebra. The membranes of the cord were thickened, and the cord itself was a little softened at the upper part, but in no remarkable degree.

A remarkable case, analogous to this, is mentioned by M. Meyrieu.* The patient had pain and stiffness of the neck, his head being bent to one side, and immoveable; difficulty of swallowing; and after some months, palsy of all the limbs. He died suddenly when his head was accidentally moved in doing some necessary office about his bed. The external parts of the neek presented a mass of soft disease. There was caries of the right condyle of the occipital bone, of the right side of the atlas, and of the processus dentatus; and there was destruction of the ligaments, so that the atlas was luxated from the occipital bone.

I conclude this part of the subject with the following case, which shows disease of the processus dentatus, complicated with a new formation, presenting the characters of fungus hæmatodes.

Case CLIII.—A gentleman, aged 22, of a serofulous habit, in the early part of his life had suffered amputation on account of a disease of the knee, and afterwards was liable to pectoral complaints with hemoptysis. the beginning of the year 1828, he began to complain of pain and stiffness of the neck, referred chiefly to the left side of it, and much increased by the motion of the head. The pain sometimes extended into the larynx, and backwards towards the scapula.

[.] Bull, de la Soc, de Med.

considerable relief from repeated blistering, &c., the symptoms returned, accompanied by loss of appetite, frequent pulse, and night perspirations; and soon after this he became affected with difficult deglutition, some dyspnæa and hoarseness. There was now also severe fixed pain referred to the back of the head, and much increased by the motion of the parts: so that he was obliged to support his head with both his hands when he had occasion to make any change of his posture. He was next affected with paralysis of the tongue and the upper eyelid of the left side. On 16th January 1829, he was seized with paralysis of the left arm, and two days after, the right was affected in the same manner. He had then great pain and difficulty in passing urine, with obstinacy of the bowels, which nothing could overcome. On the 29th, the lower extremities became paralytic, and he died on the 31st, having suffered greatly on the day on which he died, from difficult breathing.

Inspection.—All the external parts of the neck, the pharynx, &c. were healthy, and no disease was discovered in any of the vertebræ in their external aspect. The brain and ccrebellum were healthy, except some increase of vascularity. Within the foramen magnum, and attached to the inner surface of the dura mater at its anterior and lateral parts, there was a spongy tumor of a greyish yellow colour, which, when cut into, presented a variegated structure, resembling fungus hæmatodes. The processus dentatus was rough and carious on its surface, and it was so much elongated as to project half an inch into the cavity of the cranium. Its ligaments also were partially destroyed, so as evidently to allow it to encroach upon the area of the spinal canal, and to compress the cord. The spinal cord at the upper part was flattened, but not materially altered in its texture.

In regard to the treatment of the diseases of the spinal cord, it is not necessary to enter into any long

detail, as it must be
the corresponding a
acute affections, we
general and topical
gatives, and the o
affection is in a mor
consist chiefly in loc
blistering, and issue
In the early stages o
satisfactory treatmen
a succession of blist
spine, and then on
repeated in this ma
some of the cases
continued moderate

AFFECTIONS O

Coxcreding observed in the condition of the condition of

cord, I merely pro
of this most importe
cord, it merely pro
of this most importe
cngage the attentio
for prosecuting the
phenomena which
the diseases of the state principal organs
with the head and n
convulsive affections
speech, loss of voice,
trismus, and difficul
some cases, to have

detail, as it must be regulated by the same principles as the corresponding affections of the brain. In the more acute affections, we must, of course rely chiefly on free general and topical bleeding, assisted by blistering, purgatives, and the other usual auxiliaries. When the affection is in a more chronic form, the treatment will consist chiefly in local applications, as topical bleeding, blistering, and issues, aided by the horizontal posture. In the early stages of such affections, I think the most satisfactory treatment, after free topical bleeding, is by a succession of blisters, applied first on one side of the spine, and then on the other, in quick succession, and repeated in this manner to a considerable number. In some of the cases great benefit is also obtained from continued moderate purging.

SECTION XI.

CONCLUDING OBSERVATIONS ON THE PATHOLOGY OF THE SPINAL CORD.

The preceding observations on the diseases of the spinal cord, I merely propose as an imperfect plan or outline of this most important subject, in the hope that it may engage the attention of those who have opportunities for prosecuting the inquiry. When we review the phenomena which have been observed to accompany the diseases of the spinal cord, we find affections of all the principal organs of the body. In the parts connected with the head and neck, we find distortions of the eyes, convulsive affections of the face, difficulty and loss of speech, loss of voice, contraction of the jaw, resembling trismus, and difficulty of swallowing, which is said, in some cases, to have nearly resembled hydrophobia. In the viscera of the thorax, there have been observed op-

at d Pictoring, Sea the ni d by loss of appetite. pretions; and soon after d.Acult deglutifi.n, some here was now also severe k of the boad, and much e paris: so that he was ish to have hands when of dange of his posture. garavsis of the tongue left side. On 16th Jant pain and difficulty in passte towels, which nothing 19th, the wer extremities died on the 31st, having y on which he died, from rn I rarts of the neck, the rd no divise was dise now commal aspect. was beging, except some in the finmen magnum, eri ce fithe dura mater at of these was a spongy fumor e, which, whon out into, pre-. resem ing fungus hema. of the mas I wish and carious see much einighted as to proe carity of the cranium. Its a ir desimired, so as eridently n the art of the pinal canal, The spinal cord at the up. Le rue materially altered in its in of the disages of the anter 1910 et s

NES OF THE SPINE.

pression, palpitation, and strong and irregular action of the heart; painful sense of stricture in the region of the diaphragm, and difficulty of breathing, which, in some cases, has been permanent, and in others, has occurred in paroxysms, resembling asthma. In the organs of the abdomen and pelvis, we find vomiting, pain of the bowels, resembling colie; tenesmus, involuntary discharge of fæees, and retention or incontinence of urine. In the museular parts we observe convulsions and paralysis; the convulsions in some cases resembling chorea, in others tetanus. We are by no means prepared to say, in the present state of our knowledge, that all these proceed directly from the affections of the spinal cord, especially as we observe remarkable diversities and considerable want of uniformity in the symptoms. the subject presents to us a field of observation which promises most important and most interesting results. It has also opened up a wide field of conjecture, in regard to the influence of the spinal cord, in several diseases which have hitherto been involved in much obseurity. These conjectures are not to be altogether overlooked, but are of value only in as far as they direct us to subjects worthy of being investigated by farther observation. They have chiefly referred to the following points.

Spasmodic Diseases.—Several writers of eminence have conceived that many spasmodie and nervous diseases have their origin in affections of the spinal cord. Hoffman, in his Essay De Morbis Discernendis, directs us to distinguish betwixt epilepsy and convulsions. In the former, he says, the membranes of the brain are affected, in the latter the membranes of the spinal cord. In his Treatisc De Morbis Convulsivis, he divides convulsive affections into idiopathic and symptomatic. The former, he thinks, arise from irritation of the membranes of the spinal cord; the latter he supposes to depend upon diseases of other organs, and that the effect of them, by the influence of these diseases upon the spinal cord, is extended over the whole body. Ludwig dis-

cusses the same doctri many hypochondriacal irritation at the origin explaining the affections such diseases, by the co the par vagum. Lieutau affections, in which the on diseases of the spinal as an example. The sa Burserius, Fernelius, at Portal supposes that slig produces convulsion, and accounts for the one pa increase of the pressure.

In the present state confessed that these doc to be considered as little facts, however, have bee are on record, which sho of the spinal cord, symp of chorea and tetanus. I after a blow on the sacran convolsive affection nearly or memory, difficult articompaint continued with and afterwards retarned six months. Burserius r died of tetanus, induce intoxication; on dissecti rellow serum was found spinal cord. Frank also tetanus," which was indi but he gives no account o

Several cases have been

diseases of the spinal con-

resembling tetanus; and

further investigated by

tanus. Upon the whole,

be, that though symptoms

ring and irregular action of ric are in the region of the br it ing, which, in some and in others, has occurred and ma. In the organs of h d von ing pain of the teres us, invintary disery : convulsions and para-12 Cars resembling cherea. by no means prepared to ur snowledge, that all these Hutt no of the spinal cord, arka le diversities and conv in e symptoms. But a half of observation which and most interesting results. need of conjecture, in rerigal cod, in several disinvolved in much obto he altogether en'y in as far as they

E . Nat cond.

or al writes of eminence stornotic and nerrous dis-Me'is Piscernealis, directs Terry and morthshops. In ambranes of the brain are con fancis f the spinal cord. Cieralini, be divides conand symptomatic. The e suppose to depend ne many body. Ludwy dis

ave chiefly referred to the

cusses the same doctrine more particularly, ascribing many hypochondriacal and hysterical affections to irritation at the origin of the intercostal nerves, and explaining the affections of the lungs, the laryux, &c. in such diseases, by the connexion of these nerves with the par vagum. Licutaud contends that all convulsive affections, in which the speech is not impaired, depend on diseases of the spinal cord, and he considers tetanus as an example. The same doctrine is supported by Burserius, Fernclius, and Belfingerus (De Tetano.) Portal supposes that slight pressure on the spinal cord produces convulsion, and greater, paralysis; and he thus accounts for the one passing into the other by gradual

increase of the pressure.

In the present state of our knowledge it must be confessed that these doctrines, however ingenious, are to be considered as little better than conjecture. Many facts, however, have been already related, and others are on record, which show, in connexion with diseases of the spinal cord, symptoms closely resembling those of chorea and tetanus. Hoffman mentions a boy, who, after a blow on the sacrum, was seized with a violent convulsive affection nearly resembling tetanus, with loss of memory, difficult articulation, and delirium. The complaint continued with great severity for five days, and afterwards returned at nearly regular periods for six months. Burserius relates the case of a man who died of tetanus, induced by exposure to cold after intoxication; on dissection a large quantity of viscid yellow serum was found under the outer covering of the spinal cord. Frank also relates a case of "horrible tetanus," which was induced by a blow upon the spine, but he gives no account of the appearance on dissection. Several cases have been detailed in which, in various diseases of the spinal cord, symptoms occurred, closely resembling tetanus; and this important subject has been further investigated by Dr. Reid, in his work on Tetanus. Upon the whole, however, the truth appears to be, that though symptoms strictly tetanic do accompany various affections of the spinal cord, the disease properly to be considered as idiopathic tetanus is entirely of a different nature, and that the pathology of it is still

involved in great obscurity.

2. Colica Pictonum. I have referred to the case of a woman mentioned by Bonetus, in whom paralysis followed severe colie, and extensive serous effusion was found under the membranes of the spinal cord. Privatius, as quoted by Sauvages, mentions a woman who, after suffering from violent gastrodynia for three hours, was attacked with palsy of all the parts below the neek, and died in two months. At an early period of the disease, protrusion had taken place of the last cervical vertebra, but no account is given of the dissection. In this case, the pain was supposed to be symptomatic of the disease in the spinal cord; and similar to this is the view which several continental writers have taken of Colica Pictonum. They consider it as a real inflammation of the spinal cord, (Rachialgia Saturnina,) and on this principle they have proposed to treat it by blood-letting.* This opinion, however, has not been confirmed by farther, and more accurate observation. M. Gendrin examined carefully four cases of long standing, and could not detect any appearance of disease, either in the brain, spinal cord, or their membranes.

3. Fever. Ballonius ascribes many of the symptoms of fever to an affection of the spinal cord, particularly the pain in the back, tremors of the limbs, and oppression of the breathing.† A remarkable ease has been quoted from Brera, in which the eord became affected in a case of malignant fever; and Rachetti relates the case of a girl who died of petechial fever which had induced coma. On dissection, there were found evident marks of inflammation in the spinal cord and its mem-

+ Ballonii Consilia Medica.

branes, and a quantity of pr cauda equina; there were alin the brain and its membrane 4. Epilepsy. M. Esquirol, s to the Faculty of Medicine at lepsy, in which he states the bodies of fifteen patients who found the spinal cord affected i sections, however, presented a ance. In one there were hydat branes were as if injected; in the cord was of a greyish color the medullary substance of t natural at particular parts, and one case the spinal cord at th vertebræ was soft and of a li young woman, in whom the menstruation, he effected a cur of moxa to the spine.

CONCLEDING OBS

ö. Hydrophobia, M. Salin first who conjectured that in the spinal cord is affected; and a Johnson's Medico Chirurgical J which seems to afford some pr ture. The case was well mark fatal. The membranes of the l vascular, with considerable sero cipal marks of disease were in Varolii, medulla oblongata, an Epinal cord. These parts are crust of intense inflamination, this crust was more intense the Parts. M. Gendrin, however, at the examination of many ca

never could discover any disease ord or the nervous cangila. 6. Many cases of Dyspnaa Richeri della Struttura, delle fe

^{*} Astruc. Quæstio Medica, An morbo Colicæ Pictonum rectius Rachialgiae, venascetio?

cold, the divease properly tetabus is entirely of a ac part ology of it is still

re referred to the ease of neius, in whom paraiysis ensive serius effusion was the ernal cord. Priva-Then is a woman who, sitr Agria for three hours, al the parts below the neck, At an early period of the n place of the last cervical even of the dissection. In r sed to be symptomatic of and smiller to this is a ntal miters have taken of neder it as a real inflam-Bulidigia Saturnina, and re trop sed to treat it by n ow ver. has not been were recurate observation. - Ly four eases of long delet appearance of rain fina eerd, or their

shes many of the eymptoms
in pinal citly parientally
the limbs, and oppnis
the limbs, and oppnis
the limbs, and oppnis
to the limbs, and oppnis
to

branes, and a quantity of puriform matter about the cauda equina; there were also marks of inflammation in the brain and its membranes.*

4. Epilepsy. M. Esquirol, some years ago, presented to the Faculty of Medicine at Paris, a memoir on epilepsy, in which he states that he had examined the bodies of fifteen patients who died of this disease, and found the spinal cord affected in all of them. The dissections, however, presented no uniformity of appearance. In one there were hydatids; in another the membranes were as if injected; in a third the arachnoid of the cord was of a greyish colour. In several of the cases the medullary substance of the cord was softer than natural at particular parts, and in one it was harder. In one case the spinal cord at the 11th and 12th dorsal vertebræ was soft and of a light brown colour. In a young woman, in whom the paroxysms returned with menstruation, he effected a cure by repeated applications of moxa to the spine.

5. Hydrophobia. M. Salin scems to have been the first who conjectured that in this horrible disease the spinal cord is affected; and a case is related in Dr. Johnson's Medico Chirurgical Journal for October 1817, which seems to afford some probability to the conjecture. The case was well marked, violent, and speedily fatal. The membranes of the brain were found highly vascular, with considerable serous effusion; but the principal marks of disease were in the coverings of the pons Varolii, medulla oblongata, and the upper part of the spinal cord. These parts are said to have formed one crust of intense inflammation, and, on the spinal cord,

this crust was more intense than in any of the other parts. M. Gendrin, however, states, that he has assisted at the examination of many cases of hydrophobia, and never could discover any disease either in the spinal

cord or the nervous ganglia.

6. Many cases of Dyspnwa are supposed by Frank

^{*} Rachetti della Struttura, delle funzoni e delle Malattie della Midolla-Spinali.

to proceed from disease at the origin of the phrenic nerves; and difficulty of speaking and of swallowing frequently depends, according to Portal, on "engorgement" in the cervical portion of the spinal cord.

I leave these conjectures for the investigation of the reader, and shall hasten to bring this Essay to a close, by a brief allusion to some points which seem to be related to the subject, while they show the difficulties and obscurities which attend it.

Several very remarkable cases have occurred to me which presented all the characters of extensive disease of the spinal cord, while nothing could be found, either in the brain or the cord, that could in any degree account for the symptoms. Several of the same kind, in which the symptoms were equally decided, are mentioned by Dr. Bright.

Case CLIV.—A woman, aged 35, was first affected with numbness in the thumb of the left hand, which gradually extended over the whole hand and arm. The limb was then partially paralytic, and was likewise affected with involuntary motions exactly resembling those of chorca. This continued several weeks, and then gradually ecased; and the arm recovered its healthy state. Almost immediately after this, the right hand and arm were affected in the same manner, and after some time also got well. The legs then became affected with starting, involuntary twitches, and a feeling in walking, as if they would start from under her to one side. The complaint went on in this manner for some time, and then terminated in complete paraplegia, with retention of urine, requiring the constant use of the catheter. She was now confined to bed for nine months, and died of extensive gangrane of the sacrum and tops of the thighs. For some time before her death, she had recovered the action of the bladder.

Inspection.—No disease could be discovered in the brain or the spinal cord, except that the cauda equina was of a very dark colour, as if it had been soaked in

ven.us blood, and there we it. The sacrum was reliplaces carious; and it was and extensive sloughing sort breakly.

CONCLUDING

Case CLV .- A medica had been for several years i in perfect health, and was he was observed by his fri wardly in walking. He w sile of it, but soon percent command over both his legto nearly perfect paraplegia fecii n of the legs took I power of his arms, and this tained in them only a very of motion. They were also vulsive startings, so that any to hold was thrown from him often started in the same I about with considerable viole attempted to move them while disease could be discovered in and he was otherwise in good years after the commencement he was seized with phthisis, o tember 1652. I examined to care, and could not discover a in the brain or the spinal core

CASE CLVI — A woman, a spained her back in lifting so some time after, weakness of that have a resting enterprise the head, except a very slight the internal future.

the parent of the parent of the parent of the grand of swa owers or to Portal, on "eggotyen of the speal cord."

1 001.00

the investigation of the time Essay to a close, which seem to be re-

eases have occurred to me ment is of extensive disease ingreal disease ingreated the found, either than the same kind in equally decided, are mentioned.

m, cz d 35, was first affected 3 e left hand, which gra-Lend and arm. The limb all the Rowise affected AT TY TO Ing those of several weeks, and then graor rered to healthy state. ha re i hand and arm and niters me time g Here i with starting. 1 1 feer and in nathing, as if they The complaint e use and then termiirl - 1. with referent n of wine, se ... atheter. She was now nt; and skill of extensive and the thighs. For and recorded the ace d to the went in the state of the state venous blood, and there was some bloody fluid around it. The sacrum was remarkably soft, and in some places carious; and it was covered externally by a deep and extensive sloughing sore. All the other viseera were healthy.

Case CLV.—A medical gentleman, aged 30, who had been for several years in the navy, returned home in perfect health, and was living in Edinburgh, when he was observed by his friends to drag his legs awkwardly in walking. He was not himself at first sensible of it, but soon perceived a weakness and want of command over both his legs, which gradually increased to nearly perfect paraplegia. Some time after the affeetion of the legs took place, he began to lose the power of his arms, and this also increased, till he retained in them only a very feeble and unsteady power of motion. They were also frequently seized with convulsive startings, so that any article which he attempted to hold was thrown from him with violence. The legs often started in the same manner, and were thrown about with considerable violence, especially when he attempted to move them while he was sitting up. No disease could be discovered in the bones of the spine, and he was otherwise in good health, until about two years after the commencement of the complaint, when he was seized with phthisis, of which he died in September 1822. I examined the body with the utmost care, and could not discover a vestige of disease either in the brain or the spinal cord.

Case CLVI.—A woman, aged about 20, a servant, sprained her back in lifting some heavy article of furniture. She felt at the time no great inconvenience, but some time after, weakness of the legs took place, which gradually increased to perfect paraplegia. After some time the affection extended to the arms, and she then had not a vestige of motion of any of the parts below the head, except a very slight motion of some of the fingers; but the internal functions were all entire, and

her speech was distinct, except that, in speaking, she was sometimes seized with spasmodie twitches of the lips and lower jaw. She lived in this state without any change in the symptoms, her general health eontinuing good, for about twenty years. In the morning she was taken out of bed, and placed in a chair so contrived as to support her in a sitting posture. Her arms were supported on a cross board which passed before her; and if, by any accident, one of them slipped from this support, she had no resource but to call the assistanee of another person to replace it. Having been on one oceasion left alone for about two hours, after one of her arms had thus slipped down, the hand had become extensively ædematous. In the same manner, if her head fell forward upon the thorax, it remained in that position until raised by an attendant. Her mind was entire. She died of four days illness, with symptoms of low typhus fever. I examined the body with the utmost eare, along with Dr. Pitcairn, who had been in the habit of seeing her for several years, and we could not discover any disease, either in the brain or the spinal eord.

CASE CLVII.—A lady, aged 30, had been liable for several years to a feeling of stiffness of her neck, with an uneasy feeling in the back part of it, which made her sometimes sit with her head bent very much forward, and at other times thrown backwards; about two months before her death, these feelings increased, and were accompanied by pain, extending along both the arms; at first like rheumatic pains with stiffness, but soon amounting to paralysis. She had now only a very imperfeet motion below the elbow, and could not raise either arm to her head; there was very slight motion of the fingers, and they were sometimes spasmodically eontracted. The speech became thick and partially inarticulate; she had considerable difficulty in swallowing, and she observed that there were certain positions of the neck, in which she could swallow with greater facility than in others. Her pulse was good, the other

furctions were natural, and the tremities was not at all affect before her death, she became which occurred in paroxysms, An appearance of projection v pain up a pressure, in several ci telræ. Issues were inserted in week she seemed better; she w and the m tion of the arms was ly comatose with some convulsi convulsive motion of the lower i time in a state of constant and and shurting with violence. more paralytic. She seemed re but, after two hours, sunk again and died suddenly,

Inspection. In the upper pa larynx, there was a superficial reindammation; but, on the most of isease could be discovered in the or the bones of the spine; and all in a bealthy state.

I day and no comment on t these remarkable affections, but ly an in portant case described ady, whose age is not mention Policy in the little finger of the le ally extended over the hand, as The left lower extremity then same endual manner, and after of the night side, with the excellent ino fingers of the right hand, wh of motion. The motion of the and at last deglutition was much serred her intellect to the last, by moreable letters, which she are

Remare

functions were natural, and the motion of the lower extremities was not at all affected. About a fortnight before her death, she became affected with dyspnæa, which occurred in paroxysms, sometimes very severe. An appearance of projection was now observed, with pain upon pressure, in several of the lower eervieal vertebræ. Issues were inserted in this place, and for a week she seemed better; she was free from dyspnæa, and the motion of the arms was considerably improved. On the evening of the 4th October, she became suddenly comatose with some convulsion, and had a peculiar convulsive motion of the lower jaw, which was for some time in a state of constant and rapid motion, opening and shutting with violence. The arms also became more paralytic. She seemed relieved after a bleeding, but, after two hours, sunk again into a comatose state, and died suddenly.

Inspection.—In the upper part of the pharynx and larynx, there was a superficial redness like very recent inflammation; but, on the most careful examination, no disease could be discovered in the brain, the spinal cord, or the bones of the spine; and all the other viscera were

in a healthy state.

I shall add no comment on the simple relation of these remarkable affections, but merely illustrate them by an important ease described by Bretanneau.* A lady, whose age is not mentioned, was affected with palsy in the little finger of the left hand, which gradually extended over the hand, and then over the arm. The left lower extremity then became affected in the same gradual manner, and after this, the arm and leg of the right side, with the exception of the thumb and two fingers of the right hand, which preserved the power of motion. The motion of the tongue was then lost, and at last deglutition was much impeded. She preserved her intellect to the last, and expressed herself by moveable letters, which she arranged with the thumb

or expect that, in speaking, she 1 ... h spamode intehes of the ormeton, her general health cont venty years. In the morning I and placed in a chair so con-T a ting posture. Her arms and which passed before -d at me of them slipped from The rose but to call the assistn replace it. Having been on r Sout two hours, after one of h wn, the hand had become is. In the same manner, if her n the Corax, it remained in that in affen ant. Her mind was ar lavs illness, with symptoms r. I xr el the body with the " & Dr. Pircarm, who had been in the several years, and we could ser in the brain or the spi-

OF FIRE SPINAL MED.

an extension increased and received about two or seeings increased and received about notice or seeings increased in the received and received and received are seeings in the received and received are received as a received as a received are received as a re

^{*} Revue Medicale, May 1826.

and two fingers of the right hand, of which she preserved the power. The duration of the disease is not mentioned. There was a small quantity of fluid in the ventricles of the brain; but the brain itself, the cerebellum, and spinal cord, being examined with the utmost care, were found perfectly healthy, with the exception of a small spot upon the tuber annulare. On the right side of this, at the depth of four lines, there was a portion three lines in extent, of the colour of rust. Its centre was of the deepest colour, and its circumference irregular, gradually losing itself in the surrounding substance; and it seemed rather harder than the other parts.

The morbid appearance, in this singular case, has a remarkable resemblance to the morbid condition of a small part of the brain, formerly referred to, and exemplified in Casc CXXXV. It is probably the result of a slow inflammatory action, limited to a very small portion of the cord, in the same manner as we have seen it in the brain. There is reason to expect, that a very minute examination of the whole cord, in such cases, may discover similar changes of structure, calculated to throw light upon affections which are at present involved in much obscurity. The following is one of the most remarkable that I find on record.

A woman, mentioned by Ollivier, a servant, was suddenly seized while making a bed, with a very strong sense of pricking in the points of the fingers of the left hand, and the points of the toes of the left foot; and half an hour after, the same parts on the right side were affected in the same manner. She continued to go about for three hours, after which she was obliged to sit down from a feeling of fatigue; and after sitting for some hours, she was carried to bed. Next day, there was paralysis of all the limbs, but in the greatest degree on the left side. The sensibility of the parts was not impaired. Respiration was performed with a kind of effort, and at night became very difficult. On the third day, respiration was rather improved, but there was difficult deglutition. In the evening the difficulty

of breathing increased, with action of the heart, and she a slight appearance of infiltal lar tissue on the outside of the especially about the lower processes could be discovered espinal cord; and all the other healthy state.

I conclude this subject wit tain obscure and anomalous at now mentioned, present many ease of the spinal cord, though peral is more favourable. Th variety of characters, and the ingly obscure. The most con ous spasmodic affections of th of the back, sometimes resem tanus; and various degrees of extremities, sometimes announ lesis which is often accompani molic affections of the paralyti nerally a great feeling of weaking quently pain, which is sometime but more commonly extends in a along the whole of the spine, breathing likewise occur, someti pitation, and various uneasy f and bowels. The affections o females, chiefly those of the hig nerally extremely tedious and under the discount to say what treatment ever them; but the remedies wi beneficial are, free and regular tion of tonics and anti-spasmodi purgatives; strong friction; cold lastering on the spine very suddenly pass off, without leaving very suddenly pass off. A claybach she preserved

I die disease is not menby title of duid in the ventitle of duid in the ventitle rain itself, the cerebellum,
the rain itself he utmost care,
the exception of
the exception of
the utmost care,
there was a portion
there was a portion
there was a portion
there was a portion
the of the utmost care,
the there was a portion
the surrounding subdistance than the other

in this singular case, has a are the motificandition of a rain, first referred to, and exem-[[] It is rotably the result of mited to a very small Hanner as we have seen Research expect, that a very n + 1 + T to plain sell cases, re re-of meture calculated to " " " " " " " " is ne of the most ... V A Mini r a servatir mas suidki abd. with a very strong n as of the inverse of the left he to 3 f the left foot and nuris vo the right side nere the total and the right side mere to the total and the right side mere to the continued to of breathing increased, with frequent pulse and strong action of the heart, and she died at night. There was a slight appearance of infiltration of blood in the eellular tissue on the outside of the dura mater of the cord, especially about the lower part. No other vestige of disease could be discovered either in the brain or the spinal cord; and all the other viscera were in the most healthy state.

I conclude this subject with a brief allusion to eertain obscure and anomalous affections, which, like those now mentioned, present many of the characters of disease of the spinal cord, though their termination in general is more favourable. The affections assume a great variety of characters, and the nature of them is exceedingly obscure. The most common symptoms are various spasmodic affections of the limbs, or of the muscles. of the back, sometimes resembling chorea, or even tetanus; and various degrees of weakness of the lower extremities, sometimes amounting to complete paralysis, which is often accompanied by remarkable spasmo lie affections of the paralytic limbs. There is generally a great feeling of weakness in the back, and frequently pain, which is sometimes confined to one part, but more commonly extends in a greater or less degree along the whole of the spine. Various affections of the breathing likewise occur, sometimes with attacks of palpitation, and various uncasy feelings in the stomach and bowels. The affections occur almost entirely in females, chiefly those of the higher ranks, and are generally extremely tedious and untractable. It is indeed difficult to say what treatment has any decided control over them; but the remedies which appear to be most beneficial are, free and regular purging, or a combination of tonies and anti-spasmodics, with small doses of purgatives; strong friction; cold spunging or shower bath, and blistering on the spine. The affections commonly pass off, without leaving any bad consequences, -sometimes very suddenly, and without any eause to which their removal can be ascribed.

One modification of these singular affections will be illustrated by the two following cases, which lately occurred to me in the same family. A strong and healthy girl, aged 8, of a full habit and florid complexion, was observed to stumble frequently in walking, and occasionally to fall; and this, without any farther warning, was followed in a very few days, by perfect palsy of both lower extremities. I saw her about a fortnight after the attack, and found the limbs completely paralytic, with frequent spasmodic contractions. Nothing was to be discovered about the spine, and she was in other respects in excellent health; the bowels were rather confined, but casily regulated. About a month after the commencement of this affection, her elder sister, aged 16, who had been rather delicate, and at times hysterical, was observed to walk awkwardly; and, in a few days, she lost entirely the use of the lower extremities. She was now for some time in a great measure confined to bed, and the affected limbs were liable to strong spasmodic contraction; her knees being drawn up to the abdomen, and the heels to the buttocks. In this manner she lay during the whole time while she was awake; but as soon as she fell asleep, the limbs were stretched out into an easy natural posture. She slept well in the night, but the moment she awoke, the limbs were drawn up into their contracted condition. If an attempt was made to extend them, great and continued force was required, until they were brought nearly to the extended position, and then the complete extension took place with a sudden jerk. They now remained in this extended position for a few seconds, when they were by another sudden and painful jerk thrown back into their contracted state. This young lady had also occasional spasmodic affections of the arius, and of the muscles of the neck; but these were transient, and there was no diminution of muscular power in the arms. There was considerable uneasiness of the back, but nothing could be discovered by examination of the spine. Both eases continued in the state which I have described for nearly six months,

and then get entirely we chiefly of free and continantispasmodies, topical ble on the spine. In the eldeters led to the formation carbancle on the spine, and

I do not know whether be referred to this class; it very remarkable affection at and I have not seen anothe gentleman, aged 34, of a slo habits, was affected in the s ness and diminished sensi-In the inferior extremities, thighs, and sometimes affecting abdomen; in the superior e above the wrists. There n tion of muscular power. II. distance, though he did so w and unsteadiness; but he c degree perform such motio raning, leaping, or even very in other respects in good he were employed, without benefi dict seemed rather to be hurth the state which I have describ when he determined to try the For this purpose, he wanted a or six miles in a warm even much fallgued, and consideral Le had severe Pains in the ris cret comblaints nete ut good health, Pleased. He ha

These anomalous affections or cations, considerably different in Montaith of Greened for

and the same

. That will be

which lately

. V. Art og and healthy

4. 1 f. r. l corapiezion, nas

, ' I . I'r IB W sing, and occa-

ary farther warning.

" The law, by perfect palsy of

: 1 ° e . n s com: ctely para-

e co tract its. Nothing

- it is some, and she was in

. . . i, the bowels were

It is special to Ab ut a month

and I is aftern ne intelder sister,

de l'est et de cute, au l'ar times

redoom a ankwardy; and, in

we have of the lower exthe fina ateat measure

. -, her es being drawn

e eele die docks. In

The Ware time while she

the limbs specific asleep, the limbs

Andrew Presides She

mont she awake, the

arvent anuxe, tile

ortification to the second con-

to the property of the propert

... p. and ... n the complete

They are the same

They non the seconds of the second of

This round

dimension of museu'at individues in a considerable unitalities in

course transfer by ex-

and then got entirely well. The treatment consisted ehiefly of free and continued purging with tonics, and antispasmodics, topical bleeding and repeated blistering on the spine. In the elder of the two, one of the blisters led to the formation of a large and troublesome earbuncle on the spine, and this seemed to accelerate the cure.

I do not know whether the following ease ought to be referred to this class; it excited my attention as a very remarkable affection at the time when it occurred, and I have not seen another exactly resembling it. gentleman, aged 34, of a slender make and very active habits, was affected in the summer of 1815 with numbness and diminished sensibility of all the extremities. In the inferior extremities, it extended to the tops of the thighs, and sometimes affected the lower parts of the abdomen; in the superior extremities, it never extended above the wrists. There was along with it a diminution of muscular power. He could walk a considerable distance, though he did so with a feeling of insecurity and unsteadiness; but he could not in the smallest degree perform such motions as are required in running, leaping, or even very quick walking. He was in other respects in good health. Various remedies were employed, without benefit; evacuations and spare dict seemed rather to be hurtful. He had continued in the state which I have described, for about two months, when he determined to try the effect of violent exercise. For this purpose, he walked as hard as he was able, five or six miles in a warm evening, and returned home much fatigued, and considerably heated. Next morning, he had severe pains in the calves of his legs, but his other complaints were much diminished, and in a few days disappeared. He has ever since enjoyed very good health.

These anomalous affections occur under other modifieations, considerably different from those which I have now described. I received from my friend, the late Dr. Monteith of Glasgow, a very interesting account of two eases which occurred to him under a very aggravated form. One of these, a lady, aged 22, was at first affected with violent headach, accompanied by a sense of tension in the head, and strong throbbing in the carotids, temporal arteries, and throughout the head; the pulse 120. Large and repeated bloodletting was employed for the first ten or twelve days, until she was "pale as paper," and exceedingly enfeebled, but without any relief. After four weeks, she became affected with violent pain in the lower extremities, which were drawn up and could not be extended, the thighs being drawn up to the abdomen, and the legs bent back upon the thighs; and every exacerbation of the headach was followed by an increase of irritation, pain and retraction of the limbs. The headach was ehiefly referred to a spot upon the left parietal bone, where she had received an injury by a fall three months before. A variety of practice was employed with very little benefit; and her only relief was from bloodletting, and large doses of laudanum, of which she sometimes took 500 drops in the course of a night. Mereury appeared at one time to be productive of some benefit; the effect, however, was only temporary, though she went through repeated courses of it. She used Prussic acid to a great extent, the warm bath, and a variety of other remedies with very little benefit. At the end of about three years, the limbs for the first time became so free from pain and irritation as to bear applications with the view of remedying the stiffness of the joints; and, at the end of about three years more, she was gradually restored to perfect health. This lady was not for an hour free from headach for three years, but besides this constant pain, she was liable to violent exacerbations of it, lasting from a few days to several weeks. During these attacks the pulse became very strong and jarring, and the faec flushed and swelled; and the only relief she obtained was from repeated bloodletting, so that in the course of her illness she was bled from the arm ninetyeight times, besides frequent topical bleeding by lecehes and eupping.

The other patient was a v eemplaints also began with vi she underwent a great variety of twelve months, without any the centrary, about the end of ther increased, and she was con of extreme exhaustion, and suff intense headach. Soon after, pain in the spine, and this was sudden attack of most exerucial extremities, extending over ever companied by such increased se not bear the weight of the bedthe slightest touch with the fir There was also tenderness and the trunk and upper extremities allow the arm to remain fully ex time of feeling her pulse. From this affection of the limbs, they b retracted, and after a short time close to the body; and there wa ing along the whole course of the ever, no disease could be discovere by pressure. She now became much debiliated; the headach was rat limbs communed in the same sta touch upon them, or the most gen them, gave such violent pain, the Dr. Monteith said, she was not me At the end of four years, this la and to get out of bed a little daily less were so much bent upon the so rigid, that no force could bri angle. At the end of three years report of her was, that she could n Was proceeding improving so that Was projectory and pr along with Dr. Monteith in the c the impression of a case of the impression of a case of the impression of a case of the impression of ो ार भूर विशेष मुख्य की की किस it . . . I ned by a sense d. A st by throthing in the in and impoughout the head; I re aid bloodletting was n - rather des, until sie was I er 2" enfe b' d, but without 1 or : The Dallies, Which were extens it, the thighs being 7. ii le lezs bent back upon y by expectation of the headach especial tritation, pain and re-The was chiefly referred 17 the bar where she r a fall dance months before. on selp red with very little To we from bloodlering, and we cal she sometimes took Mereny appeared frome benche; the effect, · 1 If to the went through . Ne use i Prussic acid to a great 13 where of the remedies It take ead of about three of a first ime became in free from ear ann leations with the rien ic. vs. fire jeins, and at the end r. 173, she mas gradually restored The Ros B f for an hour tree - Ary F 15 but podes this contract our exect of as of it. last. To sweet were the top the top the in the matter than the coly tribe in the matter than in

The sale ...

The other patient was a young lady of 17, whose complaints also began with violent headach, for which slie underwent a great variety of treatment for upwards of twelve months, without any permanent benefit. On the contrary, about the end of this period, the pain rather increased, and she was confined to bed in a state of extreme exhaustion, and suffering from constant and intense headach. Soon after, she first complained of pain in the spine, and this was speedily followed by a sudden attack of most excruciating pain in both lower extremities, extending over every part of them, and aecompanied by such increased sensibility that she could not bear the weight of the bed-elothes upon them, and the slightest touch with the finger made her seream. There was also tenderness and morbid irritability of the trunk and upper extremities, so that she could not allow the arm to remain fully extended during the short time of feeling her pulse. From the commencement of this affection of the limbs, they began to be powerfully retracted, and after a short time they were drawn up close to the body; and there was severe pain extending along the whole course of the spine, where, however, no disease could be discovered on examination or by pressure. She now became much emaciated, pale, and debilitated; the headach was rather relieved, but the limbs continued in the same state, and the slightest touch upon them, or the most gentle attempt to extend them, gave such violent pain, that, for eight months, Dr. Monteith said, she was not moved in bed six inches. At the end of four years, this lady began to improve, and to get out of bed a little daily; but at this time her legs were so much bent upon the thighs, and the knees so rigid, that no force could bring them to a right angle. At the end of three years more, Dr. Monteith's report of her was, that she could walk a short way, and was progressively improving, so that he entertained sanguine hopes of a complete recovery. I visited this lady along with Dr. Monteith in the course of her illness, and I eertainly never saw a case which gave me more the impression of deep-seated and hopeless disease.

trasgon: and he mention oceas mally attending it in tacks of dyspino a, resembl speech, and of the power of aberration of min l. He as regard to the tedious and t disease, and confesses, that seen decided advantage fro what was required for sympto pearing the chief remedy." tion described by Dr. Gue · Des Irritations Encephaliq of his panents, a your g man paljitation and difficult breat the upper part of the abdom attacks of loss of recollection. the arms, grinding of the tercertain periods; and, during samely recover from the offect d pressed and in apable of any bear the last light or nois exerted by any exertion or men continued in this state for upo taen gradually and many dely remedies employed were pur prusic acid, and regetable die similar, in a young man of the use of cold effusion. I have frequently seen in effects n, in which there was parts of the spine, sometimes of it, and sometimes extending alorg the whole course of the tally some degree of wealness distribution to Walking, Son initching of the toes, especial have treated such cases by to it

CALL. NO

The history of these eases conveys a more distinct impression of this extraordinary affection than could be given by any description. Other varieties of the symptoms were observed in some of the other cases which occurred to Dr. Monteith, particularly long-continued and uncontrollable vomiting, fits resembling epilepsy and catalepsy, palpitations and various irregular actions of the heart, and a strong and painful pulsation extending along the whole course of the spinal cord. There were also irregular attacks of fever, fits of colie, and severe spasms in the abdomen, which were relieved only by large opiates. There was in general a remarkable aversion to light, and one of his patients lay in a state of almost total darkness for more than a year. In another patient, a lady of 30, the arms were affected, but not so severely as the lower extremities. This lady was confined to bed for two years, and then recovered perfect health, which she had enjoyed for five years at the time when I received this account. In another there was such incessant vomiting that she retained nothing in the form of food, drink, or medicine, for six weeks. In this case the vision was also very much impaired, and twice suspended for a very considerable time. Nothing was to be discovered about the spine in any of these cases, and the pain in the spine was not increased by pressure, but it was very much increased by motion, or by attempting a sitting posture. In the treatment, temporary benefit was experienced from bloodletting, very large opiates, and warm bath; but, upon the whole, the disease seemed gradually to wear itself out, without any mode of treatment having a sensible effect in arresting its progress. Even after considerable improvement has taken place, the disease is apt to relapse from very slight causes. In one of Dr. Monteith's cases, a cure was so far accomplished in eighteen months, that a drive for a short way in a carriage was then recommended; but this produced a relapse, which lasted another year, and was fully as violent as the first.

This affection has been described by Dr. Burns of

7 7.7 577 AL F 7D.

5 7.7 75 a more distin han could be

. Charte of the symp.

on the first ases which

reminially ing-continued

i ing epilepay and

, has his integral actions

in fill person extend-

.. t the stral end. There

to i were his of colle, and

. पा पर्व महार मही सम्बद्ध

on the property of the state.

. . . Lis priients lay in a

the safeth to than a year. In

remains were affected,

et a wrextreme's. This lady

in the and then recovered

Services of the fears at

er unt. In another

ty and all starting no-

र कर का कर में एक लिए हैं पर श्रेष्ठ

. - - on we also ret much im-

or a very i repletable

Ter 1 1000 testine in

in I have the stine was no

es (reginally increased

no are. In the

The state of fem

ALL STREET

The second of the second

Tre later 1 ares

.. p.

Glasgow: and he mentions some other symptoms as occasionally attending it in his observation, such as attacks of dyspnæa, resembling eroup, temporary loss of speech, and of the power of swallowing, and temporary aberration of mind. He agrees with Dr. Monteith, in regard to the tedious and untractable character of the disease, and eonfesses, that "in most eases, he has not seen decided advantage from any medicine, beyond what was required for symptoms as they arise, time appearing the chief remedy." I find an analogous affeetion described by Dr. Guerin of Mamers, in a tract "Des Irritations Encephaliques et Rachidiennes." One of his patients, a young man of 16, had first attacks of palpitation and difficult breathing, then violent pains in the upper part of the abdomen, and, after six months, attacks of loss of recollection, with convulsive motions of the arms, grinding of the teeth, and violent palpitations of the heart. These attacks continued to recur at uncertain periods; and, during the intervals, he did not entirely recover from the effects of them. He continued depressed and incapable of any mental exertion, unable to bear the least light or noise, and the attacks were excited by any exertion or mental emotion. The patient continued in this state for upwards of four years, and then gradually and completely recovered. The principal remedies employed were purgatives, topical bleeding, prussic acid, and vegetable diet. In another case, very similar, in a young man of 20, he found benefit from the use of cold effusion.

I have frequently seen in young females a slighter affection, in which there was pain referred to various parts of the spine, sometimes chiefly to the lower part of it, and sometimes extending upwards and downwards along the whole course of the spine. There was generally some degree of weakness of the limbs, with great disinclination to walking, sometimes with spasmodic twitching of the toes, especially in the night-time. I have treated such eases by topical bleeding and blistering, without benefit; and I have generally found the

Attempts have been made, to explain these singular cases, by the doctrine of spinal irritation. But it may, perhaps, be doubted, whether this conveys any definite notion, or whether it is not to be considered as a gratuitous principle, assumed so as to answer to the phenomena, rather than deduced from observation. When we find, along with the complaints now mentioned, symptoms distinctly referable to the spine, as pain or tenderness on a particular spot, it is fair to eonsider this as directing our attention to an important seat of disease; but there is no doubt that these affections often appear, without any symptom that can be referred to the spine, and in many cases with sources of irritation, distinctly referable to other organs. A gentleman, about whom I was consulted some time ago, had a severe and long-continued attack of nephralgia, which was at last relieved by the passage of a calculus; but such a degree of inflammatory action had been excited, that, for several weeks after the violence of the attack had subsided, he discharged purulent matter in his urine, in large quantity. In the course of the complaint, and about the time when the violent pain, which was in the region of the left kidney, was beginning to subside, he was affected with difficulty of swallowing, a sense of constriction in the esophagus and the pit of the stomach, and spasmodic affections of both upper and lower extremities, and of the left side of the face, closely resembling totanus. These continued in a greater or less degree for eight or ten days.

But it is ehiefly in scmales that these anomalous spasmodic affections are met with; and in these, one of the most remarkable features of them, is the connexion which they have, even in their most aggravated forms, with the state of menstruation. The following case will illustrate this in a striking manner, and at the same - time exemplify some of the various forms which are

assumed by these singular affections.

had slight difficulty of artisubsided under the usual tro some months, when they at both sides, and had more of After another interval of ser a falling down of the upper not raise them; and when the the eyes were found to be attacks generally continued for and were relieved by cupping

With these symptoms the ness passed. In the third y convulsive action of the muse lantary twitches of the legs ar sive motions of the whole bo to describe. These were mu her, especially on any part of her upon her back, or even with the intention of touching was difficulty of deglutition, 50 produced spasms resembling t after lying for a considerable ti instant throw her whole body sive spring, by which she w bed: and in the same manner the floor, she would throw her the top of a wardtobe fully fi whole of these symptoms. h and the only account she could was a secret inpulse which s After a considerable time and she was then affected with muscles of the upper part o

producing a constant totalory i

schetines continued without in

fre several weeks together, and

... MIL C. D.

· be regular but moderate

d . to explain these singular

a urration. But it may,

t ribis envis any definite

t to a gravillered as a gratui-

to the pheno.

fr - Serration, When

p into now mentioned,

to the stine, as pain or

the stair to consider this

n to an instructions seat of dis-

at can be referred to

eure's of imitation,

rging. A gentleman,

. Some ime and halase.

from it is neglinaling which

. . . . aga of a calculas; but

- ; con ballein excited,

Frient matter in his

1 - Green the complaint,

The real fair which was

ne ne sening to sub.

The pit of

The second states

in the free

12-1. Land opinibly to a graded

in the state of the state of the

The control of the co

To locate the same

in a lung of the attack

CASE CLVIII.—A lady, now aged 28, in the year 1823 was first affected with numbness and partial loss of power of the right arm and leg, and some time after had slight difficulty of articulation. These symptoms subsided under the usual treatment, and returned after some months, when they affected the legs and arms of both sides, and had more of the characters of chorea. After another interval of several months, she became liable to attacks of blindness, which were occasioned by a falling down of the upper eye-lids, so that she could not raise them; and when they were raised by the hand, the eyes were found to be distorted upwards. These attacks generally continued for several weeks at a time, and were relieved by cupping on the temples.

With these symptoms the two first years of her illness passed. In the third year, she was affected with convulsive action of the muscles of the back, and involuntary twitches of the legs and arms, producing convulsive motions of the whole body, which it is impossible to describe. These were much increased by touching her, especially on any part of her back; also by laying her upon her back, or even by approaching her as if with the intention of touching her. At one time there was difficulty of deglutition, so that attempts to swallow produced spasms resembling tetanus. At other times, after lying for a considerable time quiet, she would in an instant throw her whole body into a kind of convulsive spring, by which she was thrown entirely out of bed; and in the same manner, while sitting or lying on the floor, she would throw herself into bed, or leap on the top of a wardrobe fully five feet high. During the whole of these symptoms, her mind continued entire, and the only account she could give of her extravagance was, a secret impulse which she could not resist.

After a considerable time these paroxysms ceased, and she was then affected with convulsive motions of the muscles of the upper part of the back and the neek, producing a constant rotatory motion of the head. This sometimes continued without interruption night and day for several weeks together, and if the head or neck were

touched, the motion was increased to a most extraordinary degree of rapidity. During the attacks, she could not sleep, except in the sitting posture, the motion continuing during this imperfect sleep, though in a more moderate degree; but if she happened to slip down, so that her head touched the pillow, she instantly awoke with a severe convulsive start, and the motion was increased to the greatest degree of rapidity. These paroxysms were relieved by nothing but cupping on the temples to the extent of 10 or 12 ounces, when the affection ceased in an instant, with a general convulsive start of the whole body. She was then immediately well, got up, and was able to walk about in good health for several weeks,-when the same symptoms returned, and required a repetition of the same treatment. Sometimes, from the violence of the motion of the head, it was impossible to eup her on the temple. In this case, the cupping was applied first on the back; and by this, the motion was so far moderated, as to allow it to be applied on the temple, without which the paroxysm was never removed. Bleeding from the arm to the extent of faintness only moderated it for a time, but did not remove it. Another very singular feature of the affection was, that it subsided fully only when it went off in an instant, with a sudden convulsive start of the whole body: when it subsided gradually, as under the influence of large bleeding, it returned as soon as the faintness from the bleeding was removed.

The affection went on in this manner, with intervals of tolerable health of a few weeks duration, for about four years, besides the two years formerly mentioned. The longest interval was one of about three months, but even during these intervals various convulsive motions were excited by slight causes. Menstruation was all along extremely irregular and very scanty, and the bowels were torpid. She was of a pale and bloodless aspect from the frequent bleedings, but not reduced in flesh. I saw her only at an advanced period of the disease, along with Mr. Gillespic, who had watched her through its whole progress, and by whom every

variety of treatment had been emp-

At last, in the spring of 1829, v severe partitions of the rotatory when it was determined to allow to course, and to direct our attention struction. With this view she grains of sulphate of iron three tin grains of Barbadoes alocs,—the alo diminished according to the state of went on with this for nearly three sive motion of the head continuing right and day. At length, in the the paroxysm ceased in an instant, of convulsive start of the whole it used to cease after cupping. menstruation took place in a more t ner than it had done for many years. from that time free from any r

I conclude this subject with the for shorts another form of this affection quited to give a name to this mod hysteria.

CASE CLIX.—A young lady, a sustain any injury except a contust the accident. At the end of the value chair one evening, and awoke thereoe, talking in a wild extravagate the about her, and entirely occupations. This condition contust to less degree for three weeks, not beyond the property of the sustain and the property of the sustain any injury except a contract of the property of the sustain any injury except a contract of the property of the sustain any injury except a contract of the property of the sustain any injury except a contract of the property of the sustain any injury except a contract of the property of the sustain any injury except a contract of the property of the sustain any injury except a contract of the property of the property of the sustain any injury except a contract of the property of the sustain any injury except a contract of the property o

. E MI COD.

m inantelani. Latina micks, the could

the state, the motion ern-

; the chain a map

the them a mer-to slip d wn, so the instant rancke

onthe a motion was in-

These parez-

. I at arting on the tem-

headh for se-

. .. . proms returned, and

. .. ment. Sometimes. the head, it was im-

. -- In this ease, the · f.k: nd by this, the

1 ; - Il v it to be ap.

. .. 1 1/16 b 1/(Z2:4.1 mas

The est at . : for time, 'a lid not

recognitional are of the affect

is the ply when it went off in the whole

The influence

mored is a 10 as the fairmess

ing priares, with intervals

in the state of th

in our large months

THE RESERVENCES

olises. Metatros.

and the second

variety of treatment had been employed with the utmost assiduity.

At last, in the spring of 1829, we found her under a severe paroxysm of the rotatory motion of the head; when it was determined to allow the attack to take its course, and to direct our attention entirely to the menstruction. With this view she began to take three grains of sulphate of iron three times a day, with two grains of Barbadoes aloes,—the aloes being afterwards diminished according to the state of the bowels. went on with this for nearly three weeks; the convulsive motion of the head continuing without intermission night and day. At length, in the middle of the night the paroxysm ceased in an instant, with the same kind of convulsive start of the whole body with which it used to cease after cupping. At the same instant menstruation took place in a more full and healthy manner than it had done for many years. She has continued from that time free from any return of the affection.

I conclude this subject with the following ease, which shows another form of this affection. If we were required to give a name to this modification, we could probably call it nothing but a very aggravated form of liysteria.

Case CLIX.—A young lady, aged 15, in October 1828, was thrown from a horse, but did not appear to sustain any injury except a contusion of the arm, and she did not complain of any thing else for a week after the accident. At the end of the week she fell asleep in her chair one evening, and awoke in a state of ineoherence, talking in a wild extravagant manner, and appearing totally unconscious of the presence of those who were about her, and entirely occupied with her own hallucinations. This condition continued in a greater or less degree for three weeks, notwithstanding much active treatment by bleeding, purgatives, &c. The bowels were throughout remarkably torpid. She then began to recover, and went on in a state of progressive improvement for about three weeks, when one evening she fainted, and on recovery was found to be in the same state of incoherence as before. This paroxysm continued a fortnight, and was succeeded by another fortnight of convalescence, when the affection was reproduced by the patient being told of the illness of a near relative.

During the paroxysms she generally complained of intense headach, which was chiefly referred to the oceiput; the pulse varied from 90 to 120; the tongue was white; the bowels torpid and motions unhealthy; her nights were sleepless. After the third of the paroxysms now mentioned her convalescence was less perfect than formerly, there being generally a good deal of excitement in the evening, and very restless nights. In the end of January 1829, after much previous irritation, she fell into a state of coma, with flushing. This continued several days, and was sueeeeded by a state resembling eatalepsy; the eyes being continually fixed in one direction, but without perception; total unconseiousness of any thing that was done about her; and the jaws so firmly locked that she swallowed nothing for several days. The jaws then gradually relaxed, and she recovered the power of swallowing; after several days more she began to speak, after having spoken none for 13 days, and then went on gradually improving for some weeks. The eomatose state then returned, and was succeeded as before by the cataleptic, the jaws being again rigidly contracted, and the under lip drawn between the teeth so as to be wounded; the face and neek were flushed and turgid. This attack subsided after bleeding, &e., and was succeeded by eataleptic paroxysms of a slighter kind, which were excited by various eauses, such as the sight of a stranger or any degree of mental irritation. In these attacks she became suddenly silent and motionless, the eyes open but fixed and insensible, with total uneonseiousness of every thing; the hands clenched and the arms drawn towards the body. She continued in this state from a few CONCLUDI

minutes to half an hou with a scream and with tack, or of the circumst the middle of March sl unmanageable, and this attacks ull the middle of toms commenced. Whi she would suddenly, an her body into a sitting 1 ward, the tongue protru distorted; the hands tion seemed nearly sust her convulsive efforts to Lerself into a standing p several attendants to proout of bed. These part at short intervals, and from the temporal artery and were succeeded by excited by various slight of the complaint that I emirent medical men wl that time there was no re and there was a gradua health, which could not than a change of scene, into the open air. The ited the cataleptic state seasible the whole time ne persevered, and this vas soon able to take a but there was generally temmed home. The sli cited by the sight of a mental agitation. Durin tippless, but without losi sitting on a chair without eren in some instances e: nere ofen, fixed meat on in a state of progressive at 'rewieks, when one evening or was found to be in the same to the This peroxysm continued . s recoled by another fortnight hen the affection was reproduced 2 toil of the illness of a near regrams she generally complained of ! T s chiefly referred to the ocin 1 fr m .) to 120; the tongue was to d and motions unhealthy; her After the third of the paroxysms neal recence was less perfect than my a really a good deal of excitei. I very resiless nights. In the 2. Fr much previous irritation, of ma with flusting. This en-· . I was succeeded by a state re-: Over being continually fixed in noteeprion; tetal inconscidone about her and the that the small med nothing for , 1875 then T. lually relaxed, and f small wing; after several i speak for harms spoken . 1 1' 2 went a mobalir import. matize then return. by the catalegia, the Terling of the under lip 1 : 1 us ? le mounted; the face The affilt subsit. al mas to everled by cataleptic was a creted of campaning or any trained by a strainger or any trained a strainger or any trained by the beautiful trained as a strainger or any trained by the beautiful trained as a strained by the beautiful trained as a strained by the beautiful trained by the beautifu James Jerum Jouratus el ne i de contrata from a fer

. FIRE PINAL COD.

minutes to half an hour, and generally eame out of it with a scream and without any recollection of the attack, or of the circumstance which had excited it. In the middle of March she became again incoherent and unmanageable, and this alternated with the eataleptic attacks till the middle of April, when a new set of symptoms commenced. While lying in the cataleptic state, she would suddenly, and by a convulsive motion, raise her body into a sitting posture, the head projected forward, the tongue protruded, and the countenance much distorted; the hands clenched and firmly pressed on each side of the trachea. During these attacks respiration seemed nearly suspended for some minutes, and in her convulsive efforts to breathe, she sometimes raised herself into a standing posture, and required the eare of several attendants to prevent her from throwing herself out of bed. These paroxysms returned frequently and at short intervals, and were relieved only by bleeding from the temporal artery. After some time they eeased, and were sueeeeded by the slighter cataleptie attacks excited by various slight causes. It was at this period of the complaint that I first saw her along with two eminent medical men who had the charge of her: from that time there was no return of the violent paroxysms, and there was a gradual improvement in her general health, which could not be ascribed to any other eause than a change of seene, and sending her regularly out into the open air. The attempt to do this at first exeited the eataleptie state, and she continued totally insensible the whole time she was in the earriage. But we persevered, and this gradually subsided, so that she was soon able to take a long drive without exciting it, but there was generally some recurrence of it before she returned home. The slighter paroxysms were still excited by the sight of a stranger, or by any eause of mental agitation. During these her body became motionless, but without losing her balance, though she was sitting on a chair without leaning to the back of it, and even in some instances while she was standing. The eyes were open, fixed, and insensible; the arms generally rigid, but sometimes relaxed, and the attack eontinued from a few minutes to half an hour. She was also seized occasionally, while walking, and continued to walk on steadily, leaning on the arm of another person, and even walking alone, and often came out of the fit without stopping. She was also repeatedly seized while playing on the piano, and continued to play with perfect correctness, but repeating a certain part of a tune, and never going on beyond a particular point. This she sometimes continued to do for ten minutes at a time, during which period she was totally unconscious of any external impression. On one occasion she was playing from the book a piece of music which was new to her, and had played a part of it when she was seized with the cataleptic attack. During the paroxysm she continued to play this part, and repeated it five or six times in the most correct manner; but when she recovered from the attack, she could not play it without the book. The eatamenia, in this ease, were rather irregular, and at times scanty, but occurred in a very natural manner several times during her illness, which, at the time to which this account refers, had continued ten months. Soon after that time she was removed to a distant part of the country, and I have heard of her only occasionally. But I understand she has never been entirely free from the affection, though the symptoms are now in a slighter degree.

I make no apology to practical men for these long details, as the affections are of a very uncommon kind, and as it is impossible to convey any idea of them by a general description. There are other modifications presenting very singular characters, but I must allude to them very briefly. A young lady whom I saw with Mr. William Wood, along with some symptoms resembling chorea, was liable to paroxysms, in which she screamed out the sound, cchum, cchum, with great rapidity, and in a tone of voice that was heard over every part of a large house. These paroxysms often continued for one, two, and even three hours at a time, and occurred repeatedly during the day, and

CONCLUDING OBSE

semetimes in the night. The semetimes in the night of seiden noise, or the sight of might-time not unfrequently he has been used as quite entire, but the affection, except that during change the sound when she was substitute any other word that The affection went on for many chally subsided. We could semestiment was of any avail.

In geontinued course of purgett time after her recovery, thou affected by her disorder being greatest dread of the sound echilering.

Another lady, whom I sa hable to paroxysms of rapid with a loud shrill sound, an utmost distress, as in the most They came on without any w. 1-ricct health and if not relie tigether. They were relieved ating but in several instances ten ounces was sufficient; an attack was removed by a punch blood was obtained, or only a fe subsided gradually after cont manner for more than a year. A case of much interest has of Namur. A strong coun terified during the flow of t was suduenty saffressed. Af telegrations of the lower extremit merch, the limbs became for Leds to hed the buttocks, and produced the most acute toms o min ed five days, and Lich at subject after the L'ALTONIAL C. NO.

e rearl, and the at h over to half an hor. Se

while whair than loom is.

a. a. a. and fren came out of

I have wis also repeatedly seized

p no. and a minuted to play with

The sing a certain part of a tune,

" I a mileular print. This she

1 : in ten minutes at a time,

. s.c. Was totally une narrous of any

ne ocease in she was playing

e of a wie which was new to her,

ut it when she was seized with . During he paroxysm she conti-

and the red it five or six times

c manner; but when she recovered

c . A not play it without the book.

were nither irregular, and

· · · · · · · · in a very natural manner

which at the time to

riss. I confirst ten months.

A constraint of the distant part

thereas, and I hereally occasionally.

an entirely free from

sem toms are now in a slighter

- The Fridal men for these long

the state of the s

and the measurement of them by a

Lt. -> 'se other modifications pre-

- A STAGES FILL DIRK alinge to

The die when I san mith The same of the sa

The partial and a side of the side of the

sometimes in the night. They were excited by any sudden noise, or the sight of a stranger; and in the night-time not unfrequently by the striking of a clock. Her mind was quite entire, but she had no control over the affection, except that during the paroxysm she could change the sound when she was requested to do so, and substitute any other word that was suggested to her. The affection went on for many months, and then gradually subsided. We could scarcely say that medical treatment was of any avail. It consisted chiefly of a long continued course of purgatives. For a considerable time after her recovery, though she was not at all affected by her disorder being talked of, she showed the greatest dread of the sound echum being repeated in her

Another lady, whom I saw with Dr. Poole, was liable to paroxysms of rapid and laborious breathing with a loud shrill sound, and the appearance of the utmost distress, as in the most aggravated form of eroup. They came ou without any warning, when she was in perfect health and if not relieved, continued for days together. They were relieved by nothing but bloodletting, but in several instances, a bleeding of three or four ounces was sufficient; and on one oceasion, the attack was removed by a puncture of the arm, when no blood was obtained, or only a few drops. The affection subsided gradually after continuing to recur in this

manner for more than a year.

· A case of much interest has been related by Dr. Follot of Namur. A strong country woman being much terrified during the flow of the menses, the discharge was suddenly suppressed. After four months, she experienced creeping sensations, spasms, and involuntary motions of the lower extremitics; and in the following month, the limbs became forcibly bent, so that the heels touched the buttocks, and every attempt to extend them produced the most acute suffering. These symptoms continued five days, and then subsided; but they were renewed at the same period in the succeeding month, and subsided after the same duration, but left a

degree of paraplegia. The attacks were afterwards moderated by repeated topical bleeding, vapour bath, &c., but the affection continued in a greater or less degree for six or seven months. Menstruation having then taken place in a full and healthy manner, her complaints entirely disappeared.*

* Medical Gazette, vol. i.

APPE.

PART FO

OUTLINE OF THE DI

NEARLY allied to the patho an ther subject of very great nerves. This subject is entire investigation seems to promi From what we already know believe, that nerves are liable the diseases of the brain and may affect them either in membranes, and are probabl eases which are at present in In as far as this subject he the following may be considered Fathic diseases of nerves wh

I. A unform dark red colo ecopying a defined space, in Exicut. This was obser median nerre, in a case in w fein of the fore-arm, follow

Revue Madia

OR. JAKIS: JET

The attacks were afterwards a line inc. vapour bath, in ad in a greater it less determined in baring a it I and head it manner, her a red.

APPENDIX

TO

PART FOURTH.

OUTLINE OF THE DISEASES OF NERVES.

NEARLY allied to the pathology of the spinal cord, is another subject of very great interest, the pathology of nerves. This subject is entirely in its infancy, but the investigation seems to promise very interesting results. From what we already know, there is every reason to believe, that nerves are liable to diseases analogous to the diseases of the brain and of the spinal cord, which may affect them either in their substance or in their membranes, and are probably the source of several diseases which are at present involved in much obscurity.

In as far as this subject has hitherto been investigated, the following may be considered as the principal idiopathic diseases of nerves which have been observed.

I. A unform dark red colour of the nervous substance, occupying a defined space, perhaps an inch or two in extent. This was observed by Martinet,* in the median nerve, in a case in which there had been violent pain of the fore-arm, followed by palsy. Repeated

^{*} Revue Medicale, Juin, 1814.

blisters removed the paralytic affection, but, as soon as the blisters healed, pain returned followed by palsy. In a similar affection of the right sciatic nerve, accompanied by palsy of the limb, he found a diseased portion of nerve enveloped in a quantity of gangrenous cellular tissue. In another case he found a diseased portion of the erural nerve, which was an inch and a half in extent, enlarged to about double its natural size. This portion was of a violet red colour, and strewed throughout with small ecehymoses each about the size of a pin's head.

II. Serous or bloody effusion within the sheath of the nerve, penetrating the substance of the nerve, and separating its fibres from each other. This appearance was found by Martinet in the sciatic nerve of a man who died of pneumonia; he had been affected with violent pain in the posterior part of his thigh, aggravated by the least motion so as to make him cry out.

III. Pus effused in the same manner among the fibrils of the nerve. This was found in the sciatic nerve by Martinet, in a man who died of disease both in the head and in the abdomen, and who had been affected during the latter part of his illness with violent pain in the eourse of the sciatic nerve. The eellular texture surrounding the diseased portion of the nerve was also penetrated by pus. He found the same appearance in a young man who died of eonsumption, and who had been affected for two months with lancinating pain, and a painful feeling of numbness extending from the ham to the top of the thigh.

IV. Ramollissement of the nervous substance.—A man mentioned by Descot * died in the Hotel Dieu after he had been for six months blind of one eye. The optic nerve was found reduced through half its extent to a liquid matter of a white colour.

OF TLINE OF T

V. Ulceration of served by Mr. 5 wan on the leg. There he whole leg and thigh, a and, in many parts of very much enlarged.*

VI. Small tumors a tive of violent sympton ous writers. In a rem was cured of epilepsy rumors from the thun it gave great pain, and f attack. The removal of of the axillary nerves by fatally; and the safer m appears to be to remove to which the tumor is situated as to render such temors or tubercles have Lerres, Sedillot found of of amaurosis; and Berar as hard as scinhus devel diaphragmatic nerve. Ti but he had also slight emp These tumors are general another species of tumor eze. One mentioned by geon's egg, was cut out for herre above and below. sion of the substance of imperfect cyst, which con matter, and the flaments cver it. There had been Power of the arm, but it

Pring on the Local Affection
For a very full and and a very full and a very steel

^{*} Descot, Sur les Affection Locales des Nerfs.

The right size of the past of the right solar of open accomplished in the found a diseased portion a quantity of gangenous of the right solar of the past of the right which was an in hand a time. The its natural size of the right of the past of the past of the right o

THE TREASTS OF NERVES.

o in v effect in within the sheath of the nerve, and the half een affected with the half een affected

manner am ny the fibrils

reform the sciatic nerve by

disease oth in the

limit who had been affectel

who had been affectel

has with violent pain in

has with violent pain in

arry. The ceithint texture

arry. The ceithint texture

in the nerve mis also

in the nerve mis

V. Ulceration of the substance of the nerve was observed by Mr. Swan in connexion with a fungus ulcer on the leg. There had been such violent pain of the whole leg and thigh, as to render amputation necessary, and, in many parts of the limb, the nerves were found very much enlarged.*

VI. Small tumors attached to nerves, and productive of violent symptoms, have been described by various writers. In a remarkable ease by Portal, a woman was eured of epilepsy by the removal of one of these tumors from the thumb. The slightest pressure upon it gave great pain, and frequently brought on an epileptie attack. The removal of such a tumor however from one of the axillary nerves by Sir Everard Home, terminated fatally; and the safer mode of treating such affections appears to be to remove the portion of nerve entirely to which the tumor is attached, when the nerve is so situated as to render such an operation advisable. Small tumors or tubereles have also been found on internal nerves. Sedillot found one in the optic nerve, in a case of amaurosis; and Berard has described a black tumor as hard as seirrhus developed in the substance of the diaphragmatic nerve. The man had been asthmatic. but he had also slight emphysema of the lungs.

These tumors are generally very small; but there is another species of tumor which grows to a considerable size. One mentioned by Mr. Pring,† the size of a pigeon's egg, was cut out from the arm, by dividing the nerve above and below. On cutting into it, an expansion of the substance of the nerve seemed to form an imperfect cyst, which contained a medullary and fatty matter, and the filaments of the nerve were continued over it. There had been great numbness and loss of power of the arm, but it gradually improved after the

operation. ‡

† Pring on the Nervous System.

Swan on the Local Affections of the Nerves.

[‡] For a very full and able account of these tumors, and other

VII. Nerves have been found both very much enlarged and very much diminished in size; and they have been in a few instances found with the nervous substance destroyed, the membrane at the part forming an empty canal. But these points have not yet been sufficiently investigated.

Few opportunities have as yet occurred of ascertaining the condition of the nerve in those interesting cases of local paralysis, which have been so beautifully illustrated by Sir Charles Bell, and his lamented friend the late Mr. Shaw. It is probable that there is either an inflammatory action in the nerve itself, or its coverings; or that the nerve is affected by disease of some of the parts through which it passes. The only case in which I have had an opportunity of examining the parts, since I was acquainted with the discoveries of Sir Charles Bell, was in a woman about 40 years of age, who died of organic disease of the stomach. About a fortnight before her death, she was seized with twisting of the mouth and paralysis of the orbicularis of the left eye. She had afterwards considerable indistinctness of speech, and, before her death, there was inflammation of the left eye, with an evident tendency to sloughing of the cornea. A small hard tumor was felt under the ear, deeply seated betwixt the angle of the jaw and the mastoid process. On dissection no disease could be discovered in the brain. The tumor under the ear was found to be the size of a small bean, very firm, of an ashcolour; and, when cut across, it discharged thin puriform sanious fluid from minute cells in its substance; it lay directly above the facial branch of the portio dura; and there was considerable appearance of inflammation in the cellular structure surrounding the nerve; but I could not discover any deviation from the healthy structure in the nerve itself. I thought it was diminished in i might be mistaken.

vich carrisve suppuration of the temporal livide an unhealthy they rise of several of the ruped by destruction of perceptic patient, mentione taliwed by opacity of the conjunctiva, and insensioned right side of the tongs the brain; and, on inspective brain; and, on inspective brain; and, on inspective singin, was found to the tength of the te

and so one side of the . much with inability to the of the brain, and co affection depends upo ti, lora of the 7th nerve anation of the ear or the of resing the nerve on an and company a example of it Crienmatic inflammation J jespo ure to a current of sing or has slept, of a carriage with stished It is to I is a topical blee lines at in a sky for w The first of the f

diseases of nerves, I refer to a paper by Mr. William Wood, in the Transactions of the Medico-Chirurgical Society of Edinburgh, vol. ii.

.. ×Za·ari:

and of children

i how is the dithe

s. in only call in which

the series of Sir Charles and the series of the who died

Server of the mai-

size at the place where the tumor lay over it, but in this I might be mistaken. In a case by Descot, connected with extensive suppuration and caries of the auditory portion of the temporal bone, a part of the portio dura was entirely destroyed; and in a case by Billard, connected with an unhealthy abseess of the parotid gland, the course of several of the nervous branches was interrupted by destruction of part of their substance. An epileptic patient, mentioned by Serres, had inflammation followed by opacity of the right eye, loss of feeling of the conjunctiva, and insensibility of the right nostril, and right side of the tongue. He died of an affection of the brain; and, on inspection, the fifth pair of nerves, at its origin, was found yellow, softened, and reduced to a state almost gelatinous.

The important practical application of the discoveries of Sir Charles Bell is, that there may be paralysis of the muscles of one side of the face, producing distortion of the mouth with inability to shut the eye-lids, without disease of the brain, and consequently without danger. This affection depends upon a disease limited to the portio dura of the 7th nerve, and may be produced by inflammation of the ear or the parotid gland, or tumors compressing the nerve on any part of its course. most common example of it seems to originate in a kind of rheumatic inflammation produced by cold, especially by exposure to a current of eold air, as when a person has sat long, or has slept, opposite to an open window. or has sat in a earriage with a cold wind blowing on one side of his head. It is to be treated eliiefly by local remedies, as topical bleeding, blistering and the application of warm water or steam. In this manner it is often speedily removed, but in some eases proves tedious, and does not go off entirely for several months. The affection is of course still more untractable, or even permanent, when it depends upon a permanent cause, such as tumors compressing the nerve, or destruction of a portion of the nerve by wounds or extensive suppurations.

There is also a very formidable modification of it which

depends upon disease of the temporal bone.

The character by which these cases are distinguished from paralysis depending upon disease of the brain, consists chiefly in the sensibility of the parts remaining unimpaired. The loss of motion also is confined to the muscles of the face and cyc-lids, and does not affect those of the jaw. These peculiarities arise from the remarkable fact demonstrated by Sir Charles Bell, Mr. Shaw, Mr. Mayo, and others, that the portio dura of the 7th is a nerve of motion only, supplying the muscles of the face and the orbicularis of the eye, but not the muscles of the jaw; and that the sensibility of all these parts, and the motion of the muscles of the jaw are derived from the 5th, which, having a double origin, is a nerve both of sensation and motion. An important distinction, however, is to be kept in mind in regard to the paralysis of the eye-lids which occurs in these cases, namely, that it is the inability to shut the eye that arises from the affection of the portio dura of the 7th. The dropping of the upper eye-lid and inability to raise it, is a disease entirely of a different nature; it depends upon an affection of the 3d nerve, and consequently gives more reason to suspect disease within the head.

When, therefore, we find paralysis and distortion of the face, with loss of sensation of the parts, we have reason to suspect disease within the head, the portio dura of the 7th and the 5th being both affected. But when we have the paralysis without diminution of sensation, the disease depends upon an affection of the portio dura alone, and may be entirely without danger. Such cases, however, are not to be treated lightly, but the cause of them ought to be carefully investigated; for if there be any reason to suspect that the affection depends upon disease of the temporal bone, it may come to be attended with danger by inflammatory action spreading inwards to the dura mater or brain. There is another modification also which requires to be watched with anxiety, namely, when the affection is accompanied with deafness; as this gives reason to believe

OF THE OF TH

that both portions of consequently to suspect teresting case of this k the Infirmary of Edinb mented friend the late before his death, the m right ear from a stone, discharge from the ear I dually lost the hearing time the right side of h any diminution of ser masseter and temporal out any farther change phthisis in April 1820 temporal bone was fou learing an excavation matter and portions of traced from within to where it terminated, an manner from without, destroyed. The parts of entirely healthy. The sound. For some time suffered greatly from dy which the alæ of bis left stant action, while those If this man had not bee lungs, the affection of the have terminated fatally of the dura mater. I am indebted to Dr. case which occurred to burgh in the beginning (a man of 30, was seized acute pain, referred to a temple. About a week lowed by coma. He can memory of persons, but well in less than two mor

was again seized with m

ES OF NUMBER

n dia atia of it which

ases are distinguished

disease of the brain, con-

the parts remaining un-

a so is confined to the

and does not affect these

one from the remark-

bar +3 Bel, Mr. Shaw,

e thin dura of the 7th

is rathe muscles of the

eve, but not the muscles

if "tv fall these parts,

is the jaw are derived

a ol'e origin, is a neme

An important distinction,

nd in regard to the paralysis in these cases namely, that

e we that anses from the

i the . The dropping of

ty to raise it, is a disease

; it depends up n an affec-

sequent fixes in the reason

paralysis and distortion of

ation of the facts, we have

within the head, the portio

h being both affected. But

s without Eminution of sen-

t upon an effection of the

the entirely without danger.

not be realed lightly but

be ratefully intestigated;

surper that the about a

13 of June 1 may care

at ... the majery action

new 10 is now no 10 december 1 december 1

that both portions of the 7th nerve are affected, and consequently to suspect an internal cause. A very interesting case of this kind occurred some years ago in the Infirmary of Edinburgh, under the care of my lamented friend the late Dr. James Gregory. Two years before his death, the man had received a blow on the right ear from a stone, after which he had a purulent discharge from the ear for six months. He then gradually lost the hearing of that ear, and about the same time the right side of his face became paralytic without any diminution of sensibility, and the action of the masseter and temporal museles was unimpaired. Without any farther change of these complaints he died of phthisis in April 1829. The petrous portion of the temporal bone was found most extensively destroyed, leaving an excavation which contained fetid purulent matter and portions of dead bone. The 7th nerve was traced from within to the margin of this excavation where it terminated, and the portio dura, in the same manner from without, the intermediate portion being destroyed. The parts of the nerve that remained seemed entirely healthy. The brain and dura mater were sound. For some time before his death the patient suffered greatly from dyspnæa, during the severity of which the alæ of his left nostril were in strong and constant action, while those of the right were perfectly still. If this man had not been cut off by the disease of his lungs, the affection of the temporal bone would probably have terminated fatally in no long time, by inflammation of the dura mater.

I am indebted to Dr. Christison for a very important case which occurred to him in the Infirmary of Edinburgh in the beginning of the year 1829. The patient, a man of 30, was seized in the beginning of 1825 with acute pain, referred to a circumscribed spot on the left temple. About a week after he had loss of speech followed by coma. He came out of this with loss of the memory of persons, but gradually recovered, and was well in less than two months. In the end of 1827, he was again seized with pain in the temple, accompanied

by deafness of the left car and squinting of the left eye. The deafness was permanent; the pain and squinting subsided after three or four months; but returned after two or three months more, accompanied by inability to close the eye-lids of the left side, and considerable unsteadiness in his gait. He was next affected with pain and rigid contraction of the muscles of the back of the neck and right shoulder; and these were followed by retention of urine and perfect paraplegia. He had now the usual paralytic state of all the parts supplied by the portio dura of the left side, with deafness of the left ear, distortion of the left eye inwards towards the nose, and frequent spasmodic twitches of the jaw, by which it was drawn to the right side; and he died in a state of coma in February 1829. On inspection there was found immediately behind the left temporal fossa, a thickening of the dura mater with adhesion to the arachnoid of the extent of a half-crown piece. There was a similar adhesion, with very great thickening of the dura mater above the pars petrosa of the temporal bone, and the left side of the tentorium was also very much thickened, and presented on its inferior surface several tubercular elevations. The thickening of the dura mater was greatest at the part where it is perforated by the seventh nerve, and the sixth nerve was also involved in the disease. The portio mollis of the 7th was, for a few lines previous to its entrance into the meatus, of a reddish grey colour, and nearly gelatinous consistence; the portio dura seemed smaller than usual. In the substance of the right hemisphere, nearly on a level with the ventricle, there was a tubercle the size of a French bean; and there was a small cyst in the right corpus striatum. In the posterior cornu of the right ventriele, there was a peculiar appearance, as if a portion of it had been obliterated by adhesion, cutting off a very small cavity about the size of a lemon-seed, which communicated by a narrow opening with the ventricle, and presented at each extremity a yellowish line or raphe resembling a cicatrix. No appearance of disease could be detected in the contents of the spinal canal.

The second area in which it is her into be but i it presents a most important exrain of the dura man r. i as of it, and are my mied b syr prems. The intense and the left temple, which was a p use at various periods, a spearwith infl mmation of a define brane in that situati n. The refer to the diseased o adition where it is perforated by the I of the eve inwards, from I mus le, we trace to the sixth the disease. No cause appear the paraplema, except the disc morbid appearance having leer cord or is membranes after th tion. I have formerly referred these cases in which it has hi " in the heal, from the spin in central examined. Dr. (is one of much importance in the

TABLES.

The functions of the oth me in the contract appear to be to give a solid a variety of singular phenomena of this nerve, or particular sensation, without any affection in the real recupion their peculiar med by Sir Charles Bell and of the eye, without any affection in the last of the eye, without any affection in the last of the eye, without any affection in the last of the eye, without any affection of the last of the eye, without any affection of the last of the eye, without any affection of the last of the la

This ease is one of great interest, besides the point which it is here introduced to illustrate. In particular, it presents a most important example of chronic inflammation of the dura mater, affecting three distinct portions of it, and accompanied by three distinct classes of symptoms. The intense and long-continued pain of the left temple, which was a prominent feature of the case at various periods, appears to have been connected with inflammation of a defined portion of the membrane in that situation. The remarkable affection of the functions of the seventh nerve, we may distinctly refer to the diseased condition of the same membrane where it is perforated by the nerve; and the distortion of the eye inwards, from paralysis of the abduetor muscle, we trace to the sixth nerve being involved in the disease. No cause appears to which we can refer the paraplegia, except the disease of the tentorium, no morbid appearance having been discovered in the spinal cord or its membranes after the most careful examination. I have formerly referred to certain difficulties in the pathology of paraplegia, and the obscurity attending those cases in which it has been ascribed to disease within the head, from the spinal cord not having been in general examined.* Dr. Christison's case, therefore, is one of much importance in this inquiry.

n yan majabida Jing silikeng

Tiere mis a militie

..... 1 1987 1 1 3

The functions of the 5th nerve, as has been mentioned, appear to be, to give sensation to all the parts about the face, and motion to the muscles of the jaw; and a variety of singular phenomena arise from affections of this nerve, or particular branches of it. Thus, in the organs of sense, there may be loss of common sensation, without any affection of their proper senses depending upon their peculiar nerves. A young lady, mentioned by Sir Charles Bell, lost entirely sensation in the ball of the eye, without any diminution of vision; and there have been several instances of the membrane of the nose becoming insensible to common

See page 207.

stimuli, while the smell was little impaired. In the same manner, there may be loss of sensation in any limited part, from disease or injury of a particular branch of the 5th, as in a striking ease mentioned by Sir Charles Bell. A gentleman, after having a grinder very awkwardly extracted from the lower jaw, on puting a tumbler to his lips, to rinse his mouth, exclaimed, "You have given me a broken glass." He had lost entirely the sensation of half the lip, from destruction of the branch of the 5th, which passes along the lower jaw, and the affection was permanent. The motion of the parts, depending on the portia dura of the 7th, of

eourse was unimpaired.*

A remarkable eircumstance connected with the affeetions of the 5th nerve, is the tendency to inflammation and sloughing in parts which have lost their sensibility,—particularly in the eye. A very instructive case of this kind occurred to my friend Dr. Alison. The patient had loss of common sensation on the left side of the face, the left nostril, and left side of the tongue, with insensibility of the ball of the eye, and occasional bloody discharge from the left nostril; and was liable to attacks of pain occasionally accompanied with fever, during which the pain was chiefly referred to the insensible parts. There were frequently attacks of inflammation of the left eye, with dimness of the cornea, which were relieved from time to time by the usual antiphlogistic means; but at the end of two months, a line formed round the base of the cornea, which at length sloughed out, and the contents of the eye were entirely discharged. The muscles of the left side of the jaw were paralytic, and felt quite flaccid when the patient chewed or clenched the jaws, but the motion of the muscles of the cheek was unimpaired. After the destruction of the eye, the paralytic symptoms remained stationary for a year or more; there was then a violent return of headach with fever, and death in a state of

erma after an illnes there was found cons the central parts of left side, on being tr was found, close to t texture, but berond t junction with the tub brane seemed to rema son's, there was loss of face, followed by in ere-ball; after which turned. The patient symptoms, and has headach and epileptic ared about six mont A remarkable com a case related by Mr. of the left side, with and leg, but in the le and motion were entire tongue, sensation was incous membrane of deep red colour, and the blood from it. The co deeply injected; this L'ceration of the corne ti not the eye. Th left ear. There wer which were entirely the face. The patient a h. and at last died a ent of the paralytic m the left side of the the origin of the 5th regal. The tamor Institute, and brow of cras cerebelli.

^{*} Sir Charles Bell's Lectures, as reported in the Medical Gazette, vol i.

It is little impaired. In the lary 's of sensation in any 's of sensation in any a cripiury of a particular in a striking case mentioned by an an after baving a grinder red from the lower jaw, on purels, to rinse his mouth, exclaiment of tower glass." He had loss half the lip, from destruction they was permanent. The motion of the portra dura of the jab, of

Total American

matance connected with the afry is the tendency to inflamman promised have lost their sensin ' eya A very instructive case me friend Dr. Alison. The engtion on the left side site. all eliside of the tongue. to brothery, and occasional of the strangeril; and was liable y companied with fever, hely referred to the inwite it nemdy attacks of inflamre, with dimness of the comes, com time; sime by the usual anthe end find months, a line the o rared, which at length e C. : Perfe werd entury missis is the left state of the jair id mile the pathous La dei la the British of the und francisco in a take of A The Market

eoma after an illness of a fortnight. On inspection, there was found considerable ramollissement of some of the central parts of the brain. The 5th nerve of the left side, on being traced backwards from the ganglion, was found, close to the ganglion, to be of a very dense texture, but beyond this it was much wasted, and at its junction with the tuber annulare, nothing but the membrane seemed to remain. In another ease of Dr. Alison's, there was loss of sensation of the left side of the face, followed by inflammation and sloughing of the eve-ball; after which the sensibility of the parts returned. The patient was, before the appearance of these symptoms, and has since continued, liable to severe headach and epileptic fits. The loss of sensibility continued about six months.

A remarkable combination of symptoms occurred in a case related by Mr. Stanley." There was hemiplegia of the left side, without loss of sensation in the arm and leg, but in the left side of the face both sensation and motion were entirely lost. In the left side of the tongue, sensation was lost, but motion remained. The mucous membrane of the left nostril was always of a deep red colour, and there were frequent discharges of blood from it. The conjunctiva of the left eye became deeply injected; this was followed by opacity and ulceration of the cornea, and at last by total disorganiza-There was total loss of hearing in the tion of the eye. left ear. There were frequent attacks of erysipelas, which were entirely confined to the paralytic parts of the face. The patient had been long affected with headach, and at last died two months after the commencement of the paralytic symptoms. A tumor was found in the left side of the tuber annulare, which compressed the origin of the 5th and 7th nerves against the base of the skull. The tumor was the size of a walnut, of a firm consistence, and brown colour, and extended into the left erus cerebelli.

[&]quot; Medical Gazette, vol. i.

h ar. The attacks I

it vis find that the

without success. Th

ing the spasms, and I

fragment of china, v

a very si rele effiction

ed by the extraction of

Braff and by Mr. I

spread over the arm.

nearly the whole muse

Lord id sensibility of

e titaction of the fire.

were forcilly pressed

The fingers were not up

every attempt made to

is morp relable pain.

Contracted, and volunt

the mark proximetrity. I

in size, while the in the

Training. After

To affections of the nerves may probably be referred certain obscure and severe disorders of a nervous kind, some of which have supervened upon slight injuries, and others have eeme on without any obvious eause. A young lady mentioned by M. Verpinet,* received a slight wound with the point of a sword on the inferior and outer part of the fore-arm. It very soon healed, but most violent pain continued in the fore-arm, wrist, and hand, aecompanied by convulsive motions of the arm, and loss of the voluntary power of the wrist and fingers. The affection resisted every mode of treatment for two years, and then got speedily well after the application of the actual cautery to the cieatrix of the original wound. In a lady, mentioned by Mr. Swan, + a slight wound on the thumb was followed by numbness, pain, convulsive motions of the arm, and spasms, which oceasionally affected the opposite arm, and sometimes the whole body. In this ease the affection seemed gradually to wear itself out, though she was not entirely free from uneasiness at the end of seven years. A very violent case of the same kind, described by Mr. Wardrop, was eured after twelve months by amputation of the finger. In a similar ease by Larry, which followed a wound, a portion of the nerve was removed, without complete success, though the disease was very much alleviated. In a singular ease by Sir Everard Home. | a gentleman received a violent sprain of his thumb, by the weight of his body being thrown upon it, in saving himself when nearly thrown off, by a sudden motion of his horse. He was afterwards liable to paroxysms, in which his thumb was first bent in towards the palm of his hand; a spasm then took place in the museles of the arm, after which he became insensible, and continued so for about a quarter of an

^{*} Jour, de Med. vol. x.

[†] Swan on Local Affections of Nerves.

[#] Med. Chir. Trans. vol. viii, Phil. Trans. 1501.

hour. The attacks returned frequently in the arm, but it was found that the pressure of a tourniquet prevented the insensibility. A nerve in this ease was divided without success. The tourniquet lost its effect in arresting the spasms, and he died suddenly after three months,

but there was no examination of the body.

in firm in heard.

the ricatrix of the

m : n I by Mr. Swan.

west by num.

and spasses,

In the ction seems

: the ride was not

Seren Trais.

ner e nga remored,

TET

A LY A STEPPI

Tide wants rain firs

- 170FB UT 1

of a sufficient of the suffici

In the Medical and Physical Journal, Mr. Jeffries has described a remarkable ease of a violent neuralgia of the face, which was eured by the extraction of a small fragment of china, which had been lodging there for fourteen years; and M. Deseot mentions a ease in which a very severe affection of ten years' standing was removed by the extraction of a carious tooth. A young lady, mentioned by Mr. Pearson, was seized, without any obvious eause, with pain in the thumb, accompanied by a morbid sensibility of the part; the affection gradually spread over the arm, and was accompanied by loss of nearly the whole museular power of the extremity, with morbid sensibility of the integuments, and a strong contraction of the fingers, so that the points of the nails were forcibly pressed against the palm of the hand. The fingers were not under the control of the will, and every attempt made to extend them was accompanied by insupportable pain. The joint of the elbow was also eontracted, and voluntary motion was nearly lost over the whole extremity. It was also very much diminished in size, while the morbid sensibility of it was inexpressibly distressing. After some time the other arm was slightly affected in the same manner, and she had likewise pain and great debility of both the lower extremities. After this affection had continued about a year, it got well under the use of a liniment composed of olive oil, turpentine, and sulphuric acid. This produced most severe crysipelatous inflammation, which, beginning upon the affected arm, extended afterwards over the whole body."

Little has hitherto been done on this eurious and interesting subject, but it certainly promises most import-

^{*} Med. Chirurg, Trans, vol. viii.

ant results, when it shall be more extensively cultivated.

nected form. In the year 1828 a singular disease of this natu paroxysms, and affected in the viduals of one family, a young la man of 22. The lady describe lowing manner. She was first of the right eye, which came on ; passed slowly over the eve; about after this, she felt a numbness of right hand, beginning at the poin very gradually over the whole ha a complete loss of sensibility of any loss of the power of motion. ness then extended to the right from this it seemed to spread of stomach. When it reached the tecame oppressed and partial questions slowly and confusedly considerably affected; when it re sometimes romited. The feeling than to subside, and as it wer with violent headach, which contiand left her for a day or two feels progress of the feeling of num fincer to the stomach, cometimes o and the common duration of the about inepty four hours. The fo reace raned from a few days to had been liable to it for several y vals betwirt the attacks she e Her brother, who was 22 year almost exactly in the same man liable to the paroxysins for managers clerk, and in the inte tacks enjoyed perfect health. neacement of the attack, he ha Exists any brainess in which h

cased care distinct instruction

of his defaultions; then walks

OTTLINE OF THE DISEASE

For we have every reason to believe, that both the nerves themselves, and the investing membrane, are liable to affections which may be the source of many obscure diseases. It is now upwards of twenty years since I first saw a girl, aged at that time about 18 months, and previously enjoying excellent health. She had been left for some time sitting upon damp grass, and was immediately seized with fever, accompanied by such a degree of oppression as led to an apprehension of an affection of the brain. These symptoms, however, passed off in a few days, and, upon her recovery from them, it was found that she was entirely paralytic in the right lower extremity. She has from that time enjoyed uninterrupted health, and is now a tall and strong young woman, but the right lower extremity has continued entirely paralytic. It is also a great deal smaller than the opposite extremity, and several inches shorter. All the joints are remarkably relaxed, and the muscles flaccid; but there is no other appearance of disease in any part of it, or in the spine. Some time ago I was consulted about a young man, aged 14, who had nearly lost the muscular power of the upper part of both his arms, accompanied by a most remarkable diminution of substance of the principal muscles. The deltoid and biceps are reduced to the appearance of mere membranes, and the same affection extends, in rather a less degree, to the muscles upon the scapula; the muscles upon the forearm, however, are full and vigorous. No disease can be discovered about the spine, and in other respects he is in perfect health. The affection has come on gradually, and cannot be traced to any cause.

It is impossible, I think, to explain such cases as these, except upon the principle of local affections of nerves, which are at present involved in much obscurity. There are various other affections which can only be referred to the same subject, and which present some very singular phenomena, though the facts relating to them have not yet been brought together in any con... a proper extensively cultivated. : 1 n to believe, that both the pl : e investing membrane, are may be the source of many s now unwards of twenty years I.r. a_fl at that time about 18 r ying excellent health. She re : e arting upon damp grass, z il with fever, accompanied by ... n as led to an apprehension an. These symptoms, however, have and upon her recovery from l at she was entirely paralytic in he has from that time enait, and is now a tall and strong the mile lawer extremity has conurtic. It is also a great deal smaller green it, and eyeral inches shorter. at the reason, and the muscles is the arthre of disease in in time and I was ro r min. and 14, who had nearly - or the uper part of both his remarks be diminution of Tie deltoil and prise I murches The deltoil and he appearance of more memstre in consequently in rather a now is upon the scapula: the to incorrected about the spine, The of Table I and cannot be travel to Times of strike the cases at the state of the s while can only be

TO SERVER TO VERTER

nected form. In the year 1828 I was consulted about a singular disease of this nature, which occurred in paroxysms, and affected in the same manner two individuals of one family, a young lady of 25, and a young man of 22. The lady described the attack in the following manner. She was first affected with blindness of the right eye, which came on gradually as if a cloud passed slowly over the eye; about a quarter of an hour after this, she felt a numbness of the little finger of the right hand, beginning at the point of it, and extending very gradually over the whole hand and arm, producing a complete loss of sensibility of the parts, but without any loss of the power of motion. The feeling of numbness then extended to the right side of the head, and from this it seemed to spread downwards towards the stomach. When it reached the side of the head, she became oppressed and partially confused, answered questions slowly and eonfusedly, and her speech was eonsiderably affected; when it reached the stomach she The feeling of numbness then sometimes vomited. began to subside, and as it went off, she was seized with violent headaeh, which continued for several hours. and left her for a day or two feeble and languid. The progress of the feeling of numbness, from the little finger to the stomach, sometimes occupied several hours, and the common duration of the whole paroxysm was about twenty-four hours. The frequency of its occurrence varied from a few days to several months; she had been liable to it for several years, but in the intervals betwixt the attacks she enjoyed perfect health. Her brother, who was 22 years of age, was affected almost exactly in the same manner, and he had been liable to the paroxysms for many years. He was a banker's elerk, and in the intervals between the attacks, enjoyed perfect health. When he felt the commencement of the attack, he hastily brought to a conelusion any business in which he happened to be engaged,—gave distinct instructions to another of the elerks in regard to the state in which he left the affairs of his department; then walked home, went to bed,

and soon after became insensible. Next day he was in his usual health, except a considerable degree of

languor.

These singular eases were under the care of the late Dr. Gibson of Montrose, and they seemed to derive benefit from a course of purgatives, followed by a course of sulphate of quininc, combined with small quantities of rhubarb. In a farther report received in 1829, Dr. Gibson informed me that the affection had continued. but that the attacks had been less frequent and less severe; and that on several occasions, they seemed to have been lessened in violence and shortened in duration by emetics. In 1834 I learnt that the young man had entirely recovered; but that the lady had died of consumption in 1832, and had continued liable to occasional attacks of her peculiar headach almost to the time of her death.

The affections of internal nerves present a subject of still greater difficulty, and the observations that have been made in regard to them are at present far from being satisfactory. Lobstein* thinks he has ascertained the existence of inflammation of the great sympathetic nerve; and to this source he refers many obscure discases, such as, violent hysterical affections, sympathetic affections of the heart, spasmodie cough, colica pictonum, angina pectoris, and many obscure affections of the stomach and bowels. In the same manner, he explains the fatal effects which are produced by blows upon the stomach, and the severe symptoms, both in the head and in the general system, which often arise from worms, and from other disorders of the bowels. In a lady who died of urgent vomiting, with burning pain in the spine and in the right hypochondrium, he found the semilunar ganglion in a state of intense inflammation, and the lower part of it livid. In a boy who died with great oppression of the chest, and distention of the epigastrium, supervening upon the retrogression of a miliary cruption, he found deep inflamma-

unitapen determik of 2. If the ninth and tenth th enceialy as nothing is er inflammation. We must " have not facts before us, ; to able that there are discret and be the source of in por and bruised it on both sides s cers; the wound healed tayou affected with general tremo-

breathing, vomiting, great de remiting subsided, and the et

nisted, but he had not recove

breathing, when he was killed

The internal organs were all the left side, where the injury

el d'alty increased in siz-

and that on the right the enlarged, highly in co

^{*} De Nervi Sympathetici Fabrica, usu, et Morbis.

tion of a part of the trunk of the left intereostal nerve, and of the ninth and tenth thoracic ganglia.

and the regarder late.

. i. s. . | -: 1 hm a . 1153

hopeti den so

.. carte, they seemed to

arms that the young man at the lidy had diel of

1 han I li le to oc-

on the second is that have

a. A. a. Prese i far from

a tige to be different

These speculations must be received with much eaution, especially as nothing is more precarious than morbid appearances, consisting of mere change of colour of parts, without any of the actual results or terminations of inflammation. We must forbear to speculate where we have not facts before us, but it appears extremely probable that there are diseases of internal nerves which may be the source of important morbid phenomena. Descot exposed the par vaguin upon the neck of a dog, and bruised it on both sides slightly with a pair of pincers; the wound healed favourably, but the animal was affected with general tremors, difficult and laborious breathing, vomiting, great debility and wasting. vomiting subsided, and the other symptoms were diminished, but he had not recovered a natural state of his breathing, when he was killed at the end of three weeks. The internal organs were all healthy. The nerve on the left side, where the injury had been inflicted, appeared slightly increased in size, and was of a yellowish colour; and that on the right side appeared more decidedly enlarged, highly injected, and adhering to the neighbouring parts.

ARRANGED S
ILLESTRATIVE OF TO
ORGANIC DISE

INTENDED TO
TO PART III,

FIRST CLASS,—LONG-C

(8)

Symptoms.

CASE I.—A woman of 3 for the back of head—walk tremulous and steady, like a person balar throbbing in the head—throbbing in the head—throbbing in the head—throbbing in the head—throbbing in the symptoms. Remarkable after the formation of an all timed when it headed, and throbbing in the axilla; but the pain treased to tremendous sever from two o'clock in the after month in the greatest agony, if the present the greatest agony, if the greatest agony is the greatest agony is the greatest agony.

ARRANGED SELECTION OF CASES
ILLUSTRATIVE OF THE PRINCIPAL MODIFICATIONS OF
ORGANIC DISEASES OF THE BRAIN,
INTENDED TO FORM A SUPPLEMENT
TO PART III, OF THIS TREATISE.

SECTION I.

FIRST CLASS.—LONG-CONTINUED HEADACH, TERMINA-TING AT LAST BY COMA OR BY GRADUAL EXHAUSTION.

(See page 316.)

Symptoms.

Case I.—A woman of 35 fixed pain in the back of the head-walk tremulous and unsteady, like a person balancing a burden on the head-much throbbing in the head-hysterical symptoms. Remarkable remission of all the symptoms after the formation of an abscess in the axilla; but the pain returned when it healed, and increased to tremendous severity, and with remarkable remissions. From two o'clock in the morning till two in the afternoon she was in the greatest agony, lying with her eyes closed—the eyeMorbid Appearances.

A tumor at the base of the cerebellum, growing from both lobes of it and descending within the dura mater into the spinal canal, as low as the sixth spinal nerve. It was soft like fætal brain, and seemed to grow out of the interior of the cerebellum. As it lay along the spinal cord, it rested upon the origin of the nerves, but did not involve them in its substance.

Dr. Latham Med. and Phys. Jour. July, 1826.

Symptoms.

brows contracted-the hands clenched-and the head immovable in one position-unable to bear the least noise, or to move a muscle. After two P. M. the symptoms gradually remitted-she took food, and about nine fell asleep, and slept till two, when the paroxysm recurred. As the disease advanced, the interval became shorter, and for a fortnight before her death the pain was constant-senses entire to the last-palsy of the left leg for three days before death-duration of the case fourteen months.

CASE II.—A man, aged 40 violent pain in the back of the head, ceasing at times, but returning, and accompanied with vomiting, and always referred to the same spot, much relieved at different times by bleeding and by salivation, but always recurred with great violence, and was referred to a single point at the junction of the temporal and occipital bones-frequent vomiting - impaired vision. Died suddenly in one of the attacks of pain-duration of the complaint about a year.

Case III.—A young man of 20—violent pain of the forehead;—it occurred in paroxysms which generally continued four days, and were followed by intervals of partial relief of about the same duration. After two years died suddenly in the night from convulsion.

Morbid Appearances.

In the left lobe of the cerebellum, a tumor an inch long and ten lines in breadth, composed of about nine alternate layers of a chalky matter, fluid albumen, and a very firm matter with the properties of albumen, which grated uoder the knife. It was enclosed in a cavity which also contained a tough glutinous matter, and the surrounding substance was like rancid bacon.

Prof. Nasse App. to Germ. Trans. of Dr. Abercrombie's Papers on the Brain.

A tumor the size of a pigeon's egg, hard in the centre, and externally soft, in the substance of the cerebellum, other parts healthy.

Planque Biblioth. III. 348.

Stephus.

LASE IV.—A man of of seart pain of torebead, we may not running. Other for this health, beath three morths by gradual extinction.

Late V — A none need in the region of the head—aggravated naturals. After two none contained and death,

Case VI.—A boy of 14-serve herdach for two minch observe herdach for two minch observe carastid death on the Uth day

Les VII.—A man, aged a state of the least notion. Since times so server as 10 obstoerable time in one posture, applied to the least notion. Simplify a symptomis—death a state of complete marasimis.

Laws for 15 years to attacks of executing over the right temple, and the tight tight of

Maria

In the . it! e of the care-

1 . 6 - m. 3 (3m ; an 1 ch l)

. 1: and the letter.

1 (1) A laterate rate

Called by chatter, i.e.

ne Lu very frem 8 3.

on the state of the

TO REAL ROY MATERIA 3

1 3 . The State Wall And

Town Vis dry Inter-

The state of the s

1:27 13 472 13 14

office of the service of the service

the as ratter, and the

1 (ig li as 6, 19,6 ma

the track the test as in

Symptoms.

CASE IV .- A man of 50constant pain of forehead, with frequent vomiting. Other functions healthy. Coma for three days before death. Death in three months by gradual exhaustion.

Case V.—A man, aged 55 -lancinating pain in the right side of the head-aggravated at intervals. After two months coma and death.

CASE VI .- A boy of 14severe headach for two months -then convulsion, followed by coma and death on the 8th day.

CASE VII .- A man, aged 35-violent headach, which was sometimes so severe as to oblige him to remain for a considerable time in one posture, incapable of the least motionconsumptive symptoms-death after seven months in a state of complete marasmus.

CASE VIII .- Man of 58liable for 15 years to attacks of acute pain in the right temple, extending over the right side of Morbid Appearances.

A tumor two inches long arising from the cella Turcica, covered by the dura mater. Ventricles distended with seııım.

Communicated by Mr. William Brown.

A mass as hard as scirrhus, four inches long, and between two and three broad, in the substance of the right hemisphere, on the ontside of the thalamus. Internally it contained small cells full of gelatinous matter.

Bouillaud Traité de l'Encephalite.

A tumor the size of a walnut of a rose colour and a fatty consistence behind the posterior part of the medulla oblongata; another smaller in the left lobe of the cerebellum. Serous effusion - diseased mesenteric glands-ulceration of the small intestines.

Merat Journ. de Med. tom. X.

Three ounces of fluid in the ventricles, a firm tumor the size of a pigeon's egg in the upper and middle part of the right hemisphere, enclosed in a reddish sac, internally of a yellowish colour, A larger tunior of the same appearance in the left lobe of the cerebellumextensive disease of the thorax and abdomen.

Merut, ut supra.

On the outside of the right thalamus, and on a level with it, a tumor in the substance of the brain of a reddish-grey comatter.

Symptoms. and afterwards vomiting of every thing taken. Death from

Symptoms. the head and face-first attack continued three weeks-and it afterwards returned in paroxysins of very uncertain duration, and at very irregular intervals. After fifteen years, a more severe attack, which continued two months and ended in coma and death. For some days before death, had palsy of the left side, and of the right eyelid.

> Three ounces of fluid in the ventricles-in the seat of the pineal gland, a little to the right side, a tumor the size of a nutmeg-internally it was like cheese, but organized. mollissement of the cerebel-

Morbid Appearances.

lour-four fingers breadth in

length, and two or three in

breadth, partly hard, and partly

in cyst containing a gelatinous

Andral. Jour. de Phys.

Case IX.—An officer, aged 33-slight pain and confusion of the head with impaired appetite. After ten weeks, nausea and pain in the eye balls. He was then wounded in the head—lost much blood, and the bone exfoliated, and he was much better for more than a Then headach-watchfulness - flushing - and ophthalmia. Recovered after three months, but was never free from headach. It gradually increased; was sometimes referred to a spot on the occiput, and sometimes through the whole head. Was much aggravated by motion, which produced a painful jarring in his head, and much increased by going to stool-pain at last excruciating, with numbness of the left haud-then sudden delirium—coma and death in three days—duration of the complaint three years.

Sir G. Blane, Trans. of a Soc. vol. ii.

CASE X. - A woman of 40 -severe shooting pain in the occiput—at first alleviated towards evening-afterwards unremitted. Constant sickness.

A soft tubercular mass the size of a hazel-mut in the posterior lobe of both hemispheres -left lobe of the cerebellum almost destroyed by the softengradual exhaustion in four m oths

CASES OF ORGANIC PIS

It is unnecessary to mu which present little variety case by Willis, there was adhering to the membran sinus; and in one by Saviar tion of the lambdoidal ar broadest part of the falx, bone with very sharp angles in contact with the dura n charged a little pus. In a there was, near the torcu mass of a stony consistence, and angles; and in a case stony tumor like a mulberry had suffered from long-conti which left him no interval also the cases formerly de tubercular diseases of the LITTIII, LYXXIV, and of organic diseases, with r

Second Class. - Head SEXSES, SPEEC

Case Manponer to after exposure to the sun by Malking in a procession

Mer' i A pravaren. and it has breath in ingthe addition or three in x- readity, partly hard, and partly to in the near gargeland to · matt -A . Jour, de Phys.

7 7) PART III.

Three inces of fluid in the i we spices—in the seat of the es. 21 .1, 3 little to the . fight f eath of eggesta e. ez- terraly it was like ille occup, his organized. Rii a m seement of the celebet-1 8 - G. Bland, Trans. of a

I set in similar with its is the property of the propert

Sand Day beneficial in the personal state of the secret of

of Column

Symptoms. every thing taken. Death from gradual exhaustion in four months.

Morbid Appearances. and afterwards vomiting of ing of a similar tumor occupying its interior-substance of the cerebellum around it indu-Three ounces of fluid in the ventricles.

Dr. Chalmers Med, and Phy. Jour. July, 1826.

It is unnecessary to multiply eases of this class, which present little variety in the phenomena. In a case by Willis, there was a tumor three inches broad adhering to the membranes at the side of the third sinus; and in one by Saviard there was, under the junetion of the lambdoidal and sagittal sutures at the broadest part of the falx, a small triangular piece of bone with very sharp angles. Where these angles came in contact with the dura mater, it was livid and discharged a little pus. In a lady mentioned by Borellus there was, near the toreular, a hard rough irregular mass of a stony consistence, with many sharp processes and angles; and in a case by Schenkius there was a stony tumor like a mulberry in the brain of a man who had suffered from long-continued and intense headach, which left him no interval of ease day or night. See also the cases formerly described under the head of tubercular diseases of the brain, particularly Cases LXXXIII, LXXXV, and XC, which exhibit examples of organic diseases, with remarkable remissions of the pain.

SECTION II.

SECOND CLASS .- HEADACH, AFFECTIONS OF THE SENSES, SPEECH OR INTELLECT.

Symptoms. CASE XI.—A man, aged 42-after exposure to the sun by walking in a procession without his hat was seized

Morbid Appearances. At the anterior part of the right hemisphere, a scirrhous mass the size of a nut, surrounded by extensive ramolSymptoms.
with headach, which became intermittent, and was treated by back. After six weeks it ceased, but left amaurosis. Then followed fever and death-

CASE XII.—A man, aged 47—headach and weight in the head, increased by stooping. Began in May 1816, and increased gradually, notwithstanding copious evacuations. In August his sight began to diminish, with giddiness, in September, could only see objects in a very strong light; in December perfect blindness—pain still constant and severe. In the middle of January stupor and forgetfulness, and died somatose on the 31st.

CASE XIII. - An who had seen much servicesevere headach which subsided, and left a feeling of tightness across the forehead After six or eight months, blindness of the right eye, then blindness of the left. Under the operation of an emetic, the sight of the left eye was recovered for an hour-afterwards perfect blindness and pupils insensible, but no other complaint, except disordered stomach, and frequent inclination to vomit. Death from coma after two years.

CASE XIV.—A man aged 30—excruciating headach, which commenced after hard working in a hay-field—chiefly referred to the forehead, from which it extended over the left ear, but sometimes affected the right

Morbid Appearances, lissement of the cerebral substance—thalami sound—optic nerves shrivelled, Cruveilhier Nov. Bib. de Med. Nov. 1825.

A tumor, the size of a large egg, attached to the tentorium in such a manner, that part of it lay above it and part below it, the falx likewise entering into its substance above. Internally it was firm, and resembled the structure of the kidney—four ounces of fluid in the ventricles.

Author's Notes.

Four ounces of fluid in the ventricles; a tumor, the size of a hen's egg, containing a thick purulent fluid, under the anterior part of the brain, and interposed betwixt the optic nerves, which were much separated by it from each other. Below it was attached to the pituitary gland, which was very soft, and enlarged to five or six times its natural size.

Med. Trans. vol. v. Dr. Powel.

A tumor, the size of a large walnut, projected from the lower part of the anterior lobe of the left hemisphere. Internally it resembled an absorbent gland. The greater part of the medullary substance of

Solicitie end also, at study the need.—t. In the night. After seren week! I idness, ent of two m nihs an astuck, and death

CASES OF ORGAN

In the other case nearly similar,-fixed of sight,-the intell advanced stages, an A case has been alr with a cyst contain terior part of the left 174.1 In a case by origin of the optic there was a steaton tween the brain and were both blindness; dealy by an apoplecti rates the pineal glan er, and was of an case to Bouilland. and loss of the me the size of a large hemisphere.

THIND CLASS,—

ASE XV 1 girl me.
The Line line to head a sight, and

Mr 1 Ap. 1 A

T. Adl H.

red A con in the size of a large end to the term of a large that cart if the cit and part below the in a likewise entering is no cance above. In the size of the kiddle of the cit and the confident the

Anthony Nets.

For ources of fluid in the carriers at the first particle ander the anterest particle set to the option of the first particle and the first particle years at mass attached to the particle years at a first years.

resembled and a service of a large of a large of a large of a large of the service of the servic

Symptoms. side of the head also, and occasionally the neck—more severe in the night. After six or seven weeks blindness. At the end of two months an apoplectic attack, and death in two days.

Morbid Appearances.
the left hemisphere was reduced to a soft pulpy state, and was of a light brown colour.
Med. Trans. vol. v. Dr. Powel.

In the other cases of this class the symptoms are nearly similar,-fixed pain in the head and gradual loss of sight,-the intellect being frequently affected in the advanced stages, and frequently the speech impaired. A case has been already described, in which there was blindness of one eye and loss of speech, in connexion with a cyst containing albuminous matter in the posterior part of the left hemisphere—(See Case XCI. page 174.) In a case by Platerus, fatal by gradual wasting, there was a tumor larger than an egg, compressing the origin of the optic nerves. In one by Drelincurtius, there was a steatomatous tumor the size of a fist between the brain and the cerebellum. In this case there were both blindness and deafness, and it was fatal suddenly by an apoplectic attack. In another by the same writer the pineal gland was enlarged to the size of an egg, and was of an earthy or stony structure. In a case by Bouillaud, with impaired sight and speech, and loss of the memory of names, there was a tumor the size of a large nut in the anterior part of the left hemisphere.

SECTION III.

THIRD CLASS.—HEADACH—AFFECTIONS OF THE SENSES AND CONVULSIONS.

Symptoms.

CASE XV —A girl, aged 11—long liable to headach, with weakness of sight, and a pecu-

Morbid Appearances.
A tumor the size of a walnut rested on the cella Turcica, and compressed the junction of

Symptoms.

liar tenderness of the integuments of the head. In antumn 1814, she received an injury on the forehead from a fall, and from that time suffered much from headach, with frequent epistaxis. In the end of December, the headach increased, with fever, intolerance of light and sound-squinting and convulsive paroxysms, which, for some time, recurred every half hour. In March 1815, she improved remarkably, and for nearly a year continued better in regard to the head-symptoms, but affected with scrofulous sores on the neck and on the leg. In May 1816, headach increased, with impatience of light and sound—squinting, gradual failure of sight, at last blindness in July. She died in October, her intellect having continued unimpaired; remarkable acuteness of hearing, and intolerance of sound continued to the last.

Case XVI .- A young man of 15—deep-seated pain in the head, and after six months inarticulate speech. Three attacks of convulsion, each of ten or fifteen minutes duration; the last left palsy of the right side, which disappeared next day. Died comatose in another month, having had repeated convulsive attacks, intense headach, impatience of light, afterwards dilatation of the pupils, deafness, palsy of the evelids, very difficult articulation, and some delirium.

Morbid Appearances. the optic nerves. It was composed of a medullary substance of a yellowish colour, and was covered by a thin and delicate membrane.

Communicated by Dr. Hay.

Four ounces of fluid in the ventricles; on the left side of the pons Varolii, a hard tumor the size of a bean; surrounding substance softened, approaching to suppuration.

Coindet sur l'Hydrenceph p. 98.

Sumptoms, Case XVII.—A servant gir I ne sul jeet to headach, which in her 19th year, became ver serere, and occurred period cally, generally once in fou weeks and sometimes oftener In her 21st year, the headach beamemore violent and permaneat, with frequent vomiting, Unv. She had then attacks c avulsions, which returned a first in five or six days, and afterwards every second or thin day. About three months after the commencement of the con That us, she was one morning found dead in bed,

CASE XVIII.—A woman aged 19 — Headach, vertigo, suffices in of the eyes; paroxysm in which she fell down insensity with the conce in three weeks and at each time there werks and at each time there have paraxysms at the distance of twelve hours; after that or inches months, then attacks inches in severity so has added in the loss of hearing and deglarition were much in applicate. Soon after this die

CASE VIX.—A man agepersonal state of the lead and indecility of the head along a month of the left eye, and continued to receive paroxysms which along the right continued to receive for a feet of pectoral complaints.

". TTO MART III.

. 9

1

01.7

٠,

Morbid Appearance.

Proceedings in the same of a mental sty substance of a yellowing on mr, and was and it was a same of a yellowing and it was a same of a yellowing and it was a same of the same of

Symptoms.

CASE XVII.—A servant girl long subject to headach, which, in her 19th year, became very severe, and occurred periodically, generally once in four weeks and sometimes oftener. In her 21st year, the headach became more violent and permanent, with frequent vomiting, and occasional fits of insensibility. She had then attacks of double vision, and afterwards convulsions, which returned at first in five or six days, and afterwards every second or third day. About three months after the commencement of the convulsions, she was one morning found dead in bed.

Case XVIII .- A woman, aged 19.—Headach, vertigo, suffusion of the eyes; paroxysms in which she fell down insensible, without convulsion. attacked her once in three weeks, and at each time there were two paroxysms at the distance of twelve hours; after eight or nine months, these attacks increased in severity. She had then loss of hearing, sight, and smell, and her speech and deglutition were much inipaired. Soon after this died apopletic.

CASE XIX.—A man aged 24,—severe headach—watchfulness and imbecility of the head—blindness of the left eye, and after a month of the right. Convulsive paroxysms which continued to recur for six months; they then ceased, and he died of pectoral complaints.

Morbid Appearances.

Throughout the substance of both hemispheres, and in the corpora striata, there were numerous tubercles the size of peas. They were externally hard, and internally contained a small cavity full of a thick greenish fluid. Twenty-one of them were collected—substance of the brain healthy—corpora striata considerably softened.

Prof. Nasse, ut supra.

Embedded in the substance of the right hemisphere, there was an hydatid, three inches long, and two broad, and very vascular. Brain in other respects healthy.

Yelloly, Med. Chir. Trans.

vol. ii,

Extensive disease of the lnngs; much effusion in the brain; in the substance of the left hemisphere, a tumor larger than an egg, weighing fourteen drams; it was covered by a fine sac, and internally was white, firm and uniform, resembling congulated albumen, but harder.

Felix Platerus, Lib. I. 108.

France of dud in the activities of the control of t

SUPPLEMENT TO PART III.

CASE XX.—A child of 4 years—unable to walk—articulation very imperfect—intelligence very deficient—deglutition very difficult, liquids swallowed often returning by the mouth and nose—difficult respiration and frequent convul-

sions—but was full in flesh—had been in this state about a

year-died in six months more.

Symptoms.

CASE XXI.=Awoman, 23-After suppressed aged menstruation, violent headach, impaired vision, and after some time blindness. Repeated convulsive attacks; after one of which she last her speech for two days. Intellect entire. after four Died comatose months.

CASE XXII.—A lady, aged 40, of a scrofulous habit—gradual failure of memory, sight and hearing; inarticulate speech; epileptic paroxysms, at first once in the fortnight, afterwards more frequent—her gait feeble and tottering—died in six mouths. A year before her death, she had been much stunned by a fall down a stair.

CASE XXIII.—A man, aged 26—Severe headach; most distressing when lying on the left side; occurring in paroxysms with giddiness. After several

Morbid Appearances.

Corpora olivaria, crus cerebelli, and tubercula mammillaria in a state of cartilaginous hardness; other parts sound.

Author's Notes.

On the surface of the right hemisphere there were three hardened spots, each an inch in diameter. They were the surfaces of tubercular masses, which extended into the medullary substance of the brain. There was a similar tubercle in the substance of the hemisphere, and one smaller in the surface of the left hemisphere. Slight effusion in the ventricles. Powel, A ed. Trans. v.

A tumor, the size of a small orange, lay on the pars petrosa of the left temporal bone, inclining to the opposite side, and producing great depression in the substance of the brain; the seventh pair of nerves, and the branches of the fifth pair were compressed and stretched by the tumor. Internally it consisted of a soft uniform substance resembling the cineritious matter of the brain.

Communicated by Dr. Hay.

A hard tumor two inches long, and an inch and a half broad, was firmly attached to the tentorium, and embedded in the posterior lobe of the left

CASES OF ORGANIC DIST

Symplems.

The pain increased, with morths pain increased, with property of the painty of the limbs during the painty paint, then double vision; with blindness; then double vision; where painty pain in the neck, with consider paroxysms, affecting the muscles of the neck, and drawing the head violently backwarts. Two morths after this he had numbers of spasmone to the superior extremites. After serior eight months died suddenly in a fit resembling epilepsy.

Case XXIV.—A man aged 55—exerce headed,, and sense of weight in the head for two years; copous epitaxis; loss of the sense of smell; then frequent epileptic paroxysus for two years—cied suddenly.

CA: ZXXV.—A man, (age not mentioned)—service head, is lowed by amanumin and epicture paroxivity, which not in an application and all paroxivity. He died

SECTION SECTION OF THE SENSES.—INTELLED OF THE SENSES.—INTELLED OF SIX YEARS,

tricles.

Mr. 1 Apparance.

Language of cartiagous lariness:

Ask : Ask : Ask : Ask : Yole.

Ask : Yole.

T. The strain

On the surface of the right to have the end of the right and inches. They were the character of the man are the character of the man are to the surface of the surface of the bendering and one smaller in the character of the surface of the bendering and one smaller in the character of the surface of the bendering and one smaller in the character of the surface of t

At the size of a small a small a small a small a small a small to be it tempt and home, in the size of centers in in the size of centers and the size of the fair primary and the size of the size of

Symptoms. months pain increased, with impaired vision and dilated pupil. Paroxysms of giddiness, with blindness; loss of speech, stiffness of the limbs during the paroxysms; then double vision; violent pain in the neck, with convulsive paroxysms, affecting the muscles of the neck, and drawing the head violently backwards. Two months after this he had numbness and spasmodic motions of the superior extremities. After seven or eight months died suddenly in a fit resembling epilepsy.

Case XXIV.—A man aged 35—Severe headach, and sense of weight in the head for two years; copions epistaxis; loss of the sense of smell; then frequent epileptic paroxysms for two years—died suddenly.

Case XXV.—A man, (age not mentioned)—severe headach, followed by amaurosis and epileptic paroxysms, which occurred almost daily. He died in an apoplectic attack.

Morbid Appearances, hemisphere. It contained an ounce of greenish pus, and the cerebral substance near it was softened. Where the tumor pressed against the occipital bone, the dura mater was obliterated, and the bone rough. Two ounces of fluid in the ven-

Clerk, Edin. Jour. VI. p. 275.

Cerebral substance on the anterior part of the right hemisphere was hard and callous, and adhered intimately to the dura mater; on the left side some extravasated blood.

Morgagni, Epis. 9.

On the inner surface of the left parietal bone, there was an osseous spongy tumor, three inches broad, and more than an inch in thickness.

Wenfer.

SECTION IV.

FOURTH CLASS—CONVULSIONS, WITHOUT AFFECTIONS OF THE SENSES.—INTELLECT SOMETIMES IMPAIRED.

CASE XXVI.—A man, aged An hydatid the size of a 60 — Epileptic for six years, pigeon's egg, in the posterior

Symptoms. with loss of memory. Died suddenly.

CASE XXVII .- A boy, aged 16 months, formerly healthy, was seized with an attack of convulsion. It affected chiefly his right side, which was very strongly convulsed. He had a second attack on the evening of the same day, after which he had fever, blindness, and loss of the power of deglutition. In this state he continued ten days, when he had another fit, and after this he gradually recovered his sight and deglutition. From this time there was a degree of paralysis of the right side, but in other respects he enjoyed good health for four years. He then had epileptic paroxysms, which at first occurred once in two months, but gradually increased in frequency. After a much longer interval than usual, a few weeks before his death, the fits returned after a fright, recurred with great frequency, and were fatal. He was then twelve years of age; his right side had continued weak; and at the time of his death, the right lower extremity was three inches shorter than the other; -his intellect had been weak, so that he never could be taught to read.

CASE XXVIII. — A man, aged 40, the guard of a coach, was thrown from his seat behind the coach, and received an injury of his head, by which he

Morbid Appearances.
part of the right hemisphere.
It contained a yellowish fluid,
which was partly gelatinous.
The substance of the brain under it was hardened.

Lancisi de Sub. Mort. cap. 11.

On the surface of the brain, under the left parietal bone, there was a tumor the size of an egg, situated between the pia mater and the arachnoid; internally it was of a white and somewhat gelatinous appearance, but very firm, and when cut into, some serous fluid was discharged from it; no effusion.

Communicated by Dr Bcilby.

There was thickening of the dura mater in several places. Attached to the inner surface of the thickened portions, there were several small nodules of Namphems.

was confined for several week:
After his recovery he becan
epileptic. The fits general
occurred once in five or si
weeks. After two years I
fell from his seat behind th
coch in one of the fits, and re
ceived various injuries, of which
he died in a few days.

Case XXIX.—A child age 20 months—No symptom re marked but a constant motified the head from right to left-was pale but without fever, ardid not seem to suffer. Die emaciated.

CASE XXX - A woman aged 50 - Epileptic for thirt years; had cough which excite scute pain under the upper par of the occipital bone. In one o the epileptic fits she received ; when blow on this spot, folred by constant pain, and afto the weeks, a pulsatory tunor appeared on the spot, when could be pressed back into the carity of the cranium and this produced coma. Afte several m orths, she had pals of the right arm, and both low er entremities, and soon after

1 1 17

. . · i

, ULD

1 10 10 1

- 10

1 , ; 16.

11, 1

1-1, de

7 . "4.

7 th "

Me-14 Appearance. Define of the right hemisphere. Is contained a yellowish fluid, which als partly gelatinous. To god. The culstance of the brain un-Le 17. des 11 was bardened. tak f Linewise sed Mort cap. II.

. . .. '- ind under the left parietal bone, ten ng ti aga ma a tim tithe size of an TW A e. ; situated cetween the pia ees, and mater and the amchaoid; inregion to the limit was of a white and thed mewhat gelatin us appearid in ther ance, but very firm, and when . Induanty cut into, some serous fluid was aczed from it ino effusion. P C , heated by Dr Beilly.

Symptoms. was confined for several weeks. After his recovery he became epileptic. The fits generally occurred once in five or six After two years he fell from his seat behind the coach in one of the fits, and received various injuries, of which he died in a few days.

CASE XXIX.—A child aged 20 months-No symptom remarked but a constant motion of the head from right to leftwas pale but without fever, and did not seem to suffer. Died emaciated.

CASE XXX. - A woman aged 50 - Epileptic for thirty years; had cough which excited acute pain under the upper part of the occipital bone. In one of the epileptic fits she received a violent blow on this spot, followed by constant pain, and after six weeks, a pulsatory tumor appeared on the spot, which could be pressed back into the cavity of the cranium, and this produced coma. After several months, she had palsy of the right arm, and both lower extremities, and soon after died.

CASE XXXI. - A woman of 43-Headach; spasmodic affections of the limbs. seven months was confined to bed-violent paroxysms of headach, with loss of memory, and frequent convulsive attacks, which at last occurred several times a day. Died suddenly in one of them, six or seven weeks after she was confined to bed.

Morbid Appearances. bone, the size of peas, and very irregular on the surface. Communicated by Dr. Hunter.

In right lobe of the cerebellum a round firm cyst, the size of a hazel-nut, containing numerous small hard concretions like pieces of bone.

Andral.

The tumor was generated in the substance of the dura mater. It projected inwards into a hollow on the left hemisphere, and outwards through an opening in the bone which measured two inches by one and a half. The dura mater near it was remarkably vascular.

Marigues, Mem. de Chir. p. 26.

Four ounces of fluid in the ventricles. A tubercle the size of a nut in the left lobe of the cerebellum; surrounding substance much softened.

Rochoux sur l'Apop.

There is into the of the little terrial places. of in the line street · it i'll him his i

It is unnecessary to detail particularly the cases of this class. They present the usual symptoms of the epileptic paroxysm, occurring at various intervals, and in various degrees of severity; sometimes accompanied by violent attacks of headach, and sometimes with little uneasiness in the head. They are sometimes fatal suddenly in one of the fits, sometimes by coma. A variety of morbid appearances have been observed in such cases. Portal observed a remarkable induration of the pons Varolii; and Sandifort found three tubercles in the dura mater near the sagittal suture, on the right side, and in the anterior part of the right hemisphere, a sebaceous tumor the size of a walnut. In a ease by Lieutaud, there were seven sareomatous tumors near the longitudinal sinus; and in another, a glandular tumor the size of a bean, in the substance of the right eorpus striatum. In a young man, mentioned by M. Poupart, in whom the fits occurred once a week, there was a thick white substance, firmer than jelly, under the dura mater. In a man mentioned by Lamotte, who died of an absects of the lungs, after having been many years epileptie, several sharp bony spiculæ were found between the dura mater and the pin mater; their points being directed against the pia mater. Several cases of the same kind are referred to by Van Swieten, in one of which there was an irregular piece of bone in the substance of the cerebellum, an inch long, and half an inch broad. In a case by Dr. Anderson of Leith, in which epilepsy came on after a severe injury on the back of the head, the posterior part of the brain was found inflamed, and much hardened, with thickening of the membranes. A modification of epilepsy is met with, in which the convulsion is confined to one side of the body. In a case of this kind by Dr. Auderson, a portion of the brain on the opposite side was much indurated, with adhesion and thickening of the membranes. The same peculiarity in the symptoms occurred in Dr. Beilby's case mentioned in this section. In a man mentioned by Lieutaud, the course of symptoms was somewhat different from those

CASES OF ORGAS

epiceptic affections, onths, then violent that. The longitud mally, was covered with grains, and similar by plexus. In the fourth, the size of an egg, form andular bodies, verg while of the cereballing.

FITTH CLASS,-SY

Symptom.

ASE XXVII.—A wom

I wis lent convolutions
to exist atm. which return
receive who or three days for
mechs, with weekness of the
and gradually amplete hemi
that weekness of the
and gradually amplete hemi
that he of the first in then cease
the above the above the receive mean

CASE ATMIT—A both
the standard of the standard of the
these of standard of the receive of standard of the standard of the
means the standard of t

to sell as vicability inflation for all the then had an affection and an affection of the then had an affection and an affection of the then had a self-containing country; and after

epileptic affections. He had violent headach for three months, then violent convulsions, which were rapidly fatal. The longitudinal sinus, externally and internally, was covered with innumerable smaller glandular grains, and similar bodies were found on the choroid plexus. In the fourth ventricle there appeared a tumor the size of an egg, formed by a congeries of innumerable glandular bodics, verging to suppuration. Nearly the whole of the ccrebellum had the same appearance.

SECTION V.

FIFTH CLASS.—SYMPTOMS IN THE HEAD WITH PARALYSIS.

\$ I .- HEMIPLEGIA.

Symptoms. CASE XXXII.—A woman of 77-violent convulsions of the left arm, which returned every two or three days for ten weeks, with weakness of the arm, then weakness of the leg, and gradually complete hemiplegia, the convulsion then ceasing -speech then lost, but mind entire-death after eleven months without any other symptom.

TAL PIRTIN

. I a wild see pross of the

in var is intitude, and

" Some " La accompanied

and a metion a wich

Jal. Programmes fatal

the the second of the A

- e been observed in

in an iter, a plan-The substance of

urred once a frmer than in a non-policed by

and the start sharp bony

the plant and the plant

est tile pla mater.

Let are to tel to by feet

Lak Tate de les

the 11 an inch

In a case by Dr. An-

n n after a se

in the protection of the prote

The second of th

The decide this

of its abosin and

T in peculiarity in P

Case XXXIII .- A boy, aged 11-sudden attack of dimness of sight amounting to blindness. It went off in a few minutes, but from that time his sight was gradually impaired, and after a year was nearly lost. He then had an affection resembling chorea; and after a Morbid Appearances.

A hard yellow cancerous mass, larger than a duck's egg, and composed of many lobes in the substances of the right hemisphere.

Rostan, (Ramoliissement de Cerveau.)

On the surface of the left hemisphere, the membranes adhered firmly to the surface of the brain in the middle lobeon raising them at this place, fluid escaped in great quantity, which was found to have been discharged from the cyst of an immense hydatid contained

three days. This was followed by hemiplegia of the right side. He complained much of his head, which appeared to his friends to enlarge; and he sometimes lost his speech for two or three days. His intellect was not affected, but at times was extremely acute. He died after coma of five weeks continuance, about a year after the attack of hemiplegia, and two years after the commencement of the disease.

CASE XXXIV .-- A man of 63-after a blow on the head. headach and sense of weight in the head, at first occurring in paroxysms, then more permanent, with slight weakness of the right side and transient loss of recollection. Symptoms gradually increased to perfect hemiplegia of the right side--loss of speech - twisting of the mouth to the left, and great failure of intellect. Died comatose after more than two vears. The coma continued a week.

CASE XXXV.—A boy of 13—headach—hemiplegia of the left side for five or six weeks before death—loss of speech and memory—rigidity of the paralyzed limbs—occasional pain in the affected leg, and tremulous motions of both arms—tetanic symptoms.

to the circumference of the brain. It contained about sixteen ounces of limpid fluid, and besides this, there were several ounces in the proper cavity of the ventricle.

Communicated by Mr. Headington of London.

A reddish-brown and firm tumor, the size of an egg, on the outer and anterior part of the left hemisphere; it was full of blood, which seemed to be contained in it in some places as it is in the spleen; in others it was in small clots a line or more in diameter, and very The tumor adhered slightly to the dura mater and the arachnoid, which was red and thickened where it covered the tumor. Below it was embedded in the substance of the bemisphere, and the cerebral matter was softened. ounce of fluid in the ventricles. Rochoux.

A tubercle the size of a large egg, and five or six smaller ones in the substance of the right hemisphere; four in the left the size of chesnuts—several of them suppurated—pus betwixt the arachnoid and pia mater, and turbid fluid in the ventricles.

Bouillaud.

behind forwards. After minths double vision—gradually policy of the side, with distortion of mouth and inarticulate spettle left eve drawn towards to se—pulse natural. A two months from the presentent of the paralysbecame convulsed, and districtly four hours.

Case XXXVII.—A aged 6½—gradual loss of p of right arm and leg, with righting—squinting—together broading—the side of Limbs of left side after affected, though in a smooth of the side of power than the right—a varies difficult respiration update loss of power beginning. Death in norths

The cases of this completes. They are some affections of the suns of the suns

. ZZZ I. PARI II.

May I dependent.

i. i. it literal ventroes, and had nearly divanced to the commerces of the literal ventroes. It contained at a sixteen our rate of limit shad, and we have been any rate of the literal very solution. It was a literal very solution of the proper carries of the proper carries of the literal land.

in of London.

1 m 1 A reldith-brown and firm ud, tum the size fan erg, on t e.e themisphere: it was full - - 3. i with which seemed to be a with same places the state of the speed; in others . - Comp. If was in small clots a line or e- - e 'n diameter, and very . in. I'e umor adherel anater and , it are the area moud, which was red et . an the chered where it consted tte time i. Below it was emi sed a ved sed in the vibrance of the her Lete, and the cere ral mater and the tenrildet.

A to establish the risk of the

Symptoms.

Case XXXVI.— A man, aged 36—occasional attacks of severe headach, shooting from behind forwards. After a few months double vision—then gradually palsy of the right side, with distortion of the mouth and inarticulate speech; the left eye drawn towards the nose—pulse natural. About two months from the commencement of the paralysis, he became convulsed, and died in twenty-four hours.

Case XXXVII.—A girl, aged 6½—gradual loss of power of right arm and leg, with great rigidity—squinting—loss of articulation—difficult deglutition—palsy of left side of face. Limbs of left side afterwards affected, though in a smaller degree than the right—afterwards difficult respiration—complete loss of power of deglutition. Death in five months.

Morbid Appearances.

A tumor, the size of a hazelnut, lying on the left side of the tuber annulare, and sunk into it. It extended to the left corpus pyramidale, compressing it and the abductor nerve, and was closely attached to the basilar artery, which contained at this place a small coagulum, and its coats were very soft. The tumor was in a state of imperfect suppuration.

Yelloly, Med. Chir. Trans. I.

Tuber annulare enlarged and lobulated, and changed into a gelatinous mass with white bands running through it. Effusion in the ventricles.

Bright.

The eases of this class present little variety in the symptoms. They are generally, headach with or without affections of the sight, and after some time weakness of one side, which gradually increases to perfect paralysis. In a case by Bonetus, and in another exactly similar by Blancardus, there was a tumor three inches long attached to the side of the third sinus. A gentleman, mentioned by Mr. Gooch, along with a variety of nervous symptoms, had an excruciating pain of one arm, beginning at the finger ends, and gradually ascending as high as the insertion of the deltoid. The arm at last became paralytic, and soon after he died of convulsion. Two small encysted tumors were found in the surface of the brain on the opposite side from the af-

fected arm. In a case by Bouillaud, with partial hemiplegia of the right side of long standing, with much derangement of speech and weakness of mind, there was a tumor the size of an egg in the anterior-lobe of the left hemisphere, and another smaller in the middle They were internally cellular, and contained blood mixed with a filamentous substance, and a matter resembling concrete pus.

§ II.—PARAPLEGIA.

Symptoms. CASE XXXVIII.-A man of 48-acute headach for a year followed by paraplegia. Five months after died sudden-

Morbid Appearances. Left lobe of the cerebellum was almost entirely scirrhous, of a pale flesh-colour, and seemed to be composed of numerous small corpuscles closely compacted, without any interstices, or any appearance of vessels.

Morgagni, Ep. 62.

CASE XXXIX. - A man of 35—fixed pain in the occiput extending down the neckoccasional vertigo and sickness. After five months hemiplegia of the left side and impaired vision. Hemiplegia diminished gradually, and after five or six months more, became liable to fits of stupor, which were preceded by violent pain and vertigo, and occurred occasionally twenty times in a day-blindness of the right eye-failure of memory-then paraplegia, and a fortnight before his death palsy of the upper extremities also .- Duration of the complaint was a year and eight months.

On the surface of the pons Varolii, there were two triangular fleshy tumors nearly united by their apices. The base of the one extended into the right crus cerebri, that of the other into the medulla oblongata. The disease penetrated into the substance of the pons. There was much effusion under the arachnoid.

Edin. Jour. XI, 470.

(35ES (

(JIE XL. -Sepria 80 shoot the w

cerd; and not absolut Produce by in which th gata; thou Universal p and XL, o tecorded un appear that train and in perticularly Dr. Hank 1826, ther in the brai toms had partial pa He died at three or fo peed exau tubercular The same

intellect, in

of a turke

wisphere.

a rid rid ritte. and there A 17 in the antenne 11: f in the middle or a multiple and contained

-LI SLIAI E IA

in a simot entirely semble to 1 . 1 i spile "sales out, and he composed if its men is small caro isoles chisely a may be. With ut apr riet. er se it and andearance of the

In the value of the grad The Court of the Court of the Court The Part Lands Coarly L. 1 1 Men spiese. Te bise the first less as a strength ich ice -] Tuli - 3 1819 til 1031 i 128 1 1 17 5: 19 Real Com The topog punitistel of the state of th w. Am. - No Middle 1 The Market Market

Symptoms. CASE XL .- A man, aged 63 -general and complete paralysis of the whole body, which came on gradually and insensibly, without any evident cause -speech indistinct-mind entire to the last. Died of gangrene of the nates.

Morbid Appearances.

A tumor the size of a hen's egg in the medullary substance of the left hemisphere, betwixt the fissure of Sylvius and the part which rests upon the tentorium. It was contained in a cyst, and was internally of a brownish colour and lardy consistence.

Bul. Fac. Med. May, 1816.

I have already alluded to the uncertainty which attends cases of this class, from the circumstance of there having been in general no examination of the spinal cord; and perhaps it may still be considered as a point not absolutely ascertained, whether disease in the brain produce paraplegia without any affection of the cord. If this does take place, it will probably be in those cases in which the disease is about the pons or medulla oblongata; though in these cases one should rather expect universal paralysis, such as occurred in Cases XXXIX. and XL, of this Supplement. From the observations recorded under the pathology of the spinal cord, it will appear that discase may frequently exist both in the brain and in the cord at the same time, and that this particularly is true of tubercles. In a case related by Dr. Hawkins in the Medical and Physical Journal for 1826, there were numerous scrofulous tubereles, both in the brain and cerebellum in a man of 23; the symptoms had been fits resembling epilepsy, with dysuria, partial paraplegia, and impaired speech and vision. He died after four months, having been comatose for three or four days before death. Had the spinal cord been examined in this case, it is very probable that tubercular disease would have been met with in it also. The same observation applies to a case by Bouillaud, in which there was paraplegia with loss of speech and intellect, in connexion with a tubercular mass, the size of a turkey's egg in the anterior part of the right hemisphere. A girl, aged 14, mentioned by Lallemand, had hemiplegia of the right side, of which she recovered; four months after she had paraplegia with loss of feeling, which extended over the abdomen and the thorax; she died in sixteen days. There was remarkable induration of a small part of the left lobe of the brain, on the outside of the ventriele, and in the vertebral canal there was extensive extravasation of blood with ramollissement of the cord at the seventh cervical vertebra.

SECTION VI.

SIXTH CLASS.—PROMINENT SYMPTOMS IN THE DIGESTIVE ORGANS.

Symptoms.

CASE XLI. - A medical man, in the meridian of life, had been for a year liable to attacks of dyspensia, with head-In October 1815, he had severe headach with fever, relieved by blood-letting; then complete want of digestion, headach, general emaciation, and frequent vomiting, which occurred chiefly in the morning. He had various uneasy feelings, which he referred to his liver, and his complaints were ascrihed to this source by the most eminent practitioners whom he consulted. In August 1816, he had severe headach, and nothing agreed with his stomach; almost every thing being vomited. After some time the pain was relieved, but the morning sickness and vomiting continued, with increasing emaciation, torpid bowels, frequent

Morbid Appearances.

Four ounces of fluid in the ventricles. On the inferior part of the left lobe of the cerebellum, there was an encysted tumor, the size of a French walnut, besides a vesicular portion connected with it, containing some yellow serum. The tumor was invested both by the dura mater and pia mater, and was attached by a small pedicle to the substance of the cerebellum, where it had formed a depression in which it was embedded. On the corresponding part of the opposite lobe there was a small florid tumor, the size of a large pea. The abdominal viscera were sound.

Med. Repos. vol. vii.

Supplems. In the end of September had twice a slight conrulsion. Headarh then periodical—mind entire, but conversation induced headach, and sometimes convension. October 9, died suddenly in analysion.

Case XIII.—An officer, age 27—constant nauses and inquest romiting — slight thereing of the perferantum — eatach and general undisposit to After a considerable to e. numbness of the right star. Fire weeks after this, he cad suddealy in the night.

Many other cases are on norbid appearances were in the most prominent sympton Some of these resemble who ach, while others are chieft disturbance of the digestive rally more or less headach in the head; but these regent, so that many of the part of their progress, b orms, the symptoms in Symptomatic, A boy, aged Lad loss of appetite, obtusing w he died after various interi found in the brain, one in quadragenina, and two oil Substance of the brain. the Medical Observations I are. There was remark. a price of the left like of the " FIRE!", and in the rettetoold by anterestation of prod orlathe seriata cervicio

To part 1.

in the letter of the letter

M High a.

and are ledel ledishe ereb . M. Le ble 31 fpinels The ST of a French The Ray dis - 12 main 31 per. · n the resolution to the tent. The n. We not singested hours by the The and pla mater, and -1 n. 11 ... 11 ... 1 57.8. 296. The country of the later where ! firmed! of the said letter of the said l Ild Birth

Symptoms. eructations, and hiccup. In the end of September had twice a slight convulsion. Headach then periodical-mind entire, but conversation induced headach, and sometimes convulsion. October 9, died suddenly in convulsion.

CASE XLII .- An officer, aged 27-constant nausea and frequent vomiting - slight thickening of the pericranium -headach and general indisposition. After a considerable time, numbness of the right side. Five weeks after this, he died suddenly in the night.

Morbid Appearances.

The dura mater covering the cerebellum at its posterior and inferior part was thickened and cartilaginous, and the diseased state had extended considerably into the substance of the cerebellum, where it lay in contact with it. Other parts of the cerebellum softened, membranes of the spinal cord hard and thickened. Thoracic and abdominal viscera sound.

Med. Repos. vol. viii.

Many other cases are on record, in which the only morbid appearances were in the head, though some of the most prominent symptoms had been in the stomach. Some of these resemble what has been called sick headach, while others are chiefly distinguished by remarkable disturbance of the digestive functions. There is generally more or less headach, with various uneasy feelings in the head; but these symptoms are sometimes not urgent, so that many of the cases have, through a great part of their progress, been referred to the digestive organs, the symptoms in the head being considered as symptomatic. A boy, aged 14, mentioned by Mangetus, had loss of appetite, obtuse headach, debility and emaciation; then vomiting, with more acute headach, and he died after various intermissions. Three tumors were found in the brain, one in the situation of the corpora quadrigemina, and two others the size of walnuts in the substance of the brain. A young man, mentioned in the Medical Observations and Inquiries, vol. vi. had

Symptoms. att ck occurred, from w did not recover; he w confined to bed with headach, giddiness, loss mory, and incoherence about the 12th day had pain and partial palsy left leg and arm. He ha teriect bemiplegia and and died about the 23d h s confinement.

CASES OF ORGA

Care XLIV.—A ma 16-after a wound in th which healed readily, ha Sant headach for five yes a half; then fits of which came on at un i terrals, sometimes to reek, sometimes once night. They generally at at an hour and a ba he had warning of th Freach so as to lay] down. In the intervals functions were natural. seren or eight months, th careins became more fre and he died suddenly in

K-. TAIR 38k) agail 28, severe headac Eint Fertino, Dansea, occ vaning, frequent rigor ato designess of the left es the left eye somewhat as A ter seral mouths the a interest, with occur bar tring of coma, an at last rather stid se been for a day o bead and face.

various complaints in the head and bowels, which were ascribed to worms. After some time he had attacks of stupor and forgetfulness, and died delirious. The only morbid appearance was ossification of no great extent in the dura mater, with appearances of inflammation in the adjoining membranes. Similar ossification in the falx was found by Dr. Lettsom, as the only morbid appearance in a gentleman who had been long affected with a train of obscure complaints, the most urgent of which were obtuse headach, with frequent vomiting. (Mem. Med. Soc. of London, vol. iii.) On the other hand, it is to be kept in mind that similar ossifications have been met with in cases in which there existed no symptoms that could be ascribed to them. This part of the subject, therefore, is involved in much obscurity.

SECTION VII.

SEVENTH CLASS .- VERTIGO AND APOPLECTIC SYMP-TOMS-SLIGHT AND TRANSIENT APOPLECTIC AT-TACKS.

Symptoms.

CASE XLIII .- A man, aged 73-headach, with oceasional attacks of giddiness, and loss He did not of recollection. generally fall down, but sometimes continued walking, without knowing whither he was gning; at other times the attack resembled intoxication; his gait was feeble and tottering, and the attacks gradually inereased in frequency and violence, though he generally recovered his recollection in a very short time; but at length, after six months, a more severe

Morbid Appearances.

Three ounces of fluid in the ventricles, cerebral substance In the posterior very firm. lobe of the right hemisphere, there was a firm tumor the size of a small pigeon's egg; internally of a pale flesh-colour, and granular texture. It was not enclosed in a capsule; but, for a considerable part of its eirenmference, was covered by a texture resembling the fibrous bands of carcinoma. The tumor communicated with the ventriele so as to form part of the wall of the posterior and ed to-le, which wire ed Linois. The colv of it a mination in the heat in in the fely : We se alland of which 1971 r miting. Mem.

TAD IS LIT. III SIMP-

SPIENT APUPLECTIC AT-

Will control. The death is

The state of the s

Jens : Symptones

The second secon

Symptoms. attack occurred, from which he did not recover; he was now confined to bed with severe headach, giddiness, loss of memory, and incoherence; and about the 12th day had severe pain and partial palsy of the left leg and arm. He had then general convulsion, followed by perfect hemiplegia and coma, and died about the 23d day of his confinement.

CASE XLIV .- A man, aged 36—after a wound in the head, which healed readily, had constant headach for five years and a half; then fits of stupor, which came on at uncertain intervals, sometimes twice a week, sometimes once a fortnight. They generally lasted about an hour and a half, and he had warning of their approach so as to lay himself down. In the intervals all the functions were natural. After seven or eight months, the paroxysms became more frequent, and he died suddenly in one of them.

CASE XLV. - A woman, aged 28, severe headach, constant vertigo, nausea, occasional vomiting, frequent rigors, pain and deafness of the left ear, and the left eye somewhat affected. After several months the headach increased, with occasional paroxysms of coma, and she died at last rather suddenly, having been for a day or two affected with extensive erysipelas of the head and face.

Morbid Appearances. inferior cornua, and the margin of the pes hippocampi was attached to it. The pia mater lining the ventricle at this place was very vascular.

Communicated by Dr. Hunter.

A scrofulous tumor, larger than a hen's egg, in the middle of the left hemisphere of the brain, extending in depth to nearly on a line with the corpus callosum. It seemed to be merely a part of the brain in an indurated state. A piece of bone, the size of the finger-nail, was attached to the left side of the longitudinal sinus. veins on the left hemisphere were more distended with blood than those on the right.

Med. Chir. Trans. IV, 183.

A remarkable tumor under the base of the brain on the left side, resting on the petrous portion of the temporal bone. It consisted of three portions; the anterior was the size of an egg, of a pink colour, and composed of a spungy vascular substance, like the texture of the placenta, interspersed with small cysts, containing a puriform fluid; the posterior portion was half the size of the former, and of similar structure, but firmer; the

and nearly cartilaginous structure. The petrous portion of the bone on which the tumor rested was absorbed to the depth of half an inch.

Author's Notes.

CASE XLVI.—A lady, aged 64—attacks of headach; giddiness and imperfect vision, occurring at uncertain intervals; afterwards mania; at last, after five years, death with fever and delirium.

CASE XLVII.—A woman, aged 65—palsy of the right leg, of long standing; lancinating pains of the head, occurring at intervals; attacks of insensibility; death from gradual coma after an apoplectic attack.

Two small aneurisms, each about five-eighths of an inch in diameter, formed by dilatation of the internal carotid arteries, by the side of the cella Turcica. and containing laminæ of coagulated blood.

Trans. of a Soc. II. 193.

Extravasation of blood and ramollissement. The anterior part of the left hemisphere was very much hardened, and of a reddish colour. In the substance of the right hemisphere there was an oval tumor of a reddish colour, partly hard and partly softened.

Rostan.

I have formerly described a very important case referable to this class, connected with a remarkable tumor formed by a deposition of new matter betwixt the laminæ of the dura mater,—(see Case VI. page 44,) and there are many others on record exhibiting some varieties of the symptoms. In some we find constant uncasiness, with vertigo; in others, transient apopleetic attacks, while the patient in the intervals enjoys tolerable health. In other cases again, there is a constant complaint of slight and habitual giddiness, commonly called weakness of the head, often accompanied by unsteadiness of the limbs. In a case of the first kind, by Zeder, he found numerous hydatids in the brain, one particularly, in the passage to the aqueduet of Silvius, and containing within it three smaller hydatids. The case

noted from Lancisi h d apopletic attack was sometimes a shaki emprosthotonos; at otl and fell down, deprived was never entirely free tise excited giddiness, w esting. He died sudo were found several ossec parietal and occipital mater, which was inflam (Goods Appendix, p. To this class also below ed with organic disease a gradual loss of the H Plaint of pain, or any t ing kind, which termin letharry, Platerus found size of a moderate app La similar case, by B tins encysted tumor in t Mostled Appearance.

Let us a was toe use a wan a ci a white oil us, a man be call us, a man be call us.

Learly carribation as stone.

The periods portion of the union of the control of the union of the control of t

Two ye all aneurisms, each cout five-right to of an inch in frameter. I must be dilatation it to enternal can tild attents, by the vide of the cells furtica, and containing laming of coars at the vide.

Ir w. of a Sx. 11. 192

Extraversal not bland and the entropy of the entrop

I a rery important case re
Arriva a remarkable tumor

Letwist the lami
Letwist the lami
Letwist one rate
I shall some rate
I shall some

which I have just referred to (Case VI.) affords a remarkable example of the other elass of eases distinguished by transient apopletic attacks; and I have quoted from Lancisi the case of a gentleman who had apopletic attacks, connected with thickening of the membranes, and a polypous tumor under the frontal bone. A gentleman, mentioned by Gooch, had been for several years liable to attacks in which there was sometimes a shaking of the head, and a kind of emprosthotonos; at other times he became vertiginous, and fell down, deprived of sense for a short time. He was never entirely free from headach, and brisk exereise excited giddiness, which went off immediately upon resting. He died suddenly in convulsion, and there were found several osseous points arising from the right parietal and occipital bones, and irritating the dura mater, which was inflamed, and beginning to mortify.— (Gooch's Appendix, p. 237.)

To this class also belong the eases in which, connected with organic disease of the brain, there has occurred a gradual loss of the mental faculties with little complaint of pain, or any urgent symptom. In a case of this kind, which terminated in perfect stupidity or lethargy, Platerus found a firm fleshy-looking tumor the size of a moderate apple, above the corpus callosum. In a similar case, by Bouillaud, there was a steatoma-

tous encysted tumor in the right hemisphere.

FINIS.

J. THOMSON, PRINTER, MILNE SQUARE.











